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an early acceptance of its proposals.A nnnnnnn-
1. Ambassador Nomura Complains of Lack of Coordination Between Japanese Foreign Office and

Navy (October 18, 1941) n n n n n- h n n n n n n n n- h h h h h n n- n n n n nn-

2. Tokyo Refuses Ambassador Nomura's Resignation (October 23, 1941)3.of---n-n-nnnnnn-n------4.5.W-n-nn-nnnn-----h-h--h--n-
(a) Under Secretary Welles' Report n n n n n n h h _nn- n n n n n n n n n n h

(b) Minister Wakasugi's Reportnnnn-hh-U---n-nnn--n-nnn-nn-
6. Tokyo Urges American Reply to Japanese Proposals n n n n n h n n n n n n n n n n n n n n7.
8. Minister Wakasugi Reports on Status of Japanese-American Relations un _nnn- _n- nn _nnnn_nn9.10._nn-nn-----hh--unnn-
11. Grew-Togo Interview (October 30, 1941) hh h n n n- n n n n n n n n n n nn h n- h h-

(a) Ambassador Grew's Report h h n _n n n nn n n n n n n _n h- n n

(b) Foreign Minister Togo's Report n n h n n n n _n h h h- _n n n n n n n n n n n

12. Tokyo Questions Nomura on American Proposal n n n n n _n n n n n n n n n n _n h- h n13.ofn-n-nn----hh--hhh
14. Ambassador Grew Learns Japanese Cabinet's Plans n n nn n n n n n n n n n h h n n-

15. Ambassador Grew Reports on Situation in Japan n n n _n n- h _hh n n n n- n n n n n n-16.toh
16-A. Japan Plans to Attack Hawaii on December 7, 1941-(November 5-7, 1941) n _n_n_nnnnn_n _n-

17. Ambassador Grew Receives Japanese Informant n _n n n n nn n n n n nn n n h h.18.h
19. Japan Instructs Ambassador Nomura in Final Proposals _nnn- n_n- _nn- _nnnn_nnn._n- nnn

20. Ambassador Kurusu Leaves for Washington n- n n n n n nn nn nn n n n h-

21. Japan Seeks Agreement with Britain and the Netherlands nnn__nh __hhh _hhhh___hhn

22. Tokyo Receives English Translation of Proposals u-- --n n n n n n n n n n nn n n n n n _n-

23. Japan to Avoid lli!tified Treaty with United States nn_--nnn__nnn_n_nnn_nnnn_n_n_n-

24. Japanese Diet Accepts Cabinet's Counter Proposals -.n n hn h h h h hh h h h h h- n

25. Ambassador Nomura to Guard Secrecy of Conferences hhh_- _h_h n__hh_hh- hhn--_n--nn-

26. Japanese Newspapers Publicize Tokyo's Proposals

27. Japanese and American Newspapers Impair Diplomatic Negotiations --_u _nn-

29. Hull-Nomura Conversation (November 7, 1941) n n n n n nn n n- n n nn n n n nn-

(a) State Department's Report n _h h _h hh h h h n- u n nn n- n n n n(b)n-nnnn-n_n-nn---nnn-n---n---
30. Tokyo Re-emphasizes Policy of Self-Defense h- h h h h- _h- h- h h n h n

31. Mr. Horiuchi Arranges for Undelayed Delivery of Telegrams n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n-

32. Foreign Ministry Bans Publication of Negotiations -
33. President Roosevelt Confers with Naval Leaders (November 7, 1941)

34. Japan Interested in Hull's Proposed Settlement of the China Affair n_nhn n_n_n n_nnh35.on
36. Grew-Togo Conversation (November 10, 1941) n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n-

(a) Ambassador Grew's Report n n n n n nn nnn n n n n n n nn n n _n n n _n n n-

(b) Foreign Minister Togo's Report h h h h h h h h h h h n u
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(October 17, 1941- November 20,1941)

Advent of the Tojo Cabinet and Redoubling of Japanese Government's Insistence Upon an
Early Acceptance of Its Proposals. 11.ofof
Navy (October 18, 1941)

certain things which had taken place in spite of his personal recommendations had forcedhimtohistoa
Since Minister Wakasugi and Mr. Iguchi were capable of handling negotiations,

personally on the existing Japanese-American situation and to receive instructions regarding
future policies. I.

ment to the post in the United States, there had existed a complete lack of coordination
between the Japanese Navy Department and the Japanese Foreign Office. 2

Referring again to Japanese-American problems, Ambassador Nomura emphasized that,

although the United States might desire to avoid military action in the Pacific because it

reason, Ambassador Nomura had attempted to bring about a "modus vivendi" between

Japan that a "modus vivendi" should be worked out in order to avoid a crisis in the Far East.

as Ambassador from Japan possibly because of his lack of understanding of the principles of
the present Japanese government.3 In fact, Ambassador Nomura frankly stated that he should
have been asked to resign along with the members of the former Japanese Cabinet. In spite of

a hypocritical existence as Japanese Ambassador to the United States. Although not anxious
"to flee from the field of battle", Ambassador Nomura urged his government to order his recall. 4

I Chapter title taken from the division arrangement of the State Department documents-Papers Relating to theofthein
ton, 1943, Volume II, 343. Hereafterreferred to as S.D., II.laIV,No.1.IVbetoas1.

'IV, 2.

'Ibid.

'IV, 3.

1

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORCHAPTERIVPARTA-HULL-NOMURACONVERSATIONSAmbassadorNomuraComplainsLackCoordinationBetweenJapaneseForeignOfficeandquestionownvaluefutureJapanesegovernment. 
ForeignRelationsUnitedStates-Japan,1931-1941twovolumes,U.S.GovernmentPrintingOffice,Washing-AppendixHereafterAppendixwillreferredIV, 

FollowingchangegovernmentinJapan,NomuraonOctober18,1941,offeredhiscongratulationsnewCabinet.Atsametime,however,pointedoutthatthroughouttermofofthethethethetheformerJapaneseCabinethehehadbeenunableaccomplishanythingthroughJapanese-Americanconversations.AccordingtototoAmbassadorAmbassadorNomura, AmbassadorNomurarequestedthathebeallowedreturnJapaninorde~tototoreport Twodayslater,onOctober20,1941,AmbassadorNomurastatedthat,sincehisappoint-alreadyfacedwithwaronAtlanticfront,Americawouldstillrefuserenounceitsnationalpolicieseventotoeffectaconcilation.InAmbassadorNomura'sopinion,ChinawaswasprimarilyresponsibleforpresentattitudeofthethetheUnitedStatestowardJapan.Forthat twocountries,leavingoutquestionentirely.ButSecretaryHullhadinsistedChinaChinawasinseparablyconcernedstabilityofthethethethePacific.However,fromaconversationLordHalifax,Ambassador

NomuralearnedthatthatGreatBritainagreedwithwithwith Attheconclusionofreport,AmbassadorNomurare-emphasizedhishisineffectiveposition theencouragementSecretaryHullandotherAmericanstatesmenwhotrustedsincerity,AmbassadorNomurarecognizedthathishislackofofactualinfluenceinJapanforcedhimtolead



2. Tokyo Refuses Ambassador Nomura's Resignation (October 23,1941)
After considering Ambassador Nomura's report of the Japanese-American situation and

his request for a transfer of duty, on October 23, 1941 Tokyo asked that Ambassador Nomura
sacrifice his personal wishes and remain at his post. Assuring Ambassador Nomura that the

policies of the Japanese government, determined by the outcome of these negotiations,

would be based upon the information which Ambassador Nomura forwarded.5

kept well informed on any changes of policy made in Tokyo, the Foreign Office assured the
Japanese Ambassador that instructions had been unavoidably delayed because of the forma-

United States on an equitable basis. Yet, Ambassador Nomura was told that the Japanese

government, having set forth its principles completely, could take no further action.

In order to emphasize Japan's desire that a formal United States counter proposal to the

Japanese document of September 25, 1941 be submitted, the Japanese government urged

Ambassador Nomura to discuss this matter discreetly with American representatives.?4.
Realizing that the trend of events in Europe would affect the situation in the Pacific,

Britain and Germany.

In the latter part of October, 1941 Ambassador Nomura was told that Germany was preparing

satisfied with taking Ethiopia, Syria and Iraq, and since Lloyd George appeared to be gaining

continue to place their trust in Prime Minister Churchill and that President Roosevelt,
representing the United States government as a whole, would assist the British in with-
standing German movements.

Yet, Ambassador Nomura felt it necessary to point out that up until this time his
informant had believed in a German defeat while now he was convinced that Germany and
Great Britain were ready to arrive at a satisfactory peace.95.W

a. Under Secretary Welles'Reporeo

and economic relations.

to those offered by Tokyo on September 25, 1941. In reply, Mr. Welles pointed out that during

5IV, 4.
.IV, 5.
'Ibid.
8IV,6.
"Ibid. bytheof

Japanesegovernmentwasrelyingcomplet'elyuponhisjudgement,Tokyostatedthatthe 3.JapaneseGovernmentDeclaresPoliciesofNewCabinet
AgreeingwithAmbassadorNomurathattheJapaneseEmbassyinWashingtonmustbe tionofanewCabinet.6TokyoassuredAmbassadorNomura,however,thatthenewCabinetstillretainedthedesireoftheformerJapanesegovernmenttoadjustrelationswiththe AmbassadorNomuraReportsBritish-GermanPeaceRumors8

AmbassadorNomurakepthisgovernmentinformedondevelopmentsinthewarbetween toofferGreatBritaingenerouspeaceterms.SincetheBritishpublicwasapparently inpopularityoverPrimeMinisterChurchill,itwasthoughtthatHitler'sofferofpeacemightbeaccepted.Ontheotherhand,AmbassadorNomurabelievedthattheEnglishpeoplewould 

elles-WakasugiConversation(October24,1941)
AthisownrequestMr.WakasugicalleduponUnderSecretaryofStateSumnerWellesonOctober24,1941toinformtheUnitedStatesgovernmentthatthenewJapaneseCabinetdesiredtocontinuetheinformalconversationswithaviewtoresumingfriendlydiplomatic Mr.WakasugitheninquiredwhethertheUnitedStateshadanycounterproposalstomake 

!O"MemorandumUnderSecretaryStateWelles",October24,1941,S.D.II,692-697.
2 



the past seven or eight months the United States government had earnestly endeavored to

parts of that government had created an atmosphere detrimental to the conclusion of such
an agreement.11 The recent public statement made by an officer of the Japanese navy

appearing in Japanese newspapers created a serious obstacle to any satisfactory agreement
which might be arrived at during the informal conversations.

In an attempt to show that the attitude of the United States government was not wholly
conducive to peace, Minister Wakasugi stated that he had seen a statement by Secretary

United States navy was forced to remain on twenty-four hour duty. In correcting this inter-

to announce that "it was itching to fight" with the United States, Mr. Welles pointed out,
the United States navy had to adopt precautionary measures. Although anxious to find a

States government must seriously consider the attitude of the Japanese press and public as a
whole.

In answering Minister Wakasugi's questions regarding American counter proposals to those

in previous conversations with Mr. Wakasugi had emphasized that the views of the United
States government had been completely clarified in the communication handed to the
Japanese government on June 21, 1941. Since another United States document was delivered
to the Japanese Embassy on October 2, 1941, Mr. Welles did not feel that any further counter
proposals would be forthcoming from his government. In fact, during the last conversation

upon the Japanese representative the benefits which Japan would derive from following those
economic principles already laid down by the American government in the documents
mentioned. Minister Wakasugi stated that he had transmitted the details of that conversa-
tion to his government but had received no opinions upon it from Tokyo.

to find a practical, concrete basis for an agreement with the United States on any phase of the
situation affecting the Pacific. However, the interference of both American and Japanese
gentlemen, introducing certain peace formulas without any authority from either govern-
ment, had succeeded in complicating the situation. Since these unofficial, unauthorized
documents had created misunderstandings, Minister Wakasugi suggested that a fresh ap-

that all the officials of the United States government would be willing to contribute any
time and effort necessary to arrive at a satisfactory agreement.

11Ibid. of
Imperial Navy is itching for action when needed." It is important to note here that the promotion of Premier Tojo to full19,offoranytotheaandtheofthetwoain

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
establishthebasisforanequitableagreementbetweenthetwogovernments.However,recentstatementsmadebyprominentauthoritiesoftheJapanesearmyandnavyandother declaringthattheJapanesenavywas"itchingtofighe2"hadhadanundesirableeffectupontheAmericannavy.Furthermore,Mr.Wellescontinued,thetoneofarticlesandeditorials KnoxindicatingthatbecausewarbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStateswasinevitable13,the pretation,Mr.WellesinsistedthatthestatementattributedtoSecretaryKnoxmerelyimpliedthatthesituationwassuchthatsomeincidentmightpossiblyoccurandconsequentlytheUnitedStatesnavymustbepreparedforanemergency.Ifthe~Japanesenavywaswilling successfuloutcometothepresentconversations,UnderSecretaryWellessaid,theUnited offeredbyJapanonSeptember25,1941,Mr.WellesstatedthatbothheandSecretaryHull betweenMr.HullandMinisterWakasugi,theAmericanSecretaryofStatehadimpressed AsfarbackasApril1941,MinisterWakasugideclared,hehadurgedAmbassadorNomura proachtothesituationbemadebyhavingbothgovernmentssubmitentirelynewformulas,settingforthbasicprinciplesuponwhichtoformulatepeace.Mr.Wellesstated 

"CaptainHideoHiraide,DirectortheNavalIntelligenceSectionofImperialHeadquarters,Stated-"theGeneral(NewYorkTimes,October1:6),andthestatementNavalMinisterShimadathattheJapanesenavywasreadysituation,addedexistingmartialatmosphere.(NewYorkTimes,October20,1941,3:1,3,4.)13TheNewYorkTimesreportedthatSecretaryKnox'sstatementthatJapanese-Americanwarwasinevitableclashcountriesonlyfewdaysahead,wasviewedJapanasunfortunate.(October25,1941,1:8).
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From the standpoint of expediency, Mr. Welles felt it advisable to reach an agreement on
the economic principles first. Therefore he was anxious to illustrate to the new Japanese
Cabinet the practical advantages Japan would experience if Secretary Hull's economic

British Imperial preferences, Japan would be able to trade with Canada, Australia and

that Japan's modern history up to the year 1930, a time when its relationship with both
Great Britain and the United States was most friendly, showed Japan capable of becoming one

the "have and have not nations" had caused Japan to adopt its aggressive policies. Disagreeing

national determinations of policy regardless of Germany or Italy, and in spite of the liberal
tendencies of Japan's younger generation. Nevertheless, Mr. Welles replied, Japan had

but turned the conversation to the Japanese-Chinese situation. In order that every approach
be undertaken to settle this conflict, Minister Wakasugi suggested that Mr. Welles meet
with the Chinese Ambassador and any other Chinese officials to discuss the problems in a
purely unofficial manner. If President Roosevelt intended to mediate in the peace between
Japan and China, Minister Wakasugi believed it advantageous to ascertain the attitude of the
Chiang Kai-shek government. Since Under Secretary of State Welles did not feel authorized
to give even a personal and unofficial response without careful consideration, he promised
to discuss the suggestion in a future conversation with Mr. Wakasugi.

be resumed as soon as detailed instructions were forthcoming from Tokyo. After promising

to notify Secretary Welles of any further instructions from his government without delay,

Minister Wakasugi ended the conversation14.

b. Minister Wakasugi's Report

In compliance with Tokyo's instructions, Ambassador Nomura ordered Minister Wakasugi to

friendly fashion 15.

explain that the new Japanese Cabinet, anxious for an immediate readjustment of relations,

Japanese government had entirely clarified its principles. Minister Wakasugi then asked that
the United States make a counter proposal to the Japanese document of September 25, 1941.

Mr. Welles pointed out that the attitude of Japanese statesmen and newspapers was
provoking the breach of diplomatic relations, and cited the example of the naval spokesman
who said that "the Japanese navy is 'itching for action.'16"

In reply, Minister Wakasugi referred to the criticisms of Japan that Senator Pepper had made
and to the speech of Secretary Knox, who was quoted as saying that a Japanese-American war

as a morale-builder for the United States Navy, Mr. Welles said that Secretary Knox often
used exaggerated terms to achieve this purpose. Furthermore, Mr. Welles blamed the

""Memorandum by the Under Secretary of State, Welles", October 24,1941, S.D. n, 692-697.

"IV, 7.
16IV, 8.
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policieswereadopted.Mr.WellespointedoutthattheabolitionofsuchtradebarriersasNewZealandwithoutdangerofdiscrimination.
Mr.Wakasugiagreedwholeheartedly,butheinsistedthatalackofnaturalresourcesmadeJapanthevictimofeconomicaggressionandencirclement.UnderSecretaryWellesreturned ofthegreatpowersoftheworld.Mr.WellescontinuedthatonlyHitler'spropagandaabout withMr.Welles'conclusions,MinisterWakasugiassertedthatJapanhadpursueditsown allieditselfofficiallyandpubliclywiththeAxispolicies.Mr.Wakasugimadenocomment, AlthoughMinisterWakasugimadenoreferencetoanyplansforAmbassadorNomura'sdeparture,hespecificallystatedthattheconversationsbetweenthetwogovernmentswould continuehisinformalconversationswithUnderSecretaryofStateSumnerWellesina Throughoutthehour-longconversationwithMr.Welles,MinisterWakasugiattemptedto sawnoreasonwhynegotiationsshouldnotbeconcludedwithoutfurtherdelaysincethe wasonlyafewdaysoff.ToconvinceMinisterWakasugithatthisspeechwasmerelyintended 



newspapers for placing too much emphasis on certain passages of the speech, thereby
throwing the entire speech out of proportion.

In replying to Minister Wakasugi's request for an American counter proposal to the Japanese
statement of September 25, 1941, Mr. Welles stated that the principles of his governmenttoof

Since the mere consideration of each paragraph of past proposals would only result in the
repetition of old arguments, Mr. Welles suggested that a general agreement be reached on the

State Welles continued, it would be necessary to work out some understanding with regard to

transmitted Secretary Hull's proposal to his government. Minister Wakasugi assured Mr.

Welles that he had done so. Mr. Welles then touched on the possibility of adjusting the
United States and Japanese views toward the Tripartite Paces.

Wakasugi asked that United States authorities enumerate suggestions in the form of a proposal
and submit them to the Japanese representatives during the next conversation.

Welles said, the United States banking laws required strict investigation of all deposits.
In view of the fact that the money allotted to these ships had been transferred to an account

degree of the former friendly Japanese-American trade relations, Mr. Welles promised thatthein
6. Tokyo Urges American Reply to Japanese Proposals

Anxious to receive the United States' reply to its proposals of September 25, 1941, the

Foreign Office in Tokyo urged Ambassador Nomura to attempt to ascertain the United States'

attitude through the continuation of the informal conversations.21 The Japanese government

25,194122.

In answering Ambassador Nomura's questions regarding a message sent by the Military

of the Japanese-American negotiations in an attempt to establish a national basic policy24.7.
"IV, 9.

l8IV, 10.

!'Ibid.

2"IV, 11.

2lIV,12.

"The State Department records no conversation between Under Secretary of State Welles and Minister Waka-

sugi on October 25, 1941.

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR1941wereadjustedparallelthattheJapaneseproposalofSeptember25,194117. 
StateDepartmentwouldassisttransferringthemoneythroughanAmericanbank.2O
AmbassadorNomuraConferswithAdmiralPratt(October25,1941)25 

wereclearlysetforthinUnitedStates1941.However,Mr.WellesfeltthatasolutioncouldbeeffectedifwordingthethetheAmericanproposalproposalofofofJuneJune21,21, threemajorproblemsbymeansanewshort-cutformula.Firstall,UnderSecretaryofofof commerce.AtthispointintheconversationMr.WellesaskedifMinisterWakasugihad Finally,whenMr.WellesturneddiscussiontothetheChinaquestion19,Minister NextMinisterWakasugimentionedtwoJapanesetankersandthreeshipsline.AllarrangementsforsailingtheseNYKNYKvesselshadbeencompletedbyTreasuryDepartment.However,withregardtomattermatterofofofofthethethethethethethetankers,Mr. withYokohamaSpecieBankandbecauseofUnitedStates'freezingorder,itwasimpossiblereleasethethethefundseitherincashordraftform.Inanefforttotomaintainsome hopedthatAmericanviewswouldbeclarified

duringtheWelles-WakasugitalkonOctober Staff23,JapanesegovernmentstatedthatGeneralGeneralStaffwasstudyingthethetheresults On27,1941AmbassadorNomurareportedtoTokyoonOctoberOctober25hehadspokenwithAdmiralPrattconcerningtheJapanese-Americansituation.Atthatthattime 23IV,7.12."IV,"IV,13.5 



as devastating as actual armed conflict.

the opinion that war would not be declared should Japan's aggression in the Far East
be limited to China. If Japan moved either northward or southward, Admiral Pratt warned,

would rest with President Roosevelt and Emperor Hirohito.
Agreeing that Secretary Knox's speech was unfortunate, Admiral Pratt stated that Japan

attempt to give Ambassador Nomura a clear picture of the navy's attitude toward Japan,
Admiral Pratt said that the views of Admiral Stark, who was actually the Commander-in-
Chief of the Navy, and those of President Roosevelt coincided. Admiral Pratt continued
by saying that President Roosevelt sincerely desired to maintain the peace and stability

of strong influence.

Referring then to the European war, Admiral Pratt said that Mr. Harriman, recently sent to
Russia by the United States, had reported that Germany would be the victor in the German-
Russian war and that Stalin was not even in a position to discuss peace.

did not feel that Italy could afford to seek a separate peace since it would put that country
in a position similar to that of France.

should be saved for Great Britain and that Japan, in order to have a voice in the peace, should
maintain its naval strength and avoid impairing its might on the seas26.

8. Minister Wakasugi Reports on Status of Japanese-American Relations
Since Japanese-American relations were approaching a crisis, Minister Wakasugi felt it

necessary to send Tokyo an informal report on the general attitude toward the Pacific

desire to crush so-called "Hitlerism" throughout the world. In order to prevent the establish-

China as a first line of national defense. Determined to plan for a long-term program of peace,
the United States instructed its government and people that no local agreements concerning
separate questions in the Pacific area could be drawn up with Japan. For that reason, Secretary
Hull insisted upon a general understanding covering the entire Pacific area.

Under Secretary of State had made it clear that the United States would continue to advocate
absolute non-discrimination for Japan, the United States, Britain, China, Australia and the

ment Minister Wakasugi replied that the United States presumed that Japan would develop
French Indo-Chinese and Thaiese areas in a monopolistic manner by means of military force.
For that reason, the United States insisted that all countries be given equal access to the
natural resources of French Indo-China and Thailand.

Referring next to the effect of the China problem on Japanese-American relations, Minister
Wakasugi said that the United States would ~eal with it as only one phase of the "peace

26 Ibid.

"IV, 14.
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AdmiralPratthadadmittedtoAmbassadorNomurathateconomicwarfareproducedresults Inregardtoopenwarfarebetweenthetwocountries,however,AdmiralPrattexpressed warbetweenUnitedStatesandJapanmightbedeclared,althoughthethefinaldecision shouldbeconsideredwhenanymagazinearticlesorradiospeecheswerewritten.Inan Pacificarea,andthatthetheviewsofofAdmiralHartmustbeconsideredsincehewasaman Italy'sstatusintheEuropeanwarwasalittleunstable,accordingtoAdmiralPratt;he InconcludinghistalkwithAmbassadorNomura,AdmiralPrattsaidthattheAtlantic situationwhichhehadobservedthroughnumerousconferenceswithAmericanrepresenta­tives27.ThebasicpolicyofUnitedStates,accordingtoMinisterWakasugi,wasthethe mentthisneworderthroughforceofofarms,thetheUnitedStatesset

upGreatBritainand DuringconversationbetweenWakasugiandMr.Mr.WellesonOctober24,1941,thethe NetherlandsEastIndiesthroughoutthePacific.Underpolicyeverynationofferedothercountriesopportunitiesequaltotothoseexistingbetweenitselfanditscolonies.Tothisthisstate. inthePacific"issue.Furthermore,MinisterWakasugiremindedTokyothatSecretaryHull 



had once stated to former Ambassador Saito that the United States would never war with

negotiating with the Treasury Department to secure even greater financial assistance for

it did not seem probable that the United States would cut off its aid to China.

Yet, in spite of the insistence of the United States to continue supplying China with the

Minister Wakasugi that the United States would not be unreasonable in making demands

Wakasugi, he felt that they could be interpreted as meaning that the United States would

apparent that Japanese-American relations were,at a breaking-point.

22, 1941 proposals. Minister Wakasugi did not believe that the United States' informal con-

versations were means of gaining time, however, since American preparations in the event of

further counter proposals would be forthcoming from the United States government nor that

any concessions would be made. If Japan were to insist upon an immediate settlement of
differences, Minister Wakasugi believed that all negotiations would be terminated. Therefore,

continued attempt to break down differences of opinion.

Minister Wakasugi asked that the new Japanese Cabinet inform him of its basic policies

as speedily as possible in order that he might know what attitude to take in future

conversations with American representatives.,28

9. Ambassador Nomura Reveals American Attitude Toward Japan

ment, reporting on the general attitude seen throughout official circles regarding the present
situation with Japan.29

reporting this condition to Mr. Kasai, Admiral Standley stated that Germany's propaganda
had been very effective. The Editor of the Army-Navy Journal, had also expressed the opinion
that German propaganda was largely responsible for the pro-German attitude of the Middle
West.

Furthermore, Secretary Hull, speaking before Congress, pointed to the Tripartite Pact as

Great Britain, Germany hoped to push America's line of defense back to its shores.

weakness by consenting to the demands of the Axis powers. Secretary Hull felt that Tokyo,
as well as Berlin, would increase its demands unless the United States built up a strength
too powerful for either nation to face. Secretary Hull felt that Japan's attitude toward the
Tripartite Pact would be largely determined by the outcome of the German-Russian war.

28 Ibid.

29IV, 15.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
JapanoverChina.Onhand,ChinawasrelyingsolelyuponthetheUnitedStatesforaidincarryingonitswarfarewithJapan.Mr.T.V.SoongandotherotherChineseofficialswere theircountry.InviewoffactthatChinawasentirelydependentuponthetheUnitedStates, meansforcontinuingitswarfarewithJapan,Mr.Welles,onOctober24,1941,hadassured uponJapan.AlthoughtheimplicationsofhisstatementwerenotentirelycleartoMinister notinsistthatJapanwithdrawitstroopsfromChinaimmediately.RegardlessofanyinterpretationplaceduponthestatementsmadebyAmericanofficials,however,itwas AlthoughUnitedStatesinsistedthatanxiousadjustconditionsbetweentwocountries,ititwaswaswillingtotoeffectanagreementonlyonthethethebasisofitsJuneandOctober warwerealreadycompleted.Atthesame

time,MinisterWakasugididnotexpectthatany hesuggestedthatJapanesegovernmentcontinuethetheinformalconversationsina Thesameday,October29,1941,AmbassadorNomurasentasimilarreporttohisgovern-BecauseMiddleWestwaspopulatedbymanyAmericansGermandescent,thissectionofofthethecountryopposedwarwithGermanybutfavoredaJapanese-Americanwar.In aninstrumentbeusedagainsttheStates.BycuttingoffUnitedUnitedStates'aidtoto Althoughdesiringpeace,SecretaryHullfeltthattheUnitedStatesmustnotexhibit 



Ambassador Nomura had further learned from one of his representatives that Assistant

Secretary of State, Breckenridge Long, had said that the United States would not be able to
arrive at any agreement before November 15 when the Japanese Diet would meet.

In reporting Britain's attitude toward the Japanese-American situation, Lord Halifax said
that although Great Britain would back the United States' policies in accordance with Prime
Minister Churchill's speech, the British hoped that Japan would give the Pacific problems
thorough study and arrive at a satisfactory answer. Lord Halifax declined to discuss British
or American embargo restrictions on Japan. 3010.On25,a
Emperor had called a conference of the leading members of the Privy Council and the

to give a definite indication that they were prepared to pursue a peaceful policy in their rela-
tions with the United States, the Japanese Emperor, following the progressive policy ofandon

In spite of the recent anti-American attitude of the Japanese press, the informant insisted
that the present political leaders desired nothing more than an immediate adjustment of
relations with the United States. In an endeavor to conclude the present conversations
successfully, Mr. Togo, the new Foreign Minister, promised to resign his post if he failed
in attaining this goal. .

of Japanese armed forces in China and French Indo-China, the Japanese informant felt that
the leaders of his government would be able to settle the problems satisfactorily if Japan
were not asked to remove all its troops immediately. For the first time in ten years, the in-
formant continued, the political organization in Japan presented an opportunity for re-
orientation of policy and action.32

time, however, the Japanese press was commenting to a great extent on Secretary Knox's
remarks regarding the United States' conviction that Japan's policy of expansion would
eventually end in an unavoidable conflict with the United States.33

September 29, 1941 in which he stated that constructive results could be produced by a

aggressive program by continuing negotiations. Unless the United States placed a reason-

orientation in Japan which would eventually lead to an improvement in Japanese-American
relations, the initial force and impetus of these informal conversations would be entirely lost.34

30 Ibid.
31 bythein
32 Ibid.

33"Memorandum of Comment by the Ambassador in Japan (Grew)", October 25,1941 S.D. 11,698-699.3.intoof

InthereportofSecretaryHull'sspeech,printedintheNewYorkTimesonOctober28,1941, SecretaryHullwasquotedassayingthatthesituationwas"verydelicateandverychangeable".AmbassadorGrew'sReport(October25,1941)31October1941AmbassadorGrew,reportingthedetailsofconversationwithareliable
Japaneseinformant,learnedthatwhiletheKonoyeCabinetwasinpower,theJapanese Japanesearmedforces.WhentherepresentativesoftheJapanesearmyandnavyrefused hisgrandfather,EmperorMeiji,issuedtheunprecedentedcommandthatthearmedforcesobeyhiswishes.Asaresultofthisaction,anewPrimeMinisterincontrolofthearmywasnecessarilyselectedGeneralTojo,thearmyactivelist,wasappointedtotheposition. 

EventhoughtheprincipaldifficultybetweentheUnitedStatesandJapanwasthequestion InAmbassadorGrew'sownopinion,theJapaneseleadersappearedwillingtoforsakeanyexpansionists'plansforaworkableunderstandingwiththeUnitedStates.Atthepresent AmbassadorGrewpointedtohisremarksmadeinatelegramsenttoSecretaryHullon meetingoftheleadersofthetwogovernmentsifanagreementwerereachedinthepreliminarydiscussions..Atthattime,AmbassadorGrewbelievedthattheUnitedStateswouldfaceagreatlyincreasedriskofwarifitwouldnottakethepresentopportunityofhaltingJapan's ableamountofconfidenceinPrinceKonoye'sobjectiveand,inthisway,createdanew 

"MemorandumAmbassadorJapan(Grew)"October25,1941,S.D.II,697-698."TheAmbassadorJapan(Grew)theSecretaryState",September29,1941,S.D.11,648-650.
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probably produce more concrete concessions at future conversations. However, Ambassador

tions in Tokyo without instructions.35

the Japanese Emperor had takenc his present active interest in the Japanese-American
conversations, unbridled anti-American feeling would undoubtedly have sprung up through-
out Japan, resulting in the formation of a military dictatorship lacking either the dispositionorto
11. Grew-Togo Interview (October 30, 1941)

a. Ambassador Grew's Repore7

of the deterioration of relations between the United States and Japan, emphasizing his desire

to conclude quickly and successfully the informal conversations and requesting the continuedof
Urging the United States to face certain realities related to the stationing of Japanese

Mongolia and the soldiery of other nations were maintained in certain areas of China. After

main conversations must necessarily take place in Washington because of President
Roosevelt's active interest in them. Nevertheless, parallel discussions in Tokyo would

afford an opportunity for enlarging upon the views of the United States government regarding
any changes of Japan's attitude.

Minister for Foreign Affairs well informed on the conversations in Washington as reported

Mr. Togo with a paraphrased report of Under Secretary of State Welles' conversation with

Minister Wakasugi on October 24, 1941. After Mr. Togo assured Ambassador Grew that he

wanted to be kept informed on all correspondence relating to these conversations, thewas
of the First Section of the American Bureau in the Foreign Affairs Ministry. Because of his

this appointment. 38

b. Foreign Minister Togo's Report39

reception for the Japanese diplomatic corps and his subsequent conversation with Ambassador

Grew on October 30, 1941.

during the six months of informal negotiations, Japanese-American relations had steadily
grown worse. In order to arrive at a workable understanding, Foreign Minister Togo urged

""Memorandum of Comment by Ambassador in Japan (Grew)" October 25, 1941, S.D. II, 698-699.36intoof
37"Memorandum by the Ambassador in Japan (Grew)", October 30,1941, S.D. II, 699-700.

38Ibid.

39IV, 16-17.
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1941

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORtemperamentavoidwarwiththeUnitedStates.36cooperationAmbassadorGrew. 
interviewended. 
"TheAmbassadorJapan(Grew)theSecretaryState",September29,1941,S.D.II,648-649. 

IfJapaneseEmperorwereactuallyengagedinthetheformulationofJapan'spolicy,thenAmbassadorGrewwasconvincedthatGeneralTojoandForeignMinisterTogowould GrewassuredtheAmericanStateDepartmentthathewouldinitiatenothinginhisconversa-AmbassadorGrewreferredagaintohistelegramofSeptember29,1941,statingthatunless AtareceptionforShigenoriTogo,thenewJapaneseForeignMinister,Mr.Mr.TogospokearmedforcesChina,Mr.TogopointedoutthatRussiantroopswerestationedininOuter assuringForeignMinisterTogoofhisdesiretocooperate,AmbassadorGrewstatedthatthe Inpast,AmbassadorGrewsaid,hehadmadeitapracticetokeepthetheJapanese directlytohimbySecretaryHull.Bywayofexample,AmbassadorGrewthenpresented BeforeleavingJapaneseoffice,Mr.ToshikazuKase,whoactedas

interpreterduringreception,toldAmbassadorGrewthathehadhadbeenappointedthethethenewChief longandpleasantassociationwithMr.Kase,AmbassadorGrewexpressedhisapprovalof OnNovember2,ForeignMinisterTogosentAmbassadorNomuraareportofhis DuringthediscussionwithAmbassadorGrew,ForeignMinisterTogohadstatedthat 



territory, Russia concentrated large forces there. Therefore, the Japanese government could

not understand why the United States did not appreciate Japan's attitude toward evacuating

its troops. Ambassador Grew stated that he would like to continue amicable parleys between his

country and Japan.4o
Foreign Minister Togo had already discussed the Utopian attitude of the United States

that time, Foreign Minister Togo stated that the United States' policies were too theoretical

not permit further procrastination, Foreign Minister Togo urged Ambassador Craigie to
cooperate in improving Japanese-English-American relations in order to reestablish
and maintain world peace.4112.on
submitted by the United States and Japan, it questioned Ambassador Nomura on November
1, 1941 on the exchange of official text. Tokyo wished more complete information on those
sections of the United States proposal submitted on June 21, 1941 which referred to the
European war, non-discrimination in trade and peace between Japan and China.42

According to a message which Ambassador Nomura had sent Tokyo in June 194143, it

appeared that the United States government's views differed widely from those held by
Japan, and that the United States refused to understand Japan's right for self defense. Al-
though the new Japanese Cabinet did not want to bring up old issues, it nevertheless requested

countries.44

In reply, Ambassador Nomura stated that he had refused to relay the text of the American

concessions and, therefore, the proposals issued by Japan and the United States differed
too greatly to effect any conciliation. 4513.ofheldtheinto
decision on the fundamental policy to be adopted would be reached on November 5, 1941
at the meeting of the Japanese Diet. In view of the fact that Japan was about to make its last
effort to improve relations with the United States, Foreign Minister Togo urged Ambassador
Nomura to handle all the problems with extreme care.46

on policy before that time. If this were impossible, Ambassador Nomura asked that he beto
"IV, 17.

<2IV, 18.

"n,78.

"IV, 18.

<.IV, 19.

<.IV, 20.

<7IV, 21.
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UnitedStatestovieworientalsituationmorerealistically.BywayexamplethethetheJapaneseForeignMinisterpointedoutthattherewereothercountriesbesidesJapanwithoccupationforcesstationedinChina.AlthoughOuterMongoliawasactuallyapartofofChinese towardtheFarEasternsituationwithBritishAmbassadorCraigieonOctober26,1941.At andofferedsmallchanceofsettlingFarEasternproblems.Insistingthatthesituationwould SinceJapanesegovernmentwasconcernedwithrelationshipbetweenthethetheproposals morecompleteinformationconcerningexchangeofofficialnotesbetweenthethetwo proposalssincetheUnitedStateshadnotmodifieditsdemandsormadeanyfurther SinceformationofthethenewJapaneseCabinetonOctober17,1941,meetingshadbeen OnNovember2,1941,ForeignMinisterTogonotifiedAmbassadorNomurathatafinal Thefollowingday,Ambassador

NomuratoldJapanesegovernmentwouldmeetwithSecretaryHullinafewdaysandrequestedthatthathehebeadvisedofthetheCabinet'sdecision<OIV,16. 

TokyoQuestionsNomuraAmericanProposal
NewJapaneseCabinetDiscussesFormulationPolicieswithImperialHeadquartersorderdeterminethepoliciesofthenewgovernment.instructedwhatpointsemphasizewhenspeakingwithSecretaryHull.47 



who had called on him on October 25, 1941. During a conversation with Foreign Minister Togo,
the Japanese informant reported, he had learned that the Japanese Foreign Minister, Prime
Minister and the Minister of the Navy had determined upon the maximum commitments
which Japan could make in order to adjust its relations with the United States. This decisionafewitwas

For the first time in many years the Japanese Foreign Minister had been able to assume certain

informant believed that Foreign Minister Togo would request an interview with Ambassador

Grew not later than November 7, 1941. 4915.oninInato
Nichi-Nichi which commented on a statement which the Japanese Embassy reportedly gave to

banner headline "Empire Approaches Its Greatest Crisis." Both the article and the
accompanying editorial, according to Ambassador Grew, reflected the average Japanese
sentiment.

there were certain points that he desired Secretary of State Hull and Under Secretary Welles
to apply to future conversations with Japanese representatives. First of all, Ambassador

being waged in Europe. Since political thought throughout Japan ranged from medieval to
liberal ideas, events beyond the Japanese Empire itself determined what body of principles

during the past year, Japan turned pro-Axis; yet with Germany's failure to invade the British
Isles and its attack upon the Soviet Union came the conviction in Japan that the Tripartite
Alliance had been a serious mistake of Japanese diplomats.

Nevertheless, if Japan's efforts to adjust relations with the United States and to conclude

American economists believed that the eventual exhaustion of Japan's economic resources

out that although the greater part of Japan's commerce, industrial production and naturalhadasaof
collapse by forsaking the capitalistic system of economy. Therefore, Ambassador Grew

did not believe that the imposition of a trade embargo and blockade would necessarily avertwarintheFar
'""Memorandum by the Ambassador in Japan (Grew)" November 3,1941, S.D. II, 700, 701.

'"Ibid.

50"The Ambassador in Japan (Grew) to the Secretary of State"-November 3,1941, S.D. II, p. 701-704.
51Ibid.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR14.AmbassadorGrewLeansJapaneseCabinet'sPlans48days,expectedthatsomeconclusionwouldbereachedbeforethattime.AmbassadorGrewReportsSituationJapan.5otelegramSecretaryHullandUnderSecretaryWellesonNovember3,1941,Ambassa­
resourcesbeendepletedresultAmerica'seconomicwar,JapancouldavoidcompleteEast.51 

OnNovember3,1941AmbassadorGrewwasagainvisitedbythesameJapaneseinformant wasgiventoJapaneseEmperorbyPrimeonthethetheafternoonofNovember2,1941andsinceForeignMinisterMinisterTogoanticipatedthatAmbassadorGrewwouldcallwithin obligationsentireapprovalPrimeMinisterand,consequently,War,NavyandHomeMinistries.SincequestionofofofrelationswithwithUnitedStateswouldnecessarilyhavetobeclarifiedbeforeDietmetonNovember15,1941,thethethethethethetheJapaneseJapanese dorGrewreportedattitudeofJapanesenewspapers,citinganarticlefromthethetheTokyo NewYorkTimesregardingendofJapanese-Americaneconomicwar,underthethethethe Referringvariousotherreportswhichmadeduringthethepastseveralmonths,AmbassadorGrewstatedhehehadhadnosubstantialrevisionstotomakeuponanyofthem.However, GrewdidnotbelieveitwaspossibleforJapanto

disassociateitswarwithChinafromthat would'predominate.Forexample,whentheGermanswerevictoriousinwesternEurope thewarwithChinafailed,astrongerAxisalliancecouldstillbeeffected.Apparentlyleading wouldendinthecollapseofJapan'smilitaristicpower.However,AmbassadorGrewpointedAmbassadorGrewthenreferredatelegramsenttotoAmericanStateDepart­mentonSeptember12,1940inwhichwhichhehehadwarnedthatthetheJapanesearmysawan 



which the Japanese government adopted, Ambassador Grew had advised the strong attitude
subsequently adopted by the United States. However, while Japan was eventually forced
to seek conciliation with the United States, if it were not reached in time, Japanese national

temper and psychology would force it to risk hara-kiri rather than to yield to foreign economic

and the temperament of the Japanese people themselves be kept in mind. Although stating

drastic economic measures would, in the long run, be contrary to American national

interests since it meant the breakdown of diplomacy. Ambassador Grew assured the State

Department that he was not questioning the intentions or motives of the Roosevelt Administra-

laid down and, therefore, he dis not advocate any appeasement with Japan arrived at by

United States not underestimate Japan's obvious preparations to implement an alternate
program in the event the conversations for peace failed. From the bellicose tone of theandofit
might render armed warfare with the United States unavoidable. 5216.to
States.

Mr. Kurusu was being sent by the new Japanese Cabinet as a special aide to Ambassador

as Chief of the First Section of the American Bureau in the Japanese Foreign Office. 54

16-A. Japan Plans to Attack Hawaii on December 7, 1941-(November 5-7, 1941)54a

Three weeks before Secretary Hull presented to Ambassadors Nomura and Kurusu his

ary force should attack Hawaii on December 8, 1941 (Japanese time) or December 7, 19412of7,
52 Ibid.

"""Memorandum by the Ambassador In Japan (Grew)", November 4, 1941, S.D. II, p. 704, 705.
54Ibid.

54"This information was not available until June 4, 1945 when the material recovered from the Japanese cruiser
Hachi was translated.

tion Orders, Orders and Serial, pp. 2, 44.

54'Op. cit., p. 55.
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opportunityforexpansionfollowingGermanvictoriesinEurope.Asaresultofpolicies pressure.Whenattemptingtoavertwar,therefore,AmbassadorGrewurgedthatthefibre merelyhisownpersonalopinion,AmbassadorGrewfeltthatthecontinuedimpositionof tion,norheimplyingDepartmentwaswaspursuinganundeliberateddiplomaticpolicy.HeagreedthatthatthereshouldbenocompromisewiththetheprinciplesAmericahad forsakingfundamentalprinciples.Atsametime,however,AmbassadorGrewwascertainmethodsapplyingthesethesebasicprincipleswereflexible.particularlywishedtocorrectanymisconceptionofofJapan'sunpreparednessforwar.HeHeurgedthatthatthethetheMterstudyingcertainofficialpapersconnectionwithhisnewpositionEmbassyinininWashington,Mr.SaburoKurusu,formerJapaneseJapanesetoGermany,calledAmbassadorAmbassadorGrewononNovember4,1941beforeleavingforthetheUnited Asanendeavortoaid

successfulconclusionofthetheconversationsininWashington, Nomura.KurusutoldAmbassadorGrewthathetakinghimMr.Mr.ShirojiYuki,whowaswasf~miliarwithwiththedevelopmentsinWashingtonasaresultofhisformerposition noteNovember26,1941,someAmericancommentatorshavedescribedasultimatumwhichwhichcausedJapangototowar,AdmiralIsorokuYamamoto,Commander-in-Chief,CombinedFleetofofthetheJapaneseNavy,hadissuedordersthatanadvancedexpedition­(UnitedStatestime).TheplanattackissuedonNovember5,1941,asFleetUltrasecretOperationOrder1,54bandthedateofofYDaywaswasestablishedinCombinedCombined

JapanesepressseveralhighofficialswasobviousthatJapanwascapableofactionswhichAmbassadorKurusuAppointedSpecialAideAmbassadorNomura53 
FleetUltrasecretOperationOrderNovember1941.54c54'SeeNavalOperationPlansandOrders,1941-1944,recoveredfromCAHuchi,PartVII,CombinedFleetOpera­



17. Ambassador GrewlReceives Japanese Informane5

government had desired to extend the limits to which it would go in order to reach an
agreement with the United States.

that since present conditions were having a calamitous effect upon Japan, his government

pointed to the violent tone of the Japanese press as seen in the editorial of the Japanese

Japanese Foreign Office. Another article appearing in the Nichi Nichi on November 6,
1941 accused the United States of talking like a harlot thereby complicating the adjustment

attention to the articles in question. Nevertheless, he insisted that too much attention
should not be paid to the Japanese newspapers nor should the United States treat the
Japanese people entirely as adults. Pointing out how the Germans had utilized this aspect

Japanese confidence could be gained easily by a friendly gesture or word. Irrespective of any

more that the informal conversations continue. 5618.
Japanese Cabinet, Tokyo informed the Japanese Ambassador on November 4, 1941 that as a
result of numerous conferences a counter proposal had been formulated and unanimously

this counter proposal, together with other basic policies, would be approved by the
Japanese Diet.

proposals. However, these counter proposals would be the last the Japanese government

intended to submit. Should these fail to achieve the desired goal, all futher negotiations
would end. 57 I

United States successfully, it had yielded to many of the demands of the United States,
while, on the other hand, refusing to appreciate the position of Japan, the United Statestoa
If the United States would only make a sincere attempt to establish peace in the Pacific,
the entire world situation would be greatly aided. Tokyo promised to inform Ambassador
Nomura immediately of the outcome of the meeting of the Japanese Diet in order that he

55 "Memorandum by the Ambassador in Japan (Grew)", November 7,1941. S.D.II, 705-706.

56Ibid.

"IV, 22.

5SIV, 23.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
Japan'sAttitudeTowardPresentNegotiationsMadeKnown 
Japanesegovernmentwouldtakemeasuresdefendthem.Aslastefforttoshowitsfriendship 

AtrequestofTogo,leadinginformantagaincalledonGrew.SinceJapaneseJapaneseForeignForeignMinisterMinisterdidnotfeelcouldspeakofficiallywithAmericanAmbassadorAmbassadoratthistime,hehehadindirectlymadesuggestionthatthatUnitedStatesgovernmentcontinueWashingtonconferencessincethethethethethethethetheTojo Expressingthenhisownpersonalopiniononmatter,thetheJapaneseinformantstated wascompelledtoacceptviewsofthetheUnitedStates.AmbassadorGrew,however, TimesandAdvertiseronNovember5,1941whichwasknowntoexpressattitudesofthethe ofrelationsbetweenthetwocountries.TheJapaneseinformantpromisedtodrawMr.Togo's ofpsychologytotheirownadvantage,theJapaneseJapaneseinformantstatedthat futuredevelopments,theJapaneseinformantbeforeleavingAmbassadorGrew,urgedonce BywayreplytoAmbassadorNomura'srequestforinformationonpoliciesofofthethenew approvedbygovernmentand

thethenewmilitaryhighcommand.OnNovember5,1941 Sincedomesticandforeignconditionsmadeitnecessaryconcludethepresentinformalconferencessuccessfullywithoutdelay,Japanwasreadytotosubmitthesenewcounter BecauseJapanesegovernmentwasanxioustoconcludeconferenceswiththethethe hadmadenoconcessions.AsaresultthisAmericanattitude,JapanesegovernmentpublicsuspectedsincerityUnitedStates.Atpresenttimepatiencewasexhausted.IfexistenceandandhonorofofofofJapanJapanwerethreatenedfurther,thethethethethethethetowardtheUnitedStates,then,the-Japanesegovernmentwassubmittingitsproposals.58 



cussing the problems with American representatives in Washington, Foreign Minister Togo

that Ambassador Nomura must follow his instructions to the letter, giving no personal

interpretation to any of them. 59

19. Japan Instructs Ambassador Nomura in Final Proposals'

final proposal in which Japan attempted to meet the demands of the United States govern-

to avoid incorporating guarantees of evacuating Japanese troops from French Indo-China

upon the conclusion of the Chinese Incident.

Japan's concessions regarding non-discrimination in commerce and the interpretation of
its obligations under the Tripartite Pact.6oa However, the new Cabinet recognized that the
question of evacuation would continue to present an obstacle to peace. Since the United

shift its troops and officials to other occupied areas in order to dispel American suspicion.

government to recall its forces from China. Foreign Minister Togo asked that Ambassador
Nomura euphemize the stationing of Japanese troops in China by insisting that unlimited
occupation by no means meant perpetual occupation. Since Japan had been forced to make
tremendous sacrifices during its four years war with China, its internal situation prevented
Japan from making further concessions regarding the Chinese problem.61

approval, the Japanese government had prepared a subsequent plan considered by Japan
as a last effort to prevent disaster in the Far East.6220.,for

,In order to assist Ambassador Nomura in presenting these new Japanese counter
proposals to the United States government, Japan sent Ambassador Kurusu to Washington.

and President Roosevelt. Ambassador Kurusu's activities in the United States were to be
kept strictly secret.63toto

24.
6. For text handed by Ambassador Nomura to Secretary Hull on November 10,1941 see S,D. II, 715-717.

6.aIV, 25-27.

6'IV, 29. Ambassador Nomura did not present this alternate proposal to Secretary Hull until November 20, 1941.

See S.D. II, 775-776.

6'IV, 31.

65IV, 32.
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mightconferwithPresidentRooseveltandSecretaryHull.WhileAmbassadorNomurawasdis-wouldholdaconferencewithAmbassadorGrewinTokyo.ForeignMinisterTogoemphasized OnNovember4,1941,JapanesegovernmentsentAmbassadorNomurathetherevised ment.6oExplicitinstructionsfortofollowpresentingtheseproposalswereinsertedthismessage.Forexample,TokyoadvisedAmbassadorAmbassadorNomuraNomurathatinininanyformalnegotiationreachedbetweenJapanandUnitedStates,thethegovernmentwasanxious TheJapanesegovernmentexpressedopinionthatthetheUnitedStateswouldagreewith StateswasopposedtroopsinChina,theJapaneseJapanesegovernmentproposedtoto AlthoughJapanwouldcall"evacuation",ititwasactuallyimpossiblefortheJapanese IntheeventthatthesenewJapanesecounter'proposalsdidnotmeetwithAmerican SinceJapaneseCabinethadgivennoadditionalinstructionsconcerninghispost,itrequested

AmbassadorNomuratopreparehimhimforthetheconferenceswithSecretaryHull OnNovember5,1941AmbassadorKurusuandSecretaryYukileftforShanghai.64TokyoimmediatelyinanattemptshowUnitedStatesJapansincerelydesiredbringpresentconferencestototosuccessfulconclusion.BygivingAmbassadorNomuraaaclearpictureofJapan'sinternalsituation,thethethenewJapaneseCabinethopedthatthathewouldbe

59IV, 

61IV,28. 63IV,3O. 

AmbassadorKurusuLeavesWashingtonexplainedAmbassadorNomurathatthesetworepresentativeswerebeingsenttoWashingtonmorefullyequippedcarryoutTokyo'sinstructions.65 



21. Japan Seeks Agreement with Britain and the Netherlands
Since Great Britain and the Netherlands had vast interests in the Far East, the Japanese

If an agreement were concluded with the United States alone, it could never be completely

carried out without the cooperation of Britain and the Netherlands.

American officials with this point. It was hoped that the United States would formulate an
understanding which Great Britain and the Netherlands government could sign.66

Not quite certain of Tokyo's attitude in this matter, Ambassador Nomura asked for further

that America did or if separate documents would be prepared for the British and the Dutch,
or if the four countries would exchange official documents.6722.of
Ambassador Nomura was sending the Foreign Ministry a complete translation of both

Japanese counter proposals.68

Japan ordering him to make no personal interpretations of Japan's latest counter proposals.

posals.69On5,23.To
In order to avoid further delay in concluding peace negotiations, Tokyo wired Ambassador

Nomura on November 5, 1941 that it preferred to avoid drawing up any treaty with the
United States requiring the ratification of the Senate. The Japanese government believed
that the United States might adopt "an executive agreement" requiring only the approvalthatwasanin
Hamilton and other American representatives had already stated, the United States govern-

jurisdiction.

In the proposal submitted by the United States on June 21, 1941, Ambassador Nomura
pointed out, Article I mentioned "a general agreement of understanding as expressed in a
joint declaration", and "mutual understanding and declaration of policy". However, it
might be difficult for the United States to keep an agreement with Japan secret because
of its domestic politics.72

66IV,33.

6?IV,34.
6'IV,35-36.
69Ibid.

?"IV,37-39.

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
TokyoReceivesEnglishTranslationProposalsNovember1941,AmbassadorNomuraforwardedtheseEnglishtranslationstoJapan.7oJapanAvoidRatifiedTreatywithUnitedStatesspeedessentialfactorthepresentnegotiations.71 

governmentrealizedthatsomeunderstandingwouldhavetobereachedwiththesecountries. OnNovember4,1941,ForeignMinisterTogorequestedthatAmbassadorNomuraimpress instructionsonfollowingday.HewishedknowwhetherGreatBritainandNether­landsEastIndieswereexpectedtotosignanofficialdocumentwithJapanatthethethesametime InorderavoiddiscrepanciesbetweenEnglishtexthandedGrewForeignMinisterTogoandthetheonepresentedtototoSecretaryHullbybyAmbassadorAmbassadorNomura, AtsametimeremindedthetheForeignMinisterthathehehadreceivedinstructionsfrom Forthatreason,AmbassadorNomurawastakingtheutmostcareindealingwiththesepro­of.PresidentRoosevelt.Underpresentconditions,theJapanesegovernmentwasconvinced AmbassadorNomurarepliedthatUnitedStatesdidnotwishtoplaceanyagreementwithJapanbeforeSenateforthethetheconstitutional

two-thirdsmajorityapproval.AsMr. mentwishedtoleaveanyunderstandingbetweentwocountrieswithinthethepresidential 71IV,40."IV,41.15 



24. Japanese Diet Accepts Cabinet's Counter Proposals

Nomura further instructions concerning their delivery to the American government.

discussion in spite of the fact that many of the terms in the last United States proposal hadto
However, it warned Ambassador Nomura to avoid giving the United States the impression

the efforts of its representatives, the Foreign Minister continued, since the problem of
self defense stemming from the Tripartite Treaty had been clarified to the United States'
satisfaction. American policies were set forth completely in the proposal of June 21, 1941 andthattotheof

Although Foreign Minister Togo realized the difficulty of culminating negotiations

immediately, he urged Ambassador Nomura to complete all arrangements for the signing ofaby7525.toof
In reply to Tokyo's instructions, Ambassador Nomura informed the Japanese Ministery on

November 5, 1941 that he would continue his efforts to bring about a satisfactory under-
standing. Toward this end, he planned to make arrangements for meeting with President
Roosevelt in the near future.

that they be considered as official interviews, Ambassador Nomura promised to announce

them to the public.76 The Japanese government agreed with Ambassador Nomura that the

present informal conversations should remain secret. If the newspapers of either country

with President Roosevelt, the Foreign Ministery felt that the effectiveness of an informal

agreement would be impaired. In fact, the Japanese government urged that Ambassador

Nomura avoid publicity of any subsequent conferences with American officials.77

26. Japanese Newspapers Publicize Tokyo's Proposals
In spite of the efforts of both governments to maintain the secrecy of these conferences,

73IV, 42.

"IV, 43.

'"IV,44.

7"IV, 45.

"IV,46.

16

AttheJapaneseImperialConferenceonNovember5,1941,theJapanesecounterproposalsdrawnupbytheForeignMinistrywereapproved.Therefore,TokyowiredAmbassador TheForeignMinistryinstructedAmbassadorNomuratosubmitproposal"A"for notmetwithTokyo'sapproval.IftheUnitedStatesobjectedtoostronglytoProposal"A",AmbassadorNomurawasinstructedtoadvisetheJapaneseForeignMinistryandthen,subsequently,offerproposal"B"theUnitedStates.
Becausethesituationhadbecomesocriticalandnofurtherdelaycouldbetolerated,the.JapanesegovernmentinformedAmbassadorNomurathatithadmadeitsfinalconcession. thatthisproposalwasactuallyJapan'sultimatum.73TheJapanesegovernmentwascertainthatsomeagreementcouldbereachedthrough hadbeenansweredbytheJapaneseproposalofSeptember25,1941;andthenewJapaneseCabinettookitforgrantedthatallfurtherexchangeofnoteswouldbeeliminatedfromthenegotiations.TheForeignMinisterurgedAmbassadorNomuratomakeitcleartotheUnitedStatesJapanwishedavoidexchangedocuments.74mutualagreementNovember25,1941.AmbassadorNomuraGuardSecrecyConferences 

Inhisownopinion,AmbassadorNomurafeltthattheseconferenceswithPresidentRooseveltandSecretaryHullshouldremainsecret.However,iftheForeignOfficedesired wereallowedtospeculateonthequestionsdiscussed,atAmbassadorNomura'sconferences onNovember5,1941AmbassadorNomurareportedtoTokyothattheUnitedStatesnews­papers,throughtheDomeiNewsAgencyinJapanandtheTimesAdvertiser,hadlearned 



Japanese government and the Foreign Office, respectively, stated their intention to list the
seven Japanese demands upon the United States.

Realizing that the Japanese government wished a favorable reception of its negotiations,
Ambassador Nomura believed that the publication of such statements in Japanese news-
papers would alienate American public opinion. Therefore, although appreciating the
seriousness of Japan's internal situation and the grave responsibility of Foreign Minister

material given to Tokyo newspapers. 78

27. Japanese and American Newspapers Impair Diplomatic Negotiations

In spite of censorship measures enforced by the Japanese Foreign Office, newspaper

speculation on the outcome of the Japanese-American conversations continued to impair

America's negotiations as a means of gaining time to complete military preparations against
Japan.79

that the United States Congress voted to remain in session indefinitely.8O
Apparently Washington newspapers did not place much faith in Mr. Kurusu's appoint-

ment as advisor to Ambassador Nomura. In spite of Ambassador Nomura's efforts to curtail

on the effect of Mr. Kurusu's presence in Washington were being published constantly.81
If these stories once reached the Japanese public, Ambassador Nomura feared that con-

ditions would become even more tense. In view of the Japanese internal situation, Ambassa-

them to follow an editorial policy in keeping with the tone of Japanese-American conversa-
tions.82

29. Hull-Nomura Conversation (November 7,1941)

a. State Department's Report84

Accompanied by Mr. Wakasugi, Ambassador Nomura called at Secretary Hull's apart-

to state the purpose of his call, Secretary Hull immediately brought up the question of the
three American missionaries interned by the Manchurian authorities at Harbin. Secretary
Hull declared that similar situations, together with the extremist policies voiced in the
Japanese press, made it difficult for the United States to continue normal diplomatic relations

Secretary Hull stated, people questioned the advisability of improving relations with Japan.
Ambassador Nomura replied that until recently he had not received any instructions from
the new Japanese Cabinet. However, he now had the authority to resume the conversations.

After deliberating on the various proposals for peace, particularly on the American draft of
June 21, 1941, the new Japanese Cabinet had decided upon the maximum concessions it796,BO6,

BIIV,48.B4ofa7,

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
thatNovember15,1941wastheJapanese"deadline"forthesuccessfulconclusionofnegotiations.Infact,thesetwonewspapersyndicates,knowntobetheofficialpressofthe Togo'sposition,AmbassadorNomuraneverthelessurgedthattheForeignOfficecensorthe diplomaticnegotiations.EvenwhileAlp.bassadorKurusuwasenroutetotheUnitedStatestosupplementAmbassadorNomura'seffortsforpeace,theTokyoNichiNichiwaslabeling ConditionsasreportedbytheNewYorkTimes,November6,1941weresoclosetoacrisis )L unfavorablenewspaperstories,hereportedtoTokyoonNovember6,1941thatconjectures dorNomuraurgedthateveryprecautionbetakentocontroltheJapanesepressandforce mentathisownrequestonNovember7,1941.WithoutpermittingtheJapaneseAmbassador withJapan.Whenreportsofanti-Americanactivitieswerereleasedinthiscountry, 7BIV,47. 

NewYorkTimes,November1941,1:4-8.NewYorkTimes,November1941,6:3.
B2Ibid. "MemorandumConversation"-November1941,S.D.II,706-709.
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would make in order to alleviate the situation in the Far East. Referring to the three principal

Nomura said that it would not be difficult to reconcile the views concerning Japan's obliga-
tions under the Tripartite Pact and non-discrimination in international commercial relations.

certain troops in North China and Inner Mongolia.

In view of the grave situation which might arise if any misunderstandings or misinterpre-
tations of policies occurred at this time, Ambassador Nomura had asked for and received
from his government an experienced diplomat, namely Mr. Kurusu, the former Ambassador

to Germany. In view of Mr. Kurusu's Ambassadorial rank, Ambassador Nomura hoped that

Nomura handed Secretary Hull a document prepared by the Japanese government in con-

China and the principle of non-discrimination. 85

War, the Japanese government stated that it would be necessary to retain troops in specified
areas in North China, Inner Mongolia and Hainan Island for a certain time after the restora-

other forces would begin their withdrawal according to a separate agreement between Japan

When an equitable basis was established in East Asia and the China affair settled, Japanese
forces would be recalled from French Indo-China and, in this way, the territorial sovereignty
of that country would be guaranteed.

With regard to the principle of commercial nondiscrimination, the Japanese government

agreed to the application of this principle throughout the Pacific area, including China.
It was understood at the same time, however, that the principle would be applied to the
entire world.86

After reading the document, Secretary Hull asked concerning the proportion of Japanese
troops to be retained in the areas stated. In reply the Japanese Ambassador reminded

Peipi.ng and Tientsin areas. Since Soviet Russia maintained forces in Outer Mongolia,

Ambassador Nomura began to discuss the armed forces maintained by other countries in

compaign. In discussing the Chinese question, Secretary Hull said that he had mentioned
these exploratory conversations to the Chinese Ambassador but had not acquainted him with
any of the points under discussion.

However, before entering into any formal negotiations with Japan, Secretary Hull remind-
ed Ambassador Nomura that the United States planned to negotiate with the Chinese,

s. Ibid.
S"Document handed by the Japanese Ambassador (Nomura) to the Secretary of State on November 7, 1941, S.D.II,ForoftoseeIV,Itistoin

dor Nomura on the presentation of these proposals. For English translation of Japanese proposals sent to Tokyo byseeIV,

questionsuponwhichtherespectiveviewsofthetwocountrieshaddiverged,Ambassador However,hewasawarethatsomedifficultieswouldariseoutofJapan'sdesiretoretain PresidentRooseveltwouldspeakwithhim.Atthispointintheconversation,Ambassador nectionwithitsviewsonthewithdrawalofJapaneseforcesfromChinaandFrenchIndo-WithregardtotheJapaneseforcesstationedinChinaasaresultoftheSino-Japanese tionofpeacebetweenJapanandChina.Assoonasgeneralpeacewasrestored,however,the andChinaandthiswithdrawalwouldbecompletedwithintwoyearsafterthepeacetreaty. SecretaryHullthat,undertheBoxerProtocol,Japanhadtherighttostationtroopsinthe JapandesiredtostationenoughofitsowntroopsinInnerMongoliatobalancethoseofRussia.WithoutspecifyingtheexactnumberoftroopsthatJapanwishedtoretaininChina, China.HereferredspecificallytoMarch1927whenGeneralissimoChiangKai-ShekfirstenteredShanghai.AsaresultofthatactiontheBritishhadrequestedJapantotakejointactiontopreventthismeasure.Yet,inspiteofthefactthattheJapanesehaddeclinedtointerfereinChineseaffairs,theysoonafterbecametheobjectofabitterChineseboycott BritishandDutch.SecretaryHullaskedAmbassadorNomurawhetherJapanwouldlaunch 

709-710.JapaneseversiontextsentAmbassadorNomuraonNovember4,1941anddecodedbyAmericancryptanalysts25-28.wellnotetheexplicittermswhichtheJapanesegovernmentinstructsAmbassa-AmbassadorNomura,37-39.
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on a true new order in the Far East and, in this way, gain its leadership in the Pacific if the
Chinese expressed an earnest desire to end the present war.

Referring again to the advantages derived by the United States from the renunciation of

viction that Japan would derive trade advantages from the adoption of a similar policy in
its relations with China. Secretary Hull hoped that some concrete agreement could be
worked out on the question of Japanese relations with the Axis powers. Secretary Hull pointed
out that the mere manifestation of the desire for peace might not be adequate if a newin

In view of the urgency of the internal situation in Japan, Ambassador Nomura requested
that the American Department of State expedite the study of the document delivered on
this day. Ambassador Nomura requested that he be allowed an interview with President
Roosevelt. Stating that he would comply with the Ambassador's request, Secretary Hull then
asked whether this document was to be viewed in conjunction with the previous Japanese
documents which had been submitted. Replying in the affirmative, Ambassador Nomura
mentioned the United States' document of June 21, 1941 and the Japanese document of
September 25, 1941. Secretary Hull reminded him that the American document of2,tobein

b. Ambassador Nomura's Report

After first scheduling an appointment with Secretary Hull for Minister Wakasugi and
himself,88 and after ascertaining the phraseology and interpretation of his government's

latest proposals, 89

explained that he had been ordered to clarify his government's position to both President

factions at varying odds in the world today were threatening to throw all civilization into the
chaos of anarchism. Therefore, Secretary Hull urged that American and Japanese representa-

problems. In regard to the third, the stationing of troops in China, the Japanese government

requested that the United States take a philosophical view toward the questions relating to
the Far East.91

In view of the critical domestic situation in Tokyo which had become more tense during

make the maximum number of possible concessions in order to bring the present negotiations
to a satisfactory close. Mter these introductory remarks Ambassador Nomura handed
Secretary Hull the Japanese government's counter proposal. 92

Japan's comments on America's desire for non-discrimination in commerce. However,

Secretary Hull refused to commit himself regarding Japan's proposal for the withdrawal of

troops, or toward Japan's attitude regarding the rights of self defense.93 Nevertheless, the

S7"Memorandum of a Conversation'-November 7,1941, S.D. 1,706-709.

ssIV, 50.

S"IV, 51.

".IV, 52.

"'IV, 53.

"'IV, 54.

"'IV, 52, 54.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORgovernmentcameintopowerJapan.October1941wasincludedthiscategory.87AmbassadorNomur~visitedSecretaryHullsecretlyonNovember7,1941.90 
itsaggressivepoliciesinLatinAmericancountries,SecretaryHullexpressedthethecon-DuringtheconversationwithSecretaryHullandMr.Ballantine,AmbassadorNomura RooseveltinhopeofsettlingvariousproblemsexistingbetweenJapanandandUnitedStates.InreplySecretarySecretaryHullHullcommentedthatthethethethetwopolitical tivesfindabasisformaintainingpeaceinPacific.AmbassadorNomuratookthisopportu­nitytopointoutthatagreementshadbeenreachedontwoofthethethreeoutstandingPacific wasnowpreparedmakefurtherconcessionsinordertotomeetdemandsUnitedStates.Becausethethetheconciliatoryattitudeofofofhisgovernment,AmbassadorNomura sixmonthsofinformalconversationswiththetheUnitedStates,Japanwasnowpreparedto AfterreadingthisdocumentSecretaryHullshowedindicationsofbeingsatisfiedwith 



American Secretary of State did ask what proportion of Japanese troops would be withdrawn

emphasize Japan's attitude toward "the right of self-defense." After examining the Japanese

to give Japan its reply.94

would consider it necessary to discuss the methods for maintaining peace in the Pacific
with representatives of Great Britain, China and the Netherlands East Indies. From Secretary
Hull's remarks Ambassador Nomura concluded that China had already been consulted regarding

United States arranged for conversations between "the person of highest influence and
integrity in China" with suitable Japanese representatives. Minister Wakasugi asked if the
United States would first determine whether China desired to resume friendly relations with

conversation, he declined to expound on the theory. However, he requested that Ambassador

attitude toward the matter.95

imprisonment of American missionaries in Harbin. Reminding Ambassador Nomura that

three Japanese Naval officers had been allowed to return to Tokyo, Secretary Hull stated that
the United States government could not sympathize with Japan's unreasonable treatment of
American citizens. Insisting that this incident involved only Manchurian officials and not
the Japanese government, Ambassador Nomura, nevertheless, promised to refer the questiontothebeto
30. Tokyo Re-emphasizes Policy of Self- Defense

Tokyo asked the Japanese Ambassador in Washington if he had explained in detail Japan's
views. concerning the rights of self-defense.97 Foreign Minister Togo reminded Ambassador
Nomura that he had elaborated on this Japanese policy in his earlier instructions concerning

matter fully to the American representatives. 98

31. Mr. Horiuchi Arranges for Undelayed Delivery of Telegrams
In view of the urgency of the present American-Japanese negotiations Mr. Horiuchi,

telegraphic clerk of the Japanese Embassy in Washington, felt it necessary to make certain

zing his point Mr. Horiuchi reminded the Japanese Foreign office that at 9:56 p.m. on
November 5, 1941 he had sent Ambassador Nomura's message relating to the English translations

eoIV,54.

e"IV,55-56.

e8IV, 57.

e7IV, 58.

Be/bid.

eeIV, 59.
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1941fromNomurarepliedthatJapanwaswillingwithdrawgreaternumberofitstroopsnowstationedinChina.China.ThenthetheJapaneseAmbassadorAmbassadorwentontoto proposalsmorecarefully,SecretaryHullsaidtheUnitedStatesgovernmentwouldbeready Atsametime,however,SecretaryHullcontinued,thetheUnitedStatesrepresentatives mattersrelatingsettlementofitsaffairsinFarEast.AstotoproveAmbassadorNomura'sassumptionSecretaryHulltheninquiredwhatJapan'sattitudewouldbeififthethethethe Japan.SinceSecretaryHullclaimedonlytohavethoughtofthissuggestionduringtheday's NomuraMinisterWakasugirelaythisproposaltotheirgovernmentandandascertainits DuringthisconversationSecretaryHullbroughtupincidentarisingoutofthethe AfterreceivingAmbassadorNomura'sreportofhisconversationwithSecretaryHull, counter-proposals.IfthismessagehadnotreachedNomura

intime,ForeignMinisterTogorequestedthatJapaneseJapaneseAmbassadorAmbassadormakecertaintoexplainthethethe provisionsfordeliveryurgenttelegraphicmessages.99OnNovember8,heinformedthetheJapaneseForeignOfficeinthatwithacrisissonearathandallinstruc­tionsbetweenTokyoTokyoandWashingtonmustbereceivedwithoutanydelay.Bywayofofemphasi-

Tokyowithrequestthatsuitablestepstakenreleasethemissionariesinquestion.96. 



of the Japanese counter proposals. It was presumed that this message reached Tokyo on

November 6, 1941. However, the Japanese reply did not arrive in Washington until 8:20

a.m. Washington time, on November 7, 1941. Since Ambassador Nomura's appointment with

allowed only forty minutes in which to decode and revise the message. In view of the fact that
all officials connected with the telegraphic office remained on duty all night when expecting
an urgent message from Tokyo, Mr. Horiuchi requested that the Foreign Office send any reply
over the wires immediately regardless of the hour. Formerly, Mr. Horiuchi continued, the
telegraph company notified the Embassy whenever a "very urgent" telegram was received.
Since the Japanese Foreign Office had recently changed the word to "kinqu" the delivery
of many important messages had been delayed. In order to avoid this delay in the future,
Mr. Horiuchi asked that all important telegrams be captioned "very urgent". 100

In replying to Mr. Horiuchi's request the telegraphic section of the Foreign Office in Tokyo
stated that in the future all messages headed by the words "kinqu" or "daiqu" were to be

way of explaining the delay in replying to Ambassador Nomura's message, Tokyo stated
that unfavorable atmospheric conditions had held up the dispatch until 1734 on November
7, 1941.101

32. Foreign Ministry Bans Publication of Negotiations
Agreeing with Ambassador Nomura's request that secrecy be maintained throughout the

Japanese-American negotiations,102 the Foreign Office stated that it would attempt to guide
public opinion by censoring unfavorable comments regarding the present conversations.l03
Furthermore, Tokyo promised that the contents of these negotiations would be kept from the
press and that any information regarding the time of the Japanese-American conversations
would be suppressed. Already the Japanese government had warned the Times that the
publication of any contents capable of exciting anti-Japanese feeling in the United States
would bring about dire consequences. While promising to curtail the activities of Japanese
newspapers in Tokyo, the Foreign Office took the opportunity of pointing out security breaks
in the newspapers throughout the United,States. For example, the Domei office in Washing-
ton had already printed articles entirely out of keeping with Tokyo's policy of maintaining
a calm and patient attitude toward the American conversations. 104

would be able to meet the demands of the United States. 106

33. President Roosevelt Confers with Naval Leaders (November 7,1941)

Roosevelt had conferred secretly with Secretary of the Navy Knox, Chief of Naval Operations,
Admiral Stark, and other American naval leaders. Although uncertain of the actual purpose
of the meeting, Ambassador Nomura surmised that President Roosevelt wished to discuss

lOOIbid.

IOIIV, 60.

IO2IV, 47.

IO3IV, 61.

lo'Ibid.62;
IO"Ibid.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
SecretaryHullwasscheduledfor9:00a.m.onNovember7,1941,theJapaneseEmbassywas giventhesamehandlingbythetelegraphiccompaniesasthosemarked"veryurgent".By TobemoreexplicitForeignMinisterTogoreferredtotheAssociatedPressdispatchfromManilawhichquotedAmbassadorKurusuasstating,"IamgoingtoWashingtonbutIhavenogreathopeforasuccessfulconclusiontothenegotiations.l05"Asaresultofthisnewspaperreport,theAmericanpubliGfeltthatnonewcompromisewhichJapanoffered OnNovember8,1941AmbassadorNomurareportedthatonthepreviousdayPresident 

lo'IV,N.Y.Times,Nov.9,1941,1:40. 



the latest Japanese counter proposals and to formulate a method of withdrawing American

34. Japan Interested in Secretary Hull's Proposed Settlement of the China Affair
After carefully considering Ambassador Nomura's report on his conversations with

Secretary Hull, the Japanese government exhibited great interest in Secretary Hull's

suggested that a high ranking Chinese official discuss Far Eastern problems with the Japanese

Japan and China to settle their differences directly and without American interference.

Naturally Tokyo expected that Generalissimo Chiang Kai-shek would initiate the move for

peace. Recognizing Secretary Hull's suggestion as a great contribution toward Sino-Japanese

America's concrete plans for carrying the suggestion into effect. 109

importance of the Chinese question on Far Eastern peace. If the United States actually
proposed to leave the settlement of peace terms up to the Japanese Chinese governments
themselves, then Tokyo felt the question of withdrawing its troops from China could be left
out of future negotiations with the United States. In this way not only could Japanese-Chinese
peace be effected without further American interference, but the relations between Japan
and the United States could be settled quickly and satisfactorily. Before going ahead with
Secretary Hull's proposal, however, the Japanese government felt it necessary to secure a

guarantee that the United States would not interfere with the peace terms established between
Japan and China. This guarantee would naturally include the cessation of any American
activities designed to aid Generalissimo Chiang Kai-shek in his war upon Tokyo. Naturally
the Japanese government also expected that an agreement between Japan and the United
States for the settlement of their respective problems in the Pacific would be signed
without further delay. 110

then the Japanese Ambassador was to elimipate the stipulations regarding Japanese-Chinese

establishment of peace between Japan and China, should be substituted in its place.

wished to establish an agreement between its government and Japan, he felt that Secretary
Hull's proposal could be carried out. Nevertheless, the Japanese government insisted that
its negotiations with the United States be brought to a satisfactory conclusion even before
the Japanese-Chinese peace was concluded. Furthermore, Foreign Minister Togo re-

emphasized the fact that the United States must cease all aid to Generalissimo Chiang

Kai-shek during Japanese peace negotiations. 111

35. Japan Seeks Facts on American-British Attitude Toward Axis
In order to determine the true facts concerning the existing international situation, the

Japanese Vice-Chief of the General Staff on November 9, 1941 in a circular message to the

!O'IV,63.

IO8IV, 64.

IO"Ibid.

l1!IV, 66.
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MarinesfromChina.107 
proposedsettlementChinaaffair.lOBInviewofofthethefactthatSecretaryHullhad representative,JapanesegovernmentfeltthatthetheUnitedStateswasnowwillingtopermit peace,ForeignMinisterTogourgedAmbassadorNomuratosecuremoreinformationon ForeignMinisterTogofeltthatUnitedStates,wellasasJapan,wasfullyawareofthethe IfAmbassadorNomuradeterminedthatSecretaryHull'ssuggestionwasaworkableone, peaceAsubmittedAmericangovernment;insteadsectionofproposalproposalB,requestingthatthatUnitedStatesrefrainfromfromanyactiondetrimentaltotothethethe InviewoffactthatForeignMinisterTogofirmlybelievedthetheUnitedStatessincerely !IOIV,65. 



Embassies abroad requested any and all information regarding the British and American

attitude toward Japan and Germany. 112

relations with Japan and Germany and the military, political and economic union between
the United States, Great Britain, China, Holland and Russia. Japan also wished to determine
the influence that it had upon America, Great Britain and these other countries, and to see
how greatly the Japanese-American negotiations had affected the international situation.

asked for an evaluation of the present situation regarding the expansion of the island bases
scattered around the Pacific, the dispatch of additional American and British military

strength to the South Pacific and to the Aleutians, and, finally, the movements of American
and British troops in China, the southwest Pacific and in Japan. 112a

36.

a. Ambassador Grew's Report113

tion with the American Ambassador held on October 30, 1941 during which he had asserted

his desire to maintain friendly relations between the United States and Japan.
After carefully studying the documents which had been passed by the representatives of

formulated new proposals and sent them to Ambassador Nomura as the basis for negotiations

exploratory". While not wishing to press the point, Mr. Togo stated that he felt the time hadforand
to re-establish friendly relations between Japan and the United States, Mr. Togo pledged his

cooperation toward finding a compatible solution. Nevertheless, after reviewing the documents

that the United States lacked an adequate appreciation of the Far Eastern situation. While

force in the Far East, the attitude of the United States government as a whole did not

support this fact. Foreign Minister Togo felt that the United States government must take into

a strong bearing on the Pacific situation.114 Foreign Minister Togo then recalled a conversation
between Secretary Hull and Minister Wakasugi on October 16, 1941 during which Secretaryandto

112IV, 67. This message was not translated until February 3, 1945.

112-Ibid.

113"Memorandum by the Ambassador in Japan (Grew)" November 10, 1941, S.D. II, 710-714.

114Ibid. toby
memorandum of the conversation-see S.D. II, 687-689.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
Grew-TogoConversation(November10,1941) 
comeformalofficialnegotiations.
stabilizingforcewaspreparedexpresssuchrecognitioninanofficialmanner.115115ThisstatementattributedSecretaryHullForeignMinisterTogoisnotrecordedinSecretaryHull's 

InorderdeterminetotowhatextentJapancouldgobeforetwoAllieswouldopenwaronthetheAxisPowers,TokyoaskedfordetailedinformationregardingAmericanreciprocal SinceJapanwasawareofAmericanandBritishincreaseddefensesinthethePacific,Tokyo DuringmeetingonNovember10,atwhichTogo,AmbassadorGrew,ConselorDoomanandMr.Mr.Kasewerepresent,theJapaneseForeignMinisterreferredtoaaconversa­twocountriesthusfar,TogomoredeterminedthanevermaintainpeacePacific.KeepingininmindthatobjectofthethethethepresentJapaneseCabinetwaswasestablisha"GreaterEastAsia",asitscontributiontototoworldpeace,Mr.Mr.Togo'sgovernmenthad withPresidentRooseveltSecretaryHull.Atthispoint,AmbassadorGrewemphasizedthatconversationstakingplacebetweenthethetwogovernmentswere"onlypreliminaryandandThenTogothankedAmericangovernmentthroughGrew

forthetheassistancewhichithadgivenMr.Mr.KurusuinjourneyfromTokyoWashingtontakehishisplaceasadvisortototoAmbassa'dorNomura.AwareofAmbassadorAmbassadorGrew'spreviousefforts recordingtheconversationswhichhadalreadytakenplace,ForeignMinisterTogobelieved SecretaryHullapparentlyaware,fromhisownstatements,thatJapanwaswasastabilizing considerationthatJapanbeenatwarwithChinaforfourahalfyearsandandthishadhad HullhadrememberedtellingformerAmbassadorSaitothatherecognizedJapanasa



Although the Japanese government had repeatedly attempted to approach the American

United States had attempted in. any way to study sympathetically Japan's position.

100,000,000 and in order to support this increasing number of people it would be necessary

arriving at a satisfactory conclusion to the present conversations could not be tolerated.
Foreign Minister Togo urged that the United States government adopt a statesmanlike

States government. 116 With this statement the Japanese Foreign Minister handedthe
Although the Japanese proposals of September 25, 1941 were based largely on those of

the United States issued on June 21, 1941, Foreign Minister Togo recognized that it
contained many unsatisfactory clauses with regard to both text and substance. Nevertheless,

proposals as set forth in the American memorandum of October 2, 1941.118

Minister Togo's understanding that the views expressed in the Japanese draft of September

the Japanese government had expanded its concessions in these new proposals in order

Japanese troops in China remained the greatest obstacle to the successful conclusion of
the conversations, the Japanese government, in spite of grave domestic problems, had made
further concessions.

Since Japan realized that British interests in the Far East would be affected by the dis-

Secretary Hull's desire to consult the British government. In fact, he hoped that the United
States would persuade the British government to conclude an agreement with Japan
along the same lines as the one being discussed between Japan and the United States.

Togo again urged that Ambassador Grew continue his cooperation toward a speedy end to
the negotiations. Foreign Minister Togo felt that Tokyo should not merely duplicate the
conversations taking place in Washington but should supplement exchanges of information

~lready handled in the Washington conferences with the goal of expediting the progress
of peace.

the questions which would be discussed in Washington; however, he did raise three points
pertinent to those discussions. Ambassador Grew disagreed with the idea that the United

Nomura in Washington and the Japanese Embassy as a whole had given the United States
a very clear picture of the problems there. Foreign Minister Togo's description of Japan as a

".S.D. II, 710-714.

117See "Document handed by Japanese Ambassador (Nomura) to the Secretary of State on November 7, 1941",

S.D. II, 709-710.

118S.D. II, 710-714.
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pointofviewduringpastsixmonths,ForeignMinisterTogodidnotbelievethatthethe AmericawasapparentlyunawarethatthepopulationofJapanhadincreasedtoapproximately securemorerawmaterials.Inordertotooffsetthisgrowingsituation,furtherdelayin positionovercomingmajordifficultiestimeJapaneseDietmetonNovember15,1941.ForeignMinisterTogocontinuedbybybysayingthatnewCabinethadarrivedatmaximumnumberofconcessionswhichJapancouldmaketothethethethethetheUnitedexpeditepresentconversations,ForeignMinisterTogohadusedJapanesedraftofSeptember25,1941asbasisforthesewhichhewasnowhandingAmbassadorGrew.However,theycontainedcertainmodificationsininorderordertototomeetthethethetheUnitedStates InregardtoattitudesofbothgovernmentstowardthetheEuropeanWar,itwasForeign 25,1941wereagreeableto

bothgovernments.Inthematterofcommercialdiscrimination tomeetrequirementssetdownbyUnitedStates.Recognizingthatthethethequestionof cussionsbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStates,ForeignMinisterTogoappreciated AtconclusionoftheseobservationsonthethenewJapaneseproposals,ForeignMinister AmbassadorGrewdidnotfeelthathehadauthoritytodebateatthethepresenttime StatesgovernmentdidnotrecognizesituationinthetheFarEast.HefeltthatAmbassador "stabilizingforceinEastAsia"was,AmbassadorGrewstated,opentoverywideinterpretation. 

AmbassadorGrewnewJapaneseproposalsll7andthencommenteduponthem. 



However, Ambassador Grew realized that Foreign Minister Togo's observation that Japan

must have access to necessary supplies penetrated to the very center of the problem.

markets for its industries.

Far Eastern situation accurately to the American State Department, but he still doubted

point, Foreign Minister Togo referred to the Russian troops stationed in Outer Mongolia,
recognized as part of China, and he remarked that no one had as yet objected to the presence

stabilizing force in East Asia", Foreign Minister Togo stated that it could be understood
from a purely common sense point of view. In regard to Ambassador Grew's statements on
the question of assuring raw materials to Japan, Foreign Minister Togo referred briefly
to the economic pressure applied by the United States which had menaced the national

bility of Japan's being forced to measures of self-defense in order to overcome the effects

collapse if forced to sacrifice the fruits of its protracted war with China, Foreign Minister
Togo believed that the United States would conclude the conversations successfully
without further delay.

insisted that under the plea of self-defense, the American government had resorted to

up his opinions, Foreign Minister Togo stated that theoretical talks should end and that
conversations in the future should be pursued along realistic lines. 118a

b. Foreign Minister Togo's Report119

Dooman in order to inform the American representatives that after a conference between

prepared to submit its final proposals. After examining the results of the negotiations between
Japan and the United States so far, Foreign Minister Togo had come to the conclusion that
the United States did not have a workable understanding of the far Eastern situation. In

Foreign Minister Togo said it was obvious from his other remarks that he did not fully

appreciate Japan's actual status. Because the United States lacked this understanding it
had refused to make "any concessions whatsoever during the six months' long conversations
with the Japanese representatives. Apparently the United States did not take into

and it was necessary for them to obtain raw materials in order to maintain their existence.
Urging the United States government to take all these points into consideration in futureofthe

118a Ibid.

l2°IV, 68.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
HereAmbassadorGrewtooktheopportunitytopointoutthatSecretaryHull'speacefulprogramvisualizedforJapanafreeflowoftradeandcommerceandtheopeningofnew Inreply,ForeignMinisterTogoadmittedthattheJapaneseEmbassyhadreportedthe whethertheUnitedStatesgovernmentappreciateditsseriousness.Bywayofillustratinghis ofthesetroops.InansweringAmbassadorGrew'scommentonthe"interpretationof existenceofJapantoafargreaterdegreethanthedirectuseofforce.Hewarnedofthepossi­ofcontinuedeconomicpressure.IftheAmericangovernment,realizedthatJapanwould AmbassadorGrewpointedoutthatJapancouldnothopetoretainthefruitsofaggressionand,atthesametime,proposetherejectionofaggressionandforce.However,ForeignMinisterTogostatedthatJapanwasnotconductinganaggressivewarwithChina.Thenhe measuresfarbeyondthosegenerallyrecognizedbyinternationallawasdefensive.Summing OnNovember10,1941ForeignMinisterTogometwithAmbassadorGrewandCounselor theForeignOfficeandthemilitaryhighcommandtheJapanesegovernmentwasnow spiteofthefactthatSecretaryHullcalledJapanthestabilizinginfluenceofthePacific, considerationthefactthatJapan'spopulationof100,000,000peoplewaseverincreasing, negotiations,ForeignMinisterTogostatedemphaticallythatunlesssomechangewasevidentinAmerica'sattitudetheJapanesepeopleasawholewouldbeforcedtodoubtthesincerity 

Americangovernment.120
119IV,68-7!. 



English text of the final Japanese counter proposals. 121

In an attempt to clarify certain points contained in these proposals, Foreign Minister Togo

fully in the Japanese proposal of September 25, 1941. Therefore, it had seen no reason to
elaborate on that point further in these present proposals. In regard to the policy of non-

important problem of Japanese troops in China the Japanese government had decided to

Togo urged that the United States accept Japan's latest proposals and also induce Great
Britain to sign a similar agreement with Japan. Since he had no instructions from Washing-
ton, Ambassador Grew declined to pass his opinion on the Japanese proposals. However, he
did feel it necessary to point out to Foreign Minister Togo that the United States government
had a very clear picture of the Oriental situation since he himself had submitted detailed

supplying Japan all the materials necessary to maintain an advantageous position in the
Far East.122

While expressing his appreciation of Ambassador Grew's cooperation, Foreign Minister
Togo refuted the Ambassador's insistance that the present negotiations were designed to

freezing regulations had placed such strong economic pressure on Japan that the Japanese
people themselves were beginning to feel the need for effecting even stronger measures for

the Japanese people had been forced to make during the four and one-half years of warfare. In

in the Far East, he continued, had been merely in the interest of self-defense. Although not

been wrongfully magnifying Japan's moves in the Pacific.123
From the conversation Foreign Minister Togo concluded that the United States still

had continually referred to them merely as "conversations". Foreign Minister Togo had

37. Ambassador Nomura Reveals America's Pessimistic Attitude Toward the Negotiations

the conclusion that America regarded its present negotiations with Japan in a pessimistic
light.

Americans to the Foreign Office in Tokyo.

l2'IV,25-28.

l2'IV,71.

125IV, 72.
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AfterthesepreliminaryremarksForeignMinisterTogohandedAmbassadorGrewthe saidthathisgovernmentbelievedithadsetforthitsattitudetowardtheEuropeanwar discriminationincommerce,JapanhadmademoreliberalconcessionsinordertomeetthedemandsoftheUnitedStates.Asafinalattempttoreachanunderstandingregardingthe makefurthercompromises.Inviewoftheliberalconcessionsmadethem,ForeignMinister reports.Furthermore,AmbassadorGrewfeltthatthepresentnegotiationswereaimedat grantJapanalargermarketforpurchasingrawmaterialsbypointingoutthatAmerica's self-defense.FromtheattitudeoftheUnitedStatestowardChina,ForeignMinisterTogocontinued,itwasobviousthattheAmericangovernmentwishedtoignorethesacrificesthat viewofthatfact,itwouldbesuicidalforJapantomakesuchliberalconcessionstoChinaastheUnitedStatesgovernmentdesired.AtthispointintheconversationConsulorDoomaninterruptedForeignMinisterTogotostatethattheUnitedStatescouldneveraccepttheresultsofaggression.ForeignMinisterTogorepliedthattheJapanesegovernmenthadneverconsidereditswarwithChinaoneofaggression.AnymilitaryactiontakenbyJapan wishingtoarguethispointfurther,ForeignMinisterTogoinsistedthattheUnitedStateshad consideredthatitsnegotiationswithJapanwereinthepreliminarystage.AmbassadorGrew stressedthatbythistimetheconversationswerewellwithintherealmof"negotiations".

AmbassadorGrewwasapparentlysati~fiedwiththisterm.124
FrominformaldiscussionswithvariousAmericanofficialsAmbassadorNomuracameto OnNovember10,1941AmbassadorNomurasentasummaryoftheremarksofthese 125AsoneexampleofAmerica'sattitudeAmbassa­'22IV,69.'23IV,70. 



dor Nomura pointed to a conversation between Frederick Moore, legal advisor to the Japanese

Embassy in Washington, and Senator Thomas of the Senate Foreign Relations Committee.

ready for action, but psychologically, the American people were expecting a war.

the question of Japanese-American relations with Ambassador Nomura. In view of his

friendship with the Japanese Ambassador, this unnamed Cabinet member stated frankly

Japan in the Far East within a few days. Because of this information neither President
Roosevelt nor the United States government, as a whole, believed that Ambassador Kurusu's
arrival in the United States would be able to improve the present situation. In an attempt

to offset this feeling Ambassador Nomura had explained that the Japanese people were forced

Nomura's remarks, however, failed to convince the American Cabinet member.126

eager for war with Japan than with Germany. Ambassador Nomura firmly believed that the

Pacific. Even in the event that President Roosevelt and other American statesmen did not

desire to replace the British fleet in the Far East with American warships, Ambassador
Nomura had it on good authority that the United States could not stop its aid to Britainhisbyheto
a more detailed statement on the results of the conversation.127

38. Roosevelt-Nomura Conversation (November 10, 1941)

a. Secretary Hull's Repore28by
the American representatives' minds that on September 25, 1941 the Japanese government

made its last proposals. From the observations of the American State Department seen

in the answering document of October 2, 1941, the Japanese government had determined that

the present difficulties arose from three major points: (1) the application of the principle

governments toward the European War; (3) the question of the stationing and withdrawing
of Japanese forces.

Japanese government had now decided to agree to its application in all the Pacific areas
including China, provided that the principle was similarly applied to the rest of the world.

the non-discriminatory principle to the whole world, Ambassador Nomura felt that the

United States government would be gratified at Japan's statement.

126Ibid.
!27IV, 73.126bytheof

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
Mr.MoorehadreportedtoAmbassadorNomurathattheUnitedStateswaspreparedtofightifJapanmadeanotherinvasionintheSouthPacific.NotonlywastheAmericannavy OnthepreviouseveningamemberofPresidentRoosevelt'sCabinethaddiscussed thattheUnitedStatesgovernmentwasexpectinganotheraggressivemoveonthepartof totakesomeactionbecauseoftheAmericanfreezingnegotiations.Nevertheless,anxioustoavoidawarwiththeUnitedStates,Japandesiredanimmediateagreement.Ambassador WiththeexceptionoftheDailyNewsandtheHearstpapers,AmbassadorNomurareportedAmericannewspapersandmagazinesheldtheopinionthattheAmericanpeopleweremore BritishgovernmentwasusingthisAmericanattitudetoitsownadvantagebyinitiatingnegotiationsforjointAnglo-AmericanactioninthePacific.AmbassadorNomuraremindedhisgovernmentthatatthepresenttimeBritainwasforcedtodivertsomeofitsfleettothe sincebythistimeithadbecomeaquestionofsavingAmerican"face."AmbassadorNomura 

concludedreportstatingthatwasconferwithPresidentRooseveltandwouldsubmitAccompaniedMinisterWakasugi,AmbassadorNomuracalledonPresidentRooseveltand
SecretaryHullonNovember10,1941.Afterafewpreliminaryremarks,AmbassadorNomurareadthefollowingcommunicationfromtheJapanesegovernment.Herecalledto ofnon-discriminationininternationalcommercialrelations;(2)theattitudeofthetwo AmbassadorNomurastatedthat,inregardtotheprincipleofnon-discrimination,the SinceSecretaryHullhadrepeatedlystatedthatitwashislong-cherisheddesiretoapply 

"MemorandumSecretaryState"-November10,1941,S.D.II,715-719.
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OnthesecondquestionregardingtheEuropeanwar,theJapanesegovernmenthad

proposed on September 25, 1941 that both governments be guided in their conduct by
considerations of preservation and self-defense. However, Ambassador Nomura had been in-
structed to inquire whether the United States would give assurance that it had no intention

ofinterpreting"preservationandself-defense"tooliberally.Onthebasisofreciprocity,theJapanesegovernmentwaswillingtogivesimilarreassurances.IntheJapaneseproposalsofSeptember25,1941itwasstatedthat"incasetheUnitedStatesshouldparticipateinthe

European war, Japan would decide entirely independently in the matter of interpretation
oftheTripartitePactbetweenJapan,GermanyandItalyandwouldlikewisedetermine

what actions might be taken by way of fulfilling the obligations in accordance with the said

interpretation".Underthepresentcircumstances,Japancouldnotmakeanyfurther

concessions in this matter for, unless there was mutual trust and confidence between Japan
and the United States, a thousand words would not be a satisfactory assurance. 128a

However, in regard to die stationing and withdrawal of Japanese forces, the government
in Tokyo had decided to submit further guarantees. Japanese forces would be retained in
specifiedareasofNorthChina,InnerMongoliaandHainanIslandforacertainrequiredtimeaftertherestorationofaJapanese-Chinesepeace.ThewithdrawalofforcesfromtheotherpartsofoccupiedChinawouldbeaccomplishedwithintwoyearsaftertheestablishment

of peace and order. Ambassador Nomura emphasized, however, that the Japanese government

hadmadeagreatmanymoreconcessionsalongtheselinesthanpreviously.Hehopedthat

the United States government would agree that the complete and immediate withdrawal

ofJapaneseforcesfromallofChinawasimpracticableatthepresenttime.Therecallof

forces from French Indo-China would follow the firm establishment of equitable peace in

East Asia by the settlement of the China affair.

AftercompletinghisobservationsontheconcessionsmadebythenewJapanesegovernment,AmbassadorNomurareadastatementwhichhehadprepared.AsviewedfromtheJapanesestandpoint,AmbassadorNomurasaid,theUnitedStatesgovernmenthadshownlittlesignsofreciprocatingtheconcessionsforwardedbyJapaninanendeavortoterminate

the six months of informal conversations successfully. Ambassador Nomura declared that

for this reason certain factions in Japan viewed the true intentions of the United States

government with skepticism. Japanese public opini?n viewed the freezing of Japanese assets
as economic warfare insomuch as it cut them off from the supply of materials vital to their

industries.Fromreportsofthegrowingintensityofthesituation,AmbassadorNomura

concluded that an amicable and satisfactory understanding must be arrived at without
any unnecessary loss of time. In an effort to surmount the present difficulties, the Japa-

nesegovernmenthadsubmittedthesenewproposals.AmbassadorNomurawasofthefirmopinionthatifsomeunderstandingwerereachedbythetwocountries,thepsychological

effect upc:m the Japanese people would be extremely favorable. 128b

AmbassadorNomurathenstatedthatAmbassadorKurusuhadbeensenttoassisthiminthepresentconversationsandthatparallelconversationswouldtakeplaceinTokyobetween

Foreign Minister Togo and Ambassador Grew. Attempting to forestall any misinterpretations
of the statements he had made, Ambassador Nomura asked that President Roosevelt and

SecretaryHullforgivehistransgressionfromtheterminologyoftraineddiplomatssince

his main objective was the establishment of peace.

InspeakingofthepresentcommercialpolicywhichwasunfavorabletowardJapan,

Ambassador Nomura mentioned the sea conference which had taken place between

PresidentRooseveltandPrimeMinisterChurchill.HecomplainedthatwhenJapanwent

128. Ibid.
128b Ibid.
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the time to come, throughout the world, President Roosevelt said he believed it essential to
lay practical emphasis on the sound philosophy of human welfare and that the exploratory
conversations would achieve favorable results as the American government would expedite
the conversations in accordance with the wishes of the Japanese government. However,
President Roosevelt desired that Japan demonstrate its intention of pursuing a peaceful
course instead of the aggressive one which it had been following up to the present time. Then

costs and the unusual cQnditions which had been existing throughout China in the past thirty

pointed out that it had taken three years to dispose of that question while the Japanese-
American conversations had consumed only six months.ofbybe
expected about Saturday, November 15, 1941, and although he had nothing new to add to the

conversations. President Roosevelt assured the Japanese Ambassador that he expected to
confer with Mr. KurusU.129

b. Ambassador Nomura's Report

White House in order to avoid newspaper publicity, Ambassador Nomura explained to the
American representatives Japan's final concessions toward peace.130

informal conversations had been in progress for almost six months the Japanese government
at this time hoped for a quick settlement of all the Far Eastern problems. However, as the
negotiations dragged on without any apparent progress, the Japanese people had become
impatient. In view of the fact that the United States had refused to make any concessions

the present time Japan's domestic situation was serious because the Japanese people
were unable to obtain the supply of materials necessary to their industry. Here Ambassador

Nevertheless, anxious to maintain" peace in the Pacific, the Japanese government had con-
tinued the conversations with the United States representatives.132ofinitsto

In response to these remarks President Roosevelt stated that the United States government
also had as its main objective the establishment of peace in the Pacific based on the spirit

1'"Ibid.

131 Note Ambassador Nomura's conversation with Secretary Hull on November 7,1941.

13'IV,76.

133IV,77.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
intoShantung,theywereallowedtoremainonlysomesixyears,attheendofwhichtimetheywereforcedtomoveouttheirtroops.

Asameansofestablishingabasisforpeace,stabilityandorderinthePacificareaand,in PresidentRooseveltdeclaredthatduringtheagethroughwhichtheworldwaspassing,itwasnecessarytolookonehundredyearsinthefuture.Hereferredtotheextra-territorial yearsandhestatedthattheChinesegovernmenthadgonethroughanewexperience.ReferringtoAmbassadorNomura'sstatementsregardingtheShantungproblem,PresidentRoosevelt 

' 
AmbassadorNomurathendwelledbrieflyontheproblemofgettingtheJapanesetroopsout Chinadegrees,insistingthattherewouldneitherannexationnorindemnityindoingso.
Astheinterviewdrewtoaclose,nothingwassaidaboutthetimeforthenextconversation,however,AmbassadorNomuraremindedPresidentRooseveltthatAmbassadorKurusuwas presentdiscussion,AmbassadorNomurastatedthatMr.Kurusuwouldassisthiminfuture AtaconferencewithPresidentRooseveltandSecretaryHullheldinaprivateroominthe AmbassadorNomurabeganbysayingthathehadbeenunabletospeakwithSecretaryHullforalmostthreeweeks,131andeversincetheresignationofPrinceKonoye'sCabinetAmbassadorNomurahadbeenhopingforaninterviewwithPresidentRoosevelt.Sincethe equaltothosemadebyJapan,theJapanesepeopleweredoubtingAmerica'ssincerity.At Nomurastatedthataneconomicblockadewasasharmfultoacountryasashootingwar. Asafinaleffortinobtainingitsobjective,theJapanesegovernmenthadmadeamaximum

numberconcessionsproposaltheUnitedStates.133 
13OIV,74-76. 



of fair play. Agreeing with the desire of the Japanese government to continue peace parleys,

Since the Japanese government appreciated the seriousness of the situation at this time,

Washington.

Ambassador Nomura then resumed his explanation of the latest Japanese counter

of September 25, 1941 and modified to meet the demands of the American government
expressed in the United States proposals of October 2, 1941 as well as the opinions of Secre-

tion of the non-discriminatory commercial policy in the entire Pacific area, Ambassador
Nomura pointed out that his government had guaranteed the extension of this policy

to see this commercial policy in practice throughout the world, the Japanese government

attitude of the Japanese government toward the European war, as it had previously stated

defense." However, Japan expected to receive a guarantee that the United States would
not interpret these terms in too broad a sense. Unless, however, both governments placed
unreserved confidence in each other, Ambassador Nomura said, no guarantee would be

satisfactory. 135

would be necessary to retain its troops, and also to guarantee the period of occupation.
Although realizing that the United States desired to have Japanese forces withdrawn

move at the present time. However, he urged the United States to consider Japan's

remarks by submitting Japan's proposal regarding its troops in French Indo-China. After
Ambassador Nomura had finished, President Roosevelt said that the whole world had fallen
into a state of confusion because of the militaristic policies of certain countries. In an

attempt to return to normalcy, the United States government has sought the establishment

assisted in the preliminary conversations in order to find a basis for such peace. Before
going any further, however, President Roosevelt felt it necessary to receive a definite guarantee
that the Japanese government intended to cease its aggression and adopt a peaceful course
in the Far East. 136

In an attempt to abolish the economic limitations to which Japan referred, President
Roosevelt continued, he had conferred with Prime Minister Churchill on the issue of non-

policy contrary to that idea while both Great Britain and the United States wished to apply
the principle of non-discrimination to the entire world. Referring to the administration of
President Taft when the United States had resorted to a policy of force in Cuba, President

Roosevelt pointed out that America's relations with the Latin American countries had been
highly favorable. Once the United States had adopted a new and peaceful policy, relations

134IV, 75.

135IV, 77.

136IV, 78.
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ofwarand,two,themaintenanceofalastingpeace.134proposals.HestatedthatthesepresentproposalswerebasedontheformerJapaneseproposalsPresidentRooseveltsaidthatUnitedStateshadtwoobjectivesinmind:one,thethepreventionNomuracontinued,AmbassadorAmbassadorKurusuwasbeingsenttotheEmbassyin taryHullandUnderSecretaryWellesinsubsequentconversations.Inregardtotheapplica­eventoChina.InviewthefactthatSecretaryHullhadcontinuallyspokenofofhisdesire wascertainthatitsguaranteeswouldmeetwithapprovalofthetheUnitedStates.The initsproposalofSeptember25,1941.wouldbebasedontheneedfor"protectionandself-InclarifyingthirdandmostimportantissuebetweentwogovernmentsAmbassadorNomurastatedthatJapanwasnowpreparedtoestablishthethethelocalitiesinChinawhereit immediately,AmbassadorNomurapointedoutthatitwouldbeimpossibletoeffectsucha concessionsinthelightofactualcircumstances.Ambassador
Nomuraconcludedhis ofpeaceandorderthePacific.WiththatgoalininmindPresidentRoosevelthimselfhad discrimination.Bothcountries'mainobjectiontoGermanywasthefactthatitfolloweda 



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
withthosecountrieshadimproved.AtthispointAmbassadorNomuraremindedPresidentRooseveltthatAmerica'seconomicpressurewasnowcausingtheanti-AmericanattitudethroughoutJapan.PresidentRooseveltcontinuedhisremarksbystatingthatitwas

necessary to find a modus vivendi before a satisfactory conciliation could be worked out
betweenthetwocountries.AmbassadorNomurainterpretedthisstatementtomeanthatPresidentRooseveltdesiredaprovisionalagreement.Astheconferencedrewtoaclose,PresidentRooseveltaskedwhetherAmbassadorKurusu,wasbringingadditionalJapanese

proposals from Tokyo. Ambassador Nomura replied that Mr. Kurusu's only reason for

coming was to act as an assistant to the Japanese Ambassador. Since President Roosevelt

wasleavingforWarmSprings,Georgia,onNovember15,1941toattendaThanksgiving

celebration there, he hoped for the opportunity of conversing with Ambassador Kurusu
before his departure. 137

39. Japanese-American Conversation (November 10, 1941 )138

Becauseofaninterruption,AmbassadorNomurahadfailedtomaketwopointscleartoSecretaryHullduringtheconversationearlierthatmorning.Therefore,MinisterWakasugicalleduponMr.JosephW.BallantinetomakeanappointmentforAmbassadorNomuratoseeSecretaryHulleitherontheeveningofNovember10,1941orinthemorning

of November 11.

The first of the points to be discussed in the next conversation related to Japan's desire to
reachsomesuccessfulagreementbeforetheJapaneseDietmetonNovember15,1941.ThesecondpointwasinconnectionwithSecretaryHull'sstatementmadeonNovember7,1941proposingthedevelopmentofanewrelationshipbetweenJapanandChinabymeans

of mutual pledges of conciliation and friendship.

Mr.WakasugisaidthattheJapanesegovernmentwasextremelyinterestedin

Hull's proposals and desired that he elaborate on them further. Mr. BallantinetospeakwithSecretaryHullandrelayhismessagetoMinisterWakasugi.139Secretary

promised

40. Japan Doubts America's Awareness of the Critical Situation

Fromthefactthatlittleprogresshadbeenmadeintheinformalconversations,Foreign

Minister Togo concluded that the United States did not appreciate how critical the situation
in the Far East actually was.140 In order to emphasize this fact Foreign Minister Togo

urgedAmbassadorNomuratospeaktoSecretaryHullandotherAmericanrepresentativesinordertogivethemaclearpictureofJapanese-Americanrelations.AsForeignMinister

Togo had stated in previous messages to the Japanese Ambassador, a settlement of some

kindmustbereachedbeforeNovember25,1941.TheJapaneseParliamentwouldbeginitssessiononNovember15,1941andbeforeitsmeetingwasconcludeditwouldbe

necessary that Japan have on hand at least a tentative agreement with the United States.14141.TheGermanGovernmentMakesDemandsonJapan
AsTokyohadinformedAmbassadorNomuraoveramonthagotheGermangovernmentwasdemandingthatJapanforcetheUnitedStatestoceaseitsactionagainsttheAxispowers.Unlesssomedefinitemeasuresweretaken,Berlinwarned,theGermangovernmentwouldbe137IV,79.138"Memorandum6faConversation"-InitialedbyJosephW.Ballantine,November10,1941,S.D.II,719.

139 Ibid.l4°ItshouldbenotedthattheNewYorkTimesannouncedtheapproachofadiplomaticcrisis(November11,1941,
1:13), warning the American public that the Japanese were expected to strike in early December (November 12, 1941,
7:1,4).
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United States. 142

Since the time of that first message from Berlin, the Japanese government had received

more likely to convince the United States that it should cease action against Germany after
Japanese-American negotiations had been brought to a successful conclusion.143

Although Ambassador Craigie had called upon Foreign Minister Togo to discuss other busi-

nese-American negotiations. Ambassador Craigie stated that the British government was not

aware of the full details of those conversations under way in Washington. However, since the
success of those negotiations would affect British interests in the Far East, the English govern-

tiations, Great Britain wished to enter into an agreement with both the United States and

Japan. 144

desire that Great Britain enter into an agreement with both the United States and Japan at
an appropriate time. Although not fully informed on the progress already made during these

that the Japanese had already handed the United States government its final proposal in an

which he issued a warning to Japan.146 Since the British Prime Minister had stated in the

Foreign Minister Togo suggested that in the future British statesmen find a basis for their
remarks and not issue unfounded threats capable of forming a breach in Japanese-British
diplomacy.

could be reached within ten days. If, on the other hand, the United States refused to accept
Japan's terms, all negotiations would cease. In view of the fact that there were factions within
Japan itself working against the re-establishment of Japanese-American and Japanese-British
relations, Foreign Minister Togo felt it necessary to conclude an understanding without delay.

14'Ill,277.

14"Ibid.theoftheofononif11,2.towas"anbuttoina
interests."
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1941forcedtoconvokeTripartitePact,thusendinganynegotiationsbetweenJapanandthethe twoadditionaldemandsfromthegovernment.However,ForeignMinisterTogohadattemptedtoconvincetheeGermanGermanAmbassadoronNovember6,thatJapanwouldbe ness,representativetwocountriesturnedconversationtothethethethesubjectofofJapa­mentwasnaturallyinterestedintheirsuccess.OnceUnitedStatesJapanhadreachedanagreementonbasicprinciplespeaceandandthethethetwocountrieswerereadyforforrealnego-InreplyForeignMinisterTogostatedthatmattersunderdiscussionbetweenhisgov­ernmentandUnitedStatesgreatlyaffectedEngland.ItwasthethetheJapanesegovernment's informalconversations,AmbassadorCraigiesaidheassumednegotiationswerestillinthepreliminarystages.BywayofrefutingthisassumptionForeignMinisterTogopointedout effortbringnegotiationsspeedyclose.145At

thispointconversationForeignTogotookthethetheopportunityrefertotototoaaspeechmadebyPrimeMinisterMinisterChurchillinin samespeechthatheknewnothingdevelopmentsofofthetheJapanese-Americannegotiations, TurningconversationbacktolatestJapaneseproposals,ForeignMinisterTogosaidthatifthethetheUnitedStatesfoundtheminaccordwithitsownbasicprinciples,anagreement SinceJapanesegovernmenthadmademaximumconcessionstodate,onlyatti­tudeGreatBritainandUnitedStateswouldstandinwayofofpeace.FromAmbassa­dorCraigie'sgeneralattitudeForeignMinisterTogoconcludedthatthethethethethetheBritishrepresentative 1'"IV,81.WIV,82. 

42.ForeignMinisterTogoConferswithAmbassadorCraigie(November11,1941) 

14.AtluncheonLordMayorLondonNovember10,1941,thePrimeMinisterChurchillstatedthatGreatBritainwoulddeclarewarJapanimmediatelywarbrokeoutbetweentheUnitedStatesandJapan,NewYorkTimes,November1941,1:1,TheJapanesepressrepliedPrimeMinisterChurchill'sspeechbysayingitoutrageouscraftyBritishplotinvolvetheUnitedStateswarinthePacificfortheprotectionofBritish 



promised to report the details of his conversation with the Japanese Foreign Minister to the

still considered the negotiations in the preliminary stage, and it was necessary that Ambas-
sador Nomura correct this opinion.14743.ofOn11,a
requesting clarification of certain details involving the Tripartite Pact. Ambassador Nomura

phasized the point that the Japanese government assumed the United States agreed with

Japan's definition of its obligations under the Tripartite Pact as set forth in the Japanese pro-
posal of September 25, 1941. Actually, however, Ambassador Nomura reminded the Foreign
Minister that the United States' oral statement of October 2, 1941 indicated that America did
not agree with this Japanese interpretation. During Minister Wakasugi's conversations with
Under Secretary of States Welles it was merely noted that "the United States also gave indi-
cations that adjustments in this matter may be a possibility." Although both the United
States and Japanese representatives were exchanging notes in spite of the fact that no definite

these various points cleared up in order that no misunderstanding might arise from them.14844.The
Ambassador Nomura reported on November 11, 1941 that the Chinese Ambassador to the

United States had called on President Roosevelt on the previous day. Since the interview had

the American President a written document. Although unable to determine the contents of
this document, Ambassador Nomura had passed on the scant information he had obtainedtohisitbeofto45.Mr.onAttheof12,Mr.to
with complete freedom on certain subjects to the American representative, he nevertheless

desired to give the United States a complete understanding of how the present situation af-

fected the Japanese government. From the latest reports of Ambassador Nomura's conver-

America's inadequate appreciation of the urgency of the situation.
Since the Japanese government had made the greatest possible concessions to the United

power, it had conducted the conversations with the support of the entire country but since no
tangible progress had been made, Japanese public opinion regarded the United States' delay
as a means of concealing preparations underway for the complete encirclement of Japan.
Therefore, the present Japanese Cabinet had undertaken the task of reaching an agreement
with the United States against much opposition and if any appreciable delay were encoun-

147IV, 82.

"sIV,83.

U"IV,84.

15O"Memorandum by the Ambassador in Japan (Grew)" November 12,1941, S.D. II, 719-722.
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understoodforthefirsttimehowcriticalthesituationactuallywas.AmbassadorCraigie Britishgovernmentimmediately.WhenreportingthisconversationtoAmbassadorNomuraonNovember11,1941ForeignMinisterTogopointedoutthattheUnitedStatesgovernment AmbassadorNomuraSeeksClarificationTripartitePactIssuesNovember1941AmbassadorNomurasentmessagetotheJapaneseForeignOffice

askedwhetherForeignMinisterTogoinhisconversationwithAmbassadorGrewhasem-decisionhadbeenmadewithregardtotheTripartitePactissues,AmbassadorNomurawished ChineseAmbassadorConferswithPresidentRoosevelt
lastedonlytwominutes,thepurposeoftheChineseAmbassador'svisitwasprobablytohand governmenthopingthatmightsomevaluethem.149KaseCallsAmbassadorGrew(November12,1941)requestForeignMinisterTogo,Mr.KasecalledonAmbassadorGrewonNovember1941.150KaseexplainedAmbassadorGrewthatalthoughMr.Togocouldnotspeak

sationswithPresidentRooseveltandSecretaryHull,Mr.Togowasdeeplyconcernedabout States,ForeignMinisterTogoconsideredofficialnegotiationsbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStatestobeintheirfinalstage.WhenPrimeMinisterKonoye'sgovernmenthadbeenin 



tered, a very critical state of affairs would result. Not only would Mr. Togo's official position be
imperiled,buthisverylifewouldbeatstake.Nevertheless,Mr.KaseaddedthatForeignMin-isterTogohadthecouragetocontinuehisattemptsforthere-establishmentoffriendlyrela-

tions between Japan and the United States fully aware of the consequences offailure.

AmbassadorGrewremarkedthatMr.Kase'sobservationsweregenerallythesameasthose

expressed by former Foreign Minister Toyoda and Prime Minister Konoye during former con-

versations.Mr.Kaseinsistedthattherewasconsiderabledifferencebetweenthepresent

situation and the previous one and again he emphasized the vital importance of concluding
present negotiations successfully.151

Atthispointintheconversation,AmbassadorGrewreadSecretaryHull'sreportofthein-

terview with Ambassador Nomura on November 7, 1941.152 After reading the report, Mr. Kase
stated that Ambassador Nomura's details on the conversation were very similar.

Mr.KasesaidthatForeignMinisterToyodawasespeciallyinterestedinSecretaryHull's

suggestion that the Chinese government might be willing to express a desire to seek peaceful
cooperation with Japan. Since that suggestion was generally linked with the whole adjust-
mentofthePacificproblem,AmbassadorGrewfeltthatitwouldcomeunderthecognizance

of Ambassador Nomura and Secretary Hull.

Next,Mr.KaseinquiredwhetherAmbassadorGrewhadreceivedanaccountoftheconver-

sation between President Roosevelt and Ambassador Nomura held on November 10, 1941.
Replying that there was probably little difference between that conversation and the one be-tweentheJapaneseAmbassadorandSecretaryHullonNovember7,1941,AmbassadorGrew
saidthattheAmericanStateDepartmenthadfailedtosendhimthatreportasyet.Mr.Kasesaidthattheconversationswereentirelydifferentintone.

AmbassadorGrewthenhandedMr.KaseacopyofhisreportdealingwiththeinterviewwithForeignMinisterTogoonNovember10,1941.Mterreadingitover,Mr.KasestatedthatthereportwasinaccurateinonesensesinceMr.Togohadneverstatedthat"hedidnotwish

to press the point" regarding the transference of the informal conversations into "official nego-
tiations".AlthoughhedidnotcontradictMr.Kase,AmbassadorGrew,inhisreporttothe

American State Department, pointed out that Counselor Dooman's notes taken during theconversation,revealedthatMr.TogohadactuallymadesuchastatementinJapanese.153
FromthisconversationwithMr.Kase,AmbassadorGrew(inhispersonalcommentsfor-wardedtotheStateDepartment)notedthatconsiderabledoubthadbeencastonthealleged

message received from Foreign Minister Togo through the prominent Japanese informant on

November7,194e54InthismessageForeignMinisterTogohadsupposedlysaidthatalthough

he could not express himself with unrestrained freedom, he nevertheless, wished to make a

suggestion.HesaidthattheTojogovernmenthaddecideduponthemaximumconcessionsthatitwouldbewillingtomakeinordertomeetthedesiresoftheUnitedStates.However,

even if these concessions were regarded as inadequate by the United States, the Japanese
government believed that the Washington conferences should continue.155 However, after

. talkingwithMr.Kase,AmbassadorGrewwasconvincedthatthemessagereceivedthroughtheJapaneseinformantwasmisleading.Evenatthetimeofitsdelivery,AmbassadorGrewhadbeensomewhatsurprisedatitscontents,yethehadnogroundsonwhichtoquestionits

accuracy. Although it appeared obvious even now that the Japanese government would prefer

a continuation of the informal conversations to a complete breakdown of negotiations, never-

theless,AmbassadorGrewappreciatedthedangeroussituationwhichwouldresultifthese

15lIbid.

15'See "Memorandum of a Conversation"-November 7,1941, S.D. II, 706-709.

155S.D. II, 719-722.

154"Memorandum of Comment by the Ambassador in Japan (Grew)" -November 12, 1941, S.D. II, 722.

155"Memorandum by the Ambassador in Japan {Grew)"-November 7,1941, S.D. II, 705.

34



conversations dragged on and produced no definite progress. While realizing that Japan must
take the initiative in these conversations, Ambassador Grew did not feel authorized to say
whether the Japanese proposals of November 7, 1941 constituted the maximum number of
concessions that it would be willing to make.156

In view of the fact that Japanese-American relations had not progressed as a result of the

standing arising with the presentation of this proposal, Ambassador Nomura requested that
Tokyo send him an English translation of this proposal immediately. 157

47. Japanese Official Analyzes Roosevelt's Domestic and Foreign Strategy

on the Roosevelt administration's method of dealing with the Japanese-American situation.158

In an effort to aid in the defeat of Germany President Roosevelt had inaugurated military,

economic, and industrial measures which would eventually lead America into complete war.

least, the United States navy could engage German warships on the high seas. Nevertheless,
in spite of the fact that President Roosevelt had almost dictatorial powers in regard to Con-

policies. For example, on November 10, 1941 the Times Herald had stated that Roosevelt was

as much a dictator as Hitler or Stalin. Furthermore, the America First Committee was secretlyto
members of the America First Committee gathered as a demonstration against the foreign
policies of the present United States government. 158a

In Washington a former American Ambassador demanded that President Roosevelt be

state that President Roosevelt might easily die during this disastrous period in the nation's
history. This statement drew great applause from the audience. Apparently, the Japanese

4, 1941 warned that it would be impossible for Congress to impeach President Roosevelt because

of the whip he held over the army and navy. Nevertheless, the editorial in this and other papers
did mention the possibility of President Roosevelt's being impeached at some time, and
the Japanese intelligence official believed this to be extremely significant.

aid to Britain, the Japanese official cited the occurrence in Detroit when Ambassador Halifax

in its unprecedented aspects and after the sinking of the Reuben James the country received
a great shock. Although President Roosevelt took advantage of this sinking to declare an un-
limited national emergency, in his speech on October 27, 1941 he did not stress foreign ques-
tions but placed his emphasis almost entirely upon America's internal problems. 159

155S.D. II, 722.

Is7IV,85.

ISBIV,86

ISBaIbid.87,

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR46.AmbassadorNomuraSeeksEnglishTranslationofProposalB
Japaneseproposals,itwasevidentthatAmbassadorNomurawouldhavetopresenttheUnitedStatesgovernmentwiththealternateproposalB.Inorderthattheremightbenomisunder-OnNovember12,1941aJapaneseintelligenceofficialinWashingtonsentTokyoareport ByassistingGreatBritainithadalreadyenteredtheconflictonthehighseas.WhiletheUnitedStatesarmywasnotyetequippedtofightawarwithGermanyonland,forthepresent,at gressandthemilitaryofficials,theAmericanpeoplewerenotincompletesympathywithhis

workingimpeachPresidentRoosevelt.OnOctober30,1941atMadisonSquareGarden8,000
forcedtoresignhispositionasPresidentbymeansofareferendum.Heevenwentsofarasto intelligenceofficialwentontosay,themovetoimpeachPresidentRooseveltwaswide-spreadandwasinitiatedbymanyvaryingfactions.AneditorialintheTimesHeraldonNovember AsanindicationthattheAmericanpeoplewerenotentirelybehindPresidentRoosevelt's waspeltedwitheggs.TheAmericanpublicasawholehadbeguntoviewtheprospectofwar 
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During the past few months even the attitude of Congress toward Roosevelt had been af-
fected by public opinion. In spite .of the fact that the Senate had approved the entrance of

to thirty-seven. It was obvious then, that the people of the United States feared the German
war machine. In general the American people believed that the Japanese were exhausted

United States, Japan would quickly be defeated. If war were declared upon Japan, President
Roosevelt could declare an unlimited emergency, disperse the America First Committee, and

with Germany, Japan's ally.

Viewed from any aspect a Japanese-American war, according to the Japanese intelligence

peace with England and should American aid to the British be slowed down Germany mighf

possibly be able to accomplish this plan. It was doubtful whether Germany would let Japaninitsiftheofthein
In warning his government of the dangers of a war with the United States the Japanese intel-

heading both countries toward armed conflict. In view of that fact the Japanese official sug-
gested that his government devise some temporary understanding with the United States in
order to alleviate the economic pressure upon the Japanese people and to allow conditions in
the Pacific to return to some semblance of normalcy. Reminding his government that Presi-
dent Roosevelt had taken an active interest in the European war when Germany invaded the
Netherlands, the Japanese official pointed out that President Roosevelt would inevitably

the Japanese. Japan could then hope to obtain a complete and satisfactory agreement with

the American government. 161

48. Japanese Naval Activity Seen in the Mandates
. In spite of the warnings of Japanese officials in the United States to curtail operations in

ations for future aggression.

forces there. In fact, the Islands of Truk, Palau, Jaluit and Saipan were being included in
dispatches which would not affect them under ordinary circumstances. Apparently severalnewtoin
49. Hull-Nomura Conversation (November 12, 1941)

a. State Department's Report163

Mr. Hull, Ambassador Nomura, accompanied by Mr. Wakasugi, called at the apartment of

the American Secretary of State on November 12, 1941. Before beginning the conversation,

16OIV, 88.

16IIV,89.

1621V,90. ofa

armedmerchantmenintowarzones,theactualvictorywasonlybythesmallmarginoffifty fromtheirfouryearsofwarwithChina,andthat,ifwartookplacebetweenJapanandthe crushalloppositiontohisadministration.TheJapaneseofficialbelievedthatintime,Presi­dentRoosevelt,usingtheJapaneseasatool,couldevenpreparetheAmericanpeopleforawar official,wouldbedisastroustoJapan.Germanyatthepresenttimewasanxioustoconclude

standwayendwarweresight.160
ligenceofficialpointedoutstillfurtherthatthepresentJapanese-Americanrelationswere enterthewaragainsttheNazisandwoulddeclarewarontheGermangovernmentratherthan thePacificthatmightleadtowarwithAmerica,theJapanesegovernmentcontinuedprepar-OnNovember12,1941AmericantrafficanalystsdisclosedthatduringthemonthofOctobernewcallsignshadappearedinMandatetrafficindicatingadecidedincreaseinJapanese 

unitswereevenbeingaddedtheSixthBaseForcetheJaluitarea.162 
SincehehadmadeanappointmentonNovember10,1941foranotherconversationwith SecretaryHullhandedAmbassadorNomuraastatementwhichhehadpreparedinresponse 163"MemorandumConversation"-November12,1941.S.D.II,722-726,InitialedbyJosephW.Ballantine.
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development of a true friendship between Japan and China.164

representatives that he had made this suggestion after Ambassador Nomura had pointed out
that if Japanese troops were removed from all areas of China, the Japanese people would have
no tangible gains from their four years of heavy sacrifice. Since Europe was threatened with
anarchy, Secretary Hull believed that Japan held in its power the unique opportunity for en-

with Japan along peaceful and beneficial lines and Japan found it possible to reciprocate in a
policy of mutual conciliation, the Japanese government would be making a contribution to-

would assume leadership in a peaceful world.

What Secretary Hull envisioned in his suggestion was the practical application of basic
principles directed toward the preservation of social and economic order by means of which all
nati~ns of the world would be able to collaborate peacefully, unthreatened by aggrandizement
or discrimination of any kind. Such a policy would provide for liberalization of trade while, at
the same time, affording access to, and development of, natural resources for the benefit of all

government would be attributed to its far-sighted ;statesmanship. 167

order to avoid any misunderstanding with regard to the concessions already agreed upon by

concessions, the United States government reminded Japan that the documents handed to

"Japan is solicitous for the maintenance of the peace of the Pacific and the peace of the world
. . . : ." Because of this attitude the Japanese government at that time thanked the United
States for the invitation to conduct negotiations with the goal of establishing a workable un-
derstanding. In order to attain a united effort toward the peaceful settlement of the entire
Pacific situation, the Japanese government stated that it was willing to make certain sacrifices.
Denying any intention of threatening other countries by the stationing of its troops in Indo-
China, the Japanese government stated that it "is prepared to withdraw its troops from French
Indo-China as soon as the China Incident is settled or a just peace is established in East Asia".

time.168

long as Russia remained faithful to the Soviet-Japanese Neutrality Treaty by menacing
neither Japan or Manchukuo, the Japanese government would maintain friendly relations

"'Ibid.

'."'Oral statement handed by the Secretary of State to the Japanese Ambassador (Nomura)"-November 12,1941,S.D.II,ForoftoseeIV,
'..Ibid.

'.'Ibid.

'.""Oral Statement handed by the Secretary of State to the Japanese Ambassador (Nomura)"-November 12,S.D.IIForoftoseeIV,

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
toarequestfromMinisterWakasugiforafurtherelaborationofSecretaryHull'sviewsonthe InSecretaryHull'soralstatementreferencewasmadetoAmbassadorNomura'srequestforanamplificationofthesuggestionmadeonNovember7,1941forthemutualexchangeofpledgesofcooperationbetweenJapanandChina.165SecretaryHullremindedtheJapanese hancingitsnationalprestigebymoralforce.IftheChinesegovernmentwereabletocooperate wardarrestingthedestructiveforcesthatnowmenacedcivilization.166InthiswayJapan peoples.Atthiscriticalmomentinworldhistory,theadoptionofsuchaplanbytheJapanese AfterreadingAmbassadorNomurathisoralstatement,SecretaryHullthensaidthatin theJapanesegovernment,andinordertoascertainwhetherthenewJapaneseMinistrywaswillingtoretaintheformerproposals,hehaddrawnupastatementonthissubject.InthissecondoralstatementhandedtoAmbassadorNomuraconcernedwiththeformerJapanese thePresidentoftheUnitedStatesonAugust28,1941byAmbassadorNomuraassertedthat ThissamepledgeofitspeacefulintentionswasmadeapplicabletoThailandatthesame InthisdocumentJapanmadespecificreferencetotheSovietUnionbydeclaringthatas 

726-727.JapaneseversionthisoralstatementsentTokyobyAmbassadorNomuraanddecodedbyAmericancryptanalysts97-99.1941,727-729.JapaneseversionthisoralstatementsentTokyobyAmbassadorNomuraanddecodedbyAmericancryptanalysts93-96.
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with that country. "In a word, the Japanese government has no intention of using, without
provocation, military force against any neighboring nation." Since Japan was in accordance
with the practical application of the principles set forth by the United States government, it
had insisted that it desired to continue the informal discussions in order to work out a progres-

sive program by peaceful methods.

assurance that the position of the Japanese government had not changed in regard to the mat-
ters stated. When the United States had handed its last document to Japan on October 2, 1941,

it had pointed out the difficulty in understanding Japan's apparent need for qualifying cer-
tain statements of policy. ,The United States government had in mind such phrases as:"Asastheto

Manchukuo or take any action contrary to the spirit of said treaty-"

"Without provocation-"

"Without any justifiable reason-"

In answer, Minister Wakasugi on October 13, 1941, had stated that those qualifications were

Wakasugi's statement.

States government had not directed any of the foregoing observations at t}:le new proposals
submitted by Ambassador Nomura on November 7 and November 10, 1941. The United States
government also assured Japan that it had no desire to delay negotiations and that it would
expedite consideration of the latest proposals of the Japanese government.169

ment wished to expedite the settlement of any problems with the United States before the
impending session of the Japanese Diet because further delay would increase the difficult in-

days. Assuring the Japanese Ambassador that the United States government was working as

rapidly as possible to reach a decision on the Japanese proposals handed to President Roose-

government might be had as soon as a good basis in the exploratory conversations were reached.

been clarified sufficiently. Secretary Hull asked if the Japanese government intended to have

bassador Nomura reminded Secretary Hull that Great Britain had remained neutral in the

United States were to understand the attitude of the present Japanese Cabinet toward the

essary to prepare for a postwar program, one in which Japan should playa constructive part
by uniting with peaceful forces in opposition to Hitler in order to avert further disaster. Ambas-
sador Nomura insisted that as time went on Japan would be less affected by Axis ties just as

the Anglo-Japanese alliance had died after the conclusion of the Russo-Japanese War. If the

!6"Ibid.
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longSovietUnionremainsfaithfultheSoviet-JapaneseNeutralityTreatyanddoesnotmenaceSinceanewCabinethadcomeintoofficeinJapan,theUnitedStatesgovernmentasked resultofunfortunatephraseologyandwaswillingtoomitthem.TheUnitedStatesgovernmentgovernmentaskedwhetherthethethenewJapaneseJapaneseCabinetconfirmedMinister Inattemptingtoavoidanymisunderstanding,SecretaryHullpointedoutthattheUnited Afterreceivingthesedocuments,AmbassadorNomuraemphasizedthattheJapanesegovern­ternalsituationinJapan.Herequestedthatsomeagreementbereachedwithinaweekorten veltonNovember10,1941,SecretaryHullcommentedthatsomediscussionwiththeChinese Atthesametime,however,certainofJapan'spointsregardingcommercialpolicieshadnot GreatBritainandothercountriescomesomesortofanagreementoncommercialequality.Next,SecretaryHullreferreddifficultyarisingfromadherencetototoTri­partitePact.ReplyingthatJapan'sJapan's
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Hull agreed that the Tripartite Pact would not be a problem; that Japan and the United States
could work out their agreement along other lines. 169.

Nomura's question about the United States intercession in the matter, stated that when mat-

ters got beyond an exploratory stage, the United States would wish to talk over the subject with
the Chinese, British and Dutch and then re-discuss the matter with Japan. Commenting on

bassador Nomura and Minister Wakasugi had just read, the Japanese Minister asked whether
the United States would bring Japan and C-rina together for a mutual exchange of peaceful
pledges. Not wishing to commit himself, Secretary Hull said that the main problem was to
dispose of basic matters relating to the provisions for a peace settlement; the questions of

tion about a Japanese-Chinese peace contained more than appeared at first glance, the Japa-
nese representatives kept going over these points during the conversation.

Taking up the Japanese concessions discussed in the second document of the United States

government, Minister Wakasugi pointed out that America referred to the Japanese statementof28,to
as a basis for any discussions. In an attempt to clarify an obvious misunderstanding on the
part of the United States government, Minister Wakasugi stated that in the conversation
with Under Secretary of State Welles, referred to in the United States' document, he had been
alluding to phrases used in the proposals of September 25, 1941. In doing so, he had merely
stated that there might have been some unfortunate phraseology in translation which could
be improved after comparison with the original Japanese text. Secretary Hull thanked the
Japanese Minister for calling his attention to this misunderstanding.169b

States' lid to Generalissimo Chiang Kai-shek during Japanese-Chinese peace negotiations,

Secretary Hull stated that ways would be found for safeguarding the rights of all countries con-

negotiations for peace would drag on for an interminable period. However, Ambassador Nomura
commented that if an agreement between Japan and the United States failed on the question
of Japan's retention of troops in China, then the Chinese government would hold the key to

Whether the United States interceded in the Chinese Affair or not, Secretary Hull insisted,

that their retention of troops in China was inconsistent with one of the basic principles, name-

ly interference in the internal affairs of other nations. Although he did not offer anything defi-
nite on this point, Ambassador Nomura disclaimed any desire on the part of Japan to retain
its troops in China permanently.onNber14,

b. Ambassador Nomura's Report 171

After his conversation with President Roosevelt on November 10, 1941, Ambassador Nomura

169aS.D. 11,722-726.

169bIbid.
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August1941.TheJapanesegovernmentwisheduseitsdocumentofSeptember25,1941 
cerningthemovem1941.170 

InspeakingoftheJapanese-Chinesesituation,SecretaryHull,inreplytoAmbassador twodocumentshandedtothetheJapaneseAmbassadorbySecretaryHullwhichbothAm-procedurecouldbeeasilysettled.BecauseofsomepreconceptionthatSecretaryHull'ssugges-Byw:,answeringAmbassadorNomura'squestionregardingthecontinuationofofUnited cernedbysomeagreement.SecretaryHulldidnotagreewithAmbassadorNomurathatthe futurerelationsbetweenJapantheUnitedStatesandandthismighteventuallyresultinwar. wouldnaturallybeinharmonywithproposedPacificsettlementsettlementasawhole.Atsametime,however,hetookopportunitypointouttotothethethethetheJapaneserepresentatives Asconversationdrewaclose,SecretaryHullassuredAmbassadorNomuraMinisterWakasugiUnitedStatesgovernmentgivingcarefulconsiderationtotothethethelatestJapaneseproposalsandanditwaswashopedthatthatsomedefinitestatementcould

bemadecon-hadmadeanappointmenttodiscussthePacificproblemswithSecretaryHull.Although 



November 11, 1941
proposal with other American representatives and discuss the results of this conversation with
Ambassador Nomura on November 12,1941.

statements. Since the second of these oral statements concerned a proposal for peace between

Japan and China, the representatives of both countries discussed the China affair in detail.

non-discrimination inJ commerce, could be similarly applied to China, a complete settlement

question continued to playa key role in Japanese-American negotiations, the desired under-
standing would be delayed. Secretary Hull merely replied vaguely that if the general Pacific

immediate understanding would be possible. Mter speaking with representatives of England

might sign an agreement with Japan similar to that worked out between Japan and the United
States. However, Secretary Hull stated that he had not yet spoken to the Chinese representa-

had been stated in the American proposal of June 21, 1941, that the United States would not
allow Japan to inflict upon other countries conditions conflicting with America's basic prin-
ciples. Anxious to get more definite details regarding Secretary Hull's proposal for Japanese-
Chinese peace Minister Wakasugi asked whether the United States intended to secure a peace

meet together in a conference. Minister Wakasugi also wished to know at what stage in the

Japanese-American negotiations the United States would secure this peace pledge from

intimated his intention to mediate between Japan and China in order to obtain the desired
peace. Furthermore, the American Secretary of State appeared confident that once Japanese-

peace could be settled without any difficulty. 175

In an attempt to make the American representative understand Japan's position in regard
to the stationing of troops in China, Ambassador Nomura pointed out that under his govern-

Hull replied that the stationing of Japanese troops in China constituted interference in the
affairs of other nations; nevertheless, he seemed satisfied with Ambassador Nomura's expla-
nation on this point.

The conversation then turned to Japan's obligations under the Tripartite Pact. Secretary

the Tripartite Pact as a defensive measure when Hitler was carrying out a brutal offensive

the United States would have to take charge of the people throughout that hemisphere. If

172IV,92.92.SeeIV,84an

wastheArmisticeholidaySecretaryHullpromisedtostudytheJapanese At3:00p.m.onNovember12,1941,AmbassadorNomuraandMinisterWakasugimetwithSecretaryHullandMr.Ballantine.172AsareplytotheJapanesecounterproposalsSecretaryHullhandedAmbassadorNomuratwooralstatements.173SecretaryHullrequestedthatAm­bassadorNomuraascertaintheattitudeofthenewJapaneseCabinettowardeachofthese AlthoughamoredefiniteproposalwouldnotbeforthcomingfromtheAmericangovernmentfortwodaysSecretaryHullstatedthatifthebasicprinciplesappliedtothePacific,suchas ofFarEasternaffairscouldbeeffected.AmbassadorNomurapointedoutthatiftheChinese principleswereappliedtoChinaaswellastotheothercountriesoftheFarEasternPacifican andtheNetherlands,SecretaryHullhadcometotheconclusionthatthosetwogovernments tivesaboutthismatter.174AtthispointintheconversationMr.Ballantinepointedoutthatit guaranteefromChinaandthentransmitittoJapan,orwhetherthethreecountrieswould China.ToallthesequestionsSecretaryHullavoidedgivingadefinitereply.However,he AmericannegotiationswereintheirfinalstagestheproblemregardingJapanese-Chinese ment'snewproposalthetroopswouldberemovedwithinaspecifiedtime.AlthoughSecretary HullstatedfranklythathisgovernmentdidnotunderstandwhyJapanpersistedinregarding againstthesmallnationsofEurope.OncetheEuropeanwarwasover,SecretaryHullsaid, someunderstandingcouldbeworkedoutnowbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStatesandasimilar'onebetweenJapan,EnglandandtheNetherlands,thestabilityofthePacificwould 17'S.D.II,727-729;IV,93-99.

174IV,whichreportsinterviewbetweentheChineseAmbassadorandPresidentRoosevelt.
175IV,100.40 



be insured, and Japan would be given an opportunity to cooperate in the establishment of the
European peace. Minister Wakasugi denied that the Tripartite Pact constituted a threat to
any peace plan. In proving his point he reminded Secretary Hull that the Japanese-British
alliance was in effect throughout the Russo-Japanese War and was later nullified at the Wash-
ington conference. Minister Wakasugi insisted that the situation changed with the circum-
stances.176 Furthermore, Minister Wakasugi said, Japan would not be forced to adopt aggressive
policies if it could secure petroleum and other necessary raw materials from the United States

and the Netherlands East Indies by normal trade measures. Since the Japanese government
actually wished to apply the nondiscriminatory policy to all its commercial transactions,
Minister Wakasugi believed that the United States would be willing to adopt Japan's latest
proposals. In reply Secretary Hull agreed that the situation was extremely critical at this
time. Nevertheless, he maintained that the problems which had accumulated over a period

25, 1941.astheof
with the American attitude toward the conversations, however, he instructed Minister Waka-

sugi to confer with Secretary Hull and reemphasize the need for an immediate decision. 177

50. Ambassador Kurusu Reports on American Pessimism

While en route to the United States by clipper, Ambassador Kurusu reported meeting Mr.

conversing with this man Ambassador Kurusu learned that the Cooper party felt Ambassador

nate in a successful peace settlement. In reporting this attitude to Tokyo on November 13, 1941,

Ambassador Kurusu asked whether the American public was influenced in any way by the

pessimistic point of view of the Cooper party. Ambassador Kurusu felt that it might be oftothe51.ofB
ing to evacuate her troops dispatched to French Indo-China at present." 17952.
tioning America's interpretation of certain phases of the Japanese proposals. For example,

report Secretary Hull asked Ambassador Nomura directly for a "concrete statement of Japan's

176IV, 10l.

177IV, 102.

178IV, 103.29.theof
that found in 29.)

18"IV, 105.
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oftenyearscouldnotbesettledovernight.MinisterWakasugiremindedSecretaryHullthatsomeagreementshouldbereachedbeforetheJapaneseDietconvenedinTokyoonNovember AsaresultofthediscussionAmbassadorNomuraconcludedthattheUnitedStateswascon­tinuingtostudythethreemajorproblemsexistingbetweenitsgovernmentandJapanaswell JapaneseproposalsSeptember25,1941.SinceAmbassadorNomurawasnotsatisfied 

Hozuituk,amemberoftheCooperparty,whohadrecentlygoneonaFarEasterntour.While Kurusu'smissionwasalostcausesinceJapanese-Americannegotiationswouldneverculmi­somevaluelearnactualinfluencethatthispartyhadintheUnitedStates.178JapanRevisesTextProposal
OnNovember13,1941theJapanesegovernmentsentAmbassadorNomurainstructionsforchangingcertainphrasesinProposalB.InitsrevisedformSectionIoftheaddendumwastoread:"AsrequireduponhavingajointagreementassuredlyestablishedbetweenJapanandChinaorassoonasajustpeaceismadeinthePacificarea,Japanhasnoobjectiontopromis-ForeignMinisterTogoQuestionsAmericanInterpretationofProposals

OnNovember13,1941,ForeignMinisterTogosentAmbassadorNomuraamessageques-ISO ForeignMinisterTogostatedthatAmbassadorGrewhadshownhimadigestoftheJapaneseAmbassador'sconversationwithSecretaryHullonNovember7,1941.InAmbassadorGrew's 179IV,104,(NotethatEnglishtranslationthissectionoftheProposalBmentionedin104differsfrom 



phrase in his message to Tokyo regarding the conversation with Secretary Hull, Foreign Min-
ister Togo asked for a more complete report on it. From the attitude of the United States to-

ister Togo stated that he had mentioned this to Ambassador Grew, warning him that the
seriousness of the situation forced both countries to consider these negotiations as final. For-

sentati~es in Washington. 181

53. Finance Official Nishiyama to Study Japanese-American Negotiations

Possibly because of the effect of American economic and commercial results upon Japan,

on November 12, 1941, Finance Official Nishiyama was ordered to study all matters relating

to the Japanese-American negotiations. Mr. Okinobu Kikaya, the Japanese Finance Minister~

eivdently convinced that these negotiations were the focal point of the recent internationalwastohistoa
54. Japan Seeks Undelayed Chinese Peace Negotiations

In commenting upon the report of the conversation between Secretary Hull, Ambassador
Nomura and Minister Wakasugi, the Japanese Foreign Office reminded its representatives in

desire to carryon prolonged conversations related to it. In regard to the possible materializa-
tion of Secretary Hull's peace plan, Tokyo reminded Minister Wakasugi in particular that it
would be opposed to a conference conducted by the consular representatives of Japan, the
United States and China.18355.

a. State Department's Repore84

Recalling President Roosevelt's desire to see Mr. Kurusu upon his arrival, Minister Wakasugi
informed the American representative that Ambassador Kurusu would arrive in Washingtop
on Saturday afternoon, November 15, 1941.

Minister Wakasugi then turned the conversation to the United States' misunderstanding of
a statement he had made to Under Secretary of State Welles on October 13, 1941. The United
States had referred to Minister Wakasugi's remark in the oral statement handed Ambassador

of our English. If there are such phrases the wording might be adjusted." When making this
remark Minister Wakasugi said that he had been referring to the Japanese document of Sep-
tember 25, 1941, and not to that delivered on August 28, 1941.

18lIbid.

18'IV, 106.

183IV,107. ofaby

relationswiththeAxispowers."SinceAmbassadorNomurahadmadenomentionofthis wardthepresentnegotiationsitwasapparentthattheAmericangovernmentstillthoughtoftheconversationsasbeingintheirpreliminarystages.OnNovember12,1941,ForeignMin­eignMinisterTogoaskedAmbassadorNomuratopressSecretaryHullwiththispoint.TheJapaneseForeignMinisterwarnedAmbassadorNomurathatAmbassadorGrewhadshownhimthereportoftheHull-Nomuraconversationsonlythroughhisownpersonalcourtesy,thereforehewarnedAmbassadorNomuranottomakeanymentionofittoAmericanrepre­

situationconfirminstructionsMr.Nishiyamainlatermessage.182 
WashingtonthatJapanwasinterestedinSecretaryHull'sChinesepeaceproposalonlyinsofarasitcouldsimplifythesettlementofthatPacificproblem.TheJapanesegovernmenthadno Japanese-AmericanConversations(November13,1941)

AthisownrequestMinisterWakasugicalledtoseeMr.BallantineonNovember13,1941. NomuraonNovember12,1941.Attemptingtoclearupcompletelythismisunderstanding,MinisterWakasugisaidthathehaddeclaredtoMr.Welles,that"theremayhavebeensomeunfortunatephraseologyintheEnglishtranslationofourinstructions,aswearenotverysure 

18"'MemorandumConversation"-InitialedJosephW.Ballentine-November13,1941,S.D.II,729-731.
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Impressing upon Mr. Ballantine the desperate situation current in Japan, Minister Waka-

the Japanese Parliament convened on Saturday, November 15, 1941. It was Minister Waka-
sugi's understanding that the United States government would give a reply to the Japanese
proposals of November 7 and November 10, 1941, on the following day. In correcting Minister
Wakasugi, Mr. Ballantine pointed out that Secretary Hull had said he only hoped that some
statement might be forthcoming on that day. Re-emphasizing that the Japanese government
wanted to avoid any further interchange of comment on the proposals submitted, Minister

government. Mr. Ballantine pointed out the need for a further clarification of these latest
Japanese proposals, however, since Secretary Hull had already stated that he did not under-
stand Japan's attitude on the commercial policy. Attempting to clear up this point, Minister
Wakasugi declared that the Japanese government desired that the principle of non-discrimi-

with the rest of the world. Mr. Ballantine felt that this point was important enough to be-
brought out clearly and authoritatively.

Minister Wakasugi next brought up the problem of arriving at formal negotiations. Through-

ments were still in the stage of exploratory discussions. Since the Japanese government had
given the United States its latest proposals through Ambassador Nomura it believed that it
had entered into formal negotiations. However, Mr. Ballantine insisted that until the United
States government discussed the problems with China and the other governments con-
cerned, no formal state of negotiations could be reached with the Japanese. Not wishing to
argue any of these points with Mr. Ballantine, Mr. Wakasugi merely asked that they be re-
ferred to Secretary Hull. 185

b. Minister Wakasugi's Repore86

versation by pointing out that the previous day's discussions leading to no settlement had
fallen short of Japanese expectations. In view of the tense situation existing within Japan

reached without any further delay. Any discussions of general attitudes on the possible out-
look must be dropped from further conversations in order to eliminate all hinderance to a

it known that it intended to accept the Japanese proposal of September 25, 1941, as clarified
by the further Japanese proposals of November 7 and November 10, 1941. If these proposals
were not accepted the Japanese government would like an American counter proposal clearly
indicating the revisions desired. Minister Wakasugi pointed out that many factions in Japan

the United States, aware of the critical condition, had called a meeting of American repre-
sentatives to discuss the Japanese proposals of November 11, 1941, in spite of the fact that it

185Ibid.

18'rv, 108.
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sugiurgedthatsomeconcreteunderstandingbereachedbetweenthetwogovernmentsbefore WakasugisaidthathehopedSecretaryHullwouldhaveaclear-cutanswertotheJapaneseproposalsofNovember7andNovember10,1941,andthattheUnitedStateswouldsaydefi­nitelywhetheritsproposalofJune21,1941,wastobethefinalonehandedtotheJapanese nation,asappliedtoChina,beappliedbytheUnitedStatesandJapantocommercialdealings outalltheUnitedStates'documentsithadbeennotedthatAmericabelievedthetwogovern-AtameetingwithMr.BallantineonNovember13,1941,MinisterWakasugibeganthecon-itselftheJapanesepublicwasviewingtheJapanese-Americannegotiationswithimpatience.RemindingMr.BallantinethatthesessionoftheJapaneseDietwouldconveneinTokyoonthefollowingday,MinisterWakasugiwarnedthatsomesatisfactoryunderstandingmustbe satisfactoryagreement.Atthepresenttime,Mr.Wakasugistated,theJapanesegovernmentwisheddefiniteanswersregardingcertainpoints.HerequestedthattheUnitedStatesmake believedthattheUnitedStates,inrefusingtomakeanychangesinitsproposalofJune21,1941,wasmerelystallingfortime.InreplytotheseremarksMr.Ballantinepointedoutthat wastheArmisticeholiday.Notwishingtoquibbleovermeredetails,however,Mr.Ballantine 



brought up several points with regard to the Japanese proposals that the United States wished
clarified. First of all, Mr. Ballantine stated, Japan, in accepting the plan of commercial non-
discrimination in the Pacific, had requested that the same treatment be applied to the entire
world. The United States wished to know if this sweeping proposal was to include those na-

out that the agreement was not designed for every country in the world. Therefore, it appeared
obvious that Japan only wished that its present government and that of the United States

with other countries. 186a

Minister Wakasugi then discussed the difference of opinion regarding the stage of present

garded the discussions as merely exploratory, while Japan considered them to be actual nego-
tiations. In reply Mr. Ballantine referred to a statement made by Secretary Hull in which he
said that once the conversations reached the stage of negotiations Great Britain and the
Netherlands would be asked to participate. Disregarding Mr. Ballantine's explanation Minis-
ter Wakasugi insisted that talks between the duly recognized ambassador of one country and
the President and Secretary of State of another had always constituted a diplomatic negoti-

treating the present proceedings as part of final negotiations.

Minister Wakasugi's report to Tokyo on November 13, 1941, contained an explanation of
Ambassador Nomura's interview with President Roosevelt. The Japanese Minister stated that
the primary purpose of the interview was to submit the latest Japanese proposals; therefore,
a discussion of Japan's obligations under the Tripartite Pact did not take place. Other than a

upon enlarging the scope of the right of self-defense, neither representative discussed the prob-
lem further. Minister Wakasugi insisted that Secretary Hull had never requested a "concrete

regarding the Tripartite Pact, Mr. Ballantine was certain that some mistake had been made.its
56. Foreign Minister Togo Requests Summaries of the Conversations

In order to receive an immediate report of any conversations taking place between the Amer-
ican and Japanese representatives Foreign Minister Togo requested that Ambassador Nomura

be wired later at the convenience of the Japanese Ambassador .18757.ofOn14,
convinced that in the end the negotiations would be concluded successfully, he warned his
government that the United States intended to stop.~ further Japanese moves in the Pacific
whether they be northward or southward.188 Already using every economic weapon to curtail

188. Ibid.
188b Ibid.
'87IV,109.

188IV,110.
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tionsnowatwar.StatingthatthisandothertermsintheJapaneseproposalsweredesignedtobringaboutanagreementbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStates,MinisterWakasugipointed applythebasicprincipleofnon-discriminatorytreatmenttoitsowncommercialdealings conversations.Ontheonehand,theJapaneseMinisterpointedout,theUnitedStatesre­ation.Therefore,Mr.WakasugirequestedthatSecretaryHullbeinformedthatJapanwas remarkbyMinisterWakasugiexpressingthehopethattheUnitedStateswouldnotinsist statement"concerningJapan'srelationswiththeAxispowers.Infact,MinisterWakasugihadevenaskedMr.BallantineiftherewereanyotherpointstobediscussedandMr.Ballantinehadrepliedtherewerenone.IfSecretaryHull'sreportshowedthathehadaskedthisquestion Naturally,however,Mr.Wakasugipointedout,theUnitedStateswasattemptingtogetsome

assurancefromJapanregardingdutiesunderthetermsofthepact.186b 
wiretheForeignOfficebriefsummarieswithoutanydelay.Morecompletedetailscouldthen AmbassadorNomuraWarnsAmerica'sPreparednessforWarNovember1941,AmbassadorNomurawiredtheJapaneseForeignOfficeacomplete

resumeofAmerica'sattitudetowardawarwithJapan.AlthoughAmbassadorNomurawas 



Japanese aggression, Ambassador Nomura felt that the United States was now preparing for
actual war. Rather than yield its fundamental political policy regarding the Pacific area the
United States, Ambassador Nomura felt, would join up with the other countries interested in
the Far East. The United States government had no intention of repeating the failure of the

sisted, Ambassador Nomura felt that the possibility of a separate peace between Germany
and England was small, and that this would have a bad effect upon Japanese-American rela-
tions. Furthermore, Ambassador Nomura pointed to the increase in American aid to China.
If the Chinese problem continued to remain the stumbling block in Japanese-American nego-
tiations, Ambassador Nomura felt that the United States might well take advantage of the
situation to declare war on Japan. 188a

Tripartite Pact. Recently the American newspapers had pointed to the close alliance between

in the back. If Japan then, continued its aggression in the south Pacific, even though that
aggression be necessary for the maintenance of Japan's national life, Ambassador Nomura

South America, dependent upon the United States for their economic existence, would also

join sides against Japan. Recognizing the fact that Japan believed America's forces to be con-

to convoy duty and that at any moment the United States could transfer the main strength
of its fleet to the Pacific. 189

in the Atlantic it would be ready for a compromise in the Pacific. Lately, however, when Great

Britain had transferred its forces to the Indian Ocean the United States had changed its atti-

Recognizing the critical situation existing within Japan, Ambassador Nomura, nevertheless,
asked that the Japanese government and people be more patient toward the negotiations withits58.

Mr. Iguchi learned that the Chinese Ambassador to the United States had submitted a plea
for intensive aid to China in the event Japan attacked the Burma Road. According to thisandintheforin
59. Japanese Government Considers Negotiations in Final Stage

to conduct his conversations with the representatives of the American government along the
lines of final negotiations. Nevertheless, the American State Department had continued to
speak of these meetings between leaders of both governments as merely preliminary discus-
sions.

impress upon the United States the fact that Japan was considering these negotiations as

188a Ibid.

'89IV, 111.

19°IV, 112.

1911V, 113,
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ratherthanowninternalconditions.190ChinaSeeksIncreasedAidfromtheUnitedStatesPresidentRooseveltplanincreasedaidChina'swaragainstJapan.191 

Munichconference.SincetheGermanvictoriesweredecreasingasRussianresistanceper-AnotherprimaryfactorinfluencingattitudeofUnitedStatestowardJapanwasthethethe andAxis,warningthatJapanJapanwouldbewillingatanytimetostabthetheUnitedStates feltthatEngland,theUnitedStatesRussiawouldattack.ThecountriesofCentralandand centratedintheAtlantic,AmbassadorNomurastatedthatitsactivitiestherewereconfined PreviouslyAmbassadorNomurahadfeltthatoncetheUnitedStatesenteredanoceanwar tudesothatatpresenttimeitwasreadyto.participateanavalwarininthethePacific. UnitedStates.HefeltthatitwasnecessaryforJapantoviewthetheentireworldsituationreportUnitedStatesgovernmentrejectedChina'srequest.However,Mr.T.V.Soong,refusingletmatterrest,atthethethepresenttime

wasattemptingtotointerestSecretaryHull ForanumberofmonthstheJapanesegovernmenthadbeeninstructingAmbassadorNomura OnNovember15,1941,TokyoinstructedAmbassadorNomuracontinuehisattemptstoto 



nese Prime Minister and President Roosevelt, the present government desired to terminate

satisfactorily the talks by an official agreement. Foreign Minister Togo realized that the United
States officials might claim that Japan had never mentioned the changed status of the con-
versations; however, he felt that the United States government must nevertheless recognize

before the Japanese Diet met on November 15,1941.192

60. Ambassador Nomura Speculates on Results of Possible Diplomatic Breach

In the event that these negotiations could not be terminated in the manner desired by the
Japanese government, Ambassador Nomura stated on November 15, 1941, that Japanese-

of such a breach Ambassador Nomura, in a message to his government, offered certain sugges-

tions for the disposition of the consular offices and the evacuation of Japanese officials. Even
if diplomatic relations between Japan and the United States were not entirely severed a
situation similar to that now existing between Germany and the United States would arise.
Under these circumstances it would be necessary to close the Japanese Consulates and recall

the Japanese Ambassador. 193

Since Embassy duties would be limited only to a few pressing matters, the staff would

and Inagawa and one clerk would be sent back to Japan. However, members of the intelli-
gence staff, such as Secretary Terasaki and Clerk Yamamoto, would be transferred to South

engaged locally were dismissed, other Japanese officials would either be sent to South Amer-

ica or returned to Japan in evacuee ships.194

of the utmost importance, Ambassador Nomura offered certain suggestions concerning their

personnel of the Japanese and American consulates would probably be evacuated by mutual
consent. While this evacuation was taking place Ambassador Nomura foresaw numerous

requests from businessmen and other Japanese nationals to return home. In consideration of

the safe passage of Embassy and Consulate members. Arrangements would be made regard-

ing the costs of the evacuation vessels, the type of markers to be used and the methods of

officials to some halfway point such as Hawaii, the Aleutian Islands or French Tahiti aboard

could then be effected. Some arrangements might be attempted regarding an exchange of

Japanese nationals residing in the United States for Americans at present in Japan. However,
in view of the difference in numbers, Ambassador Nomura did not believe that such a plan

would meet with the approval of the United States. There was little doubt that Japanese resi-
dents of military age would be retained in the United States. Before the complete evacuation

[92IV, 114.

19'IV, 115.

19'IV, 116.
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final.AlthoughForeignMinisterTogoadmittedthatformerJapaneseCabinethadcon­sideredconversationsmerelypreliminaryandwasworkingtowardameetingofthethethe.Japa­factthethenegotiationswereintheirfinalstageandthatthatsomeconclusionmustbereached Americanrelationswouldbreakdowncompletely.Tobepreparedfortheinevitableeffects necessarilybegreatlyreduced.Oneoftwosecretaries,ForeignServiceAttachesFujiyama Americatogetherwithcertainso-calledstudentattaches.Mteremployeeswhohadbeen SincedispositionofvariousJapaneseofficialsandnationalsinthethetheUnitedStateswas possibleevacuation.AswasthecasewhenUnitedStates-Germanrelationsweresevered, thisurgedasufficientshipssenttakecarelargenumbernumberofofofrequestspermissionreturnJapan.IfAmericandiplomaticrelationsbrokeoffcompletelyanotherplanforforevacuatingJapaneseofficialshaveevolved.AmbassadorAmbassador

NomuraNomurabelievedthatthatJapanandthetheUnitedStateswouldwouldbebebewillingtototototoguarantee communicationbeemployed.Forexample,twocountriesmightagreetotosendthetheother shipshisownnation.Attheassignedmeetingplaceanexchangeofofconsulateofficials 



of its officials Japan would have to decide on a neutral nation entrusted with protecting Japa-
nese national property and Japanese national rights in the United States. Negotiations with
the country decided upon would probably be completed in Tokyo with the diplomatic repre-

bassador or Minister with the capital of the neutral country concerned. Ambassador Nomura
apparently did not place too much confidence in neutral nations, however, since he warned
Tokyo that it would be extremely precarious to depend upon neutral ships in evacuating Japa-

countries might take sides. 19561.in
Since Ambassador Kurusu was arriving in Washington on November 15, 1941, Foreign Min-

of his mission might determine the fate of the entire Japanese nation. Mter first arriving at

Kurusu should cooperate in bringing the present negotiations to an immediate settlement.
In view of the fact that a crisis was approaching largely because of the many delays caused by
the laxity of the United States government, Foreign Minister Togo urged that Ambassadornoto

Foreign Minister Togo explained to Ambassador Kurusu that Ambassador Nomura had

within a short time, however, Foreign Minister Togo instructed Ambassador Nomura to sub-

mit this alternate proposal to American representatives. 197

62. Hull-Nomura Conversation (November 15. 1941)

a. State Department's Repore98

called at Secretary Hull's apartment on November 15, 1941. Immediately upon the Japanese
Ambassador's arrival, Secretary Hull spoke of the Japanese proposal regarding commercial
policy which had been presented on November 7 and November 10, 1941.199

views on this economic policy.2O0 This oral statement referred to the Japanese government's

proposal in which it was stated that Japan "recognizes the principle of non-discrimination in
internal commercial relations to be applied to all the Pacific areas, inclusive of China, on the
understanding that the principle in question is to be applied uniformly to the rest of the entire

to be responsible for discriminatory practices in areas outside of its jurisdiction, for such an
arrangement could be fulfilled only with the consent of all the other governments of the world.

195IV, 115.

196Apparently this move by the Japanese government was considered a possible change of the diplomatic staff inbut,tothe
197IV,117.

198"Memorandum of a Conversation"-November 15, 1941. S.D. II, 731-734.

199Ibid.

2oo"Oral statement handed by the Japanese Ambassador (Nomura) to the Secretary of State on November 15,II,SeeIV,forasto
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sentativesofthatcountryatthesametimethatplanswerebeingmadebytheJapaneseAm­nesenationalsshouldwarbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStatesbedeclared.Thenowneutral 

'TokyoInstructsAmbassadorKurusuNewDuties
isterTogosenthimamessageexpressingthegratitudeoftheentireJapanesegovernmentfortheworkwhichhewasabouttoundertake.RecognizingthefactthatAmbassadorKurusuhadadifficultposition,196ForeignMinisterTogotoldtherepresentativethatthesuccessorfailure someunderstandingwithAmbassadorNomura,ForeignMinisterTogosaid,AmbassadorKurusuallowsubsidiaryproblemsfurthercomplicateJapanese-Americanrelations.
notyetpresentedproposalBtotheUnitedStates.Ifthepresentconditionwasnotalleviated ByanappointmentmadeathisownrequestAmbassadorNomurawithMinisterWakasugi SecretaryHullthenhandedAmbassadorNomuraanoralstatementregardingAmerica's worldaswell."TheUnitedStatesgovernmentassumedthatJapandidnotexpectAmerica InthoseareasinwhichtheUnitedStatesgovernmentwaseconomicallyconcerned,however, 

Washington,wheninterviewed,Mr.KurusudeniedthathewasgoingtosucceedMr.NomuraasAmbassadorUnitedStates.(NewYorkTimes,November15,1941,5:1.)1941",S.D.734-736.121-126textsentTokyobyAmbassadorNomuraonNovember15,1941.
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the principle of unconditional and non-discriminatory treatment had been the cornerstone of
commercial policy. Since World War I the United States had embodied this non-discrimina-

thousand classifications of American tariff in order to achieve an extensive program of fair

natory practices. Furthermore, on every appropriate occasion the United States had sought
the progressive elimination of preferences and discriminations by other countries of the world.

mercial fairness in international trade the United States had insisted upon the extension of
concessions to all countries concerned in any trade agreement which the United States made.

to a world trade in which all nations would benefit.

need of Japan's incorporating the phrase "on the understanding that the principle in question
is to be applied uniformly to the rest of the entire world as well" in its commercial proposal.Thebe

In order to manifest a tentative commercial agreement applying the principle of non-dis-

have to be discussed with the British and other interested governments.200a In this joint decla-
ration by the United States and Japan on economic practices, under the term "general policy",
both governments were to agree to cooperate in reducing trade barriers and eliminating from
international commercial relations all forms of discrimination.

necessary for the safety and development of their economies through peaceful trade processes,
both countries would create secure conditions of international trade and investment. In order

to make an appropriate contribution toward the creation of such an ideal trade setup, the
United States and Japan should seek the establishment of non-discriminatory economic
relations in the Pacific area.

With regard to "the United States-Japanese relationship", both governments should agree
to negotiate for a reciprocal trade agreement aimed at restoring commercial, financial and
economic relations to a normal basis. While both governments should permit the export of
commodities to the other for the purpose of security or self-defense, it was understood that any

"policy in the Pacific area" the governments of the United States and Japan should guarantee
equal commercial treatment to the Chinese under conditions no less favorable than the treat-

ment accorded to any third country. In order that economic, financial and monetary affairs

ment inaugurate a comprehensive program of economic development, using any foreign as-

commercial fair play and equal opportunity. 201a

200. Ibid.
2OI"Draft document handed by the Secretary of State to the Japanese Ambassador (Nomura)" November 15,TI,SeeIV,forasto
201. Ibid.
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toryprincipleineverycommercialtreatywhichithadconcluded.Inthetwenty-twoagree­mentsmadesince1934theUnitedStatesgovernmenthadreduceddutiesonmorethana commercialagreements.OnlyintwocaseshadtheUnitedStateswithheldtradeagreementconcessionsandthiswasinanefforttoinducethecountriesconcernedtoapandondiscrimi-NotonlydidtheUnitedStatesconcludenon-discriminatoryagreementsforitsownbenefitbuthadsoughtsimilarconcessionsforothercountries.Asapartofitsgeneralpolicyofcom-BythereductionoftradebarrierstheUnitedStateshopedtomakeitsnationalcontribution IfJapanweretocooperateinfavoringthepolicyofnon-discriminationastheUnitedStateshad,thenitwouldachieveitsgoalinthecommercialfield.TheUnitedStatesdidnotseeany 

UnitedStatesaskedthatthisprovisoomitted.
criminationtobothJapaneseandAmericaninternationalrelations,theUnitedStateshaddrawnupadeclarationofeconomicpolicy.Beforeenteringintoanynegotiationsbasedonthispolicy,however,theUnitedStateswishedtomakeitclearthatthepointsinvolvedwould 201Byacquiringcommodities restrictionsimposedwouldbeinthespiritoffriendlyrelations.Bywayofapplyingthis berestoredtoChina,theUnitedStatesandJapanweretosuggestthattheChinesegovern­sistancethatmightbedeemednecessary.AnyrelationsbetweentheUnitedStatesandJapanandothercountriesofthePacificareaweretobegovernedbythesamebasicprinciplesof 

1941.S.D.736-737.127-130textsentTokyobyAmbassadorNomuraonNovember15,1941. 



After handing both of these documents to Ambassador Nomura, Secretary Hull emphasized

once more the advantages that Japan would gain from participating in the peaceful program

envisaged by the United States government.2O2 Without first referring it to his government

Ambassador Nomura did not feel authorized to make any comment. However, Minister Waka-

ative. /

Minister Wakasugi then asked for America's stand regarding Japan's relations in the Tri-
partite Pact and the question of stationing Japanese troops in China.

Ambassador Nomura then pointed out that the Japanese government considered that the

tiations. Requesting that Minister Wakasugi take accurate notes on what he was about to say,
Secretary Hull replied that the United States government could not go beyond exploratory

reached some settlement as a result of the American proposals of June 21, 1941, Secretary

Hull continued, the answering Japanese proposals of September 25, 1941, had narrowed down

the agreement. When Ambassador Nomura insisted that the question of peace in the entire

document rather than in the preamble.

Grew on November 10, 1941, during which the Japanese Foreign Minister indicated that Japan

sistency between those instructions and the ones which Ambassador Nomura was being asked

States could not answer Japan's proposals without first determining whether it intended to
adopt with sincerity a peaceful course. After Ambassador Nomura had insisted that Japan
desired peace in the Pacific and that it would interpret its obligations under any alliance inde-
pendently, Secretary Hull asked whether the Japanese government would automatically
abandon the Tripartite Pact if it entered into an agreement with the United States. Minister
Wakasugi asked if the United States wanted Japan to denounce the Tripartite Pact. Ambas-
sador Nomura understood, however, that the Secretary meant the Tripartite Pact to become
a dead letter. Agreeing with Ambassador Nomura's interpretation of his remark, Secretary
Hull pointed out how inconsistent it would be for Japan to enter into a peace agreement with
the United States while adhering to a fighting alliance with Germany. Not only would it be
difficult to explain Japan's actions to the British and Dutch people but the American public
would reject such an agreement. Although Ambassador Nomura felt that the American public

of State said plainly that it would cause so much turmoil throughout the country that he
might well be lynched.

armies in Manchuria facing Russian armies in Siberia in spite of the existing neutrality pact
between Russia and Japan. What the United States desired, Secretary Hull continued, was

as a measure of self-defense, Secretary Hull felt that Japan would not continue its professed

'O'S.D. II, 731-734.

49

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
sugiaskedifthisconstitutedAmerica'sanswertoJapan'sproposalproposalregardingnon­discriminationinternationalcommercialrelations,andSecretaryHullrepliedinintheaffirm-presentconversationsnotmerelyexploratorybutwereweredesignedtoarriveatformalnego­conversationsitdeterminedattitudeofGreatBritain,ChinaNether­lands.Furthermore,untiluntilsomesatisfactoryconclusionsresultedfrominformalconversa­tions,UnitedStatesgovernmentcouldnotspeakwiththosecountries.Nom­uramadenocomment.NotwithstandingthethethethethefactthatheandandAmbassadorAmbassadorNomurahadhad PacificarewascoveredpreambledraftJapaneseproposalsSeptember25,1941,SecretaryHullpointedoutthatconcessionsmustbecontainedininbodyofofofofthethethethethethe ThenSecretaryHull,referringtoForeignMinisterTogo'sconversationwithAmbassador wasanxiousto.concludeasimultaneousagreementwithBritish,pointedoutthetheincon­tocarryoutinWashington.Inview

oftheseinconsistenciesSecretaryHullfeltthattheUnited wouldacceptagreementsimplybecauseHullrecommendedit,thetheSecretarySecretary Bywayofemphasizinghisstatements,SecretaryHullcommentedonthelargeJapanese aclear-cut,unequivocalagreementwhichwouldpromotemutualtrustbydenouncingmili­taryexpansion.IneventthatthetheUnitedStatesshouldbeforcedgototowarwithGermany 



peacefulcourse,norwouldSecretaryHullbelievethatJapan'sconnectionwiththeTripartitePactwoulddisappearifanagreementwerereachedbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStates.

Only after Japan had given the United States a specific guarantee that the Tripartite Pact
wouldbeconsideredadeadlettercouldSecretaryHullbeginformalpeacenegotiationswith

Japan.

Ambassador Nomura insisted that the policies of the present Japanese government differed

in no way from those of the previous Japanese government in spite of the fact that the Prime
Ministerwasamilitaryman.SecretaryHullthenstatedthattheUnitedStatesdidnotfeel

it should receive ultimatums from Japan since the United States had been pursuing a peace-
ful course throughout the conversations, while the Japanese government had been the one to
resort to aggression.

InconcludingtheconferenceSecretaryHullsaidthatwhentheproblemofnon-discrimi-nationandthatofJapan'splaceintheTripartitePactweresettledJapaneseandAmericanrepresentativescouldsitdownlikebrothersandfindsomesolutiontothequestionofstationing

Japanese troops in China.2O2a

b. Ambassador Nomura's Report

Although originally scheduled for November 14, 1941, Ambassador Kurusu's interview with

SecretaryHullwaspostponeduntil9:00a.m.onNovember15,1941,attherequestofthe

American State Department. 203

AtthescheduledtimeAmbassadorNomuraandMr.WakasugimetwithSecretaryHullandMr.Ballantineforaninterviewlastingaboutanhourandahalf.2O4SecretaryHullopenedtheconversationbypresentingAmbassadorNomurawithtwoAmericanproposalsdealingwiththecommercialproblem.2O5AttemptingtoimpressAmbassadorNomurawithAmerica's

desire to see non-discrimination in trade throughout the world Secretary Hull stated that by
its trade agreements with twenty-two nations tariffs had been reduced on approximately

1,200articles.AtthetimeoftheeconomicconferenceinLondonSecretaryHullhadurged

that the policy of non-discrimination in commerce be adopted, but Germany and other coun-

triesweresostronglyopposedtoitthatthemeasurewasnevercarriedintoeffect.WhiledesiringtoseethispolicyputintoeffectthroughouttheworldtheUnitedStatesgovernment

wished to call to Japan's attention the fact that it could not guarantee the effectiveness of this
policyoutofthesphereofitsownjurisdiction.Therefore,SecretaryHullstated,theAmericangovernmentwishedJapantomodifyitsconditionwhichstatedthatJapanwouldapplythepracticeofnon-discriminationincommercetothePacificareaonlyifitwereappliedtothe

rest of the world.

AtthispointintheconversationSecretaryHullhandedAmbassadorNomurathesecondoftheUnitedStates'writtenproposals.Mr.WakasugithenaskedSecretaryHullifthisshould

be considered the American counter-proposal to the Japanese proposals dealing with the three
majorproblemsinthediscussion.AfterSecretaryHullrepliedthattheAmericanproposalscouldbeappliedtoamuchwiderrange,AmbassadorNomurastatedthatJapanwouldgiveit

careful consideration.2O5a

Following the instructions of his government Ambassador Nomura then brought up the prob-

lem connected with the interpretation of the present conferences. Ambassador Nomura stated

that in view of the fact that official proposals had been handed to Japan by both President
Roosevelt and the Secretary of State, the Japanese government considered these talks in the

202.Ibid.
2031'1, 118.

2041'1, 119.

2051'1,119-120.

205.Ibid.
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realm of actual negotiations. Reminding Ambassador Nomura that Foreign Minister Togo

himself had told Ambassador Grew that Japan desired to have Great Britain, the Netherlands,

time when all those countries engaged in the negotiations they would be considered by the
United States as merely preliminary and exploratory. Only after the Japanese and American
representatives had found a basis for a suitable agreement, Secretary Hull continued, could

exchange of opinions between American and Japanese representatives would be hindered ifthe
Leaving that question for the present Secretary Hull then discussed the political stabiliza-

tion of the Pacific area. In the United States' proposal of June 21, 1941, Secretary Hull stated

ciples to all the areas of the Far East. However, Japan apparently intended to apply those
principles only to the territories of the southwest Pacific. Not only by the nature of its state-
ments concerning the application of these Pacific peace principles, but also by its connections
with the Axis countries under the Tripartite Pact had Japan caused the United States to doubt

government state its approval of the peaceful policy contained in the former Japanese state-
ment of August 28, 1941. Ambassador Nomura replied that the latest Japanese proposal had

respect. Furthermore, although the words "southwestern Pacific" appeared in the main text of
the Japanese proposal of September 25, 1941, the Japanese government in the preface to this
proposal had clearly stated its desire to establish and maintain peace throughout the entire

text and not merely in the preface.
In repeating his doubts regarding Japanese sincerity Secretary Hull stated that Japan could

never uphold a military alliance with Germany and a peaceful understanding with the United

"howl with laughter.". Although Secretary Hull attempted to point out the incongruity of a

and the Netherlands, Ambassador Nomura continued to insist that the Tripartite Alliancefor
across their national boundaries. The A~erican Secretary of State did not desire to sign a
similarly ineffective peace agreement with Japan. .

After listening to Secretary Hull's statements, Minister Wakasugi asked if the United

that the United States expected the Tripartite Pact to become a "dead letter" if an under-

these latest Americam proposals were a reply to Japan's proposal regarding the rights of self-

wished definite assurance that the present Ja,panese government desired to follow a peaceful

policy throughout the entire Pacific area and wished a reply to the United States' proposal
regarding a joint statement of a Japanese-American economic policy.

205'Ibid.
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andothercountriesparticipateinthefinalnegotiations,SecretaryHullstatedthatuntilthe GreatBritainandtheNetherlandsbeaskedtoparticipateinthefinalandactualtreatywithJapan.Speakingfromapracticalviewpointaswell,SecretaryHullsaidtheopenandfrank presenttalkswereconsideredstrictlyofficial.205b

thatitwasmadeknownthatAmericaintendedtoenforcetheapplicationofanyPacificprin­thesincerityofitspeaceproposals.Therefore,SecretaryHullaskedthatthepresentJapanese setforthJapan'sdesireforpeace,andthereforenofurtherexplanationwasnecessaryinthis Pacificarea.SecretaryHullinsistedthatthestatementmustappearinthemainbodyofthe Statesatthesametime.Infact,iftheUnitedStatesweretoconcludeanagreementwithJapanwhileJapanretaineditsallegiancetotheAxispowerstheAmericanpublicwould militaryalliancewithGermanyandapeacefulalliancewiththeUnitedStates,GreatBritain wouldnotconflictwiththatdrawnupbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStatessincebothagree­

mentswouldhavepeacetheirmainobjective.
PointingtotheJapanese-RussianNeutralityPactasanexampleofarmedpeace,SecretaryHullremindedAmbassadorNomurathatJapaneseandRussiantroopsstillfacedoneanother StatesexpectedJapantowithdrawfromtheTripartiteAlliance.SecretaryHullanswered standingweresignedbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStates.MinisterWakasugithenaskedif defense.InansweringthisquestiondirectlySecretaryHullstatedthattheUnitedStates 



In concluding the interview Ambassador Nomura stated that the Japanese government would

conference on the following day.

interpretations given to other principles. Not only did the United States doubt Japan's sin-
cerity but it viewed Japan's attitude toward the Chinese situation with suspicion.2O5c

63. Tokyo Instructs Ambassador Nomura in Interpretation of Japanese Proposals
Since certain phrases in the various Japanese proposals had been viewed with suspicion

by American statesmen, Tokyo wished to clarify their meaning to the satisfaction of the United

those which any independent country might be forced to make under similar circumstances,
and that they were in no way intended to limit the extent or establishment of peace in the
Pacific.2O6

Such expressions as "without provocation" and, in relation to the Russian question, the

Treaty", both appearing in the Japanese proposal of August 28, 1941, were to be interpreted
literally. In using the term "without justifiable reason" in the proposal of September 6, 1941,
the Japanese government had wished to protect itself in view of the threatening results of the

Japanese Foreign Office requested Ambassador Nomura to include an assurance that the

posals of August 28 and September 25, 1941. 206aIn fact, the present government was even willing

endeavor to prove to the United States that Japan wished to apply the principles of peace to
the entire Pacific area.207

that Japan would not consider itself bound by any of these concessions unless the present
Japanese-American negotiations ended in agreement.2O8

64. Hull-Nomura Conversation (November 17, 1941)

a. State Department's Repore09
In order to present Mr. Kurusu to the Secretary of State, Ambassador Nomura called on Mr.

ing to this country. Secretary Hull also spoke highly of Ambassador Nomura.
Turning the conversation then to the Japanese-American situation, Secretary Hull stated

ship by adopting peaceful policies.

205< Ib£d.

2ooIV, 131.
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2O7IV, 132.

2°"IV, 131.

2°."Memorandum of a Conversation"-November 7,1941, S.D. II, 738-739.
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beverydisappointedwithSecretaryHull'sattitude.Arrangementsweremadeforanother Summarizingday'sconversationAmbassadorNomurastatedthatUnitedStateshadclarifieditsattitudetowardtradequestion;however,twocountriesstilldifferedonthethethethethe Statesgovernment.OnNovember16,1941,ininstructionstoAmbassadorNomuratheJapa­nesegovernmentemphasizedthatanyso-calledmodificationsofitsconcessionswereonly statement"aslongasSovietUnionremainsfaithfultothetheRussian-JapaneseNeutrality Russo-Germanwar.WhenpointingoutthesefactstoAmericanStateDepartment,thethe presentJapaneseCabinetwouldupholdconcessionsmadeinthetheformerCabinet'spro-todeleteword"southwestern"fromArticleSixofthetheSeptember25,1941,proposalsinan However,TokyoinsistedthatAmbassadorNomuraimpressuponUnitedStatesthethefact November17,1941.Afterexchangingintroductions,SecretaryHullHullcomplimentedMr.

KurusuononhisdiplomaticmannerofhandlingrelationswiththeAmericanpublicsincecom­short-sightednationalisticdiplomacyhaddevelopedEuropeafterWorldWarresponsibleforpresentworlddifficulties.InordertobringaboutpeaceoffsetNaziforcewhichwhichwaswasnowcrushing200,000,000peopleininEurope,SecretaryHullwishedthatthatJapanandandandthethethethetheUnitedUnitedStatesStateswouldemployfar-sightedstatesman­

I



American people thought General Tojo would view the situation with a warlike attitude. In
fact, when General Tojo had planned his Cabinet he invited Mr. Kurusu to take an important
position but Mr. Kurusu had declined because he believed that General Tojo would probably
discontinue the conversations with the United States. Yet, after discussing the methods of ex-

ecuting Japan's national policy with General Tojo, Ambassador Kurusu had become fully

States. In fact, when Mr. Kurusu had discussed his present mission to the United States with
General Tojo, he had noted that the Prime Minister was optimistic in regard to settling the
differences between Japan and the United States. Naturally, the withdrawal of Japanese

conversation drew to a close.

ting to:- (1) Japan's peaceful intentions, and (2) the narrowing down of the proposed under-

standing.21O

In this first Japanese oral statement reference was made to Secretary Hull's document

handed to Ambassador Nomura on November 12, 1941.211 The Japanese government wished

1941, had been embodied in the Japanese proposals of September 6 and September 25, 1941.
The present Japanese government had no objection to committing themselves to carrying out

negotiations would be successfully concluded between Japan and the United States. If such a

used by the Japanese government apparently modified its peaceful intentions, Japan pointed

were in no way intended to limit the peaceful aims of the Japanese government.212
In the phrases connected with Japan's attitude toward Soviet Russia a detailed stipulation

was necessary in view of the Japanese-Soviet Neutrality Pact and its relation to the war be-
tween Germany and Russia. 213

tion to applying the principle of political stabilization to the entire Pacific, it was willing to
eliminate the word "southwestern" from its proposals of September 25, 1941.214

b. Ambassador Nomura's Repore15

past ten on November 17, 1941. Secretary Hull began the conversation by saying that the rea-

bassador Kurusu agreed that the United States and Japan must take over the grave responsi-

21°Ibid.

21"'Oral statement handed by the Secretary of State to the Japanese Ambassador (Nomura) on November 12,

1941", S.D. II, 727-729. .
212"Oral statement handed by the Japanese Ambassador (Nomura) to the Secretary of State on November 17,II,Seetheto
2""Oral statement handed by the Japanese Ambassador (Nomura) to the Secretary State"-November 17, 1941,

S.D. II, 740.

2l5II, 133.
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1941",S.D.739-740.instructionssentAmbassadorNomurabyTokyoonNovember16,1941,IV,131. 

BecausenewJapanesePrimeMinisterwasamilitaryman,Mr.Kurusufeltthatthethe assuredofnewPrimeMinister'sdesiretoreachapeacefulsettlementwiththetheUnited troopsfromChinawouldpresentgreatestdifficulty.However,GeneralTojobelievedthatdifficultiesinrespectnon-discriminationEuropeanwarcouldbeeasilyelimi­nated.SinceAmbassadorNomuraandandMr.KurusuweretotomeetPresidentRoosevelt,thethethethe Firstofall,however,AmbassadorNomurahandedSecretaryHulltwooralstatementsrela­topointoutthatthephrasesquotedbySecretaryHullinhisoralstatementofNovember12, heconcessionsexpressedtherein.Indoingso,however,itwasunderstoodthatthepresent successfulconclusionwerereached,Japanesegovernmentwouldnotnotbeboundbyanyofthethecommitmentswhichithadmadeintheseandpreviousproposals.Whereverphrases out

thatitspurposewasonlytoexpressqualificationswhichwereabsolutelynecessaryand InthesecondoralstatementAmbassadorNomurastatedthat,sinceJapanhadnoobjec-AccompaniedbyKurusuAmbassadorAmbassadorNomuracalledonSecretaryHullathalf sonforpresentworldsituationwasthethelackofa,blestatesmenfollowingWorldWarI.Am­bilityofre-establishingpeace.Beforesuchagoalcouldbeattained,AmbassadorKurusu 213SeeIV,132. 



Prime Minister Tojo and Foreign Minister Togo. Hoepful of an immediate settlement of the

felt that an agreement could be reached regarding commercial equality and Japan's obliga-
tions under the Tripartite Pact. However, the Japanese representatives recognized the fact

peace settlement.215.

reply to the United States oral statement of November 12, 1941. Ambassador Nomura then

notified Secretary Hull, as Tokyo had instructed him, that the Japanese government was

willing to delete the word "southwestern" from Article six of the Japanese proposal of Septem-
ber 25, 1941, thus making any peace agreement applicable to the entire Pacific area.216

65. Roosevelt-Kurusu Conversation (November 17, 1941)

a. Secretary Hull's Report 217

After concluding the conversation between Ambassador Nomura, Mr. Kurusu and Mr. Hull,thetothe
to this country.

After the usual exchange of courtesies and formalities, President Roosevelt brought up the

United States to avoid war and he accepted the statement of the Japanese Ambassador that

tion. Throughout the conversation Ambassador Nomura insisted that the situation must be
adjusted immediately due to the urgency of the situation.

made it clear that Japan could not conclude a successful agreement with the United States
regarding the Pacific area while retaining its allegiance to the Tripartite Pact. Not only would

their efforts against Japanese aggression. Because Hitler had started upon an official course
of invasion the United States had been forced to spend billions of dollars in self-defense.
Therefore, the American public could not understand Japan's attitude, and political difficul-
ties in connection with Japan's relations with Germany were difficult to overcome. 217.

In emphasizing the United States' defensive measures, President Roosevelt reminded Mr.
Kurusu that some time ago he had proclaimed a zone around the Western Hemisphere which

Nomura that the conversations had been formulated along the lines of genuine friendliness

dent Roosevelt emphasized the United States' position and, at the same time, exposed the
sophistry of Japan's in relation to its alliance with Germany.

Pointing out that Germany had not yet requested Japan to fight, Ambassador Kurusu said

215a Ibid.
216IV, 134.

217"Memorandum by the Secretary of State"-November 17, 1941, S.D. II, 740-743.
21'aIbid.
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300continued,twocountriesmustsettletheirownproblembyengaginginconcretenegotiations.ForthatpurposeAmbassadorKurusuhadcometoUnitedStatesatthethetheinsistenceof threemajorproblemsnowexistingbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStates,PrimeMinisterTojo thatevacuationoftroopsfromFrenchIndo-Chinawouldremainthethemajorobstacletoa BeforeendingtheconversationAmbassadorNomurapresentedSecretaryHullwithTokyo's differencesopinionexistingbetweentwocountries.Hethenmadecleardesireofofthethethe JapanwasequallydesirousbringingaboutafairandpeacefulsettlementofofthePacificques-InansweringAmbassadorKurusu'sattemptstoexplaintheTripartitePact,SecretaryHull PresidentRooseveltandSecretaryHullbedenouncedbyAmericanpeopleifanagree­mentunderthoseconditionsweredrawnup,butcountriesofthethetheworldwould

redouble extendedfromto1,100milesoutintothesea.SecretaryHullthentoldAmbassador and,therefore,therewasnoreasonforeithercountryattempttotoblufftheother.HerePresi­servingadesirablepurposewhilemaintainingpeace.interpretedthisremarkmeandivertingBritishAmericannaviesandandairforcestotoPacific.SecretarySecretaryHullHullthentoldMr.KurusuthatthatthatUnitedStatesondefensiveinpresentPacificsituationbecauseJapanJapanJapanhadbeenthethethethethetheonlyaggressor.Infact,itwaswaswaswasgenerally 

threemenproceededWhiteHousewherePresidentRooseveltwelcomedMr.Kurusu 



economically and socially, by military force, all the areas within its range. Although Mr. Kurusu
attempted to defend the stationing of Japanese troops in China, President Roosevelt stated that
the question should be worked out in a fair way after considering all the circumstances and rela-
tive merits involved.

When the other Pacific questions had been satisfactorily settled, President Roosevelt be-
lieved the United States would aid Japan and China so that they might begin adjustments
for peace. However, Mr. Kurusu insisted it would be difficult to bring all the Japanese troops
out of China at once. Then Mr. Kurusu reminded Secretary Hull and President Roosevelt that

ever, Secretary Hull answered Mr. Kurusu that the United States, in opposing the seizure of

or a foot of territory for itself. The United States had always believed that if countries con-
tinued to fight for territory modern methods of warfare would cause the utter destruction of all
countries. Since Mr. Kurusu pleaded that he had forgotten much of the technical side of com-

merce.217b

President Roosevelt continued by referring to the destructive nature of armaments and also

United States should not be regarded as serious. Nothing new had been brought out by either
Ambassador Nomura or Mr. Kurusu at this conversation. Both President Roosevelt and Mr.

Kurusu seemed to agree that the present situation must be solved. However, President Roose-
velt frequently parried the remarks of Ambassador Nomura and Mr. Kurusu, particularly in
relation to the three major points of difference.

With the understanding that Secretary Hull would meet the Japanese representatives the
following morning, the meeting drew to a close.218

b. Ambassador Nomura's Report219
After concluding the conversation with Secretary Hull, Ambassador Nomura and Ambassa-

dor Kurusu accompanied the American Secretary of State to an interview with President
Roosevelt. Ambassador Kurusu repeated what he had already said to Secretary Hull regard-
ing the sincere interest of the present Japanese Cabinet in concluding negotiations with the
United States. Since President Roosevelt was an experienced statesman, Ambassador Kurusu

China. Speaking from personal observation, Ambassador Kurusu stated that the situation in

Hongkong, Manila and other islands in that area was so strained that an uprising might occur

at any moment. Therefore, from the Japanese viewpoint, a solution to the Pacific problem

ment of all the Japanese-American problems with the exception of the evacuation of Japa-

nese troops from French Indo-China. 220

Quoting former Secretary of State Bryan, President Roosevelt replied to this last comment:
"There is no last word between friends."221 Remarking that other so-called non-aggression pacts

217blbid.
218Ibid.

219IV,135-138.
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believedintheUnitedStates,SecretaryHullsaid,thattheJapaneseNewOrderinGreater EastAsiawassimilartoHitler'sprograminEuropesinceitwasdesignedtodominatepolitically, 

theUnitedStateshadinsistedthattheJapaneseleaveShantungduringWorldWarI.How-newterritorybyanycountry,hadatthesametimedeclinedtotakeadollarofcompensation mercialpolicy,hedidnotwishtodiscusstherecentAmericanproposalregardingcom­emphasizedthatfromthelongtermpointofviewthedifferencesbetweenJapanandthe feltthathewouldappreciatetheattitudeoftheJapanesepeopleafterfouryearsofwarwith mustbeeffectedwithoutfurtherdelay.EvennowwiththeJapanese-AmericanconversationsdraggingonendlesslyJapanstoodasmallerchanceofbeingabletodefenditselfbothmilitarilyandeconomicallyfromotherpowers.PrimeMinisterTojowasoptimisticregardingthesettle­



understanding between the United States and Japan could the international situation be
saved. Ambassador Kurusu agreed with President Roosevelt's statement. In his opinion the
adjustment of the Japanese and American attitudes toward the Tripartite Pact and of the

fected before such an understanding could be realized. Speaking first of the Tripartite Agree-
ment, Ambassador Kurusu insisted that his government was bound to that pact by virtue of
its honor as a great power. In view of this consideration Ambassador Kurusu could not believe
that the United States would urge Japan to violate the terms of this alliance. This should be
particularly true, Ambassador Kurusu said, in view of the fact that the object of the Tripartite

cal application.

Turning the conversation for the moment to the China problem, President Roosevelt said

and China. If such a word existed in diplomatic parlance, he would state that the United States
was merely acting as an "introducer."221a

Ambassador Kurusu then referred to Japan's obligation under the terms of the Tripartite

bassador Kurusu stated that Japan would decide its obligations under the Tripartite Pact inde-
pendently of any country. Furthermore, Ambassador Kurusu continued, any great under-
standing arrived at by the United States and Japan with regard to the Pacific would overshadow
the Tripartite Pact.

Germany had conquered England and attacked the United States with the British fleet from

Secretary Hull did not understand why Japan could not grasp America's need to protect itself
against aggression. In supporting Secretary Hull's statement President Roosevelt said that in
his recent speech he had described German subversive activities in Central and South America,
basing his remarks on authentic information from German government circles.

In reply Ambassador Kurusu assured President Roosevelt that since Japan included Central
and South America in the category of the Pacific it would never be a party to disrupting the

lishment of a just peace in the Pacific principally by promising to withdraw its troops from

stand why President Roosevelt and Secretary Hull felt that the United States public would
object to an agreement with Japan simply on the grounds of the existence of the Tripartite
Pact.

Ambassador Kurusu felt that the withdrawal of the Japanese troops from China should be

enough proof that Japan intended to uphold the guarantee made to the United States. What-
ever the means Ambassador Kurusu was convinced that an immediate settlement of the prob-

221. Ibid.

222IV,137.
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werenowuseless,PresidentRooseveltinsistedthatonlybytheestablishmentofageneral claimsofbothcountriesregardingthesettlementoftheChinaIncidentwouldhavetobeef-Pactwasthepreventionoffuturewarandthemaintenanceofpeace.Whileanxioustocoordi­natethetwoviewsonthisprobleminordertobringaboutasettlement,AmbassadorKurusu,nevertheless,insistedthatJapanwouldnotconsideraproposalwhichdidnothaveapracti­thattheUnitedStateswasnotattemptingtointerveneormediateintheproblemsofJapan Pact.222TheJapaneserepresentativehadreceivedtheimpressionthattheUnitedStatesbe­lievedJapanwasmerelyactingasGermany'stool.Infact,itappearedtobethegeneralopin­ioninAmericathatJapanwouldwaituntiltheUnitedStateswasdeeplyinvolvedintheAtlanticwarandthenmakeastabinthePacific.InordertocorrectthismisapprehensionAm-SecretaryHullinterruptedatthispointtosaythattheUnitedStatescouldnotwaituntil somepointinSouthAmericabeforebeginningtomakesomepreparationsforitsself-defense. peaceofthosecountries.SinceJapanhadcontinuallymadeconcessionstowardstheestab-FrenchIndo-Chinaontheestablishmentofthatpeace,AmbassadorKurusudidnotunder­lemsunderdiscussionbyAmbassadorNomuraandSecretaryHullshouldbereached.Secre­taryHullthenrepliedthatbothheandAmbassadorNomurahadcarriedontheconversations 



bassador Kurusu's opinions.

to discuss further any of the matters with Secretary Hull and with both Japanese Ambassadors
before that time. 222a

for 10:00 a.m. on November 18, 1941. 223

66. Ambassador Grew Warns United States Against Unexpected Japanese Attack224

warned that "action by Japan, which might render unavoidable an armed conflict with the

United States, might come with dangerous and dramatic suddenness", 225

bassador in Tokyo emphasized the need to guard against sudden Japanese naval or military

too much upon a prior warning given by the Embassy staff since Japan was able to obtain

effective control over both primary and secondary military information. Since only a few

Americans remained in Japan and they were concentrated mostly in Tokyo, Yokohama and

Kobe, Japan would be able to exploit every possible tactical advantage, mainly surprise and

out its troop transports in any direction undetected. According to available indications, Japa-
nese troop concentrations were reported in Manchuria and Formosa and new operations seemed
imminent in either the southwest Pacific, Siberia, or in both areas.

Ambassador Grew warned that every precaution should be taken to guard against a Japanese

United States could not depend upon the ability of the American Embassy in Tokyo to forward
any warning in sufficient time.22667.Airto
a move would originate and in what direction it would travel, American traffic analysts
watched Japanese tactical communications closely.227

Air Squadron 24 and the Commander of the Yokohama Air Group were in the vicinity of Wotje

commanders between Saipan, Truk, Jaluit and Wotje produced considerable confusion on all
Mandate circuits.

After careful observation of these units, American traffic analysts were of the opinion that

marine forces and combined air forces of the Combined Fleet.227a
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forsolongthattheyhadlosttheabilitytomakeanynewpoints.Therefore,hewelcomedAm-StatingthathewouldbeinWashingtonuntilNovember24,1941,PresidentRooseveltoffered

AmbassadorKurusuandAmbassadorNomurascheduledaconferencewithSecretaryHull ReferringtoaprevioustelegramsentonNovember3,1941,whereinAmbassadorGrewhad theAmericanAm-actionsinthePacific.Furthermore,AmbassadorGrewwarnedhisgovernmentnottodepend initiative.WithAmericanandforeignshippingabsentfromadjacentwaters,Japancouldsend surprisemove.SincetheEmbassy'sfieldofnavalandmilitaryobservationwasnegligible,the 

-JapaneseForcesMoveMandates
AsAmbassadorGrewhadstated,JapanesemilitaryandnavalactivitiesinthePacificgavedefiniteindicationsofasurpriseattackinthatarea.Onthealerttolearnatwhichpointsuch ByNovember18,1941,themovementsofJapaneseairgroupsandairforcesformerlyasso­ciatedwiththeChinaSeaareawerepredominantlytowardstheMandates.TheCommanderof andmaintainedclosecontactwiththeCommanderoftheCombinedAirForce.UnitsthatincludedtheflagshipoftheCommander-in-ChiefoftheThirdFleet(formerlytheFirstAirFleet)wereenroutetotheMandates.Infact,thefrequentchangesinlocationoftheAirgroup theFirst,Second,ThirdandFifthFleetswerereadytomoveintotheMandateswithsub­

222a 



68. Hull-Nomura Conversation (November 18, 1941)

a. State Department's Repore28

ment to converse with Secretary Hull. Secretary Hull immediately turned the conversation
toward a discussion of Japan's relations with the Axis. Emphasizing the point that Japan
could not make an agreement with the United States while continuing its alliance with

Japanese representatives that after concluding an anti-Comintern Pact with Japan
Germany had entered into a non-aggression pact with Russia and in time had reneged
even on that pact. In view of this, any agreement between Japan and the United States
which did not make the peaceful purposes of both nations self-evident would only result
in a redoubled effort by all nations to strengthen their armaments.

was contributing to the establishment of law and order throughout the Far East by granting

the Philippines their independence in 1946 and by withdrawing American Marines from

China. In the application of a non-discriminatory policy throughout the world, Secretary

fair play and not achieved by the sword.
In the renunciation of forceful and aggressive measures, Secretary Hull commented, the

United States had stopped using gunboats and armed forces in South America. Thus, it
had achieved satisfactory relationships through the pursuit of peaceful policies. Inasmuch
as the United States' basic principles were formulated on the principle of peace, Secretary
Hull said, the United States could not condone Japan's attitude toward Axis aggression as

position to be so magnanimous in extending substantial lend-lease aid to other countries

ious to conclude some agreement with the United States.

him thoroughly familiar with Japan's commercial policy. It was due largely to the
British Empire's preferences, Mr. Kurusu said, that Japan had been forced to join with the

foreign trade than the United States. In view of the fact that the present commercial

Japanese-occupied China. While in time Japan might be in a position to adopt a more

come to some agreement in principle on a commercial policy. Although making no direct

228 "Memorandum of a Conversation"-lnitiated by Joseph Ballantine-November 18,1941, S.D. n, 744-750.

Ibid.

58
\

OnNovember18,1941,AmbassadorNomuraandMr.KurusucalledattheStateDepart-Germany,SecretaryHullpointedoutthattheAmericanpeoplewereconvincedthatHitlerwouldeventuallyinvadetheFarEast.Bywayofillustration,SecretaryHullremindedthe SecretaryHullremindedAmbassadorNomuraandMr.KurusuthattheUnitedStates Hullcontinued,theUnitedStatesgovernmentwasevennowurgingtheBritishEmpiretoreduceitsdiscriminatorypractices.TotheUnitedStatesitseemedobviousthattheonlycontrollinginfluencewhichacountrycouldhaveoveran-areawasonegainedthrough 

-

seenthroughthetelegramsofcongratulationsenttoHitlerbyJapaneseleaderswhensomeatrocityoccurred.228aInanswertotheseaccusationsAmbassadorNomuraremindedSecretaryHullthatinspiteoftheirdivergingcoursestheUnitedStatesandRussiawerealignedatthepresenttime.AmbassadorNomuraalsostatedthatJapanwasnotina astheUnitedStateshaddoneinSouthAmericaandabroad.However,becauseJapanwasnowinaseriouspredicament,AmbassadorNomurasaidthatJapanwasparticularlyanx-AtthispointintheconversationMr.Kurusuinterposedbystatingthathisfiveyears'experienceasDirectoroftheCommercialBureauoftheJapaneseForeignOfficehadmade Axis.Mr.KurusuremindedSecretaryHullthatJapanwasfarmoredependentupon situationwasabnormal,Mr.Kurusubelievedthatthetwogovernmentsshouldattemptsomesolution,possiblytheuseoftheexchangecontrolsystemwhichhaddevelopedin liberalcommercialpolicy,Mr.Kurusuinsistedthatsomewaymustbefoundtoamelioratethepresentsituation.SecretaryHullbelievedthattheUnitedStatesandJapanshould reply,Mr.KurusustatedthataftertheUnitedStatesoccupiedthePhilippinesithad 

228a 



aligned itself with the European concert of nations, thereby sacrificing its former course
of idealism pursued in the Far East.

agreement could probably be reached even though Japan could not abrogate its agreement
with Germany. However, Secretary Hull felt that a definite program of peace must be begun
immediately in order to obtain the confidence of peace-minded people and, at the same
time, effect a constructive program designed to offset the forces of aggression. When Mr.

relations with the Axis powers, Secretary Hull stated that Japan must work out this matter

convincing and workable relationship between Japan and the United States. Japan's
obligations under the Tripartite Pact, Secretary Hull added, would be inconsistent with the
obligations it would undertake by an agreement with the United States.228b

government was unable to control its politicians. Maintaining that it was important, first,

existing difficulties, Ambassador Nomura said that big ships cannot be turned around too
quickly. They have to be eased around slowly and gradually. Refusing to change on his
attitude, Secretary Hull replied. that neither of the countries could promote peace so long
as they were aligned in any way with an aggressive power such as Germany. Nevertheless,

sphere conducive to discussing fundamental problems; if not, the continuation of America's
freezing regulations would cause such impatience in Japan that Japan would feel it was
forced to fight while it still could. Ambassador Nomura pointed out that Japan had not
entered into an alliance with Germany to be a "eat's paw" but because it felt isolated and
encircled by European powers. Secretary Hull did not believe that the American public
would accept this explanation of Japan's policies.

Referring briefly to the Chinese situation, Secretary Hull asked if Japan could guarantee
Chinese sovereignty, territorial integrity and right to commercial equality. Ambassador
Nomura replied that Japan could guarantee such protection to China. Although he had
made this last point clear to Ambassador Nomura in previous conversations, Secretary
Hull desired to re-emphasize its importance to Mr. KurusU.228c

indicated that the Japanese government considered the present conversations as negotia-
tions rather than merely exploratory discussions. Since the British and Chinese governments
had a rightful interest in the problems of the Far East. Secretary Hull told Mr. Kurusu that

so at the present time because no real basis had been reached for formal negotiations.

States did have to discuss the problems with the British and Chinese, Japanese and

programs of force by Japan's leaders only added to the present difficulty.
Referring back to the questions connected with the Chinese situation, Secretary Hull asked

Ambassador Nomura how many soldiers Japan would retain in China. Ambassador

Ibid.
228, Ibid.
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ReturningtoproblemofthetheTripartitePact,Mr.Kurususaidthatsomesatisfactory KurusuaskedifSecretaryHullcouldsuggestaconcreteformulaforJapan'sfuture onitsownbut,here-emphasized,theproblemmustbesettledinordertoconcludea IfJapanwerenotableadoptaclear-cutpositionwithregardcommercialpolicy,itscourseinChina,andrelationstototoEuropeanWar,SecretaryHullfeltthatthetheJapanese toarrestafurtherdeteriorationofrelationsbetweenthetwocountriesbeforeovercoming Mr.Kurusuinsisted,ifsomesettlementcouldbereachednow,itwouldpromoteanatmo-SecretaryHullthenreferredtostatementsmadebyJapaneserepresentativeswhich wouldhavetodiscussnegotiationswiththesetwogovernmentsbutthathehecouldnotdo SecretaryHullrefusedtostatespecifically,asrequested,justwhat

concernsofthesegovernmentswereinPacific.Mr.Mr.KurusuKurusufeltthat,ifthethetheUnited AmericanrelationswellbeatmercyBritainChinaandandintimesituationmightmightgetoutcontrol.SecretaryHullmerelycommentedthatthethethedeclarationofofof 228b
 



Nomura replied that ninety per cent would be withdrawn. Although he did not reply directly
to Secretary Hull's question on how long the remaining ten per cent would be stationed in

China, Ambassador Nomura stated that Japan was permitted to retain troops in the Peiping

If the Japanese people could rid themselves of the desire for war and invasion, Secretary
Hull said, Japan could begin almost immediately to produce materials needed by peaceful

Nomura replied by saying that America would first have to give some indication of aid to
Japan. However, Secretary Hull reminded the Japanese Ambassador that the Unitedto

In answering Mr. Kurusu's accusation that the United States had held up the conclusion

had readily agreed to converse with the Japanese Ambassador at any time. It was Japan's
move into French Indo-China in July 1941 that had first interrupted these conversations and

forced the United States to enforce such economic restrictions as discontinuing the
shipment of petroleum products to Japan.

Secretary Hull then stated that Japan itself must decide on the method it would use

to withdraw troops from China, to adopt a satisfactory commercial policy, and to determine
its obligations under the Tripartite Agreement. Recognizing the suspicion with which the

Japan sincerely desired to settle the China affair despite the fact that Japan felt it necessary

settlement could be reached, Mr. Kurusu said that Japan would withdraw its troops even
from French Indo-China.228.

Secretary Hull then inquired as to what extent Japan would be able to adopt peaceful

While hoping for a realization of the high ideals on which the conversations had been

a relatively unyielding attitude toward the Chinese situation. After Secretary Hull had
commented on the grave responsibility which Japan had to create conditions conducive
to peace, Ambassador Nomura suggested that Japan withdraw its troops from southern
French Indo-China, thereby re-establishing the status quo in the Pacific which had existed
before July. Since this Japanese move had originally caused the United States' freezing
regulations to be put into effort, Ambassador Nomura felt that the freezing measures would
be rescinded upon the withdrawal of Japanese troops. Realizing that it would be difficult
to have the United States remove the embargo upon Japan unless it had definite proof that

guarantee could be given that the Japanese troops withdrawn from French Indo-China would

not be used in an aggressive movement upon another area.

When Ambassador Nomura stated that the Japanese were sincerely tired of fighting,
Secretary Hull replied that he would inquire concerning the British and Dutch attitude
toward this suggestion offered by the Japanese Ambassador.

Ibid.
228, Ibid.

60

believedthattheJapanesegovernmentshouldmakeanextraefforttoabolishthem.228dpeoplewereconvincedthatGermanyandJapanproposeddividetheworldbetweenthem.
andTientsinareasunderBoxerProtocol.PointinglonglistgrievancessufferedbyAmericansfromactionsforcesChina,statedstationinganyJapaneseJapanesetroopsChinawasanobstacletotopeace.InviewofofofoffactthatthatthethethethethetheUnitedStateshadbeenlenientinininoverlookingthesegrievances,SecretarySecretaryHullHullcountries.RemindingSecretaryHullstrengthofofthetheUnitedStates,Ambassador Stateswasnotonehaveresortedtotoforce.Inaddition,JapanesearmedforcesinChinahadbeenparticularlydestructive.Moreover,SecretaryHullcontinued,thetheAmericanofapeacefulprogrambydelayingtheconversations,SecretaryHullpointedoutthathe UnitedStatesviewedJapan'smotives,AmbassadorNomuraassuredSecretaryHullthat toretaincertainnumberoftroopsinChinaforthetimebeing.AssoonasaajustPacific policiesineventthatthetheUnitedStatesrelaxeditsfreezingregulations

tosomedegree. founded,AmbassadorNomurastatedthatboththeUnitedStatesandJapanhadmaintained Japanhaddefinitelyrenounceditspurposesofconquest,SecretaryHullaskedwhat 228d
 



studying the questions of commercial policy involved in the United States' proposal of

application of this commercial policy, Secretary Hull stated that, although the program
could not be put into full operation before the end of the Japanese-Chinese War, complete
agreement on principles involved should be reached immediately. Ambassador Nomura
then said that he would convey the results of this conversation to his government and
communicate any messages to Secretary Hull through Mr. Ballantine.229

b. Ambassador Nomura's Repore3o

Secretary Hull. Throughout the cqnversation, which lasted for approximately three hours,
Secretary Hull placed the main emphasis upon Japan's obligations under the Tripartite
Pact. Stating that he had foreseen the devastating effects of Hitler's activities in Europe,

the Far East.

Unless the Japanese cooperated with the United States in stopping Hitler's aggression,
not only would Japan fall under the power of Hitler, but diplomatic relations with the
United States would be difficult to adjust. Since peace was the basic national policy of the
United States, the American government could not understand Japan's attitude toward
the Tripartite Pact. Until Japan severed allegiance with Germany, therefore, no effectivebeup
become Hitler's partner because America had maintained a conciliatory attitude toward

a peace agreement such as the one now existing between Japan and Soviet Russia; notwith-

faced each other across their borders.

Pact. Secretary Hull replied that, while the United States was not actually demanding that

the status quo of its relationship to the Tripartite Pact while seeking a peace agreement with
the United States. Nor did Secretary Hull agree with Ambassador Kurusu that the Tripartite
Pact was merely a peaceful agreement designed for the purpose of Japanese self-defense.230a

that such proof could not be given within the limited time that remained before concluding

a successful agreement. However, Ambassador Nomura suggested that if Japan show its
peaceful intentions by withdrawing troops from southern French Indo-China the United

with Secretary Hull's approval. Instead Secretary Hull said that Japan must first prove its
peaceful intentions and then the United States, after conferring with the British government,
would decide upon rescinding the present freezing measures.230b

229 Ibid.

230. Ibid.

230b Ibid.
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agreementcoulddrawnbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStates. 

Astheconferencedrewtoaclose,AmbassadorNomurastatedthathisgovernmentwas November15,1941.InansweraquestionbyAmbassadorNomurarelatingtotothe At10:30a.m.November18,1941,AmbassadorNomuraandMr.Kurusucalledonon SecretaryHullinsistedthattheGermanwarmachinewouldeventuallyextendeventoSecretaryHullstatedsomeAmericanextremistsinsistedthatthattheUnitedStateshad Japan.Furthermore,SecretaryHullstated,theUnitedStatesdidnotwishtoconclude standingJapanese-Russianpeaceagreementenormousforcesofthethetwocountries AtthispointAmbassadorKurusuinsistedthatJapancouldnotabrogatetheTripartite breakoffwithGermany,itstillnotunderstandhowJapanJapancouldcouldmaintain WhenSecretaryHullaskedfordefiniteproofthatJapandidnotintenduseobligationsundertheTripartitePacttotofurtheritsits

ownaggressivedesires,AmbassadorNomurareplied Stateswouldinturnbeexpectedtorescinditsfreezingmeasures.Thissuggestiondidnotmeet FromthisconversationSecretaryHullAmbassadorNomuraconcludedthattheproblemsconnectedwithwithChinawereplayingasmallpartinJapanese-Americannegotiations ,"0IV,140-141. 



economic situation of the world after the conclusion ofthe present war.231
In view of the fact that the United States was mainly concerned with the policy of non-

in the Japanese proposals which stated that Japan would apply the principle of non-
discrimination to China once this same principle was applied to the entire world. Unless an
agreement were reached on this commercial policy immediately, Ambassador Nomura felttoto
Ambassador Nomura urged that the United States agree to rescind its freezing measures
after the Japanese evacuation of southern French Indo-China.232 If such a settlement could

in the Pacific to increase their military strength by sending warships to Singapore or
increasing fortifications throughout the Philippines. Refusing to concede this point,
Secretary Hull merely reiterated his former statement that Japan must first prove its
peaceful aims. If the leaders of the Japanese government proved their peaceful intentions,

Britain and the Netherlands for a conference on relevant questions.232a
Referring to the China question, Secretary Hull again questioned the right of Japan to

station its troops in that country. 233 If some agreement could be reached on this proposal,

Secretary Hull promised to get in touch with representatives of the British, the Netherlands,
and the Chinese governments for a discussion of the matter.

Secretary Hull then asked if the Japanese government had any reply to make to the

economic positions of Japan and the United States were entirely different. While the United

States had an advantageous commercial position, Japan was not so fortunate; therefore, the
problems relating to commerce required more study. 233a When the economic system in

United States suggested, the economy of 100,000,000 Chinese people would be imperiled.

in commerce could nevertheless be applied to postwar economic reconstruction. Throughout

of his efforts it seemed probable that Great Britain would abolish many of its traditions.

American commercial dealings.234

Summarizing the major points of this conversation Ambassador Nomura informed his
government that the United States was at present primarily interested in Japan's obligations
under the Tripartite Pact rather than the Japanese occupation of China. This change
apparently had come about as a result of America's increased interest in the Atlantic war.
Therefore, Ambassador Nomura felt that a compromise could be reached on matters
pertaining to the Chinese questions and commercial problems, and he suggested that

231. Ibid.

232IV,143.

232. Ibid.

233IV,144.

233. Ibid.

2",IV, 145.
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atthepresenttime.ApparentlySecretaryHullwasmainlyinterestedinreadjustingthe discriminationincommerce,AmbassadorNomurasuggestedthatJapandeletethatphraseitwouldbeuselesssubmitproposalBtheAmericanrepresentatives.231a
SpeakingaboutthiscommercialquestiontoSecretaryHullduringtheconversation, bemade,AmbassadorNomuracontinued,therewouldbenoneedforanyofthecountries then,SecretaryHullstated,theUnitedStatesgovernmentwouldgetintouchwithGreat UnitedStatesproposalsofNovember15,1941.AmbassadorKurusuansweredthatthe JapanhadbeendisruptedbytheAmericanfreezingorder,AmbassadorKurusucontinued,Japaneseinternationalaffairshadbeenthrownintoagreatupheaval.Onthesameprinciple,iftheJapanese-controlledexchangeinnorthernChinaweresuddenlyabolished,asthe WhileadmittingthisfactSecretaryHullinsistedthattheprincipleofequalityoftreatment hisdiplomaticcareer,SecretaryHullcontinued,hehadfoughtagainstthepreferentialsystemoftheBritishEmpirewhichhadresultedfromtheOttawaConference.Asaresult SecretaryHullwasanxioustoseethesamediscriminatorypoliciesabolishedinJapaneseand 231IV,142. 



Japanese representatives attempt to reach a practical settlement regarding the acquisition

United States government. 235

present Japanese cabinet to submit a statement which contained no provisional notes. In

this way Ambassador Nomura hoped to offset the suspicion already aroused in the minds

of American officials. Already, Ambassador Nomura reminded his government, the United

immediately. Ambassador Nomura suggested, therefore, that Japan be ready to withdraw

order and making the necessary materials available to Japanese merchants.
Ambassador Nomura concluded his report by stating that he would confer with Secretary

Hull again on November 20,1941.236

69. Hull-Nomura Conversation (November 19, 1941)

a. State Department's Report 237

apartment to continue the discussion that had taken place on the previous day. Although
Ambassador Nomura had reported yesterday's conversation to his government, no instructions
regarding any suggestions made during the meeting had as yet been forwarded to Washing-
ton. Both Ambassador Nomura and Mr. Kurusu, however, were satisfied with the interyiew
that Secretary Hull had given the American press regarding the contents of the previous
day's conversation.

Ambassador Nomura replied that he believed, as he had said in yesterday's conversation,

continue. Secretary Hull recognized the fact that such a measure might give the Japanese
leaders time to organize public opinion in favor of a peaceful policy. In view of the bad
effect that America's freezing regulations had on the Japanese economic system, Ambassador

mutual agreement on all important points upon which the views of both governments had
diverged.

Ambassador Nomura emphasized that Japan's views in regard to both the Tripartite Pact
and the desire to maintain peace in the Pacific had been clearly set forth in the Japanese

committed to carry out its obligations under the Tripartite Pact, Secretary Hull suggested
that Japan let the Russian forces in the Far East and the British forces at Singapore return
to Europe.237a

upon the whole world, the Japanese representatives discussed the German-Russian War.

23'IV, 146.

23"IV,147.237ofaby
2370 Ibid.
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"MemorandumConversation"-InitialedJosephW.Ballantine-November19,1941,S.D.II,751-753. 

goodsandcancellationofoffreezingissuesbeforesubmittingproposalBtothethethe Furthermore,inregardtocommercialpolicyAmbassadorNomurarequestedthethe Stateshadstatedthatitwouldputnofaithinmerepromisesunlesstheywerecarriedout troopsimmediatelyuponreceivingwordthattheUnitedStateswasrescindingitsitsfreezing OnNovember19,1941,AmbassadorNomuraandMr.KurusucalledatSecretaryHull's SecretaryHullthenaskedAmbassadorNomurahisopinionofthepresentsituation. movetheirtroopsoutsouthernFrenchIndo-ChinaUnitedStatesrescinditsfreezingmeasure,sinceitwasthisofofJapaneseJapanesegovernmentfirstprovokedeconomicrestriction.AmbassadorNomuraagreedwithSecretaryHullthatthatthatififsuchactionactionweretakenbybothgovernmentsthethethethetheconversationsshouldshouldshould NomuramadeitclearJapandesiredquicksettlement,althoughheagreedwithSecretaryHullthatthat

theconversationsshouldcontinueanyevent,ininordertoarriveataa statementofSeptember25,1941.MterAmbassadorNomurahadstatedthatJapanwas WhenSecretaryHullbegantodiscusstheinjuriouseffectthatHitler'saggressionhad ImpressedwithstrengthStalingovernmentandthethethestubbornnessofofRussian 



of Germany's launching a successful invasion upon the English coast.
Secretary Hull took this opportunity to point out that Germany, if unable to conquer

Stalin or invade England, would probably be left with only the hostility of the millions in
Europe as the result of its conquest by force. When Ambassador Nomura referred once more
to Japan's obligations under the Tripartite Pact, Secretary Hull reminded the Japanese
Ambassador that his country was equally bound by a neutrality pact with Russia.

However, Ambassador Nomura admitted that the Tripartite Pact had brought nothing but

Russo-German advance on the Pacific.

Urging the Japanese representatives to look to the future, Secretary Hull stated that
Japan could stabilize the world by establishing a progressive program of peace in the Pacific.
Ambassador Nomura, feeling that the United States would be very strong after World War II

Hitler's aggression throughout Europe continued, Secretary Hull spoke of Germany's

efforts to gain control of the seas, and he emphasized that the United States would prevent

Japanese should tell Hitler to be reasonable, Mr. Kurusu interrupted with the remark that
Chancellor Hitler would undoubtedly be willing to enter into peace negotiations. However,
Secretary Hull replied that he had only been speaking figuratively, because the United
States would demand the complete abandonment of Hitler's program of conquest.

would stand firm on its basic principles. 240

b. Ambassador Nomura's Report

There is no Japanese message pertaining to this conversation available.

70. Japan Prepares for Breakdown of Diplomatic Relations

In spite of Japan's apparent optimism with regard to these informal conversations, Tokyo

took every precaution to safeguard its codes and important documents in the event that

that an international emergency had struck. Embassy officials would then destroy all code

relations between Japan and the United States, Russia, or Great Britain were severed.

and "Stop" codes.

238Ibid.

23"Treaty of Peace between Germany and Russia, March 3, 1918.

24'IV,148-149.
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defense,andMr.KurusubothexpressedviewthataRussiandefeatwouldnottakeplaceinthethenearfuture.AmbassadorAmbassadorNomuraNomurasawlittleprospecteither AmbassadorNomurarepliedbrieflythatJapanwouldbeequallyfaithfultobothalliances. AmericanresentmentuponJapan.Mr.KurusuwasalsopessimisticofJapan'spositionintheFarEast,238ifanotherBrest-Litovsk239occurredand.Japanwerefacedwithacombined wasover,neverthelesssaidUnitedStateswouldonlyimpairitsstrengthifAmericanforcesweresentMricatotoengageinwaratpresenttime.Whenthethethethediscussionof fromhappeningbyanymeansatitsdisposal.WhenSecretaryHullstatedthatthatthe TheconferencedrewtoaclosewithSecretaryHullemphasizingthattheUnitedStates diplomaticrelationswithAmerica,BritainandRussiaweresevered.OnNovember19,

1941,Tokyosentitsembassiesthroughouttheworldsimplecode(consistingoffewweatherterms)totobeinserted,ifneedarose,inJapanesenewsbroadcastsasaaawarning papers.241Thisfamous"Winds"codewhichwaswastobeusedinthetheeventthat ThoughcodewasusedbeforeunexpectedJapaneseattackonPearlHarbordidnotrevealthatrelationswithUnitedStatesweredeteriorating,sinceititmentionedonlyEngland.Aspecialappendixoutlinesavailableinformationconcerningthethethethethe"Winds" 24OS.D.II,751-753. 



(November 20,1941- December 1,1941)toanona
71. Hull-Nomura Conversation (November 20,1941)

a. State Department's Repore42a

ment to offer a proposal amplifying Ambassador Nomura's suggestion that the Japanese

States government might rescind its freezing regulations.243 Under the terms of the new

proposal both governments would guarantee that no advance would be made in southeastern
Asia or the South Pacific except in the northern part of French Indo-China, to which

equitable peace was established in the Pacific area, Japan would withdraw its troops from
all of French Indo-China.

With a view to restoring their commercial relations, Japan and the United States would
cooperate in acquiring necessary goods and commodities from the Netherlands East Indies,
and reinstate trade conditions which had prevailed prior to the freezing of assets. Further-
more, the United States would supply Japan with a required quantity of oil. In addition,
the United States would refrain from any actions prejudical to the restoration of peace between

Japan and China.244
Promising to examine the proposal later, Secretary Hull said that he would like to make a

Hull insisted, Japan could end what it chose to call encirclement and decide upon an all-out
peaceful course. Furthermore, Secretary Hull felt that the Japanese government should
direct its people to follow such a peaceful course. In reply, Mr. Kurusu offered the suggestion
that the United States help develop Japanese public opinion by adopting the proposal

which the Japanese government had just offered. This proposal, Ambassador Nomura
interposed, would show Japan's peaceful purpose by relieving the pressure on Thailand aswellas
the purposes underlying United States aid to China paralleled those underlying aid to

242Chapter title taken from the division arrangement of the State Department documents-Papers Relating totheofthein
Washington, 1943, Volume II, 366. Hereafter referred to as S.D., II.ofaby

243 Ibid.

2«Draft Proposal Handed by the Japanese Ambassador (Nomura) to the Secretary of State-November 20, 1941,S.D.II,ofto
29. The other items in this proposal were sent to Ambassador Nomura with instructions concerning its delivery on14and15,in
Ambassador Nomura both the Japanese and English texts ofthe proposals, 150-153.

"'S.D. II, 753-755.

65

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTA-HULL-NOMURACONVERSATIONSJapaneseEffortsExtortAgreementNarrowandOne-SidedProposal242
OnNovember20,1941,AmbassadorNomuraandMr.KurusucalledattheStateDepart-troopsbemovedfromthesouthernpartofFrenchIndo-ChinainorderthattheUnited Japanesetroopsfromthesouthernpartofthatterritorywouldbemovedupontheconclusionofthepresentarrangement.AssoonaspeacewasrestoredbetweenJapanandChina,oran fewcommentsontheJapaneseproposalinitspresentform.245Atanymoment,Secretary 

FrenchIndo-China.
SecretaryHullthenaskedAmbassadorNomuratoconsidertheAmericanpeople'sreactionshouldtheUnitedStatesdiscontinueaidtoGreatBritain.Thenhepointedoutthat ForeignRelationsUnitedStates-Japan,1931-1941twovolumes,U.S.GovernmentPrintingOffice,2424"MemorandumConversation"-InitialedJosephW.Ballantine-November20,1941,S.D.II,753-755.755-756.PartthisdraftproposalwassentAmbassadorNomurafromTokyoonNovember4,1941.SeeIV,NovemberNovember1941.NotecertainchangesmadethetextinspiteofthefactthatTokyosent 



GreatBritain.Whatwasneededatthepresenttime,SecretaryHullinsisted,wasthemani-

festation by Japan of a sincere desire to pursue a peaceful course since the American
people,basingtheiropinionontheNazi-likeslogansof"aneworderinEastAsia"and

"a coprosperity sphere", believed that the partnership of Germany and Japan was aimed at
controlling the world.

After four years of fighting with China, Ambassador Nomura explained, the Japanese
governmentwasforcedtousetheslogansquotedbySecretaryHullinordertourgethepeopletowardvictory.YetithadbeenclearlydemonstratedfromtheproposalsalreadypresentedtotheUnitedStatesgovernment,theJapaneseAmbassadorcontinued,thattheJapanesegovernmentwaseagertoreachanimmediatesettlementwithChina.SecretaryHullstatedthattheUnitedStatesgovernmentwasanxioustohelpinthismatter.However,whenMr.KurusustatedthatJapanhadneverpledgeditselftoapolicyofexpansion,SecretaryHullmadethecommentthattheChinesepeoplemighthaveananswertothatpoint.

Since the United States wished to avoid a repetition in East Asia of the "new order" which

HitlerwasattemptingtoestablishinEuropebymilitarycontrol,SecretaryHullpointed

out that Japan must abrogate its alliance with Germany. Waving aside Mr. Kurusu's
arguments that Japan could not eradicate its obligations under the Tripartite Pact,
Secretary Hull pointed out that Japan had not been so concerned over its obligations under

theNinePowerTreatysignedwithGreatBritainandtheUnitedStates.Mr.KurusuansweredvaguelythattheNinePowerTreatywastwentyyearsoldandoutmoded.Notwishingtoarguethispoint,SecretaryHullturnedbacktotheChinesequestionandemphasizedthetremendousinjurycausedbyJapaninthePacific.HepointedoutthatthemethodsadoptedbytheJapanesemilitaryleadersinthewarwithChinaweresimilarto

those used by Hitler. Although agreeing with Ambassador Nomura that the situation in the
FarEastwasoftheutmosturgency,SecretaryHullinsistedthatitwasstillthedutyofJapa-

nese statesmen to alleviate the situation in Japan.

Mr.KurusuthenaskedifAmericanaidtoChinawouldbediscontinuedatthebeginningofJapanese-Chinesepeacenegotiations.Decliningtocommentonthispoint,SecretaryHullinsteadcomplimentedAmbassadorNomuraandMr.KurusuonthemarkedchangeintheattitudeoftheJapanesepeopleandpresstowardAmericaduringthepasttwodays.SecretaryHullwasconvincedthatifsuchachangeforthebettercouldbeeffectedinsuchashorttimeJapanesestatesmencouldaccomplishmuchmoreinalongerperiod.245a
b. Ambassador Nomura's Repore46

Although November 20, 1941 was Thanksgiving Day Ambassador Nomura and Ambassador

KurusumetwithSecretaryHulltodiscusstheprogramofJapanese-Americanrelations.AttheverybeginningofthediscussionAmbassadorNomurahandedSecretaryHullacopyofJapaneseProposalB,accordingtoinstructionsfromTokyo.MterglancingovertheitemsintheproposalSecretaryHullcommentedonthatsectionwhichrequestedtheUnited

States to cease aid to the Chinese once Japanese-Chinese peace discussions had commenced.
AslongasthefearsemanatingfromtheTripartiteAlliancecontinuedinthiscountry,SecretaryHullstated,theUnitedStatescouldnotceaseaidtoGeneralissimoChiangKai-shek.WhileononehandtheUnitedStateswasaidingGreatBritaininordertooffsetGermanaggression,itwasaidingChinatooffsetthesametypeofaggressionintheFarEast.

Throughout Japan and Manchukuo American businesses had been subjected to harsh
treatment by the Japanese; therefore, at this time the American people doubted Japan's
sincere desire for peace.247

245. Ibid.
2<6IV, 154-155.
2<1Ibid.
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Reminding Secretary Hull that President Roosevelt himself had offered to mediate in the

Japanese-Chinese peace, Ambassador Kurusu insisted that such peace conferences could
never take place while American aid to Chiang Kai-shek continued. Secretary Hull replied
that President Roosevelt had presupposed that the Japanese would make a definite state-

ment of their peaceful policies. In the past, influential Japanese statesmen had officially
advocated the militaristic expansion of Chancellor Hitler; therefore, if the tension between
Japan and the United States was to be relaxed, the Japanese government must openly
state its desires to follow a course set down by the United States government. Secretary Hull
believed that both he and the Japanese Ambassador had within their power the destiny of
both countries, and even of the human race. In an effort to find a basis for peace negotiations,
Secretary Hull promised to study the latest Japanese proposal sympathetically. 248

Since the editorial comments in Japanese newspapers had improved during the past

become favorable toward the present Japanese-American conversations. Therefore, in his

continuous control over the Japanese press. 249

Ambassador Nomura felt that the American State Department would be ready to
express some opinion on Japan's suggestion for a general agreement to alleviate the condi-foron
72. Hull-Kurusu Conversation (November 21,1941)

a. Secretary Hull's Report251

Calling at Secretary Hull's apartment on November 21, 1941, Mr. Kurusu handed the

American Secretary of State a draft letter which he offered by way of clarifying Japan's
obligations under the Tripartite Pact. 252

In this letter Mr. Kurusu stated that he was surprised to learn that the American people
misunderstood Japan's obligations under the Tripartite Pact. Since Mr. Kurusu, as Japa-
nese Ambassador to Germany, had signed this treaty with the Berlin government, he
felt qualified to clear up any false impressions. First of all, Mr. Kurusu pointed out that the
alliance with Germany did not infringe upon Japan's right to act as an independent state.
Although it had assumed certain obligations, Japan was not bound by the interpretation
given to those obligations by either of the other contracting parties. Anxious for peace,
the Japanese government would project Japan into war only as the ultimate, inescapable
necessity for the maintenance of its security and the preservation of national life against
active injustice. Mr. Kurusu asked that Secretary Hull feel free to publish the contents afterby

After glancing over this letter, Secretary Hull told Mr. Kurusu that he did not feel it

would be of any particular help. Since Mr. Kurusu had nothing more to offer on the subjectof
".IV, 156.

25°IV, 158.

25"'Memorandum by the Secretary ofState"-November 21,1941, S.D. II; 756.
'.'Ibid.

'."'Draft Letter Handed by Mr. Kurusu to the Secretary of State on November 21,1941", S.D. II, 756-757.
'.'S.D. II, 756.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
twoorthreedays,SecretaryHullfeltthat,ifonceguided,Japanesepublicopinioncould messagetoTokyo,AmbassadorNomurarequestedthatForeignMinisterTogoexercise tioninthesouthwesternPacificwithinafewdays.Beforethemeetingdrewtoaclose,anotherinterviewwasscheduled8:00p.m.November22,1941.250 
completeunderstandinghadbeenreachedthetwogovernments.253peacefulsettlementbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStates,theinterviewwasended.254 

"9IV,157. 



b. Ambassador Kurusu's Repore55

with Ambassador Kurusu on the previous day. Apparently Secretary Hull was in accord

with Ambassador Kurusu's suggestion that the joint peace agreement between the United

States and Japan gradually overrule Japanese obligations under the Tripartite Pact. Because

toward Japan's economic leadership in the Far East.

In fact, Secretary Hull openly stated that he would like to see the re-establishment of that

the affairs of the Far East and the Western Hemisphere respectively. Before achieving such

a goal Japan must assure the United States that its alliance with Germany was not an obstacle

Hull on Monday, November 24, 1941.255a

73. Japanese Air and Surface Patrols Cover Shipping

that reliable reports indicated that Japanese air and surface craft were patrolling shipping
routes from the United States to Australasia, with special emphasis apparently being placed
on the Gilbert and Ellice Islands area.

In order to coordinate these operations, the Japanese East Indies fishing fleet had been
divided into three units to cover Bathurst Island, Arnhem and Thursday Island in Torres

Strait. Equipped with long-range radio sets with which to contact their base at Palau, unitsto
74. Hull-Nomura Conversation (November 22,1941)

a. State Department's Repore57

and Mr. Kurusu called on Secretary Hull on November 22, 1941. Secretary Hull began the

representatives of the other governments concerned in the affairs of the Pacific in order to

result, it had been decided by these other governments that if Japan could give evidence
of its peaceful intentions, the questions of the Pacific could be settled satisfactorily. However,
the representatives of those other governments had the same misgivings which Secretary
Hull himself had experienced during his conversations with Ambassador Nomura.

Secretary Hull then reminded Ambassador Nomura that the Japanese government
had been talking of peace during last July even while its troops moved into Indo-China.

invasion was not being used for normal civilian consumption, Secretary Hull, in spite
of severe public criticism, had induced his government to continue oil exports to Japan.

25'IV,159.
255-Ibid.

25"IV, 160.'57ofaby

InordertoarrangefortheinterviewtotakeplaceonNovember22,1941,SecretaryHullmet 
ViscountIsiiandEigoFukaihadfoughtforfreecommercetogetherwithSecretaryHullattheeconomicconferenceinLondon,theAmericanSecretaryofStatewassympathetic AslongasJapangainedleadershipinthePacificwithoutresortingtoaggression,Ambassa­dorKurusudidnotfeelthattheUnitedStateswouldinterfereintheactivitiesofthatarea. erasubsequenttotheRusso-JapaneseWarwhenJapanandtheUnitedStateshadinfluenced topeace.SincethepresentsituationwasundoubtedlycriticalAmbassadorKurusufeltthatProposalB,submittedtoSecretaryHullonthepreviousday,wouldhaveagreatbearingonpeacenegotiations.AmbassadorKurusuexpectedananswertoproposalBfromSecretary OnNovember21;1941the[U.S.]ChiefofNavalOperationsinformedfleetcommanders

ofthisfleetwereapparentlyscheduledoperatearoundDutchNewGuinea.256 
ByappointmentmadeattherequestofAmbassadorNomura,theJapaneseAmbassador conversationbytellingAmbassadorNomuraandMr.Kurusuthathehadspokenwith determineiftherecouldbearelaxationofthefreezingordersenactedagainstJapan.Asa EventhoughtheoilbeingshippedtoJapanduringthemonthspriortotheIndo-China 

"MemorandumConversation"-InitialedJosephW.Ballantine-November22,1941-S.D.II,757-762.
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policy, the Japanese statesmen and press continued to adopt a warlike tone. Since
Secretary Hull had pointed out several times that Japan would gain commercially from
adopting a peaceful policy, he could not understand why Japanese statesmen did not

Secretary Hull said that the United States government had reached no decision regarding
the Japanese proposals. Nevertheless, the United States was seriously considering the
release of a certain quantity of oil to Japan for civilian requirements. If only Japan could

would be able to sway the sympathies of the Senators and other persons in this country

of the Japanese Diet had shown the Japanese people to be severely affected by four years
of war, and it had also shown clearly the effects of the United States freezing measures upon
the Japanese people. In reply to Secretary Hull's question regarding the attitude of the

acceded to Ambassador Nomura's suggestion regarding the withdrawal of Japanese troops

pointed out, the situation would approach an explosive point unless immediate and
ameliorating action took place.257a

Since the world was in such a state of confusion because of the present war, Secretary
Hull encouraged the Japanese statesmen to come out and say definitely that Japan wanted
peace, as the United States had done so many times. Ambassador Nomura answered that

the peace settlement with Russia in 1905. In spite of Ambassador Nomura's explanations,

real appreciation of the situation, in order to induce the other powers in the Pacific to reach
a trade arrangement with Japan. If Japan continued such aggressive moves as it had

continue their program of armament and the peaceful endeavors of Ambassador Nomura

would be in vain.

If Japan would be satisfied with the gradual relaxation of export restrictions, Secretary
Hull revealed, both the United States and other countries would be willing to supply Japan
with a moderate amount of necessary goods, increasing that amount in proportion to Japan's
demonstration of its peaceful intentions. Not satisfied with the trade concessions which

necessary. Secretary Hull's only comment was that, if the Japanese government needed all
that had been asked for, probably nothing could save it. Furthermore, Secretary Hull felt
that Japan expected the United States to do all the work in bringing about peace.257b

situation, Secretary Hull replied that during his conversation with representatives of the
other governments he had discovered that an arrangement could be effected between
Japan and these countries, if Japan would only commit itself to peace. However, if Japan
insisted on modifying and qualifying declarations of its peaceful statements, these other
nations would not be interested.

257. Ibid.
257b Ibid.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
Now,inNovember,withtheAmericanstatesmenandAmericanpressbackingapeacefulcooperatewithAmbassadorNomuraandMr.Kurusuinpreachingpeace.

makemoredefiniteassertionsregardingitspeacefulintentions,SecretaryHullfeltthathe towardJapan.AfterSecretaryHullhadfinished,Mr.Kurusustatedthatthespecialsession Japanesearmy,Mr.KurusuassuredtheAmericanSecretaryofStatethattheArmyhad fromsouthernFrenchIndo-China.Inspiteofthisencouragingsign,however,Mr.Kurusu therewasnottheslightestdoubtofJapan'sdesireforpeace,yetheadmittedthatitwouldbedifficulttodeclarepubliclythatJapanwasseekingconciliation.Bywayofexample,AmbassadorNomuraremindedSecretaryHulloftheagitationinJapanwhichfollowed SecretaryHullstillfeltthatJapanesestatesmenwouldapproachthequestionofpeacewith alreadybeguninFrenchIndo-China,SecretaryHullcontinued,othernationswould SecretaryHullpromised,Mr.Kurusuinsistedthatimmediateandcompletereliefwas WhenMr.KurusuaskedforafurtherclarificationofSecretaryHull'sideasonthetrade 



Secretary Hull then asked if a recent proposal handed to him by Ambassador Nomura
was intended as a temporary measure to organize public opinion in Japan in order that the
conversations might continue with the purpose of concluding a more comprehensive agree-

making the situation more difficult for the countries that were willing to release a certain
amount of exports to Japan, for if Japan retained any troops in northern Indo-China,
regardless of their location, they would constitute a threat to neighboring countries. For
example, Secretary Hull said, almost over-night Japan would be able to move its troops

even one more ship from Singapore.

Answering that Japan would bring its troops out of French Indo-China completely when
the China affair had been settled, Ambassador Nomura said that at the present time Japan

would take many days to move these Japanese troops from northern Indo-China. Secretary

in any area of French Indo-China. Furthermore, Secretary Hull felt that Japan expected
the United States to complete all the arrangements toward the settlement of the China

question. Refuting this statement, Mr. Kurusu pointed out that the Japanese Foreign
Minister, in a conversation with Ambassador Grew, had accused the United States ofthe
taking such action because of commercial encirclement by saying that as far back as 1934
he had warned Ambassador Saito that Japan was planning an over-lordship in East Asia,

time Secretary Hull had attempted to discourage Hitler from adopting aggressive tactics.

portion of our fleet was kept in the Pacific to aid China. However, if Japan could only

the psychological effect of a quick settlement would be of the greatest value to Japan.

set up. This obstacle, Secretary Hull believed, might even prevent the United States from
mediating between Japan and China.257d

Mter a conclusive discussion on the true situation in Indo-China, Ambassador Nomura

America state exactly what points of the Japanese proposals it could and could not accept.

1941, after a conference with the representatives of the other governments concerning the
points that had been brought out in the day's conversation, he would have something
definite to say about the Japanese proposals.

to press him for an immediate reply and agreed that Monday would be satisfactory for antobethe
257, Ibid.

257d Ibid.

70

ment.WhenMr.Kurusurepliedintheaffirmative,SecretaryHullstatedthatJapanwas fromnorthernIndo-Chinaanypointitdesired,whiletheBritishwouldbeunabletotomove neededtroopsnorthernIndo-ChinaininordertocarryonitswarwithChina.However,it Hull,however,insistedthatuneasinesswouldprevaillongasasJapanesetroopsremainedInemphasizingfactitwaswhofirstdivergedfromcourseoflawandorder,saidthethethetheJapaneseJapanesemovedFrenchIndo-ChinainJuly.SecretarySecretaryHullHullwavedasideMr.Kurusu'sexplanationthatthatthatJapanhadhadbeenforcedintointo andsuchmilitarismwouldeventuallyplungetheworldintoanotherwar.Atthatthatsame InanswerAmbassadorNomura'scommentAmericanmoralsupporthadenabledGeneralissimoChiangKai-shektotoholdoutthislong,SecretaryHullsaidthatthatamajor cooperatebydoingfewsmall

thingstotideoverthesituation,aapeacefulpeacefulmovementcouldbeginwithinthirtyorfortydays.AmbassadorNomuramaintainedthat AlthoughobviouslydiscouragedatJapan'sattitude,stillinsistedpeacebecomeinfectiousonlymovementbegun,butififChinaaffairwerewereinjectedintothethethepresentproposals,SecretarySecretaryHullHullfeltthatthatadangerousobstaclewouldwouldbe referredtoJapan'sdesireforaquicksettlementofthePacificproblems.Heaskedthat Bywayreply,SecretaryHullurgedJapanesegovernmentspendmoretimeinpreachingthethedoctrinesofofpeace.ThenhesaidthatthatpossiblybyMonday,November24, AmbassadorNomuraassuredSecretaryHullthattheJapanesegovernmenthadnodesire

preciselysamething.257c 
answerforthcomingfromUnitedStatesgovernment. 



Just before the conversation ended Secretary Hull referred to a general and comprehensive
program involving the collaboration of other countries which he hoped to talk over with
Ambassador Nomura. Ambassador Nomura said that Japan hoped for a bilateral agreement
with the United States under which other interested powers could subsequently arrive at a
mutual agreement with Japan. 258

b. Ambassador Nomura's Repore59

Ambassador Nomura and Ambassador Kurusu called on Secretary Hull and Mr.

Australia and the Netherlands in order to obtain their opinion on the latest Japanese

gave a sincere indication of its desire for peace, trade relations could be re-established between

which the Japanese government claimed to desire.

Giving an example of their reasons for doubting Japan's sincerity, these same diplomats
pointed out to Secretary Hull that Japanese petroleum imports had risen just prior to the
freezing order effected by the United States, Britain and the Netherlands. In fact, the
petroleum intake was so great that it was obviously being stored by the navy and not
consumed in civilian businesses. In view of such action the diplomats of these countries wished

be made in regard to resuming trade with Japan, however, these representatives wished totheto
In order to offset this suspicion regarding Japan's actual motives, Secretary Hull proposed

that the Japanese government make a clear-cut statement of its desire for peace. Mr.
Ballantine added that such a statement would be more beneficial than the present
propagandistic reports sent out by Tokyo for foreign consumption. Mr. Ballantine continued

British, Australian, and Dutch opinions be laid aside for the time being. Replying to this
request, Secretary Hull discussed the Japanese proposals paragraph by paragraph, but

Australia and the Netherlands were sincerely desirous of avoiding a crisis in the south
Pacific.

Secretary Hull himself admitted that these countries wished to control the situation in the
Far East so that they might be able to transfer their fighting forces to other areas. In view

insufficient guarantee.

Japanese troops concentrated in the northern part of French Indo-China were directed at

Yunan, the lifeline of Chungking and not at the southwest Pacific. However, Secretary Hull
insisted that a quick turnabout in the situation must take place before the United States

Once this changed had taken place, Secretary Hull stated, trade with Japan could be re-
sumed rapidly. 259a

258Ibid.

259IV, 161.

Ibid.
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referJapaneseproposalstheirhomegovernments. 

BallantineonNovember22,1941.SecretaryHullbeganconversationsbystatingthathehadconferredearlierindaywiththethetheAmbassadorsandMinistersofGreatBritain, proposals.AsaresultofthisconversationtheserepresentativesconcludedthatonceJapan Japanvariouscountries.However,thesethesesamerepresentativesnotedthatJapanesepoliticiansandandnewspapersseemedbedirectlyopposedtotothepeacefulcourse lifttheembargoonexportstotoJapanonlygradually.Beforeanydefinitedecisioncoulddutyeverypoliticianwasstriveforpeace.AnxioustotodetermineattitudeofofUnitedStatestowardJapaneseproposals,AmbassadorNomurarequestedthatthatthethethethethe actually,accordingtoNomura,hiscommentswerecompletelyevasive.Nevertheless,AmbassadorAmbassadorNomurawasconvincedthattheUnitedStates,GreatBritain, ofthissituationSecretaryHullfeltthattheassurancesgivenbyJapaninitsproposalswerean Attempting

torefuteSecretaryHull'sremarks,AmbassadorNomurainsistedthatthe orothercountriesconcernedinPacificcouldanswerthethethepresentJapaneseproposals. 259a
 



stated that United States' aid to Generalissimo Chiang Kai-shek would not cease before a

complete understanding had been reached. If the United States were to stop this aid,
Secretary Hull continued, then this government could not be considered a fair and neutral

party, and therefore, could not mediate in the Japanese-Chinese peace. Furthermore,
Secretary Hull felt that the so-called American aid to Generalissimo Chiang Kai-shek was

that it was not yet time for President Roosevelt to suggest the commencement of peace nego-
tiations with China.

In spite of certain disagreements which had been uncovered during the present conversa-

of counter proposal suggesting a joint plan for the maintenance of peace in the Pacific
by the United States and Japan. After a preliminary agreement had been arrived at by these

Britain, Australia and the Netherlands for approval. If this took place it was quite possible
that Japan's objections to any change could be voted down by the four allies. Ambassador
Kurusu insisted that Japan would not accept any proposals unless they met with its complete
approval. 259b

75. Japan Changes Agreement Deadline to November 29, 1941

Possibly in the hope that the United States would, as Secretary Hull had stated, submit
a counter proposal on November 24, 1941,260 which would increase the possibility of a
successful conclusion of the present negotiations, Japan agreed to change the deadline for a

However, in notifying Ambassador Nomura and Ambassador Kurusu of of this change in
date, the Foreign Office stressed the fact that, by that time, an agreement must not only be

similar understanding must be concluded with Great Britain and the Netherlands.

settlement of its international problems, Foreign Minister Togo urged that both Ambassa-

dors in Washington increase their efforts to bring about peace without relaxing Japan's

Minister Togo warned "that things are automatically going to happen". 26276.ofofason
in a message to the Commander-in-Chiefs of the Pacific and Asiatic Fleets, the Chief of
Naval Operations warned that a surprise Japanese aggression in any direction could be
expected.264 From the movements of Japan's military and naval forces a surprise attack

precipitate the expected Japanese attack.265

259' Ibid.
260 II,IV,
26'IV, 162~163.

'62IV, 162.

263Ibid.

26'IV, 164.

265Ibid.
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ReferringnexttotheproposedJapanese-Chinesepeacenegotiations,SecretaryHull largelyover-publicized.SecretaryHullconcludedhisdiscussionoftheChinaaffairbystating tions,AmbassadorKurusufeltthatonMondaytheUnitedStateswouldsubmitsomesort twocountriesAmbassadorKurusuwasconvincedthatitwouldbesubmittedtoGreat Japanese-Americanagreementfrom25toNovemberNovember29,1941,Tokyotime.261 signedwithUnitdStates,but,bythetheexchangeofpertinentdiplomaticnotes,some SinceNovember29,1941wasfinalandabsolutedatewhichTokyohadsetforthethe fundamentaldemands.IfJapan'saimswerenotaccomplishedbythisdateForeign TheUnitedStatesNavywasnotunawarethat"thingsareautomaticallygoingtohappen", onPhilippinesorGuamindicated.SeniorArmyofficersareaswhichOpNavmessagewaswasaddressedbeinformedofthisthisfact.

Inmeantimethesecommanderswerewereobservethethethetheutmostsecrecyregardtheiractionsinininordernottototototo 

ChiefNavalOperationsWarnsJapaneseSurpriseAttackonPhilippinesForeignMinisterTogohadwarnedNovember22,1941.263ForonNovember24,1941,S.D.757-762;161. 



Coast batteries, lookout stations and landing forces were identified on Truk and Saipan.

10cated.266

State Welles of the details of his conference with Foreign Minister Togo.268 During the

Japanese proposals presented to the American State Department on November 20, 1941,269
and with the conversation between Secretary Hull, Ambassador Nomura and Mr. Kurusu

proposals, he had not yet been informed of the details of the conversation which took placeon22,
details.271

with representatives of other governments interested in the Pacific, had learned that Japan's
offer to withdraw its troops from the southern part of French Indo-China did not meet with

the conclusion of the China affair, Foreign Minister Togo insisted that Japan's offer had been
an attempt to ease the tension in the Pacific.

Remarking that the United States and GrE~at Britain had put their freezing orders into
effect in the first place because Japan had moved its troops to southern Indo-China, Foreign

not satisfactory to those governments. In any event, Foreign Minister Togo continued, Japan's

Indo-China.

Foreign Minister Togo stated that the settlement of the China affair had always been one
of the principal obstacles to the restoration of friendly relations between Japan and the
United States. If, however, Generalissimo Chiang Kai-shek were to state his desire to restore
peace with Japan, as President Roosevelt had suggested he might do, Foreign Minister
Togo said Japan would enter into negotiations with China provided that the United States
refrained from any action prejudicial to the restoration of peace. Since Foreign Minister Togo
insisted that the United States' activities must not obstruct peace between Japan and China,

matters he felt that any American action calculated to aid Chinese military forces should
cease as soon as peace negotiations were started.

Foreign Minister Togo turned the conversation to a discussion of the Japanese proposals
presented to the American State Department on November 20, 1941. Since he had formulated

manifestation of Japan's future cooperative spirit, based on a desire for peace. Ambassador

266IV, 165.

267 The Ambassador inJapan(Grew) to the Secretary of State-November 24,1941, S.D. II, 762-764.

26. Ibid.

26'S.D. II, 755-756.

270S.D. II, 757-762.

27'S.D. II, 762-764.
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1941.270

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR77.AmbassadorGrewDiscussesJapaneseProposalswithForeignMinisterTogo26fNovember1941.Therefore,ForeignMinisterTogogavehimsomeofthemorepertinent
OnsamedayunusualactivitywasnotedinMandatesonpartofthethethetheJapanese. FromtheseotherindicationsitwasassumedthatsimilarJapanesedefensepreparationsbeingmadeatislandsintheJaluitandandPalaovicinities,wherebaseswerewerealreadyOnNovember21,1941,AmbassadorGrewadvisedHullandUnderSecretarySecretaryof conversationForeignMinisterTogoaskedwhetherAmbassadorGrewwasfamiliarwiththe onNovember22,AlthoughAmbassadorGrewhadreceivedacopyoftheJapanese ForeignMinisterTogodisclosedtoAmbassadorGrewthatSecretaryHull,inaconference theirapproval.InexplainingAmbassadorGrewthatJapancouldnotwithdrawitstroopsfromthenorthernpartofFrenchIndo-Chinaaswell,sincetheyhadbeensenttheretotohasten MinisterTogocouldnotunderstandwhythewithdrawalofitstroopsfromthatsection

was maximumconcessionwaswithdrawalJapanesetroopstothethenorthernpartofofFrench AmbassadorGrewinterruptedinquireastotowhichAmericanactivitiesreferred.ForeignForeignMinisterMinisterTogoTogorepliedthatalthoughhewasunfamiliarwithmilitary document,ForeignMinisterTogofeltqualifiedtostatethatthetheproposalwasa 



States government.

Japanese government did not expect the United States to suspend aid to China prior to the
commencement of peace negotiations, the clause in the Japanese proposals referring to
American non-interference in the efforts of Japan to settle the China affair would be interpreted

as a statement designed to save Japanese face. 271 a

In spite of the fact that both the Japanese Embassy in Washington and the American

Ambassador Nomura reported on November 25, 1941 that various Japanese correspondents

were writing newspaper articles based purely on conjecture. Although many of these
correspondents recognized that their articles were valueless, they were forced to make such
reports concerning the conversations because of pressure exerted by heads of newspaper

that Foreign Minister Togo exercise more control over Japanese correspondents, and
particularly over the officials in charge of the newspaper syndicates. If newspaper officials
directed their special correspondents to publish only authorized information concerning the
Japanese-American negotiations, this difficulty could be cleared up immediately.272

79. Foreign Minister Togo Questions Newspaper Interpretation of Proposals

paper interpretation of the Japanese proposals in which Japanese evacuation of French
Indo-China was indicated as depending upon the rescinding of the American freezing act.twobeitbe
questions of non-discrimination of trade and the Tripartite Pact, and incorporating the

of peace between Japan and China through the mediation of the United States. Since the

authorities and influential Americans in an effort to obtain an immediate answer to

Japanese proposals.273a
In reply to Tokyo's instructions, Ambassador Nomura stated that the question concerning

the evacuation of Japanese troops from all of French Indo-China, appearing in the American
newspapers, had been unauthorized and not founded upon any discussion between
American and Japanese representatives in Washington. Although he had attempted to use
his influence to work upon the sympathies of influential Americans, Ambassador Nomura

271. Ibid.272IV,ofbytheasathatonof
November 25,1941,1:5).

273IV, 167.

273. Ibid.
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Grew'sonlyreplywasthathewouldforwardForeignMinisterTogo'sremarkstotheUnited Justbeforeconversationended,AmbassadorGrewsuggestedthat,ineventthethetheStateDepartmentwerewithholdingallreportsconcerningJapanese-Americanrelations, offices.Sincethesituationwasbecomingextremelycritical,AmbassadorNomuraurged TokyowellasasWashingtonreportedproblemsarisingoutofunauthorizednewspaperarticles.273OnNovember26,1941ForeignMinisterTogoquestionedanAmericannews-IncaseAmbassadorNomurahimselfbelievedtherewassomeconnectionbetweenthetwomeasures,ForeignMinisterTogostatedthatthatevenifsuchamutualagreementon TheJapanesegovernmentdesiredanagreementbasedonitsProposalB,excludingthe suggestionmadebyUnitedStatesonNovember12,1941concerningthetheestablishment timeallottedforsuccessfulconclusionofthethepresentnegotiationswasgrowingshortForeign

MinisterTogoaskedAmbassadorNomuratogetintouchwithUnitedStates' 

78.AmbassadorNomuraWarnsAgainstInaccurateNewsReporting 
thosepointscouldreachedwouldinadequatetomeetthepresentsituation. 
166.ThepessimismJapanesenewspaperstowardtheseconversationswasreflectedinastatementmadeTokyoNichiNichidenouncingtheKurusumissionfailure.TheDomeinewsserviceagreedthatcondi­tionsweresuchanyoptimismtheparttheJapanesewastotallyunwaranted.(NewYorkTimes, 



80. Tokyo Wishes Agreement to Include Petroleum Exports

In the event that a settlement should be reached on the basis of the latest Japanese

proposal, Foreign Minister Togo wished for an immediate agreement regarding the
acquisition of necessary materials. Even prior to the signing of an understanding the
Japanese Foreign Minister desired a definite guarantee from the United States regarding the

approximately 333,000 tons per month. Under the suggested agreement the Japanese govern-

negotiations continued favorably. In addition, the Japanese government wished to import

1,000,000 tons of petroleum a year from the Netherlands East Indies. In order to validate the

verbal agreements reached, Foreign Minister Togo suggested that a definite statement be

incorporated into the exchange of documents between Ambassador Nomura and Secretary
Hull. 27581.to
replied that there was very little possibility of the United States' acceptance of Japan's

would be completely ruptured if the present situation were not alleviated immediately inByofa
the Japanese government personally to request cooperation in the maintenance of peace in
the Pacific. In return, Japan would extend a cordial reply.

In declaring their friendliness to the United States, however, Ambassador Nomura and

their military domination. In order to forestall the domination of French Indo-China, the
Netherlands East Indies and Thailand by the allied nations, Ambassador Nomura suggested
their establishment as neutral nations in accordance with a proposal submitted by

President Roosevelt in September, 1941.276.

and the United States, Ambassadors Nomura and Kurusu felt that once England and the
United States had militarily occupied the Netherlands East Indies, Japan would be forced
to attack allied troops. In the event that such a war did take place, a problem would arise
as to whether Germany would feel bound by the Tripartite Pact to come to the assistance

be forthcoming from Berlin.

the end of the world would come before this problem was settled. Since this was the last

expression regarding the negotiations which either Ambassador intended to make they

27'IV, 168.

27'IV,169.

27.IV, 170.

276. Ibid.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORtohisownadvantage.274
JapaneseAmbassadorsOtTerTokyoFinalSuggestionforPeacesomeway.waysuggestionAmbassadorNomuraproposedthatPresidentRooseveltwire 

continued,SecretaryHullwasalreadyturningtheopinionoftheseAmericanrepresentativesbeJapan.Anaverageamountamount4,000,000tonsofofofpetroleumpetroleumperyearhadbeenexportedexportedfromUnitedStatesJapanduring1938,1939and1940beforethethefreezinglegislationwentintoeffect.Theseexportsamountedtotototo mentwouldexpecttoreceivesameamountofpetroleumwithagradualincreaseifthethe AfterTokyohadwireditsembassyinWashingtonconcerningdemandstobemadeonceanagreementwasreachedwiththetheUnitedStates,AmbassadorsNomuraandKurusu ProposalBinitsentirety.276Infact,thetwoJapaneseambassadorsfeltthatnegotiationsAmbassadorKurusuwarnedJapanesecabinetitmustnotoverlookfactthatthatEnglandandUnitedStateswereattemptingtobringthethethetheNetherlandsEastIndiesunder Althoughthebreakdwonofnegotiationsmightnotnecessarilymean

warbetweenJapan ofJapan.BothNomuraandAmbassadorAmbassadorKurusudoubtedthatsuchaidwould ReferringnexttoSino-Japaneseincident,thethetwoJapaneserepresentativesstatedthat 



requested that a copy of their opinions be submitted to the Japanese Naval MinistryandthatsomeanswerbemadeimmediatelybytheJapanesegovernment.277
82. TokyoOrdersReportsonNegotiationstoBeMadebyTelephone

SincethesituationwasbecomingsotensethatimmediatereportsonthenegotiationsweredesiredbyTokyo,theForeignOfficeorderedtheJapaneseEmbassyinWashingtontomakefuturereportsbytelephonetoChiefKumaichoYamamoto,ChiefoftheAmericanBureauinTokyo.AsasecurityprecautiontheForeignOfficesentAmbassadorNomura

a copy of a verbal code to be used for telephone communications.278 However, Ambassador
Nomuradidnotbelievethatasufficientamountoftimewouldbesavedbythisnewmeansofcommunicationtowarrantuseoftheinternationaltelephonesystem.Hepointedout

that the hours for telephone conversations between Japan and the United States were
restricted to the time between 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 a.m., 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m., 2:00 p.m.
and 5:00 p.m., Tokyo time. Therefore, he held that it would be better to continue wiring
urgent news.279

83. Secretary Hull Confers with Allied Representatives (November 24,1941)
Ontwodifferentoccasions,AmbassadorNomurareported,SecretaryHullhadconferred

with. representatives of Great Britain, Australia, the Netherlands East Indies and China.
SinceJapanese-AmericanrelationsaffectedGreatBritainmorethananyoftheothercountries,SecretaryHullhaddiscussedthePacificproblemchieflywiththeBritishAmbassador,andwasmaintainingcommunicationswiththeAustralian,Dutch,andChineserepresentativeslargelythroughhim.Astheresultofconductingsomeseparate

conversations with each of these representatives, instead of having them meet for jointdiscussion,considerableattentionhadbeendrawntothesemeetings.280
84. Conference with Japanese Representatives Postponed by Secretary HullAlthoughaconferencebetweenSecretaryHull,AmbassadorNomuraandAmbassadorKurusu
had been arranged for November 24, 1941, Secretary Hull postponed this meeting since he had
not yet completed discussing the Japanese proposals with representatives of the Allied nations.281Onthefollowingday,therefore,theJapaneserepresentativesagaininquiredwhetherSecretary
HullwasfreetomeetwithAmbassadorNomuraandAmbassadorKurusu.TheStateDepartmentrepliedthatananswerwouldbeforthcomingonthenextday.Sincevariousbureaus
of the State Department were still debating the items in the Japanese proposals, and in view of

thefactthatSecretaryHullwasstillconferringwiththeBritishAmbassador,AmbassadorNomurawasconvincedthattheUnitedStatesdesiredtospeedupthepresentnegotiations.HefeltthataconferencebetweenAmericanandJapaneseofficialswouldundoubtedlytakeplaceonNovember26,1941.282
OnthemorningofNovember26,1941Mr.TerasakicalledonMr.Ballantinetoarrangethetimeforthisinterview.However,Mr.BallantinestatedthatSecretaryHullwasstillstudyingthe

Japanese proposals; nevertheless, from Mr. Ballantine's remarks Mr. Terasaki concluded that

SecretaryHullwouldbefreetoconferwithAmbassadorNomuralaterintheday.283

Consequently, a meeting was scheduled for 4:45 p.m.284
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international telephone to notify the Japanese Foreign Office that a conference had been arranged
with Secretary Hull. In reply to a question by Mr. Yamamoto during this telephone conversation,
Minister Wakasugi stated that arrangements had not yet been made to see President Roosevelt.
However, since Secretary Hull had been conferring with the Chinese representatives for the past
three days, it seemed apparent that the day's interview would decide the course of future
negotiations. Mr. Yamamoto then ordered Minister Wakasugi to report the results of the day's
meeting by telephone. 285

85. Hull-Nomura Conversation (November 26,1941)

a. State Department's Repore86

When Ambassador Nomura and Mr. Kurusu called at the American State Department on26,ofand
In this document, under Section I "Draft Mutual Declaration of Policy", the United States and

that they had no territorial design on any part of the Pacific, but that they had no intention of
using military force, or in any way threatening any neighboring nation. In pursuit of this peaceful

other governments:

1. The principle of inviolability of territorial integrity and sovereignty of each and all nations.
2. The principle of non-interference in the internal affairs of other countries.
3. The principle of equality, including equality of commercial opportunity and treatment.

and pacific settlement of controversies and for improvement of international conditions by
peaceful methods and processes.

In order to provide a strong economic basis for peace, Japan and the United States agreed to
eliminate political instability and prevent recurrent economic collapse by adopting the following
principles:

1. The principle of non-discrimination in international commercial relations.

as expressed in excessive trade restrictions.3.Theof
respects the operation of international commodities agreements.

5. The principle of establishment of such institutions and arrangements of international
finance as may lend aid to essential enterprises and the continuous development of all countries,
and as may permit payments through processes of trade consonant with the welfare of all
countries.288theofIItobe
and by the Government of Japan", the United States and Japan were to conclude a multilateral
non-aggression pact with the British Empire, China, the Netherlands, Russia and Thailand.
With the British, Chinese, Netherlands and Thaiese governments Japan and the United States
were to conclude a separate agreement pledging the territorial integrity of French Indo-China,

285IV, 179.
28. ofaby
287 Ibid.

288"Document handed by the Secretary of State to the Japanese Ambassador (Nomura)-November 26,1941", S.D.II,Forofto
180-185.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
AfterthetimeoftheconversationhadbeensetMinisterWakasugicalledMr.Yamamotoby

November1941,SecretaryHullhandedeachtheJapaneserepresentativesanoutlineofatentativeunofficialproposedagreementbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStates.287
Japan,indeclaringthattheirpoliciesinthePacificwerepeaceful,weretoguaranteenotonly nationalpolicy,bothgovernmentsweretoapplythefollowingprinciplestotheirrelationswithall 4.Theprincipleofrelianceuponinternationalcooperationandconciliationfortheprevention 2.Theprincipleofinternationaleconomiccooperationandabolitionofextremenationalism 

principlenon-discriminatoryaccessbyallnationstorawmaterialsupplies.
4.Theprincipleoffullprotectionoftheinterestsofconsumingcountriesandpopulationsas UnderprovisionsSection"StepsTakenbytheGovernmentoftheUnitedStates"MemorandumConversation"-InitialedJosephW.Ballantine-November26,1941,S.D.II,764-766.768-770.JapaneseversionthisdocumentwiredTokyobyAmbassadorNomuraonNovember26,1941,seeIV, 



and guaranteeing that any necessary measures would be taken to offset the threat of aggression
against that territory.

In the matter of trade and commerce these governments would agree not to accept preferential
treatment in economic dealings with French Indo-China. In following the spirit of this pledge,

China. Furthermore, the United States and Japan, in order to restore the regular government at

Chungking, would refuse to recognize any military, political or economic government established

in China and would give up all extra-territorial rights, including those gained under the Boxer
Protocol of 1901 and other international settlements and concessions.

Pacific give up similar extra-territorial rights in China. For the conclusion of an equitable trade
agreement between the United States and Japan negotiations were to be based upon reciprocal
measures calling for the reduction of trade barriers by both countries. For example, the United

and the United States. In order to ensure the maintenance of these political and economic
agreements the United States and Japan were to guarantee that they would not enter into any
alliances with a third power prejudicial to these principles. Both governments were to attempt to
influence other countries to give practical application to the basic political and economic
principles as stated in this document.289

statement in which the Japanese government was reminded that the informal conversations

carried on between representatives of both governments for the past several months were aimed
at settling the Pacific problem by a complete application of the principles of peace and non-
discriminatory treatment. These principles included the inviolability of the territorial integrity
and sovereignty of each and every nation; non-interference in the internal affairs of other
countries; opportunity for commercial equality and the improvement of international conditions
by the peaceful settlement of controversies. 290

Because the Japanese government believed that a favorable atmosphere would be created if a
temporary "modus vivendi" could be agreed upon while the conversations continued toward aof
a set of new proposals on November 20, 1941. Anxious to contribute to the promotion and
maintenance of peace and stability in the Pacific area, the United States was aiming toward a

the United States came to the decision that these proposals conflicted with the fundamental
principles upon which this broad-gauge settlement was to be formulated. Therefore, the United

Pacific problems. Although making a new approach to old problems, this plan was still based

upon the practical application of the fundamental principles already agreed upon during the
informal conversations and it was designed to bridge the gap between the United States proposals
of June 21, 1941, and the Japanese counter proposals of September 25, 1941.291

United States' official reply to Japan's proposal for a "modus vivendi". Because of the naturalthe
289 Ibid. bytheoftoII,ForoftoIV,
291 Ibid.
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Japanwouldwithdrawallmilitary,naval,airandpoliceforcesfromFrenchIndo-Chinaandfrom 
EveryeffortwastobeexertedtohaveGreatBritainandothergovernmentsinterestedinthe Stateswouldplacerawsilkonthefreelist,andbothgovernmentswouldremovethefreezingrestrictionsplacedonthefundsoftheother.Asanothermeansofaidingeconomicrelationsbetweenthetwocountries,thedollar-yenratewouldbestablizedwithfundssuppliedbyJapan SecretaryHullthenhandedAmbassadorNomuraandMr.Kurusuanexplanatoryoral

morecompletesettlementPacificproblems,AmbassadorNomurahadhandedSecretaryHullbroad-gaugeprogram.AftercarefullyconsideringtheJapaneseproposalsofNovember20,1941,
StatesofferedtheJapanesegovernmentitsownsuggestionsforthesimplesettlementofthe Whenhefinishedreadingbothdocuments,Mr.KurusuaskedwhetherthisconstitutedthereactionwhichAmericanpeoplefelttowardssomeJapanesewhowerecontinuallyadvocating29O"OralstatementhandedSecretaryStateJapaneseAmbassador(Nomura)-November26,1941",S.D.766-767.JapaneseversionthisoralstatementsentTokyobyAmbassadorNomuraonNovember26,1941,see186-189. 



Japanese proposals in this manner. Nevertheless, Secretary Hull assured Ambassador Nomura,

government had just presented to the Japanese representatives, that the United States might
give Japan financial aid and might even settle the immigrant question if the Pacific problems
were satisfactorily settled.

In replying to Secretary Hull, Mr. Kurusu referred to the proposed agreement in derogatorysenttoinin
confident that the neutral commission authorized by the Council of the League of Nations would
bring about the solution of the difficulties existing between Japan and China. However, the
United States wished to notify both the Japanese government and the Chinese Republic at the
same time that it would not recognize the legality of any treatment or agreement between those
countries which might impair the treaty rights of the United States or American citizens in
Japan, including any treaties relating to the sovereignty, independence, territorial or
administrative integrity of China, or to the Open Door Policy in China. Any agreement contrary
to the covenants and obligations undertaken by Japan and the United States in the Pact of Paris
on August 27, 1928, would not be recognized by the United States government.294

Citing Japan's experience with the Hague Tribunal, when it lost a case in connection with
perpetual leases, Mr. Kurusu pointed out that Japan's bitter experience with international
organizations made it object to the United States' present proposals for multilateral non-

taking advantage of Japan's rights. If the United States continued to request that Japan
recognize Generalissimo Chiang Kai-shek, then Mr. Kurusu did not see how any understanding

be referred to the Japanese government before American and Japanese representatives discussed

up a document presenting a detailed picture of its position in regard to every essential point
connected with the Pacific question.

Referring next to the question of exporting oil to Japan, Secretary HuJI emphasized that public

countries to the south and west of French Indo-China.

Turning back to the pertinent questions of the China problem, Mr. Kurusu stated
frankly that Japan would find it difficult to renounce Mr. Wang Ching-wei. Mr. Kurusu
then attempted to show the value of the Nanking regime which had been set up in China,
but Secretary Hull remained unconvinced.

When Ambassador Nomura requested that he and Mr. Kurusu be permitted to see

vivendi", and said the American response could be interpreted as meaning the end of

292S.D. II, 764.

2>""Secretary of State to Ambassador in Japan (Forbes)-January 7, 1931", S.D. I, 76.
2>'Ibid.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORdispatchAmbassadorForbesJapan1932.293AtthattimetheUnitedStateshadbeen 
Japanese-Americansituation,SecretaryHullsaid,theUnitedStateshadfeltitnecessarytodraw 

warlikeaggression,SecretaryHullreplied,UnitedStateshadbeenforcedtotreatthethe althoughitwasnotspecificallystatedincounterproposalwhichthetheUnitedStates terms,292notingthatprinciplescontainedthereinwerereiterationsthetheDoctrine.ThedoctrinetowhichMr.KurusureferredwasenunciatedbySecretaryofofStateStimsonStimsoninaaggressionpacts.Infact,Mr.KurusublamedtheWashingtonConferenceTreatiesforChina's onChinesequestioncouldbereached.KnowingthetheproposalwhichSecretaryHullhad.justhandedAmbassadorNomurawastentativeandunofficial,Mr.Kurususuggestedthatthatitnot itscontentsfurther.AtatimewhenAmericanpublichadlostproperperspectiveofthethetheopinionsostrongiffreelypermittedshipmentsoiltoJapanhehemightbelynched.HethenremindedAmbassadorNomuraandMr.KurusuthatthatthemobilizationofofJapanese

forcesinFrenchIndo-ChinawaswasdirectlyaffectingAmericaninterestswellasasmenacing Roosevelt,SecretaryHullrepliedthatPresidentPresidentRooseveltwouldbehappyseethematanytime.Mr.KurusureferredtotoAmerica'slackofinterestinthe"modus negotiations.RefusingtostatedefinitelywhethertheUnitedStateshadbeeninfluencedin 



this matter by the opinions of the other powers with which a discussion had taken place,

of a "modus vivendi" and decided against it.

simple statement to the press tomorrow. Ambassador Nomura said he would not question

Secretary Hull's right to give out what he desired.295

b. Ambassador Nomura's Repore96on
Secretary Hull stated that after numerous conferences with representatives of other nations
concerned in the Pacific it has been decided that the Japanese proposals submitted to the

reconcile the divergent points of view expressed in the American proposal of June 21, 1941,

and the Japanese proposal of September 25, 1941, the United States was at this time
submitting a tentative and unofficial plan.

After reading over that part of the American document which suggested an agreement
between England, the Netherlands, China' and Thailand, and also the various points
regarding the stabilization of trade and politics, Ambassador Nomura replied that the

and China had a hand in drawing up these uncompromising terms. In support of this belief
Ambassador Nomura stated that quite recently he had heard rumors that the Japanese
were demanding complete control of Thailand's national defense, and he believed that the
effects of these rumors could be seen in America's latest proposals.297

reconcile the American proposal of June 21, 1941 with that submitted by the Japanese

American conversations, believed their government to be forsaking China. In view of thesetheto
Ambassador Nomura then pointed out various terms in this latest American document

a reworking of the Stimson Doctrine. If Japan were to attempt to put these principles into
effect, particularly the one pertaining to non-discrimination in Japanese commercial dealings
with China, the economic situation in that occupied territory would be seriously impaired.
However, Secretary Hull maintained that the application of that principle would not have
to take place immediately.

Referring next to Section II of the American document, in which the United Stated proposed
a non-aggression pact among Great Britain, China, Japan, the Netherlands, Russia,
Thailand and the United States, Ambassador Nomura insisted that it revived the Nine-

295S.D. n,764-766.
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SecretaryHullmerelystatedthattheUnitedStatesgovernmenthadexploredthepossibility Whenthequestionofpublicitywasraised,SecretaryHullsaidthathewouldgiveaAt4:45p.m.November26,1941AmbassadorNomuraandAmbassadorKurusudiscussed
theJapaneseproposalsforapproximatelytwohours.Attheoutsetofthediscussion UnitedStatesgovernmentonNovember20,1941wereunsatisfactory.Therefore,inorderto UnitedStates'proposalsweredecidedlyunconciliatoryandthereforewouldbeentirelyunacceptabletoJapan.AmbassadorNomurawasconvincedthatEngland,theNetherlands AmbassadorNomuradidnotfeelthatthislatestAmericanproposalmadeanyattemptto governmentonSeptember25,1941,sincetheproposaldifferedfrombothprecedingones.SecretaryHullrepliedthattheAmericanpeople,unawareofthecontentsoftheJapanese-beliefs,influentialAmericanswerebeginningtoutternon-pacificstatements.Inviewof 

presentsituation,SecretaryHullwasunablecombattheseunfavorablecircumstances.298
whichdidnotmeetwiththeapprovalofhisgovernment.Forexample,thefourfundamentalprinciplesuponwhichtheUnitedStateswishedtobaseitsrelationswithJapanwere PowerTreaty.InviewofthefactthattheJapanesehadbeenatwarforlongerthanfouryearswithChinaandasyethadreceivednobenefitfromthiswar,thegovernmentcouldnot 



denounce the Nanking regime.

dissolved. Ambassador Nomura merely stated that throughout the history of China there
had been many governments. In the matter of the entire Chinese question, Ambassador

possible concession and on the other hand to "apologize to Chungking". 300

Although promising to read over the American proposal and give it careful consideration,
Ambassador Nomura did not offer any hope for an understanding based upon the proposal
since he felt that it would be unwise to submit the proposal to the Japanese government as it

arrange for that meeting.3O1

86. Ambassador Kurusu Telephones Mr. Yamamoto the Outcome of the Conference

by telephone of the outcome of the discussion with Secretary Hull. Stating that the situation

Kurusu said that he could not guarantee any satisfaction from the future meeting with
President Roosevelt unless some method could be found for concluding an understanding.
Mter thanking Ambassador Kurusu for the efforts he had already made, Mr. Yamamoto

had not been too hopeful of the outcome, in concluding the telephone conversation,the87.
Because of the unsuccessful trend of the Japanese-American negotiations Ambassador

United States was delaying negotiations on the grounds that it had to discuss Pacific

problems with representatives of various other governments.

Ambassador Nomura warned that the Japanese government would have to exercise

for further aggression. If, then, the Japanese government should complete its scheduled
operations, the United States would immediately blame Tokyo for the rupture of Japanese-
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 

AmbassadorKurusuexpressedhopethatsomeworkablesolutioncouldbefound.3O2AmbassadorNomuraSuggestsTerminatingthePresentNegotiations
30laSeeSection16-AwhichindicatesthatJapanhadmadeplansasearlyasNovember5-7,1941toattackHawaii.ThisinformationwasavailableuntilJune1945. 

acceptthisproposal.299AccordingAmbassadorNomura,Japancouldnotagreetoto regardtroopevacuationsfromJapanese-occupiedterritories,answeredsuchamoveneednottakeplaceuntilnegotiationshadbeensatisfactorilyconcluded.InInspeakingJapan'srefusalrenounceNankingofofChinaSecretarySecretaryHullHullstatedthat,sinceJapanesepuppetwasknowntototohaveinfluenceoverthethetheChineseanyway,itwouldmakelittlelittledifferenceifthatthatgovernmentgovernmentgovernmentwerecompletely NomurafeltthattheUnitedStateswasunreasonableinexpectingJapantomakeevery stood.Nevertheless,hopingsomeagreementcouldbereached,AmbassadorNomurarequestedaninterviewwithPresidentRoosevelt.SecretaryHullpromisedthatthathewould OneveningofthetheconferenceAmbassadorKurusuadvisedMr.KumaichoYamamoto wasnowseriousandthattheAmericanrepresentativesrefusedtoyieldapoint,Ambassador explainedthatthesituationinTokyowasalso

extremelycritica1.3O1aThoughMr.Yamamoto informedhisonNovember26,therewaslittlehopethatthatUnitedStatesgovernmentgovernmentwouldagreeanyofsuggestionsmadeJapanesewithintimelimitsetbybyForeignMinister.3O2aAccordingtotoAmbassadorNomuraNomurathethethethethethe extremecautionmakinganymoveininPacific,foralreadyAmericanpropagandistsreportingthatthetheJapanesewerewerecontinuingnegotiationsonlyasameansofpreparing Americannegotiations.Onotherhand,ifJapanweretoforcearuptureinnegotia­tions,AmericawouldalsousethismoveascounterpropagandaagainstthethetheJapanese 



government. Though Ambassador Nomura recognized the fact that clarification of Japan's
intentions must remain a strict military secret, he suggested that the current negotiations
be clearly and irrevocably concluded through an announcement to the American Embassy

similar announcement would be made by Ambassador Nomura to the State Department in

Washington. 303

88. United States Occupies Dutch Guiana
In the midst of the United States' discussions with the Netherlands regarding Pacific

problems, the White House suddenly made the announcement on November 24, 1941, that
the United States, under an agreement with the Netherlands, would occupy Dutch Guianaofitstothein

The Japanese Ambassador notified Tokyo that while en route to the Netherlands East
Indies the Dutch Foreign Minister had stopped off at Washington to speak with American
officials, and as a result the United States had increased the amount of milltary supplies
sent to the East Indies and had effected an exchange of technicians and military experts
with the Dutch. In view of these events Ambassador Nomura felt that once Japanese-

Netherlands East Indies with their troops to protect the Netherlands' tin and rubber. 304

89. American Armed Forces Prepare for War

Palao.3O5 Another report, however, stated that it was impossible to confirm the supposition

operate in the Mandates. 306

19, 1941", would become effective.3O7 Besides the instructions contained in this document

marine and aerial warfare against Axis shipping in a defined strategic area covering thetothe
only through lanes leading to naval control stations. Such safety zones would be carefully
defined and set up after conferring with British and Dutch naval authorities. However, the
Commander-in-Chief of the Asiatic Fleet was warned not to reveal America's intentions

regarding unrestricted submarines and aerial warfare.
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inTokyoorbyadeclarationforinternalandexternalconsumption.Atthesametime,a toprotectthealuminumdepositsfoundinthatterritory.WhileordinarilytheNetherlandswouldbeabletoprotectthesedepositsbymeansofitsownarmedforces,thepresentsituationintheSouthPacificmadeitimpracticalforthatgovernmenttodividethestrength troops.BrazilwasassistUnitedStatesthisprotectivemeasure. 
AmericannegotiationswerebrokenofftheUnitedStatesandGreatBritainwouldoccupythe OnNovember26,1941,trafficanalysisdisclosedthatstrongforcesofJapanesesubmarinesandairgroupswereoperatinginthevicinityoftheMarshallIslands.Asthisforcegrewtoincludethe24thAirSquadron,atleastoneaircraftcarrierandone-thirdofthesubmarinesintheJapanesefleet,itwassurmisedthatastrongJapanesetaskforcewaspreparingtooperateinsoutheasternAsiawithitscomponentpartsoperatingfromtheMarshallsand thatcarriersandsubmarineswereintheMandates,sincethebestsourcesindicatedthatallknownFirstandSecondFleetcarrierswerestillintheSasebo-Kurearea.However,anumberofcruiseranddestroyerdivisions,aswellasBatdiv3andbaseforceswereexpectedto OnNovember26,1941,theOfficeofNavalOperationsnotifiedtheCommander-in-ChiefoftheAsiaticFleetthatoncewarwasdeclaredbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStates"InstructionsfortheNavyoftheUnitedStatesGoverningMaritimeandAerialWarfare,May theCommander-in-ChiefoftheAsiaticFleetwasauthorizedtoorderunrestrictedsub-

watersfromShanghaiNetherlandsEastIndies.
Allfriendly,enemyandneutralvesselsweretobewarnedtoenter.thisprescribedarea 



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
Particularprecautionsweretobetakeninordertopreventanyhostileshipsfromobtaining

information which would be detrimental to American armed forces, if transmitted to

Japan.Ontheotherhand,ifhostilitiesbeganwithouttheformaldeclarationofwarthesameprocedurewouldprobablybefollowedalthoughordersfromtheChiefofNavalOperationswouldfirsthavetobeissued.3O7aToallowtheArmyAirForcesinstrategicareasofthePacifictomakeappropriateplans,theArmyChiefofStaffrequestedthattheCom-

mander-in-Chief, Asiatic Fleet, send this information to General MacArthur.3O8

OnNovember26,1941theUnitedStatesArmyofferedcertain.infantryunitsforreinforcing

existing naval defense battalions. Although anti-aircraft units were not available, the
ArmyproposedtogarrisontroopsinHawaiiattheNavy'srequest.TheChiefofNavalOpera-

tions passed this information to the Commander-in-Chief of the Pacific Fleet with the respect

that he be informed of the number of troops and the armament desired. 309

InordertoleaveplanesoftheSecondMarineAircraftWingfreeforexpeditionaryflights,theArmyonNovember26,1941proposedtosupplyMidwayandWakeeachwithtwenty-

five pursuit planes. However, the Navy would be responsible for transporting the planes
and ground crews from Oahu to these islands aboard aircraft carriers. Furthermore, the

NavywasobligatedtosupplywaterandsubsistencetotheArmyAirForcecrewsaswellastosupplythemwithnecessaryequipment.Itwasunderstood,nevertheless,thatthe

transfer of these planes to the Navy's use was not to interfere with the planned movements
ofArmybombersinthePhilippines.WhenarrangementshadbeenmadewiththeCommand-ingGeneral,theCommanderinChiefofthePacificFleetwastoadvisetheChiefofNaval

Operations on the decisions made.31O

FurtherordersissuedbytheChiefofNavalOperationsrevealedcooperationbetweentheArmyandNavy.ArmytroopsweretobedispatchedtosupportMarineUnitsinthePacific,and37mm.anti-aircraftgunswouldalsobesent,althoughprobablynotuntilFebruary.

Effective defense plans for all outlying bases and increases scheduled for the immediatefutureweretobesenttotheChiefofNavalOperations.311
90. Roosevelt-Nomura Conversation (November 27,1941)

a. Secretary Hull's Repore12
Ambassador Nomura and Mr. Kurusu called on President Roosevelt on November 27, 1941.

Although President Roosevelt began the conversation by referring to German international
psychology, Ambassador Nomura immediately turned the discussion to Japan's disappoint-
ment over the United States' attitude toward a "modus vivendi". Although expressing the
grateful appreciation of the United States government to the peaceful element in Japan and
emphasizing the fact that the United States still desired the realization of this peace, President
Roosevelt mentioned Japan's recent occupation of French Indo-China and the aggressive
attitude of Japanese statesmen as serious obstacles to the re-establishment of Pacific stabi-
lity.Evenduringtheinformal,exploratoryconversations,PresidentRooseveltcontinued,the

United States had noted with considerable disappointment that Japanese leaders opposed
the fundamental principles of peace, thereby creating an atmosphere wholly unsuitable to
the establishment oflaw and order.

PresidentRooseveltpointedoutthatpublicopinionintheUnitedStateswouldnotallow

the government to relax substantially its economic restrictions unless Japan gave a clear
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manifestation of its peaceful intent. President Roosevelt stated that Japan's best interests lay
along peaceful lines and not those advocated by Hitler. Mter four years of war, President
Roosevelt continued, the Japanese people needed peace and, therefore, he could not under-
stand why Japanese statesmen should obstruct the whole movement under discussion in
Washington.312a

Mr. Kurusu replied that after being here for ten days and studying the problems firsthand,
he had decided that the trouble lay, not with the fundamental principles, but with their appli-
cation. Mr. Kurusu then referred to President Roosevelt's recent suggestion about introducing

to give up the property they had taken from other people.
Commenting on Japan's attempts to colonize countries under its domination, President

Roosevelt said Japan would fail as Germany had because of lack of experienced people to
govern those captured countries. Furthermore, President Roosevelt felt that Japan could not

have to control its warlike elements before the exploratory conversations could achieve success.
In Secretary Hull's opinion, everyone recognized that Japan's slogans, "co-prosperity" and
"new order in the Far East", merely camouflaged a policy of military domination of the politi-norealbein

b. Ambassador Nomura's Repore14on
and the United States were allies, both governments had come to realize that Germany did

months, particularly after the Japanese occupation of southern French Indo-China, the United
States had been very much disappointed in the trend of events. Although President Roosevelt
admitted that the Japanese people had been living under war conditions for some time, and
that the American people had been living in peace, he could not understand why the leading
officials of the Japanese government could not turn Japanese public opinion toward a policy
of peace. The suggestion offered by the Japanese representatives that a "modus vivendi" be
arranged would not be of any value, President Roosevelt continued, unless the basic principles

the Japanese ambassadors that before his conference with Prime Minister Churchill on the
high seas Great Britain and the United States had already determined their respective basic
policies and found them to coincide.314a

United States were not traceable to the basic principles of those governments, but rather to
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progresscouldmadethepeacenegotiationswithJapan.313bassadorscalledPresidentRooseveltandSecretaryHullonNovember27,1941. 
Japanandinorderpeacemightworkedoutbetweenthosecountries.Reply­ingMr.Kurusu'squestionastotowhichoftwotwomakefirstmove,PresidentRooseveltstatedbothsidessideswouldwouldresponsible.SecretaryHullthendeclaredthatthatthat250,000carpetbaggerswhohadfollowedthethethetheJapaneseArmyintoNorthChinaChinamustbebebeforced claimencirclementwhenJapanitselfwasencirclingPhilippines.AtthispointinconversationSecretaryHullstatedthatthethetheJapanesegovernmentwould cal,economicsocialaffairsofcountriesinPacific.AslongJapanmaintainedalliancessuchasasanti-CominternPactandandthethethetheTripartitePact,SecretaryHullconcluded, InaccordancewiththearrangementsmadebyAmbassadorNomura,bothJapaneseAm-PresidentRooseveltbegantheconversationbystatingthatduringWorldWarI,whenJapan notunderstandthoughtsofothernations.PresidentRooseveltrealizedthatmanyJapan,as

therethereininUnitedStates,whowerewerewereanxioustore-establishfor­merpeacefulrelationsbetweentwogovernments.However,duringthethethethethepastseveral internationalrelationswereagreedupon.Bywayofofexample,PresidentRooseveltreminded AmbassadorKurusurepliedthatdifferencesinopinionexistingbetweenJapanandthethe 



the application of those principles. For example, he pointed out, Japan agreed with the United
States that the principle of commercial non-discrimination should be established.315 However,
if it were immediately applied to China, Ambassador Kurusu continued, the radical and
sudden change in the economic situation there would be dangerous.

set up various enterprises there. If the Japanese government wished to consider the effects of

lem would be difficult. However, the American Secretary of State did not believe that these

merchants had any valid claims to be considered. Ambassador Kurusu merely answered that

Japan was concerned only with the major economic problems.

The discussion then turned to President Roosevelt's suggestion for bringing about a peace
agreement between Japan and China. President Roosevelt stated that it would be necessary

peace. Since President Roosevelt had had considerable experience in acting as a mediator

vinced that the American President would be able to handle the Japanese-Chinese situation

satisfactorily. However, the Japanese Ambassador explained that he would need instructions
from Tokyo.

Secretary Hull said that another reason for the failure to agree upon a "modus vivendi" was
that the United States could not reconcile itself to Japan's aggressive measures. Furthermore,

French Indo-China in order to check the military powers of other countries in that area. Yet in

spite of these aggressive moves Japan asked for American petroleum exports in the name of

Japanese Prime Minister nor Foreign Minister Togo had taken any concrete action to facilitate
peace negotiations. In fact, Secretary Hull stated, they continued to speak of establishing anewbyof

Bringing the interview to a close President Roosevelt stated that he was leaving the follow-

bassador Nomura commented that President Roosevelt looked very tired. President Roosevelt

sincerely hoped that while he was gone some means of settlement might be found by the Japa-
nese and American officials. 316a

91. Ambassador Kurusu Telephones Mr. Yamamoto
Using the voice code established by Tokyo,317 Ambassador Kurusu telephoned Mr. Yama-

moto, Chief of the American Division of the Japanese Foreign Office, on the evening of Novem-
ber 27, 1941, in order to report on the interview with President Roosevelt. In reply to Mr.
Yamamoto's questions regarding the negotiations Ambassador Kurusu stated that little

trend of affairs, however, Mr. Yamamoto urged Ambassador Kurusu not to break off negotia-
tions.

316 Ibid.

316.Ibid.

3"IV,172.
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ordermeansforce.316 
answeredthatUnitedStatesunderstoodfullysituationFarEast.Asfordangerofas).lddeneconomiceconomicchangeininChina,SecretarySecretaryHullHullre­ferredthethethethethe250,000JapaneseresidentswhohadfollowedtheirtroopstotooccupiedChinaand achangingeconomicsystemonthesemerchants,thenSecretaryHulladmittedthetheprob­bothcountriesgivesomeindicationthattheysincerelywishedtotonegotiateforforsucha betweentwoopposingelementsinmanydomesticcrises,AmbassadorNomurawascon-SecretaryHullstated,alliedGermanyTripartitePactandunderunderthetheAnti-CommunismPact.Inaddition,JapanJapanwaswascontinuingsendvastnumbersoftroopstototo peace.Ashehadpointedoutinformerconversations,SecretaryHullcontinued,neitherthe ingafternoonforarest;however,hopedtomeetwithbothbassadorNomuraNomuraandandAmbassadorAmbassadorKurusuwhenhehereturnedthefollowingWednesday.

Am-Am-progresshadbeenmade..Althoughonetimeseemedasthoughsomeagreementcouldbereached,atatpresentititobviousthatacrisiswaswasimminent.Inspiteoftheunfavorable IV,207. 315



Ambassador Kurusu agreed to continue the conversations though Mr. Yamamoto indicated
that Japan was preparing for an imminent crisis. According to Mr. Kurusu the Japanese

Armywasveryimpatientatthistime.Mr.YamamotosaidthattheJapanesegovernment

could not make any further concessions. After emphasizing the fact that Japanese aggression
in French Indo-China was largely responsible for the lack of progress in Japanese-American
negotiations, Mr. Kurusu terminated the telephone conversation. 31892.ChiefofNavalOperationsIssuesWarWarning

Although no formal announcement had been made, it seemed apparent that peace nego-
tiations between Japan and the United States were at an end. In anticipation of Japanese

aggressioninthePacific,onNovember27,1941,theChiefofNavalOperationssenttheCom-mander-in-ChiefoftheAsaiticFleetandtheCommander-in-ChiefofthePacificFleetawar

warning. It announced that negotiations with Japan had ceased, and an aggressive move by
Japanwasexpectedwithinthenextfewdays.FromthenumberandequipmentofJapanesetroopsandnavaltaskforcestherewereindicationsofanamphibiousexpeditionagainstthe

Philippines, Thailand, the Kra Peninsular or possibly Borneo. Appropriate defensive prepa-
rationsinconformitywithWPL/46weretobetakenimmediately.TheWarDepartmentwassendingasimilarwarwarningtoitsfieldunits,andtheBritishweretobeinformed.TheCon-tinentalDistrictsofGuamandSamoawereparticularlywarnedagainstsabotage.319

OtherwarningswerereceivedofthemovementsofJapanesewarshipsandloadedtrans-portstotheSouthPacific.32OAshiftinthecommunicationzonesoftheCommander-in-ChiefoftheSecondFleetimpliedthatthisfleetwasscheduledforsouthernoperations.321
93. Tokyo Notifies Embassies of Rupture in Japanese-American Negotiations

OnNovember28,1941,TokyonotifiedJapaneseembassiesthroughouttheworldthatrela-

tions with the United States and Great Britain would become extremely critical within the

next few days, since the counter proposal presented to Ambassador Nomura on November 27,

1941,bySecretaryHulldidnotmeettheapprovaloftheJapanesegovernment,andfurtherpeacenegotiationsweretobebrokenoff.322DoDcomment:ThismessagewasnottranslateduntilDecember9,1941.
OnthesamedaytheJapaneseForeignMinister,whilecomplimentingAmbassadorNo-

mura and Kurusu for having exterted every effort towards peace, nevertheless informed the

twomenthatnoagreementcouldbereachedinviewofthehumiliatingcounterproposal

presented to them by the United States. Although the negotiations were at an end, Japan did
not wish to give American representatives this impression. In future conversations Ambassa-
dorsNomuraandKurusuweretostatethattheywereawaitinginstructionsfromtheJapanesegovernment.Atthesametime,however,thetworepresentativesinexpressingtheirownper-sonalopinionsweretomakeitcleartotheStateDepartmentthatJapanhadmademany

concessions for the sake of peace in the Pacific, while the United States by its unbendingattitudemadetherealizationofthispeaceanimpossibility.32394.AmbassadorNomuraUrgesOpenBreakinDiplomaticRelations
Replying to Tokyo's message on November 28, 1941, Ambassador Nomura expressed his

disapprovalofpretendingthatnegotiationswerestillpossiblewhileinactualityJapancon-

31aIV, 209.

319IV,210.32OIV,211.321IV,212.322IV,213.

323IV, 214.
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sidered them at an end. Instead Ambassador Nomura suggested, as he had done once before,

Embassy in Tokyo or by a general declaration to the world at large. If such an open declaration

ducted, Ambassador Nomura feared that Japan would be held responsible for disrupting the

American papers which stated that the United States had submitted a peace proposal to Japan
and that if Japan refused to accept it, the United States could not be held responsible for any
resulting war. 324

95. United States Forces Await Japanese Attack

the Pacific it desired that the first overt act of aggression be taken by Japanese forces.

such reconnaissance and other measures as were possible without alarming the civilian popu-
lation or disclosing their intent. Hostilities with Japan were possible at any moment, but
American forces were to refrain from taking any offensive action though they were not to jeop-

and to the Panama Naval Coastal Frontier regarding the defensive action to be taken once

Japan commenced hostilities. 325

naissance flights on November 30, 1941, and cover the area from Manila to Camranh Bay.

British air forces would search for the Japanese overseas expedition, reported ready to attack

were moving into position directly opposite the Indo-Chinese isthmus, at a point somewhere
near Singora.

The Chief of Naval Operations warned naval air forces not to fire upon Japanese units unlesswas
32'IV, 215

""IV, 216.

32SIV, 217.
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1941thatnegotiationsbeirrevocablyconcludedeitherbyanannouncementtothetheAmerican notmadeandifJapanbeganitsscheduledoperationswhilenegotiationswerewerebeingcon-peaceofthePacific.ToprovehispointAmbassadorNomurareferredtoarticlesappearingin AlthoughtheUnitedStateswasconvincedthatJapanwouldmakeanattacksomewherein OnNovember29,ChiefofNavalOperationsinformedhisPacificcommandsthatArmyhadissuedinstructionsthethetheCommanderWesternDefenseCommandtotoundertake ardizetheirowndefenses.InstructionshadalreadybeensentoutNinthCorpsAreaconcerningsubversiveactsUnitedStates,andtotoforcesininthethetheFarEastsubmarinearea InorderprotectAmericaninterestsinthePhilippines,Navyplanesweretotobeginrecon­Indo-Chineseisthmus,inanarcfromTedtaBahru.AtthethesametimeBritish

groundtroops inself-defense.Carefulreconnaissancewastobecarriedout,however,andifaJapaneseex-
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peditionsightedapproachingThailand,GeneralMacArthurwastobenotified.326 



(December 1, 1941- December 7,1941)

Final Phase96.
Japanese move in the Pacific. Japanese representatives in Mexico City advised their govern-
ment on December 1, 1941, that the southward advance of the Japanese army and Prime
Minister Tojo's speech were largely responsible for awakening the American public to Japan'sin

In spite of the fact that November 29, 1941, the deadline set by Foreign Minister Togo, had
passed Japan did not desire to sever diplomatic relations. In order to allay American suspi-

President Roosevelt had returned to Washington because of Prime Minister Tojo's speech, or
because of the critical Far Eastern situation.328

97. Ambassador Nomura Reports Unfavorable Reaction to Tojo's Speech
Answering Tokyo's message on December 1, 1941, Ambassador Nomura reported that Ameri-

can governmental circles believed that Prime Minister Tojo's speech indicated Japan's refusal
to accept the United States' proposals of November 6, 1941. Although a United Press dispatch

Ambassador Nomura stated that the report had an ominous tone in the light of the comments
made by the Japanese Prime Minister. American newspapers were accusing Japan of stalling
for time until developments in Europe provided it with an opportune moment for carrying
out the already planned invasion of Thailand. 329

98. Hull-Nomura Conversation (December 1, 1941)

a. State Department's Repore30

In compliance with Tokyo's instructions, Ambassador Nomura and Mr. Kurusu called onon1,to
speech of Prime Minister Tojo.331

327Chapter title taken from the division arrangement of the State Department documents-Papers Relating totlu!ofthein
Washington, 1943, Volume 11,378. Hereafter referred to as S.D., II.

3274m, 218.

328IV,219.

32"IV, 220. ofaby
331 Ibid.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTA-HULL-NOMURACONVERSATIONSTokyoInvestigatesPresidentRoosevelt'sSuddenReturntoWashington327
WhenPresidentRooseveltreturnedtoWashingtonunexpectedlyfromaweekendvacationinWarmSprings,Georgia,TokyowasinformedthattheUnitedStateswasanticipatinga realaimsintheFarEast.Asaresult,recentsurveysshowedthatpoliticalandeconomiccirclesWashingtonandNewYorkanticipatedwarwithJapan.327.

cionsregardingJapan'sfutureactions,Japaneserepresentativeswereorderedtoadvisenews­papersthatnegotiationsbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStateswouldcontinueinspiteofwidedifferencesofopinion.Inthemeantime,AmbassadorNomurawastodeterminewhether fromTokyostatedthatJapandesiredtocontinuenegotiationsforatleasttwomoreweeks, 

SecretaryHullDecember1941,inquireconcerningthereasonforPresidentRoosevelt's
suddenreturntoWashington.SecretaryHullrepliedthattheprincipalfactorwastherecent ForeignRelationsUnitedStates-Japan,1931-1941twovolumes,U.S.GovernmentPrintingOffice,33""MemorandumConversation"-mitialedJosephW.Ballantine-December1,1941,S.D.,II,772-777. 



Manchuokuoan declaration332 was sent to Washington by Ambassador Grew on December 1,

stating that achieving the collaboration of Japan, China and Manchuokuo was one of the

order that they themselves might exploit the peoples of East Asia and thereby satisfy their

Prime Minister Tojo concluded.333

After stating that the Japanese Prime Minister should have been deterred from making such
a speech at a time when Japanese and American representatives were endeavoring to re-estab-
lish good relations, Secretary Hull then asked Ambassador Nomura about the general trend
in the world situation, especially about the Japanese reaction to the situation in Libya and

ing between the United States and Japan.

Turning the conversation to Prime Minister Tojq's speech, Ambassador Nomura and Mr.

it was quite possible that Prime Minister Tojo had been misquoted, since the Japanese news
service did not always translate statements correctly into English.

Emphasizing the warlike attitude of both Japanese statesmen and the Japanese people
throughout the nine months of peace conversations conducted between Ambassador Nomura
and himself, Secretary Hull said that the situation had now reached a critical point. Secretary

Minister's statements. Within that time the Japanese government would also reply to the
United States' document of November 26, 1941. However, Mr. Kurusu stated that the Japa-
nese government had not as yet discovered the reason for the position taken by America in theof26the
given full consideration to the points of view expressed by both sides during the conversation.

effort to show Japan's extreme desire to promote a peaceful settlement, Mr. Kurusu said that

Japan would offer to withdraw its troops from southern French Indo-China still held.

Replying that the Hitler-like methods used by the Japanese in China and in other sections

States refused to yield to the principles of force advocated by the Japanese militarists. Not-thisits
sidized government at Nanking.intoofD,

AsummationofPrimeMinisterTojo'sspeechcommemoratingtheJapanese-Chinese­butdidnotarriveuntilDecember5,1941.Therefore,atthetimeofhisconversationwithAmbassadorNomuraandMr.Kurusu,SecretaryHullwasrelyingonthereportoftheAsso­ciatedPress.IntheextractmadebyAmbassadorGrewPrimeMinisterTojowasquotedas greatesttasksofthepresentcentury.However,PrimeMinisterTojosaid,therewerestillmanycountrieswhichdesiretoobstructtheconstructionofaco-prosperitysphereinEastAsiain owngreedofpossessi~n.BecauseofthedesireofGreatBritainandtheUnitedStatestofishinthetroubledwatersofEastAsia,PrimeMinisterTojosaidGeneralissimoChiangKai-shekcontinuedtoexpendable-bodiedmeninfutileresistanceagainstJapan."Forthehonorandprideofmankind,wemustpurgethissortofpracticefromEastAsiawithavengeance", Russia.334AmbassadorNomurarepliedthathewasprimarilyinterestedinthesituationexist-KurusuinsistedthattheUnitedStateshadtakenhisviewstooseriously.SecretaryHullpointedoutthatthefactthatitwasbroadcastmadeitmoreeffective.Mr.Kurusustatedthat HullremindedAmbassadorNomuraofformerForeignMinisterMatsuoka'sblusteringtalksonthevalueoftheTripartiteAllianceandoftheJapanesemoveintoFrenchIndo-China,evenwhileAmbassadorNomuranegotiatedforapeacefulagreementinWashington.ExpressingsurpriseattheUnitedStates'reactiontoPrimeMinisterTojo'sspeech,Mr.KurususaidthatwithinafewdaysSecretaryHullwouldbegiventhecorrecttranslationoftheJapanesePrime

documentNovembersinceproposalssubmittedbyJapanonNovember20,1941had
TheproposaloftheUnitedStatesfailedtotakecognizanceofconditionsintheFarEast.Inan ofthePacificcontinuedtoobstructpeacearrangements,SecretaryHullsaidthattheUnited withstandingthebellicosestatementsemanatingfromJapan,SecretaryHullsaid,hisgovern­ 332BydeclarationJapanrecognizedownimperialgovernmentinManchuokuoandtheJapanese-sub­33"'TheAmbassadorJapan(Grew)theSecretaryState-December1,1941",S.D.D,148-149."'S.D.772-777.
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Ambassador Nomura expressed the opinion that his country's idea of a co-prosperity sphere
in the Far East paralled Pan-Americanism in the western hemisphere.334a

Motivated purely by a desire for self-defense similar to that motivating Britain's actions in
Syria, Ambassador Nomura explained, Japan had been forced to obtain access to certain nec-

gardless of their actual location, constituted a menace to the entire South Pacific and forced
the United States and its allies to maintain large numbers of troops in East Asia. In this way

fering under that type of warfare.

it ended its aggressive policies, Secretary Hull said that he would be subject to severe criticism
for his policy of patience if he even attempted to advocate oil shipments to Japan while Japa-

sider the release of oil for Japanese civilian purposes.

than it could cease aid to Great Britain. With the concentration of Japanese troops in French

Indo-China becoming more obvious and with Japanese statesmen promising to drive the whitemenoutof
the conversations of the past several months, he could not understand why the latest proposals
of the United States government should emphasize the divergence of view. Expressing grave
doubt that any peaceful agreement could be accomplished as long as Japanese militarists
continued to preach aggression, Secretary Hull observed that there had been various contrac-
dictions between Japanese stated policies and Japanese action. Mr. Kurusu continued to

directly opposed to the purpose of the informal conversations, Secretary Hull said that to clear

ber 26, 1941. 334b

trol the Japanese militarists, Secretary Hull pointed out that the Japanese slogans of "con-
trolling influence", "new order in East Asia" and "co-prosperity sphere" indicated that Japan

claimed any desire on the part of Japan for war, but added that the Japanese people believed

Furthermore, Ambassador Nomura said, the Japanese people believed they had the alter-

native of surrendering to the United States or fighting.
Promising to communicate all of Secretary Hull's statements to his government with a view

Nomura brought the conversation to a close. 334c

b. Ambassador Nomura's Report
There is no Japanese message available relating to this conversation.

3340 Ibid.
3'" Ibid.
334'Ibid.
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EastAsia,SecretaryHullsaidthathisgovernmentcouldnotremaininactive. 

mentstillhopedforstabilityinthePacific.DenyingthatJapan'saimwasconquestbyforce, essarymaterials.SecretaryHullrepliedthattheJapanesetroopsinFrenchIndo-China,re­activelyaidingHitler.AmbassadorNomuracommentedactualwarfarecouldbeconductedthroughtheagencyofeconomicrestrictionsandthatthatJapanJapanwaswasnowsuf-AssertingthattheUnitedStateswouldgiveJapanasufficientamountofrawmaterialsif nesemilitaryleaderscontinuedblusterandmakeblood-curdlingthreats.OnNovember22,1941,SecretaryHullremindedAmbassadorNomura,theUnitedStatespromisedtotocon-Furthermore,wasanxioushelpJapansettleaffair,butuntilsuchnegotiationswereunderwaythethetheUnitedUnitedStatesStatescouldnotceaseaidtotoChinaChinaanymore SinceMr.Kurusubelievedthatthetwosideshadbeennearagreementmanytimesduring insisttheWashingtonConference

treatieshadonlyservedenableChinaflauntacertainadvantageoverJapan.ReferringtototohispreviousstatementthatthatJapaneseactionswere upconfusionresultingfromcontradictionsUnitedStateshadembodiedallitsfundamentalprinciplesindocumenthandedtothethethetheJapaneseJapanesegovernmentonNovem-AlthoughMr.KurusuendeavoredtoconvinceSecretaryHullthatGen."'."!'T'ojocouldcon-wasfollowingHitler'sprogramofconquest.BothMr.KurusuandAmbassadorNomuradis-UnitedStateswaspromotingthetheSino-JapaneseWarinanendeavortostrangleJapan. tooffsettingthedangeroussituationwhichSecretaryHullfeltwasimminent,Ambassador 



99. Tokyo Prepares for Results of Diplomatic Break
Although the pretense of maintaining negotiations between Japan and the United States

the following morning between 7:00 and 7:30 a.m.335

Tokyo also cabled Ambassador Kurusu and Mr. Yuki eight thousand dollars each for travel-
ing expenses, which would have to be cleared through the State Department.336100.Its
Hong Kong. Singapore and Manila had been ordered to destroy their code machines. The code
machine from Batavia had already been returned to Japan.

Apparently revising former orders, however, the Japanese Embassy in the United States was

Ambassador Nomura to destroy all codes except one copy of the codes being used in conjunc-touseafewon
Japanese diplomatic and consular posts at Hong Kong, Singapore, Batavia, Manila, Washing-
ton and London had been ordered to destroy most of their codes at once and to burn secret
documents.3400

101. Japanese-American Conversation (December 2,1941)

a. State Department's Repore41On2,
Ballantine and Mr. Schmidt in order to explain the newspaper reports of the Tojo speech which

was supposed to have taken place on November 30, 1941.342 Mr. Terasaki handed Mr. Ballan-
tine and Mr. Schmidt a statement declaring that the speech of Prime Minister Hidaki Tojo,

on November 30, 1941343 in commemoration of the treaty concerning the basic relations between
Japan and China.344 This manuscript, at the time of its publication in the newspapers, had
been unapproved by either the Japanese Prime Minister or other government officials, and in
addition, Prime Minister Tojo did not make this apeech on November 30, 1941, as scheduled.

33"IV,222.
33.IV,221.
33'IV, 223.
33sIV,225.
33°IV,226.
34°IV,227.
3.oaIV,224.3.'ofa
3.2 Ibid. byof

on December 2, 1941", S.D. II, 778.
3.. Treaty signed with President Wang-Ching-wei at Nanking, November 30,1940, S.D. II, 117-122.
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wasbeingcontinued,Tokyoseemedtobepreparingfortheeventualannouncementthatdiplo­maticrelationshadceasedandfortheinevitableresultsofsuchanannouncement.OnDe­cember1,1941,aJapanesebroadcastannouncedthatanimportantdisclosurewouldbemade JapanSafeguardsCodeandCipherSystems
OnDecember1,1941JapaninformedAmbassadorNomurathatitsfourofficesinLondon, toretainitsmachinesandmachinecodes.337Onthefollowingday,however,Tokyoordered tionwiththemachine.Whenthiswascompletedtheword"haruna"wastobewiredtoTokyo.Furthermore,allcodesbroughtbytelegraphiccourier,Kosaka,weretobeburned.Japanese officialsweretheirowndiscretionaboutdisposingofothersecretdocuments.338

Asafurthersafeguard,allJapaneseserviceradiocallsforunitsafloatwerechangedat0000onDecember1,1941.339AcompletechangeinanimportantJapaneseciphersystembecameeffectivedayslaterDecember4,1941.340
OnDecember3,1941theChiefofNavalOperationsnotifiedhisPacificcommandersthat December1941Mr.Terasaki,FirstSecretaryoftheJapaneseEmbassy,calledonMr. 

originallydraftedbythestaffoftheEastAsiaRestorationLeague,wastohavebeendelivered 

"MemorandumConversation"-InitialiedbyMaxW.Schmidt-December2,1941,S.D.11,777,778.3.3"StatementHandedtheFirstSecretarytheJapaneseEmbassy(Terasaki)toMr.JosephW.Ballantine 



Furthermore, this Japanese explanatory statement pointed out that "for the honor and pride

translation. The correct translation should read "for the honor and price of mankind, this sort

of practice must be removed.,,345
Immediately upon noticing press reaction to Prime Minister Tojo's scheduled speech, Mr.

Terasaki said, his government had wired this explanation. In an off-the-record remark, Mr.
Terasaki informed Mr. Schmidt that Mr. Yamamoto, Chief of the American Bureau of the

in a telephone conversation, reported its unfavorable effects upon Japanese-American relations.

speech to be made public.346

b. Japanese Embassy Report
There is no Japanese message available indicating that Mr. Terasaki reported this conver-

sation to Tokyo. .

102. WeUes-Nomura Conversation (December 2, 1941)

a. State Department's Repore47

Welles, at the request of President Roosevelt, delivered a statement to Ambassador Nomura
and Mr. Kurusu. President Roosevelt's statement, which Mr. Welles then read, referred to

reports of continued Japanese troop movements to southern Indo-China and pointed out that
by the terms of the treaty between Japan and the Vichy government, the Japanese forces per-
mitted to be stationed in Indo-China were considerably less than the number already there.

Since such a large concentration of troops could not possibly be necessary for policing that
region, the United States interpreted the move as contemplated aggression against the Philip-

sion, in addition to the acts already undertaken against China, only served to widen the breach
in Japanese-American relations. Since Japan's policy might be in conformity with the con-
stant and steady encroachment upon the territories and rights of free and independent peoples

was intended. Furthermore, both Japanese representatives insisted that the lack of adequate

Indo-China against neighboring territories almost impossible. Mr. Kurusu then asked theof
In view of the strengthening of armaments and military dispositions by other countries,

Ambassador Nomura said that it was only natural that Japan should take some defensive
measures. Insisting that the Japanese people had been severely affected by the economic

wise statesmanship by both sides. Mr. Welles replied that the United States' proposals for
for settlement would ensure Japan of peace and would guarantee satisfaction of its economic

345S.D. II, 778.

'4"S.D. II, 777-778.347ofaby
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ofmankind,wemustpurgethissortofpracticefromEastAsiawithavengeance"wasamis-JapaneseForeignOffice,hadnotevenknownwhatspeechwasreferredtowhenMr.Kurusu, Mr.SchmidtthenpromisedtoremindMr.BallantinetoinformtheJapaneserepresentativesexactlyhowtheStateDepartmentdesiredtheJapaneseexplanationofPrimeMinisterTojo's SinceSecretaryHullwasabsentfromtheStateDepartmentonDecember2,1941,Mr. pineIslands,theEastIndies,Burma,MalayaorThailand.Thepossibilityofthisnewaggres­undertakeninEuropebytheGermangovernment,itwasrequestedthattheJapanesegovern­mentmakeaclearstatementofitsintentions.ThoughAmbassadorNomurasaidthathewasnotauthorizedtoindicatehisgovernment'sintentionsatthistime,Mr.KurusuremindedMr.WellesofJapan'soffer,madeonNovem­ber20,1941,totransferallitsforcestonorthernIndo-China,whichindicatedthatnothreat landcommunicationfacilitiesinFrenchIndo-Chinawouldmakeanattackfromsouthern

sourcePresidentRoosevelt'sinformation,butMr.Wellesdeclinedtogiveit. 
weaponsofwarappliedbytheUnitedStates,AmbassadorNomuracalledfortheexerciseof "MemorandumConversation"-InitialedJosephW.Ballantine-December2,1941,S.D.II,778-781.
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needs. Believing himself to be more qualified to speak accurately of the results of the Ameri-

ever, Mr. Welles replied that the four years of warfare waged by Japan upon China which
had eventually squeezed American interests out of Japanese-occupied territories had put the

treaties had had upon China, Mr. Kurusu said that certain points in the American proposals of
November 26, 1941 failed to take into account the actual situation in the Far East and, there-
fore, were difficult for the Japanese government to accept. Ambassador Nomura then pro-

posals. According to Mr. Kurusu, the Japanese government had hoped some settlement could

be worked out on the basis of the American draft of June 21, 1941, and the Japanese draft of25,ofa
had done in its latest proposal.

Mr. Welles then promised to refer to Secre~ary Hull Mr. Kurusu's suggestion that the differ-thebe
b. Ambassador Nomura's Repore49

Since Secretary Hull was not present in Washington on December 2, 1941, AmbassadorMr.thebyto
ments in French Indo-China and requested an explanation of this aggression. Ambassador
Nomura replied that he had received no notification by his government of any further move-inthatheto

Ambassador Nomura pointed out that American economic pressure was having as much

take measures in order to guarantee the well- being of their nation.

posals, submitted on November 26, 1941, offered no basis for a satisfactory agreement. Thus,
in spite of the fact that the Japanese government would carefully study the American pro-
posals, Ambassador Nomura did not feel optimistic regarding the outcome.

The Japanese proposals submitted on September 25, 1941, according to Ambassador No-
mura, represented the greatest concessions Japan could make based on the American pro-
posals submitted on June 21, 1941. Recently the Japanese government had offered to evacuate
its troops from French Indo-China upon the settlement of the Sino-Japanese incident and the
establishment of a just peace in the Far East. Therefore, Ambassador Nomura could nottheforat
also faced with a serious internal situation, and in view of that fact had found it necessary to
clarify its position in its proposals of November 26, 1941.

States desired an immediate successful conclusion of the negotiations; therefore, Ambassador

348Ibid.

349IV, 228.
349albid.
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canfreezingmeasuresuponJapanthanAmbassadorNomura,Mr.KurususaidthatAmerica'seconomicrestrictionshadputtheJapanesepeopleintoanunfavorableframeofmind.How-Americanpeopleinasimilarframeofmind.
RepeatinghispreviousstatementsonthebadeffectwhichtheWashingtonConference misedareplywithinafewdaysfromtheJapanesegovernmentconcerningtheAmericanpro-September1941insteadapproachingtheproblemfromnewangle,astheUnitedStatesencesbetweentwogovernmentsreconciledonthebasisofthosetwodocuments.348 

NomuraandAmbassadorKurusuconferredinsteadwithUnderSecretaryofStateSumnerWelles.WellesbeganconversationreferringreportsofnewJapanesetroopmove­mentsarea.However,promisedaskforinformationfromhishomegovernment.
effectuponJapanasJapanesetroopswerehavingonotherterritories.Whilenotwishingtoarguetheprosandconsofthisquestion,AmbassadorNomuraneverthelessmadeitclearthatunlessthiseconomicpressureweregreatlyreducedtheJapanesepeoplewouldbeforcedto AmbassadorNomurareiteratedthattheJapanesepeopleweresufferingfromthefouryearwarwithChina,349aandinviewofJapan'scriticalinternalsituation,thelatestAmericanpro-

understandneedsubmittingnewproposalsthistime.
UnderSecretaryofStateSumnerWellesrepliedthattheUnitedStatesgovernmentwas FromthetoneoftheinterviewwithSecretaryHullonthepreviousdayandthisconversationwithUnderSecretaryofStateWelles,AmbassadorNomurawasconvincedthattheUnited 



Nomura urged his government to give the latest American proposal every possible considera-

tion and in its reply to leave room for a speedy peaceful settlement.350

103. President Roosevelt Orders Reconnaissance of Forces Around Thailand,

Fleet to form a "Defensive Information Patrol" for the purpose of reporting on Japanese move-

small vessels, each commanded by a U.S. naval officer, manned by Philippine crews, and

the Indo-China Coast between Camranh Bay and Cape St. Jacques, and off Pointe de Camau.atseabythe
104. U.S. Navy Exchanges Information with British and Dutch

Because of the importance of defending Allied interests in the Far East, on December 3, 1941

information could be relayed through naval observers in Singapore and Batavia by means ofwastotheofaat
105. Japanese Military Attache in Spain Reports on Japanese-American Negotiations353

sador Kurusu and certain Japanese newspapermen had apologized for the phrase appearing

in Premier Tojo's speech concerning the destruction of the Anglo-American hegemony. Fur-

thermore, Japan had completely ignored President Roosevelt's statement that America would

the Japanese navy could be wiped out in no time at all.

Stating that Japan was pursuing a conservative and hesitant course, thereby allowing America
to build up its defenses, the Japanese representative pointed to the recent Anglo-American
agreement providing for the establishment of military bases on the Islands of Christmas,Fijiandandtheto
106. American Officers in Far East Destroy Codes

exception of cryptographic channels necessary for essential communication and certain regis-
tered publications needed for current operations and special intelligence, American naval and
marine offices at Tokyo, Bangkok, Peiping, Tientsin, Shanghai, Guam and Wake were to de-andto

350 Ibid.

351IV, 229.

35'IV, 230. not
353. Ibid.

354IV,232-236.
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performedArmyandNavy.351FleetconsiderplacementDutchliaisonofficerManila.352 
Samoa,urgedJapaneseArmytakemoredecisiveactioninthefuture.353astroytheircodessecretdocumentspreventtheirfallingintoenemyhands.354353IV,231.(ThismessagewastranslateduntilFebruary15,1945.) 

OnDecember2,1941PresidentRooseveltorderedCommander-in-ChiefofthetheAsiatic mentsinWestChinaSeaandthetheGulfSiam.Thisdefensivepatrol,consistingofofthree carryingonlyasmallgunonemachinegun,wastopatrolbetweenHainanandandHue,off TocheckoneffectivenessofreconnaissancemeasurescurrentlyemployedbyAmericanaircraft,surfacevesselsandsubmarines,reportsweretobemaderegardingthetheregularpatrolsChiefNavalOperationsorderedAsiaticFleettoex­changewiththethethetheBritishandDutchCommander-in-ChiefCommander-in-Chiefexceptwhensuchanexchangeofofofinformationinformationconsideredinadvisable.Itwaswassuggestedthatmilitarymilitary secureciphersystems.AtanearlydateinfutureCommander-in-ChiefofthethetheAsiaticTheJapaneseMilitaryAttachebelievedcontinuationconversationsininWashingtonbean,indicationnewhopeforsettlementofofofPacificproblems.AccordingtotothethethetheMadridMadridrepresentativeJapan

wasmakingnumerousconcessions.Forexample,Ambas­probablybeinthewarbynextyear,andofanAmericannavalofficerwhobelievedthatthat TheJapaneseMilitaryAttache'inMadriddidnotapproveofJapan'sconciliatoryattitude. OnDecember4,1941UnitedStatesChiefofNavalOperationsorderedthatwiththethe



107. Hull-Nomura Conversation (December 5,1941)

a. State Department's Repore55
In order to deliver to Secretary Hull the Japanese government's reply to President Roose-

velt's inquiry regarding additional Japanese troops in French Indo-China, Ambassador Nomura
and Mr. Kurusu called at the State Department on December 5,1941.356

In this statement the Japanese government explained that Chinese troops had been show-
ing signs of movement along the northern frontier of west Indo-China, bordering on China, and
as a strictly precautionary measure Japan had reinforced its troops in that area. Consequently,
troops stationed in the southern part of French Indo-China had also to be moved. However,
none of these measures taken by the Japanese government transgressed the stipulations of
the Protocol of Joint Defense between Japan and France.357

After reading this explanation, Secretary Hull said that he understood that the Chinese

Ambassador Nomura replied that the Chinese might attack in Indo-China as a means of pre-a
the defensive in Indo-China, Secretary Hull said that he understood Japan's purpose was to
attack China from Northern Indo-China.

Ambassador Nomura answered that the increased naval and military preparations of the

was that offense is the best defense. Secretary Hull asked if Ambassador Nomura applied this
observation to the defensive measured taken by the United States against Hitler. Declining
to commit himself, Ambassador Nomura merely said that because of Japan's apprehensions
it had submitted its proposals of November 20, 1941. Secretary Hull felt that if Japan anti-
cipated an attack on its forces in French Indo-China by the Chinese this constituted another
reason for withdrawing its troops from that area.

Chinese question, both Ambassador Nomura and Mr. Kurusu stated that the United States
should be willing to discontinue aid to China as soon as peace negotiations between Japan and

answered that Japan's aggression in the Pacific was keeping the forces of the United States and
other countries immobilized in the Pacific area. Ambassador Nomura murmured sotto voce,
"This isn't getting us anywhere."

United States has exhibited its unwillingness to ship oil to Japan for use by the Japanese navy

tude toward continued aid to China. If Secretary Hull explained that the oil exports to Japan
would aid the conclusion of a peaceful agreement, Ambassador Nomura said, the Americanthetohison
and that, because the presence of Japanese troops anywhere in Indo-China threatened the
security of neighboring countries, the United States could not supply Japan with oil for mili-ofaby

".Ibid. bytheto
S.D. II, 784.

"'S.D. II, 781-783.
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weremassingtheirtroopsinYunnanagainsttheJapanesetroopsmassedinIndo-China.ventingJapaneseattackupontheBurmaRoad.35sNothavingheardbeforethatJapanwason 
A-B-C-DpowersintheSouthwestPacificareahadalarmedtheJapanese.Furthermore,Am­bassadorNomuracontinued,JapanrecognizedthatoneoftheforemostAmericanprinciples SincetheJapanesegovernmenthadmadeitplaintoAmericathatitdesiredtosettlethe Chinawereinitiated.SecretaryHullinquiredwhetherJapanwouldstopitsaidtoHitler.ToMr.Kurusu'squestionastothemethodbywhichJapanwasaidingHitlerSecretaryHull AtthispointSecretaryHullremindedAmbassadorNomurathatonNovember22,1941the forPacificoperationsandhealsoremindedAmbassadorNomuraoftheUnitedStates'atti­

peoplewouldacceptactionwithoutquestion.SecretaryHulldidnotagree.ReferringcommentstheJapaneseproposalsofNovember20,1941,SecretaryHull
remindedAmbassadorNomurathattheUnitedStatescouldnotdiscontinueaidtoChina, ""'MemorandumConversation"-InitialedJosephW.Ballantine-December5,1941,S.D.II,781-783.""'StatementHandedJapaneseAmbassador(Nomura)theSecretaryofStateonDecember5,1941", 



tary and naval needs. Ambassador Nomura agreed that the United States' stand on these

pointed out that the attitude of Japanese statesmen and officials in Tokyo did not create an
atmosphere conducive to peace. Attempting to point out that injurious newspaper propaganda

ernment's principles the Japanese complained. Mr. Kurusu said that aspersions had been

answered that he had heard only good reports in regard to the ambassadors. With the usual

apologies for taking up so much of Secretary Hull's time AmbassadorNomura and Mr. Kurusu
left. 368b

b. Ambassador Nomura's Report
There is no Japanese message available which contained Ambassador Nomura's report of

this meeting.

108. Japanese Military Attache Discounts Immediate Possibility of War with America369
Although the United States had directed serious criticism against Japan, Major General

Isoda, the Japanese military attache in Washington believed that these reprimands were
merely intended to coerce Japan into checking its southward advance. Referring to Japanese-
American relations during the invasion of Siam, Major General Isoda said that at that time

on the basis of the existing status quo in the Pacific, so that by proceeding carefully with nego-
tiations the seemingly insurmountable obstacles to peace could be overcome. In view of thisthe
commented on the authenticity of an article which, appearing on December 4, 1941 in the

General Isoda believed that there might be a certain degree of truth in reports of American
preparations for war, the Japanese military attache wondered whether the war propagandaon
with England and the United States would undoubtedly ensue, though perhaps not imme-

crease economic pressure against Tokyo at first, but if Japan invaded the Netherlands East

35.. Ibid.

35.5 Ibid. not
360 Ibid.

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORFrenchIndo-ChinawerecontrolledbyanyotherpoweritwouldbeamenacetoJapan.368a 
governmentwouldflingcountryheadlongintowarwithJapan.AmbassadorNomuraandSecretaryHullthatday.36O.5IIV,237.(ThisinformationwasmadeavailableuntilMay23,1945.) 

questionswasclear.Atthesametime,however,AmbassadorNomurapointedoutthatif AmbassadorNomurathensaidthatifsomeagreementreachedontemporarymeasurestheexplorationoffundamentalsolutionscouldcouldbebecontinued.ButSecretaryHull beenprevalenttheUnitedStateswellasasJapan,Mr.Kurusucitednewspaperinter­viewswithHull.SecretarySecretaryHullrepliedthatJapaneseofficialshadhadcontinuouslyproclaimedaggressiveslogans;yetwheneverhesaidasinglewordininexplanationofhisgov­castuponhimselfandAmbassadorNomurabyAmericannewspapermen,butSecretaryHull Americanpublicaswholeadvocatedaatemporaryagreementbetweenthethetwocountries feeling,itseemedimprobabletoMajorGeneralIsodathatatpresenttimethetheUnitedStates MajorGeneralIsodapointedoutthatneitherPresidentRooseveltnorSecretaryHullhad WashingtonTimesHerald,spokeaproposed

increaseinArmyandNavy10,000,000men,withanexpeditionaryforceofofof5,000,000mentobesentagainstthetheAxis.WhileMajor notaschemeofauthoritiestoscareJapan.ThetheorythatUnitedUnitedStatesStatesactuallyactuallydesiredpeacewaswasfurthercircumstantiatedbythetheconferencebetweenShouldtheJapaneseArmyinvadeSiam,however,MajorGeneralIsodacontinued,awar diately.HebelievedthatthetwoalliednationswouldonlycloseJapaneseconsulatesandin-IndiesandattackedSingapore,Americanretaliatorymeasureswouldbecomemoresevere.361 .61IV238.97 



109. Japan Plans to Consider Holland a Semi-belligerent Country When at War with the United
States

Once a war was declared on Britain and the United States Japan intended to treat Holland
as a semi-belligerent country, exercise strict surveillance over Dutch consulates, and prohibit
all communication between Holland and the allied nations. In fact, Tokyo intended to put

and the United States.362

110. Japan to Send Formal Reply to American Proposals

would submit a reply to the United States' proposal of November 26, 1941 on the following day.the
ation to the American State Department. The existence of this message was to be kept strictly

government, preferably to Secretary Hull. 363

message on December 7, 1941, General Marshall sent a warning dispatch on December 7,

1941 at 12:17 p.m., Washington time (06:47 a.m., Honolulu time), which did not reach Pearl

Harbor until 07:33 a.m. (Honolulu time), twenty-two minutes before the attack.363a This mes-

Japanese had launched their attack.Theofistoareat
are under orders to destroy their code machine immediately.thesetdo
ities of this communication."

Ill. Japan Seeks Information on Roosevelt Message
Since Associated Press and United Press reports disclosed that President Roosevelt had sent

1941 to investigate the matter.364112.to
In his message to Emperor Hirohito of Japan President Roosevelt said that since a President

of the United States had extended an offer of friendship to Japan almost a century ago366a long
period of unbroken friendship had ensued under which both peoples had prospered substan-
tially. Since all humanity had benefited from the peace formerly existing between Japan and

contained tragic possibilities, President Roosevelt felt it necessary to address Emperor Hiro-
hito at this time.

Advocating peace for all nations, the United States had hoped for a successful conclusion to

363IV, 240-241.onluluTheasattoofsenttotoittointheby
Roosevelt had sent this message to Emperor Hirohito.366"Ato

intoeffectpracticallythesamemeasuresagainstHollandaswouldbetakenagainstBritain OnDecember6,1941theJapanesegovernmentnotifieditsEmbassyinWashingtonthatitAfterdecodingfour-partmessage,AmbassadorNomurawastoreorganizeitbeforepresent-
secretuntil1:00p.m.onDecember7,1941,whenitwastobesubmittedtotheUnitedStates AsaresultoflearningthetimeestablishedbytheJapaneseforthedeliveryofanimportant sagewasnotdeliveredtoGeneralShortuntiltheafternoonofDecember7,1941,longafterthe dispatchGeneralMarshallbelievedhavereadasfollows:"Japanesepresentingonep.m.EasternStandardTimetodaywhatamountstoanultimatum;alsothey"Justwhatsignificancehourmayhavewenotknowbutbeonalertaccordingly.InformNavalauthor-

theEmperorofJapanaspecialmessage,TokyoaskedAmbassadorNomuraonDecember6, PresidentRoosevelt'sMessageEmperorHirohito(December6,1941)365 
theUnitedStates,andinviewofthefactthatthedevelopmentsoccurringinthePacificarea thepresentinformalconversationsandforaterminationofthepresentwarbetweenJapan362IV,239. 363aNavyReportPearlHarbor,SectionXVIIT,placesthetimeoftheattackonPearlHarborat7:55a.m.(Hono­time.)StateDepartmentreportstheattackbeginning7:50a.m.(Honolulutime),S.D.,IT,786.

364IV,242.366"PresidentRooseveltEmperorHirohitoJapan,December6,1941",S.D.IT,784-786.ThismessagewasAmbassadorGrewwithinstructionscommunicatetheJapaneseEmperoratthe.earliestpossiblemomentmannerdeemedmostappropriateAmbassadorGrew.ThepresswasinformedthatPresidentLetterfromPresidentFillmoretheJapaneseEmperor,May10,1851".
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and China, in order that the diverse peoples of the Pacific could live without threat of invasion
and carryon their commerce without fear of discrimination. President Roosevelt felt certain

that Emperor Hirohito agreed that, in order to attain these high objectives, any form of mili-
tary threat must be eliminated from the principles of both countries.ayearor
permitted Japanese military forces to enter the southern part of French Indo-China. The con-
tinuation of the mobilization of Japanese military, naval and air forces in French Indo-China
created a reasonable doubt on the part of neighboring nations that these troops would be used
merely for defensive purposes. In fact, with the concentration of Japanese forces in the south-
east and southwest corners of the peninsula, the peoples of the East Indies, Malaya and Thai-
land feared invasion. Certain that Emperor Hirohito could appreciate this fear and understand
why the United States looked askance at the establishment of such powerful military, naval
and air bases, President Roosevelt stated that such a situation could, not continue and that
none of the peoples of the South Pacific could sit either indefinitely or permanently on a keg
of dynamite.

Assuring Japan that French Indo-China was not in danger of invasion, President Roosevelt

amity and to prevent further death and destruction in the world, President Roosevelt asked
that Emperor Hirohito give thought to this emergency. 367

Grew a copy of the Japanese explanation of the troop movement in French Indo-China. 367.

113. Hull-Nomura Conversation (December 7,1941)

a. State Department's Report368

Ambassador Nomura had asked to see Secretary Hull at 1:00 p.m. on December 7, 1941, but

by Secretary Hull at 2:20 p.m. Apologizing for the delay in delivering the document to Secre-

tion.369

In the memorandum which Ambassador Nomura handed to Secretary Hull the govern-

ment of ,Japan stated that it had continued negotiations with the United States since last
April with the genuine hope of adjusting and advancing Japanese-American relations and
stabilizing the situation in the Pacific area. After examining the claims of the United States

its whole policy, the Japanese government had sought the promotion of peace in an endeavor

Japanese government had striven to restore peace and prevent the extension of the war. With

367S.D. II, 784-786.

367."President Roosevelt to the Secretary of State, December 6, 1941", S.D. II, 784.36"ofaby
36aThe Japanese attack on Pearl Harbor, Hawaii, took place on December 7, 1941, at 1:20 p.m. Washington time,7:508,was8,atIV,
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PresidentRooseveltthenreferredtoJapan'sagreementwithVichyFranceconcludedover ago,underwhich5,0006,000JapanesetroopswerestationedinnorthernFrenchIndo-

ChinaasadefensivemeasureagainsttheChineseforcesfurthernorth.LaterVichyFrance askedthatJapanensurepeacebywithdrawingallitsforcesfromthatterritory.Forthesakeofthetwocountriesthemselvesandhumanityinneighboringterritories,torestoretraditional OnthefollovtringdayPresidentRooseveltinstructedSecretaryHulltosendAmbassador heandMr.KurusudidnotarriveattheStateDepartmentuntil2:05p.m.Theywerereceived taryHull,AmbassadorNomurastatedthathehadbeeninstructedbyhisgovernmenttode­liveritat1:00p.m.HewasnotabletoexplaintoSecretaryHullthereasonsforthisinstruc­governmentandthemeasureswhichitandGreatBritainhadtakenagainstJapanduringthepasteightmonths,theJapanesegovernmenthaddecidedtodeclareitsviews.Asabasisfor toallowallnationstofindtheirproperplaceintheworld.EvenduringthewarwithChinathe 

"MemorandumConversation"-InitialedJosephW.Ballantine-December7,1941,S.D.II,786-787.a.m.,Honolulutime,December3:20a.m.,Tokyotime.OnDecember7,1941,at4:00p.m.,Washingtontime,whichDecember6:00a.m.,Tokyotime,theJapaneseImperialHeadquartersannouncedthatwarhadbegundawn.S.D.11,786-787.See241.
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that end in mind Japan concluded the Tripartite Pact with Germany and Italy in September,

obstructed Japan's endeavors toward the stabilization of East Asia. Furthermore, both the
United States and Great Britain wilfully misinterpreted Japan's protocol with France and in-
fluenced the Netherlands government to such an extent that freezing orders against Japan

ence of the Japanese Empire had been constantly threatened by the military preparations of

hostile attitude exhibited by Great Britain and the United States, in August, 1941, the Japa-

basis that the meeting should take place only after an agreement had been reached on funda-
mental and essential questions. Still anxious to facilitate a speedy settlement, the Japanese
government on September 25, 1941, submitted proposals which took into consideration both
the United States and the Japanese points of view. Since no agreement resulted, the present

conciliation.37O With a view to averting the almost imminent crisis, on November 20, 1941,

the Japanese government simplified previous proposals. 371 Furthermore, even though the

Japanese government was willing to have President Roosevelt act as "an introducer" of peace

shek.372

submitted proposals on November 26, 1941. From the very beginning of the present negoti-

government had exhibited a most conciliatory attitude, but, on the other hand, the United
States refused to yield an inch on its impractical principles. Therefore, the Japanese government
desired to answer the points brought up by the United States' proposals on November 26, 1941.

Japan, they all presented only a Utopian ideal, ignoring completely the actual conditions of
the world which would prevent their immediate adoption. Japan felt that the idea of a multi-

Union, the Netherlands and Thailand was the old concept of collective security and incapable
of solving the problems of East Asia. Since the United States' proposals stipulated that neither
Japan nor the United States could conclude an agreement with any third power which would
conflict with the fundamental establishment of peace throughout the Pacific area, Japan
presumed that such a provision constituted an attempt to restrain the carrying out of Japanese
obligations under the Tripartite Pact should the United States participate in the European
War. While America claimed to be seeking the stabilization of the situation in the Pacific,

preparing itself for an attack against Germany and Italy. 372a

In conjunction with other nations the United States government was conducting an eco-
nomic warfare far more destructive and inhumane than military pressure. In fact, the United
States government actually desired to strengthen its domination of China and all the other

37."Memorandum Handed by the Japanese Ambassador (Nomura) to the Secretary of State at 2:20 p.m. on7,II,
371For draft of proposals see S.D. II, 755-756.

""'S.D. II, 787-792.

372.Ibid.
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1940.ByassistingChungkingregime,however,boththetheUnitedStatesandGreatBritain frustrateditsaspirationsforacommoncooperativeeconomyintheseregions.Theveryexist-thesecountries,whichhadgraduallyperfectedanencirclementJapan.Yet,inspiteofofthe nesePrimeMinisterhadsoughtameetingwithPresidentRooseveltandwasrefusedonthe JapaneseCabinetmadeanotherattemptbuttheUnitedStatesfailedtodisplayanydegreeof betweenJapanChina,AmericangovernmentwithdrewitsoffermediateinthetheSino-JapanesewarandandrefusedagreediscontinueaidtotototoGeneralissimoChiangKai-Finally,completelyignoringclaimsofJapanesegovernment,thethetheUnitedStates ations,evenwithregardtoChinaquestion,principlenon-discriminationininter­nationalcommerceandwithdrawalofofitstroopsfromFrenchIndo-China,thethethetheJapanese Althoughsomeofprinciplesset,upby

thetheUnitedStatesgovernmentwereagreeableto lateralnon-aggressionpactbetweenJapan,UnitedStates,GreatBritain,China,thetheSoviet actuallyitwasschemingforextensionofthetheEuropeanWarbyaidingGreatBritainand

December1941",S.D.787-792.SeealsoIV,241a. 



areas of East Asia in coalition with Great Britain and other allies. For the past hundred years,
East Asia had been forced to endure the imperialistic exploitation of the Anglo-American

policy, while Japan now determined to overthrow that situation and enable the nations of the
Pacific to enjoy their proper place in the world.

In order to respect the territorial integrity and sovereignty of French Indo-China and to
guarantee equal{ty of trade and commerce in that area, the United States government proposed

Thailand. In the opinion of the Japanese government, not only would this proposal ignore the
rights of the French government but it would extend, in effect, the Nine Power Treaty struc-
ture which was responsible for the present predicament of East Asia.

In regard to America's attitude toward the China affair, the Japanese government pointed
out that America's demands would completely destroy Japan's position as the stabilizing
factor of East Asia. In view of the United States' demands that Japan ignore the existence of

Chungking government, it was clear that the United States desired to obstruct peace between
Japan and China and throughout East Asia. Not only would the United States' proposal of
November 26, 1941, disparage the honor and prestige of the Japanese government but it ignored

that certain clauses of the American proposal, including those regarding commerce, a trade
agreement, removal of freezing restrictions and the stabilization of yen and dollar exchange

posals of November 26,1941 prevented any agreement based on the present negotiations.
Although the Japanese government had honestly desired to adjust its relations with America,

the lack of American cooperation. In view of this attitude, the Japanese government found it

impossible to reach an agreement through any further negotiations. 372b

he had never seen a document crowded with such infamous falsehoods and distortions, nor had

Without making any comment Ambassador Nomura and Mr. Kurusu left.373

b. Ambassador Nomura's Report114.to
Although they had failed to adjust Japanese-Americal relations, Tokyo recognized the fact

that Ambassadors Nomura and Kurusu had made every possible effort towards the re-estab-tothetwohis115.
With diplomatic relations severed, the Japanese Embassy in Washington in accordance

with instructions from Tokyo, proceeded with the destruction of its codes and cipher systems,and
372' Ibid.

37"S.D. II, 786-787.

37'IV,243.

""IV, 244-245.
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anagreementbetweenJapan,theUnitedStates,GreatBritain,theNetherlands,Chinaand theNankinggovernmentinChinaandbecausetheUnitedStatesrefusedtoceaseaidtothe thesacrificesJapanhadmadethroughoutitsfouryearsofwarwithChina.Itwasadmitted wereacceptabletotheJapanesegovernment;but,ontheotherhand,theinsistenceoftheAmericangovernmentand,itwaspresumed,ofotherinterestedcountriestoofferthepro-theestablishmentofpeaceandthecreationofaneworderinEastAsiahadbeenimpededby AfterreadingthisdocumentSecretaryHullrepliedthatinallhisfiftyyearsofpublicservice heimaginedthatanygovernmentwascapableofutteringthem. ThereisnomessageavailablewhichcontainsAmbassadorNomura'sreportofthismeeting. 

TokyoExtendsAppreciationAmbassadorsNomuraandKurusu
lishmentofpeaceinthePacific.Therefore,onDecember7,1941,ForeignMinisterTogoex­tendedambassadorssincereappreciationforwhattheyhadaccomplished.374JapaneseEmbassyDestroysCodesciphermachinemachinecodes.Allsecretdocumentsweretobedestroyedbyfire.375 



116. The Japanese Attack on Pearl Harbor (December 7,1941)

a. Secretary Hull's
In a statement handed to the American press on December 7, 1941, Secretary Hull announced

that even while Japanese representatives discussed the basis of peace with the United States,
Japan's armed forces were assembling for attack upon not only the United States but also
other nations with which the Japanese government was professedly at peace.

to the Japanese Ambassador on November 26, 1941, and the text of the Japanese reply handed

the underlying peace, law, order and justice between all nations, the United States had hoped
to promote and maintain friendship between itself and other nations of the world. However, it

ulent.377

b. President Roosevelt's Message378

Before the United States Congress on December 8, 1941, President Roosevelt declared that

denly and deliberately attacked by naval and air forces ofthe Empire of Japan."
Although the United States, through its conversations with the Japanese government, still

hoped for the maintenance of peace in the Pacific, Japanese air squadrons bombed Oahu even

reply of the Japanese government contained no hint or threat of war or armed attack, although

making false statements about the establishment of peace, Japan was planning its attack

ican ships en route between San Francisco and Honolulu were reported torpedoed. In a sur-
prise offensive extending throughout the Pacific area on December 7, 1941, the Japanese gov-
ernment launched an attack against Malaya, Hongkong, Guam, the Philippine Islands andOntheof8,
this premeditated invasion, the American people, remembering the character of the onslaught

Japan.379117.The
ment of Japan and the Government and the people of the United States and making provisions
to prosecute the same.

the Government and the people of the United States of America: Therefore be it

37."Statement by the Secretary of State-December 7, 1941", S.D. II, 793.
377 Ibid.
378"Message by President Roosevelt to Congress-December 8, 1941".
379 Ibid. bytheofofaof

Statemene76 thatJapanhadmadeatreacherousandunprovokedattackupontheUnitedStates.Hestated Atthistime'SecretaryHullreleasedtheproposalshandedbytheUnitedStatesgovernment toSecretaryHullbyAmbassadorNomuraonDecember7,1941.Bybasingitsactionsupon wasnowapparentthatJapan'sprofessionsofpeacehadbeeninfamouslyfalseandfraud­"Yesterday,December7,1941-adaywhichwillliveininfamy-theUnitedStateswassud­beforeAmbassadorNomuradeliveredtheJapanesereplytotheUnitedStatesproposals.This itstatedthatitseemeduselesstocontinuediplomaticrelations.Whilestallingfortimeby uponHawaii.ThisattackcausedseveredamagetoAmericannavalandmilitaryforces;Amer-

WakeIsland.morningDecember1941,JapaneseforcesattackedMidwayIsland.
AsCommander-in-ChiefoftheArmyandNavy,PresidentRooseveltdirectedthatallmeas­uresbetakenforthedefenseoftheAmericannation.Nomatterhowlongittooktoovercome againstthem,wouldwinthroughtoabsolutevictoryandwouldpreventthissortoftreacheryfromendangeringthemagain."Withconfidenceinourarmedforces-withtheunboundeddeterminationofourpeople-wewillwintheinevitabletriumph-sohelpusGod."PresidentRooseveltconcludedhisstatementbyaskingthatCongressdeclarewaragainst UnitedStatesDeclaresWar(December8,1941)380
JOINTRESOLUTIONDeclaringthatastateofwarexistsbetweentheImperialGovern-WhereastheImperialGovernmentofJapanhascommittedunprovokedactsofwaragainst 38."DeclarationUnitedStatesAmericaStateWarwithJapan-December8,1941".S.D.II,795.
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ment of Japan which has thus been thrust upon the United States is hereby formally declared;
and the President is hereby authorized and directed to employ the entire naval and military
forces of the United States and the resources of the Government to carryon war against the

Imperial Government of Japan; and, to bring the conflict to a successful termination, all of
the resources of the country are hereby pledged by the Congress of the United States.381

.

118.

authorities of this action.382

119. Japan Spreads Anti-allied Propaganda in Allied Countries

and to neutral countries in Europe and South America concerning its reasons for the attack

Japanese government was forced to send its army, navy and air units against American forces
in the South Pacific. Throughout previous negotiations Great Britain and the United States

such a degree of organized economic blockade and military encirclement of Japan that the
Japanese Empire itself was threatened. During this time Japan repeatedly professed its de-

herence to the Tripartite Pact.383 In carrying out its propaganda against the United Statesthe
120. Japanese Attack on Pearl Harbor Surprises Turkish Foreign Minister

From information contained in a message sent to Tokyo on December 13, 1941, from Ankara,

ber 8, 1941, Foreign Minister Saradoguru told the German Consular in that city that Japan
would begin its war with America on December 10, 1941. Therefore, the announcement of theon7,

3a1 Ibid.

3a'IV,246.

3a3IV,247-250.

3a'IV, 251. (This message was not translated until January 13, 1945.)

3a'IV,252.
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ResolvedbytheSenateandHouseofRepresentativesoftheUnitedStatesofAmericainCongressassembled.ThatthestateofwarbetweentheUnitedStatesandtheImperialGovern-AmericanForcesBeginUnrestrictedWarfare
TheChiefofNavalOperationsnotifiedhisUnitedStatesforcesonDecember7,1941,thatunrestrictedairandsubmarinewarfarewastobecarriedoutagainstJapan.TheCommander­in-ChiefoftheAsiaticFleetwastoinformtheUnitedStatesArmyandBritishandDutch OnDecember8,1941,theViceChiefoftheGeneralStaffinTokyosentamessagetoBerlin upontheUnitedStatesterritories.BecausetheUnitedStatesrefusedtomakeanycompromiseinitsnegotiationswithJapanandhadinsteadadoptedanextremelytyrannicalattitude,the hadstronglyopposedJapan'snaturalprosecutionoftheChinawar.Thisoppositionreached terminationtocooperateintheestablishmentofanewworldorderprimarilythroughitsad-Japaneserepresentativesinneutralcountriesweretoemphasizetheabovementionedpoints.FromtimetotimeJapaneserepresentativesinBerlin,LaPaz,Lima,MexicoCityandStoc~holmweretosendintelligencereports.Theserepresentativesthemselvesweretorelyfor

generalinformationuponDomeiNewswiresandoverseasbroadcasts.384 
Turkey,itappearedthattheJapaneseattackonPearlHarborhadbeenasurprise.OnDecem­attackDecember1941,wasmostunexpected.385 
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Japanese Intelligence in Diplomatic Messages

(a) Reports from the United States

(b) Reports from Mexico

(c) Reports from Central America

(d) Reports from the Panama Canal

(e) Reports p'om South America

(f) Reports from the Hawaiian Islands

(g) Reports from the Philippine Islands

(h) Reports from Singapore

(i) Reports from Vladivostok and Hsinking

During the period between October 17 and December 6, 1941, Japanese officials in Tokyo

continued to receive, through diplomatic channels, dispatches from the United States, Central

tion to that which was sent from Singapore, Vladivostok and Hsinking, gave important infor-

installations and defenses of every variety.

(a) Reports from the United States

1-21. Consul Sato Reports United States Navy Day Ceremonythattheandthebyattobe
Consul Sato in Seattle on October 28 announced that fifteen Coast Guard vessels had sailedasthethetail,the57,the

the YP89 and the YP90.387

States planes to Alaska might have been an "underhanded American scheme" to force Japantobyaoftoto
to be a certain important person or persons having connections with the United States War
Department, the Japanese dispatch disclosed that six companies of bombers and twentyof

386IV, 253.

366IV,255.
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andSouthAmerica,Panama,Hawaii,andthePhilippineIslands.Thisintelligence,inaddi­mationtotheJapaneseleaderspreparingforwar.ThiswasespeciallytrueofthedetailedreportsfromHonolulu,PanamaandManilaconcerningAmericanshipmovements,fortifications, OnlyfiveJapaneseintelligencereportstransmittedfromagentsintheUnitedStatestoJapanbetweenOctober17andDecember6,1941areatpresentavailable.Theinformation WarspiteMarylandhadenteredBremertononOctober21,1941,wasreportedConsulSatoSeattle.RepairsweremadeonthebridgeoftheWarspite.386
throughtheSeattleharborinsinglefileincommemorationofNavyDay,October27.ThesevesselswerelistedKane,Gilmore,theBrooks,theFox,theBird,theCrow,thePin-EagleBatukei(Kanaspelling),theButternut,theAmber,theYP83,theYP87,

OnNovember7itwasthoughtpossiblethatthedispatchingofalargenumberofUnited compromisemakingshowreadinessgowar.Reportingthesourceofinformationcompaniesfighters,probablyabout150planes,hadbeensentonNovember3,4and5.388 
367IV,254. 



Consul Sato further reported that the Saratoga, the Warspite, the Colorado (which had for-

Bremerton on November 9.389

122. Ambassador Nomura Requests Information Concerning The Warspite

Sato to investigate the progress of repair, and to report the time of the vessel's departure and its
destination. 390

123. Tokyo Outlines the Type ofInformation Needed

port of destination and date of departure of all foreign commercial and warships in the Pacific
Ocean, Indian Ocean and South China Sea.391

124. Consul Identifies Warspite, Colorado and Saratog~ at Bremerton
In a report of December 6, 1941, marked "Urgent Intelligence", Consul Sato of Seattle re-

ported that the Warspite and the Colorado were at anchor in Bremerton on December 5 and
that the Saratoga had sailed on that day. 392

(b) Reports from Mexico

125. Japanese Naval Officials in Mexico Disapprove of Furnishing General Intelligence

nishing general information,393 Ambassador Miura replied that he had discussed this matter

the Naval General Staff. Although at present they were awaiting a reply, he pointed out that

discuss,this matter with the Navy and subsequently wire its'Elecision. 394

intelligence. 395

(c) Reports from Central America

126. Intelligence Dispatches Outline United States Activities in Central America
Intelligence dispatches of military significance which originated in Central America werecanAirhadtoin

Fonseca which faces the territory of Honduras.

struct destroyer, submarine and air bases in the southeastern area of Cocos off Puntarenas

'.>IV, 256.

,>oIV,257. 6or7inedinat

merlybeenidentifiedastheMarylandbytheConsul),andtheCharlestonwereanchoredin AspecialrequesttoSeattlefromAmbassadorNomuraonNovember25directedConsul AcircularfromTokyoonNovember29directedthatinDecemberfullreportsbemadeoneachship'snationality,ship'sname,portfromwhichitdepartedoratwhichithadarrived, ToForeignMinisterTogo'sinquirywhethertheofficeinMexicohadbeguntheworkoffur-withhisNavalAttacheandhadsubsequentlywiredtheChiefoftheSpecialServiceSectionof becauseofthenecessityofmaintainingthesecurityofthe"L"organthenavalauthoritiesdisapprovedoffurnishinggeneralinformation.Heasked:'thattheJapaneseForeignOffice EightdayslaterForeignMinisterTogodeclaredthatgeneralintelligencewastobedistin­guishedfromnavalintelligenceinthatitwasusedforreferencepurposesbytheForeignOffice.Hewasinstructedtoreorganizehisofficeimmediatelyforthecollectionofgeneral sentthroughthediplomaticofficeatPanama.InCostaRicaitwasrumoredthattheAmeri-

ForcesdecidedtakeoverbasestheGolfoDulceoffCostaRicaandtheGulfof
ItwasfurtherreportedonOctober28,1941,thattheUnitedStateswaspreparingtocon­.>1IV,258. '>'IV,259.(OnDec.JapaneseCommander2-mansubmarinedefinitelyidentifiedtheSaratogaanchor-PearlHarbor.TheSaratogawasactuallySanDiego,Calif.,forrepairs.SeeBattleReport,p.26.)

'>'IV,260.'>'IV,261.'>'IV,262,263.
106 



and that the various nations of Central and South America had been admonished to watch

rigorously the residents of Axis affiliation. 396

(d) Reports from the Panama Canal

Although the Japanese intelligence reports concerning ship movements from inside thetothe
In a dispatch of October 18, 1941, Minister Akiyama at Panama reported the movement of

from October 14 to 18.

Moving toward the Atlantic through the Canal in this period had been four American

at night.

In an inspection of military establishments at the Pacific end of the Canal, the Japanese

hangers, storehouses for airplane parts, underground tanks, and eight barracks to accommo-date200atfivea
128. Intelligence Reports Military Construction Work and Navy Patrols

According to an intelligence dispatch, the 2nd Field Artillery Battalion, the 1st Engineers
and 33rd Infantry were stationed at Fort Clayton, where barracks large enough to accommo-

around them. In addition, three cruisers, eight new-type destroyers, eighteen submarines, oneandoneinandtwoinat
to October 27 four American and four British merchant vessels had passed through the Canal

lands cargo ship had passed through the Canal in the direction ofthe Atlantic. 399

129. Reports Enumerate Vessels Passing Through Canal
In a routine report transmitted on November 4 Minister Akiyama declared that one Ameri-

can destroyer and an American warship of 2,000 or 3,000 tons had passed through the Canal
toward the Atlantic on November 3. Nine American freighters and one tanker had passed
through the Canal in the direction of the Pacific, and five American freighters and one Ameri-

39" IV, 264,
39'IV,265.

39" IV, 266.
399JV,267.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR127.MinisterAkiyamaReportsCanalMilitaryandNavalActivity
UnitedStateswerefew,thoseoriginatinginthePanamaCanalZoneweremorenumerousduringthisperiodofOctober17throughDecember7.Itwasfoundthatroutineshipmovementreportsweretransmittedhomelandregularlyeverytwoorthreedays.

fourAmedcanfreighters,oneBritishfreighterandtwoAmericantankerstowardthePacific freighters,twoBritishfreighters,oneDutchfreighter,oneAmericantankerandoneAmericanpassengersteamer.TheJapaneseagentdiscoveredthatoflateshipspassedthroughtheCanal officialfoundthatconstructionwasprogressingatarapidrateandthatthewholeareawasbeingcoveredwithfortifications.SpecificallymentionedwereAlbrookField,wherethreelarge meneachwerebeingconstructed;moreover,Corozalfour200-menbarracks,fifty­two-familyofficers'quartersand500-patienthospitalwerebeingcompleted.397 
date250personswerenearingcompletion.AtFortKobbebarracksfortwenty-sixcompanieshadbeencompletedinadditiontotherecentlyfinishedhangarsatHowardField.Itwasnotedthatthe"constructionworkatthesubmarinebaseatBalboawasprogressing,that16-inchgunshadbeenemplacedonPearlIslands,andthatwarshipswerepatrollingthewatersgunboatsubmarinetenderweretheCanalZone.398

TheJapanesemarkedthedepartureofanOmahaclasswarshiptowardthePacificonOcto­ber27aswellastheanchoringoftwosingle-funneldestroyers,onelightcruiserandone10,000tontransportinBalboaharbor.ItwasfurtherreportedthatoneAmericandestroyer submarineswereanchoredtheharborCristobalonOctober26.FromOctober22
tothePacific,whilesixAmericanmerchantvessels,oneAmericantankerandoneNether­



canpassengervessel,aswellasoneDanishship,hadmovedthroughtheCanalinthedirec-

tion of the Atlantic from November 2 to November 4.400

Since the routine ship movement report had been sent on November 4, Minister Akiyama's
transmissionfromPanamatoTokyoonNovember5appearedtobeaspecialintelligencedis-patchinformingTokyothatfiftyarmyairofficersofItalianoriginhaddepartedfromChina

at the end of October. It was thought that they were being sent to China since they were of
Italian blood and consequently would not be suitable for Europe.

Inaddition,theshipmovementreportonthisdispatchlistedanarmytransportofmorethan6,000tonsfilledwitharmymenwhichhadheadedforthePacificonNovember2;thestatementthattwocruisersoftheOmahaclasswereanchoredatBalboaonNovember4wasnoteworthy,aswellastheinformationthatoneUnitedStatesfreighterandoneBritishfreighterhadmovedtowardthePacificonNovember4andNovember5.
EnteringtheCanalfromthePacificatthistimewerethreeUnitedStatesfreighters,one

United States tanker and one British freighter. 401

130. Japanese Minister Corrects Identification of VesselOnNovember10,1941,MinisterAkiyamacorrectedapreviousreporttotheeffectthataves-
sel formerly identified as one of the Vanoc class had been confirmed as the Diomede, which

washeadedtowardthePacific.HeaddedthattwoAmericansubmarineshadalsosailedinto

the Pacific on November 10.402

Passing through Panama during November 11 and 12 toward the Pacific, according to the
Japaneseofficial,wereoneAmericanandtwoBritishfreighters,whilemovingtowardthe

Atlantic were three American and three British freighters. 403131.JapaneseReportMovementoftheBritishCruiser.Liverpool
ABritishlightcruiser(tentativelyidentifiedastheLiverpool),whichhadbeenunderrepairinSanFrancisco,wasreportedashavinggonethroughtheCanalinthedirectionoftheAt-

lantic on the night of November 11.

ABritishmilitarytransportwhichwasloadedtocapacitywithmilitarypersonnelhadsailedthroughtheCanalonitswayfromthePacific.
Moreover, twelve Douglas two-motored bombers and six Airacobra pursuit planes had been

added to the Canal air force early in November.4O4

132. German Agents Correct Japanese Identification of British Cruiser

ItwasreportedonNovember13thataccordingtoGermanreportstheheavycruiser(previouslycalledalightcruiser)whichhadpassedthroughtheCanalonNovember11was

not the Liverpool class. This ship was believed to be joining a convoy in the Atlantic.

AshipformerlyreportedasoftheOmahatypewasdescribedaslookinglikeadestroyer

with its bow painted black and its stern white.

AcommercialshipoftheUnionCastletype,carryingapproximately1000ofwhatseemedtobeevacueesandafewwounded,passedthroughtheCanalonNovember13.405
133. Intelligence Dispatches List Type, Nationality and Number of Ships Crossing Isthmus

Tokyo learned on November 18, 1941 that one British ship and one 17,000 ton Netherlands
vessel had passed through the Canal in the direction of the Pacific on this day, while one 10,000

4..IV, 268.
4.'IV,269.
4.'IV, 270.
4."IV,271.
4.4IV,272.
4.sIV,273.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
ton British vessel and one American ship had gone through the Canal in the direction of the

Atlantic.Itwasalsonotedthatonedestroyerandonesubmarinewereundergoingrepairsat

Cristobal. 406

MinisterAkiyamawiredthatfourAmericancargoships,oneBritishcargoship,onetanker

and one French vessel had passed across to the Pacific and that an American cargo ship andonetankerhadsailedtowardtheAtlanticonNovember19andNovember20.407134.UnitedStatesSetsUpDefenseFortificationsinCanalZone
AlthoughtheJapaneseMinisterinPanamafeltthatTokyowasprobablyalreadycognizant

of the Canal's defenses, he summarized the latest developments in a dispatch transmitted

November 22,1941.408

According to informational sources, the United States had set up air bases, anti-aircraft
gun bases, and airplane detector bases, which were reported as being able to discover a plane
200 miles away.

CitingexamplestoillustratethattheUnitedStateswasexertingpressureonthePanama-niangovernment,MinisterAkiyamadeclaredthatCanalofficialswerecheckingthe2,000

Germans, 700 Italians and 400 Japanese in Panama because the United States had intimated
that dangerous elements were to be found not only among the foreigners in Panama, but
also in government circles. The United States was expending vast sums of money in buildingupthedefensesoftheCanalZone;itscoercionofPanamawasallegedbytheJapaneseofficialto
beinviolationofthetreatyconcludedin1936.TheUnitedStateshadbeguntoconstructaroadofmacadamwhichwouldprobablygoasfarasColonandwascompletingtheAmerican

continential highway, which would extend as far as the borders of Colombia. It appeared that
theUnitedStateswasassumingthatanattackontheCanalwouldbemadefrombothairandsea,andwaspreparingespeciallyforapossibleattackfromthePacificside.Having

reinforced the special fleet, an area of 900 kilometers (?) with the center at Panama was

beingconstantlypatrolled.Armyfortificationswith16-inchand14-inchgunemplacementswerebeingconstructedintheterritoryofPanama.
TheAmericanswereendeavoringtoguardsuchvitalpointsaslocks,spillwaysandespecially.thecontroltoweronLakeGatunandtheelectricplant.Inaddition,theanti-aircraftdefensesonlock#1werebeingimprovedanditwasnotedthatlock#3wasalso

equipped with anti-aircraft defenses.

MinisterAkiyamasaidthatthenavaldefenseareawhichwasbeingpatrolledagainst

possible lightning attacks extended in the north from Salina Cruz to Monepene on the Gulf

ofFonsecawiththesouthernlimitsextendingtotheairbaseontheGalapagosIslands.The

intelligence report listed the present army strength at 47,000, naval strength at 10,000 and
airforceat5,000,anditwasfurtherestimatedthattwicethisgeneraltotalmadeupthe

families of laborers, excluding Panamanians.4O9

OnDecember1,1941,awirefromWashingtondirectedthatJapaneseofficialsinPanama

report the passage of the United States' ships, the Mississippi, North Carolina, Washington

and Wasp through the Canal.41O

(e) Reports from South America

135. Agents Speculate Concerning Planes Flown to Bathurst
Thattwenty-fiveplaneshadbeenflownfromNataltoBritishBathurstonthewestcoastofAfricawasreportedbyAmbassadorIshiiinRiodeJaneiroonNovember15,1941.These

<O"IV, 274.

<0'IV,275.<OSIV,276.

<09 Ibid.

<loIV, 277. (The Wasp was operating off the Atlantic Coast at this time. See Battle Report, p. 9)
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planes,flownduringtheperiodfromAugust30toNovember12,hadcarriedvaryingnumbersofpassengers.ThosehavingalargenumberofpassengerswerethoughttobecarryingtechnicianstostrengthenbasesatBathurst,whilethosewithfewpassengerswerethoughtto

be en route to the Near East for the use ofthe British forces there.411

(f) Reports from the Hawaiian Islands136.ForeignMinisterTogoAsksforSemi-weeklyShipMovementReports
InstructionsfromForeignMinisterTogodirectedofficialsinHonolulutoreportirregularlybutattherateoftwiceaweekon"shipsinharbor",inviewofthecriticalrelationsbetween

Japan and the United Stat~s. Although this dispatch was transmitted on November 15, 1941,
because of the recent change in the Japanese diplomatic code it was not translated untilDecember3,1941.Thedispatchrequestedthatcarebetakentomaintainsecrecy.412

OnNovember18,1941,ConsulKitawiredthatabattleshipoftheOklahomaclasshadenteredportandonetankerhadleftportbetweenFordIslandandtheArsenal.AtanchorintheEastLochareawerethreeheavycruisersandacarrier,theEnterpriseorsomeothervessel,whiletwoheavycruisersoftheChicagoclassandoneofthePensacolaclassweretiedupatthedocksatapointdesignatedas"KS".FourmerchantvesselswereatanchorintheMiddleLocharea.
Theentryofeightdestroyers,whichhadenteredPearlHarborinsinglefile1000metersapartataspeedofthreeknots,wasobserved.Itwasaddedthatthesevesselshadchanged

course at a thirty degree angle five times from the entrance of the harbor through the waters
betweenFordIslandandtheArsenaltothebuoysinEastLoch,andthatonehourhadelapsed

during these maneuvers. 413137.AmericanExperts,AllegedlyenRoutetoBurmaRoad,ArriveinHawaii
Tokyo also learned at this time that 46 American transport experts and engineers, headed

byCaptainRichardM.Jones,hadarrivedinport,andwereenroutetoChinatooperatetrucksontheBurmaroad,where3,500new-typetrucks,mostlyof21/2toncapacity,were

in use.414138.ForeignMinisterTogoRequestsReportofVesselsin"N"Area
ForeignMinisterTogorequestedthatareportbemadeconcerningthevesselsanchoredin"N"AreaatPearlHarbor,ManilaBayandtheajacentareas,aswellasthefleetbasesnearHawaiianmilitaryreservations.Theseinvestigationsweretobemadeingreatsecrecy.415

139. Consul Kita Reports Regular Naval Maneuvers

OnNovember24,1941,Mr.KitawiredthatthefleetnormallyleftPearlHarbor,conducted

maneuvers and returned. It was found, however, that the Lahaina Roads area had not been
usedbythefleetformaneuversorforanchoringforsometime,andthatonlydestroyersand

submarines rode at anchor in this neighborhood. Furthermore, battleships seldom entered
the ports of Hilo, Hanalei or Kaneohe. Normally, the Japanese official explained, battleships
exercised in groups of three to five, conducting maneuvers for one week at sea, either to the
south of Maui or to the southwest.

Although aircraft carriers maneuvered by themselves, seaplane tenders operated with
anothervesselofthesameclass,andairplanefiringandbombingpracticewasconducted

near the southern extremity of the island of Kahoolawe. 416

4llIV,278.

412IV, 279.

413IV, 280.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
Also reported were the normal maneuver times and areas of the heavy cruisers, light

cruisers, submarines, destroyers and minelayers, with a note added to the effect that mine-
layers had recently conducted operations outside Manila Harbor. This dispatch of November
24, 1941, Honolulu message 234, outlining the activities of a large part of the American fleet asreportedbyJapaneseagents,wasnottranslateduntilDecember16,1941.417
140. Japanese Agents Observe American Defenses

OnNovember28amilitaryreporttoTokyostatedthateightB-17planeswerestationedatMidway,andthatthealtituderangeoftheiranti-aircraftgunswas5,000feet(?).
Observing Sand Island maneuvers, Japanese agents reported that twelve shots were

fixed, that the interval of shot flight was thirteen seconds, that the interval between shots
wastwominutes,andthattherewerenodirecthits.Itwasrumoredthat12,000men,chieflyMarines,wereexpectedtoreinforcethetroopsinHonoluluduringDecemberorJanuary.OnecruiserusuallyremainedinthewaterssouthofPearlHarborandoneortwodestroyersattheentrancetotheharbor.ThisdispatchwasreadonDecember8,1941.418141.FrequencyofShipMovementReportsIsLeftToDiscretionofConsul

Sinceintelligencereportsofbattleshipmovementsweremadeonceaweek,andthevesselscouldhavetraveledfarfromthevicinityoftheHawaiianIslandsinthatinterval,ConsulKitawasinstructedbyTokyotousehisownjudgmentinreportingsuchmovements.Inaddition,theConsulwasaskedtonotetheentranceordepartureofcapitalshipsandthelengthoftimetheyremainedatanchor.ThisdispatchofNovember28wastranslatedon

December 8, 1941.419

According to a dispatch transmitted on November 29 and read by United States trans-

latorsonDecember5,Tokyorequestedthat,inadditiontogiyingreportsonshipmovements,JapaneseofficialsinHonolulureportevenwhentherewerenoshipmovements.420
142. Foreign Minister Togo Wires Instructions Regarding Japanese Communications

InadispatchdatedNovember28,1941,whichwastranslatedDecember7,1941,ForeignMinisterTogowiredinstructionsregardingJapaneseCommunications.Antici-

pating that ordinary communications might be severed, he said that broadcasts would
inform Japanese diplomats of the situation without the use of the usual telegraphic channels.
Itwasdirected,however,thatcodesberetainedaslongasthesituationinthecountrypermittedanduntilthefinalstagewasentered.421
143. Japanese Continue to Watch Navy Maneuvers

From December 1toDecember6,1941,JapaneseintelligencedispatchesweretransmittedregularlytoTokyo.OnDecember1asignificantdispatchreportedthatshipmaneuvers

were held approximately 500 nautical miles southeast of Honolulu, with the battleships

leaving Tuesday and returning Friday, or leaving Friday and returning Saturday of the
followingweek.Itwasnotedthatthefleethadneversailedwestwardorheadedforthe"Kaiui"straitsnorthward;theseawestoftheHawaiianIslandswasnotsuitableforoceanmaneuvers.Theestimateofdistancewasbasedonthefactthatfuelwasplentiful,longdistancehigh

speed possible, and the guns could not be heard at Honolulu. 422

417IV,285.
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144. Mr. Fujii Changes American Ship Maneuver Signals

headquarters that he wished to change his communication signals for American ship
maneuvers. Signal one would mean that the battle ship divisions included scouts and

paring to sortie; signal three that all battleship divisions had departed Hawaii between

3; signal five that all carriers had departed between December 1 and 3; signal six that all
battleship divisions had departed between December 4 and 6; signal seven that several
carriers had departed between December 4 and 6; signal eight that all carriers had departed46.
1 a.m. would signify signal five, and so on. It waS further explained that if there was a starwasastarandtheIIIit

Also used at night would be the attic window of the Kalama House, located on the east coast

signal four, and so on.
In addition, signals would be transmitted through the regular broadcast station in Honolulu.

would indicate signal three or six, whereas the advertisement, "Beauty operator wanted,P.O.or
In case the light or broadcast signals could not be sent from Oahu, the signals would be

"EXEX"signal was received. The

signal bonfire would be located at a point halfway between lower Kula Road and Haleakala
Road, and would be visible from seaward to the southeast and southwest of Maui Island.

9 p.m., signal four or seven; and between 9 and 10 p.m., signal five or eight.423

145. Consul Wires Movement Report of Rarin and Wyoming

toward the mainland, that the Rarin had sailed into pore24 from San Francisco, and that

on this day. 425

146. British Vessel Enters Honolulu Harbor on December 4,1941

entered Honolulu harbor on the afternoon of December 3, leaving early on the morning oftotheinon3,
until after the attack on Pearl Harbor.)

<'<N,293.

my, 294. (The Wyoming had been demilitarized as a battleship in 1932, and was at that time in use as a train-ingshiponthep.

OnDecember3,1941,IchiroFujiiinformedthechiefofthe#3sectionofMilitaryStaff screenunitsandwerepreparingtosortie;signaltwothatanumberofcarrierswerepre­December1and3;signalfourthatseveralcarriershaddepartedbetweenDecember1andbetweenDecemberand
AhouseonLanikaiBeachwouldbeusedasasignalstationandwouldshowlightsduringthenight.Onelightinthewindowbetween8and9p.m.woulddenotesignalone,onelightbetween9and10p.m.wouldmeansignaltwo,andsoon;twolightsbetweenmidnightand ontheheadofthesailoftheStarBoatitwouldindicatesignalone,two,threeorfour;ifthereRomannumeralwouldindicatesignalfive,six,sevenoreight.

ofOahunorthwestofLanikai.Asimilarsystemwastobeused;forexample,ifthewindowwerelightedbetween1900and2000,itwouldindicatesignalthree,between2000and2100, Forexample,ifaradioadvertisementread,"Chineserugforsale,applyP.O.Box1476",itapplyBox1476"wouldindicatesignalfiveeight.
givenbybonfiredailyonMauiIslanduntiltheJapanese Ifthefirewasseenbetween7and8p.m.,itwouldindicatesignalthreeorsix;between8and 

-

OnDecember3ConsulKitawiredthatanunidentifiedmilitarytransporthadsailedout theWyomingandtwoseaplanetendershadleftport.Therewerenoothershipmovements AreporttoTokyoonDecember4containedtheinformationthataBritishgunboathad December4.Immediatelyafterthevesselhadenteredport,asailorhadtakensomemail BritishConsularOfficeandhadreceivedsomereturn.426<'"N,292.(ThismessagewassentDecember1941butwasnottranslatedbyAmericancryptanalystsAtlanticCoast,BattleReport,26.)
<'"IY,295.112 



Noting that three battleships had been at sea for eight days, Consul Kita said that the

three light cruisers and sixteen destroyers, while four ships of the Honolulu class were in
dock.427148.of
reports concerning observation balloons above Pearl Harbor, or any indication that they would
be sent up. In view of the present situation, the presence of warships (battleships), carriersThiswasnot

In accordance with these orders, the Consul informed Tokyo on December 6 that 400 or

500 balloons had been ordered in America and that their use was being considered in the

no mooring equipment had been set up at Pearl Harbor nor had the troops been selected to

balloons was being undertaken.

pedo nets, but he would investigate the details further.429

149. Last Intercepted Intelligence Report before Pearl Harbor Attack Lists Ships in Port
In an intercepted intelligence dispatch transmitted on December 6, 1941 from Hawaii,

the last before the Japanese attack on Peral Harbor, the Japanese Consul reported that a
number of battleships and one submarine tender had entered port on the evening of December
5. Nine battleships, three light cruisers, three submarine tenders and seventeen destroyers

cruisers and airplane carriers had left Honolulu. It appeared that no air reconnaissance was
being conducted by the fleet air arm.430

(g) Reports from the Philippine Islands

150. Consul Nihro Reports Movement of Philippine- Based Ships
Military, naval, installation, construction and fortification along with troop movement

and disposition reports continued to flow constantly from the Philippine Islands to Tokyo.
There is little doubt that the Japanese naval intelligence telegrams were explained in more
detail by mail. Although Kana abbreviations, which could not be translated, were used to
designate American ships, United States Intelligence estimated the possible equivalents for
the Kana names.427IV,seatheofinandona
p.8.)

428IV,291.

429IV, 297.430IV,inof
cruisers, and a third of the Fleet's destroyers", Battle Report, p. 6.)
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR147.V.S.S.LexingtonDepartsHawaii
vesselsreturnedtoportonFridaymorning,December5.OnthesamedaytheLexingtonandfiveheavycruisersleftport.InportontheafternoonofDecember5wereeightbattleships, ConsulKitaNotifiesTokyoBalloonBarrageDefenses

OnDecember2,1941,TokyodirectedtheJapaneseConsulatHonolulutowiredaybyday andcruiserswasofutmostimportance,ForeignMinisterTogodeclared.Heaskedalsothathebeadvisedwhetherornotthewarshipswereprovidedwithanti-mine(torpedo)nets. dispatchtranslateduntilDecember30,1941.428
defenseofHawaiiandPanama.Hereported,however,that,asfarasHawaiiwasconcerned, manthem.Furthermore,therewerenoindicationsthatanytrainingforthemaintenanceof Inaddition,itwasdifficultforhimtoimaginethattheHawaiiandefensesactuallypossessedanyballoons.Moreover,therewerelimitstotheballoondefenseofPearlHarbor.HeimaginedthatinallprobabilitytherewasconsiderableopportunityleftforasurpriseattackagainstPearlHarbor,HickamandFord.Headdedthathethoughtthebattleshipsdidnothavetor-wereatanchor,andfourlightcruisersandtwodestroyerswerelyingatthedocks.Theheavy 

296.("AtnearendthisfirstweekDecemberwasthecarrier,US.S.Lexingtonaccompaniedbythreecruisersfivedestroyerscombinedsearchwhichtookthemtothesouthandwestward,"BattleReport,298.(BerthedPearlHarberwereeighttheninebattleshipsoftheUnitedStatesPacificFleet,nine 



OnOctober21,1941,aJapaneseofficial,Mr.Kihara,reportedthatthegroundforanair

base was being leveled in the central Mindanao district. Although an underground hanger
andundergroundoiltankswerebeingplanned,thebuildingwasnotprogressingasquicklyascouldbeexpected.Itappeared,Mr.Kiharasaid,thatlargeheavybomberplaneswere

expected at this base very soon.431
TheunloadingofmorethantentanksfromtheAmericanLeader,whichtouchedportatManilaonOctober20,wasreportedbyConsulNihro.Heestimatedthateachtankwas

equipped with a gun having a barrel approximately 6 feet long.432
AlthoughtheHoustonandtheMarbleheadwerereportedtohaveleftManilaalongwitheightdestroyers,tensubmarinesandoneminelayeronOctober20,1941,433fivedayslaterConsulNihrodeclaredthatthesetwovesselsweretheninManila.TheConsulalsoinformed

Tokyo that the Langley and one destroyer had sailed during the morning of October 25, but
thattheirdestinationwasnotknown.AtportinManilaonthatdayweretheHouston,the

Marblehead, the Chester, the Black Hawk, the Isabel, the Heron, one vessel the name of

whichwasundeciphered,fivedestroyers,elevenlargesubmarinesandfivesmallsub-marines.ReportedasunderrepairatCavitewastheCanopus,andtwodestroyerswerealso

in that port.434 The President Cleveland was reported to have landed perhaps 2,500 soldiers
on October 23, 1941.435

OnthemorningofOctober27,itwasreported,threedestroyers,elevensubmarinesofthe"N"type,theHeronandtwominelayersleftportforunknowndestinations.436ThePecos

entered Cavite on October 26 and the Langley on October 27.
TheHoustonandtheMarbleheadsailedfromManilaontheafternoonofOctober28,whiletheChesterdepartedonthemorningofOctober29.437

OnNovember1,1941,theHouston,Marblehead,Heron,sevendestroyers,eightsub-marinesandthreeminesweeperswerereportedtohaveenteredManilaonOctober31.But

the Houston left Manila on November 1; so did the President Cleveland and the President
Madison,whichwereloadedwithAmericansoldiers.AsignificantfactincludedinthedispatchofNovember1wastheestimationofAmericanmilitaryandnavalplanesinthe

Philippine Islands. In the total of 1,283 military aircraft were large bombers, scout planes,
fighters, pursuit planes and training planes. Japanese agents reported that twenty-six large
flying naval boats were based in the Philippine Islands.

ShipsinportonNovember1weretobetheMarblehead,theBlackHawk,thePecos,theHeron,theIsabel,ninedestroyers,threesubmarines,ashipcalledWohotosu(Kanaspelling),andthreeminelayers.AtCaviteweretheLangley,theCanopusandthe2Z.438
151. Consul Nihro Obtains Information from Newspapers and Foreign Office Reports

OnNovember1,1941,ConsulNihrocomplainedthatastrictguardwasbeingmaintained

and the gathering of military and naval intelligence was extremely difficult. From news-

paper and foreign office reports he learned that 120,000 of the Philippine army would be
incorporatedintotheFarEasternarmyandadditionstobarracksatvariouscampswerebeingrapidlymade.Indicationspointedtothefactthattherewastobeanincreaseinthenum-

ber of soldiers stationed in the vicinity of Lingayen during November, that the military
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
projectsinthevicinityofMariveleswerebeingrushed,thatthreeairportswerebeingbuiltinthatvicinity;andthatthedocksatthatlocationwerebeingenlarged.IntheBataanarea

military surveillance was particularly strict, and it was reported that even the entry of
Filipinoswasrestricted.ItwasfoundthataroadwasbeingconstructedbetweenDingalan

and Laur (?), and that the road between Infanta and Manila was being widened to five
meters.

Consul Nihro disclosed in this same dispatch that thirty or forty fighter planes, twentyorthirtylightbombersandseveralscoreof"altitudeplanes(?)"werestationedatIba.439152.BrownSoldiersPuzzleJapaneseConsul
The arrival of 2,000 or 3,000 brown soldiers at the Fort Stotsenburg barracks elicited an

intelligence report from the Japanese Consul on November 4, 1941. In view of the fact that
thesoldiersspokeSpanishheguessedthatthesecouldbe"Iko's";theywerenottoofriendly

with American soldiers.

According to rumors, the American soldiers stationed at Fort Stotsenburg were arrogant
towardtheFilipinos,andsincetherehadbeentwoorthreecasesofassaultonFilipinosthenativeswerefurious.

HereportedfurtherconstructionworkatTaralloonMigualAirField;thewoodenbridgesonthehighwaybetweenTaralloandLingayenhadbeenreplacedwithconcretebridgesand

approximately 200 barracks had been constructed near Tarallo overlooking the Lingayen
Gulf. 440

153. Tokyo Directs Secretary Yuki to Investigate Philippine Defenses
OnNovember5TokyodirectedthatSecretaryYukiconductaninvestigationfortheNavalGeneralStaff.Ateach"portofcall"hewastoenumeratetheconditionsatairports;thetypesandnumberofplanesateach;thewarshipsandthemachinerybelongingtotheland

forces; and the state of progress being made on all equipment and establishments.441

154. Foreign Minister Togo Asks Confirmation of Report of November 1, 1941

ReferringtothereportonmilitaryandnavalplanesmadeonNovember1byConsulNihro,ForeignMinisterTogorequestedthattheConsulsendawireimmediatelyastothe

validity of these reports.442

155. Consul Nihro Wires Further Information on Military Installation at Manila
ThemilitaryinstallationsinandaroundManilawerethesubjectofareportfromConsul

Nihro to Tokyo on November 6. According to his information, fifty American officials and

1,200FilipinosoldierswerestationedatBugallon,whichislocatedinaprovincenorthofManila.Alsoatthislocationwereeightlighttanksandeightanti-aircraftguns.AtIbainZambalesProvince,whichisacrossthebayfromManila,weretentwo-motored

light bombers, 190 Curtiss fighting planes and 400 American air force officers.
StationedatSanMarcelino,wheretheconstructionofanewairfieldwasunderway,wasa

division of Philippine soldiers numbering 15,000. Furthermore, 320 Philippine soldiers werestationedatBotolanandtherewere200lighttanksatFortStotsenburg.
ConstructionworkwasreportedinTarlacProvinceintheformofbarracksandanewairfield,aswellasthebuildingofamilitaryroadfromCapastoBotolaninZambalesProvince.443
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Consul Nihro declared on November 8 that the province of Bataan had been reinforced by
4,000 or 5,000 soldiers, who were stationed along the coast and in the central mountain
districts.

had been posted prohibiting the passing of civilians, Philippine military personnel and
others not in possession of special permits. Although the road between Bagao and Balanga
had been converted into a military highway, construction of a road connecting Moron and

possibly by boat.444 .

156. Twenty-Three Ships Anchored at Manila on November 8,1941
In a separate routine ship movement report Tokyo was informed that the Marblehead, the

Black Hawk, the Heron, the Isabel, the tanker Trinity, the Wohotosu, eight destroyers andnineatin
painted over entered port on November 9, landing 2,300 soldiers, and four destroyers departedon10foran
157. Japanese Consul Corrects Previous Estimate of Airplanes in Philippinestobe

The arrival at Manila of an American cruiser, identified as one of the Chester class, was
noted on November 12, 1941, and it was believed that this vessel accompanied one of the
President Line ships into port.448

158. Consul Gathers Information from Japane,se Residents

From a Japanese who had lived in the Province of IIocos for about fifteen years Consul Nihro

stationed in Laoag in the Province of IIocos Norte on Luzon, and it was rumored that this force

activity was in progress with the exception of one reconnaissance flight nightly by one plane
over the coastal area in the vicinity of the city. 449

or six of these patrolmen were dispatched to Paracale and Jose Panganiban.45O That the civil

airport at Paracale was not being used and that no military planes had landed at Daet since
February was also reported. During the latter part of 1940 thirteen American freighters had
entered the port of Panganiban and since then on the average of once a week Americaninto

«'IV,313.
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«oIV, 517. (This vessel was later identified as the Portland.)
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submarineswereanchorManilaharboronNovember8,1941.445Novemberunknowndestination.446formerlybelieved"Iko's",wereAmericanNegroes.447
freighterssailedfromBatangassouthwesternLuzonHondaguaoffLamonBay.45145OTheselocatedIslandLuzon. 

WiththebuildingofanexcellentmilitaryhighwaybetweenLamaoandMarivelessentries Olongapahadbeensuspendedandthecommercialconnectionbetweentheseplaceswas TheHoustontouchedportatCaviteonNovember8;twocargoboatswiththenames On10,1941,ConsulNihrosentacorrectionhisdispatchNovemberNovember1reportingbasedinPhilippineIslands.Thenumbernumberofofoflargeattackplanesplanes(bombers)heraisedfrom29toto32.Hefurtherdisclosedthatthethethebrownsoldiers,ascertainedthatapproximately400Philippinesoldiersandsevenoreightofficerswere wouldbeincreasedtoapproximately1,700.NoexpansionofthepresentcivilairportinLaoagwasplanned,militaryplaneswerebeingstationedatthatfield,andnonoextensive AccordingtoreportfromaaJapaneseresidentCamarinesNorte,onlyaboutsixtymembersofthePhilippinePatrol

organizationwerelocatedininthatareaandeverydayfive451IV,319.116 



on November 13.452

159. Japanese Report Concerning Preparations on Cebu

by the Philippine army, had been transported to Java by air. Twelve or thirteen American

storehouse with all sorts of provisions being stored there.

Twenty American warships had anchored off the northwest coast of the Sulu Archipelago

one oil supply ship and a camouflaged cruiser had anchored there early in November fortwoortotheof1,asas
Tokyo requested on November 15 that the Japanese in Manila discover by what route the

again.454

160. Manila Identifies the British Ship Awateaofinasofthatthe700or800on
disembarking at Hong Kong on the morning of November 16.456

from Manila was the subject of a routine ship movement report on November 17.457

November 17 publicized the movement of fifty-four 14-ton tanks as well as scout cars, provi-

sion cars, baggage cars and various types of military trucks together with mechanized troops
from Fort Stotsenburg. They had stayed only overnight at Lingayen, returning to Fort
Stotsenburg the next day.458

advised immediately of the type of craft presumed to be in the waters adjacent to Subic Bay.
This information was to be transmitted to the Asama Maru459 as well as to Tokyo. 460
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORoftheChesterclassenteringManilaHarboronNovember12wasnowidentifiedasthePortland,armyplaneswerestationedthere,andonelargebomberwasinthehanger.threedays.453ReferringreportNovemberwellConsulNihro'scorrectionofNovember10,routineintelligencereportshipsharborNovember15wasaddedtothisdispatch.455soldiersembarkedtheAwateawerepossiblythesameasthosereported 
AsamaMaruwasscheduledtouchportManilaonNovember19or20. 

OnNovember13ManilareportedthatthecruiserwhichhadbeenidentifiedasamemberanditwasaddedthataBritishdestroyeroftheDefendertypehadsailedintoManilaHarbor AccordingtothereportofaJapaneseresidentinCebu,ManilainformedTokyoNovember15there300American2,500Philippinesoldiersstationedononthatthatisland.Theairportwasbeingenlargedandandtwelvemedium-sizedplanes,whichwerewereusedMoreover,headquartersofformerpatrolforcewasbeingusedasthethethecommissariat onSeptember22,twodestroyersonecruiserhadenteredCebuHarborinOctober,andand largebombershadflowntothePhilippines.Itwasalsoaskedthattheirnumberbeascertained AshipwhichenteredManilaHarbor13identifiedasBritishtransportAwatea,with700or800soldiersboard.Thatvesselunderescorthadhad

sailedagainonononthethetheeveningofNovemberNovember14toanunknowndestinationwaswasalsoreported.TheAfterreadinganAPdispatchfromHongKongConsulNihrosuggestedonNovember17 ThedepartureofMarblehead,thethePortland,possiblytendestroyersandoneminelayer AtroopmovementreportfromLingayenwhichhadbeenpublishedintheBulletinon OnNovember20TokyorequestedinaspecialdispatchtoManilathatthehomeofficebe arrivalanddepartureunidentifiedcamouflagedBritishcruiseron21wasreportedinadiplomaticwireNovemberNovember22,1941.TheTheentryintoportofofofananAmerican mIV,321. '55323.'56IV,IV,324. 



the Houston and the Canopus. 461

had, in general, become tense in view of the military activity in that area. It appeared that
military stores had been removed from the "port area" during the "black out" on Novembertoif
and that light tanks and ammunition trucks had been landed on November 21. Although at
present the tanks and trucks were said to be en route to Meycuayan in Bulacan Province and
San Fernando in Pampanga Province, their final destination was being investigated. Besides

imported at short intervals, it was noted that troops had arrived in hill areas within the city. 462

162. Submarine Tender Enters Port

The information that a camouflaged submarine tender, the Holland, had entered port
on November 23, that five submarines had sailed to unknown destinations on November 24,
and that seven destroyers had left for unknown destinations the next day was transmitted to
Tokyo on November 25.463twoten
163. Inaccuracy of Japanese Intelligence Reports

movements and troop allocations, the accuracy of their spy reports may be gauged by

Philippines on November 27, 1941, as released by the Office of the Chief of Naval Operations.465

Philippine Islands, our air strength in the Islands was greatly overestimated; there was

by Japanese agents.468
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Navy estimate of U.S. Air Strength in Philippines, November 27,1941."
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transport,whichwasrumoredtobethePresidentHarrison,forthepurposeofloadingsoldiersandmaterialwasalsonoted.AtManilaonNovember22,accordingtotheJapaneseintelligence
dispatch,werethePortland,theMarblehead,theBlackHawk,theIsabel,theHeron,theWohotosu,thePecos,oneminelayer,ninedestroyersandtwentysubmarines.AtCavitewere 161.ConsulNihroReportsTenseFeelinginManila

OnNovember24,1941,ConsulNihrodeclaredthatthefeelingamongthepeopleofManila 21,and,inviewofthemovementoffortyorfiftybusesintheRizalprovincedistrict,investiga­tionswerebeingmadefindthesewereloadedwithtroops.
OntheafternoonofNovember22sixtylighttanksandtwentyammunitiontrucks,whichhadearlierbeengroupedneartheheadquartersofthe"portarea"militarypolice,wereseenleavingQuezonBridge.Itwasaconjecturethattroopshadrecentlyarrivedinmilitaryboats, thetwoorthreehundredAmericanarmytrucksnearthe"portarea",whichhadbeen TwodayslatertheJapaneseConsulreportedthedepartureofthePortland,theBlack

Hawk,destroyersandsubmarinesforunknowndestinations.464
SinceitwasobviousatthistimethatJapanwasattemptingtoobtainatotalpictureofmilitaryandnavalstrengthinthePhilippines,aswellaslastminuteinformationofship comparingtheinformationwithanestimateofthestrengthofUnitedStatesairforcesinthe Japaneseagentsestimatedthat1,283militaryandtwenty-sixnavalplaneswerebasedintheIslands466(theformernumberwaslaterveryslightlyraised).467Since,accordingtotheAmericanestimateforty-threeNavyplanesand298Armyplaneswerebasedinthe seventeenmoreNavyplanesthanwerereportedbut985fewerArmyplanesthanwerelisted '""IV,332."U.S.

'""IV,352."U.S.NavyestimateU.S.AirStrengthPhilippines,November27,1941."
118 



High-level scouting patrols over the city of Manila were the subject of an intelligence report

another of three planes beginning at four o'clock in the morning. Three additional planesto
In a shipping report of November 29, 1941, Consul Nihro said that the submarine tenders

Wotosu (Kana spelling) and Holland, five submarines of the 170 class, five of the 180 class,
five of the 190 class, five of the 150 class, four small-sized submarines, the oilers Pecos

Langley Point in Cavite, at Manila, at Baguio, and on the buoys in the bay would be turned
out for a time.47O

165. Intelligence Report Lists Ships in Port on December 1, 1941
Manila informed Tokyo on December 1, 1941, that fourteen large submarines (possibly

the American Navigation, which had entered port about three days earlier, were unloaded
twelve objects which appeared to be boilers.

In addition, the Manchen Maersk, a former Danish ship sailing under Panamanian
registry, entered port December 1; and, although details were not ascertained, five British

Esteban entered Manila harbor December 1. In port on this date were the Holland, the

(exact position not clear). 471

(h) Reports from Singapore

166. Japanese Officials in Singapore Learn of Squadron Sailing

maneuvers and to investigate the organization of the air force stationed in the Federated
Malay States.472

The Japanese Foreign Minister informed officials in Singapore on November 18, 1941,

States. The squadron had consisted of eight ships of the 15,000 ten class and ten other
craft, carrying approximately 10,000 British troops, including many aviators. 473

167. Tokyo Requests Information on Ships in Port

on the movements of capital ships.474

(i) Reports from Vladivostok and Hsinking
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR164.ManilaNotifiesTokyoofScoutingPatrolswerenotedbeflyingoverthecityindependently.469toTokyoonNovember28,1941.ThepatrolsweredividedintooneflightofsixplanesandTrinity,twodestroyers,gunboatIsabeloneminelayerinportManila.AtCavitewerewereHoustonandandandCanopus.ConsulNihrofurtherreportedthatthethethethelightsatat withthesubmarinetenderWotosu)andtwodestroyershadleftportthatmorning.From freighterswereloadingcargoatpier.Thevessel,SpencerKellogg,hadun­loadedcrudeoilwasscheduledtoloadcastoroil;andandthetheAmericanAmericanArmy'sDon Wotosu(possibly),Pecos,Trinity,gunboat,twosmallsixlargesubmarines,whileHoustonremainedatCavite.TheCanopusandandaacargoshipwereinthethethethevicinity OnOctober22TokyorequestedofficialsinSingaporetoreportthedrillsandbattle thatasquadronofshipshadleftport(namemissing)onNovember4headed

fortheMalay OnDecember5,1941,Tokyorequestedanimmediatereportonshipsinportwellasas mIV,334. 



168. American Tankers en Route to Vladivostok

InvestigatingtheroutingofAmericanvesselstoRussia,Japanlearnedfromitsembassy

in Vladivostok that up to October 20 the American Consul there had received no official
communication concerning the tankers being routed to Valdivostok. Although it had
beendecidedattheMoscowconferencetocontinueaidtoRussia,ithadbeendecided

to discontinue the transportation of material to Russia via Vladivostok after the ships en
route had arrived, and a new routing would be used, undoubtedly via Iran.475

169. Russian Incidents

OnNovember28,1941,amessagefromHsinkingreportedthatforty-sevenairplanesofanunrecognizabletype,althoughtheywer~definitelyofAmericandesignandconstruction,

had flown over the city of Kuibyshev during a military review in celebration of the
anniversary of the revolution. It was further reported that large bodies of anti-communist

forceswerefightinginthevicinityofMinskandsouthofKrasnoyarsk,destroyinglinesof

communications.

"Intelligence of primary importance" was sent to the effect that twenty unsucc~ssful

deserterswhohadtriedtogetintoManchukuohadbeenexecutedbeforeafiringsquadofthe39thSharpshootersDivision.ByNovember28forty-sixRussiantroopshaddeserted.TopreventfurtherdesertionstheSovietArmyhadmovedcertaindetachmentsawayfromtheborderandhadstrungchargedbarbedwirefencesalongtheborder.Regiments,more-over,wereheldresponsiblefordetachmentsfromwhichtherehadbeendeserters.OntheUdefrontsurveillancetroopsoftheouterMongolianareahaddeliberatelytrespassedon

Mongolian territory several times, even to the extent of ten to twenty kilometers. These
troops were taking a strong, hostile attitude toward Japanese surveillance troops.476

TheForeignOfficeinTokyoinformedHsinkingonNovember28thatRussiannewspapers,quotingaDomeinewsreport,hadcarriedthestorythataRussiandivisionhadcrossedthe

Manchurian border. In the fighting some soldiers had been killed land others taken prisoner.
However,theRussianpresshadreportedthatthiswasatvariancewiththefacts,andthat

Russian soldiers had not crossed the border. Tokyo asked that Japanese officials in Hsinking
report the true situation, since the Japanese Ambassador in Manchuria had reported the
story in substantially the same form. 477
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(a) Japanese-American Relations

170. Japanese Consul Considers Means of Evacuating Nationals
In keeping with plans to embark evacuees on the Hikawa Maru, Consul Jisaburo Sato in

Seattle wired that Vancouver, Portland, and one other office would again be consulted in theoflifeitwas
171. Consul Morishima Applies for Permit to Transfer American Mission Funds

bined organizations of all American mission boards to Japan, Consul Morito Morishima in

funds. The amount to be sent to Japan proper totaled more than $37,000, and to Korea, more
than $7,700, excluding the funds for St. Luke's Hospital and the Women's Christian College.479172.
29 on the subject "Will Japan and the United States Fight?" Pointing out that such a lecture
might cause embarrassment to the propaganda work in San Francisco, he advised that Japa-
nese officials caution Mr. Kasai as much as possible during his visit in the United States. Con-
sul Muto further suggested that Ambassador Kichisaburo Nomura have Mr. Kasai cancel his
lecture.480

173. Consul Originates Plan to Repay Nationals in Tokyo

with them, the Japanese Consul in Portland, Oregon, asked if some arrangement could be
made whereby the nationals could pay funds into that office and receive payment in Tokyo in

however, that this plan be considered and that immediate reply be sent to him.481

174. Secretary Terasaki Suggests Delay of Orders for Official Harada
Secretary Hidenari Terasaki questioned Mr. Yoshioka in Tokyo as to the advisability of

having Official Harada sail on the Hikawa Maru which would leave Seattle on November 4,
1941, since his stay in the United States would be cut too short to carry out his instructions.

leave from Manzanillo early in December, and he asked if there were any objections to the
Official's prolonging his stay.482
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eventthatfundswerenotathandtopayexpensesofnationals.Headdedthat,inthematter belts,understoodthattherewereplentifulsuppliesinstockatSanFrancisco.478

Referringtoapreviousdispatchwhichconcernedthetransferofdonationsfromthecom-NewYorkinformedTokyothathehadappliedtothegovernmentforapermittotransferthese JapaneseFearThatMr.Kasai'sLectureMayCauseEmbarrassment
FromConsulYoshioMutoinSanFranciscocamewordonOctober20,1941,thatMr.JiujiKasai,amemberoftheJapaneseParliament,wasscheduledtodeliveralectureonOctober 

' 

SinceJapaneseevacueesfromtheUnitedStateswereallowedtotakenotmorethan$210 Japanesecurrency.Thedifficultyofthisplanlayinthefactthattheofficewasshortoffundsandcouldnotpaythetravelingexpensesofanyofficialtransferringtoanotherplace.Heasked, TheSecretarysuggestedinsteadthatMr.HaradaleaveontheTerukawaMaru,which'would 478IV,342.mIV,343. 



175. Japanese Plan to Route Money to Vancouver Through Seattle

be sent through the Yokohama Specie Bank.483

send instructions concerning Mr. Matsui to the American Consul in Vancouver. Secretary
Matsui had already procured his Canadian passport and entrance visa.484

documents being brought on the Hikawa Maru would be passed through customs without being
opened. 485

Ambassador Nomura learned on October 20, 1941 that the Hikawa Maru had left Yokohama

on this day with Kensuke Sato of the Foreign Office and Communications Engineer Kiichiro
Ueno aboard.486

177. Japanese Consul at Vladivostok Views Pessimistically the Adjustment of Japanese-American
Relations

Retransmitting the opinions of the Consul at Vladivostok which had been sent to Foreign

establishing its place in the Far East. After observing the progress of the Russo-Anglo-Ameri-
can conversations, the Vladivostok Consul felt that the adjustment of the Japanese-American
relations appeared to be hopeless.487178.to
lations in the case of a neutral country's propaganda work for a belligerent nation. Although

out that should this office undertake propaganda work in Britain's stead in Japan, this work

and American affiliated news correspondents were already being discriminated against to
some extent, and that a large number of dispatches received by Domei and other concernsor179.toon

The Foreign Minister directed Consul Rioyji in Los Angeles to send to San Francisco the

tration Official Harada and brought to Japan.489
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176.SailingofHikawaMaruForcesSecretaryMatsuitoLeaveJapanWithoutVisaHavingbeenforcedtoleaveTokyowhentheHikawaMaruhadsailed,SecretaryMatsui,who 
PropagandaRegulationsWillApplyNeutralCountries,JapanDecreeswereeitherprohibitedfrompublicationelsewithheldvoluntarily.488HaradaBringWirelessApparatusHikawaMaru 

Meanwhile,ForeignMinisterwasattemptingprocureconsentUnitedStatesestablisharouteforthethethethesendingofofthroughSeattletototoVancouver.ThemoneymoneywouldwasenroutenewpostinWashington,hadembarkedwithoutwaitingforhishisvisatotocomethrough.ForeignMinisterTogodirectedthatAmbassadorNomurahaveUnitedStatesofficials Furthermore,Ambassadorwasinstructednegotiatetotoensurethatthetheconfidential MinisterTogo,TokyoinformedofficialsinHsinkingthatpresentstatusHull-No­muradiscussionsindicatedthethetheTojoCabinetmustnotalterJapan'sfundamentaltaskofof OnOctober21,1941TokyoinformedBerlinthatJapanhaddecidedtoapplycertainregu­admittingthattheUnitedStatesEmbassyhadnotbeendistributingbulletins,Japanpointed wouldhavebetakenundercontrol.Further,BerlinwascomingtotounderstandthatBritishwirelessapparatushehadpreviouslyrequested.At

thatplaceitwouldbetakenbyAdminis­'83IV,347. 



180. Swiss Newspaper Reports Progress of Japanese-American Negotiations

published a dispatch from Washington to the effect that when the Japanese government had

alleged that the United States had presented four sine qua non terms and that the Japanese
government had accepted them in principle.49O181.of
attempt to get a permit from the American authorities for the sailing of the Shoyo Maru, which

ship, the Japan-Eastern Mining Company had presented a letter of credit for $900 on the
Yokohama Specie Bank but they had lacked an American permit to cash it. The delay in sail-
ing would amount to $3,000 additional cost. Moreover, as for an application by the San Fran-
cisco branch of the Japanese Mitsui Bussan Company for 350 tons of fuel oil, the permit had

Atcheson had arranged to have the permit issued immediately. 492

182. Ambassador Inquires Concerning Return of Japanese Students
Ambassador Nomura sent an inquiry to Tokyo in regard to the early sailing of the Japanese

of those students and have them return home aboard the Asama Maru, which would touch

port at Lisbon. The' Ambassador also inquired as to the date on which the boat would dock
there.493

183. Ambassador Nomura Sends Part of Personal Luggage to Japanofthebetoto
184. Foreign Minister Togo Urges Salary Remittance Exchange for Foreign Correspondents4wasbythe
stood to be financially embarrassed. Foreign Minister Togo pointed out that this would deter-

Japan.495
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
OneofthenewsdispatchesreferringtotheJapanese-AmericannegotiationswasreportedtoTokyofromRomeonOctober22,1941.AccordingtotheintelligenceaSwissnewspaperhad expressedadesiretoresumenegotiations,theUnitedStateshadaccepted.Itwasfurther DelaySailingPermitWillCauseFinancialLoss,JapanDeclares

AmbassadorNomurawasinstructedbytheHomeForeignOfficeonOctober22,1941to waswaitinginSanFranciscoharbor.Topayforadditionalsuppliesofwaterandfoodforthis notasyetbeengranted.491Onthissameday,however,AmbassadorNomurarepliedthatMr. residentswhowerestudyingabroad.HeaskedifitwereTokyo'spolicytocutshorttheterms SinceSemi-OfficialObatawouldcarryaconsiderableamountofAmbassadorNomura'sluggagewhenhereturnedtoTokyoontheTatsutaMaru,theAmbassadorrequestedthata

memberstaffsentYokohamameetthisofficial.494
AnotherminormattertobenegotiatedbyAmbassadorNomurainWashington,butonewhichwoulddeterminefuturepolicy,wasthetransmissionofthe$1,000monthlysalaryto whoemployedUniversalNewsFeatureService.BecausetheAmericangov­

ernmenthadnotasyetgrantedpermissiontoremitmonthlysalarydrafts,4wasunder­minethegrantingoffurtherpermitstoAmericannewspaperstopaytheircorrespondentsin "OIV,354. 495IV,359.

"DoDcomment:Namewithheld.
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In a circular dispatch to Japanese officials in North and South American countries, Foreign
Minister Togo reported that Japan had changed the direction, time and contents of its for-
eign broadcasts. Since the change had been made at the end of September, the Foreign
Minister asked in his dispatch on October 24, 1941 that the Japanese officials make any sug-
gestions concerning technique, contents and priority which they considered advisable.496

Ministry.497186.into
In referring to the State Department's request for heating fuel for the American Embassy in

Japan, Tokyo informed Ambassador Nomura on October 25, that the Fuel Bureau had agreed

fuel shortage had been sent on October 14 by Ambassador Nomura.498187.to
he had previously requested had already been dispatched to Tokyo. Should the set be await-
ing transportation, it was to be sent by the Tatsuta Maru, in care of Extraordinary Official
Kobata, as part of Ambassador Nomura's baggage.499 Consul Muto in San Francisco answered

the personal baggage of Mr. Kanome Wakasugi had been loaded on the ltsukushima Maru,

and that five # 90 recording machines and five # 66 recording machines as well as twenty type-
writers and cylinders could not be shipped because of the freezing legislation. The wireless
sets had already been loaded on the ltsukushima Maru as the hand baggage of Colonel
Oka.5Oo

188. Exchange of Diplomatic Expense Funds Gives Rise to Discussion

In reply to a dispatch from Foreign Minister Togo concerning the procurement of expenseinif
alent amount to the Americans there, the exchange transaction would be complete; conse-

quently, it would be unnecessary for American diplomatic establishments and Embassies ininto
.9'IV,361.
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185.JapanAsksforForeignBroadcastSuggestions 
AmbassadorNomurarequestedonOctober24,1941thatthehomeForeignOfficearrangeforthereceiptoftwenty-twoboxesofrecordswhichwerebeingsenttoJapanontheNorfolkMaru.Awoodenboxinsideoneofthetwenty-twoboxeswastobeturnedovertotheNavy AmericanEmbassyTokyoGetFuel

tosupplyoilfortheEmbassyheatingsysteminTokyo.Theoriginaldispatchexplainingthe TokyoRequestsOfficialsBringRecordingApparatus
ThreedayslaterForeignMinisterTogoinquiredwhethertheshortwavereceivingapparatus thatOfficialKobata,whowasembarkingontheTatsutaMaru,wouldtaketheapparatustoJapan.Hefurtherreportedthatfiverecordingmachinesandcylinderswhichwerelabeledas moneybyAmericansinJapan,50lAmbassadorNomuraansweredonOctober29,1941thataccordingtotheAmericangovernmentandtheNationalCityBank,ifdollarswerepaidtothe

YokohamaSpecieBankAmericaandtheYokohamaSpecieBankinTokyopaidanequiv-
TokyotoissuechecksanddraftstobecashedbytheNationalCityBank.H~pointedoutthatinasmuchastherewerenomailfacilitiesatpresentbetweenJapanandAmerica,exchangeandthebuyingandsellingofchecksweremostinconvenientandthattherewasnootherwaythantoremitfundsbytelegraph.5O2TheAmbassadorrequestedpermissiontoconferwith SecretaryHullregardthisproposal.
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Foreign Minister Togo answered on the following day that the American Embassy in Tokyo

staff of the Embassy and its members wrote checks on their private accounts in banks in the
United States. These private checks would be sold, according to the practice of using the re-
verse money order.5O3 Therefore Japan suggested that the responsibility for this practice be

City Bank's cash funds in Japan be held to ensure its fixed deposits rather than to buy money
orders. The only money which could be used for this purpose would be that received by the
Yokohama Specie Bank through the sale of telegraphic money orders from America. It wasby31.

From Mr. Atcheson of the State Department Finance division, Mr. Sadao Iguchi learned
that details of the negotiations concerning expense money for diplomatic staffs and employees

salaries still remained pending. Since the United States had asked that the salaries for AugustthattheOn31,
ury Department officials had insisted on further delay, declaring that they would have to con-
sider the mutual release of funds for the expenses of diplomatic establishments from all

sure on Japan, particularly in the matter of supply oil, unless Japan completely mended her
ways. Certain oil tankers which were evidently in the United States and which were awaiting
developments had been ordered to sail. Ambassador Nomura believed that all matters in-

relations proposal under consideration. 506

189. Minister Directs That Cargo Ships Return to Japan .

Referring to a dispatch of October 14 regarding export permits for gasoline, Foreign Minister
Togo instructed on Qctober 30, 1941 that in case negotiations were not completed soon, ar-

nese finance officials. 507

190. Broadcast Wave Length Proves Unsatisfactoryasonbeto
>oaIV, 368.
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hadbeenaskedtohaveitsmoneysentbytheAmericangovernmentthroughtheYokohamaSpecieBank,butthatbecauseoftheredtapeinvolved,theEmbassypreferredtocontinuetheircustomarymethodofsellingmoneyordersandchecks.Atthepresenttime,hesaid,the placedontheNationalCityBankofNewYorkandaffiliatedbanks,andthattheNational askedthattheproposalbemadealongtheselinestotheStateDepartmentandtheresultwired2:00p.m.,October504

wouldbesenttoAmbassadorJosephC.Grew.AmbassadorNomuraaskedthatthoseinstruc­tionssenttoAmbassadorGrewbecarriedout,althoughthequestionofthepaymentofback andSeptemberaswellasthoseforOctoberbepaidinalumpsum,AmbassadorNomura askedForeignOfficecontactthefinanceministryimmediatelyandwireareply.505Octoberhowever,AmbassadorNomurainformedhishomeForeignOfficethatTreas­
angles.HepointedoutthattheUnitedStatesrefused,moreover;toeaseitseconomicpres­volvingrelationsbetweenthetwocountriesweregreatlyaffectedbytheadjustmentofthe rangementsshouldbemadetohavetheltsukushimaMamandtheShoyoMarusentbacktoJapan.InthisregardAmbassadorNomurawastogetintouchwithSanFranciscoandJapa-

Reporting,wasrequestedOctober24,AmbassadorNomuradeclaredthattherewasno
sensitivityandthatreceptionwasimpossibleonthenewwavelength.Herequestedthatthe wavelengthchangedimmediatelyJAU2-7.237.5k.c.5O8 



conversation with a and Secretary Terasaki was reported. a declared that when he

had talked with President Roosevelt, the President had disclosed that he had hoped more

to be too grave in its implication and thereby delayed the publication. In addition, a had

proposed the Konoye-Roosevelt conference be held on board a Japanese warship. Although

a had withheld the announcement for a few days, he had finally published it. It was the
belief of a

and the Strong Policy Advocates, the first group headed by the President and including Underofof
192. Ambassador Nomura Sends Representative to "America First" Meeting

has met " Secretary Terasaki asked a

"America First", that the United States was about to fight with Germany concerning its policy
of "Britain First" in the Atlantic, and with Japan under its policy of "China First" in the

States and that the American people did not understand the reason for such a war, although,
fundamentally, it would be due to the China problem. Secretary Terasaki had further stated
on this occasion that it was a mistake to think that Japan would give in if it were driven into a
tight corner by the United States. It was necessary to view realistically the situation in the

to cut off her petroleum supplies.51O193.to
Ambassador Nomura reported on November 1, 1941 that a would continue to devote

and America. Although Secretary Terasaki would be the liaison agent, the committee would
be promoted by Americans and would have the appearance of being financed by American
money in spite of the fact that a portion of the actual expense would be born by the Japanese
Embassy.

Ambassador Nomura explained at this time that an early attempt to establish the committee
had been delayed by the United States freezing order and by the invasion of French Indo-

York. a had proposed that a second meeting of the committee be held in Washington in

51OIV,374.

191.JapanLearnsofAllegedSourceofNewsLeak
AccordingtoanintelligencereportwhichwastransmittedtoTokyoonNovember1,1941,a stronglynowthanevertomeettheleadersofJapan.Withtheideathatthisdisclosurewasagreat"scoop",ahadimmediatelywiredhisNewYorkeditor,whobelievedthismatter "soundedout"anofficialintheStateDepartment.HehadlearnedfromhimthatJapanhad 

that the State Department was divided into two factions, the Moderationists 

SecretarySumnerWelles,MaxwellM.HamiltonandJosephW.Ballantine,thesecondgroupconsistingSecretaryStateCordellHull,Mr.StanleyHornbeckandCabotCoville.5O9
AmbassadorNomurainformedTokyothathehadrushedSecretaryTerasakitoNewYorkonOctober30forthemeetingoftheAmericaFirstCommittee.Theretheintelligenceagent totellColonelLindbergh,whowasfor Pacific.HecommentedonthefactthatacrisiswasathandbetweenJapanandtheUnited Orient,sinceitwasmostinconsistenttofearasouthwardpushbyJapanandatthesametime 

JapaneseOfficialsPlanOrganizeandFinanceNewCommittee
OnthemorningofOctober31,SecretaryTerasakihaddiscussedwithathesametopicsaboutwhichheandahadtalked.511 hiseffortstowardtheorganizingofacommitteetopermitfriendlyrelationsbetweenJapan China.ThecommitteehadnoinfluentialmemberswhenthefirstmeetingwasheldinNew 
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
September (sic) to discuss Japanese-American relations. Explaining the present state of

strainedrelationsbetweenthetwocountries,SecretaryTerasakipointedoutthataslongasAmericacontinuedtowithholdoilfromJapan,therewasnotmuchhopeofprogressbeingmade.SecretaryTerasakidesiredtohaveamemberofthecommitteemeetwithSecretaryofStateHulltostatetheobjectionsofthecommittee,whichmeetingwoulddeterminewhetherthecommitteeshouldbecontinuedordissolved.Ithadbeenarranged,AmbassadorNomura

said, to have a come to Washington to carry out this program.512194.TokyoForeseesNeedofSurveyofUnitedStatesEconomicSystem
OnNovember1,1941,ForeignMinisterTogoexplainedthatthenecessityofacomplete

survey of present United States economics under war time conditions had been recognized by

Japan for a long time. Since Japan's 1941 budget included expenditures for the survey, it was
plannedtoexpandthefinancialdivisionoftheTokyo,NewYork,andWashingtonofficesand ,

toestablishanindependenteconomicsurveyofficeinNewYork.Temporarily,however,in

view of present conditions, it had been decided to proceed only with the expansion of present
financialdivisions,andtheEmbassywasinstructedtocommencetheirworkwiththecom-mercialattache'soffice,usinganysuitableUnitedStatessurveysalreadymadeonthissub-ject.TheAmbassadorwouldbeallowedonesecretaryandtwoclerksforthiswork,andsuit-ablepersonswerenowbeingselected.513195.AmbassadorNomuraSaysAmericanPeopleNotReadytoEnterEuropeanWar

FortheinformationoftheJapaneseForeignMinister,aswellasMinisterYoshiakiMiurainMexico,AmbassadorNomurasentadispatchpaintingageneralpictureofthesituationashesawitonNovember4,1941.ItwashisbeliefthatthepublicmindintheUnitedStateswasnotoneiotamoreincensedagainstGermanyinspiteoftheincreaseindamagestodestroyers

and merchantmen. Therefore, it was unlikely that the government would sever relations with
Germany and invite war. Germany, knowing that a bout with the United States would not be
advantageous,would,asfaraspossible,refrainfromanoutrightwaragainstAmerica.Atthe

present time, content with furnishing the maximum material assistance, patrolling the sea,

andaffordingtechnicalaid,theUnitedStateswasnotyetreadytobecomeinvolvedinEuro-

pe.514

Inside the United States, the people were worrying about internal problems such as prices,
increased taxes, inflation and other such matters affecting their immediate welfare. Govern-

mentofficials,ontheotherhand,seemedinclinedtowanttokeepEnglandfighting,andwhen

the last extremities were reached, to jump in and seize the victory. That the United States was

aidingRussiadidnotsignifythatitapprovedofCommunism,butmeantonlythattheUnitedStatescoulduseRussiatoitsownends,AmbassadorNomuradeclared.515
AstotheexertionofpressureontheJapanese,however,theAmericanofficialshadthefullbackingofAmericanpeople,whoseemedtothinkthattheirpresentstrengthintheAtlantic

was sufficient for national defense and for protection against war. In the face of Japan's daunt-
lessattitude,theAmericansdidnotshowtheslightestfear.516Militaryofficials,however,didnotsharethisoptimismsincetheyknewboththatEnglishmoralewasnotasgoodasreported"DoDcomment:Namewithheld.
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andthat,afterthefallofRussia,EnglandmightpossiblymakepeacewithGermany.TheyrealizedthattheMediterraneanSeawasagraveperilandthattheUnitedStateswasintend-

ing to under-emphasize the situation in the Pacific while exaggerating the gravity of the
problemintheAtlantic.Thesemilitaryofficialsknewfullwellwhatanuisanceawarinthe

Pacific would be. In the advent of war, editorials had stated that the location of troops and the

moment for striking would be chosen quickly, as soon as the whole situation had been taken
into consideration.517

196. Japan Asks Representations in Mail Examination
That the American understanding of the arrangements with the United States government

concerning the schedule of ships carrying mail differed from the Japanese understanding, was
pointedoutinadispatchfromtheForeignMinistertoWashingtononNovember4,1941.Anundesirableeffecthadbeencreatedbytheunexpectedexaminationofthemailonthenight

before the sailing of the Tatsuta Maru, and it was suggested that representations clarifying the
mailsituationbemadetotheStateDepartment.ItwasnecessarythattheloadingofmailontheTaiyoMaruandtheHikawaMarubecarriedoutwithoutdifficulty.518198.AmbassadorNomuraReportsonBroadcastReception

In answer to a request from Tokyo for comment on the effectiveness of a change in foreign

broadcasts,AmbassadorNomura,onNovember5,1941,explainedthatthesensitivityoftheJLG415.105Kcsbroadcastwasfairlygoodbutthatotherpowerfulstationsinterferedafter8:00p.m.ThesensitivityofthissamewavelengthtoSanFrancisco,however,wasexcellentfrom6:00to8:00p.m.,andreceptionwasclear.520
199. Tokyo Itemizes Diplomatic Expenditures of Officials in United States.

OnNovember7,1941,TokyotransmittedalistitemizingthedispositionoftheOctoberand

November salaries of the various diplomatic and counselor offices in the United States. The

salaries and expenses of twenty-four of the personnel of the Embassy in Washington, as well astheactualtransfer,entertainmentandtelegraphicexpenses,wereitemizedinyen.521
200. Japan Reprimands Officials Concerning Dispatch Classification

AdispatchreprimandingJapaneseofficialestablishmentsintheUnitedStates,Thailand,andBataviabecauseoftheirhighprioritydispatchclassificationwastransmittedonNovem-

ber 8, 1941. The chief of the Telegraphic Communications in Tokyo explained that the num-
ber of messages designated "Kinqu" meaning "extremely urgent" had greatly increased, there-
byimplyingthattheywereofsuchvitalimportancethattheyneedbepassedonatwhatever

hour received to the Foreign Minister, Vice Minister or any other principal officials. Many of
these wires had been designated "Kinqu" with utter disregard as to their contents, and the
JapaneseEmbassyintheUnitedStateswasthemostfrequentuserofthisclassification.Furthermore,theChiefsaidtherewascertainlynonecessitytoputthewords"veryurgent"inEnglishbeforetheaddress.Heaskedthatspecialconsiderationbegiventothechoiceof

"Kinqu", "Daiqu" meaning "urgent" and "Sikyu" meaning "priority". 522
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR201.ConsulMutoReportsFurtherInvestigationofJapaneseAgents
FurtherinvestigationbytheF.B.I.ofa°wasreportedbyConsulMutoonNovember9,1941.Itwasapparentthatalthoughprimarilyinterestedingatheringevidencetobeused

against ° and ° they considered this case an important one. It was also evident

that the Department of Justice was conducting the investigation because of the numerous
statementsbeingmadebytheDiesCommitteeregardingJapanesepropagandaintheUnited

States. Evidently, too, the Department felt the need of an excuse for demanding the recall from

the United States to Japan of all Japanese Consuls General and Consuls.523202.ConsulMutoAsksConfirmationof°SalaryAsEmployeeofJapaneseNewspaper
In regard to the investigation of 0whowasofficiallyregisteredasaforeigncorrespondent

for the °, ConsulMutosaidthattherewaslittledangerofhisbeingprosecutedsinceduringtheexaminationhewoulddoubtlessbecalledupontoprovethathewashiredbythe

0 newspaper at $350 per month. The Consul asked that, in case of an inquiry to the news-
pape~'s home office, this fact be confirmed. 524203.AmericanBankinTokyoReceivesNoInstructionstoCooperateinJapaneseExchangePlan

ReferringtoasuggestionmadebyJapanregardingfinancialarrangementstotakecareofthediplomaticexpendituresinthetwocountries,ForeignMinisterTogowiredonNovember10thattheNationalCityBankbranchinTokyohadreceivednoinstructionsfromitshomeoffice.HeaskedthatofficialsinWashingtoninvestigatethepossibilitythatthehomeofficeoftheNationalCityBankdidnotunderstandthesituation.525
204. Manchukuoan Officials Seize Baptist Missionaries in Harbin

Ambassador Nomura learned, on November 11, that Manchukuoan police officials had
arrestedthreeAmericanmissionairesinHarbinonOctober22.Chargedwithinfractionofthe

peace preservation laws, the Baptist missionaries were said to have been instrumental in

organizing secret Korean organizations. Tokyo had suggested to its Ambassador in Manchukuo
that the missionaires be deported. After conferring with the military and the Manchukuoan
authorities, the Ambassador said that the missionaries would be deported. 526

In a message to Hsingking on the next day, Tokyo declared that the American Embassy had
asked that if the missionaries were to be given a fair trial, they be permitted before banish-

menttovisitHarbintosettletheirpersonalaffairs.527Manchukuoanofficialsandmilitary

authorities authorized this visit to Harbin.528205.ForeignMinisterOutlinesPolicyinChinainEventofUnitedStatesWar
In a circular dispatch to Japanese-occupied states in China, Foreign Minister Togo on

November14outlinedJapaneseforeignpolicyinChina,shouldwarbedeclaredbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStates.TheCabinethaddecidedtodestroycompletelyBritishandAmericanpowerinChina,totakeoverallconcessions,rightsandinterestsaswellastherightsandinterestsofenemypowers,evenshouldtheybeconnectedwiththenewChinesegovern-

ment.aDoDcomment:Namewithheld.aDoDcomment:Nameandidentifyingdatawithheld.
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In carrying out these steps, the Imperial Government would avoid exhausting its veteran

fundamental policy of the Imperial Government would be to reinforce military strength from

the whole Far Eastern area should Japanese reserves and military strength for total war wane.

acquisition of materials, especially from unoccupied areas. Consequently, the circular di-

rected that various restrictions then in force would be relaxed, although officials were to await
further instructions before carrying out decisions in this respect.529206.for

Viewing the prospect of an emergency, at which time diplomats, government officials and

other Japanese would be forced to evacuate, the finance official in Washington requested that

in that city be given the right of attorney for the purpose of issuing the payment of gold. 530207.forInatoon
emergency. Explicit instructions regarding the disposal of the scrambling section, the printer
and all other markers on the machines and rectifiers were included in the dispatch which wastobebytode208.to
thing in its power to get Italy to leave the Axis. According to the Secretary, American Ambas-

and Benito Mussolini in the Azores. The attempt ended in failure due to Italy's fear of German
objection. The Japanese intelligence agent who reported the Italian Secretary's remarks,
added that the United States strategy to be employed against Japan in case of a Japanese-
American war was to demolish the manufacturing centers at the outset by means of air raids.
It was an understanding that sixteen airplane carriers were either being remodeled or camou-

supply routes in the China Sea.532

209. Japan Plans to Preserve Shanghai Public Peace When American Marines Evacuate
Meanwhile, in Shanghai, the Commander of the American Marines had discussed with the

Commander-in-Chief of the Japanese forces there official orders for the withdrawal of the

52"IV,394.
53OIV,395.

Lima,PeruChosenGoldDepositsforEmergencyUseTokyoSendsInstructionsEmergencyDestructionofCodeMachinesdispatchfromTokyoWashingtonNovember15,1941,JapaneseofficialsexplainedrelayedWashingtonMexico,RioJaneiroandBuenosAires.531UnitedStatesAttemptsSeparateItalyfromAxis,AmbassadorNomuraReports 
troopstherebyprovidingstrengthtocopewithworldwaronaalongtimescale.Thewhole Inrealizationthesesteps,itdecidedtoutilizeimportantChineseinoccupiedterritoriesinsofaraswaswaspossible,therebyprovidingforcooperativeoccupationofofmili­tarybasesbyandChina.Atsametime,JapanJapanwouldplacegreatimportanceuponthethethethethe ViceMinisterofFinanceTokyoarrangetohavegoldavailableLima,Peru.SinceexchangecontrolwasmorelenientinininPeru,heaskedthatthethetheYokohamaSpecieBankbranch -theorderandmethodwhichtheircodemachinesweretobedestroyedinintheeventofan InanintelligencereportonNovember16,AmbassadorNomurastatedthataccordingMr.L.Dainelli,secretaryattachedtotoItalianEmbassy,thetheUnitedStateswasdoingevery­sadorPhillipsinRomehadworkedhardto

arrangeaconferencebetweenPresidentRoosevelt flagedandthatthirty-twoadditionalonesweretheprocessofconstruction.AfurtherstrategywouldbetoisolateforcesininChinabyseveringthroughsubmarinewarfareJapaneseJapanese 531396.532IV,IV,397.130 



November 20.533

210. Tokyo Decides to Permit Remittances from America to Cultural Institutions

organizations in Japan to receive remittances from America. They would also permit remit-

tances from Japanese to cultural organizations in America which amount was estimated at

400,000 yen. According to the dispatch from Tokyo to Hsingking, negotiations were being con-
ducted in America on this matter. 534211.ofof

Ambassador Nomura was advised on November 18, 1941 of a plan to evacuate from the Uni-

absolutely not be held back, company officials, and all residents who were unable to boardtoto
mon good, and to destroy immediately such secret documents as were in the possession of
Japanese Companies and Chambers of Commerce. In case of Paragraph "B", (referring to a
dispatch of November 15)535 means of cooperation between the diplomatic officials and con-atotheof
212. Japanese Officials in European Countries Warned of Critical Situation

ference with Imperial General Headquarters since November 7 for the purpose of discussing
the achievements of diplomatic relations on a just basis. Although there was considerable
doubt that a settlement of negotiations would be reached, Japan felt that it had given its maxi-

furture was not permitted, Japan expected to find itself in an extremely critical situation

should these negotiations be broken off. Japanese official establishments in Switzerland,

Moscow, France, Spain, Portugal, Sweden, Finland, South Africa, Roumania, Bulgaria and

Hungary received this information. 537

213. Shanghai United Settlement Council Decides Cooperative Protection Plan

Military Training Bureau Police should assume patrol of the British section in that city. Ac-

cording to the dispatch of November 20, 1941, this plan had been suggested at the meeting of

"'IV, 399.PartA
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
TokyoAdvisesAmbassadorNomuraPlanEvacuationadvisedsecretlyhelpthosecitizenswhowereremainbehindtoworktogetherforthecom­while,planreducesizesstaffswasbeingformulated.536 
535IV,115. 

AmericanMarinesatplace.Consequently,learnedNovember17,1941thatthatarmiesplanneddivideresponsibilityfordefense"C"betweenMunicipalCouncilPoliceandthethethethethetheShanghaivolunteersquad.Thearmy,however,participatefreelypreservepublicpeacewheneverititwaswasdeemednecessary.AnannouncementofofJapaneseJapaneseJapaneseintentionsinrespecttototodefendingthisareaareawouldwouldbemadeonon ByNovember18,1941,theImperialGovernmenthaddecidedgrantpermitstotoreligious tedStatesincaseofnecessity,theremainingJapaneseofficialsandsuchpersonsasmust threeshipspreviouslydispatched.NoonewouldwarnedsaveresidentsmustreturnJapan.ForeignMinisterexplainedthatthosethosewhowhoembarkedatfirstsailingwasmuchsmallerthanoriginalnumbernumberofofapplicantsduedoubtlessnos­talgiaandreluctancepartwiththeirpropertyinthethethethetheUnitedStates.TheTheconsulsweretotototobebesulates,well

asasresponsibilityforinterestsofthethehighoffices,werebeingstudied.Mean-Topro-AxismindedAmbassadorTurkey,ForeignMinisterTogodirectedadispatchconcerningJapanese-Americanrelations.Hereportedthatthethegovernmenthadbeeninincon-mumeffortstobringaboutasettlementofnegotiations.Sinceanoptimistic,viewpointforthe FollowingwithdrawalofAmericanMarinesfromShanghai,itwasdecidedthatthethethe .33IV,398.'37IV,401.131 



the United Settlement Council on November 10. Such a plan was to be communicated to the
Marine Commander and would explain the cooperative protection plan in which the organized

From an intelligence dispatch originating in Peking, China, Tokyo learned of reports that

Missionary University and Rockerfeller Hospital personnel had received orders from the Amer-

ican government to evacuate. Consequently, Mr. Stewart and other members were hurrying

to leave by way of Shanghai. Further advice on this subject would be later transmitted. 539

215. Foreign Minister Directs Havana Consul in Regard to Emergency Fund
Meanwhile, the Consul in Havana had received a dispatch on November 20, 1941 from

Furthermore, instructions were sent from Tokyo on this day to Mr. Mogami, Trade BureautheHetoof
216. Foreign Office Considers Scheduling Another Evacuation Vesselon24,Inof
instructed to impress upon the leaders of the Japanese residents in the United States that
officials were considering their welfare and were looking out for their safety.542

217. Japan Makes Provisions for Financing South American Diplomatic Establishments
Japanese officials in Tokyo had decided that the best way to provide funds for the South

American diplomatic establishments would be to collect the unfrozen dollar accounts of Japa-

was to send the information to Tokyo. Furthermore, he was to consider the ways or means of

also to be utilized in this plan.543218.at
arrangement would be convenient in many ways.544
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structureswouldbedeterminedbythevariousarmygroupsparticipating.538214.JapaneseAgentsReportAmericanHospitalStaffsToBeEvacuatingPeking,ChinaForeignMinisterTogoconcerningthe3,000dollarswhichhewastohaveonhand.54O
representativeinNewYork,tosellhisfurnishings,closehisoffice,andevacuatewiththerestof Consulate.wasgivenpermissiondisposeunimportantitems.54!

TheinformationthatanunderstandinghadbeenestablishedbetweenJapanandtheUnitedStatesregardingthedispatchingofasecondshipwastransmittedtoWashingtonfromTokyo November1941.viewtheeverworseningstateofaffairsbetweenthetwocountries,
theForeignOfficewasconsideringthedispatchofasecondvessel.AmbassadorNomurawas neseresidentsintheUnitedStateswithrepaymentassuredlaterinJapanproper.AssoonasAmbassadorNomurahadestima,tedtheamountwhichcouldbecollectedbythismethod,he sendingthefundssocollectedtotheSouthAmericanofficesbycouriermail.ThepersonalfundsoftheJapanesenationalsinNewYork,Chicago,LosAngelesandSanFranciscowere 

ConsulMorishimaAsksThattheTatsutaMaruDockNewYork
MeanwhileConsulMorishimainNewYorksuggestedthattheTatsutaMarutouchporttheresincethereweremanyinNewYorkwhowishedtoreturnhomeandforwhomsuchan 5..IV,409.132 



220. Japan Wires Washington Schedule of the Tatsuta Maru

Consul Morishima was advised to aid in returning as many Japanese as possible by this ship.thebeinasa
ber 26, 1941 that Japanese residents all over America had already set up a mutual aid system
for this purpose. In San Francisco a fund of $6,000 had been accumulated, but in Chicago and
elsewhere the Japanese residents were weaker financially and had practically no funds. The
Ambassador added that although the F.B.I. had compiled a complete register of members of
the Japanese Association and the Industrial Council, there appeared to be no stigma attached
to the list.548

221. Japan Decides to Close the Japanese Cultural Associationtoaof
tion whereby Japan would permit remittances of funds to an unidentified organization and
the Women's College in Tokyo, if the United States would release 30,000 yen for the Japanese
Cultural Association in the United States was refused. Inasmuch as rumors pointed to Secre-
tary Hull's being very suspicious of this organization's activities, the Consul feared that the
Cultural Association had very little chance of getting any expense funds. Although there was
no understanding with the United States concerning the continuance of this organization, if
and when the worst happened it would nevertheless be difficult to close it suddenly. 549

cial ship be sent to transport its employees to Japan. Should the organization close down, the
Consul had already effected an understanding with Columbia University to take over the

can institution would be continued in this way.550

222. Bank Employees Receive Instructions to Evacuate With the Embassy Staffon
223. Japanese Official List of Agencies Printing Japanese Propaganda

agencies in the United States. According to the dispatch the Los Angeles News, the Calif-
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORleaveYokohamaonDecember2,1941,arriveatLosAngelesonDecember14,1941,leaveLosAngelesDecember16,1941,andarriveatBalboaonDecember24,1941.546Japanesewhowouldreturningandsecretmanneraspossible.547AccordingJapanesedispatchNovember26,1941fromNewYorktoTokyo,aproposi-
States.ThisdispatchwastranslatedDecember5,1941.551 

IntentativeschedulewiredtoWashingtonitwasdecidedthatthetheTatsutaMaruwouldInasmuchasnoplanshadbeenmadedispatchanyothervesselstototheUnitedStates, Sinceitnecessarywirenumberbeevacuated,thetheConsulwaswastototogetintouchwith InaccordancewithinstructionssentNovember18,1941thatJapanesecitizenswhore­mainedbehindshouldbeaidedmuchasaspossible,AmbassadorNomurawiredononNovem-Headvised,therefore,theCulturalAssociationbeclosedimmediatelyandthatthataspe­Association'scuriesandbooks.Hepointedoutthattheorganization'spositionasanAmeri-OnNovember25,1941AmbassadorNomurainformedaccordingtoCommis­sionerTsutomuNishiyamaNewYorkBankofofJapanJapanwouldactaccordanceEmbassystaffstaffregardingevacuationfromStates.HeaskedthatthatFor­eignOfficegettouchallbanks

andcompanieswithwithwithrepresentativesinininthethethethethetheUnitedUnitedOnNovember25,1941,AmbassadorforwardedtoTokyoadispatchwhichnamedthethe 



omiaDailyNewsandtheAmericanIndustrialDailyinLosAngeleshadJapaneseaffiliations.

In San Francisco the North American rimes and the North American Daily received Japa-
nesebroadcasts.HealsomentionedtheGlobePressServiceandtheNBCBroadcastingCom-panyashavingforeignaffiliations.HeaddedthattheUnitedStatesPressWireless,theNewYorkTimesandtheNewYorkHeraldTimeshadmaintainedlisteningstationsfromtimeto

time although at the present time this ervice was suspended.552

224. Ambassador Nomura Suggests Improvements in Broadcast Service
For the purpose of improving the reception of Japanese broadcasts (Ambassador Nomura

had previously complained about bad radio reception), he suggested that 12,000 to 13,000
kilicycles be used in the summer and that 7,000 to 12,000 kilocycles be used as the best wave
length in the winter. Besides suggesting improvement in sensitivity and time of broadcast,
hesaidthatthecontentswereunnecessarilyverboseandnotsufficientlyaccurate,andthat

the reports concerning conditions in Japan should be more terse and up to the minute. In
regardtotheChinaincident,hesuggestedthatthenewsbesummarizedfromvariousquartersaboutonceaweek.HefurthersuggestedthattheDomeiAgencytaketheleadershipinkeeping

Japanese residents in the United States informed regarding the course of Japanese relations
in case of an emergency. 554TwodayslaterTokyowiredanewbroadcastschedulewhichwouldapplytothePacificcoast,
to the Western hemisphere and to Europe.555

Onthesameday,however,JapaneseofficialsinWashingtonrequestedthattwooftheradiowavelengthsbechangedimmediatelybecauseofpoorreception.ItwasaddedthattheEuro-

pean broadcast could not be heard at all.556225.AnEmergencyCodeSystemBecomesEffective
OnNovember27,1941acirculardispatchfromTokyooutlinedanemergencydispatchsystemusinghidden-wordormisleading-languagetelegrams.Atablewastobemadeupwiththelefthandcolumncontainingthecodewordsandtherightthecorrespondingplaintext.Itwasdirectedthatacarefulstudyofthetablebemadeandthatcarebetakentomakenomistakeintranscribingthedispatch.Todistinguishthesecablesfromothers,theEnglish

word "stop" would be added at the end as an indicator. For example, the code word "Hatake-
yama"wouldmean"relationsbetweenJapanandhavebeensevered".Codewordstoindicatethenamesofthirdcountriesaswellastimesofday,monthandyearwereincludedinthelist.ThisdispatchwasdecodedandtranslatedonDecember2,1941.557(Comment.a)
226. Ambassador Nomura Is Asked to Request Permits fo; Entrance of Japanese from Hawaii

OnNovember28,1941ForeignMinisterTogoaskedthatAmbassadorNomuranegotiateinthedifficultyofreturningapproximatelytenevacueesfromHawaiitoTokyo.HepointedouttheJapanesemusteithergotoLosAngelesbyAmericanboatorthattheymustgetspecialpermitsasthroughpassengersonaJapanesevesselbywayoftheUnitedStates.Thematter

had been taken up with the American Consul in Tokyo, Foreign Minister Togo added. 558

mIV,418.

55aIV, 420-421.

'55'IV,418.

555IV, 419.

55"IV,422.

557IV,423."DoDcomment:Seespecialsupplement,VolumeV,forstudyof"hiddenword"messages.
55sIV, 424.
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ambiguous reply, sent three days later, answered that the State Department had no ob-
jection to the evacuees changing from Los Angeles to Honolulu.559

227. Japan Requests Manchukuo to Release American Missionaries
In a wire to Hsinking, Manchukuo, Foreign Minister Togo disclosed that Ambassador No-

mura had again inquired regarding the probable date of the release of the missionaries. Since
Maru to evacuate

its nationals, Japanese officials directed that the date of the release of the missionaries andtheforthebeto228.oftheoftwoinRioDeon229.of
and returned via the Tatsuta Maru, he asked whether they should obtain departure visas as
Japanese; whether they should attempt to give up their United States citizenship in a day or
so's time; or whether they could be taken out of the country as Consul employees, thus re-
taining their dual citizenship.563

230. Japan Issues Orders Concerning Disposition of Codes and Code Machines
In a circular dispatch of December 1, 1941 the Japanese Legation in Washington was ad-

vised to destroy codes, when the necessity arose, by means of chemicals which were on hand

procedure by the Navy Minister, the disptach declared.564231.toLosonIf
trip, establishing communications with Mexico instead.565232.ofIsin

55"IV,425.

'6°IV,426.

'6'IV,427.

'63IV,429.

'6'IV,431
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORprospectsreleasewiredtheHomeOfficeimmediately.560SecretaryTerasakiRequestsAddressesForeignersReceivingAmericanNewspapersaddressesforeignersthatcitywhowerereceivingAmericannewspapersandmaga­fromJaneiroDecember3,1941.562DifficultiesAriseConcerningEvacuationDualNationalityHolders 
CourierKosakaOrderedBackJapanleaveAngelesDecember25,1941.thisscheduleinterferedwithMr.Kosaka'splannedDestructionCodeMachinesOrderedLondon,Hongkong,Singapore,andManila 

An JapanwasinterestedcultivatinggoodwillininordertodispatchtheTatsuta OnNovember29,1941SecretaryTerasakiinWashingtonrequestedfromRiodeJaneiro zines.Heaskedthatthereplybesentimmediately.561ThenameswerelatertransmittedAminordifficultywasreportedTokyoonDecember1,1941byConsulKenjo!toNewOrleansininregardconsulatewhodualnationalityholdersandwishedreturnJapan.Since,accordingpreviousinstructions,employeesemployeeswereweretotototototobedischarged inNavalAttache'sofficeforthispurpose.TheAttacheshouldhavebeenadvisedonthethe ByDecember1,1941TokyohaddecidedhaveCourierSamuraiKosaka,whoar­riveshortlyinWashingtonfromBrazil,returntotoJapanontheTatsutaMaru,whichwouldwouldTheWashingtonLegationlearnedonDecember.1,1941thatregardlessofasubsequentwirecontaining

instructions,UnitedStatesofficewouldretainitsmachinesma­chinecodes.However,thethefourofficesinLondon,Hongkong,Singapore,andandManilahadbeen .62IV,428. .6.IV,430 



instructed to abandon the use of the code machines and to destroy them; the machine in
Batavia had already been returned to Japan. The dispatch was translated on December 1,
1941. 566

In a circular dispatch of December 2, 1941 (which was not read by United States cryptana-
lysts until December 8, 1941) recipients were instructed by the Foreign Minister to destroy all
telegraphic codes, including code books for communication between the three departments

emergency situation, Foreign Minister Togo asked that definite pains be taken to maintain
the secrecy of this action, and that the officials remain calm. 567

234. Officials Directed to Destroy Codes

Further proof of this was the fact that on December 3, 1941, the day after this "destructionofthetotheing.by
In a Tokyo circular of December 2, 1941, it was disclosed that orders had been issued to

Singora, Chienmai, and to all officials in British and Netherlands territory to return acknowl-
edgment after burning all telegraphic codes except one copy of "0" and "L". This dispatch
was transmitted from Berne, Switzerland, to Turkey on December 2, 1941.569235.to

However, according to a circular sent out by Tokyo on the next day, the code list "Ingo
Hikae", or hidden-word code, was to be retained by all offices until the last moment. In case

this had already been destroyed, copies would be resent to those offices. 570

236. Provisions Are Made for Evacuation of Diplomats
In connection with Financial Attache Nishiyama's suggestion that gold be sent to Lima,

Peru, to provide for possible evacuation of diplomats from the United States, he was directed

Specie Bank of his plans.571237.toof
ment's permission to change the schedule of the Tatsuta Maru, since Japan would like to have
the vessel stop at Manzanillo or Acapulco en route from Los Angeles to Balboa. This stop was

5"lV,432.
56'lV,433.

56SIV,434-435.

233.HavanaOfficeDirectedtoDestroyCodes 
andthecodebooksforthearmyandnavycommunication.Onecopyofthe"0"and"L"weretoberetained,andassoonasthisoperationhadbeencompleted,theonewordHarunawastobetransmitted.Allsecretdocumentsandtheworksheetsonthisdispatchweretobeimme­diatelyburned.Explainingthattheseinstructionsweretransmittedinpreparationforan OnDecember2,1941,theJapaneseEmbassyinWashingtonreceivedanorderfromTokyotodestroyallcodesexceptonecopyeachofthe"0"andthe"L"systems.Onlyonecodema­chine,however,wastobedestroyed;fromthisUnitedStatescryptanalystslearnedforthefirsttimethattheJapaneseLegationinWashingtonpossessedmorethanonecodemachine. order",therewasnormalvolumeinmachinetrafficbetweenWashingtonandTokyo.Also,all 

codesbroughtWashingtonofficebyCourierKosakaweretobedestroyedbyburn­ThisdispatchwasreadUnitedStatescryptanalystsonDecember3,1941.568
diplomaticofficialsinNorthAmericaandManila,Canada,Panama,Cuba,theSouthSeas, OfficialsDirectedRetainEmergencyCodeSystemAlso 

onDecember3,1941tohandlethematterinthisway.Hewasfirst,however,toinstructthe JapanRequestsPermissionChangeScheduleTatsutaMaru
TokyodirectedonDecember3,1941thatAmbassadorNomurarequesttheStateDepart­56"lV,436.570lV,437.5"lV,438.136 



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
tobemadeforthepurposeofpickingupfiftyorsixtypersonsinMexicowhowishedtoreturn

to Japan; no general cargo would be taken aboard.572

238. Ambassador Nomura Urges Magnanimity in Paying Employees Remaining in United States

Thequestionofthelengthandamountofpaymentsofemployees,bothforeignandnative,whoremainedintheUnitedStateswasdiscussedbyAmbassadorNomurainamessagetoTokyoonDecember3,1941.Incaseoftheunexpectedhappening,theseemployeeswouldbeplacedina'difficultpositionfromthestandpointofthelaw,andsociallyaspotentialenemies;

and the Ambassador felt that it would be far better, with a view to their friendship in the future,
totreatthemwiththemagnanimitybecomingagreatnationratherthantomakemuchado

over the amount of retirement allowances that they should receive. For these reasons he sug-
gested that such employees be paid, in addition to previously specified amounts, one month's
salary for each three years of service, without distinction as to foreigners or natives; he sug-
gestedtheminimumtotalofpaymenttobetwoandahalfmonthsofsalary,(andtwomonthsofsalaryforthosewhohadworkedlessthantwoyears).ThisdispatchwastranslatedonDec-

ember 9, 1941. 573239.StateDepartmentApprovesNewScheduleforTatsutaMaru
OnconsultingtheStateDepartmentinregardtotherearrangedscheduleoftheTatsuta

Maru, Ambassador Nomura learned that there was no opposition to the change. However,
since it would be necessary to confirm the permission in writing, the Ambassador asked that
hebeadvisedastowhentheshipwouldarriveinBalboaandwhatarrangementswithMexico

had been completed.574

AsSecretaryTerasakiwasinthemiddleofintelligencework,itwasrequestedthathere-mainintheUnitedStatesduringthisimportanttimeandthensailontheTatsutaMaru.It

was further added that Mr. Hiroichi Takagi was possibly negotiating with the State Depart-
ment regarding the Tatsuta Maru. 575

240. Ambassador Nomura is Instructed to Explain Japanese Military Activity in French Indo-China
OnDecember3,1941AmbassadorNomurawasinstructedtoexplainasfollowstherumorsthatJapanesemilitarygarrisonsinFrenchIndo-Chinawerebeingstrengthened:actually

Japan had only increased its forces in parts of North French Indo-China because of the unusual
amount of activity by the Chinese forces in the vicinity of the Sino-French Indo-China border.

Asaresultofthis,therewouldnat"\lrallybesomemovementoftroopsinthesouthernpartof

French Indo-China. The Japanese Foreign Office presumed that exaggerated reports of these

movementswerethesourcesoftherumorsthatmilitarystrengthwasbeingincreased.Inno

way had Japan violated the limitation contained in the Japanese-French Border Agree-
ment.576

241. Manchukuoan Officials Decide to Release Americans

Although the American Embassy in Tokyo had made special requests concerning the trial
oftheAmericanmissionariesinHarbin,577JapaneseofficialsinthatcitydecidedbyDecember4,1941topronouncesentenceupontheAmericans.OnDecember5,1941theirbanishment

from the country would become effective. The Manchukuoan authorities, however, would liketohavethesepersonscontacttheAmericanconsulbeforetheywereescortedtotheborder.578
572IV,439.573IV,440.
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575IV,442.

57"IV,443.

577IV,444.
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242. Japan Sends Funds for Returning of Families of Japanese Diplomatic Employees

Sadao Iguchi, Matsudaira, Ta.kashashi, Horiuchi, Hiroshi Hori, Morito Morishima, Toyoji

Inoue, Shinichi Kondo, Saichi Amano, Hayasida, and Watanabe. 579

in Japan declared that an officer of the American

directing that no permit would be required to take out personal effects, household effects, or
personal baggage.580

244. Ambassador Kurusu Suggests United States Investigate Western Transportation Company
For Ambassador Nomura's information, a Japanese dispatch of December 4, 1941 declared

that eighty or ninety per cent of the materials carried by rail via Burma went to fatten the

terest, and that only ten or twenty per cent of the electric freight trains on the route were used
for the transportation of materials for the government. This information had come to Japan
through a ", an acquaintance of Ambassador Kurusu. " had heard these facts on
November 26, 1941 from the Shanghai Branch Manager of the Canadian Pacific. If Ambassa-
dor Kurusu suggested to the United States that the Western Transportation Company be
investigated, the results of the investigation might dampen United States aid to China.581

246. Mystery Dispatch or Coded Wire Sent to Rio de Janeiro

only these words: "Best regards. If you want any money to do any shopping for yourself, let

certain. 584247.toof
Section, wired the information that codes had been destroyed; but since United States-Japa-
nese negotiations were yet continuing on this day (December 5, 1941), he requested permis-

1941. 585248.in
Retransmitting a dispatch which had been sent from Peking to Foreign Minister Togo on

5.oIV, 448.

."IV.451.

243.AmericanEmbassyRequiresNoPermitforTakingOutPersonalBelongings 
IguchiAsksPermissionDelayDestructionOneCodeMachineJapaneseOfficialsWashingtonLearnThatAmericanMarinesWillEvacuateShanghai4DoDcomment:Namewithheld. 

MeanwhileJapanwiredthatfundshadbeensentreturnpassageforforthethefamiliesofOnDecember4,1941,theForeignMinister EmbassyhadbroughttoHeadofthetheAmericanSectiononOctober14,1941adispatch cofferMr.Soong.ThisduetofactthatallshippingonBurmarouteamono­polyofofWesternTransportationCompany,whichwaswaswasinturncontrolledbythethethetheSoongin-Meanwhile,adispatchtoRiodeJaneiroinplaintextsentonDecember4,1941contained meknowbytelegramairmail.(Eisei)".Apparentlyitcodemessageororaadisptachbe­tweentelegraphoperatorsintwoEmbassies;actualmeaningofthethethedispatchwaswasun-TheCounselorEmbassy,Iguchi,inadispatchtoChiefofofthethetheCommunication siontodelaythedestructionofonecodemachine.Thisdispatchwasdecoded

December6, November27,1941,ForeignOfficeinformedAmbassadorNomuraonDecember4,1941thetheAmericanmarinesevacuateShanghaiverysoon.Allleaveexceptafewwhohadbeentrainedinairforceservice.Itwasestimatedthatthatthisgroupwouldwouldwouldprobablygoto57"IV.446-447. 5.1IV,449.5.5IV,452.138 



Vladivostok as advance troops to lay the ground for the establishment of an American air base

disclosure by the head of a Marine groUp.586 According to the dispatch as sent from Peking, itwasawas249.to
Mr. Takagi, Mr. Ando, Mr. Yamamoto and others leave by plane within the next couple ofby250.

Consul Morishima through the Washington Embassy requested permission from Tokyo to

return Mr. Deniti Hikida on the Tatsuta Maru. Mr. Hikida was an authority on the Negro prob-

qther capacities. Since the Consul felt that it would be to Japanese interest for Hikida to
return home, he asked authorization to advance him passage for Japan. Because the time of
departure was fast approaching, he requested immediate advice.591

251. Ambassador Nomura Requests Additional Expense Money

expenses and secret expenses for the third quarter had amounted to more than $41,000; more-
over, the telegraph fund had not been sufficient up to December. He, therefore, requested that
one month's allotment limited to the use ofthe Washington office be transferred by cable.592

252. Ambassador Kurusu Asks That Secretary Terasaki Remain in the United States

tary Terasaki be allowed to remain in the United States since, as organizer of the intelligence

Terasaki assume his post as soon as he knew definitely that the negotiations were ended. Thiswason6,
253. Japan Continues Making Evacuation Plans

not available, to arrange to go to South America.594

586IV,453.
58'IV, 454.589

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
there.AccordingtothedispatchsenttoWashingtontheinformationhadbeenderivedfroma corporaloftheMarineswhowasresponsiblefortheinformationalslip.587

OnlyafewdaysbeforetheJapaneseattackonPearlHarbor,theFourthMarines,evacuatedfromShanghai,China,arrivedinthePhilippinesaboardthePresidentHarrison.588Theliner laterseizedbytheJapanese.589TokyoOrdersTerasaki,Takagi,Ando,andYamamotoReturntoJapan
AdispatchfromTokyotoWashingtononDecember5,1941askedthatSecretaryTerasaki,days.ThisdispatchwasreadUnitedStatescryptanalystsonDecember6,1941.590ConsulMorishimaRequestsPermissionforMr.HikidatoReturnHome

lemintheUnitedStatesandhadbeenutilizedbytheJapanesepropagandaworkamongtheNegroes.Hehadalsoservedingatheringgeneralintelligence,ininvestigationsandinvarious AmbassadorNomurainformedhishomeofficealsoonDecember5,1941thatincidental OnDecember5,1941SpecialAmbassadorKurusudirectedarequesttoTokyothatSecre­setup,hewasextremelyimportantinviewoftheconditionsofJapanese-UnitedStatesnego­tiations.Makingtherequestasapersonalfavor,AmbassadorKurususaidthathewouldhave

dispatchtranslatedDecember1941.593
Mr.Furumoto,managingdirectorofDomeiNewsinTokyo,instructedhisrepresentativesinNewYorktoreturnquietlytoTokyobytheTatsutaMaru,andincasesuchpassagewere 58BIV,455-456. BattleReport,plateLVIII.

59DIV,457.591IV,458.592IV,459.593IV,460. "'IV,461,463.
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and that Mr. Itamski, being needed in intelligence activities, would return in the same way as

tion concerning Tokyo's request for approximately sixty persons aboard the Tatsuta Maru,
since the assignment of staterooms would be necessary. 597

254. Tokyo Clarifies Code Machine Reference

destroyed and the other retained for the time being. 598

appreciation and thanks for their patriotic efforts from Bureau Chief Yamamoto. 599

255. Japan Issues Its Policy Regarding Allied Diplomatic Officials

cerning its policies applying to allied diplomatic and consular officials, to other subjects resid-

internatiopallaw insofar as possible, exercising care that no enemy or third power nations should

have cause for retaliatory measures or unfavorable propaganda.
Diplomatic and consular officials would be exchanged for Japanese diplomatic and consular

officials resident in allied countries. But until the time of exchange, the telephone would be
cut off in diplomatic establishments; consular offices would be closed and sealed and short

venience in daily living would be caused to allied officials. In regard to allied subjects resid-

sonnel, persons of special technical skill, persons suspected of being foreign spies and all
males between the ages of eighteen and forty-five would be placed under arrest for the present.
Caution would be exercised to avoid ill-treatment of these persons, however, since Japan also
had many nationals resident in allied territories.

tion and Consular building would be confiscated, although privately owned allied property
would not be seized except in the event of general requisitioning.

the use of codes. Allied diplomatic and consular officials in Manchukuo would be handled intheasin
5951V,462.
"61V,464.
59'IV, 465.

59slV,466.
5991V,467.
.ooIV, 468, 469.
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DomeiofficialKatoinWashingtonwasalsoaskedattempttotoprocurepassageontheItwasreportedfromNewYorkthatMr.OkamutowouldembarkforTokyoatLosAngeles theConsulatestaff.DecisionsregardingMoriwakiandMr.Mr.HiramitsuwouldbemadeMeanwhile,onDecember6,1941,ConsulMutoinSanFranciscoaskedforfurtherinforma-TokyoadvisedCounselorIguchi6referenceininstructionswiredononDecemberDecember2hadmeantthatthatonesetofthethethecodecodemachinesmachinesweretotobe OnthefollowingdayIguchiandhisstaffwellasasSecretaryYukireceivedamessageof InformationwasdisseminatedbyTokyoonDecember6and7inacirculardispatchcon­inginJapan,topubliclyandandprivatelyownedalliedproperty.DeclaringthatJapanapproachthesemattersthemagnanimityofagreatnation,

itwouldwouldcomplywithwith waveradiowirelessequipmentseizedinbothconsularofficesandandLegations;noincon­inginJapan,individualswhowereobjectsofsuspicion,militarymen,seamen,aviationper-PubliclyownedpropertyheldbyAlliesinJapan,withthetheexceptionofEmbassy,Lega-Itwasaddedthatdiplomaticandconsularofficialsofquasi-alliedcountrieswouldbedenied 

TatsutaMam,thealternative,incaseoffailure,beinganassignmenttotheSouthSeasarea.595later.ThisdispatchofDecember5wastranslatedonDecember8,1941.596 

samemannerweresuchofficialsJapan.6oo 



256. Consul Nihro Desires Settlement of Akino's Fine

to cover the fine of Rafael Akino, a Filipino arrested in Tokyo, or that permission be given towas
257. Consul Nihro Requests Competent Assistants

Foreseeing an increase in the duties of his office which entailed the procurement of military
and other information, the dissemination of propaganda, and other machinations, and in order
to keep in touch with the inner circles of the Philippine government, Consul Nihro felt that it

pointment of another Japanese for the Davao post, so that Mori could be returned to Manila.
Furthermore, the Consul asked that, to assist in the basic investigation plans, he be assigned
an American-educated Japanese as aide. Discussing plans to return Mr. S. Kawaminami on

place of the men requested above.6O2258.ofAplantotheinat
Steamship Company was advanced by Tokyo on November 27, 1941. In case the wishes of the

late. 'Japan would, if this plan were accomplished, reimburse the company in Japan.6O3

The resident manager of the Osaka Steamship Company, Mr. Nagawo, reported that the

the secret transfer of the 83,000 pesos from the Osaka Steamship branch office to the Consulate

Company.605259.wellasofhad
ber 30 that it was impossible to decipher a message sent from Tokyo on the previous day. 607

6OIIV,470.

6O2IV,471.

6°'IV,474.

6O6IV,475.

6O7IV,476.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORconcernedoverthefineanddesiredtosettlethematterwithoutpublicity.601
TokyoPlansUtilizationOsakaSteamshipCompanyFundsinManilautilize83,000pesosheldbankbranchesManilaandbelongingtotheOsakaConsulNihroDestroysUselessCodesthosewhichthereweremorethantwocopieshadbeendestroyedonthisday.606Sincethesecodesbeendestroyed,ConsulNihroinformedtheForeignOfficeonNovem-

OnNovember25,1941ConsulNihroinManilaaskedthatJapanarrangetoadvancemoney remitthemoneyfromManila.ThiswasrequestedsinceGovernmentOfficialGonzaloAkino wouldbenecessaryreturnMr.KiharaManilasoonpossible.Although,accordinginstructions,hadletOfficialMoritakeofficeasasasConsultotototoDavao,heherequestedtheap-December8,ConsulNihrodeclaredthatevenifstayedinManilahehewouldnottakethe companycouldnotberc::alizedandnecessarypermitsecuredremitJapan,itwassuggestedthatConsulNihroborrowmoneymoneytototoretainasasecretfundinthethethetheConsu­remittanceofthisfundthroughpurchaseswasnotfeasibleatthepresenttime.6O4Furthermore, wasvirtuallyimpossiblesincethesedepositswereinnameofthethelocalOsakaSteamship OnNovember29,1941ConsulNihrowiredcodes

forwhichthatthato~cehadnouse,as 603472.60'IV,IV,473. 



(b) Japanese-Panamanian Relations

Minister Akiyama wired Tokyo on October 18, 1941 that the entire diplomatic corps, includ-

ing himself, had made written acknowledgment on October 17, 1941 of the new Panamanian

merely declared that due notice had been taken of the matter. In spite of these acknowledg-
ments, Mr. Akiyama reported that the Embassies of the different American countries feltthein
261. Latin American Countries Deny "Veiled Intervention" by the United States

According to the Mexican and Colombian Ministers, all Central and South American coun-
tries were acting voluntarily in taking definite steps against the Axis and were not following
the United States. Privately the Colombian Minister had revealed to Minister Akiyama that

States was a stricter policing of Central and South America. Furthermore, the Panama govern-
ment had denied the "veiled intervention" by the United States, which had been intimated

any child could realize that the events were based on a private agreement with the United
States.6O9262.
regard to relationships between Panamanian territory and the Canal Zone, in the registration

of merchant vessels, in the matter of air bases and in the granting of additional advance bases.
Consequently, the new government had appointed the Minister to Mexico City as Ambassador

inactive list.61O

Furthermore, the new government had decided that vessels of Panama registry would be

government had directed the German Commerce representative to be "persona non grata"
because he had abused diplomatic privileges. Given to understand that requests had been

maintenance of canal service, Mr. Akiyama had been informed by the Minister of Eduation
that Canal authorities were making preparations for such time as war between Japan and the

structions from the American government and in conjunction with the change within the
Japanese Cabinet.611

Calling on Foreign Minister Octavio Fabriga, the Japanese Minister had been told that
Panama had decided to defend the various countries on the American continent hand-in-hand

6°"IV,477.
6O"IV, 478.

611IV,480.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTC-JAPANESEDIPLOMATICACTIVITIESTHROUGHOUTTHEWORLD260.DiplomaticCorpsinPanamaAcknowledgesNewGovernment
government.TheUnitedStatesalonehadmadeastatementofacceptancewithoutamo­ment'sdelay;theItalianMinisterwastheonlyonewhohadheRitated,andeventhenhehaddissatisfiedwithchangegovernment.6O8 

America'sGoodNeighborPolicywasineffective,andthattheonlycourselefttotheUnited inawirefromForeignMinisterTogoonOctober11,althoughMinisterAkiyamaaddedthat MinisterAkiyamaExplainsNewGovernment'sForeignPolicy
Thenewadministration,Akiyamasaid,wouldcooperatefullywiththeUnitedStatesin toWashingtonandhadputtheMinistertoGermany,whowasrumoredtobepro-Axis,onthe permittedtoenterbelligerentwaters,accordingtorecentnewspaperreports.ThePanama madebytheUnitedStatesforclosecollaborationforthedefenseoftheCanalZoneandthe UnitedStateswouldbreakout.Thesepreparations,hehadrevealed,wereonthebasisofin­6IDIV,479. 



;,

with the United States against Germany. Since the question of Japanese standing as a result

arise, but to assume the same attitude that the United States might take in her relationships
with Japan.612

In order, therefore, to render full assistance to the United States, Panama would be forced
to take counter measures against Japan should Japanese-American relations reach the break-

to improve Japanese-United States relations, and should Japan have to take definite steps in
accordance with the "merits" of the case, it was hoped that it would not be necessary for

Panama to cooperate with the United States. Foreign Minister Fabriga answered that the

itself against Hitlerism.613

263. Japanese Business Firms Ordered to Close on October 28, 1941

cease operation after October 28, 1941. Although the Minister had attempted to interview the
Foreign Minister privately in regard to this question, he had not been granted an interview.
Consequently, Japanese Official Izawa had called on the Interior Secretary of Foreign Affairs
to point out that the exercising of an embargo on Japanese businesses aggravated the present
crisis. Declaring that it would be impossible to evacuate Japanese residents in so short a time
because of the lack of ships, Mr. Izawa had been told merely that Panama could not grant

people for a ninety day postponement of the prohibition regulations had been vetoed by the
Cabinet at its meeting on this day, October 28,1941.614

tortion or plundering might ensue, in view of the total discrimination against Japanese resi-

dents. Should Japanese shops or businesses open again under the present conditions, penal
regulations could be applied. For this reason the Japanese residents in Panama would like to

sels for home.615264.ofis
In examining the new position of the Panama government it might be wise, the Japanese

Minister said, to consider the publication by American-financed newspapers that Japanese
nationalists were planning to evacuate Panama as soon as the opportunity presented itself.
In view of the friendly cooperation with which Panama had treated Japanese problems in the

Panama government, and at the same time it would be difficult to evacuate Japanese na-

tionals since Central and South American countries refused to grant travel permits to Japa-
nese residents in Panama.616

6l2IV, 481.

6l3IV,482.
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ofheralignmentwiththeAxishadarisen,Panamahadnochoice,shouldunforetoldevents ingpoint.TheJapaneseMinisterrepliedthatthenewCabinetinJapanwasexertingitself Panamagovernmenthadalreadydecidedtotakesuchmeasuresaswerenecessarytodefend OnOctober28,1941theJapaneseMinistertoPanama,inawiretoTokyo,revealedthateightdaysearlierhehadbeeninformedbytelephonethatJapanesebusinessfirmsshould permitsforthecontinuedoperationofthesefirms.ApplicationsmadebyJapanesebusiness ItwasexpectedthatacompleteboycottofJapanesegoodswouldbeexercisedandthatex-gotoPuntarenas,CostaRica,orBuenaventura,Colombia,orevenLima,Peru,toboardves-

UncooperativeCourseNewGovernmentResultofFear,MinisterAlleges 
past,thecoursenowbeingpursuedindicatedafearofarousingthewrathoftheUnitedStates.TheMinisterconcludedthatitwasnowimpossibletoplaceconfidenceintheintentionsofthe 



the Minister in his wire of October 30, 1941 revealed that the recent control regulations for the

grant evacuation permits for any Japanese nationalists in Panama. Contributing to Panama's

was thus instilling in the Panama government the fear that this locality might be used to fur-

ther such a plot.617

265. Panama Restricts Minister Akiyama's Contacts

Insofar as the Japanese Minister's attempts to preserve his personal contacts with various

not only to distrust his intentions and activities but that they were particularly suspicious of
his contacts with the diplomatic corps especially with the Italian and German officials.618

of the United States. Although in the Minister's opinion Panama was a dependency of the

permitted, "like a child militantly waving a famous Masamune blade", to work in conjunction
with the Canal military authorities.619266.theis
ahead of the United States in her hostilities to the Axis powers. Possibly it might even go so
far as to sever diplomatic relations, although lacking the strength to effect this act. Panama
had armed her merchant vessels and had recalled her diplomatic officials to Germany with-

out considering their replacement. Furthermore, on October 29, 1941 the Foreign Minister had
said that a group within the Cabinet had argued that diplomatic relations with Axis powers,
including Japan, should be severed; but the majority in the Cabinet had vetoed the suggestion.

had added that Japan was not included in the order possibly because its form of governmentwasnot
America seemed to be experimenting by urging Panama into the lead; consequently, Panama's

as to measure the extent of Japanese inroads in Central and South America. When, on October
30, 1941, Foreign Minister Fabriga told the Italian Minister that diplomatic relations between

vessels, the Italian Minister had replied that until this time Italy had tried so far as possible
not to touch Panamanian vessels.621

6l7IV,486.
616IV,487.
61"IV,487.
6,oIV,488.
621IV,489.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
JapaneseMinisterSaysUnitedStatesUrgingPanamatoTaketheLeadfeared,althoughtheyconsideredJapanesegovernmentasoneformofNazism.620 

ReemphasizingthatactionsofPanamaseemedtobeinstigatedbythetheUnitedStates, conductofbeingrigorouslyenforced.Furthermore,wereweretakingtheattitudethateventhoughbusinessbusinesspermitsnotbegranted,shouldwarcome,neitherwouldwouldtheythey standwasPresidentRoosevelt'sallegedfabricationthatNaziswereplottingthetheestab­lishmentoffiveseparatedependenciesinCentralandSouthAmerica.TheUnitedStates Cabinetmemberswereconcerned,PanamaOfficehadrequestedsomedaysagohemakeallcontactsthroughForeignForeignOffice.Hepointedoutthatthatthethetheofficialsseemed WhenAkiyamaaskedifheobjectedhispersonalcon­tacts,awkwardsilencehadhadensued.Thelogicalexplanationforthisconductthat,asananex-editorofPanamaAmerican,ForeignForeignMinisterMinisterMinisterwaswastryingtotoattractthethethethegoodwill UnitedStates,itallowedtoassumetheroleofanindependent

nationandwaswasbeingbeing Panamawaspermitted,innameofdemocracy,totakethethefore,beingbeingonestep Panama,wellasasCentralandSouthAmericancountries,atinsistencePresi­dentUnitedStates,hadorderedthethethethedissolutionofofofallallNazigroups.TheForeignMinister TheUnitedStatespreservingherpositionvariouscountriesinininCentralandSouth missionwastotestthestrengthofGermanyItalyinCentralandandSouthAmericaaswell theseveralcountriesweremadedifficultbyGermanyandItaly'ssinkingofPanamanian 



Bureau of the Foreign Office, had sent an official complaint to the Panama Consul, and at

plaint to the Panama government in that country. Japan, the Foreign Minister said, would
take a firm stand on this matter in view of the effect on other South American countries. Japan
would demand that (1) Panama make payment for the loss incurred by forcing Japanese to
close their businesses, (2) that Panama would allow a time limit in which the Japanese might
clear up their stock, (3) that arrangements for Japanese capital investments should be made,
and (4) that Panama should arrange for the entry of these Japanese into other South American
countries. It was thought best to advise against Japanese returning to Japan, since it was most
important not to break relations with Panama and South American countries at this time.tobeto268.By5,to
ly considering Japan's protest, but that they were still trying to chase all Japanese out of their

States, Panama would no doubt be willing to cooperate with the United States in defending
the safety of the Panama Canal. Consequently, it was necessary to make the Japanese protest
as strong and as effective as possible. If it were impossible to take over part of Panama for the
purpose of protecting the Japanese in that country, then it might become necessary to take
over all ships in East Asia flying the Panama flag. If this were done, it would be necessary to

carried out, the Panama Consul in the United States would appeal to Washington, so that the
Japanese Embassy there should be prepared not to receive this complaint through the United

Minister Herari.623

Minister Akiyama had further decided to demand that Panama authorities protect Japa-

Japanese individuals were being instructed simultaneously to stay in Panama for the pur-

gency suggestion would be the best retaliation.624

269. Japan Requests Immediate Reopening of Businesses

living, Minister Akiyama requested the Foreign Minister to open immediately the Japanese
shops for business. Meanwhile, he had warned the residents against the indiscretion of illegal
business or hiring lawyers, since the authorities might be given a pretext for their deportation.hadhisin

."IV, 490.

.o. Ibid.

.'.IV, 492.
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267.JapanSendsOfficialComplainttoPanama
Furthermore,returnhomewouldplayintotheUnitedStates'hands.622MinisterAkiyamaSuggestsRetaliatoryMeasuresNovember1941MinisterAkiyamawasablewirethatPanamaofficialswereserious-
FabrigawiredMinisterJapan.625 

JapanesereactionsthisPanamanianaggressivenesswererevealedinawiretotoPanamaonNovember1,1941fromForeignMinisterTogo.Mr.Yamamoto,ChiefoftheAmerican thesametimeMinisterMasatoshiAkiyamawasinstructedtomakeastrongofficialcom­country.SincetherewasarumorthatgovernmenthadreceivedfundsfromthetheUnited maintaintheutmostsecrecysothatnowarningwouldbeserved.Ifthisemergencyactwere States,butreferitinsteadPanamagovernment.Heaskedthatprotestbesup­portedinJapantototofullextentwhenthethetheForeignMinistermadedemandsofhishisownupon neseresidents,assureofaliving,andhelpthemthemtore-establishthemselvesinbusiness. posemakingcomplaints.AlthoughJapancouldnottellwhatattitudewouldbetakento­wardsitscomplaint,MinisterAkiyamafeltthat

inanyeventthecarryingoutofofhisemer-SinceitwasclearthatJapaneseresidentswerefacingincreasinghardshipsinmakingtheir ForhisowninformationMr.AkiyamawasinterestedtoknowthedateonwhichMinister.23IV,491. 



as their re-publication would be interfered with. Since criticism would be based on the United
States' dogmatic conception of "democracy", Japan should enlighten the people either byoftheit5,to
he had forbidden the opening of Japanese shops even temporarily,626 and he had cruelly for-

Japanese, but the present Foreign Minister, Fabriga, one of the Cabinet's "stooges", had
approved the closing of Japanese shops; rivals were attempting to take over the Japanese busi-

that they hand back the shops or auction off the equipment.627271.to
question a serious one, calling for a formal statement from the Panamanian government. Min-

ister Ferrari, replying that he had received no information from his country since the recentandastoto272.isin
the Panama Cabinet had refused to consider the protest by the Japanese Legation against the
closing of all Japanese businesses because the note was phrased in insulting terms and con-
stituted intervention in the internal affairs of the nation.

not admitted as immigrants to engage in business, thus causing the closing of all Japanese

shops.629273.
Since Panama had been a distributing center for Japanese goods, it would be difficult for

the Japanese to dispose of large stocks because in addition to the ending of retail sales andofa
difficult since Japanese ships no longer called at the Isthmus. Warning Panama of the respon-
sibility incurred, the note described the restrictive order as "inhuman cruelty.,,63o

626IV, 493.

627IV, 494. 8,REJECTStobe
630 Ibid.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR270.RadioBroadcastorDomeiServiceisSuggestedtoPublicizePanama'sActioncationcontrollawwasarbitrary;hadbeenappliedthreedaysbeforeitwastohavegoneNovember1941,whensomeonehadappealedtheMinisterofAgricultureandCommerce,TokyoForeignOfficeProtestsPanamaMinister;RequestsFormalStatementfromPanamawouldwireinstructionswhenthiswasbedone.628PanamaCabinetSaysJapaneseNotePhrasedInsultingTermsMinisterAkiyamaSaysJapaneseWillHaveTroubleDisposingofLargeStocksre-exportationgoodsrequiredlicensewhichcouldbegrantedonlywhentheentireproceeds6."IV,496.(TheNewYorkTimes,November1941,"PANAMATOKYO'SPROTEST,JapaneseExpulsionfromCanalAreaContinued.") 

BecausePanamanewspaperswereeitherownedorcontrolledbyfamilythethetheMinis­terofofAgrjcultureandCommerce,itcouldbeexpectedthatJapaneseannouncementsaswell radiobroadcastorbyDomeiservice.Specificallytobestressedwasfactthatthetheappli­intoeffect,andthusitattemptedtodriveJapaneseoutbythetherightofprepossession.On biddentheirengagingotherwork.DiscriminationininapplyinghadbeenshownChineseandwhiteforeigners.Notwaslawlawunderstoodbeapplicableonlyonlytotototothethethethe nessesandlandlordsbeginningtodemand,sincethetheJapanesewerewereunemployed, On6,ForeignTogowiredBureauChiefYamamotohad,onNovemberNovember1,1941,1941,protestedPanamanianMinisterMinisterAgustinFerrariinTokyowithrequestthethetheprotestbeforwardedtotoPanama.ItwasdeclaredthatthatthatJapanconsideredthis changegovernment,hadpromisedtransmitrequest.Foreign

MinisterTogodeclaredthathewouldliketotohavedetailsofthethethequestionpublishedPanamawellasasinininJapan IntheNewYorkTimes,underPanamadatelineofNovember8,1941,wasaareportthat Thearticleexplainedthatthelawnationalizingcommerceprohibitedmembersofarace transactionweredepositedinablockedaccount.RepatriationofofthetheJapanesewouldbe IV,495.628



274. Newspaper Article Originating in Japan Charges Panama with Inhuman Acts

TheNewYorkTimesreportfromTokyopublicizedtheannouncementbytheJapaneseForeignOfficethatstrongprotesthadbeenlodgedwiththegovernmentofPanamaagainstdiscriminatoryand"inhuman"actswhichitchargedweredesignedtoexpelJapaneseresi-dentsfromthePanamaCanalareabydeprivingthemoftheirlivelihood.Theprotests,the

artiCle stated, were especially significant since the Japanese government"undertook to speak
in the name of all Asiatic people and called upon the government of Panama to "revert to a
free, independent policy and settle this unpleasant question without being influenced in any
way by any foreign power" .631

275. Japanese Minister Reports Dismissal of Spanish Minister
OnNovember10,1941,MinisterAkiyamareportedtoTokyothattheSpanishMinisterwasofthisdate"personanongrata"andthat,becauseofcircumstances,itwasthoughtthathecouldnotdootherwisethanresign.Thereasongivenforhisdismissalwashisstatementina

public club that "Panama is being trodden on by the iron boot of Uncle Sam. Panama can no
longer hold her head high among the family of nations as a sovereign state." It was thought
that the United States was back of this action.632

TheSpanishMinisterhadinformedtheJapaneseMinisterconfidentiallythathewasmerelyasacrificetothenewPanamapolicyofattachmenttotheUnitedStatesandthat,al-thoughhemayhavebeenalittledisorderly,thequestionwasnotbigenoughtoconstitutean

issue. When he had requested the dean of the diplomatic service to ask the President of
PanamanottomakeanissueofhisactionstotheSpanishForeignOffice,hisrequesthadbeenshelved.TheSpanishMinisterhasaskedthat,ifpossible,thistruthberelayedtoSpain

through him, the Japanese Minister.633

276. Mexican Minister Incensed at Treatment of Japanese, Returns Home, Akiyama Declares

MinisterAkiyamafurtherreportedthattheMexicanMinisterwasreturninghomesincehewasextremelyenragedatthenewregime.Inaconfidentialtalkwith(JapaneseofficialIzawa,heallegedthatthecontinuedUnitedStates"tutorship"ofPanama,hadmadeimpossiblehisremaininginofficeanylonger.OfhisownvolitionhehaddecidedthattherecentunfairandracialdiscriminationexercisedagainsttheJapanesehadmadeitimperativethathereturn

home.634

HequestionedwhetherthePanamagovernmentwouldrecognizethediplomaticpassport

approved by the former Panama President, Arias, or whether through the meddling of the
United States, an incident similar to that involving the Spanish Minister might occur. ItseemedtohimthatdecisionshadbeenreachedtorevokediplomaticrightsinPanama.63S
277. Mr. Izawa Negotiates for Reemployment of Japanese in Panama

In order to make the United States realize the desperate situation of the Japanese in Pan-
ama,Mr.IzawahadaskedMr.Kata,headofthePanamaCanal,DefenseDivision,toconsid-erusingJapaneseintheconstructionworkofthecanal.Mr.Katahadansweredthatthis

question would be discussed with those in command of the work. From this reply it seemed
possible, Minister Akiyama reported, that some kind of work might be procured until Japan

couldsendashipforthemandthusevacuateallJapanesefromPanama;atthesametime

the damage demand for the Japanese government would be lessened.636631IV,496.(TheNewYorkTimes,November8,1941,"ProtestsStrong,TokyoAsserts",byOttoD.Tolischus.)
632IV,497.633IV,498.63<IV,499.63"IV,5OO.

636IV,501.
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Meanwhile, the Japanese Minister had given though to retaliation for the discrimination

to give permits to Panama ships for sailing out of Japanese ports and to seize or detain Pan-

for business to be carried on and (3) Carry out items (1) and (2) in Manchuria and occupied
China. Although it would be advantageous to Japan to seize Panama ships, it would be wise,
first, to watch the future development of United States-Japanese relations. 637279.to

The Foreign Minister in Japan wired Japanese Official Koshi in Panama that the govern-

relations might become even more strained, thought should be given to a way of moving all
Japanese to some other country. It was also requested that the policy of disposing of stock
belonging to Japanese companies in Panama be wired to Tokyo. 638280.Ento
diately for Japan.639

281. Minister Suggests that Young Japanese Nationals be Attached to Central and Latin American
Legations

That ten young single men who had been forced to close their businesses because of the

1941. If appointments were possible, these men were willing to work without salary and fur-nish282.ofCommunication Stoppage

According to a dispatch transmitted from Tokyo on November 19, 1941, Minister Akiyama

Chile and Peru.641

283. Japanese Nationals Urged to Evacuate to Latin American Countries
Because, according to previous dispatches, officials in Tokyo advised that Japanese in

Panama be scattered throughout Central and South America rather than be sent home, Minis-

influence them to resettle in countries near Panama. However, in case the evacuation vesseltookoffofthehetointhe
.371V,502.
.3slV,503.
.3"1V,5O4.

.<olV,5O5.

."1V,506.
."1V,5O7.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR278.MinisterAkiyamaSuggestsFurtherRetaliatoryMeasures
againstJapanesenationals.Hesuggested,onNovember15,1941,thatJapancould(1)Refuse amashipsinJapanesewaters,(2)FreezePanamacapitalinJapanmakingitimpossible ForeignMinisterTogoPlansAidNationals
mentwouldconsidertheexpenditureoffundstohelptheJapanese.Inviewofthetimewhen JapaneseMilitaryMenAreRouteHomeland

OnNovember18,1941,MinisterAkiyamainformedTokyothatLieutenantColonelNakanoandCommanderMichinoriYoshii,withtheirparty,hadleftCristobalsafelyonNovember18,1941,flyingdirectlytoLima,Peru.Arrivingthereat5:30p.m.,theywouldembarkimme-PanamaincidentbeappointedtoserveinsomecapacityinJapaneseforeigndiplomatices­tablishmentswassuggestedbyMinisterAkiyamainacirculardispatchofNovember19, theirowntravelingexpenses.640MinisterAkiyamaStressesDanger
reportedonNovember20,1941,thatshouldwardevelopandPanamafollow'hand-in-handwiththeUnitedStates,therewasdangerthatcommunicationsmightbestopped.Asfarashewasconcerned,hebelievedtherewasnorecoursebutforJapantoalignitselfwithArgentina, terAkiyamainPanamawiredonNovember22,1941thattheevacuationvesselwhichwouldtouchportatBalboawasbeingkeptasecretfromtheJapanesenationals.Thiswasdoneto someJapanese,askedthatTokyoofficialspersuadetheUnitedStatestoorderCanalofficialscooperateevacuation.642 



I284.ArrangementsMadeforTatsutaMarutoDockatBalboa
HavinglearnedthroughtheStateDepartmentinWashingtonthattheTatsutaMarumustpayitsexpensesincashwhenitdockedatBalboa,AmbassadorNomurarequestedTokyoto

have the ship supplied with funds through the Consulate in Panama.643OnNovember25,1941,MinisterAkiyamareportedthatnotonlywouldpermissionbegranted
fortheTatsutaMarutodockatBalboabutthatPanamaofficialswerequiteanxiousfortheshiptocome.ItwasquiteclearthatPanamaofficialsdidnotdesireevenoneJapaneseto

remain near the Panama Canal Zone, although some did undoubtedly choose to remain in

Panamainspiteofthethreatofinternment.TheMinisterinquiredabouttheauthorityfor~sellingticketsontheTatsutaMaru,requestinginstructionsastowhethertheyshouldbesoldthroughtheNYKorthroughtheconsulate.644
OnNovember26,1941,ForeignMinisterTogofeltitnecessarytoexplainthattheTatsuta

Maru wasnotbeingsentforthepurposeofageneralevacuation.ThefactthatitwasdockingatBalboameantonlythatJapanwasgivingitscitizenswhocouldnotstayinPanamaorsettle

in other countries a chance to settle in Japan. If Japanese nationals could move to other Latin
countries,theyweretobeguidedaccordingly,anditwasdirectedthatthosethatwerere-turninghomemakepreparationsandthosewhoweregoingtothirdcountriesgettheirpass-

ports.645

TheconsulatesinHavana,theUnitedStates,Canada,VancouverandPanamalearnedonNovember26,1941,thescheduleoftheTatsutaMaru.LeavingBalboaonDecember26,1941,
it was scheduled to arrive in Yokohama January 15, 1942, although the possibility existedthatitwouldstopinLosAngelesalsoonthewayhome.646285.PanamanianMinisterReportsArrivalofPeruvianMinisterinWashington

TheMinisterinPanamareportedtoWashingtononNovember29,1941,thatMinister

Sakamoto, the Japanese Minister to Peru, would arrive in Washington on the night of Novem-
ber 29, 1941.647

286. Japan Proposes Reparation for Treatment of Japan Nationals in Panama
Referring to the formal documents demanding reparation for the treatment of Japanese

nationals in Panama, Japanese Minister Akiyama reported that the Foreign Minister in Pan-
amahadconsideredthedocumentsneitherunreasonablenorwithoutlegalgrounds,althoughheansweredthattheexclusionofJapanesewasbypopulardemand.Actingasauthorized

spokesman for Panama, the Foreign Minister had told Minister Yamagata and Charge d'M-

fairesIzawathattherewasnothingtodobutadministerthelaw;thereforeinthetentimes

Izawa had talked with him the Foreign Minister had opposed Japanese claims and would not

give a satisfactory answer. 648

When Minister Akiyama attempted to get reparations on the basis of a previous under-
standing with former Foreign Minister Arias, as had been formally suggested by Japan, For-

eignMinisterAriashadnonethelesstestifiedthatJapanhadbeenproperlynotifiedofthelaw

many times through her Minister and last November, through the Charge d'Affaires. Since

the protest by the Japanese Ministry appeared to be without success, practically all of the
Japanese except Amano had sold out their business at a fair price and had returned to
Japan.649

6"IV,508.
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ous dispatch in one code and from then on to use other codes.65O This dispatch gave the names

and magazines. 651

Apparently having already received instructions concerning the destruction of codes and
secret papers, Minister Akiyama reported on December 5, 1941, that code books had been
destroyed by burning in accordance with instructions. 652288.
of $18, 185 for the propagation ofinformation.653

full report of the income, expenditures, withdrawals, temporary loans, and reserve and

estimated future expenses of the Panama office. 654

..'IV.428.

..'IV.516.

..'IV.517.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR287.MinisterAkiyamaCommunicateswithBuenosAiresandTokyoRegardingCodes
OnDecember3,1941,MinisterAkiyamadirectedofficialsinBuenosAirestoremitaprevi­andaddressesoftwoforeignersinRiodeJaneirowhowerereceivingAmericannewspapers MinisterAkiyamaExperiencesFinancialAnnoyances

OnDecember6,1941,Mr.AkiyamarequestedthatexpensefundsthroughMarch1944,beimmediatelyremittedwithamonthlyspecialincreaseof$400aswellasthefourthperiodsum OnDecember8,1941,becauseoftheurgencyofthesituation,MinisterAkiyamamadea ..0IV.515. 



(c) Japanese-Hawaiian Relations

289. Consul in Honolulu Requests Funds Before Arrival of Tatsuta Maru
In need of funds before the entry of the Tatsuta and Taiyo Marus into Honolulu port, the

Japanese Consul in Honolulu asked that funds be wired before October 23, 1941, when theMaru290.totothe
that money just as it is". 657

The Japanese Foreign Office advised Honolulu that another passenger aboard the Tatsuta
Maru, °, Tokyo correspondent of the °, was to be kept under strict surveillance while
in Honolulu. Since 0

in Japan, if he said or did anything untowardly, the home office was to be advised immedi-
ately.658292.beto
the Taiyo Maru, Tokyo suggested that passengers be assigned to the Taiyo Maru rather than
to the Tatsuta Maru.659 Consequently, a .list of available accommodations on the Taiyoon293.tobeasas
inform diplomats in the country concerned should ordinary telegraphic channels be

severed, directed on November 28, 1941, that the codes be retained as long as the situationinthat
294. Japan Ponders Recall of Staff

wait at that place pending further instructions. Foreign Minister Togo assured the diplomatic
staffs in this circular dispatch that a great deal of thought was being given to the return of the
Consul's staff and families.663

.SSIV,519.
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.S.IV,522.

.s'IV,523.

..oIV,524.

..IIV,525.

..2IV,526.

..3IV,527.
153

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTC-JAPANESEDIPLOMATICACTIVITIESTHROUGHOUTTHEWORLDTatsutawoulddock.655JapaneseOfficialRequestedBringMoneyBackJapanAboardTatsutaMaruwasJapaneseOfficialMaeda,forwhomTokyohadobtainedper­
missionfromtheAmericanStateDepartmenttolandinHonoluluandSanFrancisco.656UponhisarrivalinHonoluluClerkMaedawastobetoldinabsolutesecrecyto"bringback 291.ForeignOfficeAsksthat°beKeptUnderStrictSurveillance actionsandwordshadcreatedvariousincidentswhilehewas TokyoSuggestsNationalAssignedSecondEvacuationVessel

SincetherewouldberoomforfiftyfirstclassandeightysecondclasspassengersaboardMaru,660whichsailedfromYokohamaOctober22,1941,661wasdispatchedtoHonolulu.SpecialCodesRetainedLongSituationPermits
ForeignMinisterTogo,explainingthatthespecialcodebroadcastsweredesignedto localitypermitted,anduntilthefinalstagewasentered.662
OnDecember4,1941,theJapaneseConsulandhisfamilyinHonoluluwereinstructedto .DoDcomment:Namewithheld. 



(d) Japanese-Philippine Relations

Expressing his opinions in the event of war between Japan and the United States, Consul
Nihro in a dispatch of October 20, 1941, predicted that Japanese residents in the Philippines
would be placed under strict surveillance by the American and Philippines authorities. For
this reason, he felt that it would be particularly expedient to repatriate at an early date the

296. United States Making Preparations for War in Earnest, Consul Says
Furthermore, the political shake-up in Japan was quite a shock to the people in the

Philippine Islands; and it had been pointed out in an aritcle in the Bulletin that although
the new Cabinet did not intend to take any great risks as yet, it was made up of the military
capable of carrying out any decision it might make. In an editorial in this paper, which

that nothing could be expected ofthe Japanese-American negotiations.

were his beliefs that the United States Military authorities were making preparation in real
earnest; that they were watching and directing more carefully than ever the government

minds of the people the idea that because of the power of the United States, the ultimate

strengthen the morale of the Philippine people, thereby increasing the sense of reliance
which the Philippine people feel toward the United States.665

297. Payment of Fine for Manila Youth in Japan Creates Problem of Exchange

that Gonzalo Akino had presented a check for 1500 pesos for his fines. Because of the difficulty
of transferring this fund to Japan, due to the freezing of credits, the Consul suggested that

the money out of Manila, it would be necessary to go to the High Commissioner's office,

for Morokuma or some friend to pay the fine and win the Manila official's gratitude. Both

to Manila.666

..'IV,528.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTC-JAPANESEDIPLOMATICACTIVITIESTHROUGHOUTTHEWORLD295.ConsulNihroAdvisesEarlyEvacuationofUsefulNationalsJapanesenationalswhowereacquaintedwiththesituationinthevariousareas.664 
couldbeconsideredasreflectingtheviewsofonesectionofthepeople,ithadbeenstated AmongtheseveralpointsConsulNihrocalledespeciallytotheattentionofTokyoofficials ofthePhilippineIslands,aswellastheFilipinoleaders;thattheywereinstillinginthe victorywouldsurelybeonthesideofthedemocracies;andthattheywereendeavoringto ReferringtothecaseofRafaelAkino,whohadbeenarrestedinJapanandchargedwithblackmarketactivities,ConsulKatsumiNihroinManilawiredTokyoonOctober24,1941, Mr.MorokumaoroneofyoungAkino'sfriendsadvancethemoneyforhisfineandreturntoManila.ThisactionwasadvisedsinceGonzaloAkinowasapowerfulgovernmentofficialwhodesiredtoavoidunfavorablepublicitybeforethenextgeneralelection.Inordertoget anactwhichwouldexposethepresentdifficulties.Therefore,itwouldprobablybewise RafaelAkino'srealfatherandGonzaloAkino(Aquino),whoregardedtheaccusedashisownson,wouldconsiderwaysofpayingthefineandexpensesassoonastheboywasreturned 



298. Consul Protests Opening of Diplomatic Mail Pouch

it was explained by Consul Nihro on October 21, 1941, that authorities demanded the

Tsuchiya to Japan. When the Consul had applied to the High Commissioner to intercede

with the company to have the mail pouch passed without inspection on the basis of inter-

procured before the company could be asked to waive the application of their rules.notoaa
spection of a diplomatic mail containing official documents would be unfortunate, theon26,itbeto
became clearer. 667 on
pouch be definitely refused and that Courier Tsuchiya's departure be postponed.66s Re-

viewing the details of the Aeroplane Company's refusal to allow Courier Tsuchiya to board theto 24,1941, that he had drawn up

for the office of the High Commissioner an official memorandum, which that office hadupin669

299. Japan to Investigate the Seizure of Mail
28, 1941, the Japanese Consul at Manila asked that the seizure of mail sent onbyofbe

should this practice continue, Consul Nihro requested that it be brought to the attention of
the proper authorities.67O

30, 1941, Foreign Minister Togo, in consideration of this request, asked for

was necessary that Japan make all communications absolutely secure.671to
scheduled to arrive
While at Manila, it could pick up at least seven hundred, and possibly eight hundred passen-

possibly make one trip to Britain, after which it would probably be impossible to dispatch
Japanese ships.672

stances, Consul Nihro suggested that the fares be lowered to approximate those of the Hakone
Maru.673

66'IV,53l.
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Considerabledifficultywasdevelopinginthematteroftransportingdiplomaticmail,for
examinationofthediplomaticmailpouchwhichwastobetakenbyCourierYashironationallawandprocedure,hehadbeeninformedthattheconsentofWashingtonmustbeAlthough,actually,therewasobjectioncursoryinspection(suchasapreviousonewhensealedletterswerenotopened),yetthesettingofprecedentinpermittingthein-Consuldeclared.Forthisreason,althoughCourierTsuchiyawasscheduledtoleaveManilaOctober1941,wouldbetterdelaytheCourier'sdepartureuntilthematterForeignMinisterTogoansweredOctober22,1941,orderingthattheinspectionoftheChinaClipperHongKong,Mr.NihrowiredTokyoonOctoberrequired,beforetakingthematterwiththeofficialsWashington.

OnOctoberforeignshipswayHongKonginvestigated.Toavoidthedifficultieswhichmightarise
OnOctober informationconcerningplaceoforiginofallmattercensoredinHongKong.Hesaidthatit 300.TheAsamaMaruTentativelyScheduledArriveNovember10,1941
OnOctober31,1941,theJapaneseForeignMinisterwiredthattheAsamaMaruwas inManilaonNovember10,andwouldleavethenextdayforSingapore. gersbycrowdingthevessel.ForeignMinisterTogodisclosedthattheAsamaMaruwould SincetherefugeeswhoweretosailontheAsamaMaruwereinratherstraitenedcircum­

668IV, 



Replying to Consul Nihro's suggestion that the Asama Maru stop at Singapore beforeonat
Furthermore, on November 2, 1941, the Japanese Consul requested permission to return

the families of officials to Japan on the Asama Maru. In spite of the fact that it would be a
stabilizing influence on the Japanese residents in the Philippines if officials' families

incident occur. 676

evacuation vessel, inquired whether any of the seven or eight hundred accommodations would
be taken up by passengers from Singapore.677

office to arrange for the arrival and departure of the vessel and to procure fuel and supplies.678

302. Consul Nihro Reiterates Advice that Fares be Reduced
Having received no answer to his request that fares on the maru be lowered, Consul Nihro

reemphasized the fact that the evacuees had but scant means to meet the heavy financial

all classes, especially second and third, be reduced to the rate of the Hakone Maru. In
spite of the fact that on November 1 the Foreign Minister had wired specifically that the
vessel would not call at Davao,679 Consul Nihro asked on November 4 that he be advised as
to the possibility of the ship's stopping at that port. 680

303. toas
In accordance with Tokyo's instructions to arrange with the High Commissioner's office

for the vessel's entrance and departure, as well as for fuel and supplies, the Japanese Consul

matter; nevertheless, the Japanese Consul had asked for confirmation of this statement in

writing. 681

November 3, from Yokohama. Mr. Masayashi Kakitsubo, an official of the European-

American office, had sailed as a representative of the Foreign office.682304.andto
Tokyo directed on November 13, 1941, that the four hundred fifty tons of diesel oil and one

thousand tons of water, fruit and vegetables be loaded onto the Asama Maru, to be paid for
from the monies collected as fares and freight charges.683

.74 Ibid.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR301.JapanChangesArrivalDateoftheAsamaMarutoNovember19,1941thanthe10th.TheshipwouldnotstopDavao.675 
ConsulArrangesPermitEnterManilaVesselSailsfromHomelandPassengerFreightFeesBuySuppliesfortheAsamaMaru 

(soevacueesmightnottravelhomebywayofSingapore),674Japa­neseHomeOfficeansweredthatthatthetheshipwouldarriveatManilaManilaManilaonNovember19,ratherremained,ConsulNihrobelievedthatitwasnotwisetodelaytoolong,shouldanunforeseen OnNovember3,Consul,apparentlystillconcernedoverspaceavailableonthethethe AdispatchfromTokyo4,however,ignoredConsul'squestionreiteratingonlythatAsamaMaruwouldleaveSingapore6andarriveatManilaonononNovemberNovemberNovember19or20.TheConsulwasinstructedtonegotiatewiththethetheHighCommissioner's burdenplacedonthembyhighrates.HeagainaskedthatthetheAsamaMaru'sfaresfor repliedonNovember5,1941,investigatedmatter.Mr.Willoughby,oftheCommissioner'soffice,hadhadsaidthatthathehedidnotbelievetherewouldbeanyproblem

inthisthis OnNovember6,SingaporeandManilawereadvisedthattheAsamaMaruhadsailedon 87"IV,538. 



305.AsamaMarutoEvacuateJapaneseOfficialsandBusinessmen
ByorderoftheSecretarytothe.MinisteroftheNavy,LieutenantCommanderHatakeyamaoftheMedicalCorpswasdirectedtoreturntoJapanontheAsamaMaru.684

Since,aspreviouslymentioned,thiswastobethelastevacuationvesseltoManila,membersofthetradepromotionorganizationweretobeinducedtoreturntoJapanonthe

Asama Maru, or Fuji Maru, which had been assigned to the Dutch East Indies for evacuation

purposes.685ConsulKihara,however,becauseofurgentbusinessinTokyo,wasordered

to return to Japan immediately by plane rather than to await the scheduled accommodation
by steamer. 686

Accordingtoadispatch,transmittedfromaMr.ShiraiinManilatotheDepartmentofCommerceandIndustry,theConsulGeneralhadsuggestedthatthebranchofficebeclosedtemporarilyandthepersonnelbereturnedtoJapansincetherewasnobusinessatthetime.687306.JapaneseLegationStaffObtainsaLoan
Adispatch,retransmittedtoTokyoandWashington,reportedthatthehighCommissioner

in Manila had granted permits for a loan and for the receipt of the outstanding balance of the
Legation's allowance. However, no instructions relative to the needed cancellation of the

freezingorderhadyetbeenreceived.Moreover,amessagefromtheWashingtonEmbassy

had asserted that twenty-five thousand pesos for operating expenses in Manila and
additionalsumsforthehigherstaffmembershadbeenapproved.TheManilaLegation

requested a confirmation of these appropriations.688
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(e) Japanese-Mexican Relations

307. Vice Consul Kobayashi Transports Secret Documents to San Francisco

meet Vice Consul Ichizo Kobayashi on the Hikawa Maru, since secret documents for the

Mexican Embassy and for all South American offices would be carried by that official. 689

308. Minister Miura Sends to Tokyo a Resume of Comments on Mexico's Position in the Event
ora Japanese-American War

In a message to Tokyo on October 23, 1941, Minister Miura declared that in the event of the
United States becoming involved in the war, it was generally believed that Mexico would

party which the Mexican Minister had given on October 21, former Vice Minister of

that the United States would immediately occupy Mexican bases and strengthen anti-
Axis activities in Mexico. Since the government which was formed to support the United

to declare war, the government would likely comply at once. Although the populace in

general was friendly toward Japan, Mexican politics and foreign affairs were now manipulated

expect anything of them. Mr. Rolland declared that the only chance of a change in Mexico's
present policy would occur if Germany gained the supremacy in Europe, and Japan in Asia,
while the United States, on the other hand, would face a national crisis because of economic
breakdown and for other reasons.690

309. Navy Department Retracts Alleged Statement by Secretary Knox of "Immediate Action
Within 24 Hours"

the Excelsior newspaper of the statement made on October

the statement which reached the newspaper office at noon, had asserted that there would be

twenty-four hours" should be deleted.691

310. Minister Miura Plans to Return to Japan

Tokyo on October 27 that he would be permitted to announce his intention to return to

6."IV,552.

"ooIV,553.

"OlIV,554.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTC-JAPANESEDIPLOMATICACTIVITIESTHROUGHOUTTHEWORLD 
MinisterYoshiokiMiurawasinstructedtosendamemberofhisstafftoSanFranciscoto eitherfollowitsexampleorassumeastatussimilartobeinginthewar.Ataninformaldinner CommunicationsandFinanceM.C.RollandhaddiscussedtheattitudethatMexicomighttakeshouldhostilitiesdevelopbetweentheUnitedStatesandJapan.Hebelieved States,naturallywasfollowingacourseofcooperation,shouldtheUnitedStatesaskMexico entirelybyasmallnumberofpoliticiansandmilitarymenwhowerenotworthytobecalledmilitarymen.Sincethepeoplewereabsolutelypowerless,itwouldbeamistaketo OnOctober25,1941MinisterMiurainMexicolearnedconfidentiallyfromanexecutiveof 24bySecretaryoftheNavyKnoxreferringtothenearapproachofthecrisisbetweenJapanandAmerica.SecretaryKnox,in "imminentaction"intheFarEast"withintwenty-fourhours".AtarequestfromtheNavyDepartment,wordhadgonethroughtwohourslatertotheeffectthatthephrase"within AnunidentifiedJapaneseofficialinMexico(probablyMinisterMiura)wasadvisedby Japanonlyafterhehadmadedefinitearrangementsforhispassagehome.HewasinformedthattherewasnospaceontheTerukawaMaru,althoughitmightbepossibletofindspaceon 



required to travel by rail to San Francisco. After leaving Mexico, the Minister said, he couldn't

San Francisco". In addition, he pointed out that if by chance he were successful in finding

the Philippine Islands or in Hawaii should certain developments occur in Japanese-
American relations. In any event, he, as Minister of the Imperial Government, would be
placed in an undignified position which might result in criticism of the government should
any of the anticipated events materialize. For these reasons, he suggested that he apply openly
and directly to the United States Government to reserve accommodations or he could, as an
alternative, remain in Mexico. In spite of the fact that his position there would be exceedingly
difficult, he would nevertheless endeavor to carry out the instructions of the Foreign Minister
to the best of his ability.693

311. System of Importing Rayon Undergoes a Change

ment of the import certificates of the Rayon Distributing Company. The subsidy system

tion of rayon would take place in a manner totally different since no subsidy would be given to
a controlled distributing company and the importation of rayon could be carried on by
anyone who was willing to pay a tariff of one peso per kilogram. The change in the system
had been brought about by the fact that the distributing company, through its system of
importation and distribution, had never achieved the expected results; consequently, Mexico
was very hard up for rayon. In cognizance of this fact, Japan should watch carefully to see
that no rayon was being transshipped from China to Mexico. Since the Minister had himself

that the rayon shipments might be going by way of Chile and Argentina to Mexico.694312.Noin
laws which curtailed Japanese businesses in Panama. The report gave Panama's reply,

there had been no confirmation of the report from other sources. 695
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theHikawaMarusailingfromSeattleonNovember4.AnotherpossibilitywasthePresidentLinevesselwhichsailedfromSanFranciscotoShanghai.TheofficialwasrequestedtochooseamethodoftransportationandtoadvisetheHomeOffice.692
OnNovember3,MinisterMiurawiredthatthechancesofgettingreservationsatSanFranciscowereveryslim.Itwouldbenecessary,theMinistersaid,toannouncehisintentionofreturninghomebyNovember14or15,attheverylatest,sincefourorfivedayswouldbe verywell"comesaunteringbackagainbecausehecouldn'tgetshipaccommodationsin accommodationsatSanFrancisco,therewasthedangerthathewouldbecomestrandedin Afact,whichwouldbeannouncedinafewdaysintheofficialMexicanGazette,wasreportedtoTokyoonNovember6,1941,namely,thecancellationbytheEconomicsDepart-wastobedispensedwithonNovember10,MinisterMiurasaid.Inthefuture,theimporta­beengivenareportthatItoochuuhadshippedsometwothousandcasestoChile,hefelt 

'PanamaIncidentHasNoticeableEffectMexico
OnNovember9,1941MinisterMiurawiredthattheannouncementofthePanamaIncidentinMexicohadhadnonoticeableeffectsinthatcountry.TheUniversalhad,onNovember8,publishedatelegramstatingthatJapanhadprotestedagainstthenewtrade namely,thatthisprotestconstitutedinterferenceintheinternalaffairsofPanama.Asyet, B9SIV,558.160 



313. Mexican Newspapermen Return from Japan Via Vancouver and Cuba

at the expense of the Japanese Government were, according to a dispatch from Tokyo on
November 13, returning to their country on the Hikawa Maru. Since the American authori-

would be of great help in Japanese machinations in Mexico. During their visit in Japan,theyhadmetallofthea
Mr. Llerco was, the Foreign Minister explained, under contract to the Yomiuri news-

paper as its Mexican correspondent. 696

314. Courier Inoma Dispatched to San Francisco
In deference to Tokyo's request that a courier be sent to San Francisco to pick up secret

papers which were being brought by Courier Oshino, Minister Yoshioki Miura reported on
November 17 that Courier Inoma had been dispatched for this mission. Courier Inoma19,stopinthatcityonhisto315.
expressed his deep gratitude to the Japanese, particularly to the Investigation Bureau, for

that he and Llerco, having visited Japan on the invitation of the Japanese and having

For this reason he hesitated to call at the Embassy or the Chancellery since they were not
allowed too much freedom of movement.

Furthermore, Llerco, who, with his brother, published the newspaper Hoy, had been fired

Mr. Araisa. ,

unfortunate since hostile writers would be producing a great deal of anti-Japanese propa-

work for Japan's benefit. 698

316. Mexico Enforces Stricter Passport Policies

by the abolition of passports were political refugees as in the case drawn up by Ambassador
Bureseda, Mexican Ambassador to Panama, which had no bearing on the present question,

where Japan was concerned. Mexico, he said, did not now recognize the passports of laborers,

cases, the Mexican Government requested that only 750 pesos be put up to return home in

"9"IV, 559.

"97IV,560:
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORprominentmenandhadveryclearpictureofJapan'sposition.wayWashington.697MexicanReporterReturningfromJapanExpressesHisGratitude"forHospitalityExtended 
TwoMexicannewspapermen,JoseLlercoandMr.Mr.Araisa,whohadbeensenttoJapan tiesrefusedcredittransitvisasongroundMr.Llercowasanti-American,hadhadbeenforceddisembarkatVancouverandreturntototoMexicobywayCuba.Asbothofofmenwereexceedinglycompetentreporters,thethethetheForeignMinisterfeltthatthattheythey scheduledproceedLosAngelesforexplanationpertainingtototothesepapers.ItwaswasfurtheraskedthatCourierKosaka,whowouldpassthroughMexicoCityonNovember OnreturnMexico,Mr.Araisa,oneMexicanreporterssenttotoJapan,visitedamemberofofthetheJapaneseLegationinhishisprivateapartment.Atthattimehehadhad thewelcomeandkindnesshehadreceivedduringhisvisittoJapan.Heexplained,however, takenquiteasummoneywithwhichtomakethetrip,werenowaccusedofof

beingspies. whilehewasJapan,andthepeopleininMexicomoreangryhimthantheywerewerewithwith Forthepresent,thesetwomenwereunablewritearticlesfavorabletotoJapan.Thiswas ganda.Hepromised,however,thatwhenthetimewasripe,they,too,wouldputpensto ThatpassportrestrictionwerebecomingmorestrictlyenforcedwasreportedtoTokyoonNovemberbyJapan'sMinisterinMexico.Althoughthosewhohadsufferedpersecution itstillboileddownwhetherornottheMexicanGovernmentwishedtotoexerciseclemency andtheonlytogetintoMexicowasbywaywayofafarmer'sorinvestor'spassport.Insome 



caseofemergencybut,inothercases,asmuchasfrom60,000to110,000pesosmightbe

necessary.

Even important reporters had been denied entry into the country as in the case of special
correspondents Asano and Nakano. Although negotiations concerning them had been going
on over a period of months, there did not seem to be much chance of their being admitted.699

Asearchingexaminationwasbeingconductedwithaviewtoexpellingallforeignerswhohadpassportswithflaws,andthenumberofJapanesewhomightfallvictimtothiswas

approximately one hundred.

TheformerpolicyofextendingthepassportsofJapanesecitizenswhosetimewasuphadbeendiscontinued,andtheywereallowedtowaitonlyuntilthenextshipcouldcometoevacuatethem.
Naturally, Minister Miura said, this situation existed as a result of Mexican-American

relations;and,asinthecaseofPanama,itwasnotapolicyforhumaneconsiderationsbutsimplyaquestionoftheirrelationswiththeUnitedStates.ThepredicamentoftheJapanesewaspitifulbeyondwordsandtheImperialGovernmentitselfwasonthespotinthisrespect.AssuringtheForeignMinisterthathehimselfwasnot

attempting to escape any labor or embarrassment, he pointed out that diplomats in Mexico

mustbecarefulnottosayanythingtogetthecountriestheyrepresentedintotrouble.As

soon as the Foreign Minister had evolved an answer to this question, he asked that he be
instructed immediately. 700

317.MinisterMiuraGivesHisOpinionRegardingOilAgreementBetweenUnitedStatesand

Mexico

FollowingtheannouncementonNovember19oftheUnitedStates-Mexicoagreement

concerning the oil question, Minister Miura transmitted his opinions of the matter on
November20.Asareasonfortherapidaccomplishmentoftheagreement,hesuggestedthattheUnitedStatescouldnotaffordtohaveashadowfalluponhermanyrelationswith

Mexico, which played the part of flagman for the various countries in Central and South
America.TheUnitedStatesfounditimpossibletoacquiescetoanypolicywhichwould

delay the completion of continental defense in Mexico.
Furthermore, Mexico had reached a condition of great uneasiness because of insufficient

rawmaterialsandcapital,ashadalreadybeenreported.Addedtothiswasthedissatisfaction

of the people in regard to the existing economic agreement as well as the threat of adverse
trade conditions never before seen in Mexico. Since the government found its position
untenable, the United States cleverly took advantage of all this to conclude the oil agree-
ment.7O1318.AgreementSignifiesDesireforMutualUnderstandingBetweenUnitedStatesandMexico

Foreign Minister Ezequiel Padilla had explained to newspaper reporters that the agree-
ment removed the obstacles to close cooperation, which were possible sources of friction if
postponed. In establishing the agreement, proof had been given of the desire on the part of

bothcountriesformutualunderstandingandhonestfriendship.TheJapaneseMinister

added that important writers in Mexico had declared the agreement signified Mexico's

gradual yielding to the United States, to the point where it was no longer possible to move
either hand or foot.7O2

6991V,562.
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announce the date of his departure. 703320.in
Japanese nationals in Mexico to enter the United States. The only method of travel to
Panama would be by plane, for all other ways of transportation were difficult to arrange.
Since many of the nationals in Mexico had realized that their only opportunity to return

obtaining transportation on this vessel. 704321.theat
2,000 tons of miscellaneous freight for transportation to Japan. 705

Mexico-Tokyo Diplomatic Channel for Intelligence Routing

center by the Japanese to glean useful information from the Uriited States, a Japanese

United States standing army was 3,000,000, but that 3,000,000 additional reserves were
planned and that the production of armaments had been increased accordingly. The
United States Marine Corps personnel was now about 62,000 but 100,000 would be needed
within one year. 706

Furthermore, the Mexican office reported a German language broadcast from London

East. Another item sent to Tokyo was taken from an Associated Press dispatch from Manila

on December 1 to the effect that American pilots using American planes had recently organized
an air unit to protect the Burma Road.7O7

Broadcasts

delivered by courier, Tokyo answered on November 29, 1941, that the instructions were
being sent by Courier Kosaka. Having been instructed to impart the knowledge from the

Japanese and Manchurian (sic) daily7OSa broadcasts: these would pertain to conditions in

'O3IV,566.
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'O"IV,568.

'O"IV,569.

7°'IV,570.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR319.MinisterMiuraRequestsTravelingExpensesandReservationsontheTatsutaMaruMinisterMiuraonNovember26,1941,askedthataroomontheTatsutaMarubereserved
forhimandthattravelingexpensesbesentassoonaspossible.HeinquiredaboutthescheduleoftheMaru,whetherthevesselwouldsailfromLosAngelestoBalboaanddirectlytoJapanorwouldstopatManzanilloonthewayback,asitwouldbenecessaryforhimto JapaneseNationalsRequestAidObtainingReservationsonTatsutaMaru

OnthisdayhealsoinformedTokyothatitwasvirtuallyimpossibletosecurevisasfor homewouldbeviatheTatsutaMaru,theyhadrequestedMinisterMiura'sassistancein MinisterMiuraAsksthatTatsutaMaruLoadFreightManzanillo
HefurtherrequestedthattheTatsutaMarubedirectedtostopatManzanillototakeon 322.JapaneseOfficialsUse Since,accordingtopreviousarrangements,MexicoCitywastobeusedasanintelligence intelligenceofficerreportedonanaddressmadebyaUnitedStatesMarineCorpsrecruitingofficerinDallas,Texas,onNovember26,1941.Itwaslearnedfromtheaddressthatthe Note:Thismessagewastranslatedin1945. onthenightofNovember30statingthatEnglandwasagaindispatchingwarshipstotheFar 323.TokyoSendsInstructionsbyCourierKosakaRegardingJapaneseandManchurianDaily Inregardtoapreviouswirerequestingcertaininstructionswhichweretohavebeen EmbassyoftheUnitedStatestoMexico,CourierKosakawoulddiscussthereceptionof 

'O'"IV,571.DoDComment:Textualrenditionthe.messagesuspect-appearsinretrospecttobetheestablishmentwarningsystem.
163 



Japan and Manchuria; the material would be distributed only in the Mexican Legation
and the military and naval attaches' offices; broadcasts received would be put into Japa-

324. Tokyo Wires Formal Authorization for Minister Miura's Return

325. Minister Miura Reports Impossible Reception of General Broadcast

intercepted in the code of the caption telegram (named in the heading of this message), it be
relayed to him immediately.71O326.to
arrange for the employment of Japanese from Panama immediately. These instructions were

in accordance with the policy of the Japanese government which decreed that as many
Japanese as possible should be resettled in Latin and Central American countries rather
than be returned to Japan. 711327.toto

Furthermore, the Foreign Minister explained that expenditures in the Mexican Legation

been explained in a previous circular. 712328.a
salary, the Minister discouraged this, suggesting that Panama provide travel expenses aswellasathein329.fortheto
ment to allow the Tatsuta Maru to enter and leave port at Manzanillo. Tokyo ordered that no

general freight be loaded. It also asked that negotiations with Mexico be undertaken so that
Mr. Minoru Takada, the Foreign Office Liaison official on board the ship, and his aide,
Takade Toshiyuki, might obtain entrance permits.714

7°"IV, 572.

7l2IV, 575.

713IV,576.

71'IV,577.
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nesetextandimmediatelyforwardedtoColombia,Venezuela,EISalvadorandPanama.7O8
FormalauthorizationforMinisterMiura'sreturntoJapanwaswiredfromTokyoonDecember1,1941.709

OnthisdayMinisterMiurareportedtoWashingtonthatconditionsintermittentlymadeitimpossibletoreceivethegeneralbroadcasts.Heaskedthat,shouldabroadcastbe ForeignMinisterTogoInstructsMinisterMiuraArrangeforEmploymentofJapanesefrom
Panama 

Foreign Minister Togo, in a dispatch of December 1, 1941, instructed that Minister MiuraTokyoOrdersMexicoLimitExpensesandUse"S"Code
wouldbeconfinedtothelimitsofthemoneysalreadygrantedtothatoffice.ItwasaddedthatcircumstancesmadeitnecessarytoconsidertheuseoftheNavy"S"code,whichhad MinisterMiuraDiscusseswithPanamatheEmploymentofNewStaffMember

InaccordancewithinstructionsfromtheHomeOffice,MinisterMiuradeclaredthatonepersonwouldbeaddedtothestaffinMexico.AlthoughthedispatchfromPanamahadmentionedcandidateswhowouldbewillingtopaytheirownfareandtoworkwithout suitablewageafterappointee'sarrivalMexico.713TokyoMakesPlansTatsutaMaruEnterandLeavePortatManzanillo
OnDecember4,1941TokyodirectedthatarrangementsbemadewiththeMexicangovern­710IV,573.711IV,574. 



seven years. Clearly indicating the position of the Mexican government in relation to theasto331.forofoftheat
which stated that the vessel would dock at Manzanillo on its way from Los Angeles to Balboa.

estimated its arrival in Balboa to be on December 26, 1941. This information was to be relayed

to Washington and Panama.717

That the Mexican government had no objections to the entrance permits for Foreign Officehis
to Tokyo on December 5, 1941.718

332. Tokyo Informs Minister Miura it Approves Taking American and Mexican Money to Japan
In answer to a request from Minister Miura, Tokyo declared ,that there were no restictions

on bringing American (?) or Mexican money to Japan and that, in fact, the Foreign Office
approved of the plan.719

333. Japanese Minister in Mexico Informs Tokyo of Destruction of Ciphers and Code M:ichines

been destroyed, although on December 2, 1941 Tokyo had instructed that Washington need
not follow instructions to get in touch with Mexico.72O

added that he would do likewise with his telegraphic ciphers addressed to various South
American offices which were in his care. 721
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR330.TheMexicanGovernmentReopensItsLegationinChina
OnDecember4,1941Tokyo,aswellastheWashingtonoffice,wasinformedthattheMexicaJ:lgovernmentwasreopeningitslegationinChina,whichhadbeenclosedforthelast presentAmerican-JapanesequestionwasthefactthattheradicalMiguelAngelMenendezhadbeennamedMinisterChungking.715MinisterMiuraAsksConfirmationScheduleTatsutaMaru
SincetherouteoftheTatsutaMaruseemedillogicaltoMinisterMiura,hewiredforconfirmationoftheschedule.Hedeclaredthatinhisopiniontherewassomemistakeabout TatsutaMaruleavingLosAngelesanddockingtheMexicanport.716

However,onthissamedayherelayedTokyomessage#243totheConsulinLosAngeles SinceitwasscheduledtoarriveonDecember19,1941,andleavetwodayslater,hehadliaisonofficialTakadaandaideToshiyuki,whowereonboardtheTatsutaMaru,waswired 
OnDecember7,1941theJapaneseMinisterinMexicoinformedTokyothatalltelegraphicciphers,codemachinesandsafeswiththeexceptionofoneseteachoftwoseparatecodeshad MinisterMiuradeclaredthathehadreceivedthecodewordSensanfromSanFrancisco,possiblyindicatingthatthisofficehadsimilarlydestroyeditscodesandcodemachine.He 71.IV,579.717IV,580. 



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTC-JAPANESEDIPLOMATICACTIVITIESTHROUGHOUTTHEWORLD
(f) Japanese-South American Relations

334. Columbia Refuses United States Overfligbt Requests
Bogota reported to Tokyo on October 24, 1941, that the government of Colombia had

refused the United States the right to fly over its territory, although Venezuela and BrazilhadagreedtoallowtheU.S.tooverflytheircountries.722
335.JapaneseNavalAuthoritiesShipTransmitterDespiteProtestsofSouthAmericanForeign

Offices

When the Japanese Embassy in Argentina warned that it could not safely accept the radio
transmitterpartsbeingshippedaboardtheTaaMaru,723TokyoadviseditsRiodeJanieroofficethattheequipmentwouldbesenttothediplomaticofficeinBrazilandwastobetakenashoreiftherewasapossibilityofsuccessfultransportation.IfBrazilianauthoritiessuspected

the nature of the cases, they were to be returned to Tokyo.724
WordcametoRioonOctober27,thattheTaaMaruhadleftBuenosAires,Argentina,onOctober25,1941,withtheradioaboard.725MinisterShuiTomiialsoadvisedTokyothatalongwiththetransmitterhewasshippingdiplomaticpaperswhichwereentrustedtothe

ship's Captain.726336.MitsubishiUnabletoShipSuppliesAboardToaMaru
AlthoughMinisterTomiihadhopedtoincludeacargoofMitsubishisuppliesaboardthe

Taa Maru, since this material had already failed to reach Japan on the Yamazata Maru,
thereseemedtobenopossibilityofobtainingashippingrelease.EventhoughVice-Minister

Yoshio Nakamura had already interviewed the Interministerial Commission in Argentina,

the Chief of the Trade Bureau and the Vice Minister of Agriculture to gain a permit, he

wastoldthattheexportoftungstenshouldhavebeenprohibitedearlier.Mitsubishirepre-

sentatives, as well as Naval Attache, Katsumi Yukishita, consulted the Chief of the Naval

Staff.InviewofthefactthattheUnitedStateshadalreadyagreedtopurchasetwothousandtonsoftungstenayearfromArgentina,itwasbelievedthatsuchaguaranteewouldconsti-

tute a monopoly in the tungsten trade and that the whole matter would develop into a
politicalratherthanabusinesstransaction.Withthisinmind,MinisterTomiifeltthatthere

was practically no hope of shipping the goods aboard the Taa Maru on October 25, 1941.727337.GermanRepresentativesReserveCabinsAboardToaMaru
ApparentlysomeGermanrepresentativeswerealsoaboardtheTaaMaruleavingRiodeJaneiroforBuenosAires.AlthoughtheTaawascrowded,TokyoadvisedBerlinonOctober27thattwocabinsaboardtheshiphadbeenreserved.728
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338. Japanese Navy Promises to Stow Radio Transmitter

WhentheToaMarureachedRio,NavalAttacheAtsuoShigehiroreportedtoAmbassador

Ishii on November 6, 1941, that he was bringing ashore the radio transmitter. However, since

Ambassador Itaro Ishii personally, objected to being put on the spot by naval officials he
again warned that hereafter the Imperial Navy and Foreign Departments would need to

'cooperate more closely for if the Foreign Service was not informed of future undercover

activities,theAmbassadordeclaredhewouldbeforcedtohavenothingtodowithsuchmatters.ThentheNavalAttachehadrepliedthatinviewofsuchopposition,hewould

merely store the transmitter in his office without even unwrapping it.

339. Brazil Begins Close Inspection of Japanese Exports and Imports
Ambassador Ishii in the same message, then explained that he had disposed satisfactorly

ofthe200additionalitemswhichhadbeensent.HealsorevealedtoTokyothattheTreasuryDepartmentinBrazilwassecretlycheckingallexportstoJapan,evenresortingtopunchingholesintrunksandbaggingwhenthesituationarose.729Onemethodofcheckingcontents

being used by Brazilian custom inspectors was that of "accidentally" dropping and bursting

baggage of Japanese. Since in one particular instance a package had been similarly openedwhenGermanAmbassadorHenrichD.StahmerwasgoingaboardaJapaneseMaru,Mr.Ishii's
staff was forced to cover up both for Japan and the Brazilian government but Ambassador
Ishii felt that if such a situation occurred again, Japan would be embarrassed and relations
withBrazilirretrievablydamaged.Heagainwarnedthat.Japanesenavalofficialsshouldbemorecautiousintheiractivitiesandrefrainfromsendingsuchhazardousorderstotheir

representatives abroad.73O

340. Terukawa Maro to Stop at Call.ao

TheproblemofwhethertheTerukawaMaruwouldputinatCallaowasstillundecidedonOctober20whenForeignMinisterTogowiredtheJapaneseofficeinBuenosAirestomakeaccommodationsforAmbassadorTanakawaaboardtheship.731AtthistimeForeignMinisterTogoadvisedMinisterIungoYanaiinBogotathattheTerukawaMaru'sschedulewasstill

undetermined but instructions had been sent to the Kawasaki steamship agent in Santiago,arrangementsweretobecompletedimmediatelyforloadingtheAmbassador'sbaggage.732
OnNovember5MinisterYanaiinBogota,havinglearnedthattheTerukawaMaruwouldnotstopatCallao,wiredtheJapaneseNavalAttacheinMexicothatcertainmatterswhichweretohavebeenshippedaboardthenavalvesselcouldnotnowleaveBrazil.However,the

Minister explained that he had cabled to Tokyo requesting that the ship's schedule be
altered in order to take aboard the cargo.733

InspiteofallthehagglingovertheTerukawa'sschedule,itwasrevealedonNovember13,1941,thattheshipwoulddockatCallaosinceapartyoffour,headedbyCommanderMichinoriYosii,formerlyscheduledtoarriveinTrinidadfromEngland,nowwouldsailaboardtheTerukawaMarudepartingCallaoNovember19.734
ByDecember1,1941,itdevelopedthattheTerukawaMaruwastobeutilizedinreturningtheColombianAmbassadorcarryingwithhimspecialmateriallabeled"cannedgoods"toJapan.TheAmbassadorwastodelivertheshipmenttothesonofYanai,MinistertoBogota,

who would in turn deliver the special cargo to the Navy Department. 735
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advised Berne, Switzerland; Ankaran, Washington, Mexico, England, France, Germany

and Italy that they had begun to use the code machine.736

impending emergency when Mr. Yanai in Bogota advised on this day that it would be
practically impossible to carry on wire communications via United States and British
telegraph companies. Japanese broadcasting stations would be the only direct means of
communication between Tokyo and South America and it would be advisable to set up a code
call sign for each Japanese embassy and legation.737

343. Tokyo in
It soon became obvious that the situation involving Japanese nationals in Panama would

of the general revised policy of the Panamanian government towards the yellow race. In
the words of Japanese Foreign Minister Togo the Japanese nationals had remained mild
and unruffled in the face of government discrimination against their businesses and that
through pleas and persuasive methods they had induced the former president of Panama to
promise friendly treatment. Nevertheless on October 8, this resume declared, because of a
coup d'etat which resulted in the installation of an unfriendly president, Panama's relationsthatbeto

Japan's propaganda organization would endeavor to place the United States in the position of
being a ruthless power in the eyes of Latin America. In addition, it was to be pointed out that

established, Panama's present unfriendly attitude would be remembered for a long time.739

Ambassador Ishii for information regarding the attitude of the Panamanian government with

tions to Panama protesting and seeking:-
1. Compensation for damage to Japanese property;2.Afortheof
3. Preservation of Japanese property in the future;
4. Abandonment of pressure upon Japanese to evacuate.

work, domestic endeavors and chauffeuring in Panama and that some three hundred of them

faced financial ruin. In an effort to obtain the transfer of these nationals all Japanese offices

".IV, 596, 598.

7a8IV,600.

73"IV,601.

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR341.SouthAmericanCountriesChangetoCodeMachineNovember7,1941342.MinisterYanaiAdvisesInstigationofNewRadioCodeUrgesThatMaltreatedJapanesePanamaBeTakentoSouthAmericadesirethesenationalsallowedinfiltrateelsewhereinSouthAmerica.738
suitableperioddispositionstocksheldbyJapanesenationals;countries.74O

OnNovember7,1941,boththeJapaneseMinistriesinRiodeJanieroandBuenosAiresByNovember21,1941,SouthAmericancountrieshadundertakenspecificplansforthe alsocometoahead.OnNovember4,1941,AmbassadorIshiiretransmittedTokyo'sanalysis withJapanimmediatelyturnedfortheworse,onOctober30allJapanesebusinesstobestoppedforcingalmost300personsintounemploymentandandbankruptcy.ItwaswasJapan'sApparentlyJapanblamedUnitedStatesanti-JapanesepressurePanamawasdeterminedononarelentlessoppositioninwhichtheywouldappealtothethegreatSouthAmericanpowersandandtheirsympathyforforhumanetreatmentofindividuals.However shouldAxispowervictoriousinthethewarandanEastAsiaco-prosperityspherebebe OnNovember15,acircularmessagefromTokyoMexicowastransmittedtotoBrazilby regardJapanesenationals

there.Accordingtotothecircular,Japanhadmaderepresenta-ThecircularadvisedthatJapanesenationalswereonlypermittedtoengageinlaundry inimportantSouthAmericancitieswereadvisedmakerepresentationstototheiraccredited737IV,599. "'0IV,602.169 



344.MinisterTomiiAdvisesAdjustmentofJapaneseAmericanRelationstoGiveJapanMoreTimeMinisterTomiiinBuenosAiresaddedtothegeneralpicturethenonNovember22,1941,he

explained that in recent months South American sympathy toward the United States was

increasingindirectproportiontoincreasedtrade.MinisterTomiiwasoftheopinionthatit

would be wise to adjust Japanese-American relations immediately in order to give Japan
additional time to restrict this increasing North American influence.

In all his conversations with the Acting President of Argentina, Minister Tomii explained

thatArgentinahadexpressedcompleteconfidenceinJapan.Hestatedthatonlyasuccess-

ful adjustment of Japanese-American relations could aid in the preparation of a Japanese-

Argentine commercial agreement. In the event of a breach in Japanese-American relations,
the agreement would be terminated.741

345. Minister Koseki in Paraguay Burns Codes

OnNovember22,JapaneseRepresentativeKosekiinAsuncion,Paraguay,advisedthe

Foreign Office in Tokyo that he had burned all codes in accordance with instructions from the
Ambassador to Brazil. 742346.NewCodeWordsIssuedNovember29,1941

Not long after Minister Yanai's request that a new code be installed, a circular from Tokyo

onNovember29revealedacompletelistofadditionalcodewordswiththeirequivalent

meanings. 743347.TokyoListsAccomplishmentsofPearlHarborDay
OnDecember10,1941,aTokyocircularwasinterceptedintransmissionfromRiotoBuenosAires,outliningtheDecember7accomplishmentsoftheImperialJapaneseArmy

and Navy against American and British forces in the Pacific. According to the report, the
Imperial Navy had carried out a withering air attack on the American fleet at Hawaii, sinking

twoandseriouslydamagingfourbattleships,seriouslydamagingaboutfourlargecruisers,shootingdownmanyenemyplanesandpossiblysinkinganaircraftcarrier.
OnDecember8thecombinedJapaneseArmyandNavyAirCorpsreportedlyattackedthePhilippineAirForce,shootingdownfortyplanesatIba,fiftytosixtyplanesatClarkField,withalossofonlytwoplanestoJapan.Davao,WakeandGuamwereheavilydamagedandatGuamthewarshipPenguin,wassunk.Midwaywassubjectedtoheavyfireontheafternoonofthe8thwithlossofanairplanehangerandfuelreserves.BeforedawnonDecember8,the

Imperial Navy Air Corps had bombed Tengaa and Seretaa bases near Singapore and the

ImperialArmyandNavy,underaunifiedcommand,hadeasilyoccupiedThailandthat

afternoon.

InSouthernChina,theiraircorpshadattackedanenemyairbasenorthofHongKongwheretwelveoffourteenplaneswereburnedandtheBritishgunboatJeitoreruwassunkwhiletheAmericangunboatWakesurrendered.AtPekingandTientsin,theAmericanMarineCorpswasdisarmedandtheShanghaiinternationalconcessionwascompletelyoccupied,aswasthe

British concession at Shamen.744

(a) Argentina
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348. Japan Attempts to Improve Trade with Argentina

and import trade with Japan during September amounted to 7,162,614 pesos and 3,391,523

should secure their transportation back to Japan. 747

wool, hides, quebracho, and linseed but no tungsten. They also concluded that since the
purchasing power of Japanese merchants was 2,000,000 yen, it would be wise to increasebyof
349. Japan Undecided as to Sympathies of Argentina

States and Japan but would remain on the sidelines. According to the Japanese-Panamaninan

Minister, Mr. Akiyama, on November 12, 1941, this fact was evidenced by the proposed

America.749

With regard to Japanese endeavors to relocate its nationals from Panama to various South

the fact that the government of Argentina had been so quiet, sticking to a neutral policy,

that he had made representations to the government in an effort to prevent unfortunate
action. 750

received from the United States, it was declared in a message from Buenos Aires to Tokyo on

Japanese-American negotiations and the movements of Japanese troops from Central China.in
Buenos Aires. Confusion concerning Argentina's attitude toward these negotiations resulted
after La Pazon and British and American newspapers published apparently unconfirmed

Argentina government had not ,refused to cooperate but appeared less enthusiastic.
.

chief in order to verify the source of the newspaper report and all the leaks regarding the
conversations. Presumably, the Foreign Office was unaware of recent developments but

point the Japanese minister generalized that in settling a commerce problem, publicity
was not the desirable thing and asked that the forthcoming negotiations be kept strictly
secret.752
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORpesosrespectively.746DomesticCommerceofficialsKosakuTanakaandMasuoKate>workedtheirreservepurchasingpowerexportationhigherpricedrawsilktoArgentina.748
Furthermore,BritishmalecitizensArgentinawerebeingrapidlydraftedby.England.751 

EventhoughArgentinamaintainedafriendlyattitudetowardJapanduringpre-PearlHarbormonths,tradebetweenthethetwo'countriesbecamemorecircumscribed.745ExportuntilOctober24,1941,whenForeignTogoissuedinstructionsthatMinisterMinisterTomii InvestigationsrevealedonNovember5,1941,thatitwasstillpossibleforJapantopurchaseAccordingJapanese,ArgentinadidnotintendtotoenterwarbetweenthethetheUnited withdrawalArgentineMinistertoPanamainthetheeventofofwarbetweenJapanand Americancountries,MinisterTomiiwiredTokyoonNovember14,1941,thatatmosphereinArgentinahadbeenrelativelycalmfarasasthetheJapanesequestionwasconcerned.However, MinisterTomiibelievedforebadenogoodforhiscountrymenandwiththisinviewrevealed ThatAmericahaddecidedtodeclarewaragainstJapanappearedplaininthereports November28,1941

(translated1-14-45).Thisfactwassubstantiatedbytheprogressof TomiicontinuedtoworktowardsbetterrelationsbetweenArgentinaandJapanreportingonNovember28,1941,thathehadtalkedwithForeignMinisterMinisterOswaldoAranyain reportsonTomii-Aranyaconversation.Mr.TomiiinformedhisHomeOfficethatthethe Mr.TomiicontinuedthatSecretaryNakamurahadvisitedtheCommerceBureauvice-immediatelyreassuredMr.Tomiithatathoroughinvestigationwouldbemade.Atthis 



joint defense of American Continents whereby Japan would naturally be treated as a

this policy as "qualified neutrality" which left the Japanese Minister in considerable doubt
as to the real intentions of the South American nation. With the expectation of a second inter-
view Mr. Tomii departed. 753

talk with the Foreign Minister. During the interview he stated he had stressed Japanese-

Argentine amity through the years and the fact that Japan regarded Argentina as the leader
of all South American countries and then advised the Foreign Minister of Japan's wishes.
In reply the Foreign Minister agreed with the Japanese points of view but stated that it would
be necessary for him to consult with the President of Argentina. According to the Foreignhehadnotyet

According to the circular from Tokyo which was intercepted in transmission from Buenos

England it might become impossible to communicate directly with Mexico, Central

America, Panama and Cuba. In this event it would be desirable that Japan be on the alert

questionable countries.755

(b) Brazil

350. Japall Improves Communications Facilities to Brazil
Since the direction, time and contents of Japan's foreign broadcasts had been changed

November 11, 1941, while Ambassador Ishii conveyed his ,pleasure over the improvement in

detailed broadcast of Japanese news in an effort to impress South American listeners with the

fairness of Japan's position in current international affairs.757351.deThedayin
latter would arrive in Washington by the 5th of December and would continue to San

suggested that Mao, in Mexico, make connections with Courier Kosaka in Washington. 759
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WhenTomiibeganhisconversationswithonDecember5,1941,hebroughtupsubjectofofJapanese-AmericanrelationsaskedbluntlywhatpositionArgentinaArgentinawouldtakeshouldUnitedStatesandandJapangowar.InreplyForeignForeignMinisterMinisterMinisterreferredtotoHavanaProtocol,adeclarationcallingforthethethethethethe aggressornation.AlthoughUnitedStateswasexpectedrequestaidfromArgentina,thetheForeignMinisterassuredMr.TomiithatnoharmwouldcomeJapan.Hereferredtototo 

-

InalaterdispatchonDecember8,1941,MinisterTomiithenrevealedtheessenceofhis Minister,London,Ottawa,Canberra,andChungkinghadallmadethesameproposition,AirestoRiodeJaneiro,JapanfearedthatupontheoutbreakofwarwithAmericaand foranyinformationregardingdeclarationswaranddetentionofofJapaneseinthese beforeOctober1,1941,756Brazil'sreceiving

stationwasreportingincreasedefficiencyon reception.Atthesametime,hesuggestedthatitmightbewisetoinaugurateamore IshiiconfirmedwithTokyoreturnJapanviaUnitedStates.HealsoannouncedthatthatamemberofthethetheRioofficewouldwouldaccompanyCourierCourierKosakatoto OnNovember12,AmbassadorIshiiwiredtoTokyoonbehalfofCourierKosakathatthe Franciscowherehewouldarrivebymiddleofthethemonth.TheAmbassadoratthistime 

althoughheardfromWashingtonandRiodeJaneiro.754 
CourierKosakaLeavesRioJaneiroforWashingtonfollowingCourierKosaka'sarrivalRiodeJaneiro,October29,1941,AmbassadorNewYork.758 

I



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
Then the Ambassador advised Japan's Mexican office on November 18 that Courier Kosaka

would stop over in Mexico after arriving at San Francisco.761
TheJapaneseEmbassyinWashingtonwasinstructedonNovember12,19:41,tohaveArmySurgeonMajorHayakawa,whosestatuswastobesecret,sentimmediatelytoBrazil.AlthoughMajorHayakawawastoactasanon-careerspecialistconnectedwiththeEmbassy

in Brazil and serving only in that country, he was to be under the orders of the attache resident
in Argentina.762

352. Japan Recognizes Strong United States Sympathies in Brazil
TherewaslittledoubtthatUnitedStatesinfluencewasstronginBrazilorthatJapanwasawareoftheresultantantagonismtowarditself.AmbassadorIshiihadlearnedfromvariousconsulsbyOctober30thatEnglandandtheUnitedStateshadbeenpurchasingBrazilian

newspapers for propaganda purposes with a view toward alienating the Brazilian people

fromJapan.InordertocombatsuchactivitiesAmbassadorIshiiadvisedthathewasworkingwithBraziliangovernmentauthoritiesinRioandinviewoftheimminentdangerofacrisis,

his employees had been diligent in collecting pertinent information.763

TheninNovemberthegovernmentofBrazilconferreduponUnitedStatesChiefofStaffGeorgeMarshallthehonorarytitleofSupremeCommanderoftheBrazilianArmy,Ambassa-dorIshiilostnotimeinwiringTokyoonNovember25,1941.Thisgesture,heexplained,was

an expression of appreciation for General Marshall's assistance to Great Britain in securing
there-IoadingofGermananti-aircraftgunsconsignedtoBrazilattherequestofChiefofStaff

Pedro Goez. 764

353. Japan Transfers Bank Funds
TheimpendingcrisiscausedaflurryoftransactionsforatransferofYokohamaSpecieBankfundstotheImperialgovernment'sministryinCaracas,BogotaandPanama.AnunidentifiedrepresentativeoftheSpecieBankwastoarriveinCaracasonNovember

30, 1941, and would be in Bogota by December 4, from which he would travel to Panama
on December 10. Traveling on a diplomatic passport, the representative would be given the
title of extraordinary official attached to the Rio office. 765

354. Ambassador Ishii Asks for Additional Funds

AsBritishandAmericanpressureuponBrazilbecamemoreconfining,Japaneserepre-

sentatives operated in secrecy. In view of the fact that such machinations would require
increased resources Ambassador Ishii asked on November 28, 1941, that Japan appropriate
temporarily a secret fund. Throughout the message, Ambassador Ishii attempted to
emphasize the need for secrecy in combating the present critical turn of events. 766

355. Ambassador Ishii Has Difficulty in Radio Reception
Although, generally, transmissions to South American countries had cleared considerably

by the last of November, Ambassador Ishii radioed on November 30 that Brazilian and
Argentine receivers were finding difficulty in copying Japan's 10:30 p.m. broadcast.
Thereafter he initialed negotiations to test reception of 4:00 a.m. to 6:00 a.m. broadcasts. 767
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wholeheartedly to a neutrality policy in view of the fact that military authorities were

in favor of the United States". 768

Santiago office revealing additional code words and their meanings for activities in prepara-
tion for the coming crisis.769

pressure arose again when on December 2, 1941, Ambassador Ishii advised Tokyo that the
estimated 512 contos previously requested would be insufficient to complete reconstruction
of the Naval Attache's office. In view of the fact that the number of personnel had been
increased by three and additional security equipment was needed, the Ambassador
requested that naval authorities arrange for disbursement of an additional nineteen contos.770

he had arranged for a loan of 5000 contos from the Specie Bank, making a total of 6000 contos
on hand at diplomatic headquarters in Brazil. In addition, the Ambassador had arranged for
a further loan of 10,000 contos as a safety measure in the event that conditions would take
an adverse turn.771

357. Ambassador Ishii Requests Release of Secretary Kusano
Three days later, on December 6, 1941" Ambassador Ishii advised that he had released tele-

would be desired, the Ambassador said, that Mr. Kusano's return to Japan be authorized

and machinery, be appointed. 772

358. Japan Sees United States Military Occupation of South American
Japan grasped quickly at the occupation of Netherlands Guiana by the United States armed

forces as the first military occupation of the South American continent in its analysis of the

just beginning to reveal its true military objectives.
The release-compared the United States' occupation of Netherlands Guiana with Japan's

of Latin America. Foreign Minister Togo called upon all Japanese representatives in South
America to seize every opportunity available to point out the obvious intentions of the United
States affecting South American governments and people.773

viewpoint and questioned the Brazilian regarding his government's attitude toward the
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356.JapanPreparedforCrisisAsBrazilianArmySupportsAmerica
DespiteForeignMinisterAranya's.protestationsofneutralitywheninterviewedbyAmbassadorIshiionDecember1,1941,itwasapparentthatBrazilwouldbeunabletoaccede pressingforaUnitedStates-Brazilalliance.TheAmbassadordescribedBrazilas"neutral OnDecember2,1941,AmbassadorIshiiretransmittedthecircularfromTokyotoJapan's ThequestionofsufficientfundsforJapan'smachinationsinoppositiontoUnitedStates Onthefollowingday,AmbassadorIshiiadvosedTokyothatinviewofcurrentactivities graphicofficialKusanowho,forvariousphysicalreasons,wasinefficientinhisposition.It sometimebeforeDecember7andthatamorehealthysuccessor,well-versedintelegraphy internationalsituationretransmittedfromRiodeJaneirotoPanamaonDecember7,1941.TheanalysisemphasizedimplicationsofthisactionstatingthatthetheUnitedStateswas occupationFrenchIndo-China,

statingthatUnitedStatesactasitpleasedinLatinAmericaandunderthethebannerofofhemisphericsolidaritywouldwouldconstantlythreatenall OnDecember8,1941,AmbassadorIshiiadvisedTokyothatactedinaccordancetheseinstructionsandbyarrangingaconfidentialconversationwithwithUnderSecretaryStateofofBrazil.AtinterviewhehehadhadexplainedthethethesituationfromJapan's 771IV,632. 



United States-Japanese war. The Under Secretary had replied that Brazil stressed the
importance of hemispheric solidarity but did not say definitely that Brazil would sever
relations with Japan.774

From local officials Ambassador Ishii gathered that hemispheric solidarity as interpreted

by Brazil meant political and economic cooperation but had no particular military implica-
tions. In addition, he learned that the Brazilian government was protecting Japanese

Brazil freeze all Japanese property there, with which he believed Brazil would comply.
Ambassador Ishii learned that articles pertaining to any interpretation of Japanese-American

publicity needed to be written sympathetically toward the United States. Ambassador Ishii

control office forebade the newspapers to print it.775

359. Japan Issues Instructions for Burning CodesOn8,all
and confidential papers should be burned in accordance with developments in Rio. Certaintobeif
360. Minister Yamagata Suspects United States Machinations in Chile

requested air bases in return for economic favors on October 16, 1941, he immediately
associated this move with the economic crisis within Chile and observed on October 20, 1941,

toward Japan. 777

Minister Yamagata then originated a dispatch on November 5 urging Tokyo to take
advantage of the Chilean economic crisis to support a plan for increased Japanese-
Chilean trade and to back negotiations for a new trade treaty. The Minister also voiced a

failure to arrange for the sailing of another ship in its place.778 The next day while answering

were sailing at that time from Chile to the Far East.779

361. Japan Limits Tour of Chilean Press
For undetermined reasons Japan had decided to return six visiting Chilean newspaper-

employed the Chilean press members for educating the people of South America to respect

the press members were not to disembark at Panama aboard an American vessel. 782

77'IV,635.

775IV,636.

71"IV, 637, 638.
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workersagainstfifthcolumnagentsandalsothattheUnitedStateswasdemandingthat warwerebeingshunnedaswereallarticleswhichmightprovoketheJapanese,although saidthatalthoughhehadexplainedtothepresswhyJapanwasforcedtofightAmerica,the DecemberTokyoorderedthatcodeswiththeexceptionofoneeachofcertaincodes
bedestroyed.Onlyintheeventofacrisiswouldtheremainingcodesbedestroyed.ForeignMinisterTogodemandedthatthefilesofhismessagetoAmbassadorIshiiandothersecretcodewordswereusedandwhenAmbassadorIshiiburnedthevarioussystems.776

WhenMinisterYamagatainSantiagosecretlylearnedthattheUnitedStateshadformally thatthecoincidenceofthetwoeventsdisclosedtoadegreetheUnitedStates'attitude protestagainstthecancellationoftheKakuMaru'sdepartureforChileandagainstJapan's aqueryfromJapan'sRomeoffice,MinisterKiyoshiYamagataadvisedthatnoforeignships mentotheirnativelandwithoutallowingthemtovisitShanghai78OorNanking.781Having andcherishJapanesenationalism,ForeignMinisterTogoonDecember2issuedinstructionsforthesixmenreturninghomeviatheTatsutaMarutobecaredforinPanama.Atotalof$2,160wastobeonhandwhentheTatsutadockedandspecificinstructionswereissuedthat 777IV,639.778IV,640.77"IV,641.'80IV,642.'81IV,643.'82IV,644.175 



362. Japanese Watch Development of South American Sympathies in Face of War
Itsoonbecameobvious,whenonNovember18,1941,theUnitedStatescommunication

intelligence facility intercepted a retransmission of Tokyo's message, that Japan had
discovered excessive political maneuvers among the South American nations. Since the

ColombianForeignMinisteraswellasthePeruvianViceMinisterhadbeenconferringinChileandastheChileanPresidenthadbeenoustedonlyrecently,itwasobviousthatmachinationswereafoot.However,thesemovesdidnotnecessarilymeanthatLatinAmerica

was consolidating for war against Japan, the Foreign Minister pointed out as he revealed
thatdiscussionswerebeingcarriedonamongSouthAmericannationsforindependentaction

in the event of a Japanese-American conflict. 783

However, another dispatch intercepted on November 21, 1941, originated by Ambassador
IshiiinRiodeJaneiroandtransmittedtoTokyorevealedthatForeignMinisterOswaldAranyaoftheBrazilianForeignOfficewasscheduledtovisitChileintheofficeofnegotiator

between Chile and the United States for allied occupation of one of Chile's military bases.
AmbassadorIshiihadbeenadvisedofthisbytheGermanAmbassadorwhowasaclose

associate of the President of Brazil, Getuilo Vargas. 784

ByNovember25,1941,MinisterTomiiinBuenosAireshaddiscoveredthattheprincipalobjectoftheBrazilianForeignMinister'svisittoArgentinaandChilewastoexchangeopinionsregardingthedefenseoftheAmericasandthecreationofmilitarybases.Theoutcome

of the informal conversations had been, according to an intelligence report, (1) to preserve
neutrality, (2) to defend the southern portion of South America by Colombia, Peru, Argen-
tina, Brazil and Chile, excluding Uruguay, Paraguay, Ecuador and Bolivia because of their
strong United States inclinations) and (3) to prevent establishing military bases in
Uruguay (to be guaranteed by Brazil and Argentina). 785

AcircularmessagefromTokyoadvisedallSouthAmericanofficesonNovember28,1941,thatJapanese-Americannegotiationswouldtakeacriticalturnwithinthenextfewday

since the United States had overlooked all that Japan stood for. This was for the information
of the Japanese diplomatic offices only.786

AccordingtoaDecember6dispatchfromMinisterYamagatatoTokyo,Germanyhad

pressed the Chilean government for information concerning its control of the Magellan

Straits.'TheSecretaryofStatehadrevealedtotheGermanAmbassadorthatChileplannedjointactionwithArgentinaandthatChilehaddecidednottopermitthesestraitstobe

used as a military base.787

OnDecember2,1941,MinisterYamagatahadsupplementedhisinterpretationoftheABCconferences.HeexplainedthatwhileArgentinaandChilewereresolvedtopreserveneutrality,BrazilhadalreadymaintainedanunderstandingtosupportAmericaasanon-belligerent.

However, the Foreign Minister had assured Mr. Yamagata that he would do all in his powertomaintainChileanneutrality.788363.MinisterYamagataAsksChiletoTakeinMaltreatedJapanesefromPanama
When on November 22, 1941, Minister Yamagata visited the Foreign Minister of Chile,

he explained the problems of Japanese nationals in Panama. The Foreign Minister had
been surprised by these activities and listened "with an air of incredulity and horror" as

Mr.Yamagatadisclosedtheinhumanetreatmentbeingmetedouttohiscountrymenand'83IV,645.
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promised that he would discuss the matter immediately with the Vice Presidel).t and offered
the suggestion that perhaps Chile could influence Panama to change its attitude. Whereupon
Minister Yamagata assured the Foreign Minister that this would be impossible and

the Foreign Minister had inquired as to the possibility of evacuating Japanese nationals in
Panama to which Minister Yamagata explained that Japanese for many years had been
residing in Panama and did not cherish the idea of leaving Latin America.

The Foreign Minister then advised the Japanese Minister that Chile, although it had no
particular racial prejudice, had been discontinuing, in recent months, the issuing of
immigrant passports. Should they change this policy the United States and other countries

position to show such partiality. However, the Foreign Minister promised to consult with his

permitted to enter Chile.79O

The day after this interview Minister Yamagata advised Tokyo that he had visited the

story of Panamanian discrimination against Japanese nationals and asked if the Catholic
representative could not intercede. However, the delegate had replied that Panama was
not under his jurisdiction and suggested that Minister Yamagata appeal directly to the Pope.
Mr. Yamagata then suggested that perhaps the delegate could intercede on behalf of Japan

Foreign Minister. 791

should be concluded immediately by obtaining separate visas for these employees.792

the end of November. 793

Following Tokyo's reprimand with regard to Chile visas, Minister Yamagata called on the

nese in general, entrance visas for diplomatic employees and primarily visas for Amano
staff members. Since Chile's Vice-President had been quite busy, the Foreign Minister
had seen no opportunity to discuss the matter with him but hastened to inform Mr. Yamagata
that he himself was trying to obtain an entrance permit for members of the Amano company
staff.

However, the Foreign Minister cautioned Mr. Yamagata that present day conditions did

being taken to avoid being caught, American surveillance had become increasingly strict

Japanese-Chilean trade.

7a"IV, 651.

7""IV, 652.

79'IV, 653.
79'IV,654.

793IV,655.

177

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
suggestedthatChileallowmanyasas300Japanesetoenteritsboundaries.789Inreply mightinterpretitasdefinitediscriminationfavorofJapanwhereasChilewasininno VicePresidentbutMr.YamagataheldlittlehopethatlargenumbersofJapanesewouldbe ApostolicDelegate,currentlyconfinedbecauseofsickness,whereheagainrepeatedthe inChileandwasadvisedthatatagoodopportunitydelegatewouldconsultwiththethe AlthoughYamagatahadbeenconferringwithhighofficialsheunablesecureentrancevisasforstaffofAmanocompanywhichtotoenterChileandandonNovember25waswaswasreprimandedbyForeignMinisterMinisterTogowhoinstructedthatthethematter Thenextday,November26,TokyoissuedinstructionstoevacuatemanyJapanesenationalsasaspossibleontheTatsutaMaruwhichwouldleaveJapanforSouthAmericaby 

ForeignMinisteronDecember1,1941,toexplaintheproblemofentrancevisasforJapa­notfavortheentranceJapaneseintoChilesinceBritishandAmericanagentshadalreadysoughttoaccusehimofofbeingpro-Axis.Heexplainedthatalthougheveryprecautionwas necessitatingconstantalertnessforeignofficeofficials.TheForeignaskedthisbekeptstrictlysecretandMinisterMinisterYamagatadealdirectlywithhiminviewofofthethefactthatthatthathe,alwayssympathetictowardJapan,wasattemptingremoveobstaclestoto 



convinced that the Amano staff members were not Japanese spies but was only afraid that

Yamagata related a story of previous American machinations against the German Minister

in Chile and suggested that similar unpleasant action might be instigated against the Japa-
nese.794

(d) Peru364.to
Apparently the general opinion of the people and the government in Peru was one of

pessimism regarding the outcome of Japanese-American relations. According to Minister

Ambassador Saiburo Kurusu in Washington. In a message to Tokyo, Minister Sakamoto asked

talk with Ambassador Kurusu regarding the international situation and its effect on Peruvian
policies for the future. 795

November 15, granted the Minister's request stipulating a period of ten days for the trip.796

had been in Washington since November 26.797

3C5. Acting Minister Yodokawa Analyzes Peruvian Attitude

decision from other major South American powers before taking any definite steps. However,
he reported that strict police surveillance was to be expected and that Japanese news-
papers had already been banned.

spoken privately with the Peruvian Under-Secretary of Foreign Affairs asking him, in the
interest of Japanese nationals, to permit supervised publication of certain papers. The
Under-Secretary had conceded that Peru differed from other South American countries in

strategic position from the standpoint of the United States.

personally feared that Peru might enter the conflict within the near future. 798

being taken by Peruvian newspapers which were going so far as to advocate severing relations
with Japan. According to his special spy reports, the Peruvian government had advised thetoall

794IV, 656, 657.
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7

MinisterSakamotoAsksPermissionConferwithAmbassadorKurusu 

pressconfidentiallyreportnewssympatheticallytowardtheUnitedStates. 

Mr.YamagataassertedhisfaithintheChileanForeignMinisterwhoapparentlywas AmericanandBritishauthoritiesmightlookaskanceatsuchbehavior.ThenMinister TatsukiSakamotoinLimaonNovember12,1941,Peruheldnoexpectationsofsuccessfor thathebegivenexpensesandtimeforathreeweekstriptheUnitedStatesinordertoto SincerelationswithSouthAmericahadbecomesoforebodingForeignMinisterTogo,on OnDecember8,actingMinisterMasakiYodokawainLimarevealedthatMr.Sakamoto AssituationdevelopedinPeru,ActingMinisterYodokawaanalyzedcurrenthappeningsforforeignoffice.AccordinglyhereportedatmidnightonDecemberanextraordinarysessionofPeruvianCabinetwasheldtodeterminetheirfinalpolicytowardthethethethetheJapanesesituation.However,Mr.YadokawabelievedthatthatPeruwouldawaita RealizinganotherCabinet

meetingwasintheoffing,Mr.Yodokawaadvisedthatthathehad thatsupportedgreaternumberofJapanesebutontheotherhandititwasinaahighly Mr.Yodokawathenconfidedthatthegeneralpublicappearedresignedtowarandhe ThenextdayMinistersubmittedaresumetoTokyoconcerningthethehostileattitude7>7IV,660. 



funds would be frozen and the purchase of Japanese goods stopped. All telegrams to Panama

Party Wing was in the offing. 799
The Minister revealed on December 8, 1941, that the Peruvian Government had broad-

cast its decision to take no steps in opposition to hemispheric solidarity and that Japanese

merely following the lead of Brazil and Argentina and did not expect any particular
difficulties to arise which might jeopardize the lives and property of the Japanese. Apparently
the Japanese had merely been denied the right of assembly and movement throughout the
country and it was not logical that any sudden and drastic action would be taken against them.8Oo

Ministers to handle all telegraphic business should the government of Peru adopt an active
anti-Japanese policy.8Ol

"'IV,662.

8°OIV,663.

8OIIV,664.

179

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
BythistimeJapanesewereforbiddentotravelincertainsectionsanditwasexpectedthat wouldnowofnecessitybewritteninEnglishandanattackontheJapanesesponsoredAPRA fundswouldberetainedinlocalbanks.However,Mr.YodokawabelievedthatPeruwas ByDecember8,1941,Mr.YodokawahadarrangedforthelocalGermanandItalian 



(g) Japanese-British Relations to
Despite the fact that Ambassador Tsurumi had given considerable assistance to the army

attaches in Singapore, he desired to return to Japan. However, on October 20, 1941, he was

necessary that he remain in Singapore and maintain his duties as Consul-General. Amau

had previously explained this situation to Ambassador Craigie and voiced his regret at the
turn of events.802367.
glycerine to England if British authorities granted the Japanese permission to export cotton.80a

In a previous dispatch dated October 6, Shanghai had been directed to ascertain whether or
not the British Consul-General had succeeded in obtaining export permits for glycerine.
Tokyo also asked that steps be taken to delay the exportation of the shipment until theoftheraw
a written notice from the British chief of administration stating that the latter would permit

reference had been made to the specified quantity nor to the loading of the machinery.805
However, on October 28, 1941 Tokyo learned that both types of raw glycerine, No. 50 and No.

and on the following day a dispatch was sent to Japan informing the authorities there thaton9,the
368. Spanish Ambassador Reports Improvement of Conditions in Britain

Mr. Yakachiro Suma, Japanese Ambassador to Spain, reported to Tokyo on October 24,
1941, his recent conversation with the Spanish Ambassador to London, the Duke of Alba,8O8

were makin'g every preparation for the defense of the British Isles. Great Britain earnestly
.desired the actual participation of the United States and had sent Sir Alfred Duff-Cooper
to America for the purpose of arousing war fever. The consensus of opinion, however, was

paritcularly that of the Isolationists, was strongly against it.8O9
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTC-JAPANESEDIPLOMATICACTIVITIESTHROUGHOUTTHEWORLD366.CustomQuestionForcesAmbassadorTsurumiRemaininSingaporeAmbassadorTsurumiReceivesPermitfortheLoadingofRawCottonloadingcottonandmachineryhadbeencompleted.8O4OnOctober22,AmbassadorOctober1941glycerinehadbeensentontheDutchshipTjimanoktoBatavia.807 
informedbyViceMinisterAmauinTokyothatduetoarisingofthethecustomsissue,itwas AreciprocalagreementbetweenJapanandGreatBritainprovidedfortheshippingofTsurumireportedtotheJapaneseForeignOfficethateightdaysprevioushehadreceived loadingrawcottonwhichhadbeenlandedfromthethetheStarofofEgyptbutthatno 70respectively,hadalreadybeenshippedfromShanghai.8OBAninvestigationwasordered whoreturnedtoMadridforshortvisit.DukefavorablyimpressedwithgeneralsituationEnglandstatedthatstandardoflivingtherewaswasmuchbetterthanSpain.TheTheBritishofficialshadhadanticipatedaalengthywarinininthethetheAtlanticandand thatUnitedStateswasunlikelytoenterpresentwarsincethethethepublicopinion, 802IV,665.803m,762.804m,775. 



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR369.DetailsofUnloadingScrapIronRemainUnsettled
Mr. Eiji Kawasaki, the Japanese representative in Vancouver, in a dispatch sent.to Ottawa

on October 28, ~941, reported that after making inquiries of the Imperial Shipping Company
in Vancouver and the King Brothers in Victoria, the date of unloading and other details
concerning the scrap iron remained entirely unsettled.8lO370.TheAsamaMaruPreparestoEvacuateJapaneseNationalsfromBritish-ControlledPorts

OnOctober31,1941SingaporelearnedthatanN.Y.K.shipwouldsoonarrivefromTokyo

for evacuation purposes. In order to arrange the sailing schedule of the vessel, Tokyo
requestedthatitbenotifiedatonceastothenumberofJapanesenationalstobeevacuatedandtherequisiteprocedureforleavingthecountry.8l1Onthesameday,aseconddispatch

gave the itinerary of the Asama Maru. With Mr. Sugiyama, of the Ministry of Communica-

tions, on board in charge of the vessel, it was scheduled to leave Japan on November 7, 1941,
and put in to port at Manila three days later, there taking aboard 700 passengers. Leaving

ManilaonNovember11,1941,itwouldarriveinSingaporeonthe15thofthatmonth

and embark an additional 500 persons. Arrangements were to be made with the authorities

concerningtheprovisionsforthereturntriponNovember16,1941.AtalaterdatetheAsama

Maru was scheduled for a trip to Britain but the negotiations were not yet completed, and
meanwhileitwouldmakeanotherroundtriptoSingapore.812BecauseofhersailingtoManilaenroutetoSingapore,asaprecautionarymeasure,thevesselembarkedasonepressedinto

the service of the Imperial Government; however, regardless of the capacity of the ship,

the matter of her handling in the port of Singapore was to be arranged on the basis of the
Japanese-Britishagreement.813AllevacueesboardingtheAsamaMaruweretocarrytheirmoneyintheformofexchangedrafts,andMr.TsurumiwasinstructedbytheJapanese

foreign Minister to collect the fares of those embarking and to hold the money as a special
account from which the expenses incurred while in port at Singapore were to be paid.

ExpensesincurredenrouteweretobepaidafterthearrivaloftheshipinJapan.The

British authorities in Japan had been contacted in regard to this matter and authorities in
Singapore were to be advised immediately. 814

OnNovember5,1941,achangeintheitineraryofthevesselwasmadetotheeffectthattheAsamaMaruwouldleaveTokyoonNovember6thusadvancingtheentireschedulebyoneday.Thesupplyoffood,water,andfuelsufficientfortheroundtriphadbeenplacedaboard,

and the British Ambassador in Tokyo had been contacted in regard to the arrangements con-
cerningthepaymentofharbortaxes.Thismatterwastobedealtwithinthesamemannerinthe

case of the Fuso Maru. 815371.TheKitoMaruAbandonsTriptoDairen
Meanwhile,astheAsamaMarupreparedtosailtoSingapore,adispatchfromShanghaiinformedTokyothattheKitoMaruwouldsailontoYokohamaafteritsarrivalinTokyo.AtriptoDairenhadbeenscheduledbutduetothepublicexcitementovertheTomisurafumatter,thedecisionhadbeenmadetosaildirectlytoJapan.816
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
372. Japanese Officials in Singapore Continue Negotiations in Regard to the Frozen Accounts

In Japan the withdrawal of British diplomatic funds or bank deposits of the members of
the staff had been forbidden. Although they were not permitted to draw upon their accounts

secretly,legalpermitscouldbeissuedincasedraftsweremadeagainstBritishorAmericanbanks.817Atthattimestepswerebeingtakenwithcompetentauthoritiestoprohibiteven

the granting of these special permits. In view of the fact that the question of drawing drafts

againstJapaneseandBritishdiplomaticbankaccountswasdeadlocked,Singaporewas

instructed to continue negotiations for permission to defray necessary expenditures from

frozen accounts. Mr. Togo asked that he be notified as to the result of the negotiations.818373.JapaneseandCanadianOfficialsDisagreeConcerningthePurchasingRateofYlOO
ApparentlyTokyohadrequestedachangeinthepurchasingrateforYlOOinexchangebe-

tween America and Canada for on November 6, Mr. Yoshizawa, the Minister in Ottawa,

notifiedTokyothatafteramemberofhisstaffhadconferredwiththeCanadianofficialsinregardtotherequest,hehadlearnedthatinAmericandollarsthelatestNewYorkbuyingrateforY100was$23.44.819Thesellingratewas$23.57,makingtheaveragerate$23.50%.

Adding to this the fixed average rate for exchanging money orders between America and
CanadaatapremiumoflOY2%,arateof$25.97wasgiven.TheJapanesestaffmemberrepliedthatinthiscasetheexchangebetweenAmericanandCanadashouldbeattheNewYorkmarketrateratherthantheCanadianfixedrate.TheCanadianofficialsinsistedfirmly,however,thattherewasnoprecedentfortakingtheNewYorkprice.TheJapanese

staff member replied that if the above calculations were insisted upon, it would be impossibletosettlethematter.SinceitwouldbenecessarytomakesomereplytoCanada,Mr.YoshizawarequestedawirefromTokyoatoncestatingthebasisfortheirsubmittingthefigureof$26%.820

374. Mr. Wataru Assumes Post as Commerical Attache in Shanghai
OnNovember6,1941,Tokyorequestedanapplication,addressedtotheForeignMinisterfromMr.Wataru,inregardtohisappointmentasCommercialAttacheinShanghai.Theapplicationtogetherwiththedecisionoftheheadoftheindustrialsectionwastobe

sent at once by air mail. 821ThefollowingdayShanghaiwiredareplytoTokyoconcerning
its request for information in regard to Mr. Wataru's period of employment and salary.

Unlessinordertocomplywithregulationswithinthecountry,nodefiniteperiodofemploy-

ment would be specified; however, after three years of service a promotion would be in line.
In regard to the remaining points, the basic salary was quoted as $1800.00, national currency;
exchange allowance $1316.57; and living allowance $2605.00; making a total of $5721.57.822375.JapanisConcernedOvertheAttitudeofGreatBritain

OnNovember11,1941,adiscussionofBritain'spresentpositioninthewarwassentfromLondontoWashingtonandlaterrelayedtoTokyo.823TheBritishattitudetowardJapanwas,ofnecessity,conditionedbythevicissitudesoftheGerman-Sovietwar,which,had817IV,677.
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losses which had been far greater than anticipated, the Atlantic war and the bombing of
England had been considerably slowed down and Britian's imports and accumulation of
commodities had increased along with the expansion of its production. The British at last

anticipated and in addition the financial situation had also been relieved since results of the

conditions in Britian, a break in the negotiations that were in progress between Japan and
America would merely serve to spur the British government on in its attitude toward

London, that at this time the Imperial Government should formulate a far reaching national
policy in order not to be circumscribed by future developments and that it would face the
Japanese-American negotiations with an epoch making plan and a resolute determination.

Mter the Ambassador had given the above resume of the British attitude toward Japan,

no intention of seeking a rapprochement made with Japan at the expense of Generalissimo

Chiang Kai-shek.824

376. Spanish Charge d' Atfaires in Cairo Comments on the Situation in Egypt

home passed through Ankara on November 10 and commented on the situation in Egypt.

was increasing but the positive policy of the British had thus far managed to suppress it to
some extent. Since the establishment of Tojo's cabinet in Japan, the increase of Australian
troops had been deferred and it was rumored that some of the troops would return to their

the Libyan border region.825

377. Japanese Naval Reconnaissance Bomber Flies Over Hong Kong
Canton notified Tokyo that on the previous day, November 12, 1941, the British Consul-

General had called to say that on November 5, 1941, a Japanese Naval reconnaissance

Japan had promised to issue strict instructions in order to prevent a repetition of the
incident. This recurrence was most unexpected, hence another protest had been submitted

a resume of the November 5 incident. Canton received this information on November 13,andwasto
824 Ibid.
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reachedanextremelycriticalphase.DuetoRussia'scontinuedresistanceandtheGerman confidencetheirpreparationsresistGermaninvasionmanifestingaawillingnesscarryonwarforsevenyearsifthatwerewerenecessarytototoattainultimatevictory.OperationsMediterraneanandandinininthethetheNearEasthadhadbeenmorefavorablethan contributionsforArmyDrivehadexceededallexpectations.CooperationbetweenEnglandAmericawasbecomingmorecloselyknit,inviewofthisandandandthetheimproved Japan.ItwasearnestdesireofMr.MamoruShigemitsu,thetheJapaneseAmbassadorin Mr.ChurchillmadespecialbroadcasttooktheoccasionutteraafinalwarningtotoJapan.TheJapaneseambassadorconvincedwaswasnotbluffingandandthatthathehehad SenorGabrielAllomanVilla-Ionga,theSpanishCharged'AffairesinCairoenroutetohis HehadobservedthatduetosuccessesofGermanyin

war,thethetheanti-Britishattitude homeland.Atsametime,asawarning,BritishhadbeenrecentlystationedSyrianearthetheTurkishborderbetween170,000andand180,000troopstroopswereestablishedinin bombermadeflightoversouthernpartHongKongHarborandthenheadednorth.AsresultofofthetheprotestlodgedconcerningaaasimilaroccurranceonSeptember28,1941, anditwasrequestedthatCantoncontactmilitaryauthoritiesimmediately.826OnNovember11,1941thetheBritishEmbassyinTokyohadalsolodgedastrongprotestgiving 827IV,684.184 

1941requestedwireTokyoimmediatelyuponthecompletionofthenegotiations.827 



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
378. Ambassador Craigie and the Foreign Minister Culminate the Honma Incident

OnNovember13,1941,whenBritishAmbassadorCraigiecalledontheForeignMinisterregardingsomeothermatter,thequestionofHonma,ViceConsulofRangoon,aroseandthe

Minister criticized the British for their action in this matter. The Minister explained that
ofitsowninitiative,theJapaneseGovernmenthadalreadyissuedarecalltoHonmawhere-

upon Craigie declared that the deportation by the British Government would automatically

bedropped.Atthispointthesubjectwasclosed.DuringtheinterviewthematterofreturningtheevidencewhichhadbeengatheredforthecasewasnotdiscussedbutsinceEnglandhad

discontinued its deportation order, Tokyo demanded that the evidence material imme-diatelybereturnedtotheofficefromwhichitwastaken.828
379. Japanese Foreign Minister is Concerned Over Family Remittance Permits

Freezing order permits had been issued for family remittances from certain British subjects

residinginJapanproperaswellasthoseBritishwhowereworkingforJapan'sbenefit.How-

ever, as a matter of principle no other permits had been granted because it was reported that
GreatBritainhadrefusedfamilyremittancestoJapan.OnNovember14,1941theJapanese

Foreign Minister informed London that he would be willing to cooperate in allowing such
remittances if Japanese nationals residing in England and the colonies were accorded similar
privileges. 829380.CanadianArmyTroopsareSenttotheOrient

IthadbeenrumoredthatCanadianArmytroopswouldsoonbesenttotheOrientandasa

confirmation of these reports, on the morning of November 16, 1941, a transport of the
CanadianPacificLineguardedbyaBritishwarshipcameintoportatHongKong.Itcarriedonboardabout1,000Canadiansoldiers,allvolunteersandofmixednationality,whowereenteredintheKuryushinho(Kanaspelling)barracks.Thestrengthanddetailsofthis

division were being held in secret but according to reports another 2,000 troops were expected.
TokyoreceivedthisnewsonNovember17,1941,anditwasrelayedtoJapaneseofficialsinCanton,Shanghai,Nanking,andOttawa.830OnthesamedayMr.YanoatHongKong

informed Tokyo that additional information had been gathered in regard to the Canadian

soldiers.AnewscorrespondentwhohadvisitedonboardtheshipinadvertentlyrevealedthatBrigadierJ.K.Lawson,theCanadianCommander,wasincommandofthe2,000greentroopswhosetrainingwouldbeginsoonaftertheirembarkation.831FourdayslaterShanghai

threw further light on the number of Canadian troops stationed in Hong Kong, for according

toaJKdispatchthewarshipCanadahadtransportedoneregimentof3,000soldiersandthreemoreregimentswereenroutetoHongKong.832
381. Makino of the Johol Rubber Plantation is Instructed to Return to Japan

MeanwhileonNovember18,1941,ForeignMinisterTogohadinstructedMr.Makinoof

the Johol Rubber Planation in Singapore to make arrangements for returning to the home-

land.Mterexpeditingaffairsrelativetothemanagementoftheplanation,allemployeeswhocouldpossiblybesparedtogetherwiththeoverseerweretoreturntoJapanbywayofThai-landoranyotheravailableroute.ThematteroftheremainingJapanese,non-residents,

rested entirely with Mr. Makino.833
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382. Diplomatic Relations Between Iraq and Japan are Severed

Rashid Ali AI-Gailani, leader of the quelled anti-English revolts in Iraq, had been receiving
~assistance from the Japanese and because of this alliance, the Iraq government severed

diplomaticrelationswiththeJapaneseImperialGovernmentasofNovember16,1941.TwodayslaterTokyoadvisedAnkaraofthisnewdevelopmentandattherequestoftheTurkishMinisterinIraq,theAnkaraofficialswereorderedtocontacttheTurkishGovern-

ment in regard to caring for the legation property in Bagdad since Japanese interests were
not represented there.834383.BritainRemovesfromOfficetheChiefofStaffandHisAssistant

InashorttimetheChiefoftheImperialStaff,SirJohnG.Dillwouldhavereachedtheageofretirement.Therefore,accordingtoanannouncementmadeonNovember15,1941,hewastransferredfromhisposttothepositionofGovernorofBombayandwassucceededbyGeneralSirAlan-Brooke,Commanderofthehomeforces.Hisassistant,Lt.GeneralPownallwasalsotransferredtoanotherkeypositionandhissuccessorwasMajorGeneralA.E.Nye.

Lt. General Pownall had been reared and educated in Japan and both he and General Dill

wererecognizedauthoritiesonthatcountry.TheGeneralStaff,soShigemitsubelieves,was

the only organ of the British government which could correctly evaluate and understand
matters pertaining to Japan, and he thought, quite possible that with Japanese-British

relationsatsuchacriticalpoint,theremovalofthesemenfromtheirpostswaspartofapro-

gram to purge all those persons who might have leanings toward Japan. 835

384. The Boris Arrives in Seattle

Mr. Seijiro Yoshizawa, Japanese Minister in Ottawa learned on November 18, 1941, that
the Boris had arrived in Seattle but because the Captain possessed no bill of lading he was

forbiddentounloadhiscargo.TheJapanesehadbeenaskedtoremovetheobstacleatonceandMr.YoshizawarequestedthattheTokyoofficialswireinstructionstotheOttawaoffice

immediately after contacting the Mitsui Shipping Company and taking the necessary
steps to clarify the matter. 836

385. Mr. Yoshizawa Seeks Funds for the Ottawa Legation

Officials at the Japanese legation in Ottawa had found it impossible to arrange any payments

outofthefrozenfundssinceAugust,1941.AfternegotiatingwiththeNewYorkoffice,provisionsweremadetosecure$3500.00inAmericanmoney.ReceivingTokyo'sapprovalofthemeasure,Mr.YoshizawahadsentamemberofhisstafftoNewYorkandasaresultreceived$10,000inAmericancurrency;however,$3,000ofthisamountwasrequiredbytheConsularOfficeinVancouver.ArrangementshadbeenmadefofClerkKiharawhowassoontoleaveNewYorkforSeattletodeliverthemoneyto{peOttawaofficials.OnNovember
20, the money on hand in the office amounted to $10,500&nd, in the event of war another$20,000wouldbeavailablefromNewYork.ProvidedthatTokyosanctionedthereceiptofthis
money, Mr. Yoshizawa believed that the difficulty could be surmounted without receivingfundsfromanyothersource.837

IntheeventthattheevacuationofOttawashouldbecomenecessary,theJapanese

legation, the office and the interests there would be assumed preferably by Brazil but
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
should that prove impossible, Argentina would be suitable. Officials in Tokyo, Rio de
JaneiroandBuenosAiresweretobecontacted.Inadditiontherewasthequestionof

Italian interests which the Japanese had taken over. If at all possible the Minister in Ottawa.requestedthatfurtherinstructionshewireddirectlytohim.838
386. Mr. Kawakasi Negotiates for Funds for the Nisso Company in Vancouver

Because of the freezing order placed on Japanese funds by the British,839 the Nisso
CompanybranchinOttawawasunabletoshiplumbertoJapansinceabout$65,000in

Canadian money remained unpaid. Negotiations for the payment of these funds were to be
carried out in Tokyo, and Mr. Kawakasi suggested that the Tokyo officials obtain the
detailsofthecasefromMr.AidawhohadjustreturnedtoJapanfromVancouver.AfterthematterofsupplyingthismoneywasdiscussedwiththeheadofficeoftheNissoCompany,instructionsweretobesenttothebranchofficeinVancouver.840
387. Foreign Minister Togo is Concerned Over the Remaining JapaneseResidents in Singapore

OriginallytheAsamaMaruwasscheduledtosailfromJapantoManilaandthento

Singapore arriving there on November 15, 1941, to evacuate a group of Japanese nationals
from that city;841 however, the Japanese Consul had requested that the vessel stop at Singa-
pore before traveling to Manila since many of the passengers could not afford the longer

waytothehomeland.OntherevisedsailingscheduletheAsamaMaruwastoleaveSingaporeonNovember6,8421941.AnevacuationtriptoBritainwasalsobeingplannedbutsincenegotiationswerestillincompletetheAsamaMaruwasscheduledforanotherroundtriptoSingapore.843OnNovember20,1941,theForeignMinisterinTokyorequestedinformation

concerning the remaining Japanese residents in Singapore after the last evacuation had
takenplace.Thenumberofmen,womenandchildrenweretobelistedseparatelyincludingtheiragesandtheirplacesofresidenceandfurtherdetailsweretobegiveninregardtohow

many of those remaining were engaged in farming, mining, exporting and importing, retail
andmiscellaneousenterprisesaswellastheirfinancialcondition.Shoulditproveimpossible

for those Japanese to carryon business activities as a result of the freezing legislation, Mr.
Togowastobeadvisedastotheapproximatelengthoftimethattheywouldbeabletocarry

on their affairs plus the prospects for the possible removal of some of these persons into Thai
orFrenchIndo-China.844Fourdayslater,thesituationhavingbecomeincreasinglymoredifficult,ForeignMinisterTogosentadispatchtoSingaporesympathizingwiththeunhappylotinwhichtheremainingJapaneseresidentsfoundthemselves.Despitethedifficultyin

bringing about further evacuation, he promised to do whatever possible in order to send
anothervesseltoSingapore;however,intheeventthatthesituationshouldbecomeworse,

he assured the Japanese merchants that their government would continue to make the best
possible arrangements in order to protect the interests of those remaining nationals.845
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388.TokyoisConcernedOverBritishCodeMaterial
MeanwhiletheJapanesewerebecomingconcernedovercertainBritishcodematerial.OnNovember21,1941,amessagehadbeensentfromPekingtoTsingtao,aportinnortheastChina,

,with the information that clues had been obtained there regarding telegraphic codes being used
by the British Embassy. Apparently they were being employed for communications between
Shanghai, Chungking and London and though there was a possibility that they had previously

beendecodedbytheNorthArmytherewasachancethattheymightprovetobeofsomevalue.Thethreecodesinquestionwerethediplomaticcodes,plainlanguageabbreviationsandnumberscode,andinformationregardingthemwastobewiredtoPekingimmediately.846InadditionthefollowingdayTokyowiredPekingtoinvestigatetheBritishcodescominginatthetime.Agreatdealofthematerialcouldnotbereadandthoughitwasnecessarythattheinvestigationbeacautiousoneitwasequallyimportantthatitbedonecompletely

and thoroughly. 847389.ThePremierofBurmaAttemptstoAttainanIndependentStatusforHisCountry
OnNovember18,1941UMaungSaw,PremierofBurmawho,forthepastfewweekshad

been in London for the purpose of obtaining an independent status for his country, called
attheofficeofHirasawa,JapaneserepresentativeinNewYork.Havingfailedtoaccomplishhismission,thePremierwasverydisgruntledoverBritain'srefusalofBurma'srequest.AshedepartedLondononNovember14,1941,hehadnothesitatedtoexpresshisdissatisfac-tiontoareporteroftheNewYorkTimesinthepresenceoftheBritishPremier.ItwashiswishtointerviewPresidentRooseveltandSecretaryHulland"appeal"totheBritishGovernmentthroughthe"press."MterleavingNewYork,thePremierplannedtotraveltoBangkokviaCanada,NewZealandandManilaarrivingtherearoundDecember7,1941,wherehewould
remain a few days before returning to Burma. Since he realized that he would be under the

strict surveillance of the British after his return, he desired to take advantage of the
opportunitytoconferwithsomeinfluentialJapaneseduringhisvisitinBangkok.Athis

suggestion that he meet Consul Saito, Mr. Hirasawa gave him his calling card by way
of introduction. In view of the present world conditions, the Premier apparently desired to
oppose British might by means of Japan's strength.848

390. Hong Kong Economic Condition is Becoming Critical

OnNovember24,1941ShanghaiforwardedtoTokyoareportreceivedtwodayspreviousfromHongKongconcerningthepresenteconomicconditionsinthatcity.OnNovember20,1941therewerenomorethanapproximately10,000balesofcottonthreadand4,000balesof

cotton cloth in the warehouses. Taking No. 20 Soma cotton thread in Hong Kong dollars as a
standard the sudden rise in price was $345.00, $410.00 and $480.00 at the end of September,
October and November 13 respectively. The factories had accepted orders for their output up
to February 1942; however, the export of cotton to Japan and Shanghai was prohibited and
it would have been impossible to procure the aforementioned cotton from the warehouses
at as reasonable a price as had been expected. Consequently the factories would be seriously
embarrassed.

Controlregulationswereenforcedanditwasdecreedthattheamountofcottongoodson

hand must be recorded each month; that any sale and shipment of cotton must have the
permissionoftheauthoritiesandthatamaximumsellingpricebeaffixed.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
Theprospectsforthefuturewerenottooencouragingforwhencontrolwasenforcedandsincetherewerenosellersattheunreasonablylowfixedpricethereweremanyillegaltransactionsathighfigures.Inadditiontherewasnotmorethanatwomonthssupplyof

cotton in the warehouses and eventually difficulties would arise in regard to sending khaki
clothingtoEngland.Asuggestedplanofoperationswasthereforesubmittedwherebyitseemed

expeditious to enforce a strict and thorough embargo obstructing transportation of Hong Kong
productstoEnglandandtheSouthSeas.WhenHongKongfinallyyielded,aplanofbarter

transactions in rice, flour, sugar and like commodities would be suggested.849

391. Tokyo is Concerned with Code and Cipher Systems

Tokyo notified Japanese officials in Washington on November 26, 1941, that they would

receiveandusetemporarilyanewkeyingsystemwhichhadbeendevisedbythetele-

graphic official in London for the cipher machine for messages between London and Tokyo.

WashingtonwasinstructedtotransmittoTokyotheoneword ASADA incleartextwhich
would signify the receipt and understanding of the information.85O

LateronDecember1,1941,JapaneseofficialsinLondonreceivedordersfromTokyoto

discontinue the use of their code machine and dispose of it immediately. Extreme caution
wastobeobseFvedincarryingouttheinstructionsforitsdispositionandparticularattentionwastobedirectedtodismantlinganddestroyingtheimportantpartsofthemachine.AtthesametimetherulesforuseofthemachinebetweentheheadofficeandtheAmbassadorresi-dentinEnglandwerealsotobeburned.Uponreceiptofthetelegramtheoneword"Setuju"wastobewiredtoTokyoinplainlanguageandafterthedisposinginstructionshadbeencarriedouttheword"Hasso"wouldservetonotifytheJapaneseForeignOfficeofthecompletionof

the task.851-

Onthefollowingday,inamessagefromMr.TakanobuMitani,JapaneseMinistertoSwitzerland,itwaslearnedthattheJapanesediplomaticofficialsinNorthAmerica,Canada,Panama,Cuba,theSouthSeasandinBritishandNetherlandsterritory,hadalso

been ordered to burn all of their telegraphic codes with the expection of one copy of 0 and L.852
Meanwhile,onthatsameday,JapaneseofficialsinSingaporereceivedfromTokyoatablewhichwascomposedofimportantcodewordsandtheircorrespondingmeaning.853

392. Japan Prepares for Hostilities

OnDecember2,1941,JapaneseofficialsinCantonnotifiedTokyothatprecautionarymeasureshadbeentakenshouldhostilitiesbegin.TheArmyhadcompletedpreparationstomoveuponThaiandintheeventthattheBritishresistedtotheend,itwaspreparedto

occupy the country militarily. 854

TwodayslaterofficialordersforphysicalexaminationshadnotyetbeenissuedinShang-

hai; however, this was going to be carried out as of the first and handled as though the orderwereconfidentiallysentonthatdate.855
OnDecember5,1941,JapaneseofficialsinPekingannouncedthatconcurrentwithopeningwaronBritainandAmerica,Hollandwouldbeconsideredasemi-belligerentandstrictsur-veillancewouldbeexercisedoverherconsulatesinChina.Allcommunicationsbetweenthem
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and the enemy countries as well as other use of code messages and wireless would be prohib-

toward the latter country as were taken in the case of Britain and America.856 Preparations had

been m~de on the basis that the treatment accorded the property and staff of Britain, America
and Holland in North China, would be comparable to that accorded them in occupied
territory. Peking suggested that a policy be adopted whereby a suitable person of a third
power such as Belgium, Spain or Brazil be recognized as custodian of the interests of Britain,
America and Holland in North China.857

In addition, steps which would coincide with measures concerning the departure of the
Japanese Consular Staffs and resident nationals were to be taken for the evacuation of the

was to be seized and placed in the custody of Japan.858
Meanwhile the Japanese Minister in Ottawa, in interpreting recent instructions from

Tokyo, surmised that should the situation become critical, his staff would be cut to the last
possible man. Since they were already working on a "skeleton staff," he felt that further
reduction would be impossible. However, he conceded that in such an eventuality they

Suzuki, apparently referring to Lt. Gen. Teiichi Suzuki of the Japanese cabinet, would provetobeantotheandnotin
Tientsin with the information that though France maintained her neutrality, she would

cooperate with Japan insofar as possible. This had come from the French Consul who had

called on the military commander in regard to the recent incursion of troops into the British
concessions. 861

immediately following the opening of hostilities, in accordance with prearranged plans, the
telephone wires of the United States, British and semi-enemy consulates in Harbin, Mukden,
and Dairen were cut and their radios and automobiles were destroyed.862
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ited.IneventthatJapanandHollandbecameinvolvedinawar,thethesamestepsbetaken Staffsandnationalsofthehostilenations.Allpublicpropertybelongingtoenemynations couldprobablymanagewithonlytheuseoftheirdiplomaticstaff.HefearedthatMr. OnDecember7,1941,inacirculartelegram,revealedthatrelationsbetweenTokyoTokyo ThefollowingdaylocalmilitarycommanderpaidavisittothetheJapaneseofficialin OnDecember9,1941,inamessagefromHsinkingrelayedtoTokyo,itwaslearnedthat 

856IV, 

86"IV,713. 

obstacleacceptedplanandTokyowasaskedtotakethisintoconsideration.859Englandwereaccordancewithexpectations.860 



(h) Japanese-German Relationsto
Tokyo on October 19, 1941, Ambassador Hiroshi Oshima again undertook to secure a resig-

nation from his position in Berlin. Stating that the appointment of the new Foreign Minister

friend, Ambassador Oshima pointed out that although he formerly had been in a position to

undertaken, he felt unable to continue representing the Japanese government in absolute
harmony with its new policies.

The Ambassador pointed to the fact that on previous occasions, during the office of Foreign
Minister Matsuoka, he had requested permission to resign and now in view of conflictinghetheOn30,its
a very important position and no temporary appointee could satisfactorily hold it down.For-
eign Minister Togo suggested that for the time being Ambassador Oshima subject his person-
al desires to the common good ofthe Empire.864394.anofto
increasingly urgent situation created by growing British aid and American lend-lease to Russia.On20,ina
Moscow, these gains were counter-balanced by British impatience and the British Parlia-

believed that Prime Minister Churchill would not choose to listen to the arguments of ama-teurand
In order to explain Great Britain's attitude, it was believed that since the Soviet had proved

itself capable of stronger resistance than had been anticipated, Great Britain realized the
strategy of keeping Germany occupied on its eastern front. This view, according to the Japa-

classes but also by the majority of the people themselves.

invasion of the continent by England would be impossible, it was feared by the Ambassador

last for an indefinite period of time. 866
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTC-JAPANESEDIPLOMATICACTIVITIESTHROUGHOUTTHEWORLD393.AmbassadorOshimaAsksResignopinions,couldonlyhindernewForeignMinister.863October1941TokyowiredrefusalstatingthatAmbassadorOshimanowoccupiedJapanSeesIncreaseBritishandAmericanAidRussiaOctober1941,ForeignMinisterTogoTokyoreaddressedLondondispatchtoBerlinstrategistswouldmorefirmlyentrenchhispolicyofgivingmilitaryaidtoRussia.865 
ImmediatelyafterappointmentShigenoriTogotothethepositionofofForeignMinisterin asourceofmuchgratificationtohimsinceMr.Togoalwayshadhadbeenbeenanexcellent offerassistancetonewcabinet,inviewofthethepolicywhichwouldnowmostassuredlybeProbablyoneimportantreasonforTokyo'srefusaltograntAmbassador'spleawasthethe whichstatedthatalthoughtheGermanarmyhadbeenadvancingatasurprisingspeedon ment'ssuddendecisionstepupitsaidtheRedArmy.Althoughtherewassomedebateresultingfromminoroppositiontototosuchamove,AmbassadorNamoruShigemitsuinLondon neseAmbassadorinLondon,wasnotonlyupheldbygovernmentandthetheinfluential UnderexistingsituationinwhichbothinvasionofEnglandbyGermanyandthethethe Shigemitsuthatthewarwoulddevelopintooneof

GermanyagainstGreatBritainandmight OnOctober22,ForeignMinisterTogotransmittedAmbassadorOshimaatelegramfromCaptetownSouthMrica,whichrevealedthreeroutesbeingtakenUnitedStateslend-leasematerialininitssupplylinetotoRussia.Thefirstroutemovedbybyrailroadandtruck 80'IV,717. 1941



second route proceeded through Iran from Bandar Abu Shahr on the Persian Gulf to Teheran

from Teheran. American lend-lease shipments also depended upon a third route from the

Indian border to Mirjawa on the Iran-India border from which a railroad line extended to
Mashed on the Iran-Soviet border.867

peace. Suggesting that Japan propose a peace conference to be held in Nanking after the fall ofheifasita
posal:

1. The holding of a large-scale conference during the summer of 1942;
2. Russia was to relax ties with Great Britain and the United States and was not to interfere

in Japan-China affairs; and,
3. If possible, Russia was to supply Japan with oi1.868395.toOn23,

obtained with regard to the Japanese-German negotiations for the exchange of broadcast facili-
ties and publicity releases. These negotiations which had been underway since August of 1941

Begin Negotiations for Improved Communications) concerned the exchange of memorandaofit
fore, on October 25, Ambassador Oshima replied that the German Foreign Office had prac-

tically agreed but that its formal reply would be given the following week.87O

396. Progress of the Russo-German War (October 1941)
Tokyo by October 24, 1941 had received detailed information on the Russian-German situ-

ation from its representatives in Helsinki and Bucharest.

a. Report from Finland

conflict, saying that Finland had set out to regain that territory which had been seized by Rus-
sia and that its objectives in its recent attack on the Soviet were, first, to regain lost territory

B6'IV, 720.

B6'IV, 722-724.
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andthencetotheCaspianSeawhereitshippedacrosstotheRussianshoreorfromTeherantosinceonlytwolargeboatscoulddepartfromwharvesofthefirstport.Althoughengineerswere
Moscow,declaredthatJapanactedmediator,wouldbeperforminggreatservice.ExchangeBroadcastsBecomeAcceptableJapanandGermanyOctober1941,ForeignMinisterTogobecameimpatientoftheresultswhichweretobedifferenceopinion,andwasleftforthetwocountriestocompromiseonthatpoint.869There-

startingatBasraonPersianGulfmovingNorthtothetheCaucasusviaIraqandandIran.The TabrizwhereitwasrailroadedCaucasus.However,thethewaterspanprovedtotobelimited attemptinghurriedlytodeepenwatersufficiently,itbelievedthatrailroadfacili­ties,despitetheirpresentconditionrepair,waswasprovingmostsuccessfulofofthethethethetwolines TheJapaneseAmbassadoratHsingking,GeneralYoshijiroUmezu,expressedhisviewsonincreasingaidreceivingfromUnitedStates,statingactuallyhelphadbeensomeagerStalinhimselfdissatisfied.HeconcludedinsomuchasRussiaRussiafightingGermanysingle-handedlywaswaswaswasbeingdestroyedforthethethethebenefitofEnglandEnglandandandandAmerica,hebelievedthatthatthatthatitwouldbeRussia'sadvantagetotomakeAmbassadorUme~uitemizedtheconditionswhichhethoughtshouldbeapartofthispro­(seeJapanese-GermanRelations,Chapter3,VolumeII,Section

33-BerlinandandTokyo wouldofferbothgovernmentsthefinalanalysisofallnewscoveragewhichwhichwastotobetransmittedbyprivatebroadcastingcompanies.BythistimethereremainedonlyaminorTheHelsinkiMinister,TadashiSakaya,reportedonFinnishrolebeingplayedinthethe and,secondly,tomakesecureitsowndefenses.InKarelianarea,armyalreadypassedoldborderlinebyOctoberandinvadedRussiawhileatthethethethepresenttime,itwascooperatingwithGermanyinsurroundingLeningrad.TheFinnishFinnishforceshadhadhad B6BIV,721. 24



also cut the Murmansk railway and were assisting in the invasion of the Kola penninsula.

promise since further pursuit of this territory would only result in further sacrifices.
Although Finland had hoped to abandon her assistance to Germany after the fall of Lenin-

grad and Kronstadt, it was now necessary to assist Germany in the struggle for the Kola Penin-

Japanese Minister in Helsinki, that Finland would soon quietly retire from the struggle. Ac-
cording to Minister Sakaya, as far as Finland was concerned, all that now remained was theofatobe

b. Report from Roumania

that in the attack on Odessa, the Roumanian army's losses had been smaller than previously

around the north coast of the Black Sea the Roumanian and Hungarian armies fought dili-

oppression and annihilation of Bolshevism, but also attempting to gain for themselves favor

such questions as the Transylvania border line.972

a great extent, but the amount of damage in the Ukraine appeared to be unexpectedly small.
Probably the Russians did not have either enough explosives or sufficient time to fire the
regIOns.

the old order, were sincerely desirous of an English-American victory. However, the majority

were confident of German success over Russia and firmly believed that by the following sum-

mer, the whole question would be settled since Germany would employ her air force and sub-inanonofa
the European continent. According to the Minister, all Americans in Hungary, Bulgaria and
Roumania had already been confidentially advised by their diplomatic offices to evacuate.
Newspapers had become unreserved in their comments against American and English citi-

religious country, it was not favorably impressed by the United States' outward policy of pro-

relations with communistic Russia. Roumania, which considered itself maltreated by the

Japanese Minister believed to be quite spontaneous.873

397. Tokyo Relays a Summary of Diplomatic Relations as Advanced by Germany
In a circular letter addressed to Hsinking, Peking, Nanking and Shanghai Foreign Ministerinitsato

8"IV,726-727.

8"IV,728.

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORaccomplishmentfewcompromisesfollowedbyreconstructionwork.871 
marinesattackEngland.ManyweretheopinionthatdirectwarbetweentheUnited 
TogorelayedentiretymessagesenthimbyAmbassadorOshimaonOctober16,1941. 

SouthernHanko,whichremainedinRussianhands,wouldprobablybethesubjectofacom­sula.However,notdesiringtoinheritGermany'sfurtherdifficulties,itwasthoughtbytheFromBucharest,Roumania,cameadditionalinformationonthewarsituationwhichstated reportedbyRussianpropagandaoffice.viewfactRoumanianarmylackedlargegunsandpossessedfewflamethrowersincomparisonmechanizedforcesofofSoviet,itwasonlyonlynaturalthatthattheyshouldtrytotoavoidaadirectencounter.InInthethethethethethebattle gentlyforseveralreasons.BycooperatingwithGermanstheywerenotonlyassistinginthethe eyesofthetheGermanwarlordswhowouldbeapositiontoarbitrateininintheirbehalfon InBessarabiaitwasnotedthattheRussianswerecarryingouttheirscorchedearthpolicyto ThepoliticalsituationRoumaniawasalso

reportedonbyJapaneseMinisterwhoacknowledgedthattherewerestillthosewithinwithinthethecountrywho,havingbeeninpowerunderandAxiswasoffering,ininwhichcasethethetheUnitedStatesStateswouldbechasedfrom zens.Thesesameanti-Americangroupsconsideredthatalllend-leaseaidlittleimportancesettlingofofall-overconflict;theywereshowingcontemptforthethetheAmericanandandandBritishBritishcoquetryininfavoringBolshevism.SinceRoumaniawaswasaparticularly tecting"religion,humanitarianismjustice,"andandatthesametimecarryingonfriendly SovietUnion,wasgraduallygrowingmoreconfidentandfondofGermany,afeelingwhichthe873IV,729193 



According to Ambassador Oshima a specially appointed delegate from Foreign Minister von

Ribbentrop informed him that after the fall of Moscow, the German forces would continue the

campaignintheCaucasusthroughoutthewinter.ThesweepingplansoftheGermanarmy

included in invasion of the Near East, including Syria, Iraq and Iran. Although the eastern
Mediterranean would be cleared of all British influence, the battle of Africa would have to bepostponedtemporarilybecauseofGreatBritain'spresentstrengthinthatarea.

Improved conditions between Germany and Turkey were reported by Ambassador Oshima.

TheGermanobjectiveinTurkeywastoinduceAnkaranparticipationintheThree-PowerPact,andarecentlyconcludedcommercialpactbetweenthetwocountrieswaspavingthe

way. Insomuch as Turkey had long hated Italy, it would be a tremendous diplomatic victory
for Germany should she succeed in these negotiations.

GermanyneededthehelpofFranceandSpainifitweretocombatEnglishinfluenceinthewesternMediterranean;andAmbassadorOshimapointedoutGermanprogressinregardtothis.GermanyhadmadeherConsul-GeneralinVichyaMinisterandFrancewasexpected

to send a diplomatic representative to Berlin thereby establishing better relations between

thosetwocountries.ThegeneraloutlinesofapeacetreatybetweenGermanyandFrancehadalreadybeen~rkedoutalthoughafewpointswouldrequireadditionalnegotiation.OncetheGerman-Frenchrelationswerefirmlyestablished,Spainwouldundoubtedlyprovenobarrier.TheGermanrepresentativehadinformedAmbassadorOshimathatacompromisepeacebetweenEnglandandGermanywasoutofthequestiondespitethepresentpeacerumors.How-
ever,itwaspossiblethatpeacetermswouldbeofferedGreatBritainaftertheterminationof

the Russo-German war. 874398.AsamaMaruDepartureisDelayedBecauseofUnsuitableRouting
TheAsamaMaru,whichhadbeenscheduledtodepilrtfromTokyoatthebeginningof

October,875 was, on October 21, still in port and preparing to sail about the first of November.
TherehadbeensomedisputeabouttheroutewhichtheJapanesemerchantvesselwouldtake

in that Germany had specified an area which the ship's captain believed would take it into
the combat zone. Therefore, Tokyo asked that Ambassador Oshima check with the German

authoritiestoseewhytheyfeltthatthepreviouslyscheduledroutefortheAsamaMaru,whichalsohadbeentakensafelybytheSuwaMaruandtheFushimiMaru,wouldbeunsatisfactory

to Germany and why they had prepared an obviously dangerous course.876
InreplyonOctober25,1941AmbassadorOshimaadvancedhisopinionthattheGermancoursehadreferredchieflytowatersadjacenttoEngland,butasfaraschangingtheroutewasconcerned,itwasstillamatterfornegotiationsandtheAmbassadorbelievedthatGermanywasapproachableonthematter.HeaskedthatadefiniterequestbedecideduponinTokyoso

that he might present it to German officials. 877

Minister Kiyoshi Tsutsui in Bucharest suggested to the Senior Adjutant of the War Office
in Tokyo that some of the Poles who had been working on anti-Russian espionage in Roumania

besenttoJapanaboardtheAsamaMaru.Thesemen,hecertified,hadManchukuopass-ports;andtheKwantungrepresentativeswereinfavorofthisaction.878
8HIV,730-731.875IV,732.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
)AboardtheAsamaMaruhadbeenstowedGerman-RussianwarpicturesaswellasfiftyorsixtyreelsofculturalfilmsentbytheGermanForeignOffice.BoththefilmassociationandtheGermanForeignOfficewasdesirousofhavingthesefilmstransportedasofficialbaggagesinceitwasbelievedthattheBritishgovernmentwouldrefusetopermittheirtransporta-tion.879OnOctober27Tokyorepliedthattherewouldbenoobjectionstoclassifyingthefilms

as diplomatic baggage. 880ByOctober31,theAsamaMarustillhadnotleftportandnewspaperreportersinRomewere
beginningtofeelthatJapanwasshowinganindecisiveattitudeindelayingitsdeparture.881

Even by December 4 whenitwouldhavebeentimelytohaveshippedacargoofdecorationstoGermanyandItalytheAsamaMaruremainedatanchor.Thereseemedtobenoprospectof

her departure. 882

399. Axis Powers Reacclaim the Anti-Comintern Pact

Apparently the continuous discoveries of communistic plots throughout Europe and Asia
atthistimewerealarmingtheAxispowers,whichinculminatingtheTripartitePacthadspecificallystipulatedaprogramofactiveaggressionagainsttheInternational.OnOctober

25, 1941 AmbassadorEugeneOtthadcalleduponTokyo'sEastAsiaBureauChiefsuggesting

that the AXis powers promulgate a five-year extension of the Anti-Comintern Pact, stating thathehadreceivedorderstomakethisproposalfromhishomegovernment.883
Ironically, on October 24 Tokyo had been forced to report that its judiciary officials had just

arrested a German newspaperman, Wolfgang Sorge, connected with the Frankfurter Zeitung.
HewasaccusedofcommunisticactivitiesinJapan.Sorgehadpersonallybeengatheringin-telligenceforAmbassadorOtt,whohadexpressedcompleteamazementandhaddemandedthathebeallowedtotalkprivatelywiththeaccusedcorrespondent.ForeignMinisterTogohadthenmadeanexceptioninviewoftheparticularlyfriendlyrelationsexistingbetweenJapanandGermanyandhadallowedtheAmbassadortotalkwithSorgeinthepresenceofpoliceofficials.InrelatingthisincidenttoAmbassadorOshimainBerlin,ForeignMinisterTogo

asked that the matter be considered in strictest secrecy. 884

RegardingtheproposalofOctober25,ForeignMinisterTogoaddressedanotherdispatchtoAmbassadorOshimaonOctober31,1941,relatingthathehadtoldAmbassadorOttthattheJapaneseImperialGovernmentwasinfavorofconveningaconferencetoextendtheAnti-CominternPact.HeofficiallyinstructedAmbassadorOshimatoinitiatenegotiationswithGermanyconcerningthetextofsuchaproposal.885OnNovember4ForeignMinisterTogo

advised Ambassador Oshima that Japan felt from a legal point of view that the secret appendix

whichhadbeenattachedtothepreviousAnti-CominternPact886wasnolongernecessaryand

'that Japan would attempt to secure an agreement of its Privy Councillors to abolish it. In addi-
tion, the Japanese Foreign Minister offered a suggestion that a distinction should be drawn
between the original signatories and subsequent participants and also that the basic text of the
protocol should be in three languages, Japanese, German, and English.887

In an attempt to secure as many participants as possible in the new protocol, Foreign Minis-
ter Togo directed a dispatch to Nanking on November 11 in which he stated that the Nanking
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Foreign Minister, Tateki Horiuchi, had applied to Foreign Minister Joachim von Ribbentrop

niokura Hidaka.888

Tokyo which states in part:

Hungarian Government Imperial Manchurian Government and the Spanish Government, recognizing that the

protocol signed by the above governments is a most effective means of combating the activities of the Communist

"International" and believing that the Common interests of the above governments are best served by close co-doto
following stipulations are agreed upon.889on11,

this document, the Japanese government had declared itself to be in complete accord with
the German government in respect to extending the validity of the first Anti-Comintern Pact
of November 25, 1936. Japan had taken the position that Article 5 of the Tripartite Pact,
whichstated:

Japan, Germany, and Italy affirm that the aforesaid terms do not in any way affect the political status which
exists at present as between each of the three contracting parties and the Soviet Russia,

superseded this second supplement which the Imperial government desired be nullified.89O

inclusion of Roumania, Bulgaria, Finland, Depmark, Slovakia, and Croatia in an expanded

Roumanian, Bulgarian, and Finnish Ministers in Tokyo to contact the German and Italian
Ministers regarding their inclusion in the pact. Only in the cases of Denmark, Slovakia, and
Croatia did Japan feel that the concurrence of the three Tripartite powers would be sufficient
to include them in the pact.891

requested that any objections to portions of it be wired immediately. Ambassador Oshima
advised that he had already changed the expressions, "The Hungarian Government" and also

November 25, 1941. Tokyo, in a dispatch to Hsingking, revealed that the Japanese and Ger-
man text had already been completed but that the official Italian text had not yet been re-

final signature. 894
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TheImperialJapaneseGovernment,theGermanGovernmentandtheItalianGovernmenttogetherwiththeoperationbetweenthemherebyagreeextendtheeffectiveperiodofthesaidprotocol.ForthispurposetheAlsoNovemberForeignMinisterTogowiredtheexactmessagewhichheexpectedAm-
foradmissiongroupsignatories.Togooutlinedformofoftele­gramhadbeensentvonRibbentrop.ThenegotiationswhichwhichTokyoForeignForeignOfficewasholdingwiththethethethetheNankinggovernmentinthisregardweretototobehandledbyMinisterMinisterShi-OnNovember11,1941,anactualtranslationoftheprotocolwastransmittedtoBerlinfrombassadorOshimagivetheGermangovernmentwithrespecttotoJapanesecooperation.In Withrespectsupplementarysignatories,GermanAmbassadorOtthadcalleduponForeignMinisterTogoTokyototorequestconcurrenceofJapanesegovernmentininthethethethe Anti-CominternPact.TheForeignMinisterapproved~ndadvisedthathewouldinstructthe Naturallythereweremanyminordetailswhichthreatenedtodelayfinalsigning.OnNovember12,1941,AmbassadorOshima,havingalreadytransmittedtextofthethetheprotocol, expression"Italian"AllEuropeanGovernments"andchangedGovernment"Government"readread"The"The

GreatImperialJapaneseJapaneseGovernment.".892ByNovember13,sevengovernmentshadhadexpressedtheirdesiretototosignthethethenewprotocolon ceived.AttimeTokyoadvisedcertainminoralterationswerebeingmadetext.893ForeignTogorequestedthatthatthatYoshijiroUmezuHsingkingextablishcontactwithManchurianMinisterMinisterMinisterinininGermany,LuYi-wen,andinstructhimtohandlethethethe IV,750. .92



Mter the Minister in Hsingking had received the official text from Tokyo, he immediately

instructed the Japanese Ambassador in Berlin to advise the Manchurian Minister there as to
the proper steps to be taken in signing the protocol. 895

In order to satisfy the Manchurian government, Tokyo asked that Ambassador Oshima

inserted in the text. In this regard, Japan felt, too, that Spain would also desire to have the date

that the German government was anxious to have negotiations completed and advised Tokyo
accordingly. In reply, Foreign Minister Togo acknowledged that it might be possible to en-
courage the Manchurian government to withdraw its insistence upon a revision of the text.897

Kotoku" be inserted in the protocol, the Spanish government had then requested that a Span-

it would be impossible to satisfy both Spain and Manchuria although the Germans were fully
appreciative of their viewpoints. Foreign Minister Togo then explained to the Manchurian
government that if the Japanese and Manchurian governments pressed the matter of saving

face for all countries which expected to participate, the s~ttlement of the problem would be
delayed. During such a long pause Germany's proposal to Spain might fall through and severe
repercussions would follow. 898On13
the ne~tiations involving the participation of the various countries in the pact secret until

the Japanese or Chinese side before then, it would be most awkward.899. v

land's decision.9Oo

In reply, Foreign Minister Togo stated that he had not favorE:d the entrance of any other

government of China would join with the others immediately.9O! Also on this day, Foreign

telegram empowering him to sign for the Japanese Empire.9O2

From Berlin on November 16, 1941, Ambassador Oshima related that the Assistant Under-
secretary of Foreign Affairs had told Japanese Consul Shun-ichi Kase, in Berlin, that theanto
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
NovemberAmbassadorOshimaadvisedhishomeofficethatGermanydesiredtokeep
expectedanswerandwasnotifyConsulKaseimmediately.903Alsoreferred"TheyearKO". 

~) advisetheGermanofficialsthatManchuriawouldliketohave"The8thyearofKotoku"896 ofitsI}ewerainserted.Heaskedthatarevisionbemadeimmediately.However,itappeared OnNovember15,TogoattemptedexplainManchuriangovern­menthehadproposedtototoGermanForeignForeignMinisterMinisterthatthatthethethephrase"The8thyearof ishtextthetreatybeprepared.AsManchuriacouldplainlysee,duetoshortnessofoftime, November25,whenasurpriseannouncementwouldbeofgreatpropa­gandavalue.Onotherhand,ititwaswasbelievedbelievedthatthatifthethemattershouldleakoutfromeither ByNovember14AmbassadorOshimarevealedthatRoumania,Bulgaria,Slovakia,Croatia,accordingGermansources,wereatlastdisplayingadesirejoinwiththepastsignees.Finland'sreplywastototobeexpectedwithinthreedaysandand

DenmarkwouldawaitFin-nationsinthenegotiationsbutGermany'sinsistencehadforcedhimtoagree.TheJapanese MinisterTogonotifiedAmbassadorOshimathatheshouldsubmittheForeignMinister's Spanishgovernmenthadbeenpressedforareply.Bynightofthetheseventeenth,GermanyByNovember17,whenthegovernmentstillhadnotmadeitsfinalarrangements,ForeignMinisterTogowiredinstructionsthatAmbassadorOshimashouldpresenttoNankingNanking 902IV,761. 



a joint statement from Japan, Germany, and Italy urging it to formally enter the negotia-

application for inclusion in the pact. Please arrange for the application to reach Berlin duringon
in honor of the signing of the protocol extending the Anti-Comintern Pact had been fixed. They
would include a special broadcast of greetings from the Minister of State and the German and

Italian Ministers on the evening of the 25th and the morning edition of the 26th would carry

.

For some inexplicable reason the German government attempted on November 21 to post-theoftheto
Oshima in Berlin conveyed to the German Capitol these sentiments,909 the German govern-

ment under the guidance of Foreign Minister von Ribbentrop, retracted its suggestion and
ordered that the signing would take place as it had been planned on November 25.910

Foreign Minister Togo notified officials in Nanking and Hsingking on November 21 that theof
would produce a large-scale propaganda effort tying in the Russo-German war on that day but

statement of fact.911ingtheon
government, Roumania, Bulgaria, Slovakia, Croatia, and Finland with the possible addition
of still doubtful Denmark.912

speeches by Foreign Minister von Ribbentrop and representatives of all the participating
powers. Those signing for their respective countries were to be Foreign Minister von Ribben-

bassador Oshima for Japan. According to Ambassador Oshima the visit of the Spanish For-

eign Minister had not been scheduled as yet.913
In a dispatch on November 24 Ambassador Oshima confirmed the hour of 12:30 as the sign-
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the25th",wasissuedtoNanking.9O5AlsoonNovember17,theItaliantextwassenttoTokyoHsingkingwiredTokyoNovember21thattheexercisetobecarriedoutonNovember25ponedatesigningprotocolNovember28,butwhenAmbassadorOttmetwithcoldconsentManchukuo,HungaryandSpainhadbeensecuredinregardtothenewprotocolandanti-CominternpactNovember25,1941.IncludedinthisgroupwereChina'speoples 
tions.9O4Whereuponstatement"WewishtohavethetheNankingGovernmentmakeformalbyAmbassadorOshimasothatacomparisoncouldbemadewiththeGermanandJapanesetexts.9O6 conversationsbetweenJapaneseAmbassador,MinisterofStateandthethethetheHeadOffice.9O7oppositionfromananxiousJapanesegovernmentwhoseCouncilhadalreadystipulatedinoriginaltextthattherecouldbenomethodofrevisingthethetext,908andwhenAmbassador necessaryprocedureswithinthosecountrieiwasbeingpushedenablethethesigningtotobecarriedoutinBerlinonNovember25.HementionedthatthatGermanyandItalyprobably thatJapandidnotplanpublicizeextensionofthethepactmorethantotomakeasimple OnNovember22theAxishadinducedseveralnationsnationstojoinwiththeminreaffirm-Theceremonyattendingthesigningwastobeheldat

10:30or6p.m.andwouldconsistof tropGermany,GaleazzoCianoItaly,Ro-Gi-bun(Lu-yi-wen)ManchukuoandForeignForeignMinisterMinisterMinisterDeLadislausBardossyforforforforHungary,inadditiontoAm­ingtime,addingthatHungarian,Manchurian,andSpanishrepresentativeswellasashimselfwouldmakespeechesduringceremony.HealsoconfirmedthethetheadherenceofDen­>0'763..0'764.765..07766.>0">0"767.>0>IV,IV,IV,IV,IV,IV,768. >12IV,771. 



decision to participate in the signing was relayed to Hsingking by Foreign Minister Togo.915
Although it had been the ambition of both German and Japanese leaders to keep the proc-

lamation a secret until such a time as its announcement would provoke the greatest propa-

ganda throughout the world, it was inevitable that some leak would occur and Ambassador

avoidable although it was unfortunate that Germany through interviews with the Foreign

counter propaganda.916

randum to Tokyo and Hsingking relating the exact order of signing: Japan, Germany, Italy,
Hungary, Manchukuo, and Spain, by Ambassador Hiroshi Oshima, Foreign Minister von
Ribbentrop, Foreign Minister Ciano, Foreign Minister Bardussy Dlolaszio, Foreign MinisterLuand
to assure the Manchurian government that the method of signing had been as it had requested,andthatallofthe
in the reacclaimed protocol opposing the Comintern.919

25 the exchange of official documents abolishing the secret auxiliary agreement of the first
Anti-Comintern Pact had been completed. However, he noted the German request that the
existence of that secret agreement should be kept. secret, even though it had been cancelled.to400.ofat

In spite of tlle fact that Japan had been attempting to dispatch additional merchant vessels
to the United States and had been engaging in the proper negotiations, by November 4, 1941,
arrangements still had not been completed. Apparently the American shipping service be-

anxious that at least one ship a month should touch port in Germany from Japan regardless of
whether a regular schedule could be maintained. Personally, the Ambassador was much con-
cerned since only by this means could he be assured of a method of return to Japan.922401.ofthe
precedented crisis" and which would necessitate his complete understanding of the Russo-
German situation.923 Therefore, in order to assist the Ambassador, Minister Toshijiro Umetsu

9"IV, 773.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
i-wenForeignMinisterRamonSerranoSuner.917AmbassadorOshimathenproceededcopiestextwereidentical.918AmbassadorOshimasaidthatnoteshadbeenexchangedthateffect.920HaltingAmericanShippingManilaImpedesJapanese-GermanTradeProgressRusso-GermanWar(November,1941) 

markandattendanceofthetheSpanishForeignMinister.914ThefollowingdayDenmark's OshimaassuredhishomegovernmentthattheerrorwhichoccurredonNovember22wasun-OfficePressBureauhaddisclosedvitalinformationwhichmightbeusedbytheenemyin AssoonastheceremonyhadbeencompletedAmbassadorOshimatransmittedamemo-OnDecember4,AmbassadorOshimaconfirmedthefactthatCroatiahadalsoacquiesced AmbassadorOshimainformedHomeOfficeinTokyothatonthethemorningofNovembertweenNorthAmericaandShanghaihadbeencancelledatManilamakingitimpossibleforreturningJapanesetoreachhometheEuropeancontinent.921ThismovewasviewedwithmuchanxietybyAmbassadorOshimaunderpressurefromfrombusinessmeninBerlinwhowere ByendofthethefirstweekNovember,itevidentthatAmbassadorSaiburoKurusu

HongKongwouldbeundertakingagravemissioninininordertosolvewhatwaswascalledan"un­915IV,774. 92OIV,779. 922IV,781. 



resume he pointed out the similarity of the Soviet and Chinese problems.
a. Their territory is so vast that ~he government can flee anywhere.
b. The population is so numerous that the military forces have unlimited reserves.

d. They have the most skillful of leaders.
e. They have natural fortifications (for example, the Urals and the three provinces to .the

north). are
of Moscow, the Russians could continue to resist and though Germany should occupy the whole
territory west of the Urals, by the following spring, the Soviet Union would still control forty per

ered, one would be extremely foolhardy to depend upon its downfall within a very short time.
Because of the evident possibility of Russia's holding out indefinitely, Germany would be

close of hostilities in Europe could be expected.925

had received from Budapest, Hungary. In the confidence of the Hungarian Foreign Office,
Ambassador Mauturo Inoue had secured the information that, after the fall of Moscow, the

at that time still unknown. .

Intelligence reports divulged that Germany's next ambition would be a conquest of thenototo
covered that Soviet gasoline, untreated, would not propel Hungarian motor cars while Soviet
machines likewise could not operate on the Hungarian type of gasoline. Nevertheless, despite
~ch difficulties, the Hungarian army had managed to equip one mechanized brigade with

appeared to be cultivating plants which would produce rubber substitutes.
Guerilla warfare in Serbia, on the other hand, was proving fierce. Rails between Nishi in

southeastern Yugoslavia and Belgrade had been split in sixteen places. The Ukrainian
Danube fleet was seen near Belgarde protecting navigation on the river.

With regard to the situation in the Balkans, the Ambassador at Budapest reported that this
year's crops were about normal, but because of the war the agricultural situation in the
Ukraine would not improve for another year or two.

The Ambassador also voiced an opinion regarding the possibility of the United States' en-
trance into the war, stating that should the allies secure bases in Scotland, the Azores and

tugal and attacking Gibralter.928
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c.Thelivingstandardislow,andthepeopleareinuredtosufferingandprivation.f.TheRussianspoliticallyindoctrinated.924 
herein,TurkeywouldhavealternativethanbowtheGermanwill.926 

inHsingkingwiredhisanalysisofoutlookforthetheRusso-GermanwartoHongKong.Inthis ItwasMinisterUmetsu'sopinionthatifGermansdidnothalttheirmarchafterthethefall centwholeresources,populationandindustryineast.Hebelievedfounda­tionsofofthethethetheStalinregimesofirmlyentrenchedthatthatevenifitsstrikingpowerwerewerelow-handicappedwouldberestrainedfromattackingEnglandforsometimeandandnoearly Onsameday,thetheForeignOfficeinTokyoadvisedMinisterUmetsuofaresumewhichit SovietgovernmentwouldbetotallydeportedtoUrals,thetheproductivepowerofwhichwas Caucasus,Iran,Iraq.Inpursuitthisaim,itwouldattempttocutoffpetroluemsupplyofofBritishforcesthentakeoverSyriaandandandEgypt.ShouldthethetheNazisbesuccessfulWithregardto

Ukraine,itestimatedthatnotmorethantwentypercentofthetheindus­triesdestroyedandreconstructionworkwaswasalreadysuccessfullyunderway.927ThebootycapturedfromUkranianarmiesofferedafewminordisadvantages.Ithadhadbeenbeendis-Sovietarmsandarmament.SuppliesfromGaliciacouldbebroughttoHungaryalthoughshippingproblemspreventedimmediateuseofresourcesinUkrainewQ,erethetheGermans NorthernIreland,whichitundoubtedlywould,GermanywouldcounteractbyinvadingPor­927IV,784. 



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORInresponsetoJapan'srequestofOctober29,1941929AmbassadorOshimainformedthehome
governmentofGermany'ssuccessingoverningoccupiedRussia.TheAmbassadoronNovem-

ber 10, transmitted the summary of the situation as he had been advised by a dependable
Germansource.Accordingly,itwasreportedthatDr.AlfredRosenberg,whohadbeendesig-natedbytheGermanHighCommandtogovernoccupiedRussia,wasalreadyinRigaad-

ministering the affairs of the three Baltic countries as well as portions of White Russia. ActingdirectorMr.~richKoch,hadtakenofficeatKievonOctober31,andthesetwomenwerecar-
rying out the administration.

Intheseareasquiteafewmembersoftheintelligentsiaremainedbutapparentlywereco-operatingwiththeReichinitsadministrativepolicy.ThesepeopleappearedtobeindigenousandwerebeingusedtobestadvantagebyKochandRosenberg.AlthoughthetwoGermanofficialswerepullingthestrings,ithadbecomethebestpolicytoallowtothenativestheactual

positions of justices of the peace, judges and minor military officials in direct contact with
thepeople.Withtheexceptionofthepoliticalgendarmes,thepolicewerealmostentirelymadeupofRussians.ItwasbelievedthatthetechnicalskillandknowledgeofagricultureoftheGermanswereinvaluabletothemhere.

In other sections, however, the so-called intelligentsia had been disposed of and the people
themselvesappearedtobetoohelplesstoactupontheirowninitiativeandseemedtohave

lost all ambition. German leaders merely directed them in the "best possible manner". This

type promised to be of no trouble whatsoever in the future. 930

GermanyhadquicklydivertedSovietrailwaystoitsownuse,andaccordingtoaspeechby

Chancellor Hitler, 5,000 of the 25,000 kilometres of captured railway had already been changed
to the German gauge. Although a conspicuous part of German supplies and troops were being

transportedtothefrontlinesbyrail,truckswerealsobeingusedextensively.Asupplyroad

from Germany to the battlefields had already been completed. After the warfare along the
Black Sea and the Baltic was successfully completed, Germany was expected to add ships to
the present methods of transportation.

InGermany'sattemptstouproottheKolhozsystemandtoreplaceitwithNaziagriculturaltechniquesithadbecomenecessarytofightfortherecognitionofprivateownership.Oncethis

was accomplished, German leaders presumed that their methods would produce better resuIts.931

InordertomeettheshortageoflaboronGermanfarmsandinitsfactories,Russianprison-

ers and foreign labor amounting to 2,500,000 and 3,000,000 respectively were being imported.
NineteendifferentcountriesweresupplyingforeignlaborfortheHermannGoeringfactorieswhileRussianprisonerswerebeingusedintheRhinearea.Althoughthisdidnotfullycom-

pensate for the shortage of labor, it was estimated that approximately seventy or eighty per

centofthepeacetimestrengthhadbeenmet.AccordingtoAmbassadorOshima,therewas

not the slightest sign of impoverishment though it was true that there was some scarcity of

laborandmaterials.IndustriesinoccupiedRussiawerebeingreorganizedandthesituation

there was well under control. 932

OnNovember11,1941,theForeignOfficeinTokyoattemptedtosummarizetheRusso-GermansituationforitsofficialsinWashington,stressingthepointthatalthoughtheGermanmarchonMoscowmadethepossibilityofitsfallimminent,itwouldbeagreatmistaketocon-

clude that the Stalin government would collapse immediately since so much assistance could

besecuredbothfromRussianterritoryeastoftheVolgaandfromAmericaandGreatBritain.

The summary touched upon communistic uprisings and sabotage in German occupied coun-
tries and remarked that German police powers were dealing successfully with these factions.

>29IV, 786.
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"shooting ,orders" for these areas, b) occupying Greenland and Iceland, c) attempting to
nullify the neutrality act, and, d) arming its merchant vessels while at the same time e) at-
tempting to secure military bases in Central and South America and abolish Axis influence
in the Western Hemisphere, it was actually engaging in anti-Axis activities.933

istrative official inspecting conditions in Germany, Kohel Muto addressed an Ode-to-Nazism

with which the Fuehrer led his German people. Any sign of discontent, he felt, was only a

natural anxiety over the speedy conclusion of the war and in no way could be interpreted as a

normal times, he said it appeared far from a critical stage. According to Mr. Muto, a German
downfall through lack of food would be impossible for several years to come. Shortage of labor,

the high morale of those behind the fighting lines and the absence of any disturbances in eithertheor
402. Fresh Rumors of a Combined Europe Meeting Under Hitler Arise

It was not long until rumors began to circulate again about a conference of all the European
nations which Chancellor Hitler supposedly had planned in order to give England and America
a demonstration of his leadership throughout the continent. Ambassador Oshima divulged on

such a meeting in Vienna late in 1941 or early in the following year and to ask all neutral na-
tions to participate in the conference. Vichy, Spain, and Finland had already signified their
acquiescence, while Sweden, Switzerland, and Turkey appeared reluctant to participate.

particularly in regard to German-French relations. 935

403. Progress of the Russo-German War (November 13-14, 1941)

a. Report from Finland

ation as it had been reported by the Japanese Embassy in Helsinki. There, as in other sections
of Europe, sharp reductions in exports and imports, scarcity of labor and an unexpectedly
early winter had produced a critical food and clothing situation. Prices of all commodities had

could not compare to the actual market prices which, because of bootleg transactions, had
risen many times and promised to reach higher levels as the war continued.

Although anti-Soviet sentiment among the people in the front lines was very strong, the un-
usually frugal living conditions and long expected British and American pressure might cause
a breakdown in operations against the Russians.936
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EvidentlyJapaneseForeignOfficebelievedthatalthoughUnitedStatespublicopinionstillprohibitednominalparticipationinthethewarbya)designatingneutralityzonesandissuing OnNovember11,1941,inwhathecalledasummaryofhissix-monthsdutyasanadmin­toHomeMinisterextollingvirtuesofNewOrderandthethethetheuncontendedinfluence hintconflictmidsthisunifiedpeople.Admittingthatthefoodsituationwasfallingshortofof explained,wasbeingmetbyRussianwarprisonersandforeignlabor.Againhehepointedto November11,1941,thathehadlearnedfromareliablesourceofGermany'splanstohold SinceEnglandandAmericasomehowhadheardtheserumors,AmbassadorOshimawasallcertaincongressheld.HebelievedatatpresentGermanywouldwouldnotnotmakeanystartlingmovessinceRusso-Germanwarremainedundecided.But

uponthethethefallofofMoscow,heconfidedthatthatthatsomediplomaticdiplomaticmaneuvercouldbebeexpected, OnNovember13,1941,ForeignOfficeinTokyorelayedasummaryofthetheFinnishsitu-risensharplytoonehundredforty-fourpercentofthe1939standard.Theseofficialquotations 93.IV,793.202 

largesmallfactories.934 



b. Report from Berlin

Although the German spearhead had already reached Rostov, because of the inability of suc-
cessive detachments to advance at an equal rate, the city had not yet been taken. Along the

the line extending from Kalinin to Tula. Although the Soviet government had already trans-
ferred sixteen fresh regiments from the Far East in addition to fifteen other regiments and hadandtoa

According to this German source, Stalin had asked that Great Britain land troops on Frenchto
called for an encirclement of Moscow rather than a frontal attack. This encirclement, if the

ance with a political press claim that Germany intended to split off the main cities of Moscow

victory. Although it was expected that the Russians would hold out for a certain length of time,
it did not alter the fact that the Russian campaign would be completed. This was also pointed
out by the announcement that Hitler had appointed Dr. Alfred Rosenburg to the post of Min-
ister for the eastern occupied area in preparation to setting up the political government.

of the Caucasus lying north of the Caucasian mountain range. Since this was an extremely

ried on into the spring.938Theona
Oshima's staff on November 21 that fresh infantry and artillery forces had crossed the border in
the Tula area and after capturing the town, were forcing their way northeast.

Regarding the fact that the Germans had been anticipating a British counter attack in Norththethe
forces twenty-five kilometers north of Moscow and from the south as far as Ryazan on Novem-ber27.
of an ultimate victory at Moscow.

Likewise in the north African war, the report continued, German forces had overcome the

under the leadership of Field Marshal Rommel. 940
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qualitywereexpectedbeginrapidadvancewhenweatherconditionsimproved.propagandapurposeswithregardRAFactivity.937 
sameGermansourcewhichreportedNovember14advisedmemberofAmbassadorfightingbecomeprolonged,supplyproblemmightbecomecritical.939AlthoughRussiantroopswereopposingvigorously,Germanspokesmenwereconfident 

WithregardactualprogressarmyRussia,ForeignOfficetrans­mittedaBerlinsummaryManchuriaanditsvariousheadquartersininChinaonNovember13.AprimaryobstacletototoGermanGermanadvancewas,ofofcourse,thethethethetheextremelycoldweather. linetoKerchadvancestalematedbymud.Inpreparationforfinaloffensive,powerfulGermandetachmentshadhadbeenbeenmassedingreatestconcentrationofthethethethewaralong addedacitizens'armyof200,000,theGermans,werealreadysuperiorinbothnumberandsoilbutitwasbelievedthatEmpirewouldpromisepoundGermanyfromthetheair.TheseraidsdoinglittleifanydamageandwerewerebeingusedmerelymerelytotofurnishfiguresforAlaterreport,fromaGermanofhighreliability,revealedthatNovember14favorableweatherhadreturnedonontheRussianfrontandmajorcampaignswereresumed.Thestrategy 

currentweatherconditionsprevailedforaweek,shouldbecompletedintendays.Inaccord-Leningradandandfollowwiththeirdestruction,suchtacticswouldbepursueduntilfinal InthesouthernsectionGermanforceswereadvancingsouthwestofRostovtowardaportion hazardousundertakingforseverewinterweather,itwasexpectedthatthewarwouldbecar-Africaitwasnotbelieved,eventhoughtheBritishoutnumberedthemfourone,theirarmieswereefficientasasNazitrainedsoldiers.Theironlyconcernappearedtotobethatthatshould LatestreportsfromthefightingfrontasrelayedbyAmbassadorOshimaplacedGerman impendingcrisisand,combinedwithItaliantroopsthere,werewellontheirwaytosuccess "'OIV,797.203 



c. Report from Alexandrovsk

tional information concerning the Black Sea area. It appeared that armed soldiers, horses,
and vehicles were being transported from Alexandrovsk to the opposite coast of the Black Sea

d. Report from Bulgaria

posed by both the Nationalists Party, numbering around 10,000 occupying the mountains
south of Belgrade, and the Communist Party numbering 20,000 scattered throughout the townsandby
the German army had encountered little experience in the art of partisan warfare, it appeared

to be making slight progress against such opposition.
According to this dispatch, the craze for assassinating German soldiers still continued and

precaution to avoid encountering these anti-German factions. In an attempt to retaliate, Ger-

many, on October 17, ordered the execution of 2,000 teachers, students, and others and again
on November 3, 30,000 people were arrested at one time, including the education minister.

progress of its power politics continued, Germany would declare war on Serbia and enlist the

King, he politely refused to cooperate under such circumstances. The Serbian people, finding
German oppression unbearable, were even considering the possibility of being annexed to
Bulgaria.

by winter would reach incomparable limits.942

404. Japanese Specialists Study German Industries
In order to gain first-hand information with regard to the operation of industries within Ger-

many, Japanese specialists under the direction of Ambassador Oshima, had organized to

ciation, was to be set up to work in close connection with the home office. Such an organization
would require a staff of clerical and technical employees at an estimated cost of 15,000 yen,
but in the opinion of Ambassador Oshima this promised to be an exceptionally profitable un-
dertaking.943

buy either the equipment from Germany or the patent rights for the manufacture of that equip-

AnAlexandrovskintelligencereportrebroadcastbyTokyoonNovember13,revealedaddi­whilethepopulacewasgivingupclothing.Underthenewlyimposedbreadrationingsystem workmenwereallowed600gramsandotherciviliansmerely300grams.941
AccordingtoamessagefromSofia,onNovember14theGermansinSerbiawerebeingop­andcitiesintheinteriorandactiveontheRoumanianborder.InordertocombatthesetwofactionstwodivisionsofMarshalSigmundLiszt'sarmy,adetachmentofAustrians,30,000armedRoumaniansunderGeneralMilanNeditch,aswellascomplementsofyoungmen'sassociationsNationalGuardsbackedGermanwarlords,wereoperating.However,since 

membersoftheroyalfamilyandhighofficialsofSerbiawereindangerandweretakingevery Fromprivatesources,theoriginatorofthemessagefromSofiahadlearnedthatifthe backingofBulgaria,Roumania,andCroatia.WhenthissuggestionwasmadetotheBulgarian 

. 

WithregardtothesituationtheMacedonia,AlbaniaandGreece,thereexistedthesamecriticalshortageoffoodandunlesssomereliefmeasuresweretakenatonce,nationaldistress studyandinvestigatethesteelindustry.AllJapanesetechnicianswere-preparedtoassistinthepromulgationofaplantooperateincloseliaisonwithGermanOfficialsandindustrialists.Acentraloffice,knownastheBerlinBranchoftheJapaneseSteelProductionControlAsso-InadditiontoathoroughJapanesestudyoftheGermansteelindustry,planswerecontinuedfortheJapanesetoinvestigatemanyothermanufacturingtechniquesand,insomecases,to .41IV,798.."IV,799.."IV,800.204 



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
ment.Threeclerks,Yoshida,Hanaoka,andKinoshita,werereportedlearningthemethodofmanufacturinghighgradelubricatingoilsattheRUAHEMICompany'splantonOctober27.944Photographsofthe75mm.powderchamberandcartridgecasewerereceivedandaddi-tionalplanswererequestedonOctober28,1941.945

VariousarticlesforaerialwarfarewerebelievedobtainablefromGermanyaccordingtoa

wire sent by a Japanese committee in Berlin on October 29. These included sighting apparatus
for firing and bombing use, automatic bombsight, precision photometer, a 20 centimeter high

anglecontinuousaircamera,theKERUBINflyingoxygenrespiratoryapparatus,electrically

heated flying clothes, the Askania automatic pilot device, wave length recording apparatusandtestingdevices.946TheJapaneseAirServiceHeadquartersrepliedonNovember25,listing
thosearticleswhichtheywishedtopurchaseoutrightfromGermany.Inadditiontheyex-pressedadesiretobuythemanufacturingrightstotheRheinmetall13mm.machinegun

and to several other pieces of equipment. 947

OnNovember10theJapanesedelegationinBerlinwiredtheWarOfficeinTokyoinforma-tionconcerningtheME-210andtheplanewhichitwastoreplace,theME-110.Becauseofthe
ME-21O's speed and maneuverability the Japanese planned to develop a similar plane in co-
operation with the Germans; this, however, would depend upon the plan's practicability after
additionaltests.TofulfillJapaneserequirementsanewtypemotorwassuggested,possiblytheDB605ortheDB611.Theperformanceoftheplaneunderthesecircumstanceswasesti-matedat640km.speedandacruisingrangesimilartoaregular

ME-21O.948Theconstruction
of the plane would vary in accordance with the different purposes to be fulfilled; e.g., intercep-tor,STUKA,orlong-rangereconnaissanceplane.949Theconstructiontimewasestimatedfrom16to11hourswheninmassproduction.950

TheChiefoftheTechnicalHeadquarterssectioninGermanywireditshomeofficeinTokyo

and the Ordnance Administration Headquarters there the results of a visit to the Mozeru950a
factory.HehadauthorizedthisvisittoenabletheJapanesetolearnmethodsofconstructingriflestocksfromlaminatedmaterials.Itwasdiscoveredthatlaminatedstockmaterialscon-sistedofbeechboardsabout1millimeterthickputtogetherwithagluematerialandthatitsweightinthefinishedriflewas100to150gramsmorethanthatofwalnut;however,itsadvant-

ages over walnut included being able to be dried by hot air in eight hours and a comparativelysmalldegreeofwarping.951
AnothercommitteewirefromBerlinadvisedtheViceMinisterofWaronNovember29thattheJapaneseandManchukuocargo,whichwastobeloadedonblockade-runnernumber1,wouldbegraduallyincreasedtoagrosstonnageofabout2700tons.AsmallamountofthiswouldbeSwisscargo.ItwasestimatedthatbyDecember15allofthefreightwouldhavebeen

assembled in Germany ready for transportation by special trains.952

TheIlliesCompan/52awouldoperatethetransportationoftheagriculturalandindustrial

cargo for Germany and would assume responsibility for damage to the cargo. Only that cargo
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pany had planned to advance the fees for storehouse expense and transportation by land and

cial Company and the Manchukuoan authorities were to have disposal authority. Insurance

payment.953was405.asaOn1,ofa
motion of peace between Germany and Russia in his address to the parliament of his country.

Rumors of a conference which had been planned for December 10 at Vienna followed this

to Ambassador Papen, who had conferred with the Japanese representative in Ankara, Ger-
many had absolutely no intentions of making any peace proposals and such rumors were a
result of British propaganda. However, it was believed that the Turkish president was desirous
of extending his good offices.Onthetoof
tor and in following such a course, find a way to change its foreign policy.955

406. Axis Powers Bicker Over Vital Rubber Shipments

The problem of Siamese rubber shipments to Shanghai again arose while the Italian Naval

ply of this material had been notably short, had ordered the Mitsui branch in Shanghai to
refuse the Italian request.956

The Esso, carrying a load of rubber consigned to the German firm of Karlwitz and to the
Japanese Continental Trading Company, was scheduled to arrive in Shanghai about the

office that the tonnage was presumably divided up with 320 tons, valued at 2,000,000 yen, for

and a balance of 70 or 80 tons, valued at 500,000 yen. Japanese officials, unsuccessful in their
attempts to have the Germans release their consignment to Japan, requested that the matter
be taken up with the German Commercial Attache in Tokyo, Dr. Helmut Wohlthat.

should not share the vitally needed raw material.

Similarly, the Japanese government was faced with demands of Japanese business firms in

Shanghai that the rubber be unloaded at the wharf immediately. In opposition Japan felt that
until local authorities had established undisputed control there would be a danger that foreign
firms might acquire the supply.957407.ofis
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datedDecember7,1941.954PresidentInonuOffersTurkeyMediatorBetweenGermanyandRussiaNovember1941,IsmetInonu,thePresidentTurkey,madegesturetowardthepro-speech.Somenewspapers,however,consideredthesestoriesGermanpropaganda.Accordingotherhand,rumorspointedthefallMoscowwhenTurkeywouldactasamedia-
AmbassadorOshimaSaysAxisPoliticalAimtheWartheDismembermentofRussia 

whichacceptabletheGermanEconomicMinistrywaswastotobeshipped.TheIlliesCom­seaandwouldbereimbursedforthisbyCompany.OnlythetheSHOWASHOWACommer­rates,commissioncharges,andtransportationexpenseswerediscussedwellasasthetimefor TheWarOfficeofSeniorAdjutantTokyorequestedthatauthoritiesininBerlinimme­diatelysendthethetwoUniversalParallelTestingMachinespreviouslyordered.Thisdispatch AttacheinShanghaialsonegotiatedforaportionofthesupply.ButJapan,whosereservesup-twentiethofNovember.TwodaysbeforethattimeofficialsinShanghainotifiedthehome Germanfirm;approximately203tons,valuedat1,300,000yenforthetheJapanesecompany; ThequestionofItalyaroseagain,butJapanremainedinsistentthatthethirdAxisparty AccordingtoadispatchtransmittedfromBerlinonNovember21politicalaim

waragainstRussiawasnotashadbeenpreviouslystatedbyAmbassador,thethethethedestructionofof'53IV,811. 956IV,814."'IV,815.206 



Bolshevism, but rather the crushing of Russia as a nation and although Germany was forced to

resort to unprecedented cruelties if the Soviet intended to oppose, such tactics were unavoid-
able.

Ambassador Oshima also briefly touched on the statistics regarding British forces in the Nearnot
With regard to German-French relations, Germany was, according to the Ambassador "tak-

ing care" of its allied nations.
Apparently Hitler had been considerate of Italy's wishes with respect to Mediterranean war-

fare. However, since several German ships had been sunk in recent weeks an order had been

which had accounted for the sinking of the Ark Royal. 958

Ambassador Oshima also expressed his opinion on the future possibilities of the Russo-Ger-

and the Soviet Union seemed remote, although he believed that Germany preferred a short

war so that she might transfer her fighting forces to possibly, the British front.
Regarding Japanese relations, the Ambassador believed that whatever policy Japan adopted

reason he felt that Japan should avoid violence at the present time although it was necessary
to blast the British-United States-Russian joint action. In order to accomplish this it would be

offer herself as a mediator for peace at the opportune time.959

Russo-German war, the Japanese office in Ankara informed Foreign Minister Togo that the

spondent. It was therefore presumed that the correspondent in question had based his observ-

November by the Turkish President, Ismet Inonu. When questioned by the Japanese, Ambas-
sador von Papen had denied the whole thing, pointing to Germany's military and economic
strength and its confidence in ultimate victory without compromise. 960

creased with the complete encirclement of Leningrad; some of these prisoners were interrogated

however, would leave the problem of feeding the three or four million people of Leningrad to

Germany and Finland, neither of which wanted to assume the responsibility. 961

According to a dispatch sent from Veinna to Foreign Minister Togo, German strategy in-

THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORandthatithadnearlytheseresourcesinmenandsuppliesonhandasitpretended.EastEgyptandandrevealedGermanyconvincedthatthatGreatBritainwaswasbluffingrecentlyissuedthattwelveGermansubmarinesweretobesentintotheMediterranean,oneof manwarwhenhedisclosedonNovember21thatthepossibilityofpeacebetweenGermany withregardtotheUnitedStatesGreatBritainwouldinfluencehergreatnessandandforthis necessarytobringaboutpeacebetweenGermanytheSovietUnion,andandAmbassadorOshimaexpressedhisbeliefthatJapan'spositionwouldbeenhancedconsiderablyshouldshe 408.JapaneseOfficialsinAnkara,Helsinki,andViennaReportGermanActivitiesHomeOfficeIncontradictionaLondonradiobroadcastwhichquotedAmbassadorFranzvonPapenashavingsaidthatGermanyplannedtototoofferGreatBritainpeacetermsatconclusionofthethethe GermanAmbassadortoTurkeyhaddiscussedonly"miscellaneousmatters"withthE1corre­
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charge of all German oil interests from the Baltic nations to the Caucasus. Minister Neubacher

also asserted that Germany planned to use every resource in reconstructing all oil fields even
though they had been fired.962

409. Germany Proposes Final Draft of the German-Manchukuoan Economic Relations Pact

ment for extending German-Manchukuoan Economic Relations" and it would be effectivethelastdayoftothebyto
28, 1941, the pact arranged for the delivery of previously contracted soy beans and soy bean oil
and for the issuance of exchange and export permits. The agreement concerned itself princi-
pally with the rates and manner of payment of goods, specifying that this contract would be
acted on by authorized conferences of local tradesmen.

Foreign Minister Togo urged that the Manchukuoan government promptly wire him of its
adoption of the pact insomuch as the matter had been discussed with Japanese military au-
thorities and Vice Minister Miura and all were in agreement with Germany about it.963

410. Ambassador Oshima Interviews Foreign Minister von RibbentropQn28
campaigns for 1942 were discussed, in addition to Japan's future policies. When the Foreign

Ambassador Oshima replied that he had no official word. The Foreign Minister then began

military might of Great Britain and the United States would be concentrated against Japan.

mental differences in the very right to exist between Germany and Japan and the United

States." Hitler had also revealed that Germany had received advice that ther~ was practically
no hope of successful Japanese-United States negotiations. The Foreign Minister continued

Japan would benefit. Then, the Foreign Minister stated that he considered President Roose-
velt to be a fanatic and that it was impossible to tell just what the United States' president

avoid war. In view 'of the tone of Hitler's recent speech and Foreign Minister Ribbentrop's re-
marks, Germany's attitude toward the United States appeared considerably stiffened and
there were no indications that Germany would refuse to fight the United States if necessary.
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sametimeGermanforceswouldattackBatumonBlackSea.Regardlesswinter,GermanywasdeterminedseizeCaucasus.TheJapanesereceivedthisinformationfromthethethetheformermayorofofVienna,MinisterNeubacher,whohadhadrecentlybeenorderedtototake AsresulttalkbetweenMr.OtakiandDr.HelmutWohlthatduringwhichJapaneserepresentativepresentedmanyofofManchukuoanopinions,aaafinaldraftforthethethenewGer­man-ManchukuoanpactproposedbyGermany.Thetitlewaswastobe"Aprovisionalagree­cam'etolateexplainingthathehadjustbeenattendingameetingofGermanbigwigsincludingHermannGoering,atFueher'sofficialresidence.Atthisconferenceconferencethethethe MinisterfinallyarrivedhisfirstquestionconcernedJapanese-Americannegotiationstowhich immediatelydiscussJapan'sEastAsiaadvisedthereneverwouldbeanothertimesoappropriateaspresentforJapilntototake

aforwardstep,andandhewarnedthatthatifJapanhesitated,whenGermanysucceededestablishingherNewNewOrderOrderinininEurope,allthethe HethenproceededtoexplaintheFuehrerhadstatedthatthatveryday:"Therearefunda­thatifJapandidreachadecisiontofightGreatBritainandtheUnitedStateswithGermany, donext.However,hebelievedthat,justasinpast,thetheUnitedStateswouldwouldtryto WhenAmbassadorOshimainquiredasstateofRusso-Germanwar,ForeignMinisterrespondedthatGermanycrushthethethetheSovietUnionanevengreaterextentthanhadbeenplanned.TheFuehrerwaswasnownowdetermineddeterminedtotototowipeoutRussia, 

untilMarch,1942.AccordingwiresentForeignMinisterTogoauthoritiesinHsingkingonNovemberNovemberAmbassadorOshimawasreceivedbyForeignMinistervonRibbentropwho 



and since practically all the main military objectives had been taken, the war on the eastern
front would soon be finished and German troops would be returning. The Foreign Minister con-
tinued that Germany would advance and cross the Ural Mountains in the spring, chasing

informed that the campaign would be launched in May of 1942 and that by summer Germany

expected Axis air connections from the Ural Mountains to Manchukuo would be possible.

Ambassador Oshima then questioned the Foreign Minister about Germany's British policy

Near East, Africa, Gibraltar and the Mediterranean Sea before launching landing operations

German intelligence reports indicated political splits within the English government. They
stated that Churchill's influence was waning and that Chief of the Labor Party, Rt. Hon. Ernest
Bevin, had been advocating revolutionary measures. Stating that, of course, he did not believe

was necessary to launch landing operations. In any event the Foreign Minister continued, Ger-nothearetoallnoin
other possessions throughout the world will probably be divided three ways by Germany, the United States, and
Japan. In Mrica, Germany will be satisfied with, roughly, those parts which were formerly German colonies.

Italy will be given the greater share of the African colonies. Germany desires above all else, to control European
Russia."

England's possessions, the Foreign Minister pointed to the fact that although it was hoped the
war would last but a short time, there was a possibility that it might continue for anotherwasnoofa
411. Axis Powers Arrange for Simultaneous Declarations of War on the United States

Since the Tripartite Pact had become a major obstacle to success in Japanese-American

position. Powerless to abandon its stand as a Tripartite ally, Japan, under pressure from Ger-
many as well as the United States, trailed after its Axis partner making protestations of re.

Ambassador Oshima informed Foreign Minister Togo that he was scheduled for an interviewwithon27at
that regardless of the difficulties in American-Japanese relations the Tripartite Alliancenotbe
the Berlin representative that he should immediately convey secretly to Foreign Minister von

eign Minister continued that Ambassador Oshima was to remind Germany that the Empire's

.<'1V,822.
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manywouldmakepeacewithEnglandandrepeatedtheoft-quotedstatement:"WedeterminedremoveBritishinfluencefromEurope.Therefore,attheendofthiswar,Englandwillhaveinfluencewhatsoever,internationalaffairs.TheIslandEmpireofBritainmayremain,butallofherpossibilityGermanyformingseparatepeacewiththeUnitedStates.964ChancellorHitlerNovember2:00p.m.,965hewasinstructedtoinformtheFuehrerwouldabrogated.966 

StalinintoSiberia.WhenAmbassadorOshimaaskedwhenthistobeexpected,hewaswas atpresenttime.HelearnedthatGermanywouldfirstdisposeofBritain'sinfluenceinthethe againstthehomeislanditself.AllpreparationshadbeenmadebyGermanyforthiscampaign. allofthis,theForeignMinistersaidhewasconvincedconditionsinwereanythingbutsatisfactory,asituationwhichmeanthatthatthatEnglandEnglandmightmightcollapsebeforeit WhenAmbassadorOshimasuggestedthatGermanymightbefacedwithsubduingallof year.thenstatedshouldJapangotowaragainstUnitedStates,GermanywouldjoinwithitsAxispartnerimmediately.HeHereassuredthetheJapaneseAmbassadorthatthatthere relationstheUnitedStateswasdemandingitsr~pudiation,Japanfounditselfininahopeless assurancethatthethreepowerallianceremainedforemostinJapaneseforeign

policy.When OnNovember30asJapanese-Americanrelationsbecamemorestrained,ForeignMinisterTogoinformedAmbassadorOshimathattheEmpirewasfacedwithagravesituationandtold RibbentroptherewasextremedangerananoutbreakofofwarbetweentheAnglo-SaxonnationsJapanandandthatthatthisclashmightcome"quickerthananyonedreams".967TheFor­.<7IV,825.209 



might say that although Japan planned a southward movement, she would not relax her pres-

sure against the Soviet. In the event that Russia joined with England and the United States,
Japan would be ready to strike against her, but for the present it was necessary to concern
herself with the southern advance. Such a message, the Foreign Minister stressed, should be
kept absolutely secret.968

he held that had been exchanged between Japan and Germany at the signing of the Tripartite
Pact. These, the Ambassador wired, he would take with him on his next visit to Foreign Min-

Minister Togo regarding what should be done in the event of an Anglo-Japanese and an Ameri-
can-Japanese war, Ambassador Oshima requested that it be sent to him immediately.969

In a second message on November 30 Foreign Minister Togo stressed Japan's alliance to the
Tripartite Pact, stating that in all its American negotiations it had remained adamant in

regard to the principles of the Tripartite Pact. Since this pact was indicative of Japan's policy
in China and French Indo-China, to which policy the American cabinet was in complete op-

bination of the Tripartite Alliance. The Foreign Minister believed that the United States con-

sidered it impossible to maintain friendly relations as long as the Empire of Japan was allied
to Germany and Italy. This fact had been brought out in the most recent Hull-Nomura meet-

ing. According to the Foreign Minister it had become clear that a continuation of negotiations
would be detrimental to Japan.970

Apparently the United States' proposal at the meeting on November 26, had insulted theit
". . . no matter what treaty either party enters into with a third power it will not be interpreted as having any

bearing upon the basic object of this treaty, namely the maintenance of peace in the Pacific. This means specifi-

cally the Three-Power Pact. It means that in case the United States enters the European war at any time thenotbetoto
The Foreign Minister believed that this consideration alone would invalidate Japanese-Ameri-

land, Australia, the Netherlands, and China before extending this plan. Therefore, according
to Foreign Minister Togo, the United States, in collusion with these nations, regarded Japan,
along with Germany and Italy, as an enemy. 971 .

Minister's outline of the current events in Japanese-United States negotiations. The Ambas-
sador believed that the United States would attempt to divorce Japan from Germany by pub-
lishing the record of the negotiations in a propaganda program. In order to combat this action

the Ambassador believed that Germany and Italy should be informed immediately by the
Japanese government the contents of the Konoye message.972

After meeting Foreign Minister von Ribbentrop at 7:00 p.m. on December 1, 1941 the Ambas-
sador explained that the Germans, according to Foreign Minister von Ribbentrop, understood

'6SIV, 826.
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Japanesegovernmentwhensaid:JapaneseEmpirewillallowedgiveassistanceGermanyorItaly." 



his opinion that Germany and Japan should jointly declare war on the United States to which
Ambassador Oshima agreed. Foreign Minister von Ribbentrop cautioned that this message

government exert care in the use of this material. 973

In an effort to impress Japan, Foreign Minister von Ribbentrop continued at this interview
to say that despite American and British propaganda regarding the defeat at Rostov, Germany's
retreat had been merely a strategic move to prevent undue bloodshed in the face of a Russian
defense. According to the Foreign Minister, General Paul von Kleist in charge of maneuvers
there had retired voluntarily. The Foreign Minister also volunteered the information that Gen-

ably. 974

Ambassador Oshima was again called to the German official headquarters to be informed that

cause of communications, security and weather conditions. Accordingly, Foreign Minister von
Ribbentrop would be forced to meet with Chancellor Hitler at military headquarters upon the
latter's arrival there on the 4th or 5th. Although such a delay was regretted by the Foreign Min-
ister, it would be impossible for Germany to proceed until the Fuehrer had given his approvalandinthishe
on December 3 he assured Foreign Minister Togo that there would be no objections.975Aton5,
bentrop to receive Germany's approval and declaration of the alliance. 976

Minister von Ribbentrop, through his representative, attempted to impress AmbassadorinhadnotBy6,it
Ribbentrop's departure, or to secure a proxy for the initialing.978

In reply Ambassador Oshima advised that at 7:00 p.m. he had sent representative Shun-ichi
Kase and Tomohiko Ushiba to conduct negotiations for initialing of the agreement with Gauss.
It resulted that only the German language would be used in the text and that the signing would
be in order: Ambassador Oshima, Foreign Minister von Ribbentrop, and the Italian Ambassa-

German language:willusetheXtoIn
authorized this agreement signed and with their seals provided. Done in triple originals in German, Italian and
Japanese language in Berlin on the December, 1941, in the 20th year of the Fascists (era?), corresponding
to the day of the 12th month, the 16th year of Showa (era?)".979
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Japan'sdesireforhasteandwouldbringChancellorHitler'sauthoritytobearassoonasitwaspossibletocontacthim.Mr.Gauss,whohadbeenattendingthisconference,thenexpressed shouldnotbetransmittedtoTokyobyAmbassadorOshimawho,inturn,askedthathishome eralRommel'sarmyhadcompletelyannihilatedonedivisionofNewZealandtroopsattheTobrukgarrison.HealsoreportedthattheencirclementofMoscowwasprogressingfavor-TwodaysafterhisinterviewwithForeignMinistervonRibbentroponDecember1,1941 DictatorHitlerwasatadistantplaceanditwasimpossibletocontacthimimmediatelybe-

regardwasconvincedthatthedesiredresponsewouldbeforthcoming.
AmbassadorOshimaagainstressedtheimportanceofimmediateaction.InhiswiretoTokyo 3:00p.m.December1941,AmbassadorOshimacalledonForeignMinistervonRib-

OshimawiththeimportanceofsecrecyinthematterandexplainedthatevenAmbassadorOtt Tokyobeennotified,norhadtheItalianambassadorinTokyo.977December1941,TokyowiredthathadnotreceivedthesecondclausetotheGerman-
JapanesetextandForeignMinisterTogofearedthatitwouldnotarriveintimeforsignatureonthatdate.HeurgedAmbassadorOshimatopostponeinsomemannerForeignMinistervon dor.AmbassadorOshimathentransmittedtheconcludingportionoftheagreementinthe "Weletterrepresentwitnesswhereofhavetheundersignedbytheirgovernmentsonly
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clause to the agreement be sent immediately.98O

Apparently by December 7, 1941, some additional idea had been presented by Germany

signing had been completed. Thus, circumstances might be altered by the time the signing
could be accomplished and Ambassador Oshima also was to explain that Japan expected

was officially signed.981

According to Ambassador Oshima, as soon as he had received the radio report of the Japa-
nese attack at 11:00 p.m. on the 7th, he contacted Foreign Minister von Ribbentrop and at-
tempted to secure Germany's immediate participation, which, although it required Chancel-
lor Hitler's final decision, was undoubtedly forthcoming.982

ister expressed Japan's wish that Germany and Italy issue formal declarations of war at once,
but Minister von Ribbentrop merely replied that Hitler was at the time discussing matters
pertaining to publicizing such a declaration in order to make an impression on the German
people. In this interview Foreign Minister von Ribbentrop revealed that Chancellor Hitler had

United States:1.
England with all means at their disposal to a victorious conclusion (working in common).2.toofor3.theofa

"Article 4. This agreement comes into force (becomes effective) when signed. In witness whereto the under-

signed, duly authorized by their governments, have signed this agreement and affixed their seals.,,>8.

Tokyo, Article 3 of the text would be of great advantage to Japan since on the strength of it
Germany and Italy would assist in the establishment of a Far Eastern Sphere of Co-prosperity
under Japanese domination. The Foreign Minister then expressed his desire that the agreement
be approved in Japan immediately so that the official signing could be arranged for December

bentrop paused in order to congratulate the Japanese government upon its ~uccessful attack
at Pearl Harbor and to praise its navy.985

the Ger~an and Italian governments in all sincerity had signed the agreement. 986

undoubtedly the Japanese Ambassador in Berlin was already aware of this proposal, the
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Two"extremelyurgent"dispatchesthenreachedBerlinfromTokyoaskingthatthesecond withregardagreement,whichTokyoauthoritiesconcurred.Sincethishadbeenac­ceptedtherewouldbenoobjectiontototosigningbutForeignMinisterTogodivulgedthatsincedevelopmentswereproceedingsorapidly,crashmightoccurbeforethethethetheofficialofficial ItalyGermanytodeclarewaragainstGreatBritainandandAmericabeforetheagreement Thenextdayat1:00p.m.AmbassadorOshimaagaininaninterviewwiththeForeignMin­issuedordersattacktoentireGermannavyonmorningofofDecember8.983OnsamedayGermany,ItalyandJapanreachedanagreementregardingwaragainstthethethethethe AsAmbassadorOshimapointedoutinaseparatemessage,explainingtheagreementto 10.Duringtheconferenceinwhichthisagreementwasdrawnup,ForeignMinistervon

Rib­

. LateronDecember8AmbassadorOshimatransmittedthefinalrevisedtext,statingthat ForeignMinisterTogon9tifiedOshimaDecember9AmbassadorAmbassadorOtthadcalledononhimtwicedaywithaproposalinregardtothenewagreement.Statingthatthatthat >8.IV,843. 

"ArticleGermany,ItalyandJapanwillconductthewarforcedonthembytheUnitedStatesofAmericaand"ArticleGermany,ItalyandJapanpledgethemselvesnotconcludeanarmisticeorpeacewitheithertheUnitedStatesAmericawithEnglandwithoutcomplete,mutualunderstanding."ArticleGermany,ItalyandJapanwillcollaboratemostcloselyafterthevictoriousconclusionofthewarforpurposebringingaboutjustNewOrder. 



if the Germans insisted upon preserving the first part of Article ill of the Tripartite Pact.987

Japanese-American war, Ambassador Oshima had induced German authorities to confer

daily with the press in Tokyo at 11:00 a.m. Berlin time, at which time a Japanese official

the present time limit in the Tokyo-Berlin telephone communications and asked that the
proper authorities in Japan investigate the possibilities of this. 988

412. Tripartite Powers Strengthen Their Positions in the Near East

cultivating Turkey's friendship and was continuing to supply Ankara with lend-lease material,itwasthatbetoand
el Husseini, exiled Mufti from Jerusalem, and pointed out that although the Italians were very
concerned over Arabic underground activities, they had decided to let the Germans handlehisto
413. Japan Attempts to Pacify Germany in Regard to Japanese-Russian Relations

possibility of a non-aggression agreement between the United States and Russia. Based on the

Moscow neutrality agreement by taking Vladivostok, it promised American aid for Siberia.

might be necessary to maintain the status quo in the Pacific.991

the possibility of the United States' constructing air fields in Siberia, Japan must preserve its
neutrality toward Russia unless it wished to sacrifice the present route for German-Japanese
supplies.992

Foreign Minister Togo, on December 6, continued to emphasize the importance of Ambas-
sador Oshima's reassurance to Germany with regard to Japan's position with Russia so that
the German government would not insist upon an exchange of diplomatic notes on this ques-to
through the Japanese sphere of influence to Russia.

clear that Japan could not carry this out thoroughly since in order to prevent Soviet Russia

necessarily have to postpone the conclusion of such a treaty. 993
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obviousTurkeywouldf~rcedcollaboratewiththeAxisbyspring;and,accord­ingly,GermanyItalywerenotespeciallyworriedoverBritishandAmericanactivities.989figure;hencetransferfromRomeBerlin.99O 
tion.AmbassadorOshimawasexplainthatJapanwouldnotallowAmericanmaterialstopass 

ForeignMinisterinstructedhiminwhatwayHomeOfficedesiredthethetexttobealtered InorderthatGermangovernmentshouldkeepwellinformeduponprogressofthethethe wouldpresentlatestnewsofthetheday.AmbassadorOshimawasalsoendeavoringtoextend OnDecember6,1941TokyoinformedthatalthoughtheUnitedStateshadhadbeenbeen Arabagitators,sponsoredGermany,werediscussedbybyOshimaames­sagedatedNovember20,1941.TheAmbassadorAmbassadorannouncedthearrivalininBerlinofHajAmen affair.ThelatterweremakingplanstoconductthisactivitywithHusseiniasthetheprincipalAnintelligencereportfromSofiainNovemberhadinformedForeignMinisterTogoofthe suppositionthatafterGermanforcesoccupiedMoscow,JapanwouldabrogatetheTokyo-ThereportstateddespiteAmericanreluctancetomakesuchanagreement,feltthatthat

itit AmbassadorUmezuatHsingkinglateradvisedForeignMinisterTogothat,irrespectiveofInlastanalysis,shouldthetheGermangovernmentinsistuponguaranteeinthismatter,TokyorealizedthatwouldhavenoalternativebutissueaastatementprohibitingAmeri­canshipmentsRussiaviaJapanesewaters.However,AmbassadorOshimawastototomakeitit fromattackingJapan,JapancouldcaptureSovietshipments.TheForeignMinistermadeitclearAmbassadorOshimathatifGermanynotnotagreetotothislastclause,theywouldwould "87IV,846. "8"IV,848. "92851."93IV,IV,852.213 



(i) Japanese-Manchukuoan Relations

414. Japan is Concerned with Mongolian Uprisings

authorities wishing to expand and enlighten the Northwest and Outer Mongolian information
network, had decided to hold a round-table discussion with the chief officials. 994

Apparently the many Mongolian border incidents, which Japan believed to be sponsored by

of the fact that Russian armies, 'on the pretext of quelling and controlling future uprisings in
Inner Mongolia very close to Japanese-controlled Manchukuo, planned to occupy the areas
under dispute. According to Japan's interpretation, this would be but a stepping-stone to

area.995

Later, on November 28, Mr. Yoshitomi at Hsinking requested that December 30 be sched-

uled for a conference in order that an understanding might be reached with Manchukuoan
officials in regard to expenses and plans for "enlightenment."996

415. Manchukuoan Border Incidents Cause Increasing Concern in Tokyo
Meanwhile, on October 29, the Japanese Minister in Hsinking had reported that a Japanese

According to the Hsinking Minister, Soviet propagandists had been publicizing the incident in
an attempt to impress Great Britain and the United States, while Japan, on the other hand,
intended to minimize the whole incident and merely lodge a formal complaint in Moscow.997

Soon after this event, another incident involving a Japanese scout plane caused further con-
cern in Tokyo and Hsinking, for Manchukuo had taken upon itself negotiations with Russian
authorities and thereby had confused the issue.998416.isin

Yoshihide Kiyono, arrested as a member of the Communist Party in Hsinking, submitted a
written confession to the Japanese officials. From the document, Tokyo learned, on November
4, 1941, that the representative of the Japanese Communist party, Kenzo Yamamoto, was
established at the Communist office in Khabarovsk, a Soviet city near the northeast border
of Manchukuo; and from this office, through the Communist office in Shanghai, the Comin-

Japanese Communist Party", instigated by Mr. Yamamoto, organized the Communist Party

in Manchukuo and planned a union with the Chinese communists. From the information

the Western Division of the Kyowa Kai, including even the Leftist elements in Northern and
Central China.999
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTC-JAPANESEDIPLOMATICACITIVITIESTHROUGHOUTTHEWORLD 
OnOctober20,1941,aretransmitteddispatchadvisedTokyothatTaiyuangovernment organizedMongolianCommunists,wereprecipitatingalarmintheJapaneseCapital,inview RussianmachinationswiththeMohammedanarmiesinInnerMongoliaandintheWingsia borderpatrolhadbeenattackedonOctober23byRussiantroops"clearlywithintheManchu­kuoanborder".Japanesetroopsreturnedthefire,andtheirLieutenantinchargewaskilled. 

JapanConcernedwithCommunistActivitiesManchukuoandChina 
terncarriedoutitsCommunistprograminJapan.The"CommitteeforReconstructingthe gatheredfromtheconfession,themilitarypolicewereabletoarrestanumberofpersonsinHsinking.FromthesesuspectsitwaslearnedthattheCommunistsweretobeunitedthrough 



clares

issue involving war. From Japan's point of view, which the Minister at Hsinking conveyed

800,000 as against 1,000,000 Soviet troops-to wage a successful attack on Russia's eastern
border. In addition, the vast Far Eastern area suffered a temperature of about forty degrees

ister was certain that Japan, in view of the present activities with regard to the China Incident,wasnottoan
It was obvious to the Japanese Minister that Russia would not endeavor to antagonize Japan

in view of its western frontier activities,lOoo and also, according to a dispatch received by theinon6,
Leningrad to Moscow by air, which seemed to prove that Russia lacked crack reserve units.1001418.tobeto

According to a Tokyo circular intercepted in transmission November 11, 1941, Japan was

the Japanese request that the shipping of United States plane gas to Vladivostok be reconsid-
ered and since Russia had chosen to ignore the fact that their floating mines had been found in
the Japan Sea. It was also learned that Russia was transferring its Mongolian border troops to

were fighting in Moscow. This premise coincided with the recently inaugurated Russian policy
of relaxing vigil along the Mongolian-Manchukuoan border since the Soviet Union did not
believe that Japan intended to attack them in the east. 1002

419. Japan Questions Manchukuo's Motives in Cancelling Visas
Apparently without Japan's knowledge, Manchukuo had suspended issuing all entrance and

exit visas to Third Power nationals and was cancelling those already in existence effective
November 9, 1941.1003allbutthatthisbeOn19a
itinerary beforehand. 1006
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417.JapanandRussiaEquallyUnpreparedforWarAgainstEachOther,MinisteratHsinkingDe-strongenoughattemptall-outblitzagainsttheSoviet.Vice-Chief,GeneralStaffTokyoNovembertheRedArmywastransportingtroopsfromRussiaThoughtMovingBorderTroopsWesternFrontier 
visasrestrictionwouldremovedbyNovember30,1941.1004NovemberTokyooriginatedrequestthatthenewManchukuoanorderbesuspended 

Despitethesporadicborderconflicts,neitherJapannorRussiawaseagertopursueany toAmbassadorKurusuonNovember6,1941,theKwantungArmyhadinsufficientmen-belowzeroforone-thirdoftheyear.Railroadswerescarce,communicationlinespoor,andtherecouldbenodoubtbutthatsuchwar,ifundertaken,wouldlastaalongtime.TheMin­convincedthatRussiawasassuminga"stallpolicy"sincenoconclusionhadbeenreachedon theWesternfrontier,asvariousreportsindicatedthatEastAsiaandMongolianRussiantroops OnNovember17replytoJapan'squestioningthismove,JapaneseMinisterHsin­kingrevealedthatthetheKantoArmyinininManchukuohadhadaveryspecialreasonforcancelling specialcaseNorwegianswhodesiredreturnhomeaboardanAmericanshipleavingShanghaiininnearfuture.1005ByDecember5

HsinkingvisashadbeenissuedthethethethreethreementotototravelbywayofofShanhaikwan,onconditionthatthattheyreportedreportedtheir 1000859.1001IV,IV,860. 1003IV,862. 100'IV,864. 



been adopted regarding the treatment of British and American nationals in Manchukuo in the

persons to be interned in Manchukuo there were 339 British Nationals and eighty-one Ameri-
can citizens of which consular officials and Catholic Missionaries were to be given preferential

chuli and those leaving Shanghai would be released in Dairen.lo07

chukuo would 'follow upon the outbreak of war:

Policy

"When Japan enters a war, Manchukuo for the time being shall not enter it because of Manchukuo's relation

to Japan and her policy. Manchukuo shall treat Great Britain, the United States and Netherlands Indies as
enemy countries, and shall take measures to that end."

Specifically, Manchukuo would not recognize diplomatic representatives of the belligerent
opponents and the use of code telegrams and short-wave radio sets would be prohibited to them.

Manchukuo was to disregard any request addressed to a Third Power for protection of their
consulate buildings and the interests of the resident Nationals.

example in taking every precaution not to provoke Soviet Russia. 1008

specified that "England, the United States, and the Netherlands" was to be substituted
whereever "England and the United States" occurred in the text. 1009421.

Reiterating his arguments for continued peace with Russia, again on December 4, Minister
Yoshijiro Umezu in Hsinking stated three problems concerning the Russo-border questionthe
a direct attack on the Soviet Union to preclude the latter's giving bases to the United States;
(b) others advocated passivity and the transference of half of the Kwantung troops southward

the present border forces intact. 1010

422. Japan Asks Renewal of Five- Year Rights to Northern Sakhalin Coal and Oil

barkation and shipment, little mining work had been undertaken by the Japanese during the

Nishi, requested of the Soviet Ambassador in Tokyo that the agrement be extended for anfivefortheof
,008IV,867.

'OO'IV, 868.

,0,oIV,869.

,o12IV,871.

217

420.GovernmentAuthoritiesAgreeonManchukuo'sPolicyintheEventofWareventofwarwithEnglandandtheUnitedStates. 
JapanPondersDispositionofItsManchukuoanArmywhichfacedKwantungArmyCommand:(a)personswithMoscowconnectionswereurging
additionalyears.lOllviouslyissueddispositionenemypeoplenowbeputintoeffect.1012 

OnNovember28,1941,theMinisterinHsinkingadvisedTokyothatcertainmeasureshadThispolicydeclaredallnationalsinternedinHarbin,MukdenChokinshuuntilarrangementscouldmadefortheirtransportationhomeandandthatthatcontrolofanypropertyleftthemwouldwouldbebebeadministeredbybytheManchukuoangovernment.Ofthose treatment.ThosewhoweretoevacuatedRussiawouldbebereleasedthroughthroughMan-OnDecember4,theJapanesegovernmentinconferencedecideduponapolicywhichMan-RegardingSovietRussia,ManchukuowastoobservetheNeutralityPactandfollowJapan's AlaterdispatchonDecember4,1941,changedwordingofthethePolicysomewhatand sincehadshownnosignsofbelligerence;(c)some,feelingRussiaRussiamightconsentfightiftheUnitedStatesurgedwagewaragainstJapan,feltthatthatthatititwasbesttotokeep Furthernegotiations

wereprogressregardtominingManchukuo.In1936Japanhadmadeafive-yearagreementwithwithRussiaRussiaconcerningpetroleumandcoalrightsrightsininininareaNorthernSakhalin;however,becausethethethelackofofoffacilitiesforem-perioduntil1941.OnDecember4,1941,theImperialGovernment,throughViceMinisterOnDecember7,thegovernmentissuedacircularmessagerequestingthatinstructionspre­'007IV,866. lOllIV,870. 



(j) Japanese-Italian Relationsto
In direct opposition to the German policy of promoting aggressive action on the part of Japan

Zenbei Horikiri, on October 18, 1941, the Nipponese would be doing an outstanding service for

dicted that as soon as Moscow collapsed, Germany, as well as Italy, would expect Japan's

assistance in crushing the Soviet Union. 1013

424. Italy Disapproves Japan's Dissemination of British Propaganda
Nevertheless, some Italian circles were accusing Japan of disseminating camouflaged Brit-

ish propaganda within its borders. Director General Prunas of the Transoceania Bureau, Italian

plained that Japan had been prohibiting the distribution of propaganda printed by belligerent
countries and that it had been freely disseminating British material transmitted via the Uni-
ted States. The Director General asked Mr. Yoshiro Ando to insist that Japan take immediatetoa425.
22, 1941, he must have learned something of Italy's uninformed position regarding the Japa-

the Count, having no recent knowledge of the Japanese-American negotiations, was not in a

after visiting Chancellor Hitler the following day, he would be able to discuss the situation
more intelligently. 1015

During the second week in November, rumors were afloat that Premier Mussolini had de-
parted for an interview with Hitler because of anxiety over recent Mediterranean develop-
ments.1016426.toas
Japanese publicity there. Ambassador Horikiri in a dispatch on November 12, 1941, desired
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTC-JAPANESEDIPLOMATICACTIVITIESTHROUGHOUTTHEWORLD423.ItalyUrgesJapanRestrainUnitedStatesfromParticipationintheWar 
erationprogramoffavoringAxispropaganda.IOUAmbassadorHorikiriFindsCountCianoUninformedonJapanese-AmericanNegotiations
AmbassadorHorikiriUrgesJapanPublishMoreItalianPropagandaEventhough,DirectorGeneralPrunashadobjectedonOctober20,1017Japanwasrestrict-

againstAmerica,variousItalianorganizationspublicationswereurgingthatJapan'sbestcourselayinpreventionhostilitiesbetweenAxispartnersandandAmerica.AccordingtoPresidentAloisithethetheSocietyFriendsofofofofJapan,whospokewithJapaneseAmbassador, ItalyiftheycouldrestrainUnitedStatesfromparticipationwar.Onthethetheotherhand,heurgedthatitwouldsoonbetimelyforJapanstrikeatRussiaordertotofulfillitsImperialdreamofaco-prosperitysphereinininEastAsia.PresidentAloisipre-ForeignOffice,whenheconferredwithSecretaryYoshiroAndoonOctober20,1941,com­action,towhichMr.Andocounteredthathisgovernmentalreadyhadgivenspecialconsid-WhenAmbassadorHorikiritalkedwithForeignMinisterCountGaleazzoCianoonOctober nese-Americannegotiations.MterhearingForeignMinister'swishesthethenewOctoberCabinetmightincreaseJapanese-Italiansolidarity,Ambassador

Horikiriwasadvisedthatthat positiontojudgetheirmeritonewayortheother.TheItalianForeignMinisterpromisedthat ingAxispropaganda,itappearedthatItaly,onotherhand,wasgivingthethegreenlightto 



In an attempt to persuade Italy to transport Japanese diplomatic material to South America

Italian mail and parcels to South America free of charge and under Japanese seals; and had

edged the message on November 1.1019On17,
transportation from Rio de Janeiro to Japan. 1020

428. Japanese Officials Discuss Trade Relations with Italy

matic channels, but on October 24 Foreign Minister Togo notified Ambassador Horikiri of

details in regard to the settlement of claims between Italian subjects and the East Asia Devel-

opment Company.1021 During the following month the completion of a Japanese order for the

because of a transfer of the manufacturing companies.1O22Italian naval circles in Shanghai
requested permission to ship tin scrap to Italy via Japan on the Kobe Maru, and according toa5,to
429. Ando Rebukes Gayda for Attempting to Utilize Japan in Axis Machinations

Since Virginio Gayda, Editor of "Gionnale d'!talia" had taken the position through his pub-
lication that Japan should be the "sole arbiter of her destiny", he had refrained from pub-
lishing any persuasive articles referring to Japan's attitude; but Mr. Ando had surmised from
a private conversation with him that Gayda personally favored Japan's adoption of a positive
military program against the Anglo-Saxon countries.Ithadbytoisaoldofandiswilltheweas

for several years."

1O["IV, 877.

lo2°IV,878.

[O"IV, 880.

IO23IV, 881.

theHomeOfficetosendasmuchinformationonJapanandEastAsiaaswasconvenient.HeconveyedapointmadebytheItalianMinisterofPropaganda,AlessandroPavolini,onNo­vember3,thatalthoughItalianswereprohibitedfromdiscussingthepoliticalsituationwith­inJapan,theywerenotbeingallowedtoloseinterestinJapanese-Italianrelations.1O1B427.JapanDesiresItalianReciprocityinAirTransportationtoSouthAmerica
freeofcharge,TokyohadsaidinapreviousmessagethatcurrentlyJapanwashandlingall askedforreciprocaltreatmentforJapanesemailfromItalytoRiodeJaneiro.Romeacknowl- NovemberAmbassadorHorikiriagaincomplained;hehadbeenunabletoforwardhis
travelrecordandlargeamountsofothercorrespondence.NowhewishedtosendthesetoRiodeJaneirobyItalianairmail.HeaskedwhetherornotTokyohadmadearrangementsforits Japanese-Italiantraderelationswereseldommentionedindispatchessentthroughdiplo­210millimetrehowitzeroccasionedadispatchfromAmbassadorHorikiritotheViceMinisterofWarinTokyo,inwhichhestatedthathisofficewasnegotiatingarevisioninthecontracts 

dispatchdatedDecember1941,theJapaneseplannedgrantthisrequest.1023beengenerallyacceptedbothGaydaandAndowhileconferringthat:"Thispresentwar,Japaneseeffortsthecontrarynotwithstanding,becomingrevolutionarywaragainsttheorderBritishAmericanImperialism.Thewargraduallyspreading,anditisinevitablethatiteven­tuallyengulfwholeworld.Hence,maywellreconcileourselvestothefactofthewar'sbeingprolonged 
[OlBIV,876. 1021IV,879. 



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
Confiding that he had been considering the proposed Axis-sponsored Federation of States

to be set up after the war, Editor Gayda explained that he believed Germany would take the
leadershipintheSouthandBalkanPeninsulaandwithItaly'scooperationwouldbeableto

solve all European problems.

AtthispointMr.AndohadtakentheopportunitytodiscouragesomeItaliansintheir

belief that Japan could solve all of her problems merely by advancing southward, explaining

thatJapanwasnotacountrytomoverashly,anditwouldbewiseiftheotherAxispartners

realized that the Imperial Japanese government could not be utilized unconditionally fortheirownprivatebenefits.1024
430. Ambassador Horikiri Explains Italian Censorship of Japanese Mail

In a routine message to Tokyo on November 24, Ambassador Horikiri informed Foreign

MinisterTogoofthesystemofItaliancensorshipwhichwasapplicabletoJapanesemail,explainingthatordinaryJapanesemailwasnotreceivinganypreferentialtreatmentbutthat

the official mail of his office was never touched. Picture postcards had been forbidden to go
outfromthecountryandforeignnewspapersandmagazineshadbeenforbiddenimportation.Outgoingmailwasmorestrictlycensoredthanincoming.1025
431. The Japanese Ambassador Reveals Revolutionary Plot in India

AlthoughthefirstpartofamessagetransmittedtoTokyoonNovember22,1941isnot

available, the second section reveals enough information so that the general outline of a
revolutionaryplotforIndiacanberecognized.Inordertoinitiatetheplot,whichwasbeing

undertaken in expectation of a rupture in British relations, Ambassador Horikiri explained
that secret radio propaganda, pamphlets distributed by air, and distribution of propaganda
by the Hindus themselves would be the most effective means of promulgation. Russia
had been of aid from a standpoint of propaganda technique, and Germany had assisted
financially.

TheAmbassadorthenrevealedthatlargenumbersofAxisagentswerefollowinginstruc-tionsinIndiaaswellasinNorthandSouthAmerica.TheAxiswasalsofindingadherentsfromamongHinduprisonersofwar,whowouldbereturnedtoIndiaasAxisemployees.1026
Oneoftheoutstandingagents,Mr.Shiedai,aleaderintheHindustanGaderu1027party,wasbeingutilizedbytheAxisinmachinationstowardIndia.Thisagent,whoconferredwithAmbassadorHorikiriinRomeonDecember1,wasscheduledtoadministerradiopropagandaactivities.InhisfirstbroadcastshesaidinsubstancethatAsiastoodinthe"shadowofJapan'sleadership",thatsincefreedomforIndiawasthebasisofJapan'sfinalvictory,Japanwouldrestoreherlostfreedom.HealsotoldtheIndianpeoplethatJapanwasnotmotivatedbypoliticalambitionstowardIndia,butwishedtoworkwithherpeopleinacloseeconomicandculturalrelationship.ShiedaiwasinchargeoftheEuropeanAreaandthenamesandaddressesofagentsinShanghaiandFrenchIndo-ChinacouldbesecuredfromhismeninSanFranciscoandBuenos

Aires. 1028

AlsoinvolvedinespionageactivitieswasaPuRan-Lingh,amemberoftheGadarPartyat

Gadar Ashram, in San Francisco. In the message from Ambassador Horikiri to San Francisco

wereinstructionstoorganize"ourcomradesinLithuania,Georgia,Manila,Singapore,Siam,

Indo-China, etc." .1029
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consider carefully the new Japanese proposal toward a successful culmination of Japanese-
American negotiations. 1030

Ambassador Horikiri was also garnering information from another Papal representative,

tion had become quite delicate since Japan so definitely stood in the way of United States-
supported British and Russian victories. In addition, many Americans apparently felt that
the Japanese had demanded concessions in direct opposition to American ideals and that,
by doing so, had encroached upon American interests and honor. Cicognani also said that
there were reports and difficulties in the negotiations of late had "constrained the Interven-
tionist faction headed by the President and strengthened the position of the Isolationists." 1031

the church's support of the Tripartite Alliance, it would extensively advance Catholicism

United States representative to the Vatican, Harold Tittman, claimed that Japanese and

impossible. Pope Pius XII, however, had failed to clarify his position in this matter by the
end of November. 1032433.Theisby

In pursuit of Catholic support for the Tripartite Alliance, German officials had notified the

Germany and Italy intended to assist the Arabs in overthrowing English domination and in

6, 1941 Mr. Harold Tittman, American representative to the Vatican, had held a secret inter-

ty would be endangered should the Arab race, now being encouraged by Germany and Italy,
through the Grand Mufti attain a superior position. Mr. Tittman declared that the democra-

cies should advocate a status quo for the Arab world and that the other peoples of the world
should live together in harmony and justice. Asking whether His Holiness would countenance
such a scheme as this on the part of Germany and Italy, Mr. Tittman had concluded that he

actually became a menace to Christianity, he was uninterested in the matter. 1034

these agencies. 1035

!O3lIV,890.
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432.TheCatholicChurchatRomeSeekstoForestallBreachinJapanese-AmericanRelations 
CatholicChurchUnmovedArabicSituationforestallingAmericanstrategythere.1033 

AmongvariousorganizationswithinItalyseekingforestallabreachinJapanese-relationswasRomanCatholicChurch.AmbassadorHorikiribeenadvisedPopePiusXIIsecretlyconferredwithAmericanAmericanenvoy,Mr.HaroldTittman,onNovember20,atwhichtimethethethethePontiffhadhadhadaskedthatthatPresidentRooseveltbeurgedtoto Msgr.CicognaniinWashington,whocommenteduponnegotiations,sayingthatthethesitua-TheCatholicChurchwastorndiversesympathies.Pro-Fascistfactionsclaimedthatbyby throughoutNearandFarEast.Onotherhand,someleaders,amongthemthethethe SpanishadherencetoAxismadethethecurrentJapanese-Americannegotiationsvirtually VaticanbyNovember26,1941,thatitwouldwiseforPopePiustobeberepresentedatconferencesbetweenItalian,German,Japanese,TurkishPalestineofficials,whowereconcernedwithsetupofArabiaandandthetheMiddleEastinpostwarEuropeanorganization.The

JapanesehadreceivedreportspreviousthistimewithregardArabicsituationasiteffectedthetheChristianworld.AccordingtototoanintelligencereportfromRomeonNovember viewwithPopeonNovember4.Attime,thetherepresentativehadarguedthatthatChristiani­hopedHisHolinesswouldlodgeaprotest.ThePopehadansweredthatuntiltheArabrace "AccordingadispatchfromRomeonDecember6,ItalianhadalreadymaderepresentationstotoTurkishgovernmentgovernmentforestablishmentunnamedorganizations.Noadditionalinformationwassuppliedatthistimeregardingthethethethenatureofof IO3OIV,889. 1033IV,892. 



Ambassador Horikiri complained of weaknesses in the Japanese radio transmissions to

become progressively weaker, and again Ambassador Horikiri wired Tokyo saying, in view

casts in three wave lengths be initiated. 1037twoofOn29,totoinJLT
on these broadcasts, speaking rapidly in low tones and swallowing the ends of his words,be
news would be given before fading out should occur and urged that the high priority releases
be repeated at the end of each broadcast. In addition, he suggested patriotic music be played
as an introduction to the broadcast. 1040of20
435. Ambassador Horikiri Obtains Information Concerning Italian Relations with Croatia, France,
and Russia

According to a conversation reported by a member of Ambassador Horikiri's staff in Rome,
Italy had very little confidence in the Croatian government despite the apparent friendliness

scarce and facilities meager for the transportation of the only plentiful product, timber.The
The Japanese Ambassador informed Foreign Minister Togo that despite the difficulties

their relations with the French, they expected the use of the Tunis army transportation
facilities to increase as a result ofWeygand's elimination. 1043

Japan's custody of Italian property in Russia was recognized by the Soviet Union in a
memorandum sent to Lt. Gen. Yoshitsugu Tatekawa, Japanese Ambassador in Moscow.thisto
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR434.AmbassadorHorikiriComplainsofWeaknessesinJapaneseRadioTransmissionstoRome
daysimpossiblereception.1039November1941AmbassadorHorikirireportedTokyothatoftheJapaneselanguageradiobroadcastsEuroperecentdays,wasnotheardatallwhileJVWcouldbeheardOfficemightmissingsomeimportantnewsreleases.suggestionNovemberthatJapaninitiatesimultaneousbroadcasts.1041invadingItaliantroopshadbeenbesetwithcontinualassasinations.1042TokyoforwardedinformationAmbassadorHorikirionDecember3,1941.1044 

Rome,andNovember8heaskedthatJUPwavelengthbeimmediately.l036ThestationJUO(P)waschangedchangedononthethetwentieth.MeanwhilesensitivityofJAPhad thepresentstateofofinternationalaffairs,hefeltRomebeingadequatelyinformedandonewavelengthwaswasnotnotsufficient.Hethenurgedthatthatthatconcurrentbroad-ByNovember27,accordingtoaBerlin-to-Tokyotransmission,JUObeenimproved,butofJAPremainedpoor;suggestionmadethattwobroad­castsimultaneously.l03BinRomeontwenty-seventh,sensitivitysensitivityreportedlyexcellentandandthethethethethecompleteroutinemessagewaswaswasreceived.However,However,thissuccesshadhadfollowed fairlywellwithsomeexceptions.Inaddition,hecomplainedthattheJapaneseannouncer wasinterferingwithgoodreception.AgainAmbassadorHorikiricautionedthattheRome Tocorrectsituationhesuggestednewannouncerselectedwhoseenunciationwasofaahighquality,and

alsonewsbebebroadcastinsuchorderthatthatthatthethemostimportant On5,1941,Ambassadorreportedagainthatgeneralintelligencebroad­casthadbeenunintelligibleforDecemberDecember2,3and5.Hetheninquiredastothethetheoutcomeofhisbetweenthetwo.TheeconomicsituationinCroatiawasreportedlycriticalwithfoodsupplies supply,ItalianswereoptimisticthethefinaloutcomeofofoftheirarmiesinLibya.Asfor



Ando, was scheduled to confer with Mussolini and Count Ciano at 10:30 a.m. of that day. 1045

Ambassador Horikiri opened the discussion by reviewing Japanese-American develop-

ments. Stating that he had been carefully watching the outcome of the negotiations,

Premier Mussolini was not surprised, "in view of the utter bullheadedness of the United

States and the meddlesome nature of President Roosevelt", that the negotiations had dead-

Axis, it would stumble on Japanese loyalty.

Italy endorsed Japan's dream of new order in East Asia, the Premier confided, and proceeded

explained that Italy would give every military aid in checking the British navy in the
Mediterranean. In order to accomplish this, Mussolini revealed that a German-Italian air
force bloc had been discussed.

replied that Italy "was obligated to participate under the terms of the Tripartite Pact. Since

this point."IO46

437. Ambassador Horikiri Learns of Italian Position in Regard to the War with the United States

separate declarations between Germany-Japan and Italy-Japan or a joint declaration were

Japanese decisions. 1050

Shortly before December 8, 1941 the Japanese Vice Consul Uyama consulted the Italian

Consul General in Shanghai in regard to Japanese invasion plans and Italian military

aid but specified that the Italian need for gasoline would have to be supplied. 1051
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436.AmbassadorHorikiriandSecretaryAndoConferwithMussoliniandCountCiano
OnDecember3,1941AmbassadorHorikiridivulgedthathe,accompaniedbySecretary locked.HebelievedoneaimsUnitedStateswasmakeFarEastitsowneconomicsphereofofofinfluencebutcontendedthatthatifitsoughttotoseparateJapanandthethethethe todiscussoutbreakofwarbetweenJapanandthetheUnitedStates,atwhichtimehe WhenaskedoutrightwhatItalywoulddouponJapan'sdeclarationofwar,Mussolini alsobeobligedfollowsuit,wewouldwouldliketotoconferwithGermanyGermanyon AfterreceivingwireForeignMinisterTogoonDecember2whichstatedcertainpartofthetreatyunderdiscussionwasbekeptsecretItaly,1048AmbassadorHorikirireportedtotoTokyoaaaconfidentialreportfromfromfromBerlinhaddisclosedthatthatthateither desirable.1O49ApparentlytheItaliangovernmentlittleconcernedastoitsownpartthesenegotiations.It

waswastakenforgrantedthatItalywouldfallininlinewithGerman-cooperationincontrollingthesituation.TheItalianrepresentativepromisedhiscountry's 10'"IV,907. 1051IV,910.224 



(k) Japanese-French Relationsto
Japanese officials in Vichy conferred on October 17, 1941 with Mr. Arnald of the French
Foreign Office. In a previous dispatch transmitted from Tokyo on October 16, 1941, Foreign
Minister Toijiro Toyoda had warned that French authorities might use the lifting of the
Shanghai export embargo as an excuse for delaying negotiations for the defrayment of military

materials in Shanghai with it. For this reason the French official was adamant in his refusal
to pay the military expenses for September and October in piastres. Mr. Arnald said, how-

ofthe export embargo in Shanghai. 1052

439. Japan Instructs Ambassador to Procure Export Permit by October 24,1941
Because of difficulty in securing permits to export 3,000 tons of goods from Saigon, the

Japanese government decided for the time being to load a vessel in the port with other pro-t~theby
440. Japan Protests Movement of Troops into Unfortified Zone

In a dispatch from Foreign Minister Shigenori Togo to Saigon on October 20, 1941, Japan
argued that Thailand's reinforcement of an area established as an unfortified zone between
French Indo-China and Thailand, violated the Joint Defense agreement, as well as the
Mekong agreement between Thailand and French Indo-China. Should French Indo-Chinese
authorities approve, since no special prohibitions were stipulated, the Japanese Minister
in Saigon was instructed to deal with the matter as he thought best. 1054

441. Tokyo Plans to Land Planes in Indo-Chinese Waters

or whether they should confer with the Colonial government in regard to the landing of

formulated, and for this reason an answer was requested immediately. 1055

442. Foreign Minister Togo Applies Pressure in Shanghai by Limiting Exportations
In a dispatch of October 24, 1941 from Foreign Minister Togo to Vichy and Hanoi, the origin

of the Shanghai permit system was explained, and instructions given for further procedure

to combat higher prices set by French Indo-Chinese authorities on coal, zinc, and rice.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTC-JAPANESEDIPLOMATICACTIVITIESTHROUGHOUTTHEWORLD438.Mr.ArnaldRefusesMakeMilitaryExpensePaymentinPiastres 
export3,000tonsoffreightOctober24,1941.1053 

AttemptingtoprocuretheJapaneseoccupationexpensesinpiastresfromFrance, expenses.IndiscussionofOctober17Mr.ArnaldprotestedthatFrenchusedthethetheChinesemoneyorpiastrestopaytheirofficialsinChinaandwereconsideringbuying ever,thathehadinstructionstoconferwithFrenchAmbassadorArseneHenrionthelifting ducts.ItwasaskedinthisdispatchofOctober20,1941,however,thatpermissionbesecured WhetherJapanesegovernmentshouldobtainpermissionfromthetheVichyauthorities JapaneseSaigonwaterswasdiscussedininadispatchtransmittedonOctober20,1941Vichy.ForeignMinisterTogoadvisedthatplanstotolandtheplanesplaneswerealready intreatingthissubject.Thepermitsystemwasdescribedasaretaliatorymeasuredesigned 



Unless the Colonial official amended their attitude in this matter, Japan could not satisfy
them on the Shanghai permit system, and would, furthermore, be forced to prohibit any
exports leaving Japan for French Indo-China. Politically, this uncooperative attitude on the

importation of Japanese goods, Japan would cooperate in making payments for rubber. In
this way, the exportation of Japanese goods would be effected without obstructions, and the
Shanghai permit system would be managed in a way favorable to French Indo-China. 1056

443. Japan Threatens Action Unless French Agree to Payment of Military Expenses
Warning that the present French Indo-China resistance was becoming very annoying to

the Japanese, the Foreign Minister said that if authorities went one step further, an irremedi-

expense's almost had been reached, French officials had advanced the question of the Shanghai
permit system, and consequently refused to pay the piastres necessary. Since the Japanese

in separate negotiations. 1057444.toto
sections of South China had been placed on an embargo list as early as April 7, 1941 for the

of assets by the United States, Britain and the Netherlands, Japan had restricted business
dealings with foreigners and had instituted an export license system having to do with four-

United States, Britain and Netherlands, Japan had advanced the policy of issuing as manyasfor
Dealers proceeding on the assumption that the license system would sooner or later be

sudden increase in the outflow of these articles there was danger that large quantities of

was the tendency on the part of French Indo-China and the Netherlands East Indies to

Therefore, Japan had decided to extend the embargo to apply to all shipments scheduled for
the unoccupied areas in China, and had further added cotton goods and cotton cloth to the
list of articles coming under the license system. Moreover, of late Japan had been followingtheoftheofto,.-

J

445. Consul Hayashi Investij!ates Pro-Japanese Party Members

In answer to an inquiry concerning a political party in Hanoi, Consul (?) Hayashi on

arrested by French Indo-Chinese authorities and this resulted in the loss of the guiding
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TokyoDecreesFurtherExportRestrictionsCombatFreezingofAssetsshipmentFrenchIndo-China,Burma,HongKong,Kwangchow-Wan,MacaoandunoccupiedlicensespossiblearticlesflowingfromJapanandChinatoFrenchIndo-China.1058policyminimizingnumberlicense"i~'>~ed.FrenchIndo-China.1059 

partofColonialauthoritiesmakesomepoliticalmeasuresinevitable.Inoffer­ingtermsfornegotiations,ForeignMinisterTogodeclaredthatifFrenchFrenchwouldwouldallowthethe ablesituationwouldensue.Attimewhenanagreementonthethepaymentofmilitary concernedwerebecomingangry,ForeignMinisterTogoaskedthatthetwomattersbesettled Itwasfurtherpointedoutatthistimethattwenty-nineimportantitemsdestinedforpurposestoppingflowofofmaterialstoChiang.Asaretaliatorymeasureafterthethefreezing teenitemsofimportantmaterials.Becausetpismeasurewasaimedprincipallyattheappliedthembegantotocornermarketonthreadsandcottoncottongoods.Inviewofthethe materialswerereachingChiangbywayofunoccupiedareasinChina.Addedtothisdanger purchasefromChiangthematerialsforwhichtheyhadbeen

dependinguponJapan. 25,1941sentanexplanatorywiretoTokyo.Thepoliticalparty,DAIETUTO,formedinJuly1940,aboutonehundredfiftyactivemembers,chiefofofwhomwerenews­papermen.DuringSeptemberandandOctoberOctobermorethanseventypartymembershadhadbeen lOS'IV,919.226 
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partyelements.Sincetheparty'sobjectivewastojoinwiththeJapan-Manchukuo-Chinabloc,itsmemberswererelyingonJapanesemilitaryforcestoaidinattainingthisgoal.Up

to this time, the Japanese army, navy and Sumida organizations had had no connection with

thisparty.Therumors,however,thattheleaderofthepartywasundertheprotectionoftheJapanesemilitarywerebeinginvestigated.1060
446. Special Committee Receives Codes

ArequestforoneortwosimplecodesandacodeaddressbookfortheuseoftheNaturalResourcesInvestigatingCommissionwaswiredtoTokyofromHanoionOctober25,1941.

Having relied on the Consulate General for the sending and. receiving of messages, the

commission found this arrangement inconvenient since the consulate was some distance

away. 1061

OnOctober27,1941ForeignMinisterTogoansweredthatonecopyeachoffiveJapanesecodeswerebeingbroughtbyAmbassadorKenkichiYoshizawa'sparty,whichwasleavingKobeonOctober31,1941.TheSurveyCommission,uponreceivingthecodes,wasaskedtodispatchtheonewordSTUZA,andtheConsulinHanoiwasrequestedtoobtainareceiptforthecodes.Itgoeswithoutsaying,ForeignMinisterTogoadded,thatallwiresconcerning

matters of a secret nature should continue to be sent through the Consulate. 1062447.TokyoInstructsKatoToRequestOnlyPlaneLandingSpace
InstructionsthatAmbassadorSotomatsuKatoinVichylimithisrequeststothedemand

for landing places for hydroplanes near Saigon were sent on October 27, 1941. The matter of
another subject was not to be discussed until it was officially presented during the negotia-
tions which were scheduled to begin in January of 1942. Apart from the demand for hydro--planelandingspace,theAmbassadorwastomaintainsilenceandwatchdevelopments.1063
448. Hanoi Consul to ~egotiate for Plane Landings Independently

TheJapaneseConsulinHanoi,however,wasinstructedtonegotiateindependentlyin

regard to air connections on the Saigon-Bangkok airline. Although Japan was negotiating
withtheFrenchgovernmentinVichyinthisrespect,itwasnecessarytomeetemergency

requirements before the settlement of formal negotiations. 1064449.GovernmentOfficialsareListedasDangeroustoFrance-JapaneseCooperationOnOctober28,1941ForeignMinisterTogolearnedthataMr.Wagnerhadmadeadetailed
reporttoFrenchgovernmentcirclesregardingfuturepropagandaandelementswhichwere

endangering France-Japanese cooperation. When Colonial Minister Platon was summoned,
he concurred, and pointed out that there were DeGaullist inclinations within the Governor
Generalcy.Tocompletelyextirpateinjuriouselements,MinisterPlatonwouldsoonsend

several persons to French Indo-China to investigate. Names on the lists of injurious elements

sofarwereGeorgeGautierandDeLaSalleoftheGovernorGeneralcy;theChiefof

Education and Propaganda Department, Albert Charton; Governmental Office Representative,Montevani;andnewspaperman,SamuelDeSacy.l065
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450. Frenchman Intercedes in Behalf of Japan
It was added, in a separate dispatch to Hanoi and Vichy, that a Frenchman by the name of

Mr. Wagner, who was a contributor to L'Illustration and who was a close friend and companion

the matter with influential Vichy officials. Traveling by way of Brazil, Mr. Wagner was

Wagner's actions whenever the occasion warranted. 1066451.to
traveling to French Indo-China, Foreign Minister Togo was resolved to send the whole

troop according to schedule. However, since he preferred that French officials issue the
desired instructions regarding the Special Emissary and his troupe, he asked that they be
requested once again. 1067

too great, this fact might result in provoking ill-feelings among the French Indo-China
people. Since the agreement had already been effected regarding the dispatching of the

there should be any complaint on the subject. The Vice-Minister reiterated that the com-
mission was designed to bring about cooperation between Japan and French Indo-China,
in industrial and economic matters, and would not include one single military man. In
answering, the French Ambassador repeated only that his instructions were to limit the

sailing of Special Emissary and his troupe, it was intended that the entire party should
leave the evening of October 30, 1941 without visas, although the Japanese Ambassador was
directed to apply pressure to secure them.1068

452. Japan Reiterates Threat to Secure Military Expenses

Retransmitting to Vichy on October 28, 1941, a dispatch from Mr. Uchiyama, Foreign

September and October occupation expenses. Since the September installment of the

military expenses had not been forthcoming and the French government continued to make

excuses, Minister Uchiyama had warned the Secretary of Foreign Affairs in Hanoi on October

however, faced with such threats of military action, had promised to answer, following
instructions from Vichy. 1069

expenses to be settled in a lump sum. Vichy also ordered the French Indo-China officials

to undertake an investigation in cooperation with the French military officials. Japan,

IO66IV, 926.

!O6'IV, 927.
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ofMr.AndreRobanandMarshallPetain,desiredthatthetroubleoverFrenchIndo-Chinabesettledassoonaspossible.ForthisreasonJapanwassendinghimtoFrancetodiscuss scheduledtostopinHanoibythemiddleofNovember,wherehewastobemetandassistedinwhateverwaypossible.Furthermore,theForeignMinisteraskedthathebeinformedof TogoPlansSendEmissaryGroupDespiteVisaProcurementDifficulty
RegardlessofthefactthattheFrenchAmbassadortoTokyo,Mr.ArseneHenri,refusedonordersfromVichytocooperateinissuingvisasfortheJapaneseinvestigatingcommission TheVice-MinisterhadbeeninformedonOctober28,1941,whenheconferredwithAmbassadorHenri,thatifthenumberofpersonnelaccompanyingtheSpecialEmissarywere SpecialEmissary,TheVice-MinisterrepliedthatthequestionoftheaccompanyingpersonnelwasamatterfortheJapanesetodecideandthatitwasdifficulttounderstandwhy numberofvisastoapproximatelytwenty.Incasevisaswerenotissuedintimeforthe 

-

MinisterTogorelayedfurtherinformationconcerningnegotiationsforthepaymentof 22,1941,thattheJapanesearmywouldbeforcedtoact.TheSecretaryofGeneralAffairs, Onthissameday,October28,1941,theJapaneseMinisterinVichywiredtheJapaneseForeignMinisterthatMr.ArnaldhaddirectedtheNovemberandDecemberrunning 106"IV,929.228 



therefore, must take the proper measures to explain the evident necessity of funds, thus
expediting the payment of the expense money. Since such pressure would have to be

the French investigating committee, the Japanese Minister asked that these instructions be
communicated to Japanese officials in French Indo-China. 1070

In an incomplete message of October 28, the Japanese Minister in Vichy informed Tokyo

impossible, and that, moreover, she had decided to reserve 25,000 tons of the French Indo-
China crop for herself, dividing between Germany and Japan the total remainder of thetobeinor453.to

In a later dispatch from Vichy on October 28, 1941, Tokyo was assured that visas would be

issued to all the members of Ambassador Kenkiji Yoshizawa's investigating committee.

wire again to Ambassador Henri in Tokyo so that he would issue visas to all the members. 1072454.to
Referring to wild remarks pertaining to Ambassador Yoshizawa's visit, which were

contained in an Indo-Chinese publication, Foreign Minister Togo declared that as long as such
an uncooperative atmosphere existed at the scene, all efforts to adjust matters in an amicable

suggesting that instructions urging cooperation be sent to the French Indo-China authori-
ties. 1073

455. French Indo-China Remits Occupation Expenses

authorities had agreed to pay the monthly occupation expenses to Japan for November and

payment in a lump sum. 1074Onthedaywasfortheof
In regard to the 66,000,000 piastres which Japan had demanded on France in payment of

supplementary military expenses, the Chief of the General Affairs Bureau in Hanoi had
been advised that Japan had agreed to discuss the disposition of the funds. Included in the
conference would be one person from the French finance ministry, three military officers,andtwo
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
appliedthroughthemilitaryofficialsin.FrenchIndo-China,whowouldbeworkingwith thatFranceagreedtoacceptpaymentingold,incasepaymentinAmericandollarswaspayment,whichwasmadeeitherdollarsgold.1071FrenchAuthoritiesAgreeIssueVisasforEntireYoshizawaGroup

TheAmbassador,toascertainthatsuchinstructionswereclear,askedFrenchofficialsto FranceAccedesJapan'sMilitaryExpensePaymentDemand 
mannerwouldamounttonothing.ItwasfearedthatshouldJapanandFrancefailtomakeasatisfactoryadjustment,thetroopsstationedinFrenchIndo-Chinamightfinallybecomeexasperated,andanunfortunatesituationmightensue.AmbassadorSotomatsuKatoinFrancewastobringthissituationtotheattentionofVice-PremierJeanFrancoisDarlan, OnOctober30,1941,VichyreleasedtheinformationtoitsTokyoofficethatFrench December.ExchangeofdiplomaticnoteshadbeenmadeonOctober28regardingthe 

followingTokyoreportedthattheIndo-Chinabankhadplaced6,000,000piastres
atthedisposaloftheYokohamaSpecieBank.ThisamountincludedtheSeptemberbalanceof1,500,000piastresandtheOctoberallotmentof4,500,000piastres.TheSpecieBank continuingnegotiationsbalance9,500,000piastres.1075technicalexperts.1076 



456. Japanese Officials Arrive at Hanoi

1941.1077

Tokyo learned on this same day that Mr. Haraguchi had left Saigon for Japan and for
this reason could not continue his uncompleted discussions with Mr. Kanji Okura. 1078

Sotomatsu Kato concerning the financial developments. Although the Secretary General
of Affairs in Hanoi had ordered the bank of Indo-China to pay 15,000,000 piastres to Japan,

Minister Uchiyama had asked about the remaining 500,000 piastres. Replying that,

agreed to pay an additional 1,500 piastres if a group of experts met to discuss the disposition

effected, this term had been eliminated. 1079458.
five suitcases, the machines were to be handled as the luggage of Ambassador Yoshizawa.

to Tokyo. 1080

459. French Indo-China Makes Payment in Philippine Dollars

Having been informed of the transaction by the Japanese Minister in Saigon, Foreignon5,toasastheof460.of
France. It was further learned that he was of Jewish extraction and that, in spite of the fact

that he was a <;ontributor to L'Illustration, his local press did not enjoy the confidence of the
government and of the people. Furthermore, Mr. Wagner had been asked to leave French
Indo-Chinese suddenly and on his way to France had stopped off in Japan. In view of these
circumstances, the Japanese Minister suggested that no credence be placed in any intelli-by

'O77IV, 937-938.
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457.JapanDemandsPaymentinFullfromFrenchIndo-China
TokyoForwardsNewCodeMachinesfortheHanoiandSaigonOfficesMinisterTogowiredVichyNovember1941reportthepaymentof9,500,000PhilippineDecemberwellunpaidbalance500,000Philippinedollars.1081InvestigationDiscreditsAidPro-JapaneseFrenchmangencegivenhim.1082 

On4,1941,MinisterUchiyamawiredTokyothatheandSecretaryIto3,whereasVice-ConsulIidahadarrivedarrivedatatHanoiHanoiononNovemberNovemberNovember1,ContinuingpracticeofrelayingVichythedispatcheswhichweredirectedtotohimfromhishisinHanoi,ForeignMinisterMinisterTogoonNovember4,1941wiredAmbassador "Youfellowscertainlylikequibbleoversmallamounts",thepromisedtotowireforfurtherinstructions.TheSecretarySecretaryagainpointedout,however,thatFrancehadhad ofprovisionalexpenses.Hesupposed,however,thatsincethequickpaymenthadbeen notifiedNovember5,1941,thatnewcodemachinesSaigonbyCourierKenHarada,whowaswasreturninghispostKokuryuMaru.Printer6443beingbeingtransportedforthetheHanoiHanoiHanoiOffice,whileprinter80transposertransposer####50werewerewerebesentsentononontotototoSaigon.Containedinfourwoodenboxesandandandand Uponreceipt

ofcodemachinerythetheonewordASADAinplainlanguagewastobewireddollars.ThepaymenthadbeenmadetocovermilitaryexpensesforNovemberandMeanwhileUchiyama,whoinvestigatingrecordMr.Mr.Wagner,wiredonNovember6,1941thatFrenchmanwaswasundoubtedlymixedupinthethethecollapseofof1081942.10.'IV,IV,943. 



In answer to a dispatch from Hanoi suggesting the appointment of a liaison officer for a
province in Indo-China, the Japanese Foreign Minister replied on November 7, 1941 that

would assume the liaison work between the Resources Corps and Japan. Consequently, therewasnoa
Ambassador Plenipotentiary, had been invested with full powers to conduct negotiations in
French Indo-China. Therefore, Ambassador Kato was to arrange to match this by granting
to the Governor General of French Indo-China full powers to negotiate with the Special
Japanese Envoy. 1084

military and naval officials in carrying out the Japanese policy toward French Indo-China.

Indo-China he would supervise matters relating to places selected for joint defense, troop

development of enterprises, and the protection of the economic conditions of the Japanese.

supervision of education and health of Japanese nationals in Indo-China, for the carrying
out of the Japanese policy regarding Chinese in Indo-China and Thailand, and for the
stopping of aid to Chiang Kai-shek.1O85

462. Ambassador Kato Asks for Schedules of Yoshizawa Party Members

According to Ambassador Sotomatsu Kato in Vichy, the party of Ambassador Yoshizawa

which had now arrived in French Indo-China, did not plan to return, and he asked that hebeatofto
In answering this query from Vichy, Foreign Minister Togo revealed that the Economic

hundred and forty-three individuals representing the Agricultural and Forestry Ministry
and the Commercial and Industrial Ministry. Thirteen parties totaling sixty-five persons
would leave French Indo-China about the middle of January, while twelve parties made upoftoin
however, that should any of the parties find it necessary to sail at an earlier time than was
scheduled, their transportation via a mail boat be arranged.1O87
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR461.ForeignMinisterTogoOutlinesDutiesofAmbassadorYoshizawaneedfortheappointmentofseparateliaisonofficer.1085 
informedoncethosewhodidplanreturn.1086eighty-twopersonswerescheduledleaveearlyFebruary.Thesailingdateoftheremain-

AmbassadorYoshizawawouldbeaccompaniedtothatprovincebyarmyandnavymenwho AdispatchtransmittedonthesamedaytoVichysaidthatEnvoyKenkichiYoshizawa,also Moreover,AmbassadorYoshizawainformed,byseparatewire,extentofofhisresponsibilities.Hewaswasdirectedtosupervisesecretariatcooperatingwiththethetheranking Hewouldexecutemattersrelatinggovernmentingeneral,especiallythosederivingfromfunctioningMatsuoka-HenriAgreement.Inregardtotothethethethejointdefenseofof quarteringsupplying,movementonmaneuvers,useairandandandnavalforces.TheinvestigationeconomicresourcesinexecutionEconomicAgreementwouldalsobehisresponsibility,wellwellasasasassupervisionofofofofinvestigatingparties,thethethethethe Hewastoberesponsibleintelligence,propaganda,andculturalenlightenment,forforthe includedmorethanhundredpersons.Hehadlearnedalsothatoneonegroupoftheparty, InvestigatingCommitteeaccompanyingAmbassadorYoshizawa

includedmorethantwo ingseventeenparties,includingmorethaneighty-sixpersons,wasnotdefinite.Heasked, 
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463. Tokyo Officials Demand Release of Shipment

Learning from Saigon that the Governor General had refused permission to load 2,900

tons (rubber) on the grounds that the French home government must approve the shipment,

to the Governor General to load the 2,900 tons at once. The wire, transmitted November 9,

General and suggested that such a delay could have serious effects on the future negotiations
for the 10,000 tons. 1088

464. Consul Ogawa to Sail on Chicago Maru

Consul General Ogawa in Hanoi learned on November 10, 1941 that the Chicago Maru,

it would proceed to Haiphong or Saigon. Since the vessel's course after leaving Canton was

tion.l089

465. French Government Approves Rubber Shipment

Maru had sailed with the specially marked 3,000 tons of rubber on

remainder of the second contract consisting of 2,100 tons, Japan had nevertheless obtained

Although the price had become exorbitant, arrangements were being made to purchase

Germany and Vichy from robbing US.,,1090466.ofin
Despite the fact that since Japan and French Indo-China had signed defense agreements

and the equipping and organizing of French Indo-China was being carried out, the French
Indo-Chinese Government had been showing anti-Japanese policies, such as a reluctance
in issuing import and export permits. Fearing that the Japanese might start agitation
between the Chinese and the Annamese, a "stall policy" had been adopted regarding
Japanese and French Indo-Chinese questions. 1091

Vichy on November 12, 1941. Endeavoring to expand military facilities, Japan wished to
move into North Indo-China, an action which would violate the Nishihara-Marutan Agree-
ment. Since they considered the restrictions stipulated in the agreement as still valid, the
French Indo-Chinese authorities had refused to permit the Japanese army's expansion.
Japan now revealed that it had anticipated such a case as this, and had foresightedly
inserted a clause in the treaty to the affect that the restrictions stipulated in the Nishihara-
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ExpansionJapaneseArmyFrenchIndo-ChinaCreatesDifficulties 
MinisterTogoaskedhisVichyrepresentativetoseethatinstructionsweresentimmediately 1941,intimatedthattherewassomeunderhandeddesignbackofnotefromthetheGovernor whichwasscheduledtotransporthisparty,wouldarriveatCantononNovember16,whence notsettled,ConsulOgawawasaskedtogetintouchwithCantonformoredefiniteinforma-ForeignMinisterTogo,relayinginformationfromSaigon,informedAmbassadorKatothatthetheKanju November3,1941.AlthoughFrenchIndo-Chineseofficialshadheldoutonpermitforthethe permitconsequentlywouldshiprubberonSeikaiandandthethethetheMelbourneMaru. 2,900whichremainder15,000tonstonsundercontract.TogocomplainedofofIndo-ChineserubbergreatlyincreasedbyGermanmarket.BetweenSeptemberandNovemberGermanyhadhadbeenbeenpaying3,000piastrestonrubber,butforforwhatreasonthethethethethetheForeignForeignMinisterMinistersaid,"Heaven

onlyknows."HepointedoutthatthatitwaswasupJapannegotiatewithBerlininordertototosetaapriceprice"tokeep ThatacrisishadariseninthemilitaryoccupationofFrenchIndo-Chinawasalsowiredto IOBBIV,949,950. [O9OIV,952. 



Marutan Agreement were cancelled. The French authorities in Vichy were, therefore, to issue
definite instructions at once that the French Indo-Chinese authorities withdraw their

claim. 1092

It might be said, however, the Japan's control of French Indo-China was progressing
favorably. Mr. Yoshizawa and his company had left for their new post in Hanoi during thepartto

Having already wired Vichy asking that the Governor General in French Indo-China be

Minister Togo now asked Ambassador Yoshizawa in French Indo-China to insist upon the

granting of these powers. 1094

467. France Agrees to Provide Additional Supplies to Japan

obtained definite promises from Mr. Arnald. France agreed to provide by the end of 1941,

10,000 tons of additional goods and would issue instructions to French officials to supply Japan
with 12,000 tons of the remaining 15,000 tons to be shipped within the year providing that

reluctant to accept payment in yen, arguing that if this kind of payment were accepted, they

he would continue to negotiate along these lines. 1095468.
Meanwhile, a new schedule for Japanese broadcasts direct to Singapore, French Indo-China,

Between 7:00 p.m. and 9:30 p.m. Japan would broadcast to the South Seas in Maridarin,
Cantonese, Fukienese, and Japanese. Between 10:00 p.m. and 11:40 p.m. a broadcast to

broadcasts from Japan in Dutch, English, Malay and Fukienese. 1096

469. Vice-Minister Roshier Considers Movement of Japanese Troops

In answer to the Foreign Minister's telegram regarding the problem of stationing Japanesein
had transmitted the contents of his instructions to Vice-Minister Roshier. Mr. Roshier had

replied that he would at once look into the matter. 1097470.to
Minister Uchiyama in Hanoi advised on November 15, 1941 that messages of a special

nature which were best not seen by staff members should be sent addressed to the Consul

the Japanese Embassy in China, he pointed out. 1098
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORlatterofOctoberandfromthere,theyplannedpenetrateallfields.1093
givenextensivepowerstonegotiatewithAmbassadorYoshizawaintheprotectorate,Foreign FollowingaseriesofnegotiationswithFrenchauthoritiesJapaneseOfficialHaradahad thepaymentwasmadeingold.AlthoughtheFrenchapprovedofpaymentingold,theywere wouldhavetopermittheGermanstopayinmarks.AmbassadorKatoinVichywiredthat 

TokyoReleasesNewBroadcastScheduleforFarEast
theSouthSeas,Thailand,theDutchEastIndiesandMalaywasrelayedtoSingapore. French,Indo-ChinaandThailandwouldbemadeinFrench,Thai,CantoneseandBurmeselanguages.Between9:55p.m.and11:30p.m.theDutchEastIndiesandMalaywouldheartroopsNorthIndo-China,AmbassadorKatowiredonNovember14,1941thatMr.HaradaSecretMessagesWithheldfromStatTMembersarebeHeadedby"Gaisin"
Generalandheadedbytheword"Gaisin".Thispracticewasusedinmessagesaddressedto 10.8IV,958.233 



471. Japan Vests Negotiating Authority in Ambassador Yoshizawa in French Indo-China

Minister Uchiyama also ask the French government to cable authority for negotiations to the

French Indo-China governor. If, however, France wished to carryon negotiations regarding
rubber in Vichy, such an arrangement would be permissible; but a full outline was to be

in French Indo-China. 1099

472. Japan Agrees to Transport Rubber for Germany as Far as Japan
In spite of the shortage of Japanese ships, Japan had agreed to transport French Indo-

October and the Hibari Maru had already loaded 2,000 kilotons to be transported to Japan

kilotons of rubber would be transported on an undesignated vessel early in September.

Ambassador Oshima in Berlin was asked to explain to German authorities the great lengths
to which Japan had gone, in view of her shortage of ships, to dispatch these vessels. 1l00473.
had informed the Japanese Counselor of the Embassy in France, Mr. Harada, that Germany
and Japan would have to reach an agreement on the amount of French Indo-Chinese rubber

to go to Europe and the amount to go to Japan out of the 1942 production. For the informationof
Chinese rubber for 1941 was 75,000 tons, and for 1942 would be 80,000 tons. 1l01474.Upto

In referring to the question of granting a permit for exportation of goods from Shanghai,

Foreign Minister Togo informed officials in that city that the planning committee had drawn

former one. It specified that goods to be sent to French Indo-China and Thailand would be

divided into definite categories and authorized additional permits pertaining to cotton

asked that the amount and value of goods to be exported from Shanghai be wired to him for
his information. llp2

regarding negotiations for French Indo-Chinese rubber. It was necessary that Japan have an

could procure. In case the 1942 production exceed 70,000 tons Japan decided that a "suitable

Germany.ll03
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ReiteratingallmattersaneconomicalnatureinFrenchIndo-ChinaweretobetheresponsibilityofofSpecialAmbassadorYoshizawa,ForeignMinisterTogorequestedthatthat forwardedtothehomeofficesothatnegotiationstherewouldcoincidewiththosecarriedon ChinaboundforGermanyfarasasJapan.IncomplianceanarrangementmadewithwiththeGermanCommercialAttache,approximately10,885ofrubberrubberwouldbetransportedinthismanner.TheKanjuMaruhadcarried3,000kilotonskilotonstoJapanduring duringNovember.TheSidneyMaruwouldcarry3,000kilotonslateinNovember,and2,885 OnNovember17,1941AmbassadorKatoinquiredwhetherallotmentFrenchrubberhadbeentakenupwithGermansyet.AGermanmemberofofthethetheArmisticeCommission upabill,which,underJapanesedirection,containedpracticallysamecontentsasthethe textilesandcottonproducts,wellasas

unconditionalpermitspectainingallgoods.DeclaringthatJapanwouldlikeallowpermits,onthebasisofpastexperience,forcondi­tional-permitgoodseveniftherewasnothingtototoimportinexchange,ForeignMinisterTogo OnNovember19,1941inadispatchtoVichytheTokyoForeignOfficewiredinstructions understandingwithFranceregardingminimumamountthatthetheImperialGovernment formula"wouldbeworkedoutforthedispositionofrubberbetweenJapan,Franceand llOOIV,960. 

GermanOfficialSaysGermanyandJapanMustAgreeonDivisionofIndo-ChineseRubberJapaneseofficials,AmbassadorKatodeclaredthattheestimatedproductionofFrenchIndo-PlanningCommitteeDrawsBillExportMaterials 



Further instructions for the procurement of passport visas for Ambassador Yoshizawa and

instructions might be sent to Ambassador Henri in Tokyo for the issuance of these passport
visas. 1104

476. Japanese Suspect Decoux of Collaboration with Americans and English

General Decoux was in collaboration with the British and Americans there, such information

was ofthe utmost importance to the Japanese Imperial government. 1105

477. Resignation of General Weygand is Considered to be German Victory

falling more and more into disfavor, he was, however, trusted implicitly by the colonial
forces and the hearts of the French people were with him uniformly.

Even though Marshal Petain had let General Weygand go with reluctance, this act of the
French government showed its decision to sacrifice American supplies in North Mrica. That
Jean Francois Darlan and Minister of the Interior Pierre Pucheu, both advocates of stronger

France-German cooperation would be much stronger in the future. 1106

478. Japanese Insist on French Indo-China as Site for Negotiations
Attempting to have France empower French Indo-China officials to negotiate directly with

Japan, Japan was informed that France would not, by any means, leave these negotiations
up to its representatives in French Indo-China. Since the Colonial Minister was on a trip

negotiations. If it were decided that the rubber question had any connection with the
Armistice Commission, it would be better to hold the negotiations in Vichy. Mr. Harada

designed primarily to elaborate in a different way on the terms of the treaty. Since the

of negotiations and issue the required instructions to French Indo-China. Arnald promisedtotheinor
In a subsequent dispatch, however, Tokyo learned that Mr. Arnald had instructed the

Governor of French Indo-China to leave the discussion to the Japanese and French officials
in Vichy with the alternative of leaving the matter up to the military headquarters of both
armies. 1108
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR475.JapanObtainsVisasforMembersofYoshizawaParty
hisparty,aswellasfortheBorderDelineationCommittee,weresenttoVichyonNovember20,1941.ItwasnecessarythatrepresentationsbemadetotheFrenchgovernmentsothat OnNovember21,1941TokyolearnedthatGovernorGeneralJeanDecouxinHanoihadmadeatriptothewestbankoftheMekongRiver,whereaFrenchIndo-Chineserubberplantwaslocated.Thistrip,accordingtoarmyreports,hadbeenmadeundertheguiseofcallingonthewifeofaGovernorGeneralinthatarea.SinceitwasrumoredthatGovernor TheresignationofGeneralWeygandwasdiscussedinareportfromVichytoTokyoonNovember22,1941.AlthoughtheGeneral'spositionhadbecomeverydelicateandhewas relationswithGermany,hadwonagreatvictorywasevident,anditwasbelievedthat toMrica,itwouldbeimpossibletosettlethematterimmediately.Therefore,Mr.ArnaldhadsuggestedtoJapaneseOfficialHaradathateitherTokyoorVichybechosenforthe hadexplainedthatsuchnegotiationsweredifferentfromthoseheldinthespringandwere situationinJapanwasnowverytense,Mr.HaradasuggestedthatArnaldreconsidertheplace 

reconsidermatterandreplytwothreedays.1107 
110'IV,967.1108IV,968.235 



479. Tokyo Arranges Contract for Additional Rubber
OnNovember24TokyoinformeditsofficialsinVichythatFrenchIndo-Chinaauthorities

had had no instructions from France since last month and that no arrangement had been

madewiththeYokohamaSpecieBankforpayment.Itwassuggestedinthisdispatchthat

since only 5,000 of the 10,000 tons previously agreed upon were available, that Japanese
merchantscontractforthe5,000tonsimmediately.ItwasalsoadvisedthatJapanassume

the export tax of the supplementary amount supplied, although it had been agreed when
Mr. Fujio Minoda, the Japanese representative in Saigon, had talked with the French Indo-

ChineseeconomicrepresentativeMr.Martin,thatJapanwouldassumeonlyhalfoftheamountoftheexporttax.Becauseitwaspossibletoloadonly2,900tonsduringNovemberandallavailablevesselswerefilled,itwasnecessarytoassigntheAkamineMarutoloadrubber.llo9480.SpecialistsareEnRoutetoBangkokOffice
OnNovember24MinisterYoshizawainHanoiinformedtheJapaneseMinisterinBangkokthattwospecialistswereenroutetohisofficeviaSaigon.Thesetwomen,ToshiroSakaiandIrakameOkuda,wouldbeassignedtohisoffice.lllO

481. Minister Iwaturo Uchiyama Complains of Lack of Information Concerning Japanese-United

States Negotiations
SincetherepresentativesofBritain,Australia,theNetherlandsandChinawereawareof

the matters being discussed in Japanese-United States negotiations, the Japanese Minister
at Hanoi, Iwaturo Uchiyama, declared in his dispatch to Tokyo on November 25 that the
HanoiForeignOfficehadbeenleftoutofthepicturesinceitwasuninformedofitsroleincasewarbrokeout.TheForeignOfficeorganhadbeenadvisedbythemilitarythatareplywouldbeforthcomingfromtheUnitedStatesonNovember25andthat,ifsuchareportweretrue,theJapaneseCabinetwouldnodoubtmakeadecisionbetweenpeaceandwarwithinthenextdayortwo.ShouldtheJapanese-Americannegotiationsbebroughttoa

successful termination, it would be possible to launch the plans which had been laid down
in advance. However, should the negotiations not end successfully, Japanese forces in
FrenchIndo-Chinawouldbeabletomovewithinthedaysincepracticallyallpreparationsforthecampaignhadbeencompleted.Intheeventofwar,theMinisterwasconcernedasto

whether the status quo should be maintained insofar as French Indo-China's governmental

setupwasconcerned.Heaskedthathebeadvisedbycableorspecialmessengerservicesinceitwasimperativethatpriorarrangementsbemadeasfarinadvanceaspossible.llll
482. Japanese Officials Told to Disregard French Attitude

Foreign Minister Togo directed on November 26 that Japan disregard the attitude of
French authorities and act on the basis of Japanese demands in regard to the problem of the

localarmyinFrenchIndo-China.ThisstandwastakensinceitwasexpectedthattheFrenchwouldnoteasilyconcedetoJapanesedemands.Itwasfurtherdirectedthatwhensimilar

problems occurred in the future, a reply in accordance with this policy should be made to
French Indo-Chinese authorities. 1112

ForeignMinisterTogodirectedonNovember26thatofficialsinSaigoninvestigatethe

dynamiting of the American Consulate there and wire a reply.1l13
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483. Japan Encounters Difficulty in Securing Roundabout Visas

negotiations be conducted with French authorities so that instructions could be sent to

travel only and that this fact hindered activities of the Imperial Envoy and necessitated a
wait of about a month in their travel. 1114

484. French Accede to Japanese Demands Concerning Rubber Negotiations
That the French had acceded to Japanese demands and had consented to conductbyinon

Joint-Defense Agreement. It was emphasized that details regarding amounts and price

would be worked out on the spot in Hanoi. Tokyo asked that Vichy officials be urged to
accept this arrangement. 1116

485. Mr. Ogawa Suggested as Liaison Officer

Office with regard to enlightenment and propaganda, but during war time, this work was the

prerogative of the military forces in French Indo-China. 1117486.toin
According to a United Press report from Vichy, the Saigon radio station had broadcasted

that Japan promised no further increase of troops in French Indo-China, and that she wouldhadto
487. Mr. Yokoyamu in Hanoi Negotiates for Supplies

received only a vague order from the Navy Department to ship 24,000 liters of gasoline to the
Hainan Island. Since the method of transportation or means of storage of the gasoline had not

be impossible for them to carry the gasoline, Mr. Yokoyamu requested that the Navy
Department send more complete orders on this at once.

In addition, it was suggested that in the event of the approaching emergency the Shigen
Chosa, a natural resources research group in Hanoi, complete the most urgent of the metal
problems with which they were engaged and close their affairs at once.1119
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AmbassadorKatoVichyNovember28,1941.1115
JapanPromisesNotIncreaseHerTroopsIndo-ChinaPressreportbeensentTokyofromVichy.1118 

Experiencingdifficultyinsecuringroundabouttravelvisasfortwosecretaries,KimioMuraiandMr.Mr.KikuMurakamioftheYoshizawaparty,ForeignMinisterTogoaskedthat AmbassadorHenriinJapan.Itwaspointedoutthatthetwosecretarieshadvisasfordirect negotiationsinHanoiregardingrubberquestionandthethepurchaseofricewasforwarded AlthoughTokyomadenoobjectionstonegotiatingVichyregardingrubber,itpointedoutthatmethodmakingpaymentsforricewaswascontainedininArticle22ofofthethe ToactliaisonofficialbetweenJapanesediplomaticstaffandarmyFrenchIndo-China,ForeignMinisterTogosuggestedthatMr.Ogawabeattachedtomilitaryforces.Aslongasaswardidnotbreakout,therewasnochangeinindutiesofthethethethetheEmbassy notuseFrenchIndo-ChinaasabaseforattackingBurmaroad.Itwas

reportedthatAmbassadorYoshizawawouldmakethethepromisetoGovernorGeneralDecoux.TheUnited OnDecember3,1941,Mr.KatsukiyoYokoyamu,JapaneseRepresentativeinHanoi,informedHomeOfficethatafterconferringwithCaptainKakiuchiofthetheNavy,hehad beenstatedandsinceFleethadassertedthat,becauseofthethedangerathand,itwould 11l7IV,977. 1119IV,979.237 



Mr. Yokoyamu get in contact with the representative of the Munitions Section at Saigon in
order to obtain supplies. 1120

488. Japan Prepares to Invade French Concession in Shanghai

Japan and France, Japanese officials were to inform the French Ambassador in advance that

Japan would take necessary military measures in the French Concession Shanghai.

orders and regulations. Should French authorities, however, not agree to this, Japan would
pour in its military police without any regard to the attitude which the local French authori-
ties might take. In discussing the action, the Japanese official was to bear in mind that an
occupation of this kind should be accomplished after the central authorities had agreed to
it.1121

489. Tokyo Orders French to Cooperate in Efforts Against Sabotage

the Japanese in stopping the sabotage efforts of the Chungking sympathizers in that country. 1122

authorities to deport the insolent Chinese Consul and to exterminate Chungking influence. 1123

490. Japan Decrees Removal of British and American Consuls

French Indo-Chinese authorities about the British and American consuls, that contact then
be made on the next day with Japanese military leaders for action, and that this action besoastothe
491. Joint-Defense of French Indo-China Proclaimed

over and important persons were interned. Ambassador Kato was instructed to assure the

Commander of the combined forces in French Indo-China had undertaken the invasion of

Thailand at 3:20 a.m. on December 8.1125

1941, the Military Attache, Col. Seiichi Ito and the Naval Attache, Mr. Horiuchi, planned to
negotiate with Governor General Decoux concerning a secret military agreement for the joint

112"IV, 980.

1123IV, 983.

""IV, 984.

OnfollowingdayTokyodispatchedHanoiinformationNavyDepartmenthadsentinstructionstotoChiefofthethethethetheMunitionsSectiononHainanIslandanddesiredthatthat ThatalsopreparingitsaffairseventthatcomplicationsaroseJapanJapanandSovietRussiawaswasapparentinformationcontainedadispatchfromfromShanghaitoTokyoonDecember4,1941.Bearinginininmindthethetherelationsexistingbetweenbetween IfFrenchauthoritiesagreerefrainfromapplyingtheirlawsprotectionConcession,JapanwouldwouldbeabletotoexercisesuppressionactivitiesanddispositionofofofenemyenemypropertyininthethethethetheConcessionwithoutenforcingJapanesemilitary OnDecember5,1941TokyoorderedthatFrenchauthoritiesinIndo-Chinacooperatewith Furthermore,twodayslater,TokyoaskedthatstepsbetakenbyFrenchIndo-Chinese OnDecember7,1941TokyodirectedthatJapaneseMinisterinHanoiconferwiththethe AmbassadorKatoVichylearned

8thatMajorGeneralAkitoNakamurahadissuedthejointdefenseagreementafewminutespastmidnight7.AtdawnonononDecemberDecemberDecember8,AlliedagenciesandestablishmentsininFrenchIndo'=Chinaweretaken Frenchthatdiplomaticofficialsofficialswerebeinggivenparticularconsideration.The AccordingadispatchfromHanoiwhichwasrelayedbyTokyototoVichyonDecember8, 1121981.1122IV,IV,982. .120IV,985.238 

takenmakeFrenchIndo-Chineseauthoritiesappearresponsible.1124 



French Indo-Chinese agencies and demanded that French Indo-China lend its strength of arms,

if necessary, against Japan's enemies, among whom now stood England and the United

could, himself, answer the demands, Military Attache Ito answered that should the French

Indo-Chinese authorities delay by attempting to wire Vichy, the Japanese army would carry

out the terms of the proposals. Should it be necessary, the Attache informed the Minister,

492. Japan Denies Change in Troop Disposition in French Indo-China

insisted that they knew nothing of the rumored change in plan, and action was to be taken
in accordance with the decisions previously reached in the joint conference. 1127493.a

Apparently having been informed of Japan's intentions in French Indo-China and Thailand,
Defense Minister Darlan declared that after taking note of each item he would call the atten-tionoftheC.to

According to a later dispatch, however, Mr. Darlan promised to confirm the Japanese pro-
posal in writing and declared that the French Government would take the neutral position of
maintaining friendly relations between France and Japan.1l29

112BIV,988.

112'IV,989.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORtiveswouldpresentthetextofthecooperativeschemeonthemorningofDecember8.JapanwouldoccupyFrenchIndo-Chinamilitarily.1126DarlanDeclaresthatFranceWillTakeNeutralStandColonialMinister,Platon,thedetails.1128 
defenseIndo-China.AsrepresentativesofofArmyHighNavyCommandCommandandanduponordersfromImperialImperialImperialHeadquarters,thethethetherepresenta-Theproposalaskedforgeneral,specificanddetailedcooperationwithJapanbyall States.OnpresentingtheproposalMilitaryAttacheItowoulddemandanimmediate 

answer. 

WhentheMinisteratHanoiexpressedhisincredulitythatGovernorGeneralDecouxJapaninformedHanoithatareportedlastminutechangedestinationmilitaryforcesininIndo-Chinawasfalse.TheChiefsofofbothMilitaryandthethethetheNavalAffairsBureaus 1126986.1127IV,IV,987. 



(1) Japanese-Chungking Relations

494. Tokyo is Informed of a British-American-Chinese Financial Conference
According to an intelligence dispatch from Shanghai on October 20, 1941 the financial status

of the Chungking government had reached such a point that only a foreign loan of $200,000,000

American financial authorities, had obtained a promise of $100,000,000 worth of material,

$50,000,000 of which was to be supplied by the end of the year. However, according to Tokyo

amount in November. 1130

Japanese agents in Hong Kong reported a four-day British-American-Chinese financial con-
ference (October 12-15) which resulted in Great Britain and the United States urging that dollar
currencies be withdrawn and requesting that accurate data regarding Chungking monies in
circulation be supplied. According to these intelligence sources as relayed on October 25, 1941,
the Chinese delegates at the conference had reciprocated by making several proposals;

(a) Establishment of International Trade Bureau;
(b) Revision of the United States-China Silver Agreement to strengthen the currency ex-

change market;
(c) Acceptance by Hong Kong of the Chungking currency and the prevention of its inflation

by Hong Kong officials;
(d) The accomplishment of an all Latin-American asset-freezing program against Japan;

Chungking government for investigation and fair distribution;
(f) The establishment of an orderly trade relationship between Chungking and the United

States and the floating of a new loan of $100,000,000.1131495.of
From a Hong Kong message dated October 22, 1941 Tokyo on October 31 revealed that F-ussia

had continued its supply of military goods tJ Chiang Kai-shek but had warned that this service
would have to be discontinued temporarily. 1132

that rumors, apparently originated at the United States Consulate in Shanghai, told of a secret
Nationalist-Communist agreement of October 21. Since the full contents of this agreement
were not to be known by various divisions of the Nationalist Army, disputes had continued
after the date of the supposed conciliation. However, after realizing the folly of continued
activity against the Communists, the Chungking government had issued orders to cease oper-
ations.1133

Another dispatch from Shanghai on November 28, confirmed that Chiang Kai-shek was
making peace with the Central Communist Party. This intelligence also supposed that there
were 400 American planes and over 300 volunteer pilots on the Tenmen Route. 1134

l1JOIV,990.
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inarmamentsandsupplieswouldsaveitfrombankruptcy.Mr.T.V.Soong,aftertalkingwith sources,Chungking'scriticalsituationmadeitnecessaryforMr.Soongtoaskforthefull (e)ThereleaseofChinesepropertiesfrozenbytheUnitedStatesandGreatBritaintothe 

RumorsReachTokyoSecretChun~king-CommunistAgreement
ThisintelligencewassupplementedonNovember7byaShanghaidispatchwhichdivulged 1131IV,991.1132IV,992. 



496. Japanese Authorities Increasingly Suspicious of Chungking-American Activities
According to another intelligence report from Shanghai on November 10, 1941, a Japanese

flage its program for increasing its military strength, in addition to slowing Japanese prog-
ress.1135

Japanese authorities in Tokyo were all the more suspicious on November 13, when a report

States at Chungking) had revealed that his government would not plan to change its policy

bassador Saiburo Kurusu for a brief stalling period. In addition, the report continued, rumorsas497.isoftobeina
\ Meanwhile, on November 14 in a message to the Japanese Consul-General in Hong Kong,

effort in Japanese-American negotiations, the outlook was not optimistic. In the event that

the negotiations failed, the Cabinet Council had decided upon special measures to be taken in
regard to China. These included the expulsion of British and American military and naval
forces in China, the acquisition of enemy concessions and important interests, and the seizureof 1137

In effecting these measures and to ensure the potentiality to face a lengthy world-war, care
must be taken to avoid exhaustion of national strength and to lighten the burden on man-
power and on material resources. In order to gain popular sentiment on the basis of Japanese-
Chinese cooperation, Foreign Minister Togo urged that encouragement be given the activities
of the Chinese Leaders in occupied territories; and while making peace a reality in those areas
under Japanese power, great stress was to be laid on the acquisition of commodities, especial-

the above points were decided. 1138 I

ll3°IV,995.
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1138 Ibid.
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agenthaddeclaredthatChungking.wasnegotiatingforpeacewithJapaninordertocamou­fromShanghaiconfidedthatsomeone(probablyOwenLattimore,representativeoftheUnited towardtheFarEastandthatithadonlyagreedtoenterintonegotiationswithJapaneseAm-thatspecialpreparationsforAmbassadorKurusu'striptoAmericahadbeenmadebythe UnitedStates,werefalseandhadbeenstartedonlypartofJapan'spropaganda.1136HongKongInformedMeasuresTakenChinaintheEventofJapanese-American
War ForeignMinisterTogodeclaredthatalthoughtheImperialGovernmentwasmakingafinal enemyinterestswhichwereconnectedwiththeNationalGovernment. 

lyfromunoccupiedterritories.Becauseofthis,emphasiswasplaceduponareasonablead­justmentofexistinglimitations,anditwaswiththisinview,theForeignMinistersaid,that 1137IV,997. 



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTC-JAPANESEDIPLOMATICACTIVITIESTHROUGHOUTTHEWORLD(m)Japanese-NankingRelations498.NankingAppointsMinisterLiFangCommercialAttachetoBerlin
AlthoughithadoriginallybeenplannedforMr.LiSheng-wu,Nanking'snewly-appointedAmbassadortoGermany,tosailforLisbonaboardtheAsamaMaru,1139hispositionasChiefof

theEducationDepartmentmadehisimmediatedepartureimpossible.114OTwofirstsecre-taries,Mr.TangandMr.Feng,werethenappointedtoAmbassadorLiSheng-wu'sstaff,andtheyweretofulfillhisdutiesinBerlinuntilhisarrival.l141NankingofficialslaterdecidedthatthesecretarieswerenotsufficientlyexperiencedforthismissionandnamedMr.LiFang,

Minister to Rumania, to fill the post of Commercial Attache in Berlin, leaving only a Charge
in Rumania.

Ambassador Kumataro Honda in Nanking telegraphed these details to Ambassador Oshima

inBerlinonOctober18,1941,pointingoutthatMinisterLiFangwaspro-AxisandhadlongbeenassociatedwithPresidentWangChing-wei.ItwasdoubtedthatRumaniawouldobject

to Minister Li's transfer to Berlin insomuch as the Rumanian government did not have a full-

time minister in Nanking. 1142499.GermanDiplomatsDepartforNanking
AmbassadorHenrichD.StahmerandMinisterErichBoltze,bothofwhomhadbeenap-

pointed as German representatives to Nanking on October 2, 1941,1143 left Berlin on October 18

accordingtoAmbassadorOshima.TheyexpectedtostopoverinTokyoforabouttwoweeksbeforetakinguptheirnewdutiesinNanking,andAmbassadorOshimaurgedthattheJapa-neseinNankinghelpthemwiththeiraffairs,particularlyinregardtolivingquarters.1144
After Germany had officially recognized the puppet government in Nanking, arrangements

hadbeenmadeforthetwogovernmentstoexchangediplomats.Japanapprovedtheappoint-mentofAmbassadorLiSheng-wutotheBerlinpost.BerlinthentransferredConsul-General

Fischer in Shanghai to Nanking as the German Charge d' Affaires.1145 and at the same time

thatAmbassadorStahmerandMinisterBoltzewerenamed,Berlindesi~edMr.JohannesBorchersasamemberoftheirstaff.1146500.NankingRefusestoCommentonTojoCabinet
ThechangeofthehomegovernmentinJapanonOctober18,1941causedsomealarminpartsofChina,accordingtoreportsfromNankingandCanton.OnOctober20,1941Ambas-

sador Kumataro Honda in Nanking reported a conversation of the Minister of Publicity of the
NationalGovernmentofChina,LinPai-sheng.Mr.Linsupposedlysaidthattheresignation

of the Konoye Cabinet had shocked his government but that the appointment of General Tojo

whohadlongworkedforasettlementoftheChinaincidentwasreassuring.Insomuchasthe

People's Government felt that any comment about the change in Cabinets might reflect dis-

advantageouslyonthem,Mr.Linremarkedthattheyplannedtomakenoofficialstate-

ment.1147 .
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High officials of the Chiang Kai-shek government in the Canton area had expressed uneasi-
nessattheresignationoftheKonoyeCabinetuntiltheyheardofGeneralTojo'sappointment.TheyseemedtofeelthatthenewCabinetwouldbreakthedeadlockintheJapanese-American

negotiations either by reducing Japanese military operations in China or by bringing about a
war between Japan and the United States, which would give the Chungking government the
opportunity to wage a counter offensive. 1148

501. Occupied China Attempts to Stabilize Its Currency

IntheirattemptstostabilizemonetaryvalueinthenewNationalGovernmentofChina,the

Japanese had difficulty in coordinating the currency throughout occupied China. Foreign
MinisterTogoonOctober20informedPekingofficialsthatheplannedtohandlethematterof

\ partial revision within the law of temporary control of currency and that he wanted to do it in,
suchawayastomeetwiththecompleteapprovaloftheChineseauthorities;consequently,he

desired the opinions ofthe Chinese forwarded to him as soon as possible. 1149

Thefallofthelegaltender'svaluenecessitatedconferencesinNanking.OnOctober31

Ambassador Honda reported that many of the Nanking officials felt that the legal tender
shouldbekeptatacertainrate.Althoughnodefinitearrangementshadbeenmadetoputthis

stabilization plan into effect, another meeting was scheduled for November 4, 1941. 1150

502. Japan Distributes Newspapers to the Chinese
TheJapanesecontinuedtheireffortstopropagandizetheChinesebothinandoutofoccu-piedChipa.OneofthemethodswhichtheyusedextensivelywasthedistributionofJapanese-editednewspapers.OnOctober22AmbassadorHondainNankingtelegraphedTokyothat

they had begun mailing to many cities three days' issues packed together in large unsealed
envelopes. The papers thus disseminated were the Central Telegraphic News, the CentralNews,theRepublicDailyNews,theOldNankingNewspaper,andtheTransitDailyNews.He

addedthatcopiesofthesepapersdestinedforSingapore,Siam,Saigon,andHanoiweresent

in care of Japanese military authorities and that those addressed to Manila were the only ones
which were handled through the facilities of the Nanking diplomatic staff. 1151503.AmbassadorHondaPlansTriptoTokyo

Ambassador Honda in Nanking advised Foreign Minister Togo on October 22 that he planned
toreturntoJapanaboutthemiddleofNovemberandthathewasbringingwithhimthreemen

attached to his staff. After expressing his desire to speak personally with the new head of the
ForeignOffice,AmbassadorHondapointedoutthatoneofthesecretarieswhowasaccom-panyinghimwouldbeabletorevealthedetailsofthepoliticalintrigueswhichwereunder

way in Nanking. 1152

504. The Vatican Reportedly Favors the Nanking Government

PapalrecognitionoftheNationalGovernmentofChinawassoughtbytheJapanese,butonOctober28theJapaneseEmbassyinRomerevealedanintelligencereportfromtheVatican

which stated that the government at Chungking would not recognize an apostolic envoy whose
seat' was at Nanking. Apostolic Delegate Zanini at Peking was credited with informing the
VaticanthattheCatholicBishopofChungkinghaddefinitelysaidChiangKai-shekwould

ll4SIV, 100l.

11.'IV, 1002.

!15OIV, 1003.

1151IV,1004.1152IV,1005.244



permit no association with the People's Government; and therefore, it would be impossible to

have one delegate serve both governments.

merely a trick to force him to acknowledge it as the real government of China. But since he ex-

pected unoccupied China to surrender to the Japanese insomuch as it could not receive sup-

requested that the Foreign Office in Tokyo check the accuracy of this report. 1153

Vatican attributed special importance to the sources of its secret information; hence it was
imperative that the Japanese know the accuracy of the October 28th report. 1154

ability of the secret agent in that city be checked.1155Four days later the Foreign Minister re-
ported some verification to Rome. Professor Hosoi of an unnamed Catholic univeristy had

decided in secret meetings that the Nanking government should be recognized as the seat of
their ecclesiastical administration and had forwarded that recommendation to the Pope. 1156

505. Administration Difficulties Arise in Shanghai
Arrangements to place Japanese in administrative posts in the internal government of

Shanghai were under way by October 24. Foreign Minister Togo concurred in the appointments
of Commercial Attache Watari to the Municipal Council and Major Goto to the position of
Chief of the Secret Service Department. However, he specified that a Japanese appointed to the
latter post should be accorded equal rank with the Chief of the Detective Department. 1157

Three weeks later Shanghai telegraphed the People's Government in Nanking that Major
Goto's salary and car had been arranged and that he had been listed as an unofficial employee
of the Japanese Foreign Office.1158

Shanghai officials on October 28 complained that their city lacked nwney for its ordinary
activities because of the reduction of trade following the freezing of British and American

be adjusted by the following means: 1) a revision of tax rates, imposing a better ratio between
necessities and superfluities; 2) a return to the gold standard; and 3) taxation of items previ-
ously exempted including military goods. 1159506.
been completed by late October. Mr. Sakuji Hayashi in Peking revealed that General Yenthatto
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JapanConcludesAgreementwiththeShansiArmyassuredJapanwasassemblingthefundspromisedhisorganization.116OOnOctober30m'IV,1010.(DoDcomment:PossiblyrefersMajorGoshima.) 

Accordingtothisintelligencereport,PopePiusXIIfeltthatChungking'sattitudewas portfromRussia,PopeplannedatpresentleaveDelegateZaniniwithPresidentWangandtotohaveBishopChungkingtakecareofofthethetheCatholicinterestsinhisarea.Rome AweeklaterAmbassadorHorikiriinRomeagaintelegraphedTokyo,pointingoutthatthe OnNovember10ForeignMinisterTogorelayedthisrequesttoPeking,askingthatthereli­supposedlydiscoveredthatCatholicdignitariesheadedbyApostolicDelegateZaninihad assets.Tooffsetrisinggovernmentalexpenses,itwassuggestedthatthethetaxesandcustoms ThesurrenderandincorporationofShansiarmyintothetheNankingpuppetforceshadnot Hsi-shan,headShansiarmy,complainedJapanhadnotsuppliedSeptem­berOctoberquotaarmsfundsthatthatitimpossiblecompletetransferwithoutJapanesecooperation.Itarranged

forMr.Iwamatsu,ChiefofofofFirstArmy,meetwithnearKogiinanefforttototosolvethethethethethethetheproblems,andandandandGeneralGeneralYenYenwaswaswas



Peking announced that as a result of these negotiations a final agreement with the Shansi
army had been satisfactorily concluded. 1161

Earlier in October Tokyo had agreed to contact President Wang Ching-wei on all the detailson
king governments should be effected immediately and that the prolonging of the Washington
conversations might prevent Generalissimo Chiang Kai-shek from seeking such a concilia-
tion.1163

Shanghai officials on November 1 notified Tokyo that Chiang Kai-shek and Wang Ching-

Hsueh-liang as Mr. Yen's successor. Although the Shanghai dispatch stated that this reportthatabe508.for
administrative organs in China, and on November 1 Foreign Minister Togo telegraphed the

trade could communicate directly with the Welfare Ministry; 4) low-salaried local employees

could be used as temporary consular clerks; and 5) overseas officials would report local sani-
tary conditions to the Welfare Ministry. 1165

Company wished to continue their close contact with the Japanese Foreign Office. 1166

509. Japan Proposes Methods of Controlling Chinese Nationals Abroad

tion in Lisbon as soon as possible, pointing out that the Chungking representative there would
create difficulties. 1167

Japanese officials throughout eastern Asia sent their recommendations to Nanking in regardonewastothebya
the Chinese population should be sent to do propaganda work. Saigon proposed that the Nan-
king delegate should organize Chinese there into pro- Wang groups.

1162111, 1109.
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507.PresidentWangDesiresCollaborationwithChungkingandAmbassadorNomura.1162ButOctober28PresidentWangagainexpressedtoMinisteradvisedthoroughinvestigationmadeimmediately.1164JapanInitiatesNewSystemtheChinaAffairsBoard 
whorelatedChinesebloodandwhohadwiderangeofacquaintancesamong 

involvingoccupiedChinathatwerediscussedintheconversationsbetweenSecretaryHullHidakahisanxietyoverthesenegotiations.HefeltthatafusionoftheNankingandChung­weireachedanunderstandingoverappointmentchairmanNorthChinaAffairsBoardimmediatelyafterMr.YenHsi-shan,headofofofShansiarmy,hadhadseveredrelationswiththethethethethetheChungkinggovernment.ItwasreportedthatChiangwishedtouseChang wasprobablypropagandasupportedbyCommanderBeiTsung-chiofthe9thRouteArmy,it TheCabinetCouncilinAugusthaddecidedontheestablishmentofJapaneseJapanese finalplansShanghaiandNanking.AsthatdatecontrolaffairsAf­fairswasbesupersededbybyanewadministrativesystemwhichincludedfollowingchanges:1)localofficesChinaChinatakeoverfunctionsTradeOffices;2)WelfareMinistrywouldwouldincorporatethethethethethethethetheformerformerofofofofoft~ChinaAffairsAffairsBoardBoardBoard

intoitspersonnel;3)employeesemployeeshavingimportantdutiesinrelationtototoJapanese OnNovember6NankinginformedForeignMinisterTogothattheEastAsiaDevelopment AshadbeenthecaseGermany,ChinesenationalsPortugalevincedpro-Chungkingattitude.OnNovember4AmbassadorHorokiriinininRomeadvisedNankingtoestablishaalega­torepresentativesofthePeople'sGovernment.TheEmbassyinBangkoksuggestedthatsome­1161IV,1014. 



ing that any pro-Nanking work would be impeded by the stiff opposition of the Chungking
government and by the British, American, and Dutch influences. They suggested that radio
broadcasts and newspapers be used to disseminate propaganda. 1168

Tokyo on November 21 decided that Japanese agents who were to work among Chinese resi-
dents abroad should be immediately transferred to Macao, French Indo-China, Thailand,
and other Japanese occupied territories. 1169

510. Japanese Apprehend Blue Shirt Terrorists

nese obtained information concerning the background and affiliations of those engaged in
terrorism in Shanghai, aJ}d they expected to use this information to prevent future activities
of the Blue Shirts. 1171

still attempting to promote underground movements in those areas.1172 Apparently political

required for shipping the prisoners. 1173511.Litoto
diately. Referring to earlier messages of his which pointed out that the adverse propaganda of18ofLi
apparently he felt that the situation required the Ambassador's presence.

512. Japan, Manchuria, and China Plan Exchange Broadcasts
Foreign Minister Togo announced that the first anniversary of Japanese-Manchurian-Chi-

nese collaboration would be celebrated by a special exchange of broadcasts between the threeatonto513.toin
Possible Japanese occupation of the International Concession in Shanghai raised the ques-

tion of what demands were to be enforced on citizens of third countries; such as the seizing of

1168IV, 1020.
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AmbassadorOshimaUrgesMr.Sheng-wuReportBerlinImmediatelyOctoberwhichtoldMinisterFang'sappointmentascommercialattacheinBerlin,1175countries7:20p.m.November30.Eachcountrywasbeallowedtenminutes.1176JapanPlansConfiscateThirdCountryConcessionsChina 

ThereportsfromRangoon,Batavia,SingaporeandManilawerediscouraginglyalike,stat-MilitarypoliceinwerereportedhavearrestedMajorGeneralChinKyo-ju,1170ChiefShanghaiShanghaibranchBlueShirtsandheadChungkingterrorists,accordingtotoNankingdispatchdatedNovember6,1941.Asaaresultofofofofthisarrest,thethethethethetheJapa-OnNovember21officialsdeclaredtheBlueShirts'activitiesinShanghaiShanghaiandNankinghadbeencompletelystopped,butthatthatGeneralissimoChiangKai-shekwas prisonerscapturedinnorthernChinawerebesenttotoNagasaki;forfollowingdayTokyorequestedinformationconcerningthethemethod,channels,meansoftransportationandtime OnNovember10,1941OshimarequestedthatthePeople'sGovernmentNankingarrangesomewaytohaveAmbassadorAmbassadorLiSheng-wutakeofficeinininBerlinimme-ChineseresidentsinGermanyJapanese-supportedrepresentativefromNanking,statedthatuncertaindatethetheAsama

Maru'ssail­ingmademadeititseemadvisableadvisabletotohavehaveAmbassadorAmbassadorLiuseaadifferentroute,perhapsviaSouth~
AmericaonanItalianplane.1174AlthoughMr.OshimaOshimahadreceivedNanking'sdispatchofof1172IV,1023. 



businesses held by third country nationals and the control of wireless, mail, newspapers, and
other details not under the authority of the municipal council; and the treatment of the con-

approved of such action despite the fact that it might shortly be imperative. 1177

crisis it would be to Japan's advantage to occupy the joint concessions; however, he empha-
sized that Japan had hitherto respected the International Concession and that in enforcing

tioned that he personally favored leaving the French concessions alone. 1178

514. Japan Extends Its Control Over the Chinese
Mr. Fujishima in Shanghai outlined the Japanese policy in regard to an unidentified Chi-

nese organization, the Kumonkai,1179 in a dispatch to Consul General Nagai dated December
1, 1941. The plan under study included the Japanese domination of the branches of the Ko-
monkai in China proper and eventually of those in Thailand and Malaya, and the means for
the accomplishment of this domination included control of the leaders of the societies, mutual
credit and banking associations, propaganda, and trade associations. 1180

sons, particularly financial representatives, were to be prevented from fleeing with their docu-

ments, coins, valuable specie, gold and silver trinkets, et cetera. Buildings which belonged to

though the Japanese could not seize personal property and should not make a general seizureofnot515.in
Five Japanese leaders, Commander Kitazawa of the army of North China, Vice Chief of

yama, and Liaison Officer Shiozawa of the Chinese Development Board, conferred in Peking

on December 1 and 2, 1941. They telegraphed their conclus~ons to the Foreign Office in Tokyo
on the day following the conference.

Insomuch as the impending war would decide the fate of the Japanese Empire, they stressed
that attention should be given to the larger aspects rather than to insignificant local matters.

"the fact that this war is one which is unavoidable for the existence of Japan and the mainte-

Japan's position at the war's conclusion.
Referring to the Russo-Japanese war in which President Theodore Roosevelt acted as peacetheitbeto

policy which would enable Japan to turn its attention to the other phases of the war. The prob-lempfforaa
1l7BIV, 1028.
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sulargroups.JapaneseofficialsShanghairequestedclarificationofHomeOffice'spolicyininregardtothisonDecember2,pointingoutthatthetheNankingarmyheadquartersdis-ForeignMinisterTogotwodayslaterrepliedthatintheeventofasuddeninternational amilitaryoccupationofit,thereshouldbelittledestructionasaspossible.Mr.Togomen-ForeignMinisterTogoinformedPekingofficialsthefollowingdaythatenemyjuridicalper-suchpersonsandwhichthendeemednecessaryformilitaryusewereweretobeoccupiedal-Arisue,Mr.NishimuratheFourthSectionHeadquarters,ChiefofofofStaffStaffStaffKaza-Thelattershouldbeadministeredcarefullyandinaccordancewithinternationallaws;for nanceofpeaceEastAsia"shouldbeemphasizedallnationsininanefforttotostrengthen~ ThemanagementofChinashouldbelefttothe

Chineseinsofarasthatwaspossible,a 

""1V,1O27. 

buildingswhichwereneededimmediately.1181JapaneseLeadersOutlineTheirWarPolicyChina
mediator,theystatedthatonlypossibleintermediaryforthiswarwouldbethePope.There­fore,wouldnecessaryhandleenemychurcheswiththispointinmind.obtainingmaterialslongwarwouldnecessitatethoroughstudyofclosedtrade. 



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
ViceChiefofStaffYadoruArisuepointedoutthatinpermittingChinaafreerhandinitsinternalaffairs,Japanmightbethoughtweakened.Itwasessential,accordingtoViceChiefArisue,thattheChinesenotbeallowedtomakesuchamistake.1182

516. Japan Fights Espionage in Northern China

FromTsingtaoonthenortherncoastofChinacameareportonDecember6,1941,sayingthatmanyoftheJewsinthatsectorwereanti-Japanese.Includedinthisgroupwereapproxi-

mately forty German Jews. Naval officials had requested that they be allowed to take military

measures against this faction, but before that could be done, an understanding with the Ger-manconsulswouldhavetobeobtained.1183
ThesamedayHsingkingaskedforinformationinregardtothehandlingofenemynationals.OnNovember19"anoutlineofemergencymeasuresagainstespionage"hadbeensubmittedwhichstipulated,asmeasuresagainstnationalsofenemycountries,thatmalesbetweentheagesofnineteenandforty-fiveweretobetakenaswellasthosepersonshavingspecialattain-mentsorexceptionaltalents,andthatmeasurescouldbetakenagainstdiplomaticofficesandtheirstaffsandthepropertyofenemynations,includingships.InsomuchastherewasawidedivergencebetweenthisoutlineandtheonerecentlyapprovedbytheForeignOffice'sInvestigationDepartment,Hsingkingofficialswereundecidedastowhichplantofollow.1184517.NankingOutlinesMethodofHandlingEnemyNationalsandProperty
OnDecember7Nankingannounceditspoliciesforthedispositionofmatterspertainingtotheenemy,includingdiplomaticmissions,enemyciviliansingeneral,civilianenemyprop-

erty, and netural foreign countries.

Inregardtothediplomaticmissions,allworkoftheconsulatesofenemynationswastobe

terminated and the following steps were to be taken: 1) the use of all radio apparatus would be
prohibited; 2) the receiving and dispatching of all coded messages would be prohibited; 3) per-
mits for the dispatching and receiving of all plain text telegraph messages would be required;
4) both military and diplomatic personnel would be sent to guard the enemy consulates; 5)
the use of telephones would be prohibited; 6) the displaying of colors would be prohibited; 7)
consuls and their staffs would reside within the consulate buildings and would be required to

obtainpermissiontocontactoutsidepersons;8)Chineseclerksandinterpreterswouldbe

required to obtain permits to enter or to leave the consulates; 9) identification cards would be
issuedtoallChineseservantsemployedinconsulates;10)consulsandtheirstaffswouldbe

required to comply with all official instructions regarding their evacuation; and 11) offices and
residences would be sealed after consulate personnel had been evacuated.

Civilianenemypersonswouldberequiredtoswearthattheywouldengageinnoactions

harmful to Japan, but they would be permitted to keep residence and to travel outside the city
limitsofNankingiftheyheldtravelpermitsfromJapanesemilitaryauthorities.Mail\youldbecensored;telegramsinplainlanguagewouldbesentonlybyspecialpermission.Allmeet-

ings and speeches by such persons would be cancelled, and religious representatives in thiscategorywouldnotbeallowedtodiscusscurrentevents.
Asforcivilianenemyproperty,thegovernmentwouldconfiscateallpropertywhichwasofmilitaryvalue;however,schools,churches,andhospitalswerenottobetouchedandtheir

normal activities might continue.

Thethirdpowerwhichwastoberesponsibleforenemydiplomaticinterestswouldbenoti-fiedofitsdutyorally,andnationalsofforeign,non-belligerentnationsweretobetreatedasalwaysunlesstheywereprovedtobeofbadcharacter.1185
lI82IV, 1031.
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In a circular letter issued on December 7, 1941 Foreign Minister Togo stated that the Nation-

519. Tripartite Powers Secure Shortwave Broadcasting Unit in Shanghai

power. This would be done in cooperation with the German and Italian authorities and would

suggested that a national of a neutral country, possibly a Frenchman, be used as the agent
for this. 1187
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518.JapanDirectsNankingNottoParticipateintheWaralGovernmentofChinawasnottodeclarewaratthattime.1186
OnDecember8ForeignMinisterTogodirectedShanghaiofficialstotakeimmediatestepstocommandeerapowerfulbroadcastingstationbelongingtotheChineseoranyotherenemy beutilizedasapropagandamediumbothinternallyandexternally.TheForeignMinister 



(n) Japanese-Netherlands East Indies Relations

520. Consul General Ishizawa Arranges to Leave Batavia

notified the Consul that his return would have to be postponed until Consul General Shunsuke
Asada at Bangkok arrived to take his place. Insomuch as the Foreign Minister desired a per-
sonal report on conditions at Bangkok, Consul Asada's arrival in Batavia would be delayed.1188

that the Netherlands East Indies' reply to the Japanese had been so unsatisfactory that there

ments had been made, the Consul remarked, in an effort to bluff the Dutch into reconsidering

papers of his decision, he had started paying his farewell calls, and now to be forced to postpone

sul Ishizawa then requested that Tanun Kotani, who had had much experience in dealing withthebe
via,119O the latter asking for permission to leave.1191 In one instance he informed the Foreign

visas for airplane passage via Singapore, his remaining after the sailing of the Takahito Maru
on November 8,1192 might necessitate a considerable delay which Dutch officials would un-
doubtedly consider strange. 1193

521. Dutch Officials Become Suspicious of Japanese in the Indies
Trade relations between Japan and the Netherlands East Indies were deadlocked and a

return to Japan immediately,1194 the staff of the Japanese Consulate in Batavia continued
to be conspicuously large, thus arousing the suspicions of the Dutch.

Rofinck, had demanded reasons for the recent increase in the Japanese diplomatic staff and
warned that if the Japanese were camouflaging military activities through their diplomatic

refute Mr. Rofinck's claims by pointing out that the recent trade conferences had necessitated
the personnel, he concluded that the Dutch official was unimpressed and admitted that itwastotheof

1188IV, 1037.

1189IV, 1038.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTC-JAPANESEDIPLOMATICACTIVITIESTHROUGHOUTTHEWORLD 
DutchauthoritiesappointedActingConsulGeneraluntilConsulAsadaarrived.1189 
hardpredktfutureplanstheNetherlandsEastIndiesgovernment.1195 

AsdiplomaticrelationsbetweentheNetherlandsEastIndiesandbecameincreas­inglystrained,ConsulGeneralYutakiIshizawainBataviarequestedthathisHomeOfficepermithimreturntotoJapanJapanimmediately.OnOctober23,1941,ForeignMinisterTogo TwodayslaterMr.IshizawaexplainedhispredicamenttotheForeignMinister,statingthatonOctober8hehadinfQrmedJacobE.Hoogstraten,ViceMinisterofEconomicAffairs, wasnopointincontinuingnegotiations;therefore,heplannedreturntotoJapan.Thesestate-matter;however,whentheyshowednoindicationsofdoingthat,Consulhadan­nouncedthathewouldsailforJapanonTakatihoMaru.Mternotifyingthethethethelocalnews-hisdepartureaftermattershadproceededsofarwouldbe"exceedinglyembarrassing".Con-TherefollowedaninterchangeofdispatchesbetweenForeignMinisterTogoandGeneralIshizawa;former

insistingthatitwasnecessaryforthetheConsulConsultoremaininBata-MinisterhepayinghisfarewellcalltoGovernor-GeneralataluncheononOctober30;thatthatsincesailingofshipsforJapanwaswasirregularandandthethetheBritishnolongerissued diplomaticbreakbecamemoremoreevident.AlthoughConsulIshizawahadinformedDutchofficialsearlyinOctoberfurthernegotiationswerefutileandandthatthatheplannedto AccordingtoConsul'sdispatchOctober27,ChiefofofthethetheEastAsiaBureau,A.H.J. offices,Dutchgovernmentwouldnotremainsilent.AlthoughthetheConsulattemptedto 1191IV,1040. 



reached the point where major businesses and manufacturing houses were considering closing
and returning home. In a secret departmental message to Tokyo on October 18 Consul Gen-

pany, the South Seas Forestry Company, the Borneo Trading Companies, and the Pearl But-

that the Finance Minister should request the Yokohama Specie Bank to release funds for
this. 1196thenewInatothe
advised that he would apply to the Finance Ministry for 45,000 gilders in the form of a tempo-
rary loan through December. The Foreign Minister also advised that the assignment of a ship

Dutch authorities because of the holidays of October 22 and 23; therefore, he asked that the

laneous goods could be loaded and it was impossible to unload any cargo. 1199

Nissho Maru's sailing; consequently further shipments of miscellaneous goods aboard this
vessel had been cancelled. It had been decided that soy sauce, fermented soy bean mash and
agar-agar would be sent.1200

In addition to trade difficulties, Japan was finding it necessary to finance the opposition of

Batavia office that he was forwarding 15,000 yen to cover the October-December program. 1201neseinon
by shipping cotton textile and other goods to the Indies, thereby accumulating a credit of

advantageous position.12O2

to protect Japanese business and property in the Netherlands East Indies.
Continuing his complaint, the Consul explained that the Dutch had agreed at his request to

supply Japan with needed material, but that through Japan's red tape and inattentiveness,

circumstances he pointed out that it was only natural that the Dutch should refuse to fulfill
Japanese wishes.
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522.JapaneseTradeandShippingProblems(October18-30,1941)channel.1197replyaddressedBorneoTradingCompanyonOctober24,ForeignMinisterTogo
officialsTokyoOctober23.Heaccusedthemofcompletelydisregardinghiswarning 

ByOctober,1941,traderelationsbetweenJapanandtheNetherlandsEastIndieshad eralIshizawainBataviaurgedthatBorneoPetroleum,thetheSouthSeasDevelopmentCom­tonCompanysubsidizedinorderthattheirrightsandinterestsbebepreserved.Hesuggested TwodayslaterBorneoTradingCompanyaskedthattelegraphicconnectionswithitsheadofficeinKobebeestablishedbythethediplomaticstaff.Theword"oxbiz"wasassignedto Shanghaiunderconsideration.1198.ConsulIshizawaannouncedonOctober22thathewaswasunabletotoholdnegotiationswiththe sailingofNisshoMarubepostponedsince,underthethepresentcircumstances,onlymiscel-ForeignMinisterTogorepliedtwodayslaterthatitwouldbeimpossibletopostponethe ChineseactivitiesthroughoutIndies.OnOctober23ForeignMinisterTogoinformedthethe Negotiationshadnotyetbeenconcluded

whenConsulIshizawasenthisadmonitiontoJapa­80,000,000yenwhichDutchimmediatelyfrozen.Onotherhand,thethetheNether­landershadhadinvestedonlynegligibleamountJapan,,andJapanwasnowininaaverydis-Mr.IshizawathreateneddiscontinuehiseffortsifTokyoauthoritiesrefusedtototakesteps theTjisalakdifficultyenteringportandhadhadhadbeenforcedtosailempty.Underthese 1197IV,1045. 



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
InadditionheaccusedthehomegovernmentoffailuretokeephimadvIsedofpertinent

activities. Emphasizing his efforts to protect Japan's business enterprises in the East Indies,
hedisclosedhisplantovisitViceMinisterHoogstratenwhohadfavoredanadjustmentofrelations.Now,however,Mr.Hoogstratenhadapparentlygivenup;forhewasdepartingforAustraliaonOctober31leavingonlytheDirectorofEconomicAffairs,HubertusJ.VanMook,
andthenewly-appointedChiefoftheTradeBureau,Suhinmeru,1203bothofwhomwereun-

sympathetic to Japan. Nevertheless, the Consul promised to attempt an interview before Mr.

Hoogstraten'sdepartureif,beforethatdate,theHomeOfficewouldsenditsbasicpoliciesin

regard to the Indies. 1204

Since the time of Vice Minister Hoogstraten's departure was drawing near, Consul Ishizawa

againaskedforinformationfromJapaninawiredatedOctober28.HealsomentionedthatthenumberofJapanesenationalsdesiringtoevacuatewouldoverflowtheTakatihoMaruandtheNisshoMaruwhichhadbeenassignedforthatpurpose.1205
InreplytoConsulIshizawa'sremonstrancesofOctober23,ForeignMinisterTogoadvised

on October 29 that the Dutch did not realize the desperate situation of their branch banks and
firmsinJapan.IfDutchbankbalancesinJapanwereadequate,itwasdecidedthatloansmightbemadetoDutchfirmsuponguarantee.Statingthatverylittlecargohadbeenbooked

for the Nissho Maru, he declared that normal shipping conditions could not be expected until
worldaffairsweresettled.TheForeignMinisteraskedthatConsulIshizawacontactMr.Hoog-

straten in an attempt to effect a trade policy.12O6

523. Japanese Agents Secure Military Information Concerning the Indies
In reply to a Tokyo War Department request for information concerning troops and planes, 1207MajorKuriyainBataviasubmittedareporttotheassistantChiefofStaffonOctober25reveal-

ing1)theformationandcombatmethodsofNetherlandsEastIndiespursuitplanes;2)the

organization of the air forces and the types of planes employed; 3) the location of the various
forces,andthetypesandnumberofplanesrecentlyreceivedfromtheUnitedStatesandEng-land.Heestimatedthatthetotalnumberofplaneswhichboththenavyandarmypossessedwasbetween700and1000.1208

OnOctober29ConsulGeneralIshizawareportedtotheViceMinisterandtheChiefoftheGeneralStaffinTokyoonthegeneralbackgroundandqualificationsofthenewly-appointedcommanderinchiefoftheNetherlandsEastIndiesArmy,Lt.GeneralH.terPoorten,statingthatthenewchiefwasanauthorityonaviationandwasprobablytheonemostresponsiblefor

mechanizing the Netherlands East Indies Army. Lt. General terPoorten was considered an

excellentstrategistandhadwontherespectofhissubordinatesalthoughafewfeltthatheleanedtowardNaziism.TheConsulalsosubmittedabriefresumeofthecareerofthenewChiefoftheGeneralStaff,ColonelR.Bakkers.1209
Anothermessageonthe29thtothesameaddresseesdivulgedadditionalmilitaryinforma-tionconcerningtheinductionof1500nativesintothearmy.TheEastIndiaPoliticalFeder-

ation has issued the statement that the people of the East Indies realized their duty to serve
in the armed services and would build up the strength of their land through their legislative
andpoliticalparties.AccordingtoConsulIshizawathisorganizationwouldnotcarrymuch

weight.
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ItwasbelievedthatwhileViceMinisterHoogstraten,nowtheactingchiefofeconomics,and

Mr. Duff-Cooper of England were both iI.1 Australia, they would confer on obtaining suppliesfromthere.1210AbriefofnewspaperreportswassentbyConsulIshizawaonOctober31toTokyo.Theyre-
vealed that coastal defense maneuvers had been held on October 27 and 28 at unnamed land-

ing points on the south coast of Java and on Bali and Madura. Extensive maneuvers west of
BataviaintheMawokandTangeranregionsandsmallferrylandsonvariousriverswerealso

reported. 1211524.DutchGovernor-GeneralEvincesNoAlarmoverImpendingCrisis
During the course of his farewell calls in Batavia Consul General Ishizawa attended a dinner

arrangedbytheGovernor-General,Dr.A.W.L.TjardaVanStarkenborgh-Stachouwer,onOctober30.OnthefollowingdaytheConsulmadealengthyreporttotheForeignOfficein

Tokyo concerning the conversation which he held with the Governor-General.
Attempting to discover the exact attitude of the Dutch toward Japan, Mr. Ishizawa had ex-

pressed his willingness to convey the Governor-General's messages to Foreign Minister Togo.
TheDutchofficialreportedlyinformedtheConsulthatthepoliciesoftheNetherlandsEastIndiesgovernmentwereexactlywhattheJapanesehadbeentoldintheirdailycontactswithDutchauthoritiesandthathehadnothingtoaddtothem;however,heexpressedawillingnesstoimproverelationsbetweenthetwocountriesshouldanopportunitypresentitself.ConsulIshizawainferredfromthecalmattitudeofDr.VanStarkenborgh-StachouwerthattheIndies

had already prepared for resistance against Japanese force and therefore did not need to effect
an understanding with Japan.1212

525. Tokyo Plans the Evacuation of Japanese Nationals
In an effort to organize the mass evacuation of Japanese nationals scattered across the Neth-

erlandsEastIndies,ForeignMinisterTogoonOctober27outlinedplansforshippingthemaboardtheTakatihoMaruandtheNisshoMaru.HewiredConsulGeneralIshizawathatthe1700or1800evacueesoriginallyscheduledfortheHawaiiMarushouldbeaccommodatedin

the Takatiho Maru.

Listingtheproposedroutesofthetwoships,theForeignMinistersaidthatportsofcallfortheNisshoMaruwouldincludeBatavia,Makkasar,Menado,andSandakan;fortheTakatihoMaru,SurabayaandKeelung.PassengerswereexpectedtoprovidetheirownblanketsandwerelimitedtoonetonofbaggageontheTakatihoMaruandtwotonsontheNisshoMaru.1213
TwodaysearliertheConsulhadnotifiedTokyothatapproximately1700nationalsplannedtoleaveonthoseships.HehadstatedthatalthoughtheremainingJapanesemerchantswishedtostayinthehopethattheeconomicandcommercialrelationsofthetwocountrieswouldbesomewhatstabilized,theywerepreparingtoevacuateatalaterdateshoulditbecomeneces-sary.TheJapanesefishermenandfarmersinJavaremainedunworriedaboutthesituation,

and the Consul assured the Foreign Office that their evacuation could be postponed until thetwonationshadactuallybrokenoffrelations.1214
In reply to the Foreign Minister's evacuation plan, Consul General Ishizawa proposed that

theNisshoMaru'srouteincludeSumaraneventhoughitmightnecessitatecancelingitsdockingatBatavia.Heexplainedthatitwouldbeanunnecessaryexpenseandinconvenience

for the evacuees from central Java to travel to Soerabaja.1215
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leave Soerabaja about the 28th of that month. Foreign Minister Togo emphasized the import-
ance of having everything in readiness this time and of informing Soerabaja, Medan, and
Menado promptly. 1216

526. Mr. Ishizawa Requests Subsidy for Japanese Newspaper in Batavia
Consul General Ishizawa on November 2, 1941 suggested that the Foreign Office arrange to

cover the growing deficit of the Japanese language newspaper in Batavia. Although the issues
had been decreased and the expenses had been curtailed in order to counteract the financial
loss of subscriptions and advertisements caused by the evacuation of nationals, it would need
assistance to meet curre~t expenses. The fact that the Chinese language papers were con-
tinuing as always increased the importance of maintaining the Japanese newspaper. Consul
Ishizawa estimated that 2,500 guilders would cover the deficit until the end of the fiscal year.1217

527. Communication Difficulties Arise in Batavia

The decrease in telephone communications between Japan and the Netherlands East

might curtail all international telephone conversations and requested the Consul's opinion
with regard to the Indies. 1218

language.1219

Another communication difficulty confronted Consul Ishizawa in his exchange of telegraphictothe
528. Lt. Kuriya is Ordered to Return to Japan

Kuriya to return to Japan by airplane after contacting the military att.ache at Bangkok and
the "tomi" group in Saigon.

Until the arrival of Lt. Toyoaki Yamauchi who was to continue Kuriya's work, Satoru Shim po,

parture for any reason. 1222toon24or25on
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addressesfacilitatetelegraphicworkbetweenthetwooffices.1220
expectedarriveNovemberbutrequestedfurtherinstructionswhenhewouldreachKeelungapproximatelyNovember20.1223 

Thenumbersoffinallysailedaboardtheseshipssmallerthananticipated,ForeignMinisterexpressedannoyancethis.Hepointedoutthatthismadenecessarydispatchanothershipaccommodatethosethosewhowhohadhadbeenbeenleftbehindititwaswasarranged,therefore,forthetheFujiMarudockatatBataviaonNovember20andandandtotototo IndiescausedForeignMinisterTogosuggestsuchcallsbestoppedtemporarilyandresumedlaterifnecessary.HeintimatedtotoConsulIshizawaonNovember6thatthatJapan TwodayslaterConsulapprovedcancellationtelephoneserviceandreiteratedthattherewaslittlechanceofofsecuringpermissionfromDutchauthoritiestousethethetheJapanese messageswithJapaneseatDilli,TokitaroKuroki.HerequestedthatForeignOfficesendConsulConsulKurokibooks,thethetheabbreviatedtransmissioncodecodeandtelegraphicInatelegramdatedNovember6JapaneseStaffHeadquartersinTokyoordered

Lieutenant aDomeinewsmanBatavia,andYoshioMatsugaki,theConsulininSoerabaya,weredirectedtakechargeofresearch.ThisprovisionmadeitunnecessaryforKuriyatotodelayhishisde-Twodaysafterreceivinghisorders,KuriyarepliedthatwassailingTakatihoMaruononNovember10toavoidbeinginterruptedbythetheBritishshouldhehegoviaBangkok.He1219IV,1064. 1223IV,1068.255 



529.DutchAuthoritiesinNetherlandsEastIndiesPrepareforWar
OnNovember10ConsulShinichiHyasakiinMedan,havinglearnedofDutchpreparationstodestroyoilfieldsandrefineriesonSumatraintheeventofwar,wiredtwomessagestothe

Foreign Office in Tokyo relating the details of the Indies government's arrangement.

Thedestructionforces,dividedintotwogroupsbothofwhichweretoreceivedoublepay,werereadytodestroyalloilfieldsinSusuandBrandanwhenadvisedtodosobytelephone.TherefineriesatSusu,Brandan,andRanto01224werefullymined,andtwootherswerebeingprepared.AtSusuthewirenetwasreportedasbeingverynearthemachinerywhileatBrandan
a short wire connected the machinery to the post office near the workers' barracks. 1225

TheNetherlandsEastIndiesauthoritieswereunderstoodtohavedistributedsealedsecretorderswhichweretobeopenedthemomentwarwasdeclared.Thepeoplehadbeenorderedtostopworkandtostayawayfromcrowdswhenthedangerbecameimminentandswordswerebeingsuppliedforemergencyusebythoseworkinginthefields.Automobileroadswere

being constructed on both Sumatra and Borneo to avoid congestion on the national highways
and other preparations included the placing of cannon and the laying of mines at strategic
points. 1226

530. Supittai Denounces Japanese Foreign Policy
ViceGovernor-GeneraloftheNetherlandsEastIndies,H.J.Spit,accusedtheJapanese

government of pursuing a policy of racial supremacy similar to Germany's stating that it had

becomeathreattohiscountry.AccordingtoareportoftheconversationheldbetweentheVice-Governor-GeneralandConsulGeneralIshizawawhichwassentbythelattertoTokyoonNovember12,Mr.Spithadproclaimedthatthe"DutchEastIndiesdonotwanttofight,but

they are not afraid to do so" .
ConsulIshizawahadreviewedthedevelopmentsbetweenthetwocountries,concludingthattheNetherlandershadchangedtoananti-Japanesepoliticalpolicywhichmadeareconcilia-tiondifficult.HeattestedthatJapanhadalwaysbaseditsaimsuponjusticeandthathehad

endeavored to convince the Netherlands East Indian authorities that the Japanese advance-
mentinsouthernFrenchIndo-ChinaofferednothreattotheDutch.AfteraccusingGreat

Britain, the United States, and Holland of selfishness in their use of the world's resources heemphasizedthattheNewOrderinEastAsiawouldpreventthis.
Adamant in his stand, the Dutch official answered the Consul by saying, "Holland has not

beenselfish.Shehassuppliedthewholeworldwithherresources.WeunderstandtheJapa-neseideasowerefusetoacceptit.,,1227
531. Japan Orders Remaining Nationals to Return Immediately

AssoonashelearnedofthescheduledarrivaloftheFijiMaruinBatavia,ConsulGeneralIshizawapointedouttohisHomeOfficethatallJapanesemerchantsshouldbeevacuated

since there was no possibility of business resuming. Local travel had become increasingly

difficult,andmanynationalsfromoutlyingdistrictsweregatheringinBataviatoawaittheFujiMaru'sarrival.Disclosingthathehadbeenkeepingintouchwitharmyandnavyauthor-itieswhoagreedwithhimthatasteamershouldbemadeavailableabouttheendofDecem-ber,theConsulinquiredwhatshouldbedoneintheeventthattheinternationalsituationbecameimpossiblebeforethecompleteevacuationwasaccomplished.1228
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
Thesameday,November13,1941,theForeignOfficetelegraphedBataviathatthefollow-

ing nationals should return to Japan: those engaged in farming and the employees of firms
aswellasallthosefamiliarwithconditionsintheNetherlandsEastIndiesaridwiththelan-

guages. Only the officers most essential to Japanese firms should remain. The evacuees wereinstructedthattheirdepartureshouldbemadetoseemaspontaneouswithdrawal.1229
TheConsulrepliedthatnowthatheknewtheForeignOffice'spolicyinregardtoevacuation,

he would attempt to comply with it; but indicated that it might not be possible to have as
many of the nationals as were expected aboard these ships. 1230

OnNovember16ForeignMinisterTogoamplifiedhisdirectionsofthe13th.Thestaffsofallfirmswereurgedtomaintainbusinessasmuchaspossible.IntheMedandistrictithadbeendecidedthatthreeorfourmenoftheTozanAgriculturalProductsCompany,twomembersoftheShowaRubberCompany,andoneortwooftheSumatraColonizationcouldreturntoJapan
atthediscretionoftheappointedpeoples.TheSouthSeasRubberCompany'semployeeswereinformedthattheydidnothavesufficientpersonneltopermitanyonetoleave,whiletheevacuationofthoseconnectedwiththeTropicalIndustriesdependeduponthecompletionofacontractformanagementoftheMitsuiNewTropicalRubberPlantation.1231

TheSouthCountriesCompanyintheBataviadistrictwastobepermittedtosendanyonewhomMr.Oguraapproved.InthisdistricttheNomuraSupplyCompanywasgiveninstruc-

tions for the continuance of business.

ToshisukeKondooftheDutchEastIndiesDevelopmentCompanyinBanjermasinwastold

to return to Japan on the first boat available after he had made suitable arrangements for the
managementofthebusiness.Mr.Kodamawastobeallowedhisownchoiceinstayingor

leaving. 1232

ToensurethatallpossiblenationalswouldsailaboardtheFujiMaru,theForeignMinisterexpressedconcernoveranyleakageaboutcertainnegotiationswhichwereunderway.Hein-

formed the Consul that none of the nationals were to know anything about the negotiations for

fear they would become hopeful and decide not to leave the country. 1233

532. Japanese Trade and Shipping Problems (November 1941)

Mr.Imagawa,therepresentativeoftheYokohamaSpecieBankinBatavia,onNovember5,1941,consultedthePresidentoftheSpecieBankinTokyoaboutthe5000yenwhichhadbeen
due the Dutch Consul General in Kobe since October 16. Mr. Imagawa also reported on a pro-
posal to approve the telegraphing of 100,000 yen to cover the expenses of the Dutch merchants
whowerepermittingtheexportof4000tonsofmaizeloadedontheTakatihoMaru,andthe

Nissho Maru. 1234

OnNovember11theForeignOfficeinformedConsulIshizawathatJapanwouldnotcon-sidertheinsincereproposalsmadebytheNetherlandsEastIndiesinregardtotradebetweenthetwocountries.TheConsulwasdirectedtoconductnegotiationsforthebarteringofeach

shipload of goods as an independent transaction. 1235

The 60,000 yen supposedly sent to the Indies for the export of the maize loaded on the Taka-tihoMaruandtheNisshoMamhadnotbeenreceivedbyNovember21whenConsulIshizawa
informed Tokyo of the situation. Emphasizing its importance, he asked that the Finance

Ministry be immediately advised of this. 1236
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to its usage. 1237

sage to Mr. Imagawa, informing him that permission had been refused for the payment of the

been promised to the Dutch official in October. 1239

approximately 140,000 to 150,000 pataka worth of redeemable notes in the possession of theandthat
Tokyo and after giving an estimate of the exportable manganese at Dilli, he disclosed that the

of transporting the material unless Japan dispatched a special ship.1241

533. Netherlanders' Attitude Remains Anti-Japanese
Consul General Ishizawa, continuing to ferret out the opinions of the Netherlanders whom

ond1242 conversation with the Chief of the East Asia Bureau, A.H.J. Rofinck, on November 17

the Dutch official manifested a desire for Consul Ishizawa to remain in Batavia, remarking

that the tense international situation demanded a Japanese diplomat who understood thetoaontheto
because of the insincerity evinced by the Dutch government and that he had no control over

the economic blockade which the Dutch in cooperation with England and the United States
were effecting against Japan that had caused this serious rift, it made no difference who held
the office of Japanese consul general since there was little that that official could now do, un-lesstheits

In conclusion Consul Ishizawa revealed that this time the Dutch official had not insisted

that the Indies government was neutral and that the Dutch had no intention of compromising

but rather were preparing for war. 1243534.in
explained to a group of importers, bankers, and retail and wholesale shopkeepers in a meeting
called by Consul General Ishizawa in the middle of November. The majority of the group

remaining personnel to Japan. However, many of the wholesalers and shopkeepers did not
think their affairs could be closed by the sailing date ofthe Fuji Maru.
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TwodispatchesfromTokyoonNovember21notifiedDillionTimorandMenadoonCelebesbank,theywerevirtuallyinaccessible.124OTwodayslaterConsulKurokiagainwired
replaceConsulIshizawawasgoodchoice.ConsulIshizawainhisreporttoForeignMinisterTogofollowingdaystatedthathisreplytheChiefhadbeenthathewasleavingBataviaNetherlandsEastIndieschangedpolicy.JapaneseBusinessesClosePreparationforEvacuation 

thatJapanwassending10,000th~former5,000yenyenlatter.Thesesumsfor"secretfund"andandwereweretototoberetainedbythethethereceiversincash,pendinginstructionsas ThenextdayConsulIshizawademandedthatTokyoexplainwhyitsentaplaintextmes­5,000yenbySpecieBankinKobetothetheDutchConsul-Generalthere.1238Thissumhad AuthoritiesTokyolearnedfromConsulTokitaroKurokiDilliitimpossibletowithdrawfundsdepositedinininthethebankthere.OnNovemberhestatedthatthattherewaswasdesiredwirenetting(screening)siftingoreinpaymentforformanganese.Al­thoughDutchDutchwerepreparedtosupplyaconsiderableamountofthethetheore,therewasnoway hevisitedduringhisfarewellcalls,foundthattheywerestaunchlyanti-Japanese.Inasec­attitudeoftheNetherlandsthoroughly,andhedid

notthinkthatthatConsulAsada,whowas appointmentofhissuccessor.HequestionedreasonsbehindMr.Rofinck'srequestbutadmittedthethetherelationsbetweentheirtwocountriesweregrave.Pointingoutthatthatitwas ThearrivalFujiMaruandevacuationplansofofthethetheJapanesefromBataviawere decidedleavetwoorthreepersonsinchargeoffinishinguptheirbusinessesandtotoreturnthe 



Several stores needed cash in order to close their affairs, since even though they would sell
their stock, the cash for this sale would not be immediately available. The manager of the
Specie Bank in Batavia suggested that the bank float a loan for these stores, taking the stock as
collateral. Before the branch bank could do this, however, permission had to be obtained from

have to remain were to return to Japan by mail steamer or mail plane as soon as possible. 1245

Foreign Minister Togo had informed Toshisuke Kondo of the Dutch East Indies Develop-

rangements to transfer the management of the company.1246 In a message on November 20 hetobeto
535. Consul General Ishiza'wa Complains of Minor Problems

Consul General Ishizawa mildly rebuked the Foreign Office on November 21 for sending
code messages directly to one of his translators, Mr. Aratame. Although praising the trans-
lator's work, he pointed out that the consul general, according to the existing contract, should
have cognizance of all messages and that in the future they should be sent to him. 1248

used.1249536.
Japanese fishing boats off the coast of the Netherlands East Indies had long aroused the

suspicions of that government; and, according to a dispatch from Consul General Ishizawa on

November 19, their surveillance over Japanese vessels had become "oppressive". Captains

of various Japanese boats in the vicinity of Gaspar and Biliton had reported that Dutch, and

jected them to intimidating inspections.

patrol boats. Dutch authorities were further pressing their investigations by questioning Japa-hadatothein
newspaper concern was reported as negotiating for the purchase of a newspaper, The Voice of
the People. 1251fortheof
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORtheDepartmentofFinanceandConsulIshizawawiredTokyotoarrangeforthispermit.1244furtherstipulatedthatMr.KondowassentbackJapanaboardtheFujiMaru.1247
NetherlandsEastIndiesGovernmentSuppr~ssesJanapeseAgents
panywhomadeloanharbormasterBatavia.1250guildersexpensesKooChaoSui1252whowasemployedbytheConsultostampout 

OnNovember18ForeignMinisterTogonotifiedtheBorneoRubberCompanythatitsper­sonnelshouldbeevacuatedsoonasasbusinessconditionspermit.Thosewhowouldwould mentCompanyinBandjermasinthatwasreturntotoJapansoonasashehehadmadear­nextdayConsuloccasioncomplainagainForeignOffice.TheThebroad­castwavelengthshadhadbeenchangedonNovember10andhewasunabletototoreceive10:30JAPbroadcastsbecauseofweaksignals.HesuggestedthatinthethethethefutureJUO(9430)be possiblysomeEnglish,flyingboatshadstoppedthevesselsonceortwiceeachdayandsub-ConsulIshizawabroughtmatterattentionForeignOffice,includinginhisreportthethethetheinformationthatalthoughnowarshipsnearBasparorBiliton,theretherealwaysseveralvesselsaboutfiftymilesnorthofofBatavia.Thesewerewerewerepresumedtotobe

night neseabouttheirvariousactivities.AmongthoseinvestigatedwasheadofthetheOshiroCom-AtthistimecountermeasurewasdivulgedinaadispatchfromShanghai.ADutchDutch OnNovember22ConsulGeneralIshizawarequestedthattheForeignOfficeremit30,000



suggestion of the Consul. 1253

Another Japanese agent, Mr. Takada, was so closely watched by the Dutch that his efforts

ready departed for Japan aboard the Fuji Maru. 1254

In compliance with a request from the German authorities in Tokyo, Foreign Minister Togo

on November 22 suggested that Consul General Ishizawa arrange for the evacuation of German

for steamship fares aboard the Fuji Maru, and the Foreign Minister proposed that they be
accomodated on this ship, if possible. In doing this he remarked that such measures should
be taken after consulting the German and Swiss consuls in Batavia. 1255

538. Japan Prepares to Invade the East Indies
In preparation for the complete evacuation from the Netherlands East Indies Consul Gen-

eral Ishizawa on November 17 asked for instructions concerning the disposal of the furniture,
office supplies, and automobile used by the naval office in Batavia. 1256

Foreign Minister Togo directed Consul Yashio Matsugaki in Soerabaya to obtain automobile

General Staff in Tokyo, anticipating invasion needs, had requested
would suffice.1257 i

The United States Navy received on November 21 information hom the Dutch Legation
which reported a Japanese expeditionary force near Palau. The Governor-General of the Neth-

stipulated point he would regard it as an act of aggression. 1258

tralian troops were on the Island of Shunbiram. 1259539.
In compliance with a directive from Foreign Minister Togo the Ja . nese consulate in Bata-

sible; 2) the files of secret diplomatic correspondence had been burfed and other secret docu-

4) other matters awaited the final approval ofthe Foreign Office. 1260
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anti-Japanesefeeling.AlthoughtheNetherlandershadbeguntowatchKooclosely,theConsulattestedthattheman'sfamiliaritywiththeChineseandnativeswouldbeofaidtotheJapa­neseincaseofanemergency.Koowasplanningtodistributepro-Japanesepamphletsatthe werepracticallyuselessaccordingtotheConsulonDecember1.Itwasthoughtthathehadal­537.GermanyRequestsThatItsNationalsBeEvacuatedbytheFujiMaru
womenandchildrenresidentintheNetherlandsEastIndies.AccordingtotheForeignMinis­tertheynumberedabout119.TheGermanembassyinTokyohadassumedtheresponsibility roadmapsusedbyMotorClubmembersandtosendthemtoJap&nontheFujiMaru.The Ithemstatingthatcopies erlandsEastIndieshaddivulgeditspresence,sayingthattheforcewaslargeenoughtocon­stituteathreattotheDutchEastIndiesorPortugueseTimorandshoulditmovebeyonda Reportsonmilitarystrengthcontinuedtobesenttothehomegovernmentbybranchdiplo­maticoffices.OnNovember26ConsulShinichiHayasakiinMedanannouncedthatapproxi­mately150AustraliantroopswerestationedatMedanandthatitwasbelievedthat220Aus-

ConsulIshizawaOrdersConsulateClassifiedMaterialBurned
E viawaspreparingitselfforhastyevacuation.ConsulIshizawaitemie~thethingswhichhadbeendonebyDecember2:1)expensefundswerebeingconvertedin0cashasrapidlyaspos­mentsweretobeburnedimmediately;3)telegraphicdocumentsweretobedisposedof;and molV,1100.(KanaSpelling) 



The Consul further notified Tokyo of the burning of all copies of incoming and outgoing dis-

been decided to burn all wires received or dispatched by the Batavian office at the end of each
day; furthermore, a complete list of everything destroyed at that office would be sent to the
Foreign Office by either a Japanese vessel or the next courier. 1261the
540. Japanese Foreign Office Declares the Netherlands a Quasi-Enemy Nation

Japan declared the Netherlands a quasi-enemy power in a circular letter dated December

4, 1941, which the Foreign Office sent to Nanking, Shanghai, Peking, and Hsinking officials.

ercising rigid control over Japanese officials, Foreign Minister Togo announced that the Neth-

Whether or not the Netherlands officially declared war on Japan, the Foreign Office revealed
that Japan planned to issue a declaration to the effect that a state of war existed between the

national Law.1263

1262IV, 1103.

1263IV, 1104.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
patchesthroughDecember1,1941;theseincludedthetelegraphiccommunications.Ithad ThesamedayConsulIshizawareportedtohisHomeOfficethatallchartshadbeenburnedwiththeexceptionoftheoneswhichhespecified.RemainingweremapsofNewGuinea,Peru,NewZealand,Turkey,Germany,Netherlands,China,Honduras,andColumbia.1262 
ExplainingthattheDutchhadenforcedprohibitionsregardingtheuseofcodesandwereex­erlandsgovernmentwasobviouslyworkingwithenemypowers.

twocountriesandwouldtreattheNetherlandsasanenemynationinaccordancewithInter­1261IV,1102. 



(0) Japanese-Thaiese Kelations

541. Japanese Plan Invasion of Southern Thailand
In spite of the fact that it would be necessary to invade Southern Thailand, the Japanese

were attempting to complete the strategic preparations for the invasion of the Bangkok plain

neutrality of their country. In the ultimate establishment of Japan's goal, the East Asia Co-
Prosperity Sphere, it was necessary to consider Siam's position as a member nation and to
pay careful attention to her wishes, especially since Siam's enmity would create difficulties

and for their use of the southern Siamese railroad lines for its army operating in Malaya.
For these reasons Japanese officials in Bangkok urged that southern Siam be sacrificed, if
unavoidable, but that the neutrality of the greater part of Thailand be preserved.1264 This

Communication Intelligence officers until April 30, 1945.1265542.to
According to the intelligence reports gathered by Consul Harada in Chiengmai, the Thaiese

were constructing roads from that province to the border. Not only were the Thaiese building

being dispatched to the frontier area with regular camps at several points between Maun
and Faun. 1266

names of Thaiese nationals in England who wished to sail for home. Such an inquiry wasinof
543. Ambassador Tsubokami Requests Funds, Supplies to Open Drug Concern

Referring in a dispatch on October 20, 1941, to previously discussed plans to establish drugfortheofOnthedayto
spy centers in Thailand which would be disguised as Chinese drug stores. 1269544.toin

126'IV, 1105.

1265 Ibid.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORPARTC-JAPANESEDIPLOMATICACTIVITIESTHROUGHOUTTHEWORLD 
withoutantagonizingtheSiamesegoverningclasswhichwasdeterminedtopreservethe forJapanese-BurmaoperationsforwhichJapanneededtransitthroughSiameseterritory dispatch,transmittedtoTokyoonOctober18,1941,wasnotreadablebyUnitedStates IntelligenceAgentReportsThaieseTroopMovementBorder

anairfieldtwentykilometersfromthefrontier,butitwasfurtherreportedthatsoldierswere OnOctober20,1941TokyotooktheinitiativeinsuggestingthattheauthoritiesreportthepossiblymadeviewreturningtheThaiesenationalsviaJapaneseships.1267
concernsinThailand,AmbassadorTsubokamirequestedthat5,000bahtaswellasdrugsandneedlesbesenttohim.Henotofiedhishomegovernmentatthistimethatallprepara­tionswerecompletedopeningthefirm.1268nextForeignMinisterTogowired8,000yenbeusedintheschemeofoperatingJapaneseOfficialsPlanUseofindianTroopsMalaya

FromtwoJapanesediplomaticdispatchesofOctober20,1941,fromBangkoktoTokyo,itwaslearnedthattheJapanesewereplanningtouseIndiantroopsintheirMalayanoperations.AspecialreportconcerningtheirusewasbeingforwardedbyplanetoTokyo,whereitwassuggested,thatsincethereportwasinthePunjablanguageandinunrevisedform,thatitbe 



that the number of Indians be increased since, unfortunately, the Thaiese authorities had

ance units and the Japanese Army.1270

would be used to pick up Japanese broadcasts for rebroadcasting. Foreign Minister Togo
inquired if such a set could be procured in Bangkok. 1271

October 22 to send a forty or fifty kilocycle apparatus with a remodelled pole screen to the
Thaiese capital.1272

In addition the Chief of the Wireless Section in Tokyo was transmitting a list of prices of
parts used in the transmitter for the information of Chief Kojima. 1273546.toat
return to Japan, which was planned for the end of October, because of prevailing conditions

necessary in dealing with Thaiese authorities at this particular time.1274 In explaining the
difficult situation then existing in the country to which he was accredited, the Japanese

eventually would become "a storm center". Uncertainty and doubt arose in the minds of

the Thaiese by the treatment of the Japanese-American conversations and developments in

the German-Russian war. In a talk with Prime Minister Pibul, Ambassador Tsubokami had

be no change whatsoever in Japan's observance of Thaiese territorial integrity, sovereignty
and policy of neutrality.

When the Japanese Ambassador had mentioned, however, that rumors of England's
guarantee of Thaiese neutrality would have an unfavorable influence on the good relations

of its neutrality by the Amity Pact with Japan and the non-aggression agreement with Great

Britain. Pointing out that the people of his country would not forget the. preferential position
taken by Japan recently in the Thaiese-Indo-China dispute, Prime Minister Pibul assured
Mr. Tsubokami that the people of Asia greatly appreciated the difficult fight Japan was making
as a leader in East Asia. Thailand greatly desired that Japan would secure a foothold not
only in the Pacific but in the whole world. 1276547.to
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revisedbyofficialswhowerefamiliarwiththislanguage.TheBangkokoriginatorsuggested internedsomeofthem,andthattheIndiansbeallowedtoinfiltrateintoallpartsofMalaytobeginactivitiesamongtheIndiantroopsthere,ortomaintainliaisonbetweenthedisturb­545.ForeignMinisterTogoProposesSet-UpofShortWayeRadioinBangkok
AtthesuggestionofVice-consulHachiya,ForeignMinisterTogoproposedonOctober21thatashortwaveradiosetbeinstalledatBangkok.Ifthisplanwerefeasiblethereceivingset Theanswer,wasapparentlymadeinthenegativesincetheForeignMinisterdecidedon AmbassadorTsubokamiAsksPermissionRemainPostBecauseofDifficultSituation

OnOctober22,1941,AmbassadorTsubokamiwiredthathewouldliketopostponehis inThailand.Heaskedthathissuccessorbechosencarefullysincegreatersecrecywouldbe Ambassadorsaidthatthepro-EnglishfactionwascreatingtheimpressionthatThailand discussedthebasicpoliciesofthenewJapaneseCabinet.Heassuredhimthattherewould betweenJapanandThailand,PrimeMinisterPibulhaddeclaredthatsuchrumorsweredefinitelywithoutbasis.1275Thailand,thePrimeMinistersaid,wasassuringthecontinuance 

TokyoAddsArmyManBangkokLegationStaff
Underthealiasof"TaroIshii",anarmyman,MajorKubo,wouldbeattachedtotheBangkokEmbassyasSecretary,ForeignMinisterTogoinformedAmbassadorTsubokamion127OIV,1110-1111.1271IV,1112. 



THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
October24,1941.DuetoconditionsinThailand,itwasthoughtbesttohavethismilitaryman

undertake his duties under an assumed name. Major Kubo was scheduled to leave the

homeland by plane on November 2, 1941.1277

AsaresultofacablefromthearmyinFrenchIndo-ChinaandfromCounselYamaguti,EngineerOtowaoftheCommunicationDepartmentinBangkokwasbeingsenttoFrenchIndo-Chinafortwoweeks.1278548.JapanesePlanEstablishmentofAirWirelessSection
In order to aid in their air operations, the Japanese officials in Bangkok were making

plans for the establishment of a special air wireless section, the first of which was to be
stationedatSaigon.MuchoftheirinformationhadbeengainedfromthereadingoftheBritishNavyairwirelessatthearmyandnavyattacheofficesatBangkok,wheretheyhadlearnedtheBritishwirelesscommunicationssystemaswellasthedispositionandmove-

ments of their air units.1279

549. British Cabinet Member Submits Proposals to ThailandAmbassadorTsubokamionOctober25,1941,alsoreportedthatSirAlfredCooper,referredto
as Duff-Cooper, Minister of Information in the British Cabinet, had stopped at Bangkok en

route to Manila at which time he talked with Prime Minister Pibul. During the discussion

theBritishCabinetMemberhadproposed(1)Theabandonmentofapro-Japanesepolicy,(2)ThatThailandbemadeafreemarketand,(3)TheacceptanceofBritishguaranteesfor

Thailand safety. When Japanese officials had investigated this matter, Nai Wanitto had
insistedthatrumorsofsuchproposalswereentirelyfalseandotherinvestigationsseemed

to substantiate his denials, Ambassador Tsubokami declared. 1280

According to impressions gained from recent public opinion in Bangkok, Japanese officials
in that city felt that the Japanese had been placed in a disadvantageous position as a result

oftheirregrettableandunduecowardiceinthefaceofalliedmaneuvers.NotonlywasJapanweakenedinregardtoitsleadershipoftheSiameseandotherpeopleofEastAsia,butthealliedpowerswerebeingencouragedtoanevengreaterpitchofarrogance.1281550.MajorAoyamaReportsonCode,EspionageWork
FromanintercepteddispatchofOctober29,1941,originatedbyMajorAoyama,itwaslearnedthatalthoughtheNavalAttache'sofficewasstudyingtheBritishAirForcecommuni-

cations system, especially the air bases and their call signs, the flying units and airplane
callsigns,thearmyintelligenceofficeandtheNavalAttache'sofficewerenotworkingonthesolvingoftheBritishAirCode.Devotingtheircombinedeffortstothecollectionofintelli-

gence on the Burmese Army, these offices had no personnel to spare for the code work. Major
AoyamafeltthatJapanshouldsetupimmediatelyanewairwirelessespionageagencyat

Saigon. 1282

551. Tokyo Forwards Instructions for Operation of Beacon Radio Set
Meanwhile,theChiefoftheRadioSection,inadispatchtoEngineerHasimoto,saidthathe

would send a book of explanations for the operation of the beacon radio set by the next
mailplane.Hewouldalsocablewiresforreceivingtransmissionsassoonassuchwires

could be obtained. 1283
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552. Japan Continues Plans to Establish Navy Controlled Steamship Company
In continuing his secret plans to establish a Japanese-Thaiese steamship company, which

wouldbecontrolledbytheJapanesenavy,ForeignMinisterTogodeclaredthatNaiWanitto

should have no apparent connections with the company. Instead, his trusted subordinates
should be the only Thaiese stockholders. Furthermore, the head of the Yamashita Steamship
Company with whom Japan was dealing should be guided along these lines. 1284553.JapaneseAmbassadorRequestsTenLargeRadiosforUseinThailand

ByOctober30,1941,AmbassadorTsubokamiinformedTokyothatbroadcastreception

was now possible, but that instruments equipped with metal tubes and loud speakers were

stillneeded.HedisclosedthatnotmanypeoplesavetheJapanesetherewereinterestedin

receiving broadcasts from Japan, and suggested that private Thaiese citizens be furnished

setsforplacementinmixedresidencequarters.Heexplainedthatthebroadcastswouldbemuchmoreeffectiveifloudspeakerswereused.HerequestedthattheHomeOfficearrange

to purchase ten large radios for use in Thailand. 1285

554.JapaneseAmbassadorAsksforRestrictiononNumberofJapaneseMerchantsEntering

Thailand

AlthoughSecretaryNishiyama,whowouldsoonreturntoJapan,wouldexplainthematter

more thoroughly to Foreign Minister Togo, Ambassador Tsubokami suggested the limiting

orrestrictingofJapanesemerchantswhoweresettingupshopsinThailand.AlthoughtheAmbassadorcouldseenoreasonforhavinganymoreshopsopen,henotedthatthenumberhadalmostdoubledsincethebeginningoftheyear.Itwouldbefarbettertoassistthosemerchantswhowerealreadythereratherthantocontinuethepolicyofsendingnewones.1286
555. Rumor Discloses that Britain Asks Exclusion of German Fifth Columnists

In an intelligence report which the Japanese Ambassador sent to Tokyo, Foreign Minister
TogolearnedthattheBritishgovernmenthadrequestedthatThailandrefusepermissiontoMr.OttoWendlerandMr.HoovertoenterthecountrysincetheywereGermanFifth

Columnists. This information, the dispatch revealed, had been picked up as a rumor. 1287556.JapaneseGovernmentHasDifficultyinSecuringExportPermit
ByOctober31,1941,theMitsubishiCompanyatBangkokhadsecuredfortheJapanese

government 4,400 tons of iron manufactured goods valued at 1,300,000 bahts. However,

difficultywasbeingexperiencedinsecuringanexportpermitforthissupply,andconse-quentlyForeignMinisterTogowasaskedtousehisinfluencetoseethatthepermitwas

secured. 1288

TheinformationthattheThailandEconomicMinisterhadplacedrestrictionsonthefutureexportationofricewasthesubjectofinquiryfromTokyoonOctober31,1941.TheForeignMinisterhadlearnedofthislimitationthroughaDomeidispatchfromBangkokonOctober30,1941.Ifsuchareportwereconfirmed,AmbassadorTsubokamiwasaskedto

inquire into the reason. 1289
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557. Japan to Sell Gold to Thailand
Details of a proposal concerning the gold liquidation, which had been decided between

Mr. Fukuda of the Specie Bank and representatives of the Thailand Banking Consortium,on
custody on the Consortium's behalf or on the basis of any subsequent Thai transfer on the

plan that the Thailand Ambassador in Tokyo should appoint any official of Thai nationality

request transfer of the gold to Bangkok, the Yokohama Specie Bank would undertake the

delivery, the cost oftransportation, and insurance to be borne by the Japanese Bank. 1290

558. Tokyo Attempts to Purchase Thaiese Rice

on November 5, 1941, that it would be impossible to secure outward consent to such a
purchase. However, it might be possible for Thailand to give secret consent, with Japan

only possible and feasible plan and that it could be accomplished, the Ambassador asked

requested permission to proceed with the purchase of an additional 50,000 tons for the loading
month during which 150,000 tons had already been contracted. 1291

559. Foreign Minister Plans to Send Money for Purchase of Radio Sets

to arrange for an increase in this equipment. 1292

560. Thaiese Official Considers Re-exportation of Armaments to British Possessions
In spite of the fact that the Thaiese Economic Minister had been prohibiting re-exporting of

Although the case had been presented to the Premier and his approval was expected, the
Thaiese Economic Minister had disclosed to Ambassador Tsubokami that he expected tohimfora561.

From Consul-General Isono, by Courier, Ambassador Tsubokami released the information

5, 1941, a special detachment of officers composed of Chinese policemen under British

12..IV, 1131.
12.lIV, 1132.
12.'IV, 1133.

12.31V, 1134.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORweresenttoTokyoNovember5,1941.Accordingtotheplan,goldbarswouldbesoldtothe 

pressagainquickdecision.1293TwoJapaneseOfficialsReceiveIII-Treatment 

ThailandliquidatebalancewhichoutstandingonNovember2,1941,Thaieseaccount.Thepricegoldfixedatthirty-fivedollarsperfineounce.Furthermore,itwaswaswastotobebeearmarkedaspropertyofofthethethetheConsortiumConsortiumandkeptininsafe BankofJapanwithnochargepayableforsuchcustody.Itwasfurtheragreedintheproposed toinspectgoldatanyAmbassadorsawfit.AtsuchtimetimeasthethetheConsortiumshould Attemptingtopurchase700,000tonsofThaieserice,AmbassadorTsubokamidisclosed cooperatingbymakingsuccessivesmallpurchasesandshipmentsrapidlyasaspossible,thereforefinallysecuring700,000tons.AlthoughNaiWanittobelievedthatthiswasthethe thatConsul-GeneralAsada,whowasshortlyreturntotoJapan,beconsulted.Mr.Tsubokami InanswerAmbassadorTsubokami'srequestfor2,000bahtstotopurchasetenlargeradiosets,ForeignMinisterTogoreplied

onNovember5,1941,moneywasbeingremitted.Hedirectedthatthatbeinformedsoonasasthetheinstrumentswereprocured,sincehehewished materialfromThailand,hewasconsideringgrantingpermissionre-exportationonSumatraMaruofofthethethethefreightwhichincludedarmamentsforforBritishposessions.on6,1941,twocasesofofJapaneseill-treatmentinRangoon.OnNovemberNovember directionhadinvadedthehomeofVice-ConsulHomma,seizinghisdiaryandsome 



of Mr. Udaman, Chief Clerk of the Japanese consulate, and had arrested him.1294

messages from and to his office. Consequently, he was checking as to whether one of his
messages had been received. 1295

562. Tokyo Informed Concerning British Forces in Malaya
Ambassador Tsubokami, by November 4, 1941, had arrived at a plan of action to convince

the governing classes in Thailand of Japan's superiority by propagandizing various points.

definitely inferior to the Japanese force; that should both Japan and England send military
forces to Siam, the Japanese force would be greatly superior; that allied forces would be

plans for the defense of Lashio. It had been reported in Bangkok that the British had been
piling up aeroplane gas at each air field around Lashio.1297 Furthermore, in a conference

as to the effectiveness of the British forces in Malaya and Burma. Considering the greatly
reenforced strength of the British troops and in view of the superiority of their flying instru-
ments, the attaches believed that should an attack be made on Malaya or Burma, it would be
impossible to avoid a pitched battle. In addition, British shipping in these waters was
reported to be no small item. 1298

563. Foreign Minister Togo Dispatches Official to Shanghai to Speed Plans for Bangkok Drug
Dispensary

Mr. Yoshizumi Kuriya of the Tokyo Ooki Drug Store to Shanghai as a special agent. While in

that city he was to work out certain details in connection with Japanese plans to open a

participate in the discussion concerning this matter. The plan included the purchasing of

listed as John's Dispensary, 128 Wokhumgin Hwasomphone, Bangkok, J'hailand.1299

564. Japan Enlarges Bangkok Staff

One official was to be dispatched from Manchuria for the purpose of taking up duties as a
formal representative in Thailand. 1300
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Japanesepublications.Onsamenightanumberofpolicemenhadbrokenintothethehome ConsulIsonoalsorevealedhesuspectedthatthatRangoonofficialsweretyingupcode ThesewouldincludefactsthatthetheEnglishmilitaryforceinBurmaandMalayawas isolatedfromhomelandsatoutbreakofwartheirtheirfatewouldbedestruction;Japan'srelations.withRussiawereprogressingfavorably;andandImperialsuperior.1296ThisdispatchnottranslateduntilMarch16,1945.Itlearned,however,byaJapaneseintelligenceagentinBangkokthatthatthatthethethetheBritishArmyArmywaswaswaswasrushing withattachesofGermanandItalianLegations,thethetheJapaneseAttachehadinquired OnNovember6,1941,ForeignMinisterTogoinformedShanghaithathewasdispatching ChineseDrugdispensaryinBangkok.TheForeignMinisterrequestedthatVice-ConsulIwai suchdrugshesawfit,afterwhichsupplywould

besentimmediatelyasaspureChineseChineseexportstoBangkok.ThenameofthetheBangkokdispensaryanditslocationwere DuringfirstpartofNovember,1941,thetheLegationstaffinBangkokwasbeingenlarged. amessagefromBangkokonNovember7,1941,AmbassadorTsubokamiaskedforservicesofClerkFujishima,whoatthattimewasservinginthethePhilippineIslands.InInaddi­



tion, either Clerk Shinokawa or Clerk Kayahara were to be added to the Embassy at Bang-

Yokota, Ministry of Communications Secretary, and Engineer Hasimoto as Secretaries to the
Embassy; in this way the Foreign Minister said it would be possible to coordinate the variousas
565. Ambassador to Ask Nationals to Secure Rubber, Tin

nationals of that city to direct that the necessary 3,000 kilotons of rubber and 800 kilotons of
tin be purchased. Since it was very important that Japan obtain from Thailand and French
Indo-China all of the rubber and tin possible, the transactions for these goods would be

remittances. 1303

566. Japanese Ambassador Establishes Name, Stockholders for Shipping Concern
In connection with the establishment of a Japanese shipping concern in Thailand, the

Japanese Ambassador had, by November 10, 1941, been somewhat delayed by the suggestion
that Wanitto's subordinates rather than Wanitto himself should be stockholders for Thailand.

Industrial and Commerical Company.) 1304

567. Japanese Officials are Disappointed in Advancement of Proposal to Establish a Commission

Article II of the Tokyo-Bangkok Treaty of Amity. Hearing from Mr. Wanitto that Mr. Derreck
wished to discuss such an establishment with him, the Ambassador had sent Minister

investigation of these strange proceedings, the Ambassador had learned that Prime

Minister Pibul had orginated the plan and, accordingly, the Japanese Ambassador had

Mr. Derreck had not referred to this matter during the conversation of November 7, 1941, theand568.of
In a detailed intelligence report sent from Bangkok to Tokyo on November 10, 1941, rumors

reports were being printed on this subject in Thaiese, English, and Chinese language news-
papers. Furthermore, reports dealing with the failure of the Japanese-American negotiations,
the increased tenseness on the part of the United States, the possibility of the European
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORfunctionsundertheForeignOfficehadbeeneffectedinFrenchIndo-China.1302 

Englandconsequentlyconsideredthetimenotyetright.1305BangkokPapersPrintReportstheJapaneseArmyCampaigninBurma 

kok.13O1OnNovember7,1941,TokyoinquiredwhetheritwouldbepossibletoaddMr. The.JapaneseAmbassadorBangkokwasinstructedtogetinintouchwithJapanese facilitatedarrangingeasypaymentthroughtheYokohamaSpecieBankorbybydirect Thissuggestionhad,accordinginstructionsfromTokyo,madetotoMr.YamashitawhoheadThaieseshippingconcern.ItwaswasfurtherdisclosedthatnameofofJapanesecompanyhadbeenbeenregisteredasthethetheTaiShoUnCompany,Ltd.(TheThai AstrangesituationhadarisenaccordingwiresentbyJapaneseAmbassadortotoBangkok,resultingfromthetheproposedestablishmentofaacommissioninaccordancewith placeForeignOfficesincehebeenillonthatday.AttimevisitMr.Derrecknotreferredtotooriginofofcommitteebut"wanderedininhishistalk".Asaresult,MinisterFutamiFutamihadhadhadhadbrokenoff

thethethethethetheconversationandreturned.Upon immediatelyapproveditthroughmilitaryandnavalattaches.Astothethereasonwhy JapaneseAmbassadorsaidthatDerreckfearedsuchaproposalfromThailandmightarouse concerningtheopeningofaJapanesearmycampaigninBurmawerereported.Sensational 

. 



WarspreadingintothePacific,andJapaneseactivitiesinFrenchIndo-Chinawerecreating

considerable uneasiness among the officials as well as the people of Thailand and Chungking.
After investigating the causes for this condition created in Thailand, the report cited as causes
the stagnation of the Japanese-American negotiations, the anxiety over the wholesale pur-
chase by Japan of Thaiese materials, the American and British policies towards Thailand,
and the uncertainty of the Japanese policy toward the Southern Pacific area.

ItwaspointedoutthatthefeelingsoftheThaiesepeoplehadchangedfromfriendlinesstoaloofnessandfromaloofnesstoopposition.SincethepeoplehadcometobelievethataJapaneseinvasionofThailandwasalmostcertain,therewerethosewhoproclaimedloudlythataJapanesewarwasinevitableandthattheThaieseshouldfighttotheendagainstthe

Japanese invaders. Furthermore, the Autonomy Society had been distributing handbills
exposing Japanese plans for invading Thailand, attempting to get the people interested in a
plebiscite. This secret society had been sending its members from door to door asking,
"WhoshouldThailanddependonincaseitbecomesnolongerpossibletomaintainher

neutrality?". Quoting as a source of information a Thaiese newspaperman, it was further

reported that a secret order had been issued prohibiting the printing of articles and editorials
concerning (1) Speculations about the situation in the South Seas, (2) Sounding out the
intentionsofthenewJapaneseCabinetand(3)CommentingonJapanese,British,American

and Russian views on Thailand.

Furtherevidencethatthecountrywasgraduallygettingonawarbasiswasnotedinthe

issue of secret instructions by government organizations to the effect that Thaiese employees
ofJapanobservedandreportedtheactionsofpersonswhovisitedJapaneseresidents,aswellasinthesecretorderissuedbytheChiefofPolicetorewardthosewhoexposedforeignespionageorga!lil.izations.Inadditionabillwasbeingdraftedtorecruit100,000Thaiese
volunteers. 1306569.DisguisedArmyExpertstoBeSenttoThailand

Theinformationthatcommunicationsequipment,aswellasfourarmycommunication

experts, would be sent to Thailand as non-career clerks under the Foreign Office, was trans-
mittedtoThailandinanarmydispatchofNovember11,1941.ThemenwerescheduledtoleavebyaironNovember13,1941,andconsequentlyarrangementswerebeingmadefortheir

visas. Assigned to Bangkok would be Mr. Kameo Okudara, Communications Clerk Third

Grade,andMr.HideoYuki,anarmyemployee,whiletoSingorawasdispatchedMr.Toshio

Sukai, Communications Clerk First Grade, and to Chiengmai, Mr. Jitiro Taniguchi,
Communications Clerk Second Grade. 1307Whenthemachineryarrived,13O8itwastobe

received as official baggage from the head office to the Embassy and was to be treated as if it
had no connection with the Communications Clerks. 1309

570. Intelligence Agents Report Discussion Between Mr. Duff-Cooper and Premier Pibul

InasecretintelligencereportsenttoTokyoonNovember12,1941thediscussionbetween

Mr. Duff-Cooper, the British Ambassador to Thailand and Premier Pibul, which took place

onOctober3,1941,wasreported.AtthetimeofPremierPibul'ssecretvisittotheairporttoseethetwoBritishers,Mr.Duff-CooperhadadvisedthatJapanwaslikelytoinvadeThailand

and that Thailand should (1) have nothing to do with Japan, (2) close avenues through which
AmericanandotherrawmaterialsweresenttoJapan,and(3)drivetheJapaneseoutof
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Thailand. Pibul had replied that he would consider these things and that if his Country were

Great Britain, however, should not under any circumstances militarily occupy any Thaiese

case be taken in by Japan and advised England not to worry. 1310

Churchill had boasted in a speech of November 10, 1941, that England was ready to fight

that England was very strong, Ambassador Tsubokami suggested that the Imperial Govern-
ment answer Mr. Churchill very strongly in order to avoid the danger of Thailand's turning

Orient; secondly, that he tell Thaiese authorities that cool-headed politicians of third
countries were not surprised at such statements as this which merely amounted to nothing. 1311

571. Tokyo Sends 3,300 Yen to Purchase RadiosOn12,
the purchase of ten large radio transmitters to disseminate Japanese propaganda in Thai-
land.1312572.toin

In answering Tsubokami's suggestion of November 5, 1941, that Japan contract secretly for

Minister Togo advised that this plan had been approved by the department of Agriculture
and Forestry. However, in reply to his application for permission to purchase 50,000 tons
immediately, the Foreign Minister said that this matter would be dealt with after Japanese
Official Shiba had arrived in Bangkok.1313

rubber, the Japanese Ambassador pointed out that foreign companies had been purchasing
such vast amounts that Japanese companies had found it hard to keep pace. Because it would
be difficult to get even one hundred tons per month, it might become necessary to pur-

this situation. 1314573.in
cern. Although the stockholders and the directors would not use Japanese personal names,

necessary to use ships of neutral registry on a charter basis since Japanese ships could be

able.1315 In spite of this encouraging report, Foreign Minister Togo declared that as a result of
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR 
November1941,Bangkokofficialswereadvisedthat3,300yenwasbeingremittedforJapanApprovesPlanPurchaseRiceUnobtrusivelySmallAmounts 
JapanWillHaveControllingInterestNewShippingConcern 

invadedbyJapanitwouldresistvigorouslycooperatingmeanwhilewiththeBritishforces. territorybeforeaJapaneseinvasion.HeassuredMr.Duff-Cooperthathewouldnotinany OnthissamedaytheadditionalintelligencewastransmittedthatPrimeMinister Japan.SincetherewaspossibilitythatthisstatementhadgivenThailandthetheimpression againstJapan.InretaliationAmbassadorTsubokamisuggestedtwoalternatives,first,hetellThaieseofficialsthatthatMr.Churchill'sdeclarationmerelypump-primingtrickgetanAmericanfleetconcentratedatSingapore,sincesuchstatementwaswasobviouslytotobetakenasaaaconfessionofEngland'simpotencedefendingherowninterestininthe 700,000tonsofrice,procuringthisamountunobstrusivelyinsmallpurchases,Foreign AnimpedimentJapaneseplanstopurchaserubberseenbyAmbassadorTsubokamiininhisdispatchofNovember14,1941.Reportingthatthe

marketwaswaspoorlysuppliedwith chaserubberregardlessprice.TheAmbassadoraskedthattheguildbefullyinformedofof Abrighterpicturewasseen,however,owingJapaneseplanstotoestablishashippingcon­fifty-fivepercentstockfixedpolicyheldbybyJapanese.TheboarddirectorsofofofsevenmenincludetwoThaiese.Forthethetimebeing,however,itwouldwouldwouldbebe purchasedonlyafterthecompanybecamecompletelyestablishedandconditionssuit­



Thailand's refusal to permit participation of foreign nationals in jointly-managed enterprises,
no action would be taken on this step at the present time. 1316

1941, relayed the information that Chinese and British interests were buying up the rubber
so that Japan was experiencing difficulty in procuring the scheduled amount. Consequently,

rubber.1317

575. Japan Asks Investigation of Report that Prime Minister Pibul Desires to Resign

tion had been sent to the Yomiuri agency following the announcement by the Thai
government on November 16, 1941. 1318576.Do
negotiations concerning the sale of gold to Thailand did not at that date permit any

application for future credit. Furthermore, the attitude of the Thaiese government regarding

of gold, many days would be required for the confirmation. Considering the attitude of the
Thaiese government it might become necessary, Ambassador Tsubokami declared, to

resort to political means in order to reach a solution of the question and he asked instructions
concerning the policy to be followed in such a case. 1319

577. Tokyo Advises Caution Regarding Operational Plans

take care to ensure perfect secrecy regarding the proposed plans. This Japanese dispatch,wasnot
578. Japanese Return Imperial Portrait to Homeland

Japan for safekeeping. Since Secretary Taniguchi would transport the portrait by airplane,itwasthatat579.of
In a spy report of secondary importance to Tokyo, Foreign Minister Togo learned on Novem-

ber 20, 1941, that Chinese residents had, through a Chinese nationalist leader, proposed to
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574.JapanFearsthatChineseandBritishInterestsAreBuyingRubber
DeclaringthatitwasnecessaryforJapantopurchase1600tonsofrubberfromThailandbythemiddleofDecember,ForeignMinisterTogo,inawiretoShanghaionNovember17, thepurchaseofthe1400tonsofrubberaboardtheEssowhichhadsailedfromBangkokNovember10,1941,wastobeinvestigatedsinceJapanwasalsointerestedinprocuringthis 

-

OnNovember17,1941,theJapaneseForeignMinisterrequestedaninvestigationconcern­ingthetruthofaspecialmessagethatPrimeMinisterPibuldesiredtoresign.Theinforma-GoldNegotiationsNotPermitOptimisticOutlook,AmbassadorSays
AmbassadorTsubokamiadmittedonNovember18,1941,inawiretoTokyothatthe optimism,andthatapolicyofprocrastinationwasforeseenbytheThaieseBankSyndicate's thequestionofraisingthedesiredamountofbahtremaineduncertain.Although,itwasunderstoodthattheFinancialMinistryalreadyhadaplanofitsownfornegotiatingthesale ExtremecautionintheuseoftermswhichmightrevealJapaneseoperationalplanswasurgedbyTokyoatthistimeinviewofthecriticalsituation.Bangkokofficialswereaskedto

however,translateduntilMarch16,1945.1320
OnNovember20,-1941,arrangementswerebeingmadetoreturntheImperialportraitto askedsomeonemeethimtheJapaneseairportuponhisarrival.1322IntelligenceReportInformsTokyoPlannedChinese-ThaieseCooperation 
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join hands with Thailand in case war broke out between that country and Japan. It was

Cabinet had discussed this letter and on November 11, 1941, the British Minister in Bangkok
had interviewed Prime Minister Pibul on this subject. This interview was formally reported

to Tokyo at the time of its taking place. 1323

580. Prime Minister Pibul Assures Ambassador that Thailand Desires to Cooperate Despite
Difficulties

In a conference with Prime Minister Songram Luang Pibul on the afternoon of November

the Prime Minister of his talk with Foreign Minister Togo. During the conversation Prime

Minister Pibul declared that Thailand wished to supply, to the extent of its ability,
needed commodities to Japan and that, in regard to this question, the Anglo-American
position was very unreasonable. Although no proposal for an accord had been received from
the British, it was possible that Great Britain would freeze Thailand's funds amounting
to 160,000,000 baths in England, and forbid the exporting of oil and hemp bags.

Minister's earnest desire that Japan should remain powerful until the end, and that afterthewarthea
The Japanese Ambassador had explained that America was unreasonably opposing

the aftermath of the international holocaust engulf Thailand, but it might endanger theofthein581.ofto
Ambassador Tsubokami also reported that a British Minister had called on Prime Minister

Pibul on November 18, 1941, according to a spy report. During this visit the British Minister

land, promising to supply Thailand with arms; and that on November 17, 1941, he had
received instructions from London that his country was now ready to furnish those arms.

582. British Minister Points to Thailand's Dangertothespythe
States, the Netherlands Indies and China in a defense camp. In this way Japan could be

have to give an account to the Axis "for having danced to England's fiddle" .1326
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR
requestedthatThaiesenativesbegivenfullinstructionsanddrill.OnNovember10,1941,the 20,1941,AmbassadorTsubokamidiscussedthecriticalinternationalsituation,informing ItwasMr.Pibul'sbeliefthattheBritishauthoritiesintheFarEastwishedtobringtheThaieseregionintotheconflictinordertoretainthe"statusquo".Itwas,however,thePrime 

Imperialgovernmentshouldoccupypositionofpowerintheworld.1324
Japanesedemandsandthatthereappearedtobenowaytoeffectasolution.Notonlywould establishmentNewOrderEastAsiaandtheemancipationoftheAsiaticpeoples.1325JapanLearnsAllegedBritishProposalSupplyThailandwithArms

hadobservedthatonOctober27,1941,GreatBritainhadproposedasecrettreatywithThai-AccordingreportBritishMinisterhadobservedthatGreatBritainwassorryfor
themistakesshehadmadeconcerningThailandinthepastandhadvolunteeredtheinformationthattherewereagreatmanyJapaneseFifthColumnistsinThailandatthistime.Moreover,itwaspossibleforJapantonowcarryoutherwell-laidplansforaninvasionoftheSouthernPacific.Beforethisshouldhappen,ThailandshouldjoinwithEngland,theUnited weakenedbyawarofnerves.Tothisproposal,PrimeMinisterPibulhadrepliedthatThai­landhadneveryetbeeninvadedbytheJapanesearmy,andatthepresenttimewasstickingtostrictneutrality.TotheBritishMinister'sinterpolationthattheJapanesecouldpossiblyattackBurmaandpassthroughThailand,PibulhadansweredthattheBritishforcescouldundertakethesameaction.IftheJapaneseforcesdidnotpassthroughThailandtheywould 



583. Japan

22, 1941, that the actual
shipment of rubber from the plantations would be fifty per cent less than ordinary years.
From the beginning of 1941 until October, of the total 38,000 tons of rubber exported, 21,400
had gone to Japan, 7,300 had been sent to Shanghai, 1,200 to Manchukuo, 7,600 to the Malay

equal to its requirements. 1327

584. Supplies for Japanese Owned Drug Dispensary are Sent from Shanghai

22, 1941, Shanghai wired thewhowason the Kobe Maru

585. Ambassador Tsubokami Requests Assistance for Five Newspapermen

sent by the Nichi Nichi newspaper be assisted to procure visas while they were in French-

Takashichi Saruwatari, and Ryosuke Taniguchi.1329

586. Thailand Consortium Makes Written Proposal Regarding Liquidation of Japanese Gold

Ambassador Tsubokami reported on November 21, 1941, that, although no concrete
proposal had been advanced by the Consortium regarding the purchase of gold, they had

written

understanding of August 2, 1941, the Thaiese requested a shipment of gold equivalent to
10,000,000 bahts, 500,000 bahts of which was to be sent by air. Although Mr. Fukuda had

Office, Ambassador

Tsubokami advised that Japan ship the amount requested, and suggested that negotiations
regarding the purchase of gold be begun.1330

According to the price of gold previously set in the agreement between Thailand bank

would amount to 10 baht, (80 satan). However, now at the time of delivery in Bangkok the

price appeared to be 11 baht. Since Japan assumed the cost of the delivery of the gold to
Thailand, Foreign Minister Togo directed that Ambassador Tsubokami settle the price at
10 baht, 80 satan.1331

Ambassador Tsubokami arrange for a suitable boat. 1332

587. Foreign Minister Togo Sends Secret Fund to Bangkok Foreign Office

November 24, 1941, Foreign Minister Togo wired that he was sending 60,000 baht tothetobeinina
later as would be directed. 1333
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toReceiveLessRubberDuetoProductionDecreaseToprepareJapantoexpectlessrubberthanwaspreviouslyrequestedfromThailand,
AmbassadorTsubokaminotifiedtheHomeOfficeonNovember States.HepointedoutthattheamountofrubbershippedtoJapaninthefuturewouldnotbe OnNovember informationthatthedrugsfortheChinesedrugdispensaryinBangkokwerebeingdispatchedfromShanghaiontheToaKaiunduringthelatterpartofNovember.DetailsofthetransferweretobecommunicatedbyMr.Awaya returningfromTokyoonNovember21.1328

AmbassadorTsubokamiinadispatchonNovember22,1941,requestedthatthefivemen IndoChina.ThesemenwerelistedasKoichiYanashita,HiroshiNakano,HideoIshibashi, madea proposaltotheYokohamaSpecieBankonNovember19.Accordingtothe delayedbysayingthatthematterwouldhavetobereferredtotheHead authoritiesandtheYokohamaSpecieBank,thepriceofgolduponitsdeliverytoBangkok ForeignMinisterTogowiredonNovember24,1941,thatJapanwouldsend10,000,000bahtsbyboatsinceitwasnotconvenienttotransportthisamountbyair.Heaskedthat On 

BangkokForeignOfficekeptcashspecialsecretfund.Thisfundwastobespent 
13'"IV,1170. 



Since Thailand was close enough that the code machines could be transferred to Japanso589.
decisive action in a southward advance, it would be necessary to bring Thailand into the Japa-

would be a necessity of temporary infringement upon the territorial sovereignty of Thailand.

independence of Thailand would be respected. Should Thailand cooperate in a positive way

in the areas concerned. Should Thailand's assets in England be frozen resulting in the
fluctuation of the value of the country's money, Japan would make available sufficient funds
to create a "bloc" money system, and should also prepare to provide petroleum and other
essential commodities. The Ambassador re-emphasized his points by saying that Thailand's
sovereignty must not be impaired beyond the limits of necessity; that its standing as a
nation should be maintained to the very last with military discipline to reassure the
Thaiese populace; and that strict control should be exercised over any attempts at pro-
fiteering.1335590.

Inner circles of the Thailand government were taking a serious view regarding Thailand'sandNaiW591.
Puromu over questions of policy and Nai Wanitto. While Mr. Pibul believed that the Thaiese
policy should be one of strict neutrality, Mr. Puromu, on the other hand, believed that Thai-
land would be safer by definitely tying in with one side, thereby eliminating the possibility
of being attacked by either side. When Prime Minister Pibul had questioned which side
he would join, Minister Puromu had replied that they must wait and see which side won
out in the Russo-German war.1337
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR588.BangkokOfficeReturnsCodeMachinestoJapan
incomparativesafety,ratherthandestroyingthem,AmbassadorTsubokamireportedonNo­vember24,1941,thattwoobsoletecodemachineswouldbeenroutetoJapanincareoftheCaptainoftheBataviaMaruwhichwouldleaveportonDecember1,1941.Heaskedthat arrangementsbemadethatitwouldnotbeinspectedwhenpassingthroughcustoms.1334AmbassadorTsubokamiBelievesthatThailandShouldbeLedtoCooperateVoluntarily

AmbassadorTsubokamionNovember25,1941,pointedoutthatshouldtheEmpiretake nesecamp,consideringthenecessityofabelligerent'srightstomakecleartherelationsbetweensovereignandsubjects.HealsostatedthatThailandshouldbeledvoluntarilytotakeanattitudeofcooperation.IntheeventofanattackuponBurmaandMalayathere AfterJapan'sobjectiveshadbeenattained,however,restorationwouldbemadeandthe withJapan,Thailandwouldbegivenfullassurancethatitsswamplandscouldbereclaimed 

NewPro-JapanesePartyAdvocatesCollaborationwithJapan
foreigndiplomaticpolicytowardtheinternationalsituation.Itwasdeclaredthatthenewpro-Japanesepartyfeltthatonemeansofmaintainingitsgovernment'sindependencewasclosercollaborationbetweenThailandandJapan.ConcreteplanshadbeenreportedlylaidonNovember23,1941,whenasecretmeetingwasheldbetweenPibul,Tumaron,Min, PurrijittoPananowanitto.1336PrimeMinisterPibul,DefenseMinisterPuromuDifferConcerningThailand'sPolicy

AretransmissiontoBerlinonNovember25,1941,ofadispatchfromBangkoktoTokyoexplainedthefeelingexistingbetweenPrimeMinisterPibulandNationalDefenseMinister 133'IV,1177.275 



592. Ambassador Requests Funds for Machinations
Referring to a previous dispatch in which 6,900 yen had been requested for a machinations

mitted to him immediately. 1338

fishing vessel belonging to Nagafuku of Singapore figured largely. It appeared that it wastobeforoftoplanhetoto
594. Japan Agrees to 25,000,000 Baht Exchange of Gold

Recommending on November 25, 1941, that the negotiations then underway be adjourned,

totalling 25,000,000 bahts. Furthermore, judging from the volume of goods Japan had received

necessary to have the equivalent bahts available in Japan for many months yet. 1340

Referring to Tokyo's question effecting the exchange of gold at 10 bahts, 80 satan, Ambassa-
dor Tsubokami in a dispatch on November 26, 1941 wired Tokyo concerning the difficulties
involved in the exchange. Because of the present problems he suggested that Japan should
resort to a political solution and that actual settlement of the question should be effected bythe
595. Japan Discovers Discrimination in Thaiese Censorship

In his attempt to discover the basis on which Thailand conducted its censorship, the

frequently appeared to be censored, but letters passing through the country seemed to be

Thailand did not go through the post office, these were not censored. 1342

596. Ambassador Advises That Railway be Completed Quickly

sent to Japan on November 26, 1941, by the Ambassador in Bangkok. Moreover, he requested
that Japanese companies and responsible authorities in Siam get in touch with his office
before handling foreign trade. 1343597.to
still possible to procure 10,000 tons of rubber and he requested that the Ambassador spur
Japanese merchants to complete the arrangements for the rubber.1344
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fund,AmbassadorTsubokamionNovember25,1941,againaskedthatthisamountbetrans-OnNovember25,1941,theJapaneseAmbassadorBangkokreferredtoplanininwhichaa impossibleforvesselthethecrewtomakeagetawayasfirstplannedandandthatarrange­ingactionanddiscussingitwithSecretaryTahira,iftheForeignMinisterthoughtthisthis ForeignMinisterTogodeclaredthatFinanceMinistryhadagreedtothethegoldpurchase fromThailandonindentpurchase,heinformedAmbassadorTsubokamithatitwouldbeAmbassadortoalsoexplainedthatletterspassedbetweenJapanandThailandThailand untouched.SincedocumentsbetweenForeignMinisterandthetheJapaneseEmbassyin ThesuggestionthattheSiameserailwaybecompletedbyJapanquicklyasaspossiblewas Inadispatchdesigned,primarily,tolistschedulesofthetheJapaneseMaruscarryingwire

concerningthegeneraltotalofimportsamountingto38,000tons.Inhisopinionitwas 

593.AmbassadorRecommendsthatCrewofFishingVesselEscapetotheSaigonDistrictmentswouldhavemadehalfthecrewescapetotheSaigondistrict.Afterconsider-proper,wasaskedissueordersthiseffect.1339
February,1942,whencreditagreementbetweenthetwocountriesshouldexpire.1341 
ForeignMinisterTogoAsksthatAdditionalRubberbeSecuredrubberfromThailandJapan,ForeignMinisterTogocommentedonAmbassadorTsubokami's 



at
599. Consul General Asada Carries Important Papers to Thailand

Foreign Minister Togo declared on November 27, 1941, that Consul General Asada, return-
ing to Japan, was carrying papers regarding the secret negotiations with Prime Minister
Pibul. The Foreign Minister directed that the Ambassador should consult Consul General
Shunsuke Asada in any matter pertaining to Thailand. 1346600.to
editor of the Bangkok Times, Mr. Ado, via a Japanese secret agent, were reported to Tokyo
on November 27, 1941. According to the high ranking official the Thailand government sympa-

neutrality were merely gestures toward Gre&t Britain and America. The official stated, more-

peacefully in three or four months feeling safe. 1347

seven had been drafted. 1348601.ofto
Yoichi Fukuda of the Yokohama Specie Bank and Minister Kohei Futami, Uychiyama,

the Finance Ministry Advisers, and Prince Aitsu concerning the transfer of 25,000,000
bahts. Declaring that Japan wished to continue the exchange of gold until the end of

being held in reserve. 1349

602. Ambassador Requests Additional Secret FundOn28,
carrying on intelligence and enlightenment propaganda in the eventuality that remittances
from Japan might cease. Since it had been decided to enlarge upon and carry out a pro-
paganda policy which had been previously decided, the Ambassador stated that he would
send the written plan to Tokyo at a later time. 1360
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR598.JapanPlanstoInvestigateRawOpiumMarket
TheForeignMinisterrequ~dthataninvestigationregardingthesupplyanddemandofrawopiuminThailandbe"€6nducted.Heaskedthattheamountconsumed,theamountproduced,theimportsandthepriceatwhichthePurchasingBureauobtainedrawopiumandthepricewhichitretailedbeiisted-.1345HighRankingOfficialSaysThailandFriendlyJapaneseArmy

ThepertinentremarksofahighrankingThaiesewhichwerelearnedthroughtheassociate thizedwiththeaimsoftheJapanesearmyanddeclaredthattherecentstrictobservancesof over,thatshouldtheJapanesearmyinvadeThailandthatcountrywasnotpreparedtorepeltheinvasionandthatifitweretactfullycarriedoutthepeoplewouldprobablysettledown Inspiteofthisreport,however,JapaneseofficialsintheThaiesecapitalreportedonNovem­ber28,1941,thatThailandhadbeguntodraftmen,althoughtheconscriptionwasnotheavy.Asanexample,itwasfoundthatofthe232personsworkingfornineJapanesecompanies, 

AgreementStipulatesContinuanceGoldExchangeMarch,1942
TheJapaneseAmbassadorwiredTokyothataconferencehadbeenheldbetweenMr. March,1942,Mr.Fukudahadobtained.apromisethattheFinanceMinisterwouldtakeupthiscaseataCabinetmeetingonDecember3,1941.ItwashopedthattheFinanceMinisterwouldeventuallyrequestthetransferofAmericandollarsonly,withThaiesefunds November1941,AmbassadorTsubokamirequested100,000yenforthepurposeof 

1'<'IV,1187. ""OIV,1190.
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603. Ambassador Tsubokami Explains Objectives of Prime Minister Pibul's Sp.eech

During a talk with Minister Futami, Mr. Pibul had been particular to refer to this point. 1351

During the discussion Pibul revealed that British propaganda had been fluctuating and that

that in his talk to be given later in the day he would declare that it was Thailand's policy
to stick to neutrality and would advise them not to be taken in by propaganda from foreign
sources. Minister Futami replied that should Japanese forces in French Indo-China be forced
to embark on a local course of action, he would like the Prime Minister to realize that such

Thaiese people of his hopes that Japan would occupy French Indo-China, considering Thai-
land's policy of neutrality. Should the country be threatened by some Japanese actionbythea
604. Ambassador Tsubokami Suggests that Thailand be Persuaded to Cooperate

Discussing the present situation in Thailand and laying the groundwork whereby Thailand
could be justifiably invaded by the Japanese army, Ambassador Tsubokami sent a dispatch

reasons, it would be better if Thailand should abandon her neutrality policy by formally
requesting cooperative action "from the nation concerned" rather than by being compelled to
consent to considerations by pressure brought to bear.

This had been suggested to Mr. Luang Sindhu, Minister of Education, and Mr. Wanitto in a
conference with Naval Attache Yoshika at which time Mr. Luang Sindhu had volunterred to

intentions of Japan or the real meaning of the East Asia co-prosperity plan, the influence of
the Japanese southward expansion policy, the extent of commodity supplying, and the

having better success with the result that their position had become more favorable.

1941, had kept silent. 1353

605. Thaiese Government Officials Still Vote for Neutrality
In spite of the discussion of joint military action by the pro-Japanese faction, Thailand

still desired to maintain strict neutrality and Ambassador Tsubokami explained that the

Japanese Ambassador suggested that Britain be forced to aggression, with Japan assuming

territory of Kotaparu, forcing Britain to invade Thailand from Patanbessa. This would resultinon
However, should Japan use the method of presenting an ultimatum to Thailand, it might

1352IV, 1192.

InregardPrimeMinisterPibul'sbroadcasthispeopleonNovember27,1941,JapaneseAmbassadordeclaredthatspeechhadbeenmadelaythethethegroundworkforadiplomaticaboutfaceandtotototowarnthosewhowere.influencedbyBritishpropaganda. notafewThaiesebeenintheemploymentofGreatBritain.HehadhadtoldMinisterFutami itselfaimedatThailand.HepromisedanymilitaryactionactionwouldwouldbebeininbehalfPibul'scountryandaskedforcooperation.ThePrimeMinisterthenrevealedthatthatbecauseinsecurityofofofhishisownposition,hehehadnotnotdaredtoinformthethetoTokyoonNovember29,1941.Fromthestandpointofface-savingandalsoformaterial handlematterandtoputfortheveryeffortforitsrealization.ThroughthesetwoThaieseofficialsJapanesehadlearnedthatdiscussionsinCabinetconcernedthethethethereal 

durationtimestationingtroops.LedbyNaiWanittopro-JapanesegroupCabinetininadvocatingthethetheestablishingofofofaunionbetweenJapanandThailandhadbeen Althoughmatterwasasyetunconcluded,thetheoppositionsinceaboutNovember25, nationwhichmadefirstmovewouldberegardedasThai'senemy.Consideringthis,thethe positionofThai'shelper.Toeffectthis,JapanshouldlandhertroopsnearthetheBritish bedifficulttolimittheconflict,officialsinBangkokwiredonDecember3,1941.Details1301IV,1191. 13531193.130'IV,IV,1194.278 

supportedPrimeMinister,Mr.Pibulwouldbecutoff,"isolated,loneman".1352 
Thailand'sdeclaringwarGreatBritain.13M 



concerning this subject were to be reported to the Vice-Chief of the General staff through
Staff Officer Yahara.13ss

Reportedly concerned over Prime Minister Pibul's "weak character" were Mr. Luang

Sindhu and Mr. Wanitto who suggested a plan whereby Mr. Pibul would be forced to declare

his position. One method would be for Japan to remove forcibly some undersirable Japanese
from Thailand, subsequently publicizing this as the forerunner of a general evacuation of
Japanese nationals. Such action would speed favorable developments, the Ambassador
said.13s6

607. Ambassador Sends List of Codes to be Destroyed

Bangkok office planned to destroy, requesting that any objections be sent by return wire.13s7

608. Japanese Ambassador Suggests Counter Propaganda Tactics

published in English and Thaiese newspapers editorials stressing that the colored races
in Australia and North America were suppressed, that Japan's objective was not Thailand,
and that small nations had been victimized by British propaganda and schemes in thewar
609. Foreign Minister Togo Remits Funds for Propaganda PurposesTheby
Minister Togo advised Ambassador Tsubokami on December 1, 1941.l3S9610.SetUp
concerned with arranging the Thaiese currency problem, and requested, on December

3, 1941, that a suitable person be appointed to the Embassy staff for this purpose, and sent
as soonas possible.1361

Vice-Chief of the Japanese General Staff to withdraw Japanese fishing boats from Singapore.

For the time being, then, it was decided that this action should not be taken. 1362611.Nai
During a three-hour Cabinet speech, Prime Minister Pibul had declared that "The time had

1355IV,1195.

135<IV,1194.
!35'IV, 1196.

!35"IV, 1197.

135'IV, 1198.

'3<.IV, 1199.

!361IV, 1200.

!362IV, 1201.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBOR606.OfficialsOriginatePlanToForceMr.PibultoDeclareHisPosition 
OnNovember30,1941,AmbassadorTsubokamitransmittedalistofthecodeswhichthe TocounterBritishpropaganda,theJapaneseAmbassadorsuggestedthatJapanhave betweenGermanyandBritain.13ss¥lOO,OOOearlierrequestedBangkokforpropagandapurposeshadbeensent,ForeignJapaneseOfficialsSecretWirelessCommunicationFacilities

IntheeventthatcommunicationsbetweenBangkokandTokyowerecutoff,secretwirelesscommunicationfacilitieshadbeensetupbetweenBangkokandtheDomeiPressOfficeinSaigon.136oMoreover,tomeetanyemergencysituation,JapaneseofficialsinBangkokwere InviewoftheurgencyofconcealingJapaneseplans,itwasdeemedinadvisablebythe WanittoBelievesThailandWillCooperatewithJapaninTwoorThreeDays
comewhenThailandmustcastitsfatewiththatofJapan,"AmbassadorTsubokamireported 



on December 4, 1941. This had been approved by a standing vote by Mr. Luang Sindhu,
Mr. Boriban, Vice-Commander Rwankurien, Minister of Defense Ruansweri and the Chief

oftheGeneralStaffRuanbitittoSonghram.Mr.WanittobelievedthatThailandwouldswitchovertoJapanwithinthenexttwoorthreedays.1363
In spite of this belief, however, it was also reported on December 4 that the Siamese

governmenthadsenttwomentotalkwiththeCommandingOfficeroftheBritishFarEasternArmyatSingapore.ThesemenweretoobservetheconditionoftheBritishforces

and to deal with the matter of purchasing material. 1364

612. Thailand Sends Official Reply to Financial Proposal

OnDecember4,1941,thetermsofthememorandumregardingthefinancialnegotiationsbetweenThailandandJapanwerewiredtoTokyotoberegardedastheofficialreplyofThai-land.IthadbeenhandedtoMinisterFutamionDecember4,1941,andstipulatedthatthe

Yokohama Specie Bank would transfer 25,000,000 baht in gold to the Treasury Department. 1365

613. Propaganda to be Disseminated in Thailand is Sent to Japan
Inaccordancewithhispreviouslyadvocatedpolicyofdisseminatingpropaganda,Ambassa-

dor Tsubokami forwarded communications to Japan which, if broadcast in English and

Thaiese,couldbeheardbytheThaiesepopulace.Thepropagandahadbeenoriginally

written by the Japanese special correspondent in Bangkok. 1366

614. British and American Residents Evacuate Bangkok
Meanwhile,onDecember5,1941,theAmbassadorinformedTokyothatBritishand

American residents were beginning to evacuate Bangkok but that the number going to

BritishMalayawasnotlarge.HereportedthatmanyweregoingtothevicinityofHoaninand

South Thailand. Moreover, he informed Tokyo that a conference of delegates reporting theevacuationhadbeenheldattheBritishLegationonDecember3,19411367
It had been learned that approximately thirty Americans living in Chiengmai, Lampang,

PraeandothercitiesinthatvicinityhadmetatahospitalinChiengmaionNovember30

to discuss the matter of their evacuation. The result of their discussion was not included in
the dispatch transmitted from Bangkok to Tokyo on December 2, 1941. 1368615.AmbassadorInformsTokyoofScheduleofBataviaMaru

OnDecember6,1941,theAmbassadortransmittedthescheduleoftheBataviaMaruaswellascargowhichitwouldcarrytoOsaka.ScheduledtosailonDecember5,1941,itwould

touch port at Saigon and Keelung. 1369 !

616. Japan to Issue Proclamation on December 8, 1941
Tokyo informed Ambassador Tsubokami that December 8, 1941 would be the declaration

orproclamationdayashadbeendecidedbytheliaisonconferenceofDecember6,1941.AreceiptwastobesentimmediatelyfromBangkokassoonasthisdispatchhadbeen

received. 1370 .

!363IV, 1202.

!36'IV, 1203.

136'IV, 1204.

!366IV, 1205.

136'IV, 1206.

!368IV, 1207.

1369IV, 1208.

l37°IV, 1209.
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617. Invasion of Thailand to be Announced by Separate Wire

instructed to arrange to defeat Britain's plots by choosing the most appropriate statement in

insure that the Imperial forces' objectives would not be exposed in making these announce-
ments.1371

618. Foreign Office Provides Ambassador with Varying Explanations in Case Occupation is Peaceful
or by Force

accomplished peacefully, it was pointed out that the relations between Thailand and

would strive toward the stabilization of the Far East and towards the creation of a co-prosperit)

reached an agreement on the joint defense of Thailand or had reached an agreement of a
certain kind of alliance; or Thailand had agreed to join the Tripartite Pact; or Thailand agreed
to permit the passage of Japanese troops through Thailand. 1372

under the pretense of defense. Since these British troops had attacked Thailand, the
Imperial government had begun to occupy Thailand as an emergency defense measure.
It was to be pointed out that Japan had absolutely no intention of conducting an invasion or of

officials and people of Thailand. 1373619.oftowastoon8,
ments they agreed that Thailand should give to Japan the right of passage through Thaiese
territory, extending all necessary facilities for the said passage of Japanese forces and to take
every measure to avoid conflict between the Japanese and Thaiese forces. The particulars for

and honor of Thailand would be respected. 1374

620. Tokyo Announces Armies' Advance and Occupation of Bataan IslandInawaron9,
the east coast of Malaya) and were making progress in setting up their bases in preparation for
further advancement.

Japanese units had succeeded in damaging forty-four and shooting down fifteen allied planes.thattheof
been bombing northern Luzon, while the navy had been bombing the central and southern
part of the Island.1375

1372IV, 1211.

1373IV, 1212.

l3"IV, 1213.

1375IV, 1214.
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THE"MAGIC"BACKGROUNDOFPEARLHARBORInamessagewhichwasbadlygarbledintransmissionfromTokyotoBangkokonDecember
7,1941,itwaslearnedthatJapanwouldannounceitsinvasionofThailandbyseparatewireassoonastheImperialgovernment'sdecisionbecameclear.AmbassadorTsubokamiwas theannouncementastheEmbassy'sstatement.Hewasurgedtoexerciseeveryprecautionto Accordingtoseparatemessage"A",whichwastobeapplicableshouldtheoccupationbe Japanhadreachedthehighestpointoftheirfriendshipandthatthetwocountriestogether sphere.TheAmbassadorcoulduseanyofthefollowingphrases;JapanandThailandhad Intheeventofaforcefuloccupation,itwastobeexplainedthatforsometimepasttheBritishhadbeenmassinglargenumbersoftroopsontheMalayanandBurmeseborders interferingwithThailand'sindependenceandthatfullcooperationwasexpectedfromthe 

ThailandGivesRightPassageThroughTerritoryJapaneseArmy
AnagreementsignedbytheJapaneseAmbassadorandtheThaieseMinisterofForeignAffairssentTokyoDecember1941.Asrepresentativesoftheirrespectivegovern-

theexecutionoftheagreementshouldbedeterminedbetweenthemilitaryauthoritiesofthetwocountries.Japanbythisagreementguaranteedthattheindependence,sovereignty situationreportDecember1941,theVice-ChiefoftheGeneralStaffannounced
thatasofDecember8JapaneseunitshadlandedinThailand,Malaya,andKotaBahru(on Onetransporthadbeenlost,aswellaselevenunidentifiedunitsandseveralfighterplanes. HeannouncedthatThailandhadbeeninvadedat1230(Izonetime)onDecember8and unitswhichhadlandedsouthBangkokwereadvancingtowardthecity.

JapaneseunitshadalsooccupiedBataanIslandnorthofthePhilippines,andthearmyhad 1371IV,1210. "u.S.GOVERNMENTPRINTINGOFFICE:19780-244-824Vol.IVPt.I 
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